
 

 
Cambridge City Council 

 
 

 
 

 
i 

ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
 
To:   Scrutiny Committee Members: Kightley (Chair), Saunders (Vice-Chair), 

Johnson, Marchant-Daisley, Owers, Reid, Reiner and Herbert 
 
Alternates: Councillors Pogonowski and Brierley 
 
Executive Councillor for Planning and Climate Change: Councillor Ward  
 
Executive Councillor for Environmental and Waste Services: Councillor 
Swanson   
 

Despatched: Monday, 1 October 2012 
  
Date: Tuesday, 9 October 2012 
Time: 5.00 pm 
Venue: Committee Room 1 & 2 - Guildhall 
Contact:  Toni Birkin Direct Dial:  01223 457086 
 

AGENDA 
1    APOLOGIES   

 
 To receive any apologies for absence.  
2    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 
 Members are asked to declare at this stage any interests that they may 

have in an item shown on this agenda. If any member of the Committee is 
unsure whether or not they should declare an interest on a particular 
matter, they should seek advice from the Head of Legal Services before 
the meeting.  

3    MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 24) 
 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 26th June 2012 as a correct 
record. (Pages 1 - 24) 

4    PUBLIC QUESTIONS   

Public Document Pack



 
ii 

 
 Please see information at the end of the agenda  
 
Items for Decision by the Executive Councillor, Without Debate 
These Items will already have received approval in principle from the Executive 
Councillor. The Executive Councillor will be asked to approve the recommendations 
as set out in the officer’s report.   
 
There will be no debate on these items, but members of the Scrutiny Committee and 
members of the public may ask questions or comment on the items if they comply 
with the Council’s rules on Public Speaking set out below. 
 
Items for Debate by the Committee and then Decision by the Executive 
Councillor  
These items will require the Executive Councillor to make a decision after hearing 
the views of the Scrutiny Committee.    
 
There will be a full debate on these items, and members of the public may ask 
questions or comment on the items if they comply with the Council’s rules on Public 
Speaking set out below. 
 
5   DECISION TAKEN BY EXECUTIVE COUNCILLORS   
5a   Hackney Carriage Fair Fare Scheme  (Pages 25 - 32) 
5b   Grand Arcade Car Park Repairs  (Pages 33 - 46) 
 
Decisions for the Executive Councillor for Environmental and Waste Services 
  
 
Items for Debate by the Committee and then Decision by the Executive 
Councillor 
6   UPDATE ON RECYCLING (Pages 47 - 342) 

7   INTRODUCTION OF DOG CONTROL ORDERS (Pages 343 - 348) 
 
Decisions for the Executive Councillor for Planning and Climate Change 
  
 
Items for Debate by the Committee and then Decision by the Executive 
Councillor 



 
iii 

8   CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL CLIMATE CHANGE STRATEGY (Pages 
349 - 400) 

9   ADOPTION OF INTERIM PLANNING POLICY GUIDANCE (IPPG) ON 
THE PROTECTION OF PUBLIC HOUSES IN CAMBRIDGE (Pages 401 - 
572) 

10   COUNCIL APPOINTMENTS TO THE CONSERVATORS OF THE RIVER 
CAM (Pages 573 - 610) 
 

 NOT FOR PUBLICATION: The confidential appendix (appendix B) to the 
report relates to an item during which the public is likely to be excluded from 
the meeting by virtue of paragraph 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006. 
   



 
iv 

 
 

Information for the Public 
 

 
 

Location 
 
 
 
 

The meeting is in the Guildhall on the Market Square 
(CB2 3QJ).  
 
Between 9 a.m. and 5 p.m. the building is accessible 
via Peas Hill, Guildhall Street and the Market Square 
entrances. 
 
After 5 p.m. access is via the Peas Hill entrance. 
 
All the meeting rooms (Committee Room 1, 
Committee 2 and the Council Chamber) are on the 
first floor, and are accessible via lifts or stairs.  
 

 
 
 

Public 
Participation 

Some meetings may have parts that will be closed to 
the public, but the reasons for excluding the press 
and public will be given.  
 
Most meetings have an opportunity for members of 
the public to ask questions or make statements.  
 
To ask a question or make a statement please notify 
the Committee Manager (details listed on the front of 
the agenda) prior to the deadline.  
 
• For questions and/or statements regarding 
items on the published agenda, the deadline is 
the start of the meeting. 

 
• For questions and/or statements regarding 
items NOT on the published agenda, the 
deadline is 10 a.m. the day before the meeting.  

 
 
Speaking on Planning or Licensing Applications is 
subject to other rules. Guidance for speaking on these 
issues can be obtained from Democratic Services on 
01223 457013 or 
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk.  
 
Further information about speaking at a City Council 

 



 
v 

meeting can be found at; 
 
http://www.cambridge.gov.uk/public/docs/Having%20
your%20say%20at%20meetings.pdf 
 
Cambridge City Council would value your assistance 
in improving the public speaking process of 
committee meetings. If you have any feedback please 
contact Democratic Services on 01223 457013 or 
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk. 
 
 

Filming, 
recording 
and 
photography 

The Council is committed to being open and 
transparent in the way it conducts its decision-making.  
Recording is permitted at council meetings, which are 
open to the public. The Council understands that 
some members of the public attending its meetings 
may not wish to be recorded. The Chair of the 
meeting will facilitate by ensuring that any such 
request not to be recorded is respected by those 
doing the recording.  
 
Full details of the City Council’s protocol on 
audio/visual recording and photography at meetings 
can be accessed via: 
 
www.cambridge.gov.uk/democracy/ecSDDisplay.aspx
?NAME=SD1057&ID=1057&RPID=33371389&sch=d
oc&cat=13203&path=13020%2c13203.  
 

 

Fire Alarm In the event of the fire alarm sounding please follow 
the instructions of Cambridge City Council staff.  
 

 

Facilities for 
disabled 
people 

Level access to the Guildhall is via Peas Hill. 
 
A loop system is available in Committee Room 1, 
Committee Room 2 and the Council Chamber.  
 
Accessible toilets are available on the ground and first 
floor. 
 
Meeting papers are available in large print and other 
formats on request prior to the meeting. 
 
For further assistance please contact Democratic 

 



 
vi 

Services on 01223 457013 or 
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk. 
 

Queries on 
reports 

If you have a question or query regarding a committee 
report please contact the officer listed at the end of 
relevant report or Democratic Services on 01223 
457013 or democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk. 
 
 

 

General 
Information 

Information regarding committees, councilors and the 
democratic process is available at 
www.cambridge.gov.uk/democracy.  
 
 

 

 
 
 
 



Environment Scrutiny Committee Env/1 Tuesday, 26 June 2012 
 

 
 
 

1 

ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 26 June 2012 
 4.00  - 8.05 pm 
 
Present:  Councillors Kightley (Chair), Saunders (Vice-Chair), Johnson, 
Marchant-Daisley, Owers, Reid, Reiner, Swanson, Ward, Brierley and Herbert 
 
Also Present:: 
Executive Councillor for Environmental and Waste Services: Jean Swanson 
 
Executive Councillor for Planning and Sustainable Transport: Tim Ward  
 
Officers Present:  
Director of Environment, Simon Payne; 
Head of Planning Services, Patsy Dell; 
Head of Corporate Strategy, Andrew Limb;  
Head of Refuse & Environment, Jas Lally; 
Urban Design and Conservation Manager, Glen Richardson; 
Senior Conservation and Design Officer, Susan Smith; 
Accountant, Richard Wesbroom; 
Waste Services Development Officer, Chloe Hipwood; 
Head of Streets and open Spaces, Toni Ainley; 
Environmental Projects Officer, Andrew Preston; 
Planning Policy Manager), Sara Saunders; 
Democratic Services Manager, Gary Clift; and  
Toni Birkin (Committee Manager),  
 
 
FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE COUNCIL 
 

12/29/ENV Apologies 
 
Apologies were received from Councillor Pogonowski. Councillor Kightley sent 
his apologies for the first part of the meeting and Councillor Saunders took the 
Chair for minute items 12/29/ENV to 12/35/ENV. Councillor Brierley (present 
for minute items 12/29/ENV to 12/35/ENV) and Councillor Herbert were 
present as alternates.  
 

12/30/ENV Declarations of Interest 
 
 

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Environment Scrutiny Committee Env/2 Tuesday, 26 June 2012 
 

 
 
 

2 

Councillor  Item Interest 
Saunders 12/38/ENV Personal: Member of Cambridge Past, Present and 

Future  
Saunders 12/44/ENV Personal: Member of Transitions Cambridge 
Reiner 12/46/ENV Personal: Uses Park Street Car Park 
Reiner 12/38/ENV Personal: Members of Cambridge Past Present and 

Future 
Personal: Members of English Heritage 

Reid 12/44/ENV Personal: Member of Close the Door 
Reid 12/38/ENV Personal: Members of Cambridge Past Present and 

Future 
Ward 12/45/ENV Personal: Is currently a Cam Conservator 
 
 

12/31/ENV Minutes 
 
The minutes of the meeting of the 13th March 2012 meeting were approved 
and signed as a correct record.  
 

12/32/ENV Public Questions (Please see information at the end of the 
agenda) 
 
Mr Rees addressed the committee.  Details listed under item 12/45/ENV.  
 

Change to Agenda Order 
 
Under paragraph 4.2.1 of the Council Procedure Rules, the Chair used his 
discretion to alter the order of the agenda items. However, for ease of the 
reader, these minutes will follow the order of the agenda. 
  

12/33/ENV 2011/12 Revenue and Capital Outturn, Carry Forwards and 
Significant Variances - Environmental and Waste Services 
 
Matter for Decision:   
To agree a summary of the 2011/12 outturn position (actual income and 
expenditure) for services within the Environmental and Waste Services 
portfolio, compared to the final budget for the year. The position for revenue 

Page 2



Environment Scrutiny Committee Env/3 Tuesday, 26 June 2012 
 

 
 
 

3 

and capital was reported and variances from budgets are highlighted, together 
with explanations. Requests to carry forward funding arising from certain 
budget underspends into 2012/13 were identified. 
 
Decision of Executive Councillor for Environment and Waste Services: 

I. Agreed the carry forward requests, totalling £76,610 as detailed in 
Appendix C, are to be recommended to Council for approval. 

II. Agreed to seek approval from Council to carry forward capital resources 
to fund rephased net capital spending of £469,000 from 2011/12 into 
2012/13, as detailed in Appendix D of the Officer’s report. 

 
Reason for the Decision:  
As set out in the Officer’s report. 
 
Any Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:  
Not applicable. 
 
Scrutiny Considerations:  
 
The committee received a report from the Accountant regarding the Revenue 
and Capital outturn, Carry forwards and Significant Variances.  
 
Members noted Appendix C item 1 had been incorrectly listed in this portfolio 
and should be within the Community Development & Health portfolio and so, 
following approval at Council, this carry forward will be transferred to 
Community Development & Health budgets for 2012/13. 
 
The committee resolved (by 4 votes to 0) to endorse the recommendations. 
 
The Executive Councillor approved the recommendations. 
 
Conflicts of interest declared by the Executive Councillor (and any 
dispensations granted) 
Not applicable.  
 

12/34/ENV Bid to Department for Communities and Local Government 
for Improved Recycling Collections at Flats 
 
Matter for Decision:   

Page 3



Environment Scrutiny Committee Env/4 Tuesday, 26 June 2012 
 

 
 
 

4 

In February 2012 the Department for Communities and Local Government 
(DCLG) announced a fund of £250 million to support local authorities to 
introduce, retain or reinstate a weekly collection of residual household waste. 
 
Cambridge City Council had submitted an outline bid for a weekly food waste 
collection from flats under the third criterion (as detailed in the report), but 
seeks approval to continue with the submission.   
 
Decision of Executive Councillor for Planning and Climate Change: 

i. Approved the continuation of the submission of the bid for funding for a 
weekly food waste collection for flats. 
 

ii. Agreed to include in the forthcoming budget cycle a capital bid funded by 
the external grant, plus revenue implications for five years funded for the 
first three years by the external grant. 
 

iii. Agreed to include in the forthcoming budget cycle a revenue bid for the 
continuation of the scheme beyond the initial five year. 
 

Reason for the Decision:  
As set out in the Officer’s report. 
 
Any Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:  
Not applicable. 
 
Scrutiny Considerations:  
The committee received a report from the Head of Refuse and Environment 
regarding a bid for funding to the Department for Communities and Local 
Government under the Weekly Collections Support Fund. 
 
The committee made the following comments in response to the report: 
 

i. It was regrettable that installing macerators in kitchens had proved to be 
unviable due to cost and impact on local sewage systems. 

ii. The City would need to meet the costs in years four and five and impacts 
on budgets were discussed. If the bid was approved, it would go through 
a budget cycle. 

iii. Members welcomed the possibility of an additional service to flat 
dwellers and expressed regret that offered this to all residents would be 
too expensive.  

 
The committee resolved unanimously to endorse the recommendations. 

Page 4



Environment Scrutiny Committee Env/5 Tuesday, 26 June 2012 
 

 
 
 

5 

 
The Executive Councillor approved the recommendations. 
 
Conflicts of interest declared by the Executive Councillor (and any 
dispensations granted) 
Not applicable.  
 

12/35/ENV Waste Plans for Cambridge North West (CNW) University Site 
 
Matter for Decision:   
In September 2011 the University of Cambridge submitted outline planning 
applications to Cambridge City and South Cambridgeshire District Councils for 
a mixed-use extension to the north-west of Cambridge. The waste 
management strategy for this site proposes the use of underground banks for 
the collection of waste and recycling from residential premises.  
 
The scheme had been selected based on the desire to minimise the visual 
impact of waste collection infrastructure on the proposed development, and 
meets the requirements of the Area Action Plan to incorporate innovative 
waste strategies. 
 
It was anticipated that the scheme would provide both South Cambridgeshire 
District Council and Cambridge City Council with an innovative yet practical 
waste management solution maintaining the potential for recycling and 
allowing scope for future change within the restrictions of an underground 
scheme. 
 
Decision of Executive Councillor for Environment and Waste Services: 
 

i. Agreed the principle of the use of an underground banks collection 
system for the Cambridge North West development for all residents 
across both South Cambridgeshire and Cambridge City districts. 

 
ii. Agreed to delegate authority to the Head of Refuse and Environment the 

development of an Inter Authority Agreement between Cambridge City 
Council and South Cambridgeshire District Council, that the City Council 
will undertake waste and recycling collections across the entire 
Cambridge North West development including those areas within the 
South Cambridgeshire District Council administrative boundary for 
agreement by the Executive Councillors of both districts. 

 

Page 5



Environment Scrutiny Committee Env/6 Tuesday, 26 June 2012 
 

 
 
 

6 

iii. Agreed to delegate authority to the Head of Refuse & Environment to 
comment upon the final waste strategy in conjunction with South 
Cambridgeshire District Council and submit them to JDCC for 
consideration. 

 
iv. Agreed to delegate authority to the Head of Refuse and Environment to 

finalise, in conjunction with South Cambridgeshire District Council, the 
‘above baseline’ costs of service delivery, which will be recovered from 
the developer through a Section 106 agreement for agreement by the 
Executive Councillors of both districts. 

 
Reason for the Decision:  
As set out in the Officer’s report. 
 
Any Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:  
Not applicable. 
 
Scrutiny Considerations:  
 
The committee received a report from the Waste Services Development 
Officer regarding the Waste Plans for the North West University Site.  
 
Members raised the following points: 

i. Members were concerned about the logistics of the new collection 
vehicle. 

ii. Members asked for clarity on the economies that could be achieved by 
using a single waste collection services for the cross boundary site. 

iii. The innovations presented were welcomed. 
 
The committee resolved unanimously to endorse the recommendations. 
 
The Executive Councillor approved the recommendations. 
 
Conflicts of interest declared by the Executive Councillor (and any 
dispensations granted) 
Not applicable.  
 

12/36/ENV Environmental Cleansing Apprenticeship Scheme 
 
Matter for Decision:   

Page 6



Environment Scrutiny Committee Env/7 Tuesday, 26 June 2012 
 

 
 
 

7 

Streets and Open Spaces ran an Apprenticeship Scheme in Environmental 
Cleansing during 2011.  12 young people were given the opportunity to join the 
scheme.  8 completed and attained the full educational achievements available 
under the scheme.  1 apprentice has gone on to secure full time employment 
within the cleansing team. 
 
This report highlights the success of the scheme and recommends that the 
scheme is undertaken again in 2012.  
 
It is requested that receipts from Fixed Penalty Notices be used to part fund 
the scheme to the value of £9000. The further £21,000 funding required will be 
met from existing staffing budgets. 
 
Decision of Executive Councillor for Environment and Waste Services: 
i. Agreed to note the achievements of the Apprentice scheme that ran in 

2011. 
ii. Approved a further scheme for 2012. 
iii. Approved the use of receipts from Fixed Penalty Notices to the value of 

£9000. 
 
Reason for the Decision:  
As set out in the Officer’s report. 
 
Any Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:  
Not applicable. 
 
Scrutiny Considerations:  
The committee received a report from the Head of Streets and Open Spaces 
regarding the Environmental Cleansing Apprenticeship Scheme. 
 
Members welcomed the proposal and expressed the hope that is scheme 
would be permanent. The Officer confirmed that this was the intention subject 
to their being a suitable partner agency. 
 
The committee resolved unanimously to endorse the recommendation as 
amended. 
 
The Executive Councillor approved the recommendations. 
 
Conflicts of interest declared by the Executive Councillor (and any 
dispensations granted) 
Not applicable.  

Page 7



Environment Scrutiny Committee Env/8 Tuesday, 26 June 2012 
 

 
 
 

8 

 

12/37/ENV Trumpington Road Suburbs and Approaches Study 
 
Matter for Decision:   
Approval of the Trumpington Road Suburbs and Approaches Study.   
 
Decision of Executive Councillor for Environment and Waste Services: 
Approved the text of the Trumpington Road Suburbs and Approaches Study, 
attached as Appendix 2 of the report, and agreed that the study be used to 
inform planning decisions in this area. 
 
Reason for the Decision:  
As set out in the Officer’s report. 
 
Any Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:  
Not applicable. 
 
Scrutiny Considerations:  
Not applicable. 
 
The Executive Councillor approved the recommendations. 
 
Conflicts of interest declared by the Executive Councillor (and any 
dispensations granted) 
Not applicable. 
 

12/38/ENV Conservation Area Boundary Review and Appraisal for Castle 
and Victoria Road Conservation Area 
 
Matter for Decision:  To approve the Appraisal of the Castle and Victoria 
Road area of the Central Conservation Area attached as Appendix 2 of the 
report and to agree the revised Central Conservation Area boundary. 
 
Decision of Executive Councillor for Planning and Climate Change: 

i. Agreed the summary of responses to the public consultation on the draft 
Appraisal of the Castle and Victoria Road area of the Central 
Conservation Area. 

Page 8



Environment Scrutiny Committee Env/9 Tuesday, 26 June 2012 
 

 
 
 

9 

ii. Approved the Appraisal of the Castle and Victoria Road area of the 
Central Conservation Area attached as Appendix 2 and to agree the 
revised Central Conservation Area boundary. 

Reason for the Decision:  
As set out in the Officer’s report. 
 
Any Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:  
Not applicable. 
 
Scrutiny Considerations:  
The Committee received a report from the Head of Joint Urban Design 
regarding the Conservation Area Boundary Review and Appraisal for Castle 
and Victoria Road.  
 
Members were satisfied that residents living in the area had been fully 
consulted and supported the proposal.  
 
The committee resolved by 4 votes to 0 to endorse the recommendations. 
 
The Executive Councillor approved the recommendations. 
 
Conflicts of interest declared by the Executive Councillor (and any 
dispensations granted) 
Not applicable.  
 

12/39/ENV 2011/12 Revenue and Capital Outturn, Carry Forwards and 
Significant Variances - Planning and Sustainable Transport 
 
Matter for Decision:   
To agree a summary of the 2011/12 outturn position (actual income and 
expenditure) for services within the Planning and Sustainable Transport 
portfolio, compared to the final budget for the year. The position for revenue 
and capital is reported and variances from budgets are highlighted, together 
with explanations. Requests to carry forward funding arising from certain 
budget underspends into 2012/13 are identified. 
 
It should be noted that the report reflects the reporting structure in place prior 
to the recent changes in Executive reporting responsibilities. 
  
Decision of Executive Councillor for Planning and Climate Change: 

Page 9



Environment Scrutiny Committee Env/10 Tuesday, 26 June 2012 
 

 
 
 

10 

i. Agreed  the carry forward request for £30,270 as detailed in Appendix C 
of the report, is to be recommended to Council for approval. 

ii. Agreed to seek approval from Council to carry forward  capital resources 
to fund rephased net capital spending of £135,000 from 2011/12 into 
2012/13, as detailed in Appendix D of the report. 

 
Reason for the Decision:  
As set out in the Officer’s report. 
 
Any Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:  
Not applicable. 
 
Scrutiny Considerations:  
The committee received a report for the Accountant regarding the 2011/12 
Revenue and Capital Outturn, Carry Forwards and Significant Variances. 
 
Members questioned the unexpected swings of income and expenditure 
related to growth sites and the impact this had on staffing costs. The Head of 
Planning responded and stated that planning fee income budgets are set 
following discussions with developers and their best estimate of when 
developments would proceed. However, this was not an exact science. 
 
The committee resolved by 4 vote to 0 to endorse the recommendations. 
 
The Executive Councillor approved the recommendation. 
 
Conflicts of interest declared by the Executive Councillor (and any 
dispensations granted) 
Not applicable.  
 

12/40/ENV Perne Rd/Radegund Rd Cycle Safety Scheme 
 
Matter for Decision:  
Approval of the project to improve the safety of the Perne Road/Radegund 
Road/Birdwood Road roundabout for cyclists and pedestrians.  
 
Decision of Executive Councillor for Planning and Climate Change: 
Financial recommendations: 
i. Approved the commencement of this scheme, which was already included 

in the Council’s Capital & Revenue Project Plan. 

Page 10



Environment Scrutiny Committee Env/11 Tuesday, 26 June 2012 
 

 
 
 

11 

ii. The total cost of phase 2 of the project was £103,000.00 funded from the 
Capital Joint Cycleway Programme (PR007). 

iii. There were no ongoing revenue implications arising from the project, as 
maintenance will be the responsibility of Cambridgeshire County Council. 

 
Procurement recommendations: 
iv. This scheme would be procured direct from the County Councillor’s 

compliantly procured contractor.  If the project estimate exceeds the 
estimated contract value by more than 15%, the permission of the 
Executive Councillor and the Director of Resources will be sought before 
proceeding. 

 
Reason for the Decision:  
As set out in the Officer’s report. 
 
Any Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:  
Not applicable. 
 
Scrutiny Considerations:  
The committee received a report from the Environmental Projects Manager 
regarding the Perne Road / Radegund Road Cycle Safety Scheme. 
 
Members raised concerns that the consultation process may have steered 
respondent in to one direction. Members welcomed two stage approach to this 
project. 
 
The committee resolved unanimously to endorse the recommendations. 
 
The Executive Councillor approved the recommendations. 
 
Conflicts of interest declared by the Executive Councillor (and any 
dispensations granted) 
Not applicable.  
 

12/41/ENV Downham's Lane Cycle/Pedestrian Route 
 
Matter for Decision:   
The project is to improve the surfacing and lighting of Downham’s Lane to 
adoptable standards. The route was seen as an important cycle/pedestrian link 
between Milton Road, Campkin Road and the Manor School. The link would 

Page 11



Environment Scrutiny Committee Env/12 Tuesday, 26 June 2012 
 

 
 
 

12 

become a public right through the completion of a public path creation 
agreement between Cambridgeshire County Council and the three current 
landowners. 
 
Decision of Executive Councillor for Planning and Climate Change: 
Financial recommendations –  

i. Approve the commencement of this scheme, which was already included 
in the Council’s Capital & Revenue Project Plan. 

ii. The total cost of the project is £80,000 funded from the Capital Joint 
Cycleways Programme (PR007). 

iii. Implementation is subject to the adoption of the route as public highway 
by Cambridgeshire County Council. 

iv. There are no ongoing revenue implications arising from the project due 
to its proposed adoption by Cambridgeshire County Council as Highway 
Authority. 

 
Procurement recommendations: 

v. This scheme will be procured direct from the County Councillor’s 
compliantly procured contractor.  If the project estimate exceeds the 
estimated contract value by more than 15%, the permission of the 
Executive Councillor and the Director of Resources will be sought before 
proceeding.  

 
Reason for the Decision:  
As set out in the Officer’s report. 
 
Any Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:  
Not applicable. 
 
Scrutiny Considerations:  
 
The committee resolved by 7 votes to 0 to endorse the recommendation as 
amended. 
 
The Executive Councillor approved the recommendations. 
 
Conflicts of interest declared by the Executive Councillor (and any 
dispensations granted) 
Not applicable.  
 

Page 12



Environment Scrutiny Committee Env/13 Tuesday, 26 June 2012 
 

 
 
 

13 

12/42/ENV Changing the Procedures for Decisions on Some Planning 
Policy Documents 
 
Matter for Decision:   
The report explained the processes by which decisions on planning and 
development briefs could be taken by area committees from 1 July 2012, and 
seeks Executive Councillor approval to adopt these processes.  
 
Decision of Executive Councillor for Planning and Climate Change: 

i. Approved the Principles for involving Area Committees in Decisions on 
Planning and Development briefs set out in Appendix A of the report; and 

ii. Agreed to request that the Council’s constitution be amended to reflect 
Appendix A of the report. 

 
Reason for the Decision:  
As set out in the Officer’s report. 
 
Any Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:  
Not applicable. 
 
Scrutiny Considerations:  
The committee received a report from the Head of Planning regarding the 
Devolving Decision Making To Area Committees – Planning And Development 
Briefs.  
 
Members made the following comments:  
 

i. Councillor Herbert expressed concern that the policy was inflexible, 
poorly worded and overly bureaucratic. He was concerned that 
embedding such a details proposal in the constitutions would lead to 
problems later on.  

ii. Some members felt it was unfair that West Central Area Committee 
would be making decision on the City Centre issues. 

iii. Likewise West Central Area Committee would be funding City issues that 
would benefit all residents. 

iv. A strategic overview of decisions was needed and this should involve all 
Councillors. 

v. Concern was expressed about inconsistencies in where decisions were 
taken. Some small decisions are taken centrally while much larger 
decisions were revered to Area Committees. 

 

Page 13



Environment Scrutiny Committee Env/14 Tuesday, 26 June 2012 
 

 
 
 

14 

Councillor Reiner proposed an amendment to Appendix A, paragraph 2 of the 
report, as follows: 
 

(Where cross-ward  cross area committee boundary proposals are 
involved; or proposals related to major schemes involving more than 250 
dwellings or 10,000m2 of other or mixed floor space the default pre-
scrutiny process will include presentation to the Area Committee(s) but the 
final recommendation will be from Development Plan Scrutiny Sub-
Committee to the Executive Councillor). 

   
The amendment was agreed nem com. 
 
The committee resolved by 4 votes 0 to endorse the recommendations. 
 
The Executive Councillor approved the recommendation. 
 
Conflicts of interest declared by the Executive Councillor (and any 
dispensations granted) 
Not applicable.  
 

12/43/ENV Development Plan for Cambridge - Assessment if Conformity 
With the National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Matter for Decision:   
The Cambridge Local Plan 2006 was the principal development plan document 
guiding development in the City. The Plan was prepared in the context of a 
national planning regime that has now been superseded by the Localism Act 
2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2012). In the 
absence of up to date Local Plans the NPPF will become increasingly 
important in determining local planning decisions. 
 
Whilst the review of the Local Plan is well underway, the Cambridge Local 
Plan, two Area Action Plans and six Supplementary Planning Documents had 
been reviewed to establish the extent to which they are compliant with the 
NPPF. The results show that there was significant overall compliance with the 
NPPF. Appendix A of the report provided a written statement and 
accompanying appendix to demonstrate this position. 
 
Decision of Executive Councillor for Planning and Climate Change: 

i. Approved Appendix A which demonstrated Local Planning Policy 
Compliance with the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

Page 14



Environment Scrutiny Committee Env/15 Tuesday, 26 June 2012 
 

 
 
 

15 

ii. Agreed that this is made available on the Council’s website as the City 
Council’s position in relation to the National Planning Policy Framework. 

iii. Noted this position for decision making purposes. 
 

Reason for the Decision:  
As set out in the Officer’s report. 
 
Any Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:  
Not applicable. 
 
Scrutiny Considerations:  
The committee received a report from the Planning Policy Manager regarding 
the Cambridge Planning Policy Compliance With The National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 
Members made the following comments: 

i. Concern was raised that there appeared to conflicts within the policy 
documents. The Officer confirmed that other policies and guidance would 
allow case by case decision to be agreed. 

ii. The inclusion of a policy on  Public Houses was welcomed 
 
The committee resolved unanimously to endorse the recommendations. 
 
The Executive Councillor approved the recommendations. 
 
Conflicts of interest declared by the Executive Councillor (and any 
dispensations granted) 
Not applicable.  
 

12/44/ENV Cambridge City Council Climate Change Strategy and Carbon 
Management Plan 
 
Matter for Decision:   

i. The new Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan replaces the previous 
strategy which covered the period 2008-12, and would set the framework 
for action by the Council to address climate change over the next five 
years.  

ii. The Carbon Management Plan forms part of the Strategy and details 
how the Council would further reduce carbon emissions from its own 
operations and estate over the five year life of the strategy.  

Page 15



Environment Scrutiny Committee Env/16 Tuesday, 26 June 2012 
 

 
 
 

16 

iii. The Climate Change Fund criteria needed to be revised if the Fund is to 
support the projects that will deliver these reductions in emissions. 

iv. The Climate Change Fund Annual Status Report provides financial 
details of the projects supported by the Fund to date. 

 
Decision of Executive Councillor for Planning and Climate Change: 

i. Approved the draft Climate Change Strategy (Appendix A of the report) 
for public consultation from May to September. 

ii. Approved the draft Carbon Management Plan (Appendix B of the report). 
iii. Approved the revised Operational Guidelines for the Climate Change 

(Appendix C of the report). 
iv. Approved the Annual Climate Change Fund Status Report (Appendix D 

of the report). 
 
Reason for the Decision:  
As set out in the Officer’s report. 
 
Any Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:  
Not applicable. 
 
Scrutiny Considerations:  
The committee received a report from the Head of Corporate Strategy 
regarding Cambridge City Council’s Climate Strategy and Carbon 
Management Plan. 
 
Members made the following comments: 

i. All committee reports contain an Environmental Impact Assessment and 
members would like to see officers using this to explain how any adverse 
environmental impacts of a proposal or decision could be mitigated. 

ii. Concern was raised that the tone of the report was self-congratulatory 
when the reality is that little successes had been achieved on the 
council’s own emissions. 

iii. Concerns were raised about the how robust the figures were. 
iv. The number of positive press releases over the last year had put 

pressure on officers to suggest they were achieving good results. 
v. Members were concerned that human error had resulted in two large 

omissions in the data and that once those elements had been taken into 
account, the results were less positive than initially thought. 

Page 16



Environment Scrutiny Committee Env/17 Tuesday, 26 June 2012 
 

 
 
 

17 

vi. Transitions Cambridge held a recent event looking at best practice in this 
area and members expressed the opinion that officers should consult 
such groups.  

 
The Head of Corporate Strategy responded and expressed regret for the error. 
Members were assured that the baseline figure was now as robust as it could 
be, bearing in mind that some of the data for some sites was based on 
estimated bills. Officers had a invested lot of time into checking the figures 
after the errors had come to light.  Considerable successes had been achieved 
in certain areas such as planning policy and the council’s housing stock; for 
example, achieving building Code Level 5 at the North West Cambridge site. 
 
The committee resolved by 4 vote to 0 to endorse the recommendations. 
 
The Executive Councillor approved the recommendations. 
 
Conflicts of interest declared by the Executive Councillor (and any 
dispensations granted) 
Not applicable.  
 

12/45/ENV Council Appointments to the Cam Conservators 
 
Public Speaker 
Clive Rees - Crabtree BC X-press BC, Chairman CRA boathouse 
committee, addressed the committee and raised the following points: 
• Speaking on behalf of rowers and other interested parties. 
• History of Conservators goes back to an ancient Act of Parliament. 
• Charges were made for using the locks. 
• Advent of the railways changed river usage to mainly recreational use. 
• 1922 majority of appointments were City Councillors. 
• Current situation: River users pay but have little say in regulations. 
• New structure of Cam Conservators would be welcomed. 
 

Matter for Decision:  
 The terms of office for the seven Conservators of the River Cam appointed by 
the City Council end on 31 December 2012.  The report explained how the City 
Council had previously gone about appointing to the Conservators and how 
that should change following a review requested by the Executive Councillor.  
 
Decision of Executive Councillor for Planning and Climate Change: 

Page 17



Environment Scrutiny Committee Env/18 Tuesday, 26 June 2012 
 

 
 
 

18 

i. Agreed to instruct officers to arrange an open and public process for 
seeking applications for some of the City Council appointments to the 
Conservators of the River Cam (para 4.1 of the Officer’s report) 

ii. Agreed that the composition of the seven appointees is three city 
councillors and four members of the public (para 4.2 of the Officer’s 
report). 

iii. Agreed that the criteria which applies and the application process is as 
set out in (para 4.4/4.5 of the Officer’s report). 

iv. Agreed Council appointees will be required to sign up to the Council’s 
Code of Conduct (para 4.6 of the Officer’s report) 

v. Agreed that the maximum term of office is normally for 3 x three year 
terms with thereafter a break period of three years before a re-
application can be made.  This rule should apply retrospectively. (para 
4.7 of the Officer’s report) 

vi. Agreed that a four member panel would consider applications make 
recommendations to the  Environment Scrutiny Committee at its meeting 
on 9 October 2012. Details of the panel would be agreed b the Chair and 
Spokes. 

 
Reason for the Decision:  
As set out in the Officer’s report. 
 
Any Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:  
Not applicable. 
 
Scrutiny Considerations:  
 
The Executive Councillor for Planning and Climate Change introduced the 
report.  
 
Members discussed the status of former Councillor, Ian Nimmo-Smith, who 
was appointed to the Cam Conservators as a Councillor and was not required 
to resign this post.  
 
An active recruitment process, using the Cam Conservators contact list was 
welcomed. Complaints had been received in the past about the perceived 
secret nature of the selection process and any future selection process should 
be as open and transparent as possible. 
 
Members debated the number of Councillor appointments proposed. 
Councillor Merchant-Daisley stated that appointments should be proportional 

Page 18



Environment Scrutiny Committee Env/19 Tuesday, 26 June 2012 
 

 
 
 

19 

and therefore, either 2 or 4. She proposed the following amendment to the 
recommendations: 
 

To agreed that the composition of the seven appointees is two city 
councillors and five members of the public. 
 

The committee rejected the amended recommendation by 4 votes to 4 and the 
Chair’s casting vote. 
 
The committee was reminded that other public bodies, such as the 
Environment Agency and the County Council had representatives on the 
Conservators . However, public members, while drawn from interest groups, 
were not there to represent those groups but rather to protect the interests of 
all parties. 
 
The selection process of public members was discussed. A suggested 
additional recommendation to allow a selection panel to short list potential 
applicants was abandoned. Members were concerned that rejecting applicants 
in public would be uncomfortable and would discourage potential applicants.    
 
Members agreed that a selection panel of 4 members should be formed to 
meet in private and review all applications received. The panel would then 
make recommendations to the committee for final decision. The Executive 
Councillor requested that the process at the Scrutiny Committee be sufficiently 
open and transparent, but respected the Scrutiny Committee's view that if their 
was a need to debate any applicant's merits that it is done in closed session. It 
was agreed that the Scrutiny Committee would not be bound by the 
recommendations of the selection panel. 
The final details on the composition of the selection panel to be agreed by the 
Chair and Spokes. 
 
Councillor Ward proposed the following amendments to the recommendations: 
 

v) To agree that the maximum term of office is normally for 3 x three year 
terms with thereafter a break period of three years before a re-application 
can be made. This rule to apply retrospectively. 
vi) A four member panel would consider applications make 
recommendations to the  Environment Scrutiny Committee at its meeting 
on 9 October 2012. Details of the panel would be agreed b the Chair and 
Spokes. 
 

The committee agreed the amendments by 4 votes to 0. 

Page 19



Environment Scrutiny Committee Env/20 Tuesday, 26 June 2012 
 

 
 
 

20 

 
The committee resolved to endorse the recommendations as amended by 4 
votes to 0. 
 
The Executive Councillor approved the recommendations. 
 
Conflicts of interest declared by the Executive Councillor (and any 
dispensations granted) 
Not applicable.  
 
Conflicts of interest declared by the Executive Councillor (and any 
dispensations granted) 
Not applicable.  
 

12/46/ENV Future of Park Street Car Park 
 
Matter for Decision:   
A report has been commissioned to examine viable options for the future of 
Park Street multi-storey car park. The report responds to a brief to consider the 
business case for refurbishing the car park and examines the potential and 
implications of alternative redevelopment of the site. 
 
Park Street is the closest and most convenient car park to the restaurants and 
pubs on Bridge Street, Quayside and Riverside and is used by visitors for 
shopping, leisure facilities and for other City Centre services. The car park and 
cycle parking provision is an important facilitator of footfall in the area. Within 
the Car Park is the largest cycle park in Cambridge, and public toilets on the 
ground floor are directly accessible from Park Street. 
 
Decision of Executive Councillor for Planning and Climate Change: 
 

i. Agreed to note the Review report.  
 

ii. Agreed to  the principle to consult the public and stakeholders about the 
options to refurbish, or to redevelop the Park Street car park, including 
demolishing the existing car park and replacing it with a new multi-story 
car park with either 250 or 125 parking spaces. 

 
iii. Agreed to carry out detailed feasibility studies to validate the 

assumptions in the main report to determine whether underground car 

Page 20



Environment Scrutiny Committee Env/21 Tuesday, 26 June 2012 
 

 
 
 

21 

parking is a realistic and cost effective proposition in view of ground 
conditions and other factors, prior to consultation. 

 
iv. Agreed to carry out detailed feasibility studies to determine whether re-

provision of a new multi-storey car park, with or without underground car 
parking, is a realistic and cost effective proposition in view of, ground 
conditions and other factors, prior to consultation. 

 
v. Agreed to investigate in more detail what measures could be applied to 

mitigate the effects of a closure of the car park during the construction 
period, prior to consultation. 

 
vi. Agreed to undertake limited remedial repairs to the car park in the interim 

to ensure that it is safe and secure in the short to medium term, whilst 
assessing the options. 

 
vii. Agreed to delegate authority to the Director of Environment in 

consultation with the Executive Councillor in the light of the findings of 
the feasibility studies to carry out a public consultation exercise to 
determine the best option and report the results to the Council in due 
course.  

 
Reason for the Decision:  
As set out in the Officer’s report. 
 
Any Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:  
Not applicable. 
 
Scrutiny Considerations:  
 
The committee received a report from the Head of Specialist Services 
regarding the Future of Park Street Services. Member agreed to keep the 
discussion to the public papers and did not exclude the press and public. 
 
In response to Member’s questions the Director of Environment and the Head 
of Specialist confirmed the following: 
 

i. Technical solutions were available to allow underground provision near 
the river to be waterproof. 

ii. The impact of the businesses in the area during any refurbishment had 
been considered and alternative provision would be arranged. 

 

Page 21



Environment Scrutiny Committee Env/22 Tuesday, 26 June 2012 
 

 
 
 

22 

Councillor Reiner proposed the following amendment: 
 

DELETE paragraph 2.2 and REPLACE with the following 
(amended language underscored): 
 
2.2 To agree the principle to consult the public and stakeholders 
about the options to refurbish, or to redevelop the Park Street car 
park, including demolishing the existing car park and replacing it 
with a new multi-storey car park. 
 
INSERT the following: 
 
2.4 To carry out detailed feasibility studies to determine whether 
re-provision of a new multi-storey car park, with or without 
underground car parking, is a realistic and cost effective 
proposition in view of its positive impact on the City Centre road 
network, ability to meet peak demand, impact on local traders and 
the local economy, ground conditions and other factors, prior to 
consultation. 

 
Councillor Marchant-Daisley suggested that the amendment would steer the 
consultation process towards a replacement car park. She suggested that a 
radical approach should be adopted with the aim of reducing car use and 
achieving a greener city center. Councillor Herbert supported this point of view 
and suggested that an integrated traffic solution, using Park and Ride and 
considering a one-way system, was a better option. Concerns were expressed 
that this decision and would leave a long-term legacy for the City.  
 
Concern was expressed that loss of a car park would drive people out of 
Cambridge and increase general road usage as they would drive to alternative 
locations.  
 
The Director of Environment stated that radical solutions had been considered. 
Consultant work to date had identified a need for a car park in this area. A one-
way system could be modelled giving due consideration to the needs of buses. 
 
Further changes to the amendment, to take into account the issues raised 
were discussed and the following was proposed:  
 

DELETE paragraph 2.2 and REPLACE with the following 
(amendments underscored): 
 

Page 22



Environment Scrutiny Committee Env/23 Tuesday, 26 June 2012 
 

 
 
 

23 

2.2 To agree the principle to consult the public and stakeholders 
about the options to refurbish, or to redevelop the Park Street car 
park, including demolishing the existing car park and replacing it 
with a new multi-storey car park with either 250 or 125 parking 
spaces. 
 
INSERT the following: 
 
2.4 To carry out detailed feasibility studies to determine whether 
re-provision of a new multi-storey car park, with or without 
underground car parking, is a realistic and cost effective 
proposition in view of, ground conditions and other factors, prior to 
consultation. 

 
The committee unanimously approved the amendments to the 
recommendations. 
 
The committee resolved unanimously to endorse the recommendation as 
amended. 
 
The Executive Councillor approved the recommendation. 
 
Conflicts of interest declared by the Executive Councillor (and any 
dispensations granted) 
Not applicable. 
 

12/47/ENV Start Time of Future Meetings 
 
Councillor Herbert requested a later start time for future meetings to allow 
members with work commitments to attend. 
 
Councillor Reid stated that the meetings calendar spreads the meetings across 
different times of the day to allow members to make choices. She suggested 
that this decision should be referred to Civic Affairs. 
 
The Director of Environment stated that daytime meeting offered more efficient 
use of officer time. 
 
The committee agreed to a 5.00pm start for the remainder of the municipal 
year.  
 

Page 23



Environment Scrutiny Committee Env/24 Tuesday, 26 June 2012 
 

 
 
 

24 

  
 
 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 8.05 pm 
 
 
 
 

CHAIR 
 

Page 24



CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 
Record of Executive Decision 

 
Hackney Carriage Fair Fare Scheme 

 
Decision of:  Councillor Swanson, Executive Councillor for Environmental 

and Waste Services  
Reference:  12/ENV/02 
Date of decision:   10 July 2012  Recorded on:   10 July 2012  
Decision Type:  Non Key Decision 
Matter for 
Decision:  

Cambridge City Licensed Taxis (CCLT) Ltd have proposed a 
‘Cambridge Fair Fare Scheme’ for out-of-district journeys and are 
seeking support by the Council for the scheme. 

Why the decision 
had to be made 
(and any 
alternative 
options): 

Alternative options considered:  
- Support CCLT Ltd’s ‘Cambridge Fair Fare Scheme’ but not 

allow CCLT Ltd to use the Cambridge City Council Crest on 
the stickers. 

- Not support CCLT Ltd’s ‘Cambridge Fair Fare Scheme’ and 
not allow the use of the Council crest. 

The Executive 
Councillor’s 
decision(s): 

To support CCLT Ltd’s ‘Cambridge Fair Fare Scheme’ and allow 
CCLT Ltd to use the Cambridge City Council Crest on the sticker 
that will be placed in the Hackney Carriages of drivers who have 
signed up to the scheme. 

Reasons for the 
decision: As per the officers report 

Scrutiny 
consideration: 

The Chair and Spokesperson of Environment Scrutiny Committee 
were consulted prior to the action being authorised. 

Report: A report detailing the background and financial considerations is 
attached. 

Conflicts of 
interest: 

None  

Comments: None  

 

Agenda Item 5a

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report Page No: 1 Agenda Page No: 

 
Agenda Item          

 
CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 
 
 
REPORT OF: Jas Lally 
  Head of Refuse and Environment 
   
 TO:   Licensing Committee 25/06/2012 
   
 WARDS:   All 
 

Hackney Carriage Fair Fare Scheme 
 

 
1. INTRODUCTION    
 
1.1 Cambridge City Council regulates the maximum fare that may be 

charged by Hackney Carriage Drivers when undertaking a journey 
within the City of Cambridge, but the Council has no power to insist that 
drivers use the same tariff for journeys ending outside of the district.  

 
1.2 Cambridge City Licensed Taxis (CCLT) Ltd have proposed a 

‘Cambridge Fair Fare Scheme’ for out-of-district journeys and are 
seeking support by the Council for the scheme.  
 

1.3 The request from CCLT Ltd is attached to the report as Appendix A. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 Members are recommended: 
  

To support CCLT Ltd’s ‘Cambridge Fair Fare Scheme’ and allow CCLT 
Ltd to use the Cambridge City Council Crest on the sticker that will be 
placed in the Hackney Carriages of drivers who have signed up to the 
scheme. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Cambridge City Council regulates the maximum fare that may be 

charged by Hackney Carriage Drivers when undertaking a journey 
within the City of Cambridge. This is by way of the Hackney Carriage 
Table of Fares made pursuant to section 65 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 51Page 27



 

Report Page No: 2 Agenda Page No: 

 
3.2 There is no statutory provision for the Council to regulate the maximum 

fare that may be charged by Hackney Carriage Drivers when 
undertaking a journey that ends outside of the City of Cambridge. 
However, section 66 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 makes it an offence for any driver to charge a fare 
for such a journey that is greater than that determined by the Table of 
Fares unless the fare has been agreed with the hirer before the hiring is 
effected. As such Hackney Carriage Drivers may state any price for an 
out-of-district journey prior to agreeing to the hiring and may refuse to 
take passengers if they do not agree with the quoted price. 

 
3.3 Cambridge City Licensed Taxis (CCLT) Ltd have proposed a 

‘Cambridge Fair Fare Scheme’ for out-of-district journeys and those 
drivers who sign an agreement to abide by the scheme will give the hirer 
the choice of agreeing a fare in advance for out-of-district journeys or 
paying the fare shown on the meter. To demonstrate that a driver has 
sign up to the scheme, they will be given a sticker by CCLT Ltd to 
display in their vehicle (subject to approval of the advertisement by the 
Council). The scheme will be administered by CCLT Ltd and drivers who 
fail to comply with scheme will have their sticker removed by CCLT Ltd. 
 

4.  CONSULTATIONS 
 
4.1 There is no proposed consultation because the scheme is neither 

proposed by the Council nor administered by the Council. Cambridge 
City Council will only be supporting the scheme and allowing the use of 
the Council crest. 
 

5. OPTIONS 
 

5.1 The Committee may resolve to: 
  

5.1.1 Support CCLT Ltd’s ‘Cambridge Fair Fare Scheme’ and allow 
CCLT Ltd to use the Cambridge City Council Crest on the sticker 
that will be placed in the Hackney Carriages of drivers who have 
signed up to the scheme. 

 
5.1.2 Support CCLT Ltd’s ‘Cambridge Fair Fare Scheme’ but not allow 

CCLT Ltd to use the Cambridge City Council Crest on the stickers. 
 

5.1.3 Not support CCLT Ltd’s ‘Cambridge Fair Fare Scheme’ and not 
allow the use of the Council crest. 

  
 

Page 52Page 28



 

Report Page No: 3 Agenda Page No: 

6. CONCLUSIONS 
 
6.1 There are no statutory powers for the Council to regulate all fares 

charged for journeys in Hackney Carriages that end outside of the 
district. However, by supporting the proposed ‘Cambridge Fair Fare 
Scheme’, the Council will be encouraging the charging of reasonable 
fares. 

 
7. IMPLICATIONS 
 
(a) Financial Implications 
          There are no financial implications as the scheme will not be 

administered by Cambridge City Council. 
 
(b) Staffing Implications    
         There are no staffing implications as the scheme will not be 

administered by Cambridge City Council. 
 
(c) Equal Opportunities Implications 

There are no apparent equal opportunity implications. 
   
(d) Environmental Implications 
         There are no apparent environmental implications. 
 
(e) Community Safety 

The scheme will encourage the charging of reasonable fares for out-of-
district journeys which may encourage the use of licensed taxis. 
 

APPENDICES 
Appendix A 
Request from CCLT Ltd and first draft of the proposed ‘Cambridge Fair Fare 
Scheme’ sticker 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS: The following are the background papers that 
were used in the preparation of this report: 
 
� Part II of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 

 
The author and contact officer for queries on the report is Robin Grey on 
extension 7899. 
 
Report file:  
Date originated:  14 June 2012 
Date of last revision: 14 June 2012 

Page 53Page 29



 

Report Page No: 4 Agenda Page No: 

Appendix A – Request from CCLT Ltd and proposed ‘Cambridge Fair Fare 
Scheme’ sticker 
 

 07 May 2012 
 
Dear Councillors, 
 
This is the first design for stickers and Conditions for the taxis. 
My questions are: 
1. Are we allowed to use the City crest? 
2. Or if we remove the crest and move the writing up and put the conditions the taxis will 
agree to abide by for the customer to see this may be better? 
 
 
The Conditions to form the agreement are: 
1. All trips in and around City will be on meter because as i have said at the forum taxis are 
quoting prices in the City more than double the metered price which is also illegal.  
2. That Customers will have choice of a fair quote for out of town jobs or on the meter if the 
customer wants. Drivers are quoting 30 pounds for jobs that should be about 15 pounds on 
meter.  
3. Taxi proprietors will have to sign an agreement to abide by a joint scheme with Council? 
4. So if they do not stick to the conditions they lose their rights to belong to scheme we will 
remove stickers and then they possibly could be prosecuted by Council?  
 
Regards, 
 
David Wratten 
 
Director 
CCLT Ltd 
 
 
 
 
Registered Office: CCLT Ltd, 4 
Providence Way, Waterbeach, Cambs CB25 9QJ 
Registered No. 06894519 England 
 

Page 54Page 30



 

Report Page No: 5 Agenda Page No: 

 

 

Page 55Page 31



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 

Record of Executive Decision 

Repairs to the Grand Arcade annex car park. 

Decision of: Councillor Ward, Executive Councillor for Planning and 
Climate Change 

Reference: 12/ENV/04 

Date of 
decision:    

24/08/12 Recorded
on:

24/08/12

Decision Type: Non Key 

Matter for 
Decision:

To install gully gratings to drainage gullies throughout 
the four levels of the annex part of Grand Arcade car 
park.

The proposed works will ensure a level walking and 
driving surface which will be flush with the car park deck 
and the drainage within the car park will not be 
impaired.

Why the 
decision had to 
be made (and 
any alternative 
options):

The corporate health and safety team advise the gullies 
represent a significant health and safety risk to the 
general public, wheelchair users, drivers and staff due 
to their deterioration and uneven surface. An alternative 
solution was initially suggested which involved the 
installation of a permeable granule but this was 
discounted due to the potential shortness of life of the 
product and the likely high wear and tear due to the car 
park environment and similar costs of installation to the 
grating system.  A bespoke galvanised stainless steel 
grating system has been specified by our consultants.  
This solution should last for many years. 

The Executive 
Councillor’s
decision(s):

Agreed

Financial recommendations –

 ! The Executive Councillor approved this project 
(which is not included in the Council’s Capital & 
Revenue Project Plan) for approval by Council, 
subject to resources being available to fund the 
capital costs.

 ! The total cost of the project is £26000, funded 

Agenda Item 5b

Page 33



from the car park structural repairs and 
renewals budget.

 ! There are no ongoing revenue implications 
arising from the project.

Procurement recommendations:

 ! The Executive Councillor approved the carrying 
out and completion of the procurement for the 
break out and removal of the existing screed laid 
to falls in the Grand Arcade lower car park 
drainage gullies and the application of a deck 
coating system.

 ! The provision of gully gratings as shown on 
attached drawing to allow safe passage for both 
vehicles and pedestrians without hindering the 
free flow of surface water from the car park deck.  

 ! Subject to: 
- The permission of the Director of Resources 

being sought prior to proceeding if the 
quotation or tender sum exceeds the 
estimated contract.

- The permission from the Executive 
Councillor being sought before proceeding if 
the value exceeds the estimated contract by 
more than 15%. 

Reasons for the 
decision:

As stated in Part 4C section 6.1 of the Councils 
Constitution, individual members of the Executive ‘may 
take a decision which is contrary or not wholly in 
accordance with the budget approved by the full Council 
if the decision is a matter of urgency’.  
Due to time pressures it was deemed not practical to 
convene a quorate meeting of Council to take these 
decisions.  

Scrutiny 
consideration:

The Chair and Spokesperson of Environment Scrutiny 
Committee were consulted prior to the action being 
authorised.

Report: See attached

Conflicts of 
interest:

None

Page 34



Comments: This urgent decision will be reported back to the next 
Environment Scrutiny Committee and then referred to 
Council.

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 9 

 
Cambridge City Council 

 

To: Tim Ward, Executive Councillor for Planning and 
Climate Change 

Report by: Paul Necus 
Scrutiny committee:  ENVIRONMENT & SCRUTINY Out of cycle 
Wards affected: All 
 
Project Appraisal and Scrutiny Committee Recommendation 
Project Name: Grand Arcade car park - Provision of drain gully covers  
 

Recommendation/s 
Financial recommendations –  
• The Executive Councillor is asked to approve this project 
(which is not included in the Council’s Capital & Revenue 
Project Plan) for approval by Council, subject to resources 
being available to fund the capital costs.   
• The total cost of the project is £26000, funded from the 
car park structural repairs and renewals budget.  

• There are no ongoing revenue implications arising from 
the project.  

Procurement recommendations: 
• The Executive Councillor is asked to approve the carrying 
out and completion of the procurement for the break out and 
removal of the existing screed laid to falls in the Grand 
Arcade lower car park drainage gullies and the application of 
a deck coating system.   

• The provision of gully gratings as shown on attached drawing 
to allow safe passage for both vehicles and pedestrians 
without hindering the free flow of surface water from the car 
park deck.   

• Subject to: 

Page 37



Page 2 of 9 

- The permission of the Director of Resources being 
sought prior to proceeding if the quotation or tender 
sum exceeds the estimated contract.  

 
- The permission from the Executive Councillor being 
sought before proceeding if the value exceeds the 
estimated contract by more than 15%. 

 
1 Summary 
1.1 The project 
 

 

1.2 Anticipated Cost 
Total Project Cost £   26.000 

 

To install gully gratings to drainage gullies throughout the four 
levels of the annex part of Grand Arcade car park.   
 

Target Dates: 
Start of procurement 17 August 2012 
Award of Contract 1 September 2012 
Start of project delivery 15 October 2012 
Completion of project 31 October 2012 

Cost Funded from: 
Funding: Amount: Details: 
Reserves £  
Repairs & Renewals £26.000 Car park Structural R&R 
Developer 
Contributions £  
Other £  

Page 38



Page 3 of 9 

Ongoing Revenue Cost   

Year 1 £  
Ongoing £  
 

1.3 Procurement process 
Specialist advice was sought which resulted in a quotation for the 
repair work to the drainage gullies throughout all four levels of the 
annex part of the Grand Arcade car park.  They have deteriorated 
through age and wear and tear and are uneven.   We are advised 
to install a bespoke stainless steel grating system on top of the 
existing drainage gullies in order to create a flush surface in line 
with the car park deck.  This work is of a specialist nature and with 
the value of the contract being relatively small we have been 
unable to attract interest from car park re-furbishment contractors.  
We are therefore extremely limited to companies both able and 
prepared to carry out this work and seek a waiver in order to 
proceed.   
 
 

2 Project Appraisal & Procurement Report 
2.1 Project Background 
The annex part of the Grand Arcade car park has open drainage 
gullies approximately eighty metres in length across the front of 
each of the four lower car park decks in the annex part of Grand 
Arcade car park.  These are marked out in yellow paint which 
although visible and highlight the 30 mm change in level from the 
car park deck to the drain gully now require a programme of works 
to  avoid them becoming a significant health and safety risk to the 
general public, wheelchair users, drivers and staff due to their 
deterioration and uneven surface 
 
We are advised to conduct repairs to the gully area and fit covers 
as soon as possible so as to minimise the risk of slips and falls. 
This will ensure a level walking and driving surface is installed 
which will be flush with the car park deck and the drainage within 
the car park will not be impaired. 
 

Page 39



Page 4 of 9 

An alternative solution was initially suggested which involved the 
installation of a permeable granule but this was discounted due to 
the potential shortness of life of the product and the likely high 
wear and tear due to the car park environment and similar costs of 
installation to the grating system.  A bespoke galvanised stainless 
steel grating system has been specified by our consultants, which 
will conform to British standard ISO 1461.  This solution should last 
for many years. 
 
Building control consent is not required for this project. 
 
2.2 Aims & objectives  
The project contributes to the Council’s vision of a city: 

- A city which draws inspiration from its iconic historic centre 
and achieves a sense of place in all of its parts with 
generous urban open spaces and well designed buildings. 

 
2.3 Major issues for stakeholders & other departments   
 

• Crowne Plaza hotel management will be consulted as there 
may be implications for their guests due to the potential 
noise impact from the site works.   

• Corn Exchange management team will be consulted due to 
the lower capacity of parking facilities at the Grand Arcade 
whilst the works are taking place.  However adequate 
parking provision will be available within the Council’s other 
multi-storey car parks throughout the City Centre.  

• Grand Arcade management team will be informed due to 
lower capacity of parking facilities whilst works taking place 
however adequate parking provision is available within other 
multi-storey car parks throughout city centre.   

 
• Issue 2 

 
Consultation undertaken: 
 
• Public 
• Members 

Page 40



Page 5 of 9 

 
2.4 Summarise key risks associated with the project  
Key risks associated with the project relate to the need to close the 
car park during the installation of the new system. The annex is the 
only part of the Grand Arcade car park that will need to close, in a 
managed process, in order to minimise customer disruption and 
ensure the safe operation of the underground car park areas. It will 
take place over a period of two weeks, on a managed basis.  The 
disruption to customers resulting from closure will therefore be 
negligible and short-lived, as the main car park will be unaffected 
throughout these works and will therefore avoid the risk of lost 
income over the installation period.   
 
Upon consulting stakeholders it may be necessary to alter the 
timings of the work, which may impact upon costs provided in the 
quotation as this is based on the project being carried out during 
standard working hours. 
A six weeks lead-time is required following the initial placement of 
the order due to preparation of detailed drawings and the 
manufacture of the grating system. 
The area in question was re-painted in July 2012 in yellow paint to 
highlight the change in level.  The option to do nothing further was 
considered but discounted due to the health and safety 
implications. 
 
2.5 Financial implications 
No further financial implications identified for this project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41



Page 6 of 9 

2.6 Capital & Revenue costs 
 

 

 

 
2.7 VAT implications 
 
No adverse VAT implications identified with this project. 
 
2.8 Environmental Implications 
No environmental implications identified.  

 
 
 
2.9 Other implications  
 

(a) Capital £ Comments 
Building contractor / works  24,800  
Purchase of vehicles, plant & 
equipment   
Professional / Consultants fees 1,200  
IT Hardware/Software   
Other capital expenditure   
Total Capital Cost 26,000  

(b) Revenue £ Comments 
Maintenance   
R&R Contribution   
Developer Contributions    
   
   
Total Revenue Cost   

Page 42



Page 7 of 9 

An Equality Impact Assessment has not been prepared for this 
project. 
 
2.10 Staff required to deliver the project 
 
Parking Services management team 6 hours 
Peter Dann Consulting Engineers 2 hours 
 

2.11 Dependency on other work or projects 
 
None 
 
2.12 Background Papers 
 

None 
 
 

2.13 Inspection of papers 
Author’s Name Paul Necus  
Author’s phone No. 01223  458510  
Author’s e-mail: Paul.Necus @cambridge.gov.uk 
Date prepared: 10 August 2012 
 
 

Page 43



Page 8 of 9 

  
 

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
£ £ £ £ £

Capital Costs
Building contractor / works 24.8
Purchase of vehicles, plant & equipment      
Professional / Consultants fees 1 
Other capital expenditure:

insert rows as needed
Total Capital cost 26 0 0 0 0 
Capital Income / Funding
Government Grant
Developer Contributions      
R&R funding 26 Car Parks Structual R&R
Earmarked Funds
Existing capital programme funding      
Revenue contributions      

Total Income 26 0 0 0 0 
Net Capital Bid 0 0 0 0 0 Must agree to 1.2 above

Comments

P
age 44



Page 9 of 9 

 

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



Report Page No: 1 

 

 

Cambridge City Council 
 

 

To: Executive Councillor for Environmental and Waste 
Services: Councillor Jean Swanson 

Report by: Waste Strategy Manager - Jen Robertson 
Relevant scrutiny 
committee:  

Environment Scrutiny Committee 9/10/2012 
Wards affected: All Wards 
 
UPDATE ON RECYCLING 
Key Decision 
 
 
1. Executive summary  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to:- 

• Update members on the progress since the report that went to 
Environment Scrutiny Committee on 4 October 2011. 

• Decide on the way forward in terms of increasing recycling. 
 

1.2 At ESC on 4/10/11, the Executive Councillor agreed that a Waste 
Compositional Analysis, participation monitoring work and survey work 
be carried out, so that data could be gathered to inform decisions 
about next steps in order to meet recycling targets of 50% by 2015-16.  
The work has not been completed yet but some initial results are 
available.  (See Appendix A).  Final results will be available in 
December 2012. 
 

1.3 This report is brought to you to understand the variety of projects that 
have already been undertaken to provide a comprehensive service 
(see Appendix B) and to help shape decisions on where resources 
could be targeted in the future. There are a number of options detailed 
based on the outcome of the waste compositional analysis, associated 
participation work and other local authority campaigns. 
 

1.4 In 2010/11 the overall recycling rate was 43.7% and reduced to 43.3% 
in 2011/12 due to a drop in the amount of green waste collected 
compared to the year before. 

 
2. Recommendations  
 
The Executive Councillor is recommended: 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 47



Report Page No: 2 

2.1 To agree that officers carry out further detailed work taking into 
consideration the final report from MEL and look at the effectiveness 
of different strategies to increase the overall recycling rate. 

 
2.2 To include the strategy within the Portfolio plan for 2013/14   
 
 
 
3. Background  
 
3.1 Plastic pots, tubs and trays can now be recycled in the blue bins.  The 

addition of this material was made on 30th July.  However this is not 
going to increase the recycling rate significantly due to the lightweight 
nature of this material.  The prediction is a maximum of 1%, which 
may include an increase in other blue bin materials, linked to the 
publicity around plastic pots, tubs and trays. 
 

3.2 The contract with Viridor for sorting the dry recycling from the blue bin 
ends in November 2014.  As part of the new contract it may be 
possible to add more materials to the range already collected. 
However this will be dependant upon discussions with colleagues from 
other authorities and the ability for a Materials Recycling Facility to 
comply with the Councils specification.    
 

3.3 The Recycling Champions scheme continues to provide 
neighbourhood support through a team of over 100 volunteers.  
Volunteers’ involvement varies from reading a quarterly newsletter to, 
at the other end of the scale, helping with contamination monitoring at 
recycling points, attending/running events to promote our schemes 
and informing neighbours of how to recycle in Cambridge.  We are 
looking at how Recycling Champions can assist more with projects, 
gathering their views and providing support on additional work. 
 

3.4 The table below shows recycling rates for Cambridge for the last 3 
years.  The main significant points over this period are: 
• Moving to blue bins instead of boxes in November 2009.  This 

change was responsible for the increase in dry recycling. 
• Seasonal fluctuations having an impact on reducing the amount of 

garden waste collected. 

Page 48



Report Page No: 3 

 
Year Landfill 

 
(tonnes) 

Dry 
recycling 
(tonnes) 

Composting  
(tonnes) 

Overall 
recycling 
rate 

National 
recycling 
rate  

2009/10 25,594 
59.1% 
 

17.93 
(7,758) 

22.91% 
(9,910) 

40.84% 39.7% 

2010/11 24,928  
 
56.3% 

21.39 
(9,472) 

22.32% 
(9,885) 

43.7% 40.3% 

2011/12 25,090  
 
56.8% 

22.27 
(9,860) 

21.06 
(9,323) 

43.33% 41.5% 

 
3.5 Other service changes include:- 

• The addition of batteries to the green bin collection service in May 
2011 

• The addition of commingled recycling at 250 blocks of flats in the 
city.  We now have 11,479 flats that have either segregated 
recycling, or commingled recycling 

• The addition of Small Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment 
banks in June 2011 at 5 recycling points 

• The addition of battery and bulb banks since March 2010 at 8 
recycling points.  

 
3.6 Please see Appendix B for a list of the existing projects being 

undertaken in Waste Strategy for 2012/13 and some of the planned 
projects for 2013/14. 
 

3.7 The recycling from the bring banks system is included in the above 
figures and accounts for 2.4% of the 2011/12 dry recycling figure.   
 

3.8 There are two ways of increasing recycling rates: 
• Reducing the amount of waste people generate i.e. waste 

prevention, which is difficult as we live in a throwaway society and 
this requires a more significant behavioural change by residents.  

• Increasing the amount of material recycled.  There are three main 
ways this can be achieved: 

 
o Increase participation in the schemes we provide 
o Increase the range and amounts of material residents recycle 

within the schemes, such as encouraging residents to recycle all 
their paper not just their newspaper in the blue bin. 

o Add additional schemes e.g. a separate collection of food waste 
or textiles. 

 
Page 49



Report Page No: 4 

3.9 In January 2012 MEL Research were commissioned, after a 
competitive tendering process, to carry out a waste compositional 
(WA) analysis, participation monitoring work by household (PM) and 
resident survey work (RS), in order to gain detailed information about 
what is being recycled and by whom. 
 

3.10 The resident survey work will not be carried out until later this month. 
This element is also an important part of the picture as it is likely to 
indicate why some residents are not using the services to the 
maximum. MEL will be able to use this information to suggest cost 
effective strategies to increase recycling.  
 

3.11 The initial results of the first phase of the WA work are attached at 
Appendix A.  A summary of the key findings is below. 
 

3.12 The final results of the PM show high levels of participation calculated 
over a 6 week cycle. 
• Blue bin participation = 90% - ranging from 88.32 – 91.13% 
• Green bin participation = 80% - ranging from 75.2 – 83.56% 
• Black bin participation = 94% - ranging from 90.68 – 95.3% 
 

3.13 The contamination rate for the dry recycling scheme was 2.9% in 
2011/12 and continues to remain low. 

 
3.14 The interim results from the first phase of the WA work, carried out in 

May, show that there is scope for improving capture of certain 
materials.  The next phase of the WA will be carried out at the 
beginning of October and these results need to be incorporated.  
However, even though waste is seasonal it is unlikely that the 
composition of the residual waste will change much. 
 

3.15 The results of the first phase show: 
Just under 22% of collected residual waste could have been placed 
into the green recycling containers.  This was almost totally made up 
of food waste.  
• Overall 13% of collected residual waste could have been placed 

into the blue recycling containers. 
• The main materials included in the 13% figure are paper, card and 

cardboard.  However, there were also significant amounts of 
textiles i.e. 6.19% that could be recycled at bring sites or reused 
through charity shops and kerbside bag collections that charities 
offer. 

 
3.16 The results are broken down by socio-economic groupings, based on 

A Classification Of Residential Neighbourhoods (ACORN) which 
define areas in terms of socio-economic measures.  These groups 

Page 50



Report Page No: 5 

range from 1-5.  Group 1 are described as ‘Wealthy achievers’ and 
Group 5 described as ‘Hard pressed’ people. 

 
3.17 If we were able to capture even half the paper, card and cardboard 

and recycle it through the blue bin scheme this would account for a 
3.5% increase in the recycling rate. 
 

3.18 If we were able to extract the textiles from the black bin this would 
reduce the black bin waste figure thereby contributing to an increase 
in the recycling rate.  If half of the textiles were recycled at textile 
banks in the city this would contribute a further 1.5%. 

 
3.19 As members will be aware a bid for a weekly food waste collection for 

blocks of flats was submitted to the DCLG in August.  We will be 
notified if this has been successful or not in October.  We calculate 
that this may add a further 1% to the recycling rate. 
 

Examples of other schemes that LA’s have implemented aimed at 
increased recycling 
 

3.20 Increasing capture rates of the main materials that can be recycled in 
the blue bin by encouraging residents to recycle more should be 
considered as a priority.  Many authorities have carried out intensive 
communications work in low performing areas, and brought about 
increased capture rates for certain materials.  There is little evidence 
of how successful these behavioural changes have been in the long 
term but the evidence below certainly shows that improvements were 
made and some increased rates have been maintained for 3/4 years.   
 

3.21 Case study 1 – Communications campaign to increase use of 
recycling services in County Durham 
 
• Participation in certain areas was identified as low.  Student 

housing in the City of Durham was targeted as well as certain 
housing estates.  After the campaign student participation 
increased from 49.6% to 66.4%, and contamination by students 
dropped by 11.7%. 

• The project team costs were £112,300 which included canvassing, 
surveying and participation monitoring.  The total campaign funding 
was £237,600.  
 

3.22 Case study 2 – Increasing recycling at flats in Barnet LBC and Bexley 
LBC 
• Barnet ran a communications campaign for 5 months and 

increased the average monthly tonnage collected at flats by 4% 
during the campaign.  The campaign cost £61,300. 

Page 51



Report Page No: 6 

• Bexley ran a communications campaign and increased the dry 
recycling rate in the target area by 3.5%.  There are 13,000 flats in 
Bexley.  They also reduced levels of contamination and increased 
capture rates for paper and cardboard by 20%.  The campaign cost 
£48,200.   
 

3.23 Case study 3 – Gloucestershire campaign to increase use of the 
recycling services 
• The recycling rate increased by 3% across the county area, with a 

12% increase in low performing areas.  This was achieved through 
door-to-door canvassing targeted at low performing areas.  All six 
districts saw increases without any changes to the collection 
systems.   

• The campaign across the county area cost £267,500 and was paid 
for by the Gloucestershire Waste Partnership which consists of the 
6 district councils and the county. The costs per household 
compare favourably with the County Durham costs.   

 
3.24 Case study 4 – Waste Prevention reward scheme in Richmond and 

Brent  
• A pilot scheme offering around 370,000 residents the opportunity to 

get a free reward card that will enable them to claim cash benefits 
for buying things that have been used before or have been made 
from unwanted materials or waste. 

• The scheme has been possible because of £133,532 funding 
secured from DEFRA’s household reward and recognition fund.  
However, ongoing funding is from a combination of subscription 
fees paid by business partners and a commission paid by both 
business and charity partners. 

• This scheme has only been running since May 2012.  If it proves a 
success the scheme will be rolled out across all 6 west London 
boroughs. 
 

3.25 Case study 5 – Bexley – Incentive scheme organised by Local Green 
Points  
• The scheme aims to reward residents on a community basis for 

waste reduction and recycling, by earning green points as a 
community based on the amount of residual waste they create and 
the amount they recycle.   

• These points are then allocated equally between each member of 
the community taking part in the scheme and can then be 
redeemed online, via the Local Green Points website, to pay for 
eco-friendly products. 

• Whilst still at an early stage Bexley report some reductions in 
residual waste and state there is an increase in recycling although 
no specific figures are available. 

Page 52



Report Page No: 7 

• Set-up and running costs have been funded through the London 
Waste and Recycling Board Flats Recycling Programme, Recycle 
for London, Bexley Council and Gallions Housing Association. 

 
3.26  Case Study 6 - Peterborough textiles, books and WEEE doorstep 

collections 
• Residents can call to arrange a free collection of the above items 

from their doorstep. The items are placed in ordinary carrier bags 
and a day to collect them is agreed with the resident. The 
collections are carried out by the council's bulky waste collection 
vehicle, during its normal area-based rounds. 

• The council has partnered with a local charity, Sense, which takes 
the textiles and books and sorts them for re-sale in their shops. The 
WEEE goes to a local IT re-use and recycling facility. 

•     The scheme had very low start-up costs, as it uses existing 
vehicles and staff. In the 7 months since the scheme began the 
council has carried out  a number of collections from households, 
resulting in the collectionof textiles, books and WEEE. 

 
 3.27 General points about all campaigns  

• Per household costs for both flats campaigns were considerably 
more expensive than the county-wide campaigns. 

• All the campaigns involved pre-campaign monitoring, door 
knocking/survey work and post campaign monitoring.   

• These campaigns covered specific issues that were relevant to 
each authority e.g. the County Durham campaign wanted to 
communicate effectively with residents with limited literacy. 

• The DEFRA reward and recognition fund has come to an end.  The 
RECAP partnership bid for funding was unsuccessful. 

• There is uncertainty as to whether reward based incentive schemes 
lead to long-term behavioural change.  Many of these schemes 
have been introduced with significant service changes and it is 
therefore difficult to separate the direct effect of one or other of the 
changes. 
 

What are the options for Cambridge City Council? 
 

3.28 Out of the methods listed in 3.8 of how recycling rates can be 
increased, the viable options for Cambridge City are to increase the 
number or amount of materials recycled within existing schemes, or to 
introduce additional schemes. 
 

3.29 Reducing the amount of waste people generate is something that the 
council is already working on in a variety of ways, including: 
supporting and participating in county-wide RECAP campaigns 
focussed on food waste prevention and re-use of textiles; running 

Page 53



Report Page No: 8 

‘Take It Or Leave It’ swap events; promotion of washable nappies; and 
working with colleges and students to encourage donation and re-use 
of unwanted items after graduation. Waste prevention (WP) activity in 
the population is difficult to monitor and Cambridgeshire is at the 
forefront of carrying out these types of campaigns with residents. 
Consequently there is little data available from other authorities on the 
effects of WP activity on the recycling rate.  

 
3.30 The results of the participation work (3.12) show that we have very 

high participation in all our schemes, so there is no need for us to 
focus on this. 
 

3.31 Introducing new recycling schemes is generally very costly, but we 
have been able to provide one option for this based on working with 
third sector organisations. 
 
Option 1 

3.32 We could use the data from the WA to carry out generic campaigns 
across the city targeting particular materials.  This could be done 
within existing resources, but is unlikely to increase recycling by more 
than 1%.  This would take us to 45% recycling.  This option would be 
supported by the Recycling Champions scheme with volunteers asked 
to promote messages at events and through their other activities. 
 

3.33 We could also introduce a doorstep textile collection similar to Case 
Study 6, through our bulky waste collection service. If we were able to 
add textiles to the new MRF contract in the future, this could provide a 
stop-gap, or could be an alternative if we are unable to include in the 
new MRF contract. This would enable us to collect high quality 
textiles, and by working with a charity keep costs low and benefit the 
local community. Again this is unlikely to increase our recycling rate by 
more than 1% on its own. 
 
Option 2 

3.34 Using ACORN data the Waste Strategy team could carry out a limited 
campaign targeting a particular area in the city by delivering specific 
literature to encourage recycling of targeted materials.  This would 
require extra resources for producing and delivering literature.  This 
might produce a 1% increase in recycling.  Recycling Champions 
would also be able to back this work up. 
 
 
Option 3 

3.35 We know that the WA data shows that more material can be captured 
in the blue bin, particularly from those living in certain areas in the city.  
We are anticipating that it will be easiest for residents to increase their 

Page 54



Report Page No: 9 

blue bin recycling, but more will be known about this once we have the 
results of the MEL survey work. 
 

3.36 We could target communications to these areas to increase capture 
rates, by carrying out a communications programme which would be 
focused on face to face canvassing to persuade residents to recycle 
more through the blue bin scheme.  This approach is similar to Case 
study 3.  

 
3.37 It is important to measure the success of the campaign and the actual 

impact on materials recycled.  We would therefore need to monitor the 
canvassing work and the campaign as a whole by carrying out a pre 
and post campaign monitoring exercise.  One way in which the post 
campaign monitoring can be done is through resident workshops to 
find out whether the campaign has changed behaviour.  Tonnage 
monitoring would also be crucial. 

 
3.38 This type of campaign could achieve a 3-5% increase in recycling. 
 
3.39 In order to do this we would seek specialist advice to design an 

appropriate campaign around visiting residents at home to deliver 
information about how easy it is to recycle and why it is important to 
do so. 

 
4. Implications  
 
(a) Financial Implications 
 At the current rate a 1% increase in dry recycling saves the County 

Council £28,544 of landfill tax.  At present the recycling credit paid by 
the county council for waste diverted from landfill is £38.65 per tonne 
which for a 1% increase in dry recycling would generate an extra 
income of £17,100.  Any increase in recycling will result in additional 
income for the material from our contractors.  We do not receive 
recycling credits for green waste as this material is composted through 
a county council contract with AmeyCespa (formally Donarbon) at 
Waterbeach, which the county pays for. 

 
The outcome of the DCLG funding will have a financial impact and will 
need to be taken into consideration upon proposals for the Portfolio 
Plan for 2013/14. 

 
  
(b) Staffing Implications   (if not covered in Consultations Section) 
 There are no staffing implications 
 
(c) Equal Opportunities Implications 

Page 55



Report Page No: 10 

 An Equality Impact Assessment has not been carried out as no 
decisions have been made as to which options may be implemented.  
This will be done once it is decided what changes are to be made 

 
(d) Environmental Implications 
 
The following climate change rating has been assigned : 
 

• +H   to indicate that the proposal has a high positive impact from 
diverting refuse from landfill. 

 
 

(e) Consultation 
 

No consultations planned. 
 
(f) Community Safety 

There are no community safety implications. 
 
 
5. Background papers  
 
These background papers were used in the preparation of this report: 
 
6. Appendices  
 
Appendix A – MEL report 
Appendix B – Project work 
 
7. Inspection of papers  
 
To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report 
please contact: 
 
Author’s Name: Jen Robertson 
Author’s Phone Number:  01223 - 458225 
Author’s Email:  jen.robertson@cambridge.gov.uk 
 
  

Page 56



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 0 - 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cambridge City Waste 
Composition Analysis 

 

Cambridge Council 
 

May / June 2012 
 

FINAL REPORT  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 57



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 1 - 

 

Contents Page 

1) Project details and acknowledgements........................................................ - 3 - 

2) Introduction ...................................................................................................... - 4 - 

Background .................................................................................................................. - 4 - 

Objectives ..................................................................................................................... - 4 - 

Acknowledgements ..................................................................................................... - 5 - 

Accuracy Statement .................................................................................................... - 5 - 

3) Executive Summary......................................................................................... - 6 - 

Key findings.................................................................................................................. - 6 - 

Kerbside residual waste.............................................................................................. - 6 - 

Mixed recycling – Blue bins........................................................................................ - 7 - 

Organic waste recycling – Green bins....................................................................... - 7 - 

4) Compositional Analysis of Residual Waste ................................................. - 8 - 

4.1 Set out rates and waste generation levels................................................... - 8 - 

4.2 Compositional analysis of household residual waste ............................. - 11 - 

4.2.1 Organic Waste .............................................................................................. - 15 - 

4.2.2 Paper.............................................................................................................. - 17 - 

4.2.3 Card & Cardboard......................................................................................... - 19 - 

4.2.4 Plastics .......................................................................................................... - 21 - 

4.2.5 Metals............................................................................................................. - 23 - 

4.2.6 Glass.............................................................................................................. - 25 - 

4.2.7 Textiles .......................................................................................................... - 27 - 

4.2.8 Hazardous Items (HHW) & WEEE............................................................... - 29 - 

4.2.9 Disposable Nappies ..................................................................................... - 30 - 

5) Mixed dry recycling waste ............................................................................ - 35 - 

5.1 Set out rates and waste generation............................................................ - 35 - 

5.2 Compositional analysis of mixed recycling waste ................................... - 37 - 

Page 58



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 2 - 

5.3 Materials placed out for mixed recycling collections............................... - 40 - 

5.3.1 Paper Capture............................................................................................... - 41 - 

5.3.2 Card & Cardboard Capture.......................................................................... - 42 - 

5.3.3 Plastic Bottles Capture ................................................................................ - 43 - 

5.4 Blue Bin Recycling Contamination ............................................................ - 47 - 

6) Green Bin Organic Recycling Waste........................................................... - 52 - 

6.1 Set out rates and waste generation............................................................ - 52 - 

6.2 Compositional analysis of green recycling bins....................................... - 54 - 

6.3 Materials placed out for green bin recycling collections......................... - 58 - 

6.3.2 Garden Waste Capture................................................................................. - 60 - 

6.3.3 Food Waste Capture .................................................................................... - 61 - 

6.4 Green Bin Recycling Contamination.......................................................... - 63 - 

7) Overall Diversion through Recycling Collections ..................................... - 66 - 

7.1 Total waste generation levels & diversion................................................. - 66 - 

Appendix ................................................................................................................... 69 

 

Page 59



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

1) Project details and acknowledgements 

 

 

 

 

 

 

M·E·L Research  

8 Holt Court 

Aston Science Park 

Birmingham B7 4AX 

Tel: 0121 604 4664 

Fax: 0121 604 6776 

Email: info@m-e-l.co.uk 

Web:   www.m-e-l.co.uk 

Title Cambridge City Waste Composition Analysis. 

  

Client Cambridge City 

  

Project number 12012 

  

Client reference Final Report_Version_1 

  

Author Philip Wells 

  

Contract Manager Darren Coss 

Page 60



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

2)     Introduction 

Background  

Cambridge City Council currently has a combined recycling and composting rate of 43.7% (2010/11).  The 

Authority now wishes to study the composition of domestic kerbside collected residual and recycling waste 

streams to provide current baseline data and to help inform future communication campaigns. As well as 

giving indications as to the current levels of waste and recycling being generated, observations will be made 

showing the levels of materials that are currently recyclable at the kerbside and those which could 

potentially be recyclable via future schemes.  The Council hopes to achieve 45% by the end of 2012 with a 

future target for 2015-16 of 50-55%.  

 

This report presents results from the analysis of kerbside collected residual and recycling waste collected 

during a two week period in May / June 2012.  The survey focused on the levels and composition of all 

waste containers that are currently available for residents to place for collection at the kerbside.  The 

sampling regime involved the direct collection and compositional analysis of residual waste from a target of 

300 properties representing each of the five main socio-demographic categories (Acorns). Results could 

therefore be weighted to give an even better picture of the waste being collected by the authority as a 

whole.  Additionally around 120 properties were highlighted from a low performing area and a group of 

properties using communal bins.  Knowledge of the waste in these differing areas will help the City Council 

develop strategies to increase the efficiency with which its residents are recycling their waste. The overall 

findings of this project will highlight several factors important for improving the recycling rate and directing 

future strategy and communication campaigns: 

 

Objectives 

Specific aims of the work were to: 

 

§ Understand, using socio-demographic profiling which sectors of the community are producing 
which types of waste and which are using the recycling provision most effectively 

§ Detect capture rates for individual materials which are already collected separately for recycling 

§ Evaluate the amount of specific materials collected in the residual bin that could potentially be 
collected separately for recycling 

§ Evaluate the use of the receptacles used for collecting waste and recycling 

§ Detect the amount of packaging and biodegradable material present  

§ Assess the amount of contamination in receptacles meant for recycling material 

§ Assess the amount of recyclable material being placed in the residual bin 

 

This report will highlight key results recorded for Cambridge City showing data for individual socio-

demographics as well as weighted for the City as a whole.   

Page 61



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 5 - 

Acknowledgements  

M·E·L Research would like to thank the collection authority and their staff who participated and helped in 

the setup and fieldwork stages of the project, and those who provided additional data and other information 

to inform the project. This report highlights key results, presents the results in tables and charts and 

discusses the findings. The views and opinions expressed in this report are those of M.E.L Research Ltd. 

and are not necessarily shared by officers from Cambridge City Council.  

 

Accuracy Statement 

Results from the standard M·E·L sampling protocol for compositional analysis can be taken as accurate for 

each material category to within error bands of +/-10% at the 95% confidence level (2 standard deviations), 

assuming a normal statistical distribution. At the data entry stage 1 in 10 parts of data that is inputted are 

checked with the data sheets and if errors are found all the data is then rechecked. 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 62



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

3)     Executive Summary 

Key findings  

Kerbside residual waste 

§ Weighted across all Acorn samples, 84% of households sampled throughout Cambridge 
presented residual waste bins for collection. 

§ In terms of waste generation, households were setting out an average of 6.36kg/hh/wk. 

§ Food waste was seen to be the major component of residual waste forming 20.6% of the total, 
equating to 1.31kg/hh/wk – 45% of this is potentially home compostable 

§ Paper items made up 10.2% of the residual waste; 53% of this (0.35kg/hh/wk) was alternatively 
recyclable at the kerbside. 

§ Card and cardboard made up around 3.5% of collected residual waste; 84% of this (0.18kg/hh/wk) 
was alternatively recyclable at the kerbside. 

§ Plastics formed 14.9% of the residual waste; 10% of dense plastic waste (0.05kg/hh/wk) was due 
to recyclable plastic bottles with a further 0.21kg/hh/wk formed from the types of plastic containers 
that will be recyclable from July 2012.  

§ Just under 3% of residual waste was metallic; 53% of this (0.09kg/hh/wk) was recyclable in blue 
bins. 

§ Around 3% of residual waste was seen to be glass; 94% of this (0.16kg/hh/wk) was recyclable in 
blue bins. 

§ Over 6% of residual waste was due to textiles; 53% of these items (0.21kg/hh/wk) were seen to 
consist of reusable clothing and shoes 

§ Just under 1.6% of residual waste was deemed to be either Hazardous or WEEE. An additional 
17% consisted of disposable nappies 

§ Just over 1.3% of residual waste was found to be garden waste. Around 17% of this was non-
recyclable soil and turf, with the remainder consisting of recyclable garden trimmings 

§ Overall just over 13% of collected residual waste could have been placed into the blue recycling 
containers available– the equivalent of 0.84kg/hh/wk. 

§ Just under 22% of collected residual waste could have been placed into the green recycling 
containers available– the equivalent of 1.40kg/hh/wk. 

§ In total over 35% of residual waste collected could have been recycled alternatively at the kerbside 
– 2.23kg/hh/wk. 

§ Around 59% of potentially recyclable materials consisted of food waste with 15% being paper and 
8% being card and cardboard.  

§ Residual waste collected from Cambridge households was deemed to be around 51% 
biodegradable. 

§ Collected waste had a packaging content of 17%. 

 

Page 63



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 7 - 

Mixed recycling – Blue bins 

§ Over the survey, 78% of households presented blue bins for collection  

§ In terms of waste generation, kerbside households were setting out an average of 3.16kg/hh/wk in 
their blue bins. 

§ Overall 6.4% of blue bin recycling waste collected from all properties was classified as 
contamination – the equivalent of 0.20kg/hh/wk.  

§ Around 77% of paper, 87% of recyclable glass, 73% of card and cardboard, 78% of plastic bottles 
and 59% of the recyclable metals available for mixed recycling were correctly captured. 

§ Kerbside properties diverted around 23.7% of their waste through their blue bins.  

Organic waste recycling – Green bins 

§ Over the survey, 58% of households opted to present their green organic recycling bins at the 
kerbside for collection. 

§ In terms of waste generation, households were setting out an average of 2.96kg/hh/wk at the 
kerbside. 

§ Overall 2.6% of green bin recycling waste collected from all properties was classified as 
contamination – the equivalent of 0.08kg/hh/wk. 

§ Green bins collected from households on a communal service had very high contamination levels 
of 31.3%.  Bins had significant levels of residual waste and also large amounts of paper and 
cardboard.  

§ The majority of contamination of green bin waste was due to general residual materials; forming 
69% of the contamination.  Up to 23% of contamination was due to textiles. 

§ 21% of food waste and 97% of garden waste was correctly captured by households using the 
scheme. 

§ Properties on the green bin collection scheme diverted an average of around 23.1% of their waste 
through these collections. 

§ When combined with the diversion through mixed recycling collections, Cambridge households are 
diverting around 46.8% (5.84kg/hh/wk) of their total waste (12.48kg/hh/wk) through recycling 
collections. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 64



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 8 - 

4)     Compositional Analysis of Residual Waste 

4.1 Set out rates and waste generation levels  

 

Table 4.1.2 and Figure 4.1.2 highlight the average set out rates for residual waste observed at the time 

waste was collected for compositional analysis. Table 4.1.3 and Figure 4.1.3 show the average amount of 

residual waste generated in kg/hh/wk. Around 60 households were selected for each sample from each 

Acorn category with the set out relating to the proportion of these households actively placing out their 

waste. The amount of waste in kilograms per household per week is collected from each sample of 60 

households, not just those that are participating. Results are shown by Acorn; as all five Acorn categories 

were sampled it was possible to weight the results according to the socio-demographic profile for 

Cambridge as per Table 4.1.1.  A table giving a brief description of the types of households typical for each 

Acorn category is shown in the appendix section. 

 

Table 4.1.1: Acorn profile for Cambridge 

ACORN % SET OUT 

1 7.12% 

2 49.66% 

3 18.08% 

4 3.45% 

5 20.71% 

UNCLASSIFIED 0.98% 

TOTAL 100% 

 

Figure 4.1.1: Acorn profile for Cambridge 

UNCLASSIFIED
0.98%

ACORN 3
18.08%

ACORN 4
3.45%

ACORN 5
20.71%

ACORN 1
7.12%

ACORN 2
49.66%

Page 65



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 9 - 

Observed set out rates for residual waste ranged between 71% in the low performing Acorn 5 area (LPA) to 

95% in Acorn 3.  On average 84% of households in Cambridge are projected to be setting out their residual 

waste for collection. 

 

Table 4.1.2: Kerbside residual waste set out rates for each Acorn sample  

 

ACORN % SET OUT 

1 77% 

2 82% 

3 95% 

4 82% 

5 82% 

5 (LPA)* 71% 

COMMUNAL N/A** 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE 84% 

 

*Acorn 5 Low Performing Area 

** Do not have their own bin so set out is not applicable 

 

Figure 4.1.2: Kerbside residual waste set out rates by Acorn (%)  

 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

Page 66



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 10 - 

From observed results, the level of residual waste being disposed of at the kerbside ranged between 

4.20kg/hh/wk in Acorn 1 to 9.80kg/hh/wk in Acorn 5. On average 6.36kg/hh/wk of residual waste is being 

disposed of by households throughout Cambridge. 

 

Table 4.1.3:  Kerbside residual waste generation rates for each Acorn sample (kg/hh/wk) 

 

ACORN KG/HH/WK 

1 4.20 

2 4.66 

3 7.93 

4 6.50 

5 9.80 

5 (LPA) 5.06 

COMMUNAL 8.33 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE 6.36 

 

 

 
Figure 4.1.3: Average residual waste generation rates by Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

7.00

8.00

9.00

10.00

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

Page 67



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 11 - 

4.2 Compositional analysis of household residual waste 

 

This section looks at the average amount and composition of the residual waste presented by various 

socio-demographic households sampled throughout the City. Hand sorting of the residual waste gave 

concentration by weight figures for the fifteen main categories of waste as well as the more detailed sub-

categories.   

 

Looking at the concentration percentages gives an indication as to the proportions of each waste category. 

This can be translated into a figure relating to the average waste generation expected for each waste 

category; this is given in kilograms per household per week (kg/hh/wk). 

 

By knowing the composition of waste from the various Acorn samples it is possible to gain an insight into 

the make-up and volumes of the residual waste that can be expected from the City as a whole. Additional 

information on the selected lower performing and communal bins areas can also be gained.  Detailed 

residual composition tables can be found in a separate data appendix.  

 

Table 4.2.1 and Figure 4.2.1 show residual waste data in terms of percentage composition with Table 4.2.2 

and Figure 4.2.2 showing generation rates for major materials in terms of kg/hh/wk. All residual waste will 

contain a proportion that is classified as potentially recyclable. That is to say that is should have been 

placed into one of the recycling receptacles supplied by the Council.   

Page 68



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 12 - 

 

Table 4.2.1: Average residual waste composition weighted by Acorn (%) 
 

 RESIDUAL WASTE 
ACORN 

1 
ACORN 

2 
ACORN 

3 
ACORN 

4 
ACORN 

5 
ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AVERAGE 

PAPER 13.84% 11.35% 8.51% 7.78% 9.78% 5.93% 6.74% 10.19% 

CARD & CARDBOARD 5.01% 3.32% 3.11% 2.57% 3.71% 1.92% 2.77% 3.45% 

PLASTIC FILM 5.36% 7.98% 6.54% 4.06% 6.07% 8.81% 5.45% 6.77% 

DENSE PLASTIC 10.76% 8.28% 12.09% 6.64% 4.78% 9.45% 5.83% 8.08% 

TEXTILES 1.00% 6.24% 5.48% 7.74% 7.24% 3.66% 5.71% 6.19% 

MISC COMBUSTIBLES 22.52% 16.70% 28.71% 17.69% 33.61% 30.14% 35.67% 25.19% 

MISC NON-COMBUSTIBLES 12.58% 7.20% 11.17% 5.22% 11.50% 0.71% 0.34% 9.67% 

GLASS 1.01% 4.13% 2.48% 2.21% 1.70% 4.42% 4.59% 2.75% 

FERROUS METAL 5.19% 1.92% 2.02% 2.96% 2.06% 1.03% 2.48% 2.18% 

NON-FERROUS METAL 0.57% 0.78% 0.53% 0.43% 0.55% 0.83% 0.74% 0.63% 

GARDEN WASTE 2.49% 2.34% 0.52% 4.26% 0.31% 4.02% 1.57% 1.35% 

PUTRESCIBLES 16.52% 28.37% 16.20% 32.97% 17.10% 28.45% 24.13% 21.57% 

FINES 0.52% 0.00% 0.00% 1.22% 0.93% 0.20% 0.97% 0.37% 

HHW 1.47% 0.30% 1.33% 0.00% 0.00% 0.03% 0.10% 0.48% 

WEEE 1.17% 1.10% 1.32% 4.27% 0.67% 0.41% 2.91% 1.13% 

TOTAL 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE 17.47% 15.67% 11.43% 10.41% 11.16% 11.48% 14.01% 13.15% 

GREEN BIN RECYCLABLE 18.94% 29.72% 15.72% 32.64% 16.78% 31.01% 23.21% 21.95% 

TOTAL RECYCLABLE 36.41% 45.39% 27.15% 43.05% 27.94% 42.50% 37.21% 35.11% 

 

Table 4.2.2: Average residual waste generation weighted by Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 
 

 RESIDUAL WASTE 
ACORN 

1 
ACORN 

2 
ACORN 

3 
ACORN 

4 
ACORN 

5 
ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AVERAGE 

PAPER 0.58 0.53 0.67 0.51 0.96 0.30 0.56 0.65 

CARD & CARDBOARD 0.21 0.15 0.25 0.17 0.36 0.10 0.23 0.22 

PLASTIC FILM 0.23 0.37 0.52 0.26 0.59 0.45 0.45 0.43 

DENSE PLASTIC 0.45 0.39 0.96 0.43 0.47 0.48 0.49 0.51 

TEXTILES 0.04 0.29 0.43 0.50 0.71 0.18 0.48 0.39 

MISC COMBUSTIBLES 0.95 0.78 2.28 1.15 3.29 1.52 2.97 1.60 

MISC NON-COMBUSTIBLES 0.53 0.34 0.89 0.34 1.13 0.04 0.03 0.62 

GLASS 0.04 0.19 0.20 0.14 0.17 0.22 0.38 0.18 

FERROUS METAL 0.22 0.09 0.16 0.19 0.20 0.05 0.21 0.14 

NON-FERROUS METAL 0.02 0.04 0.04 0.03 0.05 0.04 0.06 0.04 

GARDEN WASTE 0.10 0.11 0.04 0.28 0.03 0.20 0.13 0.09 

PUTRESCIBLES 0.69 1.32 1.28 2.14 1.68 1.44 2.01 1.37 

FINES 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.08 0.09 0.01 0.08 0.02 

HHW 0.06 0.01 0.11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.03 

WEEE 0.05 0.05 0.10 0.28 0.07 0.02 0.24 0.07 

TOTAL 4.20 4.66 7.93 6.50 9.80 5.06 8.33 6.36 

BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE 0.73 0.73 0.91 0.68 1.09 0.58 1.17 0.84 

GREEN BIN RECYCLABLE 0.80 1.38 1.25 2.12 1.64 1.57 1.93 1.40 

TOTAL RECYCLABLE 1.53 2.11 2.15 2.80 2.74 2.15 3.10 2.23 

 

Page 69



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 1
3 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.1

: A
ve

ra
ge

 r
es

id
ua

l w
as

te
 c

om
po

si
tio

n 
w

ei
gh

te
d 

by
 A

co
rn

 (%
) 

0
%

10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

1
00

%

AC
O

RN 1

AC
O

RN 2

AC
O

RN 3

AC
O

RN 4

AC
O

RN 5

AC
O

RN 5
 (L

PA
)

CO
M

M
UNAL

W
EIG

HTE
D A

VE
RAGE

W
E

EE

H
H

W

F
IN

E
S

P
U

T
R

E
S

C
IB

LE
S

G
A

R
D

EN
 W

A
S

T
E

N
O

N
-F

ER
R

O
U

S
 M

ET
A

L

F
ER

R
O

U
S

 M
E

TA
L

G
L

A
S

S

M
IS

C
 N

O
N

-C
O

M
B

U
S

T
IB

L
ES

M
IS

C
 C

O
M

B
U

S
T

IB
LE

S

T
EX

TI
LE

S

D
EN

S
E 

P
LA

S
TI

C

P
LA

S
TI

C
 F

IL
M

C
A

R
D

 &
 C

A
R

D
B

O
A

R
D

P
A

PE
R

 

Page 70



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 1
4 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.2

: A
ve

ra
ge

 r
es

id
ua

l w
as

te
 g

en
er

at
io

n 
w

ei
gh

te
d 

by
 A

co
rn

 (k
g/

hh
/w

k)
 

0.
00

1.
00

2.
00

3.
00

4.
00

5.
00

6.
00

7.
00

8.
00

9.
00

10
.0

0 AC
O

RN 1

AC
O

RN 2

AC
O

RN 3

AC
O

RN 4

AC
O

RN 5

ACO
RN 5

 (L
PA)

CO
M

M
UNAL

W
EIG

HTE
D A

VE
RAGE

W
EE

E

H
H

W

FI
N

ES

PU
TR

ES
C

IB
LE

S

G
A

R
D

EN
 W

A
S

TE

N
O

N
-F

ER
R

O
U

S
 M

ET
A

L

FE
R

R
O

U
S

 M
ET

A
L

G
LA

S
S

M
IS

C
 N

O
N

-C
O

M
B

U
S

TI
B

L
ES

M
IS

C
 C

O
M

B
U

S
TI

B
LE

S

TE
X

T
IL

E
S

D
EN

S
E 

P
LA

S
TI

C

PL
A

S
TI

C
 F

IL
M

C
A

R
D

 &
 C

A
R

D
B

O
A

R
D

PA
PE

R

 

Page 71



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 15 - 

4.2.1 Organic Waste 

Organic waste, which includes garden and food waste (putrescibles), formed the greatest weight 

concentration of the primary waste categories for all Acorns. Ranges seen were from 16.7% from Acorn 3 

households to 33.9% in Acorn 5 (LPA) households. Across the City as a whole around 23.3% of all residual 

waste (1.48kg/hh/wk) is classified as organic waste.  Food waste accounted for between 15.6% (Acorn 3) 

and 27.4% (Acorn 2) of residual waste. Across the City as a whole around 20.6% of all residual waste 

(1.31kg/hh/wk) is classified as food waste. Currently Cambridge residents are able to recycle food waste at 

the kerbside using their green bin collection.   Residents from Acorn 3 placed the most recyclable food into 

their residual bins at 2.81kg/hh/wk.  Overall approximately 45% of this food waste (0.58kg/hh/wk) is 

potentially compostable in a general garden compost bin.  

 

Residents throughout Cambridge can also utilise their green bins for the collection of general garden waste.   

In Acorns 3 and 5 levels of garden waste in residual bins were very low at 0.5% and 0.3% respectively. This 

equated to less than 0.05kg/hh/wk in total.  In contrast the residual waste from Acorn 4 and Acorn 5(LPA) 

was over 4% garden waste; the equivalent of 0.28kg/hh/wk and 0.20kg/hh/wk respectively.  Averaged for 

Cambridge it is seen that 17% of this garden waste consisted of soil and turf which is discouraged from the 

recycling collection.  Across the City, recyclable forms of garden waste (i.e. garden clippings but not soil and 

turf) are responsible for an average of just 1.1%, or 0.07kg/hh/wk of residual waste. Table 4.2.1.1 and 

Figure 4.2.1.1 show the amounts of the different forms of organic waste found within the samples from each 

sample. 

 

Table 4.2.1.1: Levels of organic wastes within residual waste of each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL 
ORGANICS 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 5 
(LPA) 

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 
AVERAGE 

FLORA 
ORGANICS 0.10 0.11 0.00 0.08 0.03 0.20 0.13 0.07 

SOIL & TURF 0.00 0.00 0.04 0.19 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 

COMPOSTABLE 
FOOD WASTE 0.22 0.75 0.40 0.47 0.48 0.52 0.78 0.58 

NON-HOME 
COMPOSTABLE 
FOOD WASTE 

0.47 0.52 0.84 1.19 1.14 0.85 1.02 0.73 

HERBIVOROUS 
PET BEDDING 0.00 0.05 0.00 0.05 0.06 0.07 0.21 0.04 

LIQUIDS, FATS & 
OILS 0.00 0.05 0.05 0.10 0.06 0.07 0.21 0.05 

KG/HH/WK 
ORGANICS 0.80 1.48 1.33 2.09 1.77 1.72 2.35 1.48 

% ORGANICS 19.08% 31.71% 16.71% 32.09% 18.06% 33.92% 28.22% 23.31% 

KG/HH/WK FOOD 
WASTE 0.69 1.27 1.23 1.66 1.61 1.37 1.80 1.31 

% FOOD WASTE 16.45% 27.37% 15.57% 25.53% 16.47% 27.00% 21.61% 20.59% 

Page 72



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 1
6 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.1

.1
: L

ev
el

s 
of

 o
rg

an
ic

 w
as

te
s 

w
ith

in
 r

es
id

ua
l w

as
te

 o
f e

ac
h 

A
co

rn
 (k

g/
hh

/w
k)

 

0
.0

0

0
.5

0

1
.0

0

1
.5

0

2
.0

0

2
.5

0

AC
O

RN 1

AC
O

RN 2

AC
O

RN 3

AC
O

RN 4

AC
O

RN 5

AC
O

RN 5
 (L

PA
)

CO
M

M
UNAL

  W
EI

GHTE
D A

V.

L
IQ

U
ID

S
, 
F
A

T
S

 &
 O

IL
S

H
E
R

B
IV

O
R

O
U

S
 P

E
T

B
E
D

D
IN

G

N
O

N
-H

O
M

E
 C

O
M

P
O

S
T
A

B
L
E

F
O

O
D

 W
A

S
T
E

C
O

M
P
O

S
T
A

B
L
E
 F

O
O

D
W

A
S

T
E

S
O

IL
 &

 T
U

R
F

F
L
O

R
A

 O
R

G
A

N
IC

S

 

Page 73



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 17 - 

4.2.2 Paper  

On average, Acorn 1 residents had the highest concentrations of this type of waste (13.8%), with Acorn 5 

disposing of the most at 0.96kg/hh/wk. In comparison just 5.9% (0.30kg/hh/wk) of residual waste from 

Acorn 5(LPA) was due to paper based materials. Across the City it was seen that around 10.2% or 

0.65kg/hh/wk of residual waste consisted of discarded paper. 

 

A proportion of this paper is available for recycling at the kerbside. Cambridge residents have a blue bin for 

recycling higher grade white paper such as newspapers, junk mail, envelopes and directories.  In addition 

to this higher grade paper, Cambridge residents are able to place shredded paper into their green organics 

bin. It was found that between 50.5% (Acorn 3 and Acorn 5(LPA) and 74.8% (Acorn 1) of paper could have 

been placed in either the blue or green bins as opposed to the residual bin.  

 

When accounting for all of the various types of paper within the residual waste, it is seen that 53.3% of 

residual paper was recyclable which accounted for 5.4% of all the residual waste or 0.35kg/hh/wk.   

 

Table 4.2.2.1 and Figure 4.2.2.1 show the amounts of the different forms of paper waste for each Acorn. 

 

Table 4.2.2.1: Levels of paper wastes within residual waste of each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL PAPER ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 5 
(LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

RECYCLABLE 
PAPER 0.43 0.28 0.33 0.30 0.48 0.15 0.36 0.34 

SHREDDED 
PAPER 

0.00 0.00 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

NON-
RECYCLABLE 

PAPER 
0.15 0.25 0.33 0.21 0.48 0.15 0.20 0.30 

KG/HH/WK TOTAL 
PAPER  0.58 0.53 0.67 0.51 0.96 0.30 0.56 0.65 

KG/HH/WK 
RECYCLABLE 

PAPER 
0.43 0.28 0.34 0.30 0.48 0.15 0.37 0.35 

% PAPER 
RECYCLABLE 

74.77% 53.37% 50.52% 59.17% 49.83% 50.52% 65.29% 53.27% 

 

Page 74



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 1
8 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.2

.1
: L

ev
el

s 
of

 p
ap

er
 w

as
te

s 
w

ith
in

 r
es

id
ua

l w
as

te
 o

f e
ac

h 
A

co
rn

 (k
g/

hh
/w

k)
 

0
.0

0

0
.2

0

0
.4

0

0
.6

0

0
.8

0

1
.0

0

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

CO
M

M
U
N
AL

  W
EI

GH
TE

D
 A

V.

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P
E
R

S
H

R
E
D

D
E
D

 P
A

P
E
R

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P
E
R

 

Page 75



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 19 - 

4.2.3 Card & Cardboard 

On average, Acorn 1 residents had the highest concentrations of this type of waste (5%), with Acorn 5 

disposing of the most at 0.36kg/hh/wk. In comparison just 1.9% (0.10kg/hh/wk) of residual waste from 

Acorn 5(LPA) was due to card and cardboard based materials. Across the City it was seen that around 

3.5% or 0.22kg/hh/wk of residual waste consisted of discarded card and cardboard. 

 

A proportion of this card & cardboard is available for recycling at the kerbside. Cambridge residents have a 

blue bin for recycling thin card, corrugated cardboard and drinks cartons.  It was found that between 65% 

(Acorn 1) and 94% (Acorn 5-LPA) of card and cardboard could have been placed in the blue bin as 

opposed to the residual bin. Across Cambridge, 84% of residual card and cardboard was compatible with 

recycling collections which accounted for 2.9% of all the residual waste or 0.18kg/hh/wk.   

 

Table 4.2.3.1 and Figure 4.2.3.1 show the amounts of the different forms of card and cardboard waste for 

each Acorn. 

 

When combining paper and card together it is estimated that 61% of that present in residual bins could 

have been recycled via kerbside recycling collections.  This amounts to 8.3% of all the residual waste being 

collected – a total of 0.53kg/hh/wk.  

 

Table 4.2.3.1: Levels of card wastes within residual waste of each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL CARD 
ACORN 

1 
ACORN 

2 
ACORN 

3 
ACORN 

4 
ACORN 

5 
ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

RECYCLABLE THIN 
CARD 0.05 0.08 0.15 0.07 0.14 0.05 0.16 0.10 

RECYCLABLE 
CORRUGATED 
CARDBOARD 

0.07 0.02 0.07 0.05 0.17 0.02 0.03 0.07 

BEVERAGE CARTONS 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.02 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
CARD 0.07 0.04 0.02 0.04 0.04 0.01 0.02 0.04 

KG/HH/WK  TOTAL 
CARD & CARDBOARD  0.21 0.15 0.25 0.17 0.36 0.10 0.23 0.22 

KG/HH/WK 
RECYCLABLE CARD & 

CARDBOARD 
0.14 0.12 0.23 0.12 0.33 0.09 0.21 0.18 

% CARD KERBSIDE 
RECYCLABLE 65.22% 77.15% 93.19% 74.50% 89.79% 94.04% 90.71% 83.93% 

 

 

 

Page 76



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 2
0 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.3

.1
: L

ev
el

s 
of

 c
ar

d 
w

as
te

s 
w

ith
in

 r
es

id
ua

l w
as

te
 o

f e
ac

h 
A

co
rn

 (k
g/

hh
/w

k)
 

0
.0

0

0
.0

5

0
.1

0

0
.1

5

0
.2

0

0
.2

5

0
.3

0

0
.3

5

0
.4

0

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 C

A
R

D

B
E
V

E
R

A
G

E
 C

A
R

T
O

N
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

C
O

R
R

U
G

A
T
E
D

C
A

R
D

B
O

A
R

D

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 T

H
IN

 C
A

R
D

Page 77



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 21 - 

4.2.4 Plastics 

As a UK average approximately 12% of the waste disposed of by households is plastic. In this sampling 

campaign average ranges seen were 10.7% total plastic by weight from Acorn 4 households to 18.6% in 

the waste from Acorn 3 households. Cambridge residents currently recycle plastic bottles as part of their 

blue bin collections. Across the City as a whole, 14.9% of residual waste was classified as plastic which 

equates to 0.94kg/hh/wk. On the whole plastic waste, although not heavy in itself, can produce large 

volumes of waste. 

 

Figure 4.2.4.1 clearly shows the levels of recyclable plastic bottles within the plastic portion of the residual 

waste. On average, around 46% of this plastic waste present in the residual was due to plastic film with the 

remainder being dense plastic. Up to 9.9% of residual dense plastic consisted of plastic bottles meaning 

that just 0.8% of residual waste (0.05kg/hh/wk) collected throughout Cambridge was made up of plastic 

bottles that could have been recycled.  Up to 0.13kg/hh/wk of plastic bottles were seen in communal bins 

representing over a quarter of all the dense plastic present.   

 

From July 2012 Cambridge households will be able to recycle plastic food containers in addition to plastic 

bottles.  On average these formed 3.4% of the total residual waste equating to 0.21kg/hh/wk.  This means 

that 0.27kg/hh/wk or 4.2% of the residual waste is due to recyclable plastic bottles and containers.  

 

Table 4.2.4.1 and Figure 4.2.4.1 show the amounts of the different forms of plastic waste found within the 

residual samples from each Acorn. 

 

Table 4.2.4.1: Levels of plastics within residual waste of each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL 
PLASTICS 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

PLASTIC FILM 0.23 0.37 0.52 0.26 0.59 0.45 0.45 0.43 

PLASTIC BOTTLES 0.09 0.04 0.06 0.06 0.05 0.04 0.13 0.05 

PLASTIC FOOD 
CONTAINERS 

0.12 0.23 0.27 0.17 0.18 0.12 0.22 0.21 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PLASTICS 0.25 0.11 0.63 0.20 0.24 0.31 0.14 0.25 

KG/HH/WK  TOTAL 
PLASTIC 0.68 0.76 1.48 0.70 1.06 0.92 0.94 0.94 

% DENSE PLASTIC 
RECYCLABLE 19.39% 11.04% 6.41% 14.22% 9.84% 9.18% 26.63% 9.85% 

Page 78



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 2
2 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.4

.1
: L

ev
el

s 
of

 p
la

st
ic

s 
w

ith
in

 r
es

id
ua

l w
as

te
 o

f e
ac

h 
A

co
rn

 (k
g/

hh
/w

k)
 

0
.0

0

0
.2

5

0
.5

0

0
.7

5

1
.0

0

1
.2

5

1
.5

0

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O
R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

P
L
A

S
T
IC

S

P
L
A

S
T
IC

 F
O

O
D

C
O

N
T
A

IN
E
R

S

P
L
A

S
T
IC

 B
O

T
T
L
E
S

P
L
A

S
T
IC

 F
IL

M

Page 79



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 23 - 

4.2.5 Metals 

In this sampling campaign average concentrations of residual metals were seen to be 1.9% total metal by 

weight from Acorn 5(LPA) households to 5.8% in the waste from Acorn 1 households, averaging 2.8% 

overall. Cambridge residents have access to a recycling collection of food and drink cans as well as empty 

aerosols and clean foil via their blue bin service. The average weight of metals in the residual waste from 

Acorn 5(LPA) was 0.09kg/hh/wk rising to 0.27kg/hh/wk in communal bins.   

 

A proportion of this metal waste is available for recycling at the kerbside relative to the blue bin collection.  It 

was found that just 13% of Acorn 1 metals were recyclable rising to 77% for the metals in Acorn 5(LPA) 

residual waste. Across the City an average of 52.5% or 0.09kg/hh/wk of residual metal is classified as 

recyclable, this equates to 1.5% of all collected residual waste. 

 

On the whole 78% of metals were ferrous accounting for 0.14kg/hh/wk with non-ferrous metals contributing 

0.04kg/hh/wk. The majority of metallic waste present in all samples was seen to be ferrous.  

 

Table 4.2.5.1 and Figure 4.2.5.1 show the amounts of the different forms of metallic waste found within the 

samples from each Acorn. Food cans tend to require a degree of washing before being placed into 

recycling containers and as such are often less well diverted than cleaner drinks cans.   

 

Table 4.2.5.1: Levels of metals within residual waste of each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL METALS ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

DRINK CANS 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.03 0.02 0.02 0.01 

FOOD TINS & CANS 0.01 0.05 0.04 0.03 0.04 0.02 0.04 0.04 

AEROSOLS 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.01 

ALUMINIUM FOIL AND 
FOOD TRAYS 0.01 0.02 0.03 0.01 0.03 0.02 0.03 0.03 

OTHER NON-
RECYCLABLE METALS 0.21 0.03 0.10 0.16 0.15 0.02 0.15 0.08 

RECYCLABLE METALS 0.03 0.10 0.10 0.06 0.11 0.07 0.12 0.09 

TOTAL METALS 0.24 0.13 0.20 0.22 0.26 0.09 0.27 0.18 

% FERROUS 90.16% 71.00% 79.19% 87.30% 78.93% 55.42% 77.02% 77.64% 

%  RECYCLABLE 13.31% 76.02% 49.78% 28.45% 42.69% 77.11% 42.82% 52.46% 

 

Page 80



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 2
4 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.5

.1
: L

ev
el

s 
of

 m
et

al
s 

w
ith

in
 r

es
id

ua
l w

as
te

 o
f e

ac
h 

A
co

rn
 (k

g/
hh

/w
k)

 

0
.0

0

0
.0

5

0
.1

0

0
.1

5

0
.2

0

0
.2

5

0
.3

0 AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

O
T
H

E
R

 N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

M
E
T
A

L
S

A
L
U

M
IN

IU
M

 F
O

IL
 A

N
D

 F
O

O
D

T
R

A
Y

S

A
E
R

O
S

O
L
S

F
O

O
D

 T
IN

S
 &

 C
A

N
S

D
R

IN
K

 C
A

N
S

Page 81



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 25 - 

4.2.6 Glass 

In this sampling campaign the average concentration of residual glass was seen to be 1% total glass by 

weight from Acorn 1 households rising to 4.6% in the waste from communal bins. Cambridge residents are 

able to recycle glass bottles and jars at the kerbside using their blue bin service.   The weight of glass in the 

residual waste from Acorn 1 was 0.04kg/hh/wk rising to 0.38kg/hh/wk in communal bins.  This represented 

a City wide average of 2.8% or 0.18kg/hh/wk. 

 

A proportion of this glass consists of bottles and jars which could have been recycled at the kerbside. It was 

found that across Cambridge an average of 94% or 0.16kg/hh/wk of residual glass is classified as 

recyclable, this equates to 2.6% of all collected residual waste. 

 

In most samples the majority of recyclable glass was seen to be higher grade clear glass, across 

Cambridge 64% of recyclable glass was clear, accounting for 0.11kg/hh/wk of residual waste.  Around 52% 

of the clear glass was due to jars as opposed to bottles.   

 

Table 4.2.6.1 and Figure 4.2.6.1 show the amounts of the different forms of glass waste found within the 

samples from each Acorn.   

 

Table 4.2.6.1: Levels of glass within residual waste of each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL GLASS 
ACORN 

1 
ACORN 

2 
ACORN 

3 
ACORN 

4 
ACORN 

5 
ACORN 5 

(LPA) COMMUNAL 
WEIGHTED 

AV. 

GREEN GLASS 0.00 0.09 0.00 0.02 0.02 0.12 0.04 0.05 

BROWN, BLUE, RED 
GLASS 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.03 0.02 0.01 0.04 0.01 

CLEAR BOTTLES 0.01 0.03 0.17 0.07 0.03 0.06 0.15 0.05 

CLEAR JARS 0.03 0.07 0.01 0.00 0.06 0.04 0.12 0.05 

OTHER NON 
PACKAGING GLASS 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.03 0.00 0.03 0.01 

KG/HH/WK TOTAL 
GLASS 0.04 0.19 0.20 0.14 0.17 0.22 0.38 0.18 

KG/HH/WK RECYCLABLE 
GLASS 0.04 0.19 0.19 0.13 0.13 0.22 0.35 0.16 

% RECYCLABLE 100% 98.99% 94.36% 89.99% 80.74% 99.24% 91.15% 94.17% 

% OF RECYCLABLE 
GLASS - CLEAR 100% 49.56% 95.85% 57.08% 70.33% 42.98% 76.93% 63.76% 

 

 

Page 82



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 2
6 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.6

.1
: L

ev
el

s 
of

 g
la

ss
 w

ith
in

 r
es

id
ua

l w
as

te
 o

f e
ac

h 
A

co
rn

 (k
g/

hh
/w

k)
 

0
.0

0

0
.0

5

0
.1

0

0
.1

5

0
.2

0

0
.2

5

0
.3

0

0
.3

5

0
.4

0

AC
O
R
N
 1

AC
O
R
N
 2

AC
O
R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O
R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O
M
M
U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

O
T
H

E
R

 N
O

N
 P

A
C

K
A

G
IN

G
G

L
A

S
S

C
L
E
A

R
 J

A
R

S

C
L
E
A

R
 B

O
T
T
L
E

S

B
R

O
W

N
, 
B

L
U

E
, 
R

E
D

 G
L
A

S
S

G
R

E
E
N

 G
L
A

S
S

Page 83



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 27 - 

4.2.7 Textiles 

 

The concentration of residual textile waste was seen to be 1% textiles from Acorn 1 households to 7.7% in 

the waste from Acorn 4 households. Cambridge residents are currently not able to recycle textiles at the 

kerbside. The average weight of textile waste in the residual waste from Acorn 1 was 0.04kg/hh/wk rising to 

0.71kg/hh/wk in Acorn 5.  On average 6.2% or 0.39kg/hh/wk of residual waste is classified as textile waste.  

 

A proportion of this textile waste is available for recycling either at bring banks or charity outlets in the form 

of reusable clothes and shoes. It was found that between 37% (Acorn 2) and 67% of Acorn 5(LPA) of textile 

waste was of this potentially recyclable type. Up to 0.44kg/hh/wk (Acorn 5) of recyclable textiles are being 

placed into the residual waste by Cambridge householders. Across Cambridge an average of 52.5% or 

0.21kg/hh/wk of residual textiles is classified as reusable, this equates to 3.3% of all collected residual 

waste. 

 

Table 4.2.7.1 and Figure 4.2.7.1 show the amounts of the different forms of textile waste found within the 

samples from each Acorn. 

 

Table 4.2.7.1: Levels of textiles within residual waste of each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL TEXTILES 
ACORN 

1 
ACORN 

2 
ACORN 

3 
ACORN 

4 
ACORN 

5 
ACORN 5 

(LPA) COMMUNAL 
WEIGHTED 

AV. 

REUSABLE 
CLOTHING 0.03 0.07 0.25 0.20 0.33 0.08 0.22 0.15 

SHOES 0.00 0.04 0.02 0.12 0.11 0.05 0.07 0.05 

ALL OTHER 
TEXTILES 0.01 0.18 0.17 0.19 0.27 0.06 0.19 0.19 

KG/HH/WK TOTAL 
TEXTILES 0.04 0.29 0.43 0.50 0.71 0.18 0.48 0.39 

KG/HH/WK 
REUSABLE TEXTILES 0.03 0.11 0.27 0.31 0.44 0.12 0.28 0.21 

% REUSABLE 
TEXTILES 66.10% 36.88% 61.45% 61.89% 61.69% 67.35% 59.77% 52.51% 

 

 

 

Page 84



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 2
8 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.7

.1
: L

ev
el

s 
of

 te
xt

ile
s 

w
ith

in
 r

es
id

ua
l w

as
te

 o
f e

ac
h 

A
co

rn
 (k

g/
hh

/w
k)

 

0
.0

0

0
.0

5

0
.1

0

0
.1

5

0
.2

0

0
.2

5

0
.3

0

0
.3

5

0
.4

0

0
.4

5

0
.5

0

0
.5

5

0
.6

0

0
.6

5

0
.7

0

0
.7

5

AC
O
R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O
R
N
 3

AC
O
R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M
U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

A
L
L
 O

T
H

E
R

 T
E
X

T
IL

E
S

S
H

O
E
S

R
E
U

S
A

B
L
E
 C

L
O

T
H

IN
G

Page 85



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 29 - 

4.2.8 Hazardous Items (HHW) & WEEE 

In this sampling campaign the average overall concentration of hazardous and WEEE waste was seen to 

be 1.6% which equates to around 0.10kg/hh/wk. Acorn 4 households disposed of the most HHW and 

WEEE waste, where it was responsible for 4.3% of collected waste or 0.28kg/hh/wk. Table 4.2.8.1 shows 

the amounts of HHW and WEEE within the samples from each Acorn. 

 

Table 4.2.8.1: Levels of HHW and WEEE within each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL HHW & 
WEEE 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 5 
(LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

HHW 0.06 0.01 0.11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.03 

WEEE 0.05 0.05 0.10 0.28 0.07 0.02 0.24 0.07 

TOTAL 0.11 0.06 0.21 0.28 0.07 0.02 0.25 0.10 

% HHW & WEEE 2.64% 1.40% 2.65% 4.27% 0.67% 0.44% 3.00% 1.61% 

 

HHW WEEE 

PAINT CHARGERS 

HALOGEN BULB GAME REMOTE 

BATTERIES XMAS LIGHTS 

MEDICINES THERMOSTAT 

WEED KILLER MOBILE PHONE 

 TORCHES 

 SMOKE ALARM 

 SWITCH 

 MODEM 

 LAMPS 

 KETTLES 

 STEREO & SPEAKERS 

 MOTOR 

 TELEPHONE 

 HAIR STRAIGHTENERS 

 CABLES & LEADS 

 SOCKERS 

 DEEP FAT FRYER 

 FAN 

 BLENDER 

 CALCULATOR 

 

Page 86



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 30 - 

4.2.9 Disposable Nappies 

The profile of this type of waste has increased in recent years. Levels of this waste within the residual bins 

of households with babies can be extremely high. In this survey the concentrations of disposable nappies 

ranged between 1.3% in Acorn 3 up to 33.5% in communal bins. Communal bins were seen to contain 

around 2.79kg/hh/wk of disposable nappies. Throughout Cambridge as a whole around 17% of collected 

residual waste consists of disposable nappies, which equates to 1.08kg/hh/wk. 

 

4.3 Potential recyclability of the residual waste 

The overall recyclability of the residual waste relates to all the items present that could have been accepted 

into the kerbside recycling schemes currently running in Cambridge. Results from the survey showed that 

the overall recyclability of the residual waste was highest in Acorn 2 households at 45.4%, and lowest in 

Acorn 3 at 27.2%. Across Cambridge it is expected that 35.1% of all residual waste being disposed of is 

recyclable at the kerbside.   

 

The majority of the recyclable materials present within the residual waste were compatible with the green 

organics bin.  On average 22% of residual waste could have been recycled in the green bin ranging from 

15.7% of Acorn 3 waste up to 32.6% of Acorn 4 waste.   

 

On average just over 13% of the residual waste throughout Cambridge was recyclable via the blue bin 

collection.  Around 10 4% of the residual waste from Acorn 4 was compatible with blue bins compared with 

17.5% of that from Acorn 1.   

 

 

Table 4.3.1.1: Proportion of residual waste currently recyclable relative to current schemes (%) 

 

% RECYCLABLE 
MATERIALS WITHIN 
RESIDUAL WASTE 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE 17.47% 15.67% 11.43% 10.41% 11.16% 11.48% 14.01% 13.15% 

GREEN BIN RECYCLABLE 18.94% 29.72% 15.72% 32.64% 16.78% 31.01% 23.21% 21.95% 

TOTAL RECYCLABLE 36.41% 45.39% 27.15% 43.05% 27.94% 42.50% 37.21% 35.11% 

 

 

Page 87



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 31 - 

In terms of the amount of recyclables disposed of it is seen that Acorn 1 householders place around 

1.53kg/hh/wk of materials in residual bins that could either be placed into their blue or green recycling bins. 

For communal bins this amount was 3.1kg/hh/wk.  Across Cambridge around 2.23kg/hh/wk of recyclable 

material is being disposed of in the residual waste. 

 

Table 4.3.1.2: Kg/hh/wk of residual waste currently and potentially recyclable relative to current schemes 

 

KG/HH/WK RECYCLABLE 
MATERIALS WITHIN 
RESIDUAL WASTE 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE 0.73 0.73 0.91 0.68 1.09 0.58 1.17 0.84 

GREEN BIN RECYCLABLE 0.80 1.38 1.25 2.12 1.64 1.57 1.93 1.40 

TOTAL RECYCLABLE 1.53 2.11 2.15 2.80 2.74 2.15 3.10 2.23 

 

 

Figure 4.3.1.1 clearly shows the levels of residual materials currently collectable in the recycling collections 

available in Cambridge. Different households were seen to dispose of differing levels of recyclable 

materials, both in terms of volume and composition (Table 4.3.1.3). Without exception it is seen that the two 

Acorn 5 samples and the waste from the communal bins contained the highest levels of each material 

compatible with kerbside recycling.   

  

Table 4.3.1.3: Kg/hh/wk of residual waste potentially recyclable relative to Acorn (Kg/hh/wk) 

 

KG/HH/WK RECYCLABLE 
MATERIALS WITHIN 
RESIDUAL WASTE 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

RECYCLABLE PAPER 0.43 0.28 0.34 0.30 0.48 0.15 0.37 0.35 

RECYCLABLE CARD & 
CARDBOARD 

0.14 0.12 0.23 0.12 0.33 0.09 0.21 0.18 

RECYCLABLE PLASTIC 
BOTTLES 0.09 0.04 0.06 0.06 0.05 0.04 0.13 0.05 

RECYCLABLE GLASS 0.04 0.19 0.19 0.13 0.13 0.22 0.35 0.16 

RECYCLABLE METALS 0.03 0.10 0.10 0.06 0.11 0.07 0.12 0.09 

RECYCLABLE FOOD 
WASTE 0.69 1.27 1.23 1.66 1.61 1.37 1.80 1.31 

RECYCLABLE GARDEN 
WASTE 0.10 0.11 0.00 0.08 0.03 0.20 0.13 0.07 

RECYCLABLE PET 
BEDDING 

0.00 0.05 0.00 0.05 0.06 0.07 0.21 0.01 

TOTAL RECYCLABLE 1.53 2.16 2.15 2.47 2.80 2.22 3.31 2.23 

Page 88



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 3
2 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.3
.1

.1
: K

g/
hh

/w
k 

of
 r

es
id

ua
l w

as
te

 p
ot

en
tia

lly
 r

ec
yc

la
bl

e 
re

la
tiv

e 
to

 A
co

rn
 (K

g/
hh

/w
k)

 

0
.0

0

0
.5

0

1
.0

0

1
.5

0

2
.0

0

2
.5

0

3
.0

0

3
.5

0

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

E
T
 B

E
D

D
IN

G

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 G

A
R

D
E
N

W
A

S
T
E

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 F

O
O

D
W

A
S

T
E

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 M

E
T
A

L
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 G

L
A

S
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

L
A

S
T
IC

B
O

T
T

L
E
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 C

A
R

D
 &

C
A

R
D

B
O

A
R

D

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P
E
R

Page 89



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 33 - 

 

4.4 Biodegradable waste 

 

These figures are useful when considering the proportion of biodegradable waste, which may be subject to 

the national provision of the Landfill Directive. The data has been calculated using the compositional data in 

accordance with the percentages outlined in previous reports. For example, only 50% of miscellaneous 

combustible materials are considered to be biodegradable whereas 100% of paper and card is considered 

to be biodegradable. 

 

National average figures are around 68%; in this survey the biodegradability of residual waste weighted 

across Cambridge was well below this level at 50.7%. Acorn 4 residual waste displayed the highest 

concentration of biodegradable items at 59.4%, with Acorn 3 residual waste being just 44.4% 

biodegradable. On average, around 3.22kg/hh/wk of biodegradable material was being placed into residual 

containers by Cambridge residents. 

 

Table 4.4.1: Percentage composition of residual waste per Acorn – biodegradable materials 

 

BIODEGRADABLE 
CONTRIBUTION 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

PAPER AND CARD 17.19% 12.94% 10.94% 9.61% 11.96% 7.39% 8.80% 12.25% 

TEXTILES 0.50% 3.12% 2.74% 3.87% 3.62% 1.83% 2.85% 3.10% 

11.26% 8.35% 14.36% 8.84% 16.80% 15.07% 17.84% 12.60% 
MISC. 

COMBUSTIBLE* 
7.94% 5.73% 8.53% 4.78% 12.16% 12.51% 16.76% 8.51% 

PUTRESCIBLES 18.98% 30.22% 16.40% 36.43% 17.10% 31.74% 24.44% 22.53% 

FINES 0.26% 0.00% 0.00% 0.61% 0.46% 0.10% 0.49% 0.18% 

TOTAL 
BIODEGRADABLE 48.18% 54.63% 44.44% 59.36% 49.94% 56.13% 54.42% 50.66% 

 

* Disposable nappies are part of the miscellaneous combustible section. Their contribution to this section of 

biodegradable waste is highlighted in red. 

 

Page 90



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 34 - 

4.5 Packaging Waste 

 

These figures are useful when considering the proportion of packaging waste, which may be subject to the 

national provision of the Landfill Directive. The data has been calculated using a similar method to that used 

to calculate biodegradability. 

 

Levels of packaging in the residual waste ranged from 12.3% in Acorn 5 residual waste to 22.1% in Acorn 2 

residual waste. On average, around 1.08kg/hh/wk of packaging materials were being placed into residual 

containers by Cambridge residents, 17% of the total waste being disposed of. 

  

Table 4.5.1: Percentage composition of residual waste per Acorn – packaging materials 

 

PACKAGING 
CONTRIBUTION 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) 

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 
AV. 

PAPER AND CARD 4.62% 4.43% 3.32% 2.98% 4.28% 2.41% 3.88% 4.09% 

PLASTIC FILM 3.69% 5.06% 4.61% 2.62% 2.89% 5.53% 3.40% 4.11% 

DENSE PLASTIC 7.36% 6.70% 4.88% 3.90% 2.81% 4.28% 4.41% 4.96% 

GLASS 1.01% 4.08% 2.34% 1.99% 1.37% 4.39% 4.18% 2.59% 

METALS 0.63% 1.79% 1.05% 0.89% 0.98% 1.27% 1.17% 1.27% 

TOTAL 
PACKAGING 17.31% 22.06% 16.20% 12.37% 12.34% 17.87% 17.05% 17.02% 

 

Page 91



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 35 - 

 

5)    Mixed dry recycling waste 

5.1 Set out rates and waste generation 

 

Table 5.1.1 and Figure 5.1.1 highlight the set out rates for blue recycling bins observed at the time waste 

was collected for compositional analysis. Table 5.1.2 and Figure 5.1.2 show the amount of mixed recycling 

waste generated in kg/hh/wk. The same houses were visited that had their residual waste surveyed. It was 

possible to calculate the set out relating to the proportion of these households actively placing out their 

waste. The amount of waste in kilograms per household per week is derived from the number of 

households who could set out waste and not just those that are participating. Set out rates for mixed 

recycling waste ranged between 66% for Acorn 4 and 84% for Acorn 3. Across Cambridge it is estimated 

that around 78% of residents are placing out their blue bins for collection.  

 

Table 5.1.1: Average Set Out for mixed recycling waste (%)  

 

ACORN % SET OUT 

1 74% 

2 75% 

3 84% 

4 66% 

5 82% 

5 (LPA) 78% 

COMMUNAL N/A 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE 78% 

 

In this survey the average amount of mixed recycling generated in blue bins ranged between 2.36kg/hh/wk 

from Acorn 1 to 3.83kg/hh/wk from Acorn 3. Across Cambridge around 3.16kg/hh/wk of blue bin recycling 

waste is being placed out for collection at the kerbside.  

 

Table 5.1.2: Average Mixed Recycling waste generation rates (kg/hh/wk)  

 

ACORN KG/HH/WK 

1 2.36 

2 3.07 

3 3.83 

4 2.95 

5 3.09 

5 (LPA) 2.52 

COMMUNAL 3.80 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE 3.16 

 

 

Page 92



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 36 - 

Figure 5.1.1: Average Set Out for mixed recycling waste (%)  

 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

 
 

Figure 5.1.2: Average Mixed recycling waste generation rates (kg/hh/wk)  

 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

 

Page 93



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 37 - 

5.2 Compositional analysis of mixed recycling waste 

This section looks at the average amount and composition of the mixed recycling waste presented by 

households sampled throughout Cambridge. Hand sorting of the recycling waste gave concentration by 

weight figures for the fifteen main categories of waste as well as the more detailed sub-categories.  Results 

can again be expressed in terms of percentage concentration and kg/hh/wk for individual samples and in 

relation to the household Acorn type surveyed.   Table 5.2.1 and Figure 5.2.1 show mixed recycling data in 

terms of percentage composition with Table 5.2.2 and Figure 5.2.2 showing generation rates for major 

materials in terms of kg/hh/wk for each sample taken from the blue recycling bins.  

 

As residual waste will contain a proportion that is classified as potentially recyclable; then recycling waste 

will contain a faction that is deemed to be contamination. That is to say that it is not compatible with the 

materials currently acceptable to the recycling container it is placed into.  

 

Table 5.2.1: Composition of mixed recycling (% concentration) by Acorn 

 

BLUE BIN 
RECYCLING 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

RECYCLABLE PAPER 50.89% 46.17% 23.96% 25.91% 23.28% 31.61% 32.48% 36.16% 

RECYCLABLE CARD 
& CARDBOARD 12.80% 12.42% 14.12% 13.13% 17.38% 13.94% 14.95% 13.85% 

RECYCLABLE 
PLASTIC BOTTLES 4.33% 4.28% 7.60% 5.74% 7.68% 8.58% 7.17% 5.76% 

RECYCLABLE GLASS 18.59% 30.83% 41.13% 36.02% 35.39% 32.94% 25.61% 33.55% 

RECYCLABLE 
METALS 5.08% 2.87% 6.02% 5.95% 5.12% 4.86% 5.56% 4.25% 

CONTAMINATION 
MATERIALS 8.32% 3.43% 7.18% 13.23% 11.15% 8.06% 14.22% 6.42% 

TOTAL RECYCLING 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 

 

Table 5.2.2: Composition of mixed recycling (kg/hh/wk) by Acorn 

 

BLUE BIN 
RECYCLING 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

RECYCLABLE PAPER 1.20 1.42 0.92 0.76 0.72 0.80 1.24 1.14 

RECYCLABLE CARD 
& CARDBOARD 0.30 0.38 0.54 0.39 0.54 0.35 0.57 0.44 

RECYCLABLE 
PLASTIC BOTTLES 

0.10 0.13 0.29 0.17 0.24 0.22 0.27 0.18 

RECYCLABLE GLASS 0.44 0.95 1.58 1.06 1.09 0.83 0.97 1.06 

RECYCLABLE 
METALS 

0.12 0.09 0.23 0.18 0.16 0.12 0.21 0.13 

CONTAMINATION 
MATERIALS 0.20 0.11 0.27 0.39 0.34 0.20 0.54 0.20 

TOTAL RECYCLING 2.36 3.07 3.83 2.95 3.09 2.52 3.80 3.16 

Page 94



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 3
8 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 5

.2
.1

: C
om

po
si

tio
n 

of
 m

ix
ed

 r
ec

yc
lin

g 
(%

) b
y 

A
co

rn
 

0
%

1
0
%

2
0
%

3
0
%

4
0
%

5
0
%

6
0
%

7
0
%

8
0
%

9
0
%

1
0
0
%

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

C
O

N
T
A

M
IN

A
T
IO

N
M

A
T
E
R

IA
L
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 M

E
T
A

L
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 G

L
A

S
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

L
A

S
T
IC

B
O

T
T
L
E
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 C

A
R

D
 &

C
A

R
D

B
O

A
R

D

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P
E
R

 

Page 95



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 3
9 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 5

.2
.2

: C
om

po
si

tio
n 

of
 m

ix
ed

 r
ec

yc
lin

g 
(k

g/
hh

/w
k)

 b
y 

A
co

rn
  

0
.0

0

0
.5

0

1
.0

0

1
.5

0

2
.0

0

2
.5

0

3
.0

0

3
.5

0

4
.0

0

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

C
O

N
T
A

M
IN

A
T
IO

N
M

A
T
E
R

IA
L
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 M

E
T
A

L
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 G

L
A

S
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

L
A

S
T
IC

B
O

T
T
L
E
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 C

A
R

D
 &

C
A

R
D

B
O

A
R

D

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P
E
R

Page 96



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 40 - 

5.3 Materials placed out for mixed recycling collections 

 

This chapter looks in more detail at the individual materials placed out for blue bin recycling collections and 

highlights the effectiveness with which the mixed recycling scheme is capturing these items. Looking at the 

relationship between the residual and recycling waste streams presented will additionally give indications as 

to the overall diversion being achieved in the Cambridge samples. 

 

Table 5.3.1 summarises the capture and diversion rates seen for the range of materials collected in the dry 

recycling collections. Recyclable paper, card & cardboard, plastics, glass and metals are collected in the 

blue bin.   

 

Across Cambridge around 75.6% of all the materials currently collected in blue bins are being correctly 

recycled at the kerbside.  Acorns 1 – 4 all recycled between 73% and 79% of their blue bin materials.  In 

comparison Acorn 5 households recycled 69% whilst those using communal bins recycled just 58%.  

Overall it is estimated that 23.7% of kerbside waste throughout Cambridge is diverted through blue bin 

collections.   

 

Table 5.3.1: Summary table for material capture and diversion rates (%) for mixed recycling  

 

% CAPTURE RATES 
ACORN 

1 
ACORN 

2 
ACORN 

3 
ACORN 

4 
ACORN 

5 
ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

RECYCLABLE PAPER 73.72% 83.14% 72.96% 72.49% 59.96% 84.58% 83.29% 76.73% 

RECYCLABLE CARD & 
CARDBOARD 72.89% 77.28% 72.19% 77.83% 66.54% 82.21% 81.76% 72.67% 

PLASTIC BOTTLES 53.80% 75.57% 82.58% 73.38% 83.76% 83.16% 62.63% 78.24% 

COLOURED GLASS 
BOTTLES & JARS 100.00% 87.60% 99.09% 88.53% 93.66% 72.18% 80.07% 91.55% 

CLEAR GLASS BOTTLES 91.08% 86.29% 70.26% 89.58% 90.54% 81.91% 74.03% 82.40% 

CLEAR GLASS JARS 79.37% 60.32% 96.72% N/A 74.00% 86.58% 65.68% 75.68% 

ALL RECYCLABLE 
GLASS 91.20% 83.29% 89.45% 89.15% 89.05% 78.94% 73.64% 86.53% 

DRINK CANS 67.43% 75.29% 75.31% 82.71% 63.14% 64.51% 68.55% 71.54% 

FOOD TINS 88.57% 51.11% 78.10% 73.66% 70.06% 75.17% 65.10% 65.51% 

AEROSOLS 100.00% 35.30% 71.44% 61.23% 46.61% 52.05% 43.96% 51.30% 

OTHER RECYCLABLE 
METALS 19.96% 7.86% 25.61% 26.29% 12.14% 29.91% 63.26% 14.45% 

ALL RECYCLABLE 
METALS 78.80% 47.98% 69.56% 73.66% 59.18% 62.96% 63.49% 58.87% 

ALL BLUE BIN 
MATERIALS 72.69% 79.14% 78.60% 77.33% 69.48% 77.35% 58.45% 76.55% 

% DIVERSION 15.19% 30.96% 21.27% 21.04% 18.11% 21.66% 22.01% 23.69% 

Page 97



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 41 - 

5.3.1 Paper Capture 

Acorn 2 residents captured the highest proportion of their recyclable paper with 82% correctly being 

recycled; they generated 1.73kg/hh/wk of this material. Residents in communal bin areas captured the least 

recyclable paper at 56% additionally they also generated the most of this recyclable paper at 2.19kg/hh/wk.   

 

Across Cambridge it is estimated that 1.50kg/hh/wk of recyclable paper is generated with around 76% 

being correctly placed into the blue bin*.   

 

There are many different forms of paper and decisions have to be made by residents as to whether a 

particular piece of paper is to go into the recycling or residual waste.  On average, the majority of all 

recyclable forms of paper are being correctly diverted by all the residents sampled although there is around 

0.36kg/hh/wk of potentially recyclable paper not being placed into blue bins. On average 23% of recyclable 

paper is in the residual bin with 1% in the organic bin.  Figure 5.3.2.1 shows the distribution of recyclable 

paper throughout the residual and recycling waste by Acorn category. 

 

Figure 5.3.1.1: Distribution of recyclable paper within residual and mixed recycling samples (kg/hh/wk) 

 

0.00

0.25

0.50

0.75

1.00

1.25

1.50

1.75

2.00

2.25

2.50

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL   WEIGHTED
AV.

RECYCLABLE PAPER BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE PAPER RESIDUAL BIN RECYCLABLE PAPER ORGANIC BIN

 
* This capture rate includes the paper disposed of in the organics bin.  Although it is preferential that 
recyclable paper is put into the blue bin it is acceptable for the green bin.  Shredded paper is only 
acceptable in green bins.  

Page 98



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 42 - 

5.3.2 Card & Cardboard Capture 

Acorn 2 residents captured the highest proportion of their recyclable card & cardboard with 73% correctly 

being recycled; they generated 0.52kg/hh/wk of this material. Residents in communal bin areas captured 

the least at less than 44% additionally they also generated the most of this recyclable card & cardboard at 

1.30kg/hh/wk.   

 

Across Cambridge it is estimated that 0.67kg/hh/wk of recyclable paper is generated with around 65% 

being correctly placed into the blue bin*.   

 

As for paper,  are many different forms of card & cardboard and decisions have to be made by residents as 

to whether a particular piece is to go into the recycling or residual waste.  With the exception of residents in 

the communal bin sample, the majority of all recyclable forms of card & cardboard are being correctly 

diverted by all the residents surveyed although there is around 0.24kg/hh/wk of potentially recyclable card & 

cardboard not being placed into blue bins. On average 27% of recyclable card & cardboard is in the 

residual bin with 8% in the organic bin.  Figure 5.3.3.1 shows the distribution of recyclable card & cardboard 

throughout the residual and recycling waste by Acorn category. 

 

Figure 5.3.2.1: Distribution of recyclable card within residual and mixed recycling samples (kg/hh/wk) 

0.00

0.25

0.50

0.75

1.00

1.25

1.50

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL   WEIGHTED
AV.

RECYCLABLE CARD BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE CARD RESIDUAL BIN RECYCLABLE CARD ORGANIC BIN

 

* This capture rate includes certain card disposed of in the organics bin.  Although it is preferential that 
recyclable card & cardboard is put into the blue bin it is acceptable for the green bin.  Tetrapaks are only 
acceptable in blue bins.  

Page 99



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 43 - 

5.3.3 Plastic Bottles Capture 

Acorn 5 residents captured the highest proportion of their recyclable plastic bottles with 84% correctly being 

recycled; they generated 0.26kg/hh/wk of this material. Residents in Acorn 1 areas captured the least 

recyclable paper at 54% additionally they generated 0.19kg/hh/wk.   

 

Across Cambridge it is estimated that 0.23kg/hh/wk of recyclable plastic bottles are generated with around 

78% being correctly placed into the blue bin.   

 

Plastic bottles are easily identifiable when compared with other non-recyclable plastics.  The majority of all 

recyclable plastic bottles are being correctly diverted by all the residents surveyed and there is just 

0.05kg/hh/wk of these bottles not being placed into blue bins. On average 22% of recyclable plastic bottles 

are in the residual bin.  Figure 5.3.3.1 shows the distribution of recyclable plastic bottles throughout the 

residual and recycling waste by Acorn category. 

 

Figure 5.3.3.1: Distribution of recyclable plastic bottles within residual and mixed recycling samples (kg/hh/wk) 

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL   WEIGHTED
AV.

RECYCLABLE PLASTIC BOTTLES ORGANIC BIN

RECYCLABLE PLASTIC BOTTLES RESIDUAL BIN

RECYCLABLE PLASTIC BOTTLES BLUE BIN

Page 100



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 44 - 

5.3.4 Glass Capture 

 

Acorn 1 residents captured the highest proportion of their recyclable glass with 91% correctly being 

recycled, while residents from communal bin areas captured 74%. Acorn 3 residents produced the most 

recyclable glass in their combined kerbside waste at 1.76kg/hh/wk compared with 0.48kg/hh/wk from Acorn 

1. On average, 87% of all recyclable glass is being correctly diverted by the Cambridge residents sampled 

with around 1.23kg/hh/wk being sampled. 

 

Overall capture rates for coloured glass bottles were 92% with 82% of clear glass bottles similarly captured.  

Clear glass is generally considered to be more highly valued as a recyclate and it was seen that just 76% of 

glass jars were captured.   It is often seen to be the case that empty jars are more messy than empty 

bottles and residents may not clean them for recycling, thus choosing to place them in the residual bins.   

On average, the vast majority of all recyclable forms of glass are being correctly diverted by the residents 

sampled although there is around 13% or 0.16kg/hh/wk of potentially recyclable glass not being placed into 

blue bins.  Figure 5.3.4.1 shows the distribution of recyclable glass throughout the residual and mixed 

recycling waste. 

 

Figure 5.3.4.1: Distribution of recyclable glass within residual and mixed recycling samples (kg/hh/wk)  

 

0.00

0.20

0.40

0.60

0.80

1.00

1.20

1.40

1.60

1.80

2.00

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL   WEIGHTED
AV.

RECYCLABLE GLASS BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE GLASS RESIDUAL BIN RECYCLABLE GLASS ORGANIC BIN

 

Page 101



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 45 - 

5.3.5 Metals Capture 

 

Acorn 1 residents captured the highest proportion of their recyclable metals with 79% correctly being 

recycled, while residents from Acorn 2 captured just 48%. Acorn 3 and communal bin users produced the 

most recyclable metals in their combined kerbside waste at 0.33kg/hh/wk compared with 0.15kg/hh/wk from 

Acorn 1. On average, 59% of all recyclable metals are being correctly diverted by Cambridge residents 

sampled with around 0.23kg/hh/wk being generated. 

 

Overall capture rates for drinks cans were 72%, with 66% of food tins recycled. It is often seen to be the 

case that residents are unwilling to clean out food tins before recycling and this can lead to low capture 

rates when compared with cleaner drinks cans. Capture rates for empty aerosols were seen to be lower 

with just 51% of those available being placed into recycling containers. With the exception of Acorn 2 

residents, the majority of all recyclable forms of metals are being correctly diverted, although there is around 

0.09kg/hh/wk of potentially recyclable metal not being placed into blue bins. On average 41% of recyclable 

metal are in the residual bin. Figure 5.3.5.1 shows the distribution of recyclable metals throughout the 

residual and mixed recycling waste. 

 

Figure 5.3.5.1: Distribution of recyclable metals within residual and mixed recycling samples (kg/hh/wk)  

 

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL   WEIGHTED
AV.

RECYCLABLE METALS BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE METALS RESIDUAL BIN RECYCLABLE METALS ORGANIC BIN

 

Page 102



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 4
6 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 5

.3
.5

.2
: S

um
m

ar
y 

ch
ar

t o
f c

ap
tu

re
 r

at
es

 fo
r 

bl
ue

 b
in

 r
ec

yc
la

bl
es

.  

14
%

51
%

66
%

72
%73
%76

%77
%78
%82

%

92
%

0%
10

%
20

%
30

%
40

%
50

%
60

%
70

%
80

%
90

%
10

0%

O
TH

ER
 R

EC
Y

CL
A

BL
E 

M
ET

A
LS

A
ER

O
SO

LS

FO
O

D 
TI

NS

DR
IN

K 
CA

NS

RE
CY

CL
A

BL
E 

CA
RD

 &
 C

A
RD

BO
A

RD

CL
EA

R 
G

LA
SS

 J
A

RS

RE
CY

CL
A

BL
E 

PA
PE

R

PL
A

ST
IC

 B
O

TT
LE

S

CL
EA

R 
G

LA
SS

 B
O

TT
LE

S

CO
LO

UR
ED

 G
LA

SS
 B

O
TT

LE
S 

& 
JA

RS

 

 

Page 103



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 47 - 

5.4 Blue Bin Recycling Contamination 

 

From Table 5.2.1 it has been shown that on average 6.4% of blue bin recycling is made up of 

contamination. This equates to around 0.20kg/hh/wk.  This section looks to breakdown the amounts and 

concentrations of various contaminants being placed into the recycling waste in Cambridge. 

 

Some forms of contamination may be due to residents’ lack of knowledge in relation to the recycling 

scheme. For example a householder may believe all plastic containers are accepted alongside recyclable 

plastic bottles. Other contamination will be formed from waste that is totally unrelated to the materials 

collected (i.e. disposable nappies, wood or bagged kitchen waste). Table 5.4.1 and Figure 5.4.1 show the 

amounts of contamination materials recovered from the blue bin.  

 

The blue bin contained between 0.11kg/hh/wk (Acorn 2) and 0.54kg/hh/wk (communal bin households) of 

contamination.   

 

 

Table 5.4.1: Breakdown of contamination materials in the blue bin recycling waste (kg/hh/wk) 

 

BLUE BIN 
CONTAMINATION 

KG/HH/WK 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PAPER & CARD 0.04 0.03 0.06 0.04 0.13 0.04 0.06 0.06 

PLASTIC FILM 0.01 0.01 0.04 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.02 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PLASTICS 0.09 0.04 0.07 0.14 0.08 0.11 0.19 0.06 

TEXTILES 0.00 0.01 0.03 0.06 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
GLASS 

0.00 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.00 <0.01 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
METALS 0.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.01 <0.01 

FOOD WASTE 0.00 0.01 0.02 0.10 0.08 0.01 0.07 0.03 

LIQUIDS 0.01 0.00 0.01 0.04 0.00 0.00 0.02 <0.01 

ALL OTHER 
CONTAMINATION 0.01 0.00 0.04 0.00 0.04 0.01 0.17 0.02 

TOTAL 
CONTAMINATION 0.20 0.11 0.27 0.39 0.34 0.20 0.54 0.20 

 

Page 104



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 4
8 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 5

.4
.1

: B
re

ak
do

w
n 

of
 c

on
ta

m
in

at
io

n 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 p
re

se
nt

 w
ith

in
 b

lu
e 

bi
n 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
co

nt
ai

ne
rs

 (k
g/

hh
/w

k)
. 

0
.0

0

0
.1

0

0
.2

0

0
.3

0

0
.4

0

0
.5

0

0
.6

0

A
C

O
R

N
 1

A
C

O
R

N
 2

A
C

O
R

N
 3

A
C

O
R

N
 4

A
C

O
R

N
 5

A
C

O
R

N
 5

(L
P

A
)

C
O

M
M

U
N

A
L

  
W

E
IG

H
T
E
D

A
V

.

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P

E
R

 &
 C

A
R

D
P
L
A

S
T
IC

 F
IL

M
N

O
N

-R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

L
A

S
T
IC

S
T
E
X

T
IL

E
S

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 G

L
A

S
S

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

 M
E
T
A

L
S

F
O

O
D

 W
A

S
T
E

L
IQ

U
ID

S
A

L
L
 O

T
H

E
R

 C
O

N
T
A

M
IN

A
T
IO

N

Page 105



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 49 - 

Table 5.4.2 shows the levels of contamination materials recovered from the blue bin as a percentage of the 

total.   On average 6.4% of blue bin recycling is deemed to be contamination.  Almost 4% of contamination 

is due to non-recyclable plastic containers, paper and card.  Just over 3% of Acorn 2 recycling was classed 

as contamination compared with over 14% of that from households on communal bins.    

 

Table 5.4.2: Levels of contamination within the blue bin recycling waste (% of total) 

 

BLUE BIN 
CONTAMINATION % 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PAPER & CARD 1.84% 0.90% 1.67% 1.35% 4.23% 1.61% 1.52% 1.82% 

PLASTIC FILM 0.39% 0.39% 1.07% 0.33% 0.43% 0.70% 0.53% 0.54% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PLASTICS 3.65% 1.42% 1.75% 4.71% 2.68% 4.25% 5.04% 1.98% 

TEXTILES 0.00% 0.17% 0.88% 1.96% 0.02% 0.17% 0.00% 0.35% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
GLASS 0.05% 0.25% 0.04% 0.00% 0.10% 0.40% 0.00% 0.16% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
METALS 1.52% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.50% 0.13% 0.08% 

FOOD WASTE 0.00% 0.31% 0.49% 3.54% 2.54% 0.23% 1.90% 0.89% 

LIQUIDS 0.42% 0.00% 0.26% 1.27% 0.00% 0.00% 0.57% 0.12% 

ALL OTHER 
CONTAMINATION 0.44% 0.00% 1.01% 0.07% 1.14% 0.21% 4.53% 0.48% 

TOTAL 
CONTAMINATION 8.32% 3.43% 7.18% 13.23% 11.15% 8.06% 14.22% 6.42% 

 

 

Page 106



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 50 - 

Table 5.4.3 and Figure 5.4.2 show a breakdown of the contaminants to highlight materials causing the 

greatest contribution to the overall contamination levels within blue bins. Around 31% of the contamination 

was due to non-recyclable dense plastics, these formed over half of the contamination from Acorn 5(LPA) 

households.  Over 28% of contamination was due to non-recyclable paper and card; this formed almost 

40% of Acorn 5 contamination.  Up to 14% of contamination was formed from food waste and this material 

represented a quarter of the overall contamination from Acorn 4 and 5 households.  

 

Blue bins from communal households had very high levels of miscellaneous contamination at 32% of the 

total.  These items are typical of general residual waste being placed into recycling bins.  

 

Table 5.4.3: Proportional breakdown of blue bin contaminants (% of contamination).  

 

% OF 
CONTAMINANTS 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PAPER & CARD 22.09% 26.25% 23.24% 10.23% 37.98% 19.92% 10.70% 28.31% 

PLASTIC FILM 4.74% 11.25% 14.85% 2.49% 3.87% 8.66% 3.70% 8.48% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PLASTICS 43.90% 41.25% 24.42% 35.58% 24.04% 52.71% 35.46% 30.78% 

TEXTILES 0.00% 4.86% 12.28% 14.84% 0.21% 2.16% 0.00% 5.38% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
GLASS 0.64% 7.36% 0.62% 0.00% 0.88% 4.96% 0.00% 2.43% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
METALS 18.22% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 6.17% 0.92% 1.27% 

FOOD WASTE 0.00% 9.03% 6.80% 26.73% 22.82% 2.86% 13.33% 13.94% 

LIQUIDS 5.09% 0.00% 3.68% 9.59% 0.00% 0.00% 4.04% 1.91% 

ALL OTHER 
CONTAMINATION 5.32% 0.00% 14.12% 0.55% 10.19% 2.55% 31.86% 7.52% 

TOTAL 
CONTAMINATION 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

 

 

 

Page 107



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 5
1 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 5

.4
.2

: P
ro

po
rt

io
na

l b
re

ak
do

w
n 

of
 b

lu
e 

bi
n 

co
nt

am
in

an
ts

 (%
 o

f c
on

ta
m

in
at

io
n)

.  

0
%

1
0
%

2
0
%

3
0
%

4
0
%

5
0
%

6
0
%

7
0
%

8
0
%

9
0
%

1
0
0
%

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

A
L
L
 O

T
H

E
R

 C
O

N
T
A

M
IN

A
T
IO

N

L
IQ

U
ID

S

F
O

O
D

 W
A

S
T
E

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

 M
E
T

A
L
S

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

 G
L
A

S
S

T
E
X

T
IL

E
S

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

 P
L
A

S
T

IC
S

P
L
A

S
T
IC

 F
IL

M

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

 P
A

P
E

R
 &

C
A

R
D

Page 108



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 52 - 

6)   Green Bin Organic Recycling Waste 

 

6.1 Set out rates and waste generation 

 

Table 6.1.1 and Figure 6.1.1 highlight the average set out rates for green bin organic recycling waste 

observed during the compositional analysis. Table 6.1.2 and Figure 6.1.2 show the average amounts of this 

recycling waste generated in kg/hh/wk.  Set out rates ranged between 50% for Acorn 4 and 65% for Acorn 

5(LPA) were observed.  Across Cambridge around 58% of residents are opting to place out organic waste 

containers for collection. 

 

Table 6.1.1: Average Set Out For Green Bin Waste (%)  

 

ACORN % SET OUT 

1 61% 

2 57% 

3 63% 

4 50% 

5 56% 

5 (LPA) 65% 

COMMUNAL N/A 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE 58% 

 
 

Figure 6.1.1: Average Set Out For Green Bin Waste (%) 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

 

Page 109



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 53 - 

In this survey the amount of green bin recycling generated ranged between 1.86kg/hh/wk from Acorn 2 to 

7.66kg/hh/wk from Acorn 1. Across Cambridge around 2.96kg/hh/wk organically recycled waste is being 

collected from the kerbside. 

 

Table 6.1.2: Average green bin waste generation rates (kg/hh/wk) 

 

ACORN KG/HH/WK 

1 7.66 

2 1.86 

3 4.95 

4 2.71 

5 2.27 

5 (LPA) 3.13 

COMMUNAL 2.69 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE 2.96 

 

 
 

Figure 6.1.2: Average green bin waste generation rates (kg/hh/wk)  

 

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

7.00

8.00

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

 

 

 

 

Page 110



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 54 - 

6.2 Compositional analysis of green recycling bins 

 

This section looks at the average amount and composition of the green bin organic recycling waste 

presented by participating households sampled throughout Cambridge. Results can again be expressed in 

terms of percentage concentration and kg/hh/wk for individual samples and in relation to the household 

Acorn surveyed. 

 

Table 6.2.1 and Figure 6.2.1 show green bin recycling data in terms of percentage composition with Table 

6.2.2 and Figure 6.2.2 showing average generation rates for major materials in terms of kg/hh/wk. As 

residual waste will contain a proportion that is classified as potentially recyclable; then recycling waste will 

contain a faction that is deemed to be contamination.  That is to say that it is not compatible with the 

materials currently acceptable to the green bin recycling scheme.  

 

Table 6.2.1: Average Composition of organic recycling (% concentration) by Acorn 

 

ORGANIC RECYCLING 
KG/HH/WK 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) 

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 
AV. 

HOME COMPOSTABLE 
FOODS 

2.50% 1.99% 11.17% 10.82% 6.71% 2.90% 25.30% 5.93% 

NON-HOME 
COMPOSTABLE FOODS 0.66% 15.64% 3.09% 7.53% 0.88% 9.13% 1.41% 6.38% 

FLORA ORGANICS 92.93% 79.43% 81.99% 74.25% 77.77% 72.68% 0.39% 82.30% 

OTHER ACCEPTABLE 
ORGANICS 3.67% 2.83% 1.24% 2.73% 4.95% 13.64% 41.62% 2.84% 

SOIL & TURF 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 4.22% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.13% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PAPER & CARD 

0.00% 0.11% 0.02% 0.08% 0.13% 1.01% 8.60% 0.06% 

PLASTICS 0.00% 0.00% 0.02% 0.00% 0.07% 0.00% 6.17% 0.02% 

TEXTILES 0.24% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 3.37% 0.00% 2.21% 0.59% 

GLASS 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.53% 0.00% 

METALS 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.25% 0.00% 

ALL OTHER WASTE 0.00% 0.00% 2.47% 0.36% 6.13% 0.64% 13.52% 1.75% 

TOTAL 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 

 

Page 111



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 55 - 

Table 6.2.2: Average Composition of organic recycling (kg/hh/wk) by Acorn 

 

 

ORGANIC RECYCLING 
KG/HH/WK 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

HOME COMPOSTABLE 
FOODS 0.19 0.04 0.55 0.29 0.15 0.09 0.68 0.18 

NON-HOME 
COMPOSTABLE FOODS 0.05 0.29 0.15 0.20 0.02 0.29 0.04 0.19 

FLORA ORGANICS 7.12 1.48 4.06 2.01 1.77 2.28 0.01 2.43 

OTHER ACCEPTABLE 
ORGANICS 

0.28 0.05 0.06 0.07 0.11 0.43 1.12 0.08 

SOIL & TURF 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PAPER & CARD 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.03 0.23 0.00 

PLASTICS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.17 0.00 

TEXTILES 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.08 0.00 0.06 0.02 

GLASS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.00 

METALS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.00 

ALL OTHER WASTE 0.00 0.00 0.12 0.01 0.14 0.02 0.36 0.05 

TOTAL 7.66 1.86 4.95 2.71 2.27 3.13 2.69 2.96 

Page 112



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 5
6 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 6

.2
.1

: A
ve

ra
ge

 C
om

po
si

tio
n 

of
 o

rg
an

ic
 r

ec
yc

lin
g 

(%
 b

y 
w

ei
gh

t) 
by

 A
co

rn
 

0
%

1
0
%

2
0
%

3
0
%

4
0
%

5
0
%

6
0
%

7
0
%

8
0
%

9
0
%

1
0
0
%

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

A
L
L
 O

T
H

E
R

 W
A

S
T
E

M
E
T
A

L
S

G
L
A

S
S

T
E
X

T
IL

E
S

P
L
A

S
T
IC

S

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P
E
R

&
 C

A
R

D

S
O

IL
 &

 T
U

R
F

O
T
H

E
R

 A
C

C
E
P
T
A

B
L
E

O
R

G
A

N
IC

S

F
L
O

R
A

 O
R

G
A

N
IC

S

N
O

N
-H

O
M

E
 C

O
M

P
O

S
T
A

B
L
E

F
O

O
D

S

H
O

M
E
 C

O
M

P
O

S
T
A

B
L
E

F
O

O
D

S

 

Page 113



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 5
7 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 6

.2
.2

: C
om

po
si

tio
n 

of
 o

rg
an

ic
 r

ec
yc

lin
g 

(k
g/

hh
/w

k)
 b

y 
A

co
rn

 

 

0
.0

1
.0

2
.0

3
.0

4
.0

5
.0

6
.0

7
.0

8
.0

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5
 (L

PA
)

C
O

M
M
U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

A
L
L
 O

T
H

E
R

 W
A

S
T
E

M
E
T
A

L
S

G
L
A

S
S

T
E
X

T
IL

E
S

P
L
A

S
T
IC

S

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P
E
R

&
 C

A
R

D

S
O

IL
 &

 T
U

R
F

O
T
H

E
R

 A
C

C
E
P
T
A

B
L
E

O
R

G
A

N
IC

S

F
L
O

R
A

 O
R

G
A

N
IC

S

N
O

N
-H

O
M

E
 C

O
M

P
O

S
T
A

B
L
E

F
O

O
D

S

H
O

M
E
 C

O
M

P
O

S
T
A

B
L
E

F
O

O
D

S

Page 114



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 58 - 

6.3 Materials placed out for green bin recycling collections 

 

This chapter looks in more detail at the individual materials placed out for green bin recycling collections 

and highlights the effectiveness with which this scheme is capturing these items.  Looking at the 

relationship between the residual, dry recycling and green bin recycling waste presented will additionally 

give indications as to the overall diversion being achieved throughout Cambridge. 

 

Table 6.3.1: Summary table for material capture and diversion rates (%) for green bin recycling 

 

CAPTURE & 
DIVERSION 
RATES (%) 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

HOME COMPOSTABLE 
FOODS 46.37% 4.67% 58.24% 38.15% 24.18% 14.92% 46.36% 23.12% 

NON-HOME 
COMPOSTABLE 

FOODS* 
9.71% 35.45% 15.16% 13.65% 1.61% 25.11% 3.37% 20.00% 

ALL FOOD WASTE 25.96% 20.33% 36.04% 21.97% 9.25% 21.56% 27.69% 21.39% 

FLORA ORGANICS 98.55% 93.12% 100.00% 96.06% 98.29% 91.73% 7.40% 97.15% 

PET BEDDING & 
UNTREATED WOOD 100.00% N/A N/A 0.00% N/A 100.00% 100.00% 75.69% 

ACCEPTABLE PAPER & 
CARD 4.14% 2.37% 3.07% 4.56% 5.27% 7.22% 32.03% 3.28% 

ALL ORGANICS 90.49% 56.22% 79.01% 52.97% 52.93% 65.41% 27.50% 66.27% 

% DIVERSION 53.76% 19.36% 28.89% 21.23% 13.54% 28.75% 12.45% 23.10% 

 

* Contains all unidentifiable and unsortable composite food waste.  Some of this will be home compostable 

fragments, however, due to a significant proportion being non fruit and vegetable waste; this faction is 

deemed non-home compostable.  

 

Table 6.3.1 summarises the average capture and diversion rates seen for materials achieved for the green 

bin organic recycling collections. By far the most efficient recyclers of organic waste were Acorn 1 

households who recycled over 90% of that being generated.  Acorn 3 households captured over 79% of 

their organics whilst the rate for Acorns 2, 4 and 5 was between 53% and 56%.  IN contrast it was seen that 

residents in communal bin areas only managed to capture 27.5% of the organic waste that they were 

disposing of.  Across Cambridge, 66.3% of the organics available for green bin recycling were correctly 

captured by participating households.   

Page 115



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 59 - 

6.3.1 Paper & Card Capture 

 

Residents are able to recycle paper, thin card and corrugated cardboard in their green bins. It is however 

the case that with the exception of shredded paper, it is preferable for these recyclables to be placed into 

blue recycling bins.  

 

Figure 6.3.1.1. shows the distribution of recyclable paper, card and cardboard throughout the three kerbside 

schemes by Acorn category.  It is clear that residents using communal bins not only generate the most 

recyclable paper and card; they also place by far the highest proportion in their green bins at 32%.  

Typically between 2% and 5% of all recyclable paper and card was present in green bins for Acorns 1 – 5 

with just over 7% seen for the Acorn 5(LPA) sample.  

 

Figure 6.3.1.1   Distribution of recyclable paper & card within residual and recycling samples (kg/hh/wk) 

 

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

ACORN 1

ACORN 2

ACORN 3

ACORN 4

ACORN 5

ACORN 5 
(L

PA)

COMMUNAL

  W
EIG

HTED A
V.

RECYCLABLE PAPER &
CARD - RESIDUAL BIN

RECYCLABLE PAPER &
CARD - BLUE BIN

RECYCLABLE PAPER &
CARD - GREEN BIN

 
 

 

 

 

Page 116



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 60 - 

6.3.2 Garden Waste Capture 

Residents are able to recycle garden clippings in their green bins. With the exception of the communal bin 

residents it was seen that garden waste was by far the greatest constituent of the presented organic 

recycling.    Just 7% of garden waste was captured in communal bins areas although very little of this type 

of waste is actually generated.  On average it is seen that over 97% of the available garden waste is 

recycled by Cambridge residents.  All Acorns recorded capture rates of between 92% and 100%.   

 

It is seen that communal bin households generated just 0.13kg/hh/wk of recyclable garden waste compared 

with 7.23kg/hh/wk from Acorn 1 households.  On average residents throughout Cambridge create 

2.51kg/hh/wk of recyclable garden waste.   

 

Soil and turf are also classed as garden waste but are not allowable in green bins. This waste was only 

generated in low amounts across Cambridge (0.02kg/hh/wk) with around 22% ending up in green bins.  

 

 

Figure 6.3.2.1. Distribution of garden waste within residual and recycling samples (kg/hh/wk)  

 

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

ACO
RN 1

ACORN 2

ACORN 3

ACO
RN 4

ACORN 5

ACORN 5 
(L

PA)

CO
MMUNAL

  W
EIG

HTED A
V.

RECYCLABLE GARDEN
WASTE - RESIDUAL BIN

RECYCLABLE GARDEN
WASTE - BLUE BIN

RECYCLABLE GARDEN
WASTE - GREEN BIN

 

 

 

 

Page 117



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 61 - 

6.3.3 Food Waste Capture 

Residents are able to all forms of food waste in their green bins. Capture rates were seen to vary greatly 

across the samples taken.  Food waste can broadly be divided into two types.  Firstly ‘home-compostable’ 

which covers things like raw fruit and vegetable waste, egg shells, tea bags etc which could potentially be 

composted in standard compost bins.  Non-home compostable food are generally cooked and prepared 

foods and plate scrapings which residents would not normally compost with their garden, fruit and 

vegetable wastes.   

 

Overall capture rates for all food waste varied at between 9.3% in Acorn 5 up to 36% in Acorn 3.  This 

represented an average figure of 21.4% for Cambridge.    Acorn 1 households produced just 0.93kg/hh/wk 

of total food waste compared with 2.59kg/hh/wk from communal bin households.  On average Cambridge 

residents are producing of 1.70kg/hh/wk of food waste.   

 

As well as differences in the levels and capture rates for food waste between the Acorn samples, there was 

a significant difference between the types of food being recycled.  Home compostable food waste is 

generally less ‘messy’ than non-home compostable food waste and was seen to have capture rates of 

between 4.7% (Acorn 2) and 58.2% (Acorn 3) at an average of 23.1%.  Conversely capture rates for non-

home compostable food waste were lower at between 1.6% (Acorn 5) and 35.5% (Acorn 2); an average of 

20%.   

 

In terms of diversion solely through the green bin recycling it is seen that just 12.5% diversion is achieved 

by communal bin users compared with almost 54% for Acorn 1.  Overall this is an average diversion of 

23.1% which is very similar to that recorded for blue bins.  Total diversion rates for the combined recycling 

collections are shown in section 7.   

 

With the exception of communal bin users, all sample areas were seen to generate more non-home 

compostable food waste than home compostable food waste at average figures of 0.94kg/hh/wk and 

0.76kg/hh/wk respectively.  During the sorting of the waste it is the method to class some of the food waste 

as unidentifiable or unsortable.  This is basically a degraded mixture of foods which are recyclable and are 

classified as non-compostable as will contain waste other than fruit and vegetable matter.   

 

Figure 6.3.3.1 shows the distribution and levels of food waste throughout the residual and green bin 

containers. Overall, 0.58kg/hh/wk of home compostable and 0.75kg/hh/wk of non-home composable food 

waste is not being recycled in the green bins.  This represents a total of 1.34kg/hh/wk of potentially 

recyclable material.  

Page 118



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 6
2 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 6

.3
.2

.1
. D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

of
 fo

od
 w

as
te

 w
ith

in
 r

es
id

ua
l a

nd
 r

ec
yc

lin
g 

sa
m

pl
es

 (k
g/

hh
/w

k)
  

0
.0

0
.5

1
.0

1
.5

2
.0

2
.5

3
.0

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O
R
N
 3

AC
O
R
N
 4

AC
O
R
N
 5

AC
O
R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O
M

M
U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

N
O

N
-H

O
M

E
 C

O
M

P
O

S
T

A
B

L
E

F
O

O
D

S
 -

 R
E
S

ID
U

A
L
 B

IN

H
O

M
E

 C
O

M
P
O

S
T

A
B

L
E

F
O

O
D

S
 -

 R
E
S

ID
U

A
L
 B

IN

A
L

L
 F

O
O

D
 W

A
S

T
E

 -
 B

L
U

E
B

IN

N
O

N
-H

O
M

E
 C

O
M

P
O

S
T

A
B

L
E

F
O

O
D

S
 -

 G
R

E
E
N

 B
IN

H
O

M
E

 C
O

M
P
O

S
T

A
B

L
E

F
O

O
D

S
 -

 G
R

E
E
N

 B
IN

Page 119



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 63 - 

6.4 Green Bin Recycling Contamination 

 

From Table 6.2.1 it has been shown that between 0.1% (Acorn 2) and 31.3% (communal bin users) of 

collected green bin recycling is due to contamination. Across Cambridge approximately 2.6% of green bin 

recycling waste was not compatible with the accepted materials, equating to 0.08kg/hh/wk. This section 

looks to breakdown the amounts and concentrations of various contaminants being placed into the green 

bin recycling waste in Cambridge.  

 

Table 6.4.1 and Figures 6.4.1 and 6.4.2 show the proportions of contamination materials in each area. 

 

Table 6.4.1: Percentage breakdown of contamination in green bin waste 

 

% BREAKDOWN OF 
CONTAMINANTS 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

SOIL & TURF 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 90.45% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 5.28% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PAPER & CARD 0.00% 100.00% 0.65% 1.77% 1.31% 61.27% 27.50% 2.47% 

PLASTICS 0.00% 0.00% 0.65% 0.00% 0.76% 0.00% 19.71% 0.66% 

TEXTILES 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 34.71% 0.00% 7.07% 22.96% 

GLASS 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 1.70% <0.01% 

METALS 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.79% <0.01% 

ALL OTHER WASTE 0.00% 0.00% 98.70% 7.78% 63.22% 38.73% 43.22% 68.63% 

TOTAL 
CONTAMINATION 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

CONTAMINATION 
KG/HH/WK 0.02 0.00 0.12 0.13 0.22 0.05 0.84 0.08 

% CONTAMINATION  0.24% 0.11% 2.50% 4.67% 9.70% 1.64% 31.28% 2.55% 

 

 

 

 

Page 120



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 64 - 

Figure 6.4.1: Contamination materials in green bin recycling 

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.9

ACORN 1

ACORN 2

ACORN 3

ACORN 4

ACORN 5

ACO
RN 5 

(L
PA)

COMMUNAL

  W
EIG

HTED A
V.

ALL OTHER WASTE

METALS

GLASS

TEXTILES

PLASTICS

NON-RECYCLABLE PAPER
& CARD

SOIL & TURF

 
 

Figure 6.4.2: % breakdown of contaminants within green recycling bins 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

ACORN 1

ACORN 2

ACORN 3

ACORN 4

ACORN 5

ACORN 5 
(L

PA)

COMMUNAL

  W
EIG

HTED A
V.

ALL OTHER WASTE

METALS

GLASS

TEXTILES

PLASTICS

NON-RECYCLABLE PAPER
& CARD

SOIL & TURF

 

Page 121



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 65 - 

Overall it was seen that 68.8% of the contamination was due to miscellaneous other waste.  This would be 

a mixture of general waste that can generally be considered to be residual waste.  This material formed up 

to 99% of the contamination seen in Acorn 3 green bins.  Up to 23% of contamination was due to textile 

waste.  Around 35% of Acorn 5 green bin contamination was due to waste textiles.  All of the contamination 

in Acorn 2 green bins was due to non-recyclable paper and card and over 90% of the contamination in 

Acorn 4 was due to soil and turf.  Combined these wastes formed just under 8% of the contamination.  

 

The composition of the organic recycling collected from households using communal bins was markedly 

different from all of the other samples.  Of the 2.69kg/hh/wk presented up to 0.84kg/hh/wk or 31.3% was 

due to contaminants; this was far greater than any of the other samples.  A wide range of contaminants 

including general residual waste, glass, metal and plastic were seen in these recycling bins and they 

appear to be used by residents as general waste disposal containers.  These bins also contain significantly 

more paper and cardboard waste than other sample surveyed.  

 

 

Figure 6.4.3 % breakdown of contaminants within green recycling bins from communal users 

 

GLASS
0.5%

METALS
0.2%

ALL OTHER WASTE
13.5%

TEXTILES
2.2%

PLASTICS
6.2%

OTHER ORGANICS
1.2%

GARDEN WASTE
0.4%

FOOD WASTE
26.7%

ACCEPTABLE 
PAPER & CARD

40.4%

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PAPER & CARD

8.6%

 
 

 

Page 122



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 66 - 

 

7)    Overall Diversion through Recycling Collections 

 

7.1 Total waste generation levels & diversion 

 

Capture rates determine how much of a material that should be recycled actually is being recycled. 

Diversion rates show the percentage of total generated waste produced from an area that is being 

‘Diverted’ via the available recycling stream(s). 

 

Table 7.1.1 and Figure 7.1.1 show the total waste generation (residual, blue bin and green bin recycling) for 

each of areas sampled. Acorn 2 produced the lowest levels of total waste at 9.59kg/hh/wk with the 

households from Acorn 3 generating the most at 16.71kg/hh/wk.  Across Cambridge it is estimated that the 

weekly output of kerbside waste is 12.48kg/hh/wk.  

 

Table 7.1.2 and Figure 7.1.2 show the proportion of this total waste that is being diverted through the 

various kerbside recycling collections. Using the blue and green recycling bins, Cambridge residents are 

diverting an average of 46.8% of all waste generated at the kerbside.  Residents from Acorn 1 were 

managing to divert almost 69% of their waste compared with 50% for Acorns 2 and 3, 42% for Acorn 4 and 

32% for Acorn 5.  The low performing Acorn 5 area residents also diverted around 50% of their waste with 

households using communal bins diverting around 34.5%. 

 

Table 7.1.1: Average annual waste generation levels by Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

TOTAL KERBSIDE 
WASTE (KG/HH/WK) 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

RESIDUAL WASTE 4.20 4.66 7.93 6.50 9.80 5.06 8.33 6.36 

BLUE BIN RECYCLING 2.36 3.07 3.83 2.95 3.09 2.52 3.80 3.16 

GREEN BIN 
RECYCLING 7.66 1.86 4.95 2.71 2.27 3.13 2.69 2.96 

TOTAL WASTE 14.22 9.59 16.71 12.16 15.17 10.71 14.82 12.48 

 

Page 123



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 67 - 

Figure 7.1.1: Total waste generation levels by Acorn (kg/hh/wk)  

0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL   WEIGHTED
AV.

RESIDUAL WASTE BLUE BIN RECYCLING GREEN BIN RECYCLING

 

 

Table 7.1.2: Diversion rates (%) for individual recycling collections and overall 

 

% DIVERSION ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

BLUE RECYCLING 
BINS 15.19% 30.96% 21.27% 21.04% 18.11% 21.66% 22.01% 23.69% 

GREEN RECYCLING 
BINS 53.76% 19.36% 28.89% 21.23% 13.54% 28.75% 12.45% 23.10% 

TOTAL DIVERSION 68.96% 50.32% 50.16% 42.27% 31.65% 50.41% 34.46% 46.79% 

 

 

Page 124



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 68 - 

Figure 7.1.2: Diversion rates (%) for individual recycling collections and overall 

 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL   WEIGHTED
AV.

BLUE BIN DIVERSION GREEN BIN DIVERSION

 
 

 

Current recycling figures for Cambridge suggest a waste diversion rate of 43.7%. Therefore weighted 

figures for the City during this survey show a level of around 3% above this rate and 1.8% above the 

aspirational target of 45% for 2012.  

 

Data from this survey suggests a level of 331.9kg/hh/yr for residual waste and 651.1kg/hh/yr for total 

kerbside waste. 

 

Were all of the currently recyclable materials being disposed of at the kerbside placed into the correct 

recycling bin then the maximum achievable diversion rate for Cambridge would be 65%.  

 

 

Page 125



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 69 - 

Appendix 1: ACORN Category Classification1.  
 
 

 ACORN 1 – WEALTHY ACHIEVERS – U.K. AVERAGE 23.3% 
 

These are some of the most successful and affluent people in the UK. They live in wealthy, high status rural, 
semi-rural and suburban areas of the country. Middle-aged or older people predominate, with many empty 

nesters and wealthy retired. Some neighbourhoods contain large numbers of well-off families with school age 
children, particularly in the more suburban locations. These people live in large houses, which are usually 
detached with four or more bedrooms.  Almost 90% are owner occupiers, with half of those owning their 

home outright. They are very well educated and most are employed in managerial and professional occupations. 
Many own their own business.  Car ownership is high, with many households running two or more cars. 

Incomes are high, as are levels of savings and investments.  These people are well established at the top 
of the social ladder. They enjoy all the advantages of being healthy, wealthy and confident consumers. 

 
ACORN 2 – URBAN PROSPERITY – U.K. AVERAGE 13.3% 

 
These are well educated and mostly prosperous people living in our major towns and cities. They include both 
older wealthy people living in the most exclusive parts of London and other cities, and highly educated younger 
professionals moving up the corporate ladder. This category also includes some well educated but less affluent 

individuals, such as students and graduates in their first jobs.  The wealthier people tend to be in senior 
managerial or professional careers, and often live in large terraced or detached houses with four or more 

bedrooms. Some of the younger professionals may be buying or renting flats.  The less affluent will be privately 
renting.  These people have a cosmopolitan outlook and enjoy their urban lifestyle.  They like to eat out in 

restaurants, go to the theatre and cinema and make the most of the culture and nightlife of the big city. 
 

ACORN 3 – COMFORTABLY OFF – U.K. AVERAGE 28.1% 
 

This category contains much of ‘middle-of-the-road’ Britain. Most people are comfortably off. They 
may not be wealthy, but they have few major financial worries.  All life stages are represented in this category. 

Younger singles and couples, just starting out on their careers, are the dominant group in some areas. 
Other areas have mostly stable families and empty nesters, especially in suburban or semi-rural locations. 
Comfortably off pensioners, living in retirement areas around the coast or in the countryside, form the other 

main group in this category.  Most people own their own home, with owner occupation exceeding 80%. 
Most houses are semidetached or detached. Employment is in a mix of professional and managerial, 
clerical and skilled occupations. Educational qualifications tend to be in line with the national average. 

This category incorporates the home-owning, stable and fairly comfortable backbone of modern Britain. 
 

ACORN 4 – MODERATE MEANS – U.K. AVERAGE 13.2% 
 

This category contains much of what used to be the country’s industrial heartlands. Many people 
are still employed in traditional, blue-collar occupations. Others have become employed in service and retail 

jobs as the employment landscape has changed.  In the better off areas, incomes are in line with 
the national average and people have reasonable standards of living. However, in other areas, where levels 

of qualifications are low, incomes can fall below the national average. There are also some isolated pockets of 
unemployment and long-term illness.  This category also includes some neighbourhoods with very high 
concentrations of Asian families on low incomes.  Most housing is terraced, with two or three bedrooms, 

and largely owner occupied.  It includes many former council houses, bought by their tenants in the 1980s. 
Overall, the people in this category have modest lifestyles, but are able to get by. 

 
ACORN 5 – HARD PRESSED – U.K. AVERAGE 21.7% 

 
This category contains the poorest areas of the UK. Unemployment is well above the national average. 

Levels of qualifications are low and those in work are likely to be employed in unskilled occupations. 
Household incomes are low and there are high levels of long-term illness in some areas.  Housing is a mix 

of low-rise estates, with terraced or semi-detached houses, and purpose built flats, including high-rise blocks. 
Properties tend to be small and there is much overcrowding. Over 50% of the housing is rented from the local 
Council or a housing association.  There are a large number of single adult households, including many single 
Pensioners and lone parents. In some neighbourhoods, there are high numbers of black and Asian residents. 

These people are experiencing the most difficult social and economic conditions in the whole country, and appear 
to have limited opportunity to improve their circumstances. 

 
 

                                                   
 
 
 
 
 
1 http://www.caci.co.uk/download.aspx?path=/libraries/document/394.pdf 

Page 126



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 70 - 

 

 
 

Page 127



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 0 - 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cambridge City Waste 
Composition Analysis 

 

Cambridge Council 
 

May / June 2012 
 

FINAL REPORT  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 128



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 1 - 

 

Contents Page 

1) Project details and acknowledgements........................................................ - 3 - 

2) Introduction ...................................................................................................... - 4 - 

Background .................................................................................................................. - 4 - 

Objectives ..................................................................................................................... - 4 - 

Acknowledgements ..................................................................................................... - 5 - 

Accuracy Statement .................................................................................................... - 5 - 

3) Executive Summary......................................................................................... - 6 - 

Key findings.................................................................................................................. - 6 - 

Kerbside residual waste.............................................................................................. - 6 - 

Mixed recycling – Blue bins........................................................................................ - 7 - 

Organic waste recycling – Green bins....................................................................... - 7 - 

4) Compositional Analysis of Residual Waste ................................................. - 8 - 

4.1 Set out rates and waste generation levels................................................... - 8 - 

4.2 Compositional analysis of household residual waste ............................. - 11 - 

4.2.1 Organic Waste .............................................................................................. - 15 - 

4.2.2 Paper.............................................................................................................. - 17 - 

4.2.3 Card & Cardboard......................................................................................... - 19 - 

4.2.4 Plastics .......................................................................................................... - 21 - 

4.2.5 Metals............................................................................................................. - 23 - 

4.2.6 Glass.............................................................................................................. - 25 - 

4.2.7 Textiles .......................................................................................................... - 27 - 

4.2.8 Hazardous Items (HHW) & WEEE............................................................... - 29 - 

4.2.9 Disposable Nappies ..................................................................................... - 30 - 

5) Mixed dry recycling waste ............................................................................ - 35 - 

5.1 Set out rates and waste generation............................................................ - 35 - 

5.2 Compositional analysis of mixed recycling waste ................................... - 37 - 

Page 129



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 2 - 

5.3 Materials placed out for mixed recycling collections............................... - 40 - 

5.3.1 Paper Capture............................................................................................... - 41 - 

5.3.2 Card & Cardboard Capture.......................................................................... - 42 - 

5.3.3 Plastic Bottles Capture ................................................................................ - 43 - 

5.4 Blue Bin Recycling Contamination ............................................................ - 47 - 

6) Green Bin Organic Recycling Waste........................................................... - 52 - 

6.1 Set out rates and waste generation............................................................ - 52 - 

6.2 Compositional analysis of green recycling bins....................................... - 54 - 

6.3 Materials placed out for green bin recycling collections......................... - 58 - 

6.3.2 Garden Waste Capture................................................................................. - 60 - 

6.3.3 Food Waste Capture .................................................................................... - 61 - 

6.4 Green Bin Recycling Contamination.......................................................... - 63 - 

7) Overall Diversion through Recycling Collections ..................................... - 66 - 

7.1 Total waste generation levels & diversion................................................. - 66 - 

Appendix ................................................................................................................... 69 

 

Page 130



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

1) Project details and acknowledgements 

 

 

 

 

 

 

M·E·L Research  

8 Holt Court 

Aston Science Park 

Birmingham B7 4AX 

Tel: 0121 604 4664 

Fax: 0121 604 6776 

Email: info@m-e-l.co.uk 

Web:   www.m-e-l.co.uk 

Title Cambridge City Waste Composition Analysis. 

  

Client Cambridge City 

  

Project number 12012 

  

Client reference Final Report_Version_1 

  

Author Philip Wells 

  

Contract Manager Darren Coss 

Page 131



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

2)     Introduction 

Background  

Cambridge City Council currently has a combined recycling and composting rate of 43.7% (2010/11).  The 

Authority now wishes to study the composition of domestic kerbside collected residual and recycling waste 

streams to provide current baseline data and to help inform future communication campaigns. As well as 

giving indications as to the current levels of waste and recycling being generated, observations will be made 

showing the levels of materials that are currently recyclable at the kerbside and those which could 

potentially be recyclable via future schemes.  The Council hopes to achieve 45% by the end of 2012 with a 

future target for 2015-16 of 50-55%.  

 

This report presents results from the analysis of kerbside collected residual and recycling waste collected 

during a two week period in May / June 2012.  The survey focused on the levels and composition of all 

waste containers that are currently available for residents to place for collection at the kerbside.  The 

sampling regime involved the direct collection and compositional analysis of residual waste from a target of 

300 properties representing each of the five main socio-demographic categories (Acorns). Results could 

therefore be weighted to give an even better picture of the waste being collected by the authority as a 

whole.  Additionally around 120 properties were highlighted from a low performing area and a group of 

properties using communal bins.  Knowledge of the waste in these differing areas will help the City Council 

develop strategies to increase the efficiency with which its residents are recycling their waste. The overall 

findings of this project will highlight several factors important for improving the recycling rate and directing 

future strategy and communication campaigns: 

 

Objectives 

Specific aims of the work were to: 

 

§ Understand, using socio-demographic profiling which sectors of the community are producing 
which types of waste and which are using the recycling provision most effectively 

§ Detect capture rates for individual materials which are already collected separately for recycling 

§ Evaluate the amount of specific materials collected in the residual bin that could potentially be 
collected separately for recycling 

§ Evaluate the use of the receptacles used for collecting waste and recycling 

§ Detect the amount of packaging and biodegradable material present  

§ Assess the amount of contamination in receptacles meant for recycling material 

§ Assess the amount of recyclable material being placed in the residual bin 

 

This report will highlight key results recorded for Cambridge City showing data for individual socio-

demographics as well as weighted for the City as a whole.   

Page 132



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 5 - 

Acknowledgements  

M·E·L Research would like to thank the collection authority and their staff who participated and helped in 

the setup and fieldwork stages of the project, and those who provided additional data and other information 

to inform the project. This report highlights key results, presents the results in tables and charts and 

discusses the findings. The views and opinions expressed in this report are those of M.E.L Research Ltd. 

and are not necessarily shared by officers from Cambridge City Council.  

 

Accuracy Statement 

Results from the standard M·E·L sampling protocol for compositional analysis can be taken as accurate for 

each material category to within error bands of +/-10% at the 95% confidence level (2 standard deviations), 

assuming a normal statistical distribution. At the data entry stage 1 in 10 parts of data that is inputted are 

checked with the data sheets and if errors are found all the data is then rechecked. 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 133



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

3)     Executive Summary 

Key findings  

Kerbside residual waste 

§ Weighted across all Acorn samples, 84% of households sampled throughout Cambridge 
presented residual waste bins for collection. 

§ In terms of waste generation, households were setting out an average of 6.36kg/hh/wk. 

§ Food waste was seen to be the major component of residual waste forming 20.6% of the total, 
equating to 1.31kg/hh/wk – 45% of this is potentially home compostable 

§ Paper items made up 10.2% of the residual waste; 53% of this (0.35kg/hh/wk) was alternatively 
recyclable at the kerbside. 

§ Card and cardboard made up around 3.5% of collected residual waste; 84% of this (0.18kg/hh/wk) 
was alternatively recyclable at the kerbside. 

§ Plastics formed 14.9% of the residual waste; 10% of dense plastic waste (0.05kg/hh/wk) was due 
to recyclable plastic bottles with a further 0.21kg/hh/wk formed from the types of plastic containers 
that will be recyclable from July 2012.  

§ Just under 3% of residual waste was metallic; 53% of this (0.09kg/hh/wk) was recyclable in blue 
bins. 

§ Around 3% of residual waste was seen to be glass; 94% of this (0.16kg/hh/wk) was recyclable in 
blue bins. 

§ Over 6% of residual waste was due to textiles; 53% of these items (0.21kg/hh/wk) were seen to 
consist of reusable clothing and shoes 

§ Just under 1.6% of residual waste was deemed to be either Hazardous or WEEE. An additional 
17% consisted of disposable nappies 

§ Just over 1.3% of residual waste was found to be garden waste. Around 17% of this was non-
recyclable soil and turf, with the remainder consisting of recyclable garden trimmings 

§ Overall just over 13% of collected residual waste could have been placed into the blue recycling 
containers available– the equivalent of 0.84kg/hh/wk. 

§ Just under 22% of collected residual waste could have been placed into the green recycling 
containers available– the equivalent of 1.40kg/hh/wk. 

§ In total over 35% of residual waste collected could have been recycled alternatively at the kerbside 
– 2.23kg/hh/wk. 

§ Around 59% of potentially recyclable materials consisted of food waste with 15% being paper and 
8% being card and cardboard.  

§ Residual waste collected from Cambridge households was deemed to be around 51% 
biodegradable. 

§ Collected waste had a packaging content of 17%. 

 

Page 134



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 7 - 

Mixed recycling – Blue bins 

§ Over the survey, 78% of households presented blue bins for collection  

§ In terms of waste generation, kerbside households were setting out an average of 3.16kg/hh/wk in 
their blue bins. 

§ Overall 6.4% of blue bin recycling waste collected from all properties was classified as 
contamination – the equivalent of 0.20kg/hh/wk.  

§ Around 77% of paper, 87% of recyclable glass, 73% of card and cardboard, 78% of plastic bottles 
and 59% of the recyclable metals available for mixed recycling were correctly captured. 

§ Kerbside properties diverted around 23.7% of their waste through their blue bins.  

Organic waste recycling – Green bins 

§ Over the survey, 58% of households opted to present their green organic recycling bins at the 
kerbside for collection. 

§ In terms of waste generation, households were setting out an average of 2.96kg/hh/wk at the 
kerbside. 

§ Overall 2.6% of green bin recycling waste collected from all properties was classified as 
contamination – the equivalent of 0.08kg/hh/wk. 

§ Green bins collected from households on a communal service had very high contamination levels 
of 31.3%.  Bins had significant levels of residual waste and also large amounts of paper and 
cardboard.  

§ The majority of contamination of green bin waste was due to general residual materials; forming 
69% of the contamination.  Up to 23% of contamination was due to textiles. 

§ 21% of food waste and 97% of garden waste was correctly captured by households using the 
scheme. 

§ Properties on the green bin collection scheme diverted an average of around 23.1% of their waste 
through these collections. 

§ When combined with the diversion through mixed recycling collections, Cambridge households are 
diverting around 46.8% (5.84kg/hh/wk) of their total waste (12.48kg/hh/wk) through recycling 
collections. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 135



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 8 - 

4)     Compositional Analysis of Residual Waste 

4.1 Set out rates and waste generation levels  

 

Table 4.1.2 and Figure 4.1.2 highlight the average set out rates for residual waste observed at the time 

waste was collected for compositional analysis. Table 4.1.3 and Figure 4.1.3 show the average amount of 

residual waste generated in kg/hh/wk. Around 60 households were selected for each sample from each 

Acorn category with the set out relating to the proportion of these households actively placing out their 

waste. The amount of waste in kilograms per household per week is collected from each sample of 60 

households, not just those that are participating. Results are shown by Acorn; as all five Acorn categories 

were sampled it was possible to weight the results according to the socio-demographic profile for 

Cambridge as per Table 4.1.1.  A table giving a brief description of the types of households typical for each 

Acorn category is shown in the appendix section. 

 

Table 4.1.1: Acorn profile for Cambridge 

ACORN % SET OUT 

1 7.12% 

2 49.66% 

3 18.08% 

4 3.45% 

5 20.71% 

UNCLASSIFIED 0.98% 

TOTAL 100% 

 

Figure 4.1.1: Acorn profile for Cambridge 

UNCLASSIFIED
0.98%

ACORN 3
18.08%

ACORN 4
3.45%

ACORN 5
20.71%

ACORN 1
7.12%

ACORN 2
49.66%

Page 136



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 9 - 

Observed set out rates for residual waste ranged between 71% in the low performing Acorn 5 area (LPA) to 

95% in Acorn 3.  On average 84% of households in Cambridge are projected to be setting out their residual 

waste for collection. 

 

Table 4.1.2: Kerbside residual waste set out rates for each Acorn sample  

 

ACORN % SET OUT 

1 77% 

2 82% 

3 95% 

4 82% 

5 82% 

5 (LPA)* 71% 

COMMUNAL N/A** 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE 84% 

 

*Acorn 5 Low Performing Area 

** Do not have their own bin so set out is not applicable 

 

Figure 4.1.2: Kerbside residual waste set out rates by Acorn (%)  

 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

Page 137



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 10 - 

From observed results, the level of residual waste being disposed of at the kerbside ranged between 

4.20kg/hh/wk in Acorn 1 to 9.80kg/hh/wk in Acorn 5. On average 6.36kg/hh/wk of residual waste is being 

disposed of by households throughout Cambridge. 

 

Table 4.1.3:  Kerbside residual waste generation rates for each Acorn sample (kg/hh/wk) 

 

ACORN KG/HH/WK 

1 4.20 

2 4.66 

3 7.93 

4 6.50 

5 9.80 

5 (LPA) 5.06 

COMMUNAL 8.33 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE 6.36 

 

 

 
Figure 4.1.3: Average residual waste generation rates by Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

7.00

8.00

9.00

10.00

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

Page 138



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 11 - 

4.2 Compositional analysis of household residual waste 

 

This section looks at the average amount and composition of the residual waste presented by various 

socio-demographic households sampled throughout the City. Hand sorting of the residual waste gave 

concentration by weight figures for the fifteen main categories of waste as well as the more detailed sub-

categories.   

 

Looking at the concentration percentages gives an indication as to the proportions of each waste category. 

This can be translated into a figure relating to the average waste generation expected for each waste 

category; this is given in kilograms per household per week (kg/hh/wk). 

 

By knowing the composition of waste from the various Acorn samples it is possible to gain an insight into 

the make-up and volumes of the residual waste that can be expected from the City as a whole. Additional 

information on the selected lower performing and communal bins areas can also be gained.  Detailed 

residual composition tables can be found in a separate data appendix.  

 

Table 4.2.1 and Figure 4.2.1 show residual waste data in terms of percentage composition with Table 4.2.2 

and Figure 4.2.2 showing generation rates for major materials in terms of kg/hh/wk. All residual waste will 

contain a proportion that is classified as potentially recyclable. That is to say that is should have been 

placed into one of the recycling receptacles supplied by the Council.   

Page 139



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 12 - 

 

Table 4.2.1: Average residual waste composition weighted by Acorn (%) 
 

 RESIDUAL WASTE 
ACORN 

1 
ACORN 

2 
ACORN 

3 
ACORN 

4 
ACORN 

5 
ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AVERAGE 

PAPER 13.84% 11.35% 8.51% 7.78% 9.78% 5.93% 6.74% 10.19% 

CARD & CARDBOARD 5.01% 3.32% 3.11% 2.57% 3.71% 1.92% 2.77% 3.45% 

PLASTIC FILM 5.36% 7.98% 6.54% 4.06% 6.07% 8.81% 5.45% 6.77% 

DENSE PLASTIC 10.76% 8.28% 12.09% 6.64% 4.78% 9.45% 5.83% 8.08% 

TEXTILES 1.00% 6.24% 5.48% 7.74% 7.24% 3.66% 5.71% 6.19% 

MISC COMBUSTIBLES 22.52% 16.70% 28.71% 17.69% 33.61% 30.14% 35.67% 25.19% 

MISC NON-COMBUSTIBLES 12.58% 7.20% 11.17% 5.22% 11.50% 0.71% 0.34% 9.67% 

GLASS 1.01% 4.13% 2.48% 2.21% 1.70% 4.42% 4.59% 2.75% 

FERROUS METAL 5.19% 1.92% 2.02% 2.96% 2.06% 1.03% 2.48% 2.18% 

NON-FERROUS METAL 0.57% 0.78% 0.53% 0.43% 0.55% 0.83% 0.74% 0.63% 

GARDEN WASTE 2.49% 2.34% 0.52% 4.26% 0.31% 4.02% 1.57% 1.35% 

PUTRESCIBLES 16.52% 28.37% 16.20% 32.97% 17.10% 28.45% 24.13% 21.57% 

FINES 0.52% 0.00% 0.00% 1.22% 0.93% 0.20% 0.97% 0.37% 

HHW 1.47% 0.30% 1.33% 0.00% 0.00% 0.03% 0.10% 0.48% 

WEEE 1.17% 1.10% 1.32% 4.27% 0.67% 0.41% 2.91% 1.13% 

TOTAL 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE 17.47% 15.67% 11.43% 10.41% 11.16% 11.48% 14.01% 13.15% 

GREEN BIN RECYCLABLE 18.94% 29.72% 15.72% 32.64% 16.78% 31.01% 23.21% 21.95% 

TOTAL RECYCLABLE 36.41% 45.39% 27.15% 43.05% 27.94% 42.50% 37.21% 35.11% 

 

Table 4.2.2: Average residual waste generation weighted by Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 
 

 RESIDUAL WASTE 
ACORN 

1 
ACORN 

2 
ACORN 

3 
ACORN 

4 
ACORN 

5 
ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AVERAGE 

PAPER 0.58 0.53 0.67 0.51 0.96 0.30 0.56 0.65 

CARD & CARDBOARD 0.21 0.15 0.25 0.17 0.36 0.10 0.23 0.22 

PLASTIC FILM 0.23 0.37 0.52 0.26 0.59 0.45 0.45 0.43 

DENSE PLASTIC 0.45 0.39 0.96 0.43 0.47 0.48 0.49 0.51 

TEXTILES 0.04 0.29 0.43 0.50 0.71 0.18 0.48 0.39 

MISC COMBUSTIBLES 0.95 0.78 2.28 1.15 3.29 1.52 2.97 1.60 

MISC NON-COMBUSTIBLES 0.53 0.34 0.89 0.34 1.13 0.04 0.03 0.62 

GLASS 0.04 0.19 0.20 0.14 0.17 0.22 0.38 0.18 

FERROUS METAL 0.22 0.09 0.16 0.19 0.20 0.05 0.21 0.14 

NON-FERROUS METAL 0.02 0.04 0.04 0.03 0.05 0.04 0.06 0.04 

GARDEN WASTE 0.10 0.11 0.04 0.28 0.03 0.20 0.13 0.09 

PUTRESCIBLES 0.69 1.32 1.28 2.14 1.68 1.44 2.01 1.37 

FINES 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.08 0.09 0.01 0.08 0.02 

HHW 0.06 0.01 0.11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.03 

WEEE 0.05 0.05 0.10 0.28 0.07 0.02 0.24 0.07 

TOTAL 4.20 4.66 7.93 6.50 9.80 5.06 8.33 6.36 

BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE 0.73 0.73 0.91 0.68 1.09 0.58 1.17 0.84 

GREEN BIN RECYCLABLE 0.80 1.38 1.25 2.12 1.64 1.57 1.93 1.40 

TOTAL RECYCLABLE 1.53 2.11 2.15 2.80 2.74 2.15 3.10 2.23 

 

Page 140



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 1
3 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.1

: A
ve

ra
ge

 r
es

id
ua

l w
as

te
 c

om
po

si
tio

n 
w

ei
gh

te
d 

by
 A

co
rn

 (%
) 

0
%

10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

1
00

%

AC
O

RN 1

AC
O

RN 2

AC
O

RN 3

AC
O

RN 4

AC
O

RN 5

AC
O

RN 5
 (L

PA
)

CO
M

M
UNAL

W
EIG

HTE
D A

VE
RAGE

W
E

EE

H
H

W

F
IN

E
S

P
U

T
R

E
S

C
IB

LE
S

G
A

R
D

EN
 W

A
S

T
E

N
O

N
-F

ER
R

O
U

S
 M

ET
A

L

F
ER

R
O

U
S

 M
E

TA
L

G
L

A
S

S

M
IS

C
 N

O
N

-C
O

M
B

U
S

T
IB

L
ES

M
IS

C
 C

O
M

B
U

S
T

IB
LE

S

T
EX

TI
LE

S

D
EN

S
E 

P
LA

S
TI

C

P
LA

S
TI

C
 F

IL
M

C
A

R
D

 &
 C

A
R

D
B

O
A

R
D

P
A

PE
R

 

Page 141



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 1
4 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.2

: A
ve

ra
ge

 r
es

id
ua

l w
as

te
 g

en
er

at
io

n 
w

ei
gh

te
d 

by
 A

co
rn

 (k
g/

hh
/w

k)
 

0.
00

1.
00

2.
00

3.
00

4.
00

5.
00

6.
00

7.
00

8.
00

9.
00

10
.0

0 AC
O

RN 1

AC
O

RN 2

AC
O

RN 3

AC
O

RN 4

AC
O

RN 5

ACO
RN 5

 (L
PA)

CO
M

M
UNAL

W
EIG

HTE
D A

VE
RAGE

W
EE

E

H
H

W

FI
N

ES

PU
TR

ES
C

IB
LE

S

G
A

R
D

EN
 W

A
S

TE

N
O

N
-F

ER
R

O
U

S
 M

ET
A

L

FE
R

R
O

U
S

 M
ET

A
L

G
LA

S
S

M
IS

C
 N

O
N

-C
O

M
B

U
S

TI
B

L
ES

M
IS

C
 C

O
M

B
U

S
TI

B
LE

S

TE
X

T
IL

E
S

D
EN

S
E 

P
LA

S
TI

C

PL
A

S
TI

C
 F

IL
M

C
A

R
D

 &
 C

A
R

D
B

O
A

R
D

PA
PE

R

 

Page 142



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 15 - 

4.2.1 Organic Waste 

Organic waste, which includes garden and food waste (putrescibles), formed the greatest weight 

concentration of the primary waste categories for all Acorns. Ranges seen were from 16.7% from Acorn 3 

households to 33.9% in Acorn 5 (LPA) households. Across the City as a whole around 23.3% of all residual 

waste (1.48kg/hh/wk) is classified as organic waste.  Food waste accounted for between 15.6% (Acorn 3) 

and 27.4% (Acorn 2) of residual waste. Across the City as a whole around 20.6% of all residual waste 

(1.31kg/hh/wk) is classified as food waste. Currently Cambridge residents are able to recycle food waste at 

the kerbside using their green bin collection.   Residents from Acorn 3 placed the most recyclable food into 

their residual bins at 2.81kg/hh/wk.  Overall approximately 45% of this food waste (0.58kg/hh/wk) is 

potentially compostable in a general garden compost bin.  

 

Residents throughout Cambridge can also utilise their green bins for the collection of general garden waste.   

In Acorns 3 and 5 levels of garden waste in residual bins were very low at 0.5% and 0.3% respectively. This 

equated to less than 0.05kg/hh/wk in total.  In contrast the residual waste from Acorn 4 and Acorn 5(LPA) 

was over 4% garden waste; the equivalent of 0.28kg/hh/wk and 0.20kg/hh/wk respectively.  Averaged for 

Cambridge it is seen that 17% of this garden waste consisted of soil and turf which is discouraged from the 

recycling collection.  Across the City, recyclable forms of garden waste (i.e. garden clippings but not soil and 

turf) are responsible for an average of just 1.1%, or 0.07kg/hh/wk of residual waste. Table 4.2.1.1 and 

Figure 4.2.1.1 show the amounts of the different forms of organic waste found within the samples from each 

sample. 

 

Table 4.2.1.1: Levels of organic wastes within residual waste of each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL 
ORGANICS 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 5 
(LPA) 

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 
AVERAGE 

FLORA 
ORGANICS 0.10 0.11 0.00 0.08 0.03 0.20 0.13 0.07 

SOIL & TURF 0.00 0.00 0.04 0.19 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 

COMPOSTABLE 
FOOD WASTE 0.22 0.75 0.40 0.47 0.48 0.52 0.78 0.58 

NON-HOME 
COMPOSTABLE 
FOOD WASTE 

0.47 0.52 0.84 1.19 1.14 0.85 1.02 0.73 

HERBIVOROUS 
PET BEDDING 0.00 0.05 0.00 0.05 0.06 0.07 0.21 0.04 

LIQUIDS, FATS & 
OILS 0.00 0.05 0.05 0.10 0.06 0.07 0.21 0.05 

KG/HH/WK 
ORGANICS 0.80 1.48 1.33 2.09 1.77 1.72 2.35 1.48 

% ORGANICS 19.08% 31.71% 16.71% 32.09% 18.06% 33.92% 28.22% 23.31% 

KG/HH/WK FOOD 
WASTE 0.69 1.27 1.23 1.66 1.61 1.37 1.80 1.31 

% FOOD WASTE 16.45% 27.37% 15.57% 25.53% 16.47% 27.00% 21.61% 20.59% 

Page 143



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 1
6 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.1

.1
: L

ev
el

s 
of

 o
rg

an
ic

 w
as

te
s 

w
ith

in
 r

es
id

ua
l w

as
te

 o
f e

ac
h 

A
co

rn
 (k

g/
hh

/w
k)

 

0
.0

0

0
.5

0

1
.0

0

1
.5

0

2
.0

0

2
.5

0

AC
O

RN 1

AC
O

RN 2

AC
O

RN 3

AC
O

RN 4

AC
O

RN 5

AC
O

RN 5
 (L

PA
)

CO
M

M
UNAL

  W
EI

GHTE
D A

V.

L
IQ

U
ID

S
, 
F
A

T
S

 &
 O

IL
S

H
E
R

B
IV

O
R

O
U

S
 P

E
T

B
E
D

D
IN

G

N
O

N
-H

O
M

E
 C

O
M

P
O

S
T
A

B
L
E

F
O

O
D

 W
A

S
T
E

C
O

M
P
O

S
T
A

B
L
E
 F

O
O

D
W

A
S

T
E

S
O

IL
 &

 T
U

R
F

F
L
O

R
A

 O
R

G
A

N
IC

S

 

Page 144



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 17 - 

4.2.2 Paper  

On average, Acorn 1 residents had the highest concentrations of this type of waste (13.8%), with Acorn 5 

disposing of the most at 0.96kg/hh/wk. In comparison just 5.9% (0.30kg/hh/wk) of residual waste from 

Acorn 5(LPA) was due to paper based materials. Across the City it was seen that around 10.2% or 

0.65kg/hh/wk of residual waste consisted of discarded paper. 

 

A proportion of this paper is available for recycling at the kerbside. Cambridge residents have a blue bin for 

recycling higher grade white paper such as newspapers, junk mail, envelopes and directories.  In addition 

to this higher grade paper, Cambridge residents are able to place shredded paper into their green organics 

bin. It was found that between 50.5% (Acorn 3 and Acorn 5(LPA) and 74.8% (Acorn 1) of paper could have 

been placed in either the blue or green bins as opposed to the residual bin.  

 

When accounting for all of the various types of paper within the residual waste, it is seen that 53.3% of 

residual paper was recyclable which accounted for 5.4% of all the residual waste or 0.35kg/hh/wk.   

 

Table 4.2.2.1 and Figure 4.2.2.1 show the amounts of the different forms of paper waste for each Acorn. 

 

Table 4.2.2.1: Levels of paper wastes within residual waste of each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL PAPER ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 5 
(LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

RECYCLABLE 
PAPER 0.43 0.28 0.33 0.30 0.48 0.15 0.36 0.34 

SHREDDED 
PAPER 

0.00 0.00 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

NON-
RECYCLABLE 

PAPER 
0.15 0.25 0.33 0.21 0.48 0.15 0.20 0.30 

KG/HH/WK TOTAL 
PAPER  0.58 0.53 0.67 0.51 0.96 0.30 0.56 0.65 

KG/HH/WK 
RECYCLABLE 

PAPER 
0.43 0.28 0.34 0.30 0.48 0.15 0.37 0.35 

% PAPER 
RECYCLABLE 

74.77% 53.37% 50.52% 59.17% 49.83% 50.52% 65.29% 53.27% 

 

Page 145



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 1
8 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.2

.1
: L

ev
el

s 
of

 p
ap

er
 w

as
te

s 
w

ith
in

 r
es

id
ua

l w
as

te
 o

f e
ac

h 
A

co
rn

 (k
g/

hh
/w

k)
 

0
.0

0

0
.2

0

0
.4

0

0
.6

0

0
.8

0

1
.0

0

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

CO
M

M
U
N
AL

  W
EI

GH
TE

D
 A

V.

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P
E
R

S
H

R
E
D

D
E
D

 P
A

P
E
R

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P
E
R

 

Page 146



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 19 - 

4.2.3 Card & Cardboard 

On average, Acorn 1 residents had the highest concentrations of this type of waste (5%), with Acorn 5 

disposing of the most at 0.36kg/hh/wk. In comparison just 1.9% (0.10kg/hh/wk) of residual waste from 

Acorn 5(LPA) was due to card and cardboard based materials. Across the City it was seen that around 

3.5% or 0.22kg/hh/wk of residual waste consisted of discarded card and cardboard. 

 

A proportion of this card & cardboard is available for recycling at the kerbside. Cambridge residents have a 

blue bin for recycling thin card, corrugated cardboard and drinks cartons.  It was found that between 65% 

(Acorn 1) and 94% (Acorn 5-LPA) of card and cardboard could have been placed in the blue bin as 

opposed to the residual bin. Across Cambridge, 84% of residual card and cardboard was compatible with 

recycling collections which accounted for 2.9% of all the residual waste or 0.18kg/hh/wk.   

 

Table 4.2.3.1 and Figure 4.2.3.1 show the amounts of the different forms of card and cardboard waste for 

each Acorn. 

 

When combining paper and card together it is estimated that 61% of that present in residual bins could 

have been recycled via kerbside recycling collections.  This amounts to 8.3% of all the residual waste being 

collected – a total of 0.53kg/hh/wk.  

 

Table 4.2.3.1: Levels of card wastes within residual waste of each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL CARD 
ACORN 

1 
ACORN 

2 
ACORN 

3 
ACORN 

4 
ACORN 

5 
ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

RECYCLABLE THIN 
CARD 0.05 0.08 0.15 0.07 0.14 0.05 0.16 0.10 

RECYCLABLE 
CORRUGATED 
CARDBOARD 

0.07 0.02 0.07 0.05 0.17 0.02 0.03 0.07 

BEVERAGE CARTONS 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.02 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
CARD 0.07 0.04 0.02 0.04 0.04 0.01 0.02 0.04 

KG/HH/WK  TOTAL 
CARD & CARDBOARD  0.21 0.15 0.25 0.17 0.36 0.10 0.23 0.22 

KG/HH/WK 
RECYCLABLE CARD & 

CARDBOARD 
0.14 0.12 0.23 0.12 0.33 0.09 0.21 0.18 

% CARD KERBSIDE 
RECYCLABLE 65.22% 77.15% 93.19% 74.50% 89.79% 94.04% 90.71% 83.93% 

 

 

 

Page 147



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 2
0 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.3

.1
: L

ev
el

s 
of

 c
ar

d 
w

as
te

s 
w

ith
in

 r
es

id
ua

l w
as

te
 o

f e
ac

h 
A

co
rn

 (k
g/

hh
/w

k)
 

0
.0

0

0
.0

5

0
.1

0

0
.1

5

0
.2

0

0
.2

5

0
.3

0

0
.3

5

0
.4

0

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 C

A
R

D

B
E
V

E
R

A
G

E
 C

A
R

T
O

N
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

C
O

R
R

U
G

A
T
E
D

C
A

R
D

B
O

A
R

D

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 T

H
IN

 C
A

R
D

Page 148



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 21 - 

4.2.4 Plastics 

As a UK average approximately 12% of the waste disposed of by households is plastic. In this sampling 

campaign average ranges seen were 10.7% total plastic by weight from Acorn 4 households to 18.6% in 

the waste from Acorn 3 households. Cambridge residents currently recycle plastic bottles as part of their 

blue bin collections. Across the City as a whole, 14.9% of residual waste was classified as plastic which 

equates to 0.94kg/hh/wk. On the whole plastic waste, although not heavy in itself, can produce large 

volumes of waste. 

 

Figure 4.2.4.1 clearly shows the levels of recyclable plastic bottles within the plastic portion of the residual 

waste. On average, around 46% of this plastic waste present in the residual was due to plastic film with the 

remainder being dense plastic. Up to 9.9% of residual dense plastic consisted of plastic bottles meaning 

that just 0.8% of residual waste (0.05kg/hh/wk) collected throughout Cambridge was made up of plastic 

bottles that could have been recycled.  Up to 0.13kg/hh/wk of plastic bottles were seen in communal bins 

representing over a quarter of all the dense plastic present.   

 

From July 2012 Cambridge households will be able to recycle plastic food containers in addition to plastic 

bottles.  On average these formed 3.4% of the total residual waste equating to 0.21kg/hh/wk.  This means 

that 0.27kg/hh/wk or 4.2% of the residual waste is due to recyclable plastic bottles and containers.  

 

Table 4.2.4.1 and Figure 4.2.4.1 show the amounts of the different forms of plastic waste found within the 

residual samples from each Acorn. 

 

Table 4.2.4.1: Levels of plastics within residual waste of each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL 
PLASTICS 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

PLASTIC FILM 0.23 0.37 0.52 0.26 0.59 0.45 0.45 0.43 

PLASTIC BOTTLES 0.09 0.04 0.06 0.06 0.05 0.04 0.13 0.05 

PLASTIC FOOD 
CONTAINERS 

0.12 0.23 0.27 0.17 0.18 0.12 0.22 0.21 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PLASTICS 0.25 0.11 0.63 0.20 0.24 0.31 0.14 0.25 

KG/HH/WK  TOTAL 
PLASTIC 0.68 0.76 1.48 0.70 1.06 0.92 0.94 0.94 

% DENSE PLASTIC 
RECYCLABLE 19.39% 11.04% 6.41% 14.22% 9.84% 9.18% 26.63% 9.85% 

Page 149



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 2
2 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.4

.1
: L

ev
el

s 
of

 p
la

st
ic

s 
w

ith
in

 r
es

id
ua

l w
as

te
 o

f e
ac

h 
A

co
rn

 (k
g/

hh
/w

k)
 

0
.0

0

0
.2

5

0
.5

0

0
.7

5

1
.0

0

1
.2

5

1
.5

0

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O
R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

P
L
A

S
T
IC

S

P
L
A

S
T
IC

 F
O

O
D

C
O

N
T
A

IN
E
R

S

P
L
A

S
T
IC

 B
O

T
T
L
E
S

P
L
A

S
T
IC

 F
IL

M

Page 150



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 23 - 

4.2.5 Metals 

In this sampling campaign average concentrations of residual metals were seen to be 1.9% total metal by 

weight from Acorn 5(LPA) households to 5.8% in the waste from Acorn 1 households, averaging 2.8% 

overall. Cambridge residents have access to a recycling collection of food and drink cans as well as empty 

aerosols and clean foil via their blue bin service. The average weight of metals in the residual waste from 

Acorn 5(LPA) was 0.09kg/hh/wk rising to 0.27kg/hh/wk in communal bins.   

 

A proportion of this metal waste is available for recycling at the kerbside relative to the blue bin collection.  It 

was found that just 13% of Acorn 1 metals were recyclable rising to 77% for the metals in Acorn 5(LPA) 

residual waste. Across the City an average of 52.5% or 0.09kg/hh/wk of residual metal is classified as 

recyclable, this equates to 1.5% of all collected residual waste. 

 

On the whole 78% of metals were ferrous accounting for 0.14kg/hh/wk with non-ferrous metals contributing 

0.04kg/hh/wk. The majority of metallic waste present in all samples was seen to be ferrous.  

 

Table 4.2.5.1 and Figure 4.2.5.1 show the amounts of the different forms of metallic waste found within the 

samples from each Acorn. Food cans tend to require a degree of washing before being placed into 

recycling containers and as such are often less well diverted than cleaner drinks cans.   

 

Table 4.2.5.1: Levels of metals within residual waste of each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL METALS ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

DRINK CANS 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.03 0.02 0.02 0.01 

FOOD TINS & CANS 0.01 0.05 0.04 0.03 0.04 0.02 0.04 0.04 

AEROSOLS 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.01 

ALUMINIUM FOIL AND 
FOOD TRAYS 0.01 0.02 0.03 0.01 0.03 0.02 0.03 0.03 

OTHER NON-
RECYCLABLE METALS 0.21 0.03 0.10 0.16 0.15 0.02 0.15 0.08 

RECYCLABLE METALS 0.03 0.10 0.10 0.06 0.11 0.07 0.12 0.09 

TOTAL METALS 0.24 0.13 0.20 0.22 0.26 0.09 0.27 0.18 

% FERROUS 90.16% 71.00% 79.19% 87.30% 78.93% 55.42% 77.02% 77.64% 

%  RECYCLABLE 13.31% 76.02% 49.78% 28.45% 42.69% 77.11% 42.82% 52.46% 

 

Page 151



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 2
4 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.5

.1
: L

ev
el

s 
of

 m
et

al
s 

w
ith

in
 r

es
id

ua
l w

as
te

 o
f e

ac
h 

A
co

rn
 (k

g/
hh

/w
k)

 

0
.0

0

0
.0

5

0
.1

0

0
.1

5

0
.2

0

0
.2

5

0
.3

0 AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

O
T
H

E
R

 N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

M
E
T
A

L
S

A
L
U

M
IN

IU
M

 F
O

IL
 A

N
D

 F
O

O
D

T
R

A
Y

S

A
E
R

O
S

O
L
S

F
O

O
D

 T
IN

S
 &

 C
A

N
S

D
R

IN
K

 C
A

N
S

Page 152



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 25 - 

4.2.6 Glass 

In this sampling campaign the average concentration of residual glass was seen to be 1% total glass by 

weight from Acorn 1 households rising to 4.6% in the waste from communal bins. Cambridge residents are 

able to recycle glass bottles and jars at the kerbside using their blue bin service.   The weight of glass in the 

residual waste from Acorn 1 was 0.04kg/hh/wk rising to 0.38kg/hh/wk in communal bins.  This represented 

a City wide average of 2.8% or 0.18kg/hh/wk. 

 

A proportion of this glass consists of bottles and jars which could have been recycled at the kerbside. It was 

found that across Cambridge an average of 94% or 0.16kg/hh/wk of residual glass is classified as 

recyclable, this equates to 2.6% of all collected residual waste. 

 

In most samples the majority of recyclable glass was seen to be higher grade clear glass, across 

Cambridge 64% of recyclable glass was clear, accounting for 0.11kg/hh/wk of residual waste.  Around 52% 

of the clear glass was due to jars as opposed to bottles.   

 

Table 4.2.6.1 and Figure 4.2.6.1 show the amounts of the different forms of glass waste found within the 

samples from each Acorn.   

 

Table 4.2.6.1: Levels of glass within residual waste of each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL GLASS 
ACORN 

1 
ACORN 

2 
ACORN 

3 
ACORN 

4 
ACORN 

5 
ACORN 5 

(LPA) COMMUNAL 
WEIGHTED 

AV. 

GREEN GLASS 0.00 0.09 0.00 0.02 0.02 0.12 0.04 0.05 

BROWN, BLUE, RED 
GLASS 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.03 0.02 0.01 0.04 0.01 

CLEAR BOTTLES 0.01 0.03 0.17 0.07 0.03 0.06 0.15 0.05 

CLEAR JARS 0.03 0.07 0.01 0.00 0.06 0.04 0.12 0.05 

OTHER NON 
PACKAGING GLASS 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.03 0.00 0.03 0.01 

KG/HH/WK TOTAL 
GLASS 0.04 0.19 0.20 0.14 0.17 0.22 0.38 0.18 

KG/HH/WK RECYCLABLE 
GLASS 0.04 0.19 0.19 0.13 0.13 0.22 0.35 0.16 

% RECYCLABLE 100% 98.99% 94.36% 89.99% 80.74% 99.24% 91.15% 94.17% 

% OF RECYCLABLE 
GLASS - CLEAR 100% 49.56% 95.85% 57.08% 70.33% 42.98% 76.93% 63.76% 

 

 

Page 153



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 2
6 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.6

.1
: L

ev
el

s 
of

 g
la

ss
 w

ith
in

 r
es

id
ua

l w
as

te
 o

f e
ac

h 
A

co
rn

 (k
g/

hh
/w

k)
 

0
.0

0

0
.0

5

0
.1

0

0
.1

5

0
.2

0

0
.2

5

0
.3

0

0
.3

5

0
.4

0

AC
O
R
N
 1

AC
O
R
N
 2

AC
O
R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O
R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O
M
M
U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

O
T
H

E
R

 N
O

N
 P

A
C

K
A

G
IN

G
G

L
A

S
S

C
L
E
A

R
 J

A
R

S

C
L
E
A

R
 B

O
T
T
L
E

S

B
R

O
W

N
, 
B

L
U

E
, 
R

E
D

 G
L
A

S
S

G
R

E
E
N

 G
L
A

S
S

Page 154



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 27 - 

4.2.7 Textiles 

 

The concentration of residual textile waste was seen to be 1% textiles from Acorn 1 households to 7.7% in 

the waste from Acorn 4 households. Cambridge residents are currently not able to recycle textiles at the 

kerbside. The average weight of textile waste in the residual waste from Acorn 1 was 0.04kg/hh/wk rising to 

0.71kg/hh/wk in Acorn 5.  On average 6.2% or 0.39kg/hh/wk of residual waste is classified as textile waste.  

 

A proportion of this textile waste is available for recycling either at bring banks or charity outlets in the form 

of reusable clothes and shoes. It was found that between 37% (Acorn 2) and 67% of Acorn 5(LPA) of textile 

waste was of this potentially recyclable type. Up to 0.44kg/hh/wk (Acorn 5) of recyclable textiles are being 

placed into the residual waste by Cambridge householders. Across Cambridge an average of 52.5% or 

0.21kg/hh/wk of residual textiles is classified as reusable, this equates to 3.3% of all collected residual 

waste. 

 

Table 4.2.7.1 and Figure 4.2.7.1 show the amounts of the different forms of textile waste found within the 

samples from each Acorn. 

 

Table 4.2.7.1: Levels of textiles within residual waste of each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL TEXTILES 
ACORN 

1 
ACORN 

2 
ACORN 

3 
ACORN 

4 
ACORN 

5 
ACORN 5 

(LPA) COMMUNAL 
WEIGHTED 

AV. 

REUSABLE 
CLOTHING 0.03 0.07 0.25 0.20 0.33 0.08 0.22 0.15 

SHOES 0.00 0.04 0.02 0.12 0.11 0.05 0.07 0.05 

ALL OTHER 
TEXTILES 0.01 0.18 0.17 0.19 0.27 0.06 0.19 0.19 

KG/HH/WK TOTAL 
TEXTILES 0.04 0.29 0.43 0.50 0.71 0.18 0.48 0.39 

KG/HH/WK 
REUSABLE TEXTILES 0.03 0.11 0.27 0.31 0.44 0.12 0.28 0.21 

% REUSABLE 
TEXTILES 66.10% 36.88% 61.45% 61.89% 61.69% 67.35% 59.77% 52.51% 

 

 

 

Page 155



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 2
8 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.7

.1
: L

ev
el

s 
of

 te
xt

ile
s 

w
ith

in
 r

es
id

ua
l w

as
te

 o
f e

ac
h 

A
co

rn
 (k

g/
hh

/w
k)

 

0
.0

0

0
.0

5

0
.1

0

0
.1

5

0
.2

0

0
.2

5

0
.3

0

0
.3

5

0
.4

0

0
.4

5

0
.5

0

0
.5

5

0
.6

0

0
.6

5

0
.7

0

0
.7

5

AC
O
R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O
R
N
 3

AC
O
R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M
U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

A
L
L
 O

T
H

E
R

 T
E
X

T
IL

E
S

S
H

O
E
S

R
E
U

S
A

B
L
E
 C

L
O

T
H

IN
G

Page 156



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 29 - 

4.2.8 Hazardous Items (HHW) & WEEE 

In this sampling campaign the average overall concentration of hazardous and WEEE waste was seen to 

be 1.6% which equates to around 0.10kg/hh/wk. Acorn 4 households disposed of the most HHW and 

WEEE waste, where it was responsible for 4.3% of collected waste or 0.28kg/hh/wk. Table 4.2.8.1 shows 

the amounts of HHW and WEEE within the samples from each Acorn. 

 

Table 4.2.8.1: Levels of HHW and WEEE within each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL HHW & 
WEEE 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 5 
(LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

HHW 0.06 0.01 0.11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.03 

WEEE 0.05 0.05 0.10 0.28 0.07 0.02 0.24 0.07 

TOTAL 0.11 0.06 0.21 0.28 0.07 0.02 0.25 0.10 

% HHW & WEEE 2.64% 1.40% 2.65% 4.27% 0.67% 0.44% 3.00% 1.61% 

 

HHW WEEE 

PAINT CHARGERS 

HALOGEN BULB GAME REMOTE 

BATTERIES XMAS LIGHTS 

MEDICINES THERMOSTAT 

WEED KILLER MOBILE PHONE 

 TORCHES 

 SMOKE ALARM 

 SWITCH 

 MODEM 

 LAMPS 

 KETTLES 

 STEREO & SPEAKERS 

 MOTOR 

 TELEPHONE 

 HAIR STRAIGHTENERS 

 CABLES & LEADS 

 SOCKERS 

 DEEP FAT FRYER 

 FAN 

 BLENDER 

 CALCULATOR 

 

Page 157



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 30 - 

4.2.9 Disposable Nappies 

The profile of this type of waste has increased in recent years. Levels of this waste within the residual bins 

of households with babies can be extremely high. In this survey the concentrations of disposable nappies 

ranged between 1.3% in Acorn 3 up to 33.5% in communal bins. Communal bins were seen to contain 

around 2.79kg/hh/wk of disposable nappies. Throughout Cambridge as a whole around 17% of collected 

residual waste consists of disposable nappies, which equates to 1.08kg/hh/wk. 

 

4.3 Potential recyclability of the residual waste 

The overall recyclability of the residual waste relates to all the items present that could have been accepted 

into the kerbside recycling schemes currently running in Cambridge. Results from the survey showed that 

the overall recyclability of the residual waste was highest in Acorn 2 households at 45.4%, and lowest in 

Acorn 3 at 27.2%. Across Cambridge it is expected that 35.1% of all residual waste being disposed of is 

recyclable at the kerbside.   

 

The majority of the recyclable materials present within the residual waste were compatible with the green 

organics bin.  On average 22% of residual waste could have been recycled in the green bin ranging from 

15.7% of Acorn 3 waste up to 32.6% of Acorn 4 waste.   

 

On average just over 13% of the residual waste throughout Cambridge was recyclable via the blue bin 

collection.  Around 10 4% of the residual waste from Acorn 4 was compatible with blue bins compared with 

17.5% of that from Acorn 1.   

 

 

Table 4.3.1.1: Proportion of residual waste currently recyclable relative to current schemes (%) 

 

% RECYCLABLE 
MATERIALS WITHIN 
RESIDUAL WASTE 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE 17.47% 15.67% 11.43% 10.41% 11.16% 11.48% 14.01% 13.15% 

GREEN BIN RECYCLABLE 18.94% 29.72% 15.72% 32.64% 16.78% 31.01% 23.21% 21.95% 

TOTAL RECYCLABLE 36.41% 45.39% 27.15% 43.05% 27.94% 42.50% 37.21% 35.11% 

 

 

Page 158



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 31 - 

In terms of the amount of recyclables disposed of it is seen that Acorn 1 householders place around 

1.53kg/hh/wk of materials in residual bins that could either be placed into their blue or green recycling bins. 

For communal bins this amount was 3.1kg/hh/wk.  Across Cambridge around 2.23kg/hh/wk of recyclable 

material is being disposed of in the residual waste. 

 

Table 4.3.1.2: Kg/hh/wk of residual waste currently and potentially recyclable relative to current schemes 

 

KG/HH/WK RECYCLABLE 
MATERIALS WITHIN 
RESIDUAL WASTE 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE 0.73 0.73 0.91 0.68 1.09 0.58 1.17 0.84 

GREEN BIN RECYCLABLE 0.80 1.38 1.25 2.12 1.64 1.57 1.93 1.40 

TOTAL RECYCLABLE 1.53 2.11 2.15 2.80 2.74 2.15 3.10 2.23 

 

 

Figure 4.3.1.1 clearly shows the levels of residual materials currently collectable in the recycling collections 

available in Cambridge. Different households were seen to dispose of differing levels of recyclable 

materials, both in terms of volume and composition (Table 4.3.1.3). Without exception it is seen that the two 

Acorn 5 samples and the waste from the communal bins contained the highest levels of each material 

compatible with kerbside recycling.   

  

Table 4.3.1.3: Kg/hh/wk of residual waste potentially recyclable relative to Acorn (Kg/hh/wk) 

 

KG/HH/WK RECYCLABLE 
MATERIALS WITHIN 
RESIDUAL WASTE 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

RECYCLABLE PAPER 0.43 0.28 0.34 0.30 0.48 0.15 0.37 0.35 

RECYCLABLE CARD & 
CARDBOARD 

0.14 0.12 0.23 0.12 0.33 0.09 0.21 0.18 

RECYCLABLE PLASTIC 
BOTTLES 0.09 0.04 0.06 0.06 0.05 0.04 0.13 0.05 

RECYCLABLE GLASS 0.04 0.19 0.19 0.13 0.13 0.22 0.35 0.16 

RECYCLABLE METALS 0.03 0.10 0.10 0.06 0.11 0.07 0.12 0.09 

RECYCLABLE FOOD 
WASTE 0.69 1.27 1.23 1.66 1.61 1.37 1.80 1.31 

RECYCLABLE GARDEN 
WASTE 0.10 0.11 0.00 0.08 0.03 0.20 0.13 0.07 

RECYCLABLE PET 
BEDDING 

0.00 0.05 0.00 0.05 0.06 0.07 0.21 0.01 

TOTAL RECYCLABLE 1.53 2.16 2.15 2.47 2.80 2.22 3.31 2.23 

Page 159



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 3
2 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.3
.1

.1
: K

g/
hh

/w
k 

of
 r

es
id

ua
l w

as
te

 p
ot

en
tia

lly
 r

ec
yc

la
bl

e 
re

la
tiv

e 
to

 A
co

rn
 (K

g/
hh

/w
k)

 

0
.0

0

0
.5

0

1
.0

0

1
.5

0

2
.0

0

2
.5

0

3
.0

0

3
.5

0

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

E
T
 B

E
D

D
IN

G

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 G

A
R

D
E
N

W
A

S
T
E

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 F

O
O

D
W

A
S

T
E

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 M

E
T
A

L
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 G

L
A

S
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

L
A

S
T
IC

B
O

T
T

L
E
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 C

A
R

D
 &

C
A

R
D

B
O

A
R

D

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P
E
R

Page 160



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 33 - 

 

4.4 Biodegradable waste 

 

These figures are useful when considering the proportion of biodegradable waste, which may be subject to 

the national provision of the Landfill Directive. The data has been calculated using the compositional data in 

accordance with the percentages outlined in previous reports. For example, only 50% of miscellaneous 

combustible materials are considered to be biodegradable whereas 100% of paper and card is considered 

to be biodegradable. 

 

National average figures are around 68%; in this survey the biodegradability of residual waste weighted 

across Cambridge was well below this level at 50.7%. Acorn 4 residual waste displayed the highest 

concentration of biodegradable items at 59.4%, with Acorn 3 residual waste being just 44.4% 

biodegradable. On average, around 3.22kg/hh/wk of biodegradable material was being placed into residual 

containers by Cambridge residents. 

 

Table 4.4.1: Percentage composition of residual waste per Acorn – biodegradable materials 

 

BIODEGRADABLE 
CONTRIBUTION 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

PAPER AND CARD 17.19% 12.94% 10.94% 9.61% 11.96% 7.39% 8.80% 12.25% 

TEXTILES 0.50% 3.12% 2.74% 3.87% 3.62% 1.83% 2.85% 3.10% 

11.26% 8.35% 14.36% 8.84% 16.80% 15.07% 17.84% 12.60% 
MISC. 

COMBUSTIBLE* 
7.94% 5.73% 8.53% 4.78% 12.16% 12.51% 16.76% 8.51% 

PUTRESCIBLES 18.98% 30.22% 16.40% 36.43% 17.10% 31.74% 24.44% 22.53% 

FINES 0.26% 0.00% 0.00% 0.61% 0.46% 0.10% 0.49% 0.18% 

TOTAL 
BIODEGRADABLE 48.18% 54.63% 44.44% 59.36% 49.94% 56.13% 54.42% 50.66% 

 

* Disposable nappies are part of the miscellaneous combustible section. Their contribution to this section of 

biodegradable waste is highlighted in red. 

 

Page 161



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 34 - 

4.5 Packaging Waste 

 

These figures are useful when considering the proportion of packaging waste, which may be subject to the 

national provision of the Landfill Directive. The data has been calculated using a similar method to that used 

to calculate biodegradability. 

 

Levels of packaging in the residual waste ranged from 12.3% in Acorn 5 residual waste to 22.1% in Acorn 2 

residual waste. On average, around 1.08kg/hh/wk of packaging materials were being placed into residual 

containers by Cambridge residents, 17% of the total waste being disposed of. 

  

Table 4.5.1: Percentage composition of residual waste per Acorn – packaging materials 

 

PACKAGING 
CONTRIBUTION 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) 

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 
AV. 

PAPER AND CARD 4.62% 4.43% 3.32% 2.98% 4.28% 2.41% 3.88% 4.09% 

PLASTIC FILM 3.69% 5.06% 4.61% 2.62% 2.89% 5.53% 3.40% 4.11% 

DENSE PLASTIC 7.36% 6.70% 4.88% 3.90% 2.81% 4.28% 4.41% 4.96% 

GLASS 1.01% 4.08% 2.34% 1.99% 1.37% 4.39% 4.18% 2.59% 

METALS 0.63% 1.79% 1.05% 0.89% 0.98% 1.27% 1.17% 1.27% 

TOTAL 
PACKAGING 17.31% 22.06% 16.20% 12.37% 12.34% 17.87% 17.05% 17.02% 

 

Page 162



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 35 - 

 

5)    Mixed dry recycling waste 

5.1 Set out rates and waste generation 

 

Table 5.1.1 and Figure 5.1.1 highlight the set out rates for blue recycling bins observed at the time waste 

was collected for compositional analysis. Table 5.1.2 and Figure 5.1.2 show the amount of mixed recycling 

waste generated in kg/hh/wk. The same houses were visited that had their residual waste surveyed. It was 

possible to calculate the set out relating to the proportion of these households actively placing out their 

waste. The amount of waste in kilograms per household per week is derived from the number of 

households who could set out waste and not just those that are participating. Set out rates for mixed 

recycling waste ranged between 66% for Acorn 4 and 84% for Acorn 3. Across Cambridge it is estimated 

that around 78% of residents are placing out their blue bins for collection.  

 

Table 5.1.1: Average Set Out for mixed recycling waste (%)  

 

ACORN % SET OUT 

1 74% 

2 75% 

3 84% 

4 66% 

5 82% 

5 (LPA) 78% 

COMMUNAL N/A 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE 78% 

 

In this survey the average amount of mixed recycling generated in blue bins ranged between 2.36kg/hh/wk 

from Acorn 1 to 3.83kg/hh/wk from Acorn 3. Across Cambridge around 3.16kg/hh/wk of blue bin recycling 

waste is being placed out for collection at the kerbside.  

 

Table 5.1.2: Average Mixed Recycling waste generation rates (kg/hh/wk)  

 

ACORN KG/HH/WK 

1 2.36 

2 3.07 

3 3.83 

4 2.95 

5 3.09 

5 (LPA) 2.52 

COMMUNAL 3.80 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE 3.16 

 

 

Page 163



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 36 - 

Figure 5.1.1: Average Set Out for mixed recycling waste (%)  

 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

 
 

Figure 5.1.2: Average Mixed recycling waste generation rates (kg/hh/wk)  

 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

 

Page 164



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 37 - 

5.2 Compositional analysis of mixed recycling waste 

This section looks at the average amount and composition of the mixed recycling waste presented by 

households sampled throughout Cambridge. Hand sorting of the recycling waste gave concentration by 

weight figures for the fifteen main categories of waste as well as the more detailed sub-categories.  Results 

can again be expressed in terms of percentage concentration and kg/hh/wk for individual samples and in 

relation to the household Acorn type surveyed.   Table 5.2.1 and Figure 5.2.1 show mixed recycling data in 

terms of percentage composition with Table 5.2.2 and Figure 5.2.2 showing generation rates for major 

materials in terms of kg/hh/wk for each sample taken from the blue recycling bins.  

 

As residual waste will contain a proportion that is classified as potentially recyclable; then recycling waste 

will contain a faction that is deemed to be contamination. That is to say that it is not compatible with the 

materials currently acceptable to the recycling container it is placed into.  

 

Table 5.2.1: Composition of mixed recycling (% concentration) by Acorn 

 

BLUE BIN 
RECYCLING 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

RECYCLABLE PAPER 50.89% 46.17% 23.96% 25.91% 23.28% 31.61% 32.48% 36.16% 

RECYCLABLE CARD 
& CARDBOARD 12.80% 12.42% 14.12% 13.13% 17.38% 13.94% 14.95% 13.85% 

RECYCLABLE 
PLASTIC BOTTLES 4.33% 4.28% 7.60% 5.74% 7.68% 8.58% 7.17% 5.76% 

RECYCLABLE GLASS 18.59% 30.83% 41.13% 36.02% 35.39% 32.94% 25.61% 33.55% 

RECYCLABLE 
METALS 5.08% 2.87% 6.02% 5.95% 5.12% 4.86% 5.56% 4.25% 

CONTAMINATION 
MATERIALS 8.32% 3.43% 7.18% 13.23% 11.15% 8.06% 14.22% 6.42% 

TOTAL RECYCLING 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 

 

Table 5.2.2: Composition of mixed recycling (kg/hh/wk) by Acorn 

 

BLUE BIN 
RECYCLING 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

RECYCLABLE PAPER 1.20 1.42 0.92 0.76 0.72 0.80 1.24 1.14 

RECYCLABLE CARD 
& CARDBOARD 0.30 0.38 0.54 0.39 0.54 0.35 0.57 0.44 

RECYCLABLE 
PLASTIC BOTTLES 

0.10 0.13 0.29 0.17 0.24 0.22 0.27 0.18 

RECYCLABLE GLASS 0.44 0.95 1.58 1.06 1.09 0.83 0.97 1.06 

RECYCLABLE 
METALS 

0.12 0.09 0.23 0.18 0.16 0.12 0.21 0.13 

CONTAMINATION 
MATERIALS 0.20 0.11 0.27 0.39 0.34 0.20 0.54 0.20 

TOTAL RECYCLING 2.36 3.07 3.83 2.95 3.09 2.52 3.80 3.16 

Page 165



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 3
8 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 5

.2
.1

: C
om

po
si

tio
n 

of
 m

ix
ed

 r
ec

yc
lin

g 
(%

) b
y 

A
co

rn
 

0
%

1
0
%

2
0
%

3
0
%

4
0
%

5
0
%

6
0
%

7
0
%

8
0
%

9
0
%

1
0
0
%

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

C
O

N
T
A

M
IN

A
T
IO

N
M

A
T
E
R

IA
L
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 M

E
T
A

L
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 G

L
A

S
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

L
A

S
T
IC

B
O

T
T
L
E
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 C

A
R

D
 &

C
A

R
D

B
O

A
R

D

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P
E
R

 

Page 166



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 3
9 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 5

.2
.2

: C
om

po
si

tio
n 

of
 m

ix
ed

 r
ec

yc
lin

g 
(k

g/
hh

/w
k)

 b
y 

A
co

rn
  

0
.0

0

0
.5

0

1
.0

0

1
.5

0

2
.0

0

2
.5

0

3
.0

0

3
.5

0

4
.0

0

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

C
O

N
T
A

M
IN

A
T
IO

N
M

A
T
E
R

IA
L
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 M

E
T
A

L
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 G

L
A

S
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

L
A

S
T
IC

B
O

T
T
L
E
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 C

A
R

D
 &

C
A

R
D

B
O

A
R

D

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P
E
R

Page 167



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 40 - 

5.3 Materials placed out for mixed recycling collections 

 

This chapter looks in more detail at the individual materials placed out for blue bin recycling collections and 

highlights the effectiveness with which the mixed recycling scheme is capturing these items. Looking at the 

relationship between the residual and recycling waste streams presented will additionally give indications as 

to the overall diversion being achieved in the Cambridge samples. 

 

Table 5.3.1 summarises the capture and diversion rates seen for the range of materials collected in the dry 

recycling collections. Recyclable paper, card & cardboard, plastics, glass and metals are collected in the 

blue bin.   

 

Across Cambridge around 75.6% of all the materials currently collected in blue bins are being correctly 

recycled at the kerbside.  Acorns 1 – 4 all recycled between 73% and 79% of their blue bin materials.  In 

comparison Acorn 5 households recycled 69% whilst those using communal bins recycled just 58%.  

Overall it is estimated that 23.7% of kerbside waste throughout Cambridge is diverted through blue bin 

collections.   

 

Table 5.3.1: Summary table for material capture and diversion rates (%) for mixed recycling  

 

% CAPTURE RATES 
ACORN 

1 
ACORN 

2 
ACORN 

3 
ACORN 

4 
ACORN 

5 
ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

RECYCLABLE PAPER 73.72% 83.14% 72.96% 72.49% 59.96% 84.58% 83.29% 76.73% 

RECYCLABLE CARD & 
CARDBOARD 72.89% 77.28% 72.19% 77.83% 66.54% 82.21% 81.76% 72.67% 

PLASTIC BOTTLES 53.80% 75.57% 82.58% 73.38% 83.76% 83.16% 62.63% 78.24% 

COLOURED GLASS 
BOTTLES & JARS 100.00% 87.60% 99.09% 88.53% 93.66% 72.18% 80.07% 91.55% 

CLEAR GLASS BOTTLES 91.08% 86.29% 70.26% 89.58% 90.54% 81.91% 74.03% 82.40% 

CLEAR GLASS JARS 79.37% 60.32% 96.72% N/A 74.00% 86.58% 65.68% 75.68% 

ALL RECYCLABLE 
GLASS 91.20% 83.29% 89.45% 89.15% 89.05% 78.94% 73.64% 86.53% 

DRINK CANS 67.43% 75.29% 75.31% 82.71% 63.14% 64.51% 68.55% 71.54% 

FOOD TINS 88.57% 51.11% 78.10% 73.66% 70.06% 75.17% 65.10% 65.51% 

AEROSOLS 100.00% 35.30% 71.44% 61.23% 46.61% 52.05% 43.96% 51.30% 

OTHER RECYCLABLE 
METALS 19.96% 7.86% 25.61% 26.29% 12.14% 29.91% 63.26% 14.45% 

ALL RECYCLABLE 
METALS 78.80% 47.98% 69.56% 73.66% 59.18% 62.96% 63.49% 58.87% 

ALL BLUE BIN 
MATERIALS 72.69% 79.14% 78.60% 77.33% 69.48% 77.35% 58.45% 76.55% 

% DIVERSION 15.19% 30.96% 21.27% 21.04% 18.11% 21.66% 22.01% 23.69% 

Page 168



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 41 - 

5.3.1 Paper Capture 

Acorn 2 residents captured the highest proportion of their recyclable paper with 82% correctly being 

recycled; they generated 1.73kg/hh/wk of this material. Residents in communal bin areas captured the least 

recyclable paper at 56% additionally they also generated the most of this recyclable paper at 2.19kg/hh/wk.   

 

Across Cambridge it is estimated that 1.50kg/hh/wk of recyclable paper is generated with around 76% 

being correctly placed into the blue bin*.   

 

There are many different forms of paper and decisions have to be made by residents as to whether a 

particular piece of paper is to go into the recycling or residual waste.  On average, the majority of all 

recyclable forms of paper are being correctly diverted by all the residents sampled although there is around 

0.36kg/hh/wk of potentially recyclable paper not being placed into blue bins. On average 23% of recyclable 

paper is in the residual bin with 1% in the organic bin.  Figure 5.3.2.1 shows the distribution of recyclable 

paper throughout the residual and recycling waste by Acorn category. 

 

Figure 5.3.1.1: Distribution of recyclable paper within residual and mixed recycling samples (kg/hh/wk) 

 

0.00

0.25

0.50

0.75

1.00

1.25

1.50

1.75

2.00

2.25

2.50

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL   WEIGHTED
AV.

RECYCLABLE PAPER BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE PAPER RESIDUAL BIN RECYCLABLE PAPER ORGANIC BIN

 
* This capture rate includes the paper disposed of in the organics bin.  Although it is preferential that 
recyclable paper is put into the blue bin it is acceptable for the green bin.  Shredded paper is only 
acceptable in green bins.  

Page 169



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 42 - 

5.3.2 Card & Cardboard Capture 

Acorn 2 residents captured the highest proportion of their recyclable card & cardboard with 73% correctly 

being recycled; they generated 0.52kg/hh/wk of this material. Residents in communal bin areas captured 

the least at less than 44% additionally they also generated the most of this recyclable card & cardboard at 

1.30kg/hh/wk.   

 

Across Cambridge it is estimated that 0.67kg/hh/wk of recyclable paper is generated with around 65% 

being correctly placed into the blue bin*.   

 

As for paper,  are many different forms of card & cardboard and decisions have to be made by residents as 

to whether a particular piece is to go into the recycling or residual waste.  With the exception of residents in 

the communal bin sample, the majority of all recyclable forms of card & cardboard are being correctly 

diverted by all the residents surveyed although there is around 0.24kg/hh/wk of potentially recyclable card & 

cardboard not being placed into blue bins. On average 27% of recyclable card & cardboard is in the 

residual bin with 8% in the organic bin.  Figure 5.3.3.1 shows the distribution of recyclable card & cardboard 

throughout the residual and recycling waste by Acorn category. 

 

Figure 5.3.2.1: Distribution of recyclable card within residual and mixed recycling samples (kg/hh/wk) 

0.00

0.25

0.50

0.75

1.00

1.25

1.50

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL   WEIGHTED
AV.

RECYCLABLE CARD BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE CARD RESIDUAL BIN RECYCLABLE CARD ORGANIC BIN

 

* This capture rate includes certain card disposed of in the organics bin.  Although it is preferential that 
recyclable card & cardboard is put into the blue bin it is acceptable for the green bin.  Tetrapaks are only 
acceptable in blue bins.  

Page 170



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 43 - 

5.3.3 Plastic Bottles Capture 

Acorn 5 residents captured the highest proportion of their recyclable plastic bottles with 84% correctly being 

recycled; they generated 0.26kg/hh/wk of this material. Residents in Acorn 1 areas captured the least 

recyclable paper at 54% additionally they generated 0.19kg/hh/wk.   

 

Across Cambridge it is estimated that 0.23kg/hh/wk of recyclable plastic bottles are generated with around 

78% being correctly placed into the blue bin.   

 

Plastic bottles are easily identifiable when compared with other non-recyclable plastics.  The majority of all 

recyclable plastic bottles are being correctly diverted by all the residents surveyed and there is just 

0.05kg/hh/wk of these bottles not being placed into blue bins. On average 22% of recyclable plastic bottles 

are in the residual bin.  Figure 5.3.3.1 shows the distribution of recyclable plastic bottles throughout the 

residual and recycling waste by Acorn category. 

 

Figure 5.3.3.1: Distribution of recyclable plastic bottles within residual and mixed recycling samples (kg/hh/wk) 

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL   WEIGHTED
AV.

RECYCLABLE PLASTIC BOTTLES ORGANIC BIN

RECYCLABLE PLASTIC BOTTLES RESIDUAL BIN

RECYCLABLE PLASTIC BOTTLES BLUE BIN

Page 171



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 44 - 

5.3.4 Glass Capture 

 

Acorn 1 residents captured the highest proportion of their recyclable glass with 91% correctly being 

recycled, while residents from communal bin areas captured 74%. Acorn 3 residents produced the most 

recyclable glass in their combined kerbside waste at 1.76kg/hh/wk compared with 0.48kg/hh/wk from Acorn 

1. On average, 87% of all recyclable glass is being correctly diverted by the Cambridge residents sampled 

with around 1.23kg/hh/wk being sampled. 

 

Overall capture rates for coloured glass bottles were 92% with 82% of clear glass bottles similarly captured.  

Clear glass is generally considered to be more highly valued as a recyclate and it was seen that just 76% of 

glass jars were captured.   It is often seen to be the case that empty jars are more messy than empty 

bottles and residents may not clean them for recycling, thus choosing to place them in the residual bins.   

On average, the vast majority of all recyclable forms of glass are being correctly diverted by the residents 

sampled although there is around 13% or 0.16kg/hh/wk of potentially recyclable glass not being placed into 

blue bins.  Figure 5.3.4.1 shows the distribution of recyclable glass throughout the residual and mixed 

recycling waste. 

 

Figure 5.3.4.1: Distribution of recyclable glass within residual and mixed recycling samples (kg/hh/wk)  

 

0.00

0.20

0.40

0.60

0.80

1.00

1.20

1.40

1.60

1.80

2.00

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL   WEIGHTED
AV.

RECYCLABLE GLASS BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE GLASS RESIDUAL BIN RECYCLABLE GLASS ORGANIC BIN

 

Page 172



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 45 - 

5.3.5 Metals Capture 

 

Acorn 1 residents captured the highest proportion of their recyclable metals with 79% correctly being 

recycled, while residents from Acorn 2 captured just 48%. Acorn 3 and communal bin users produced the 

most recyclable metals in their combined kerbside waste at 0.33kg/hh/wk compared with 0.15kg/hh/wk from 

Acorn 1. On average, 59% of all recyclable metals are being correctly diverted by Cambridge residents 

sampled with around 0.23kg/hh/wk being generated. 

 

Overall capture rates for drinks cans were 72%, with 66% of food tins recycled. It is often seen to be the 

case that residents are unwilling to clean out food tins before recycling and this can lead to low capture 

rates when compared with cleaner drinks cans. Capture rates for empty aerosols were seen to be lower 

with just 51% of those available being placed into recycling containers. With the exception of Acorn 2 

residents, the majority of all recyclable forms of metals are being correctly diverted, although there is around 

0.09kg/hh/wk of potentially recyclable metal not being placed into blue bins. On average 41% of recyclable 

metal are in the residual bin. Figure 5.3.5.1 shows the distribution of recyclable metals throughout the 

residual and mixed recycling waste. 

 

Figure 5.3.5.1: Distribution of recyclable metals within residual and mixed recycling samples (kg/hh/wk)  

 

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL   WEIGHTED
AV.

RECYCLABLE METALS BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE METALS RESIDUAL BIN RECYCLABLE METALS ORGANIC BIN

 

Page 173



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 4
6 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 5

.3
.5

.2
: S

um
m

ar
y 

ch
ar

t o
f c

ap
tu

re
 r

at
es

 fo
r 

bl
ue

 b
in

 r
ec

yc
la

bl
es

.  

14
%

51
%

66
%

72
%73
%76

%77
%78
%82

%

92
%

0%
10

%
20

%
30

%
40

%
50

%
60

%
70

%
80

%
90

%
10

0%

O
TH

ER
 R

EC
Y

CL
A

BL
E 

M
ET

A
LS

A
ER

O
SO

LS

FO
O

D 
TI

NS

DR
IN

K 
CA

NS

RE
CY

CL
A

BL
E 

CA
RD

 &
 C

A
RD

BO
A

RD

CL
EA

R 
G

LA
SS

 J
A

RS

RE
CY

CL
A

BL
E 

PA
PE

R

PL
A

ST
IC

 B
O

TT
LE

S

CL
EA

R 
G

LA
SS

 B
O

TT
LE

S

CO
LO

UR
ED

 G
LA

SS
 B

O
TT

LE
S 

& 
JA

RS

 

 

Page 174



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 47 - 

5.4 Blue Bin Recycling Contamination 

 

From Table 5.2.1 it has been shown that on average 6.4% of blue bin recycling is made up of 

contamination. This equates to around 0.20kg/hh/wk.  This section looks to breakdown the amounts and 

concentrations of various contaminants being placed into the recycling waste in Cambridge. 

 

Some forms of contamination may be due to residents’ lack of knowledge in relation to the recycling 

scheme. For example a householder may believe all plastic containers are accepted alongside recyclable 

plastic bottles. Other contamination will be formed from waste that is totally unrelated to the materials 

collected (i.e. disposable nappies, wood or bagged kitchen waste). Table 5.4.1 and Figure 5.4.1 show the 

amounts of contamination materials recovered from the blue bin.  

 

The blue bin contained between 0.11kg/hh/wk (Acorn 2) and 0.54kg/hh/wk (communal bin households) of 

contamination.   

 

 

Table 5.4.1: Breakdown of contamination materials in the blue bin recycling waste (kg/hh/wk) 

 

BLUE BIN 
CONTAMINATION 

KG/HH/WK 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PAPER & CARD 0.04 0.03 0.06 0.04 0.13 0.04 0.06 0.06 

PLASTIC FILM 0.01 0.01 0.04 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.02 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PLASTICS 0.09 0.04 0.07 0.14 0.08 0.11 0.19 0.06 

TEXTILES 0.00 0.01 0.03 0.06 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
GLASS 

0.00 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.00 <0.01 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
METALS 0.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.01 <0.01 

FOOD WASTE 0.00 0.01 0.02 0.10 0.08 0.01 0.07 0.03 

LIQUIDS 0.01 0.00 0.01 0.04 0.00 0.00 0.02 <0.01 

ALL OTHER 
CONTAMINATION 0.01 0.00 0.04 0.00 0.04 0.01 0.17 0.02 

TOTAL 
CONTAMINATION 0.20 0.11 0.27 0.39 0.34 0.20 0.54 0.20 

 

Page 175



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 4
8 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 5

.4
.1

: B
re

ak
do

w
n 

of
 c

on
ta

m
in

at
io

n 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 p
re

se
nt

 w
ith

in
 b

lu
e 

bi
n 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
co

nt
ai

ne
rs

 (k
g/

hh
/w

k)
. 

0
.0

0

0
.1

0

0
.2

0

0
.3

0

0
.4

0

0
.5

0

0
.6

0

A
C

O
R

N
 1

A
C

O
R

N
 2

A
C

O
R

N
 3

A
C

O
R

N
 4

A
C

O
R

N
 5

A
C

O
R

N
 5

(L
P

A
)

C
O

M
M

U
N

A
L

  
W

E
IG

H
T
E
D

A
V

.

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P

E
R

 &
 C

A
R

D
P
L
A

S
T
IC

 F
IL

M
N

O
N

-R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

L
A

S
T
IC

S
T
E
X

T
IL

E
S

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 G

L
A

S
S

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

 M
E
T
A

L
S

F
O

O
D

 W
A

S
T
E

L
IQ

U
ID

S
A

L
L
 O

T
H

E
R

 C
O

N
T
A

M
IN

A
T
IO

N

Page 176



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 49 - 

Table 5.4.2 shows the levels of contamination materials recovered from the blue bin as a percentage of the 

total.   On average 6.4% of blue bin recycling is deemed to be contamination.  Almost 4% of contamination 

is due to non-recyclable plastic containers, paper and card.  Just over 3% of Acorn 2 recycling was classed 

as contamination compared with over 14% of that from households on communal bins.    

 

Table 5.4.2: Levels of contamination within the blue bin recycling waste (% of total) 

 

BLUE BIN 
CONTAMINATION % 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PAPER & CARD 1.84% 0.90% 1.67% 1.35% 4.23% 1.61% 1.52% 1.82% 

PLASTIC FILM 0.39% 0.39% 1.07% 0.33% 0.43% 0.70% 0.53% 0.54% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PLASTICS 3.65% 1.42% 1.75% 4.71% 2.68% 4.25% 5.04% 1.98% 

TEXTILES 0.00% 0.17% 0.88% 1.96% 0.02% 0.17% 0.00% 0.35% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
GLASS 0.05% 0.25% 0.04% 0.00% 0.10% 0.40% 0.00% 0.16% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
METALS 1.52% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.50% 0.13% 0.08% 

FOOD WASTE 0.00% 0.31% 0.49% 3.54% 2.54% 0.23% 1.90% 0.89% 

LIQUIDS 0.42% 0.00% 0.26% 1.27% 0.00% 0.00% 0.57% 0.12% 

ALL OTHER 
CONTAMINATION 0.44% 0.00% 1.01% 0.07% 1.14% 0.21% 4.53% 0.48% 

TOTAL 
CONTAMINATION 8.32% 3.43% 7.18% 13.23% 11.15% 8.06% 14.22% 6.42% 

 

 

Page 177



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 50 - 

Table 5.4.3 and Figure 5.4.2 show a breakdown of the contaminants to highlight materials causing the 

greatest contribution to the overall contamination levels within blue bins. Around 31% of the contamination 

was due to non-recyclable dense plastics, these formed over half of the contamination from Acorn 5(LPA) 

households.  Over 28% of contamination was due to non-recyclable paper and card; this formed almost 

40% of Acorn 5 contamination.  Up to 14% of contamination was formed from food waste and this material 

represented a quarter of the overall contamination from Acorn 4 and 5 households.  

 

Blue bins from communal households had very high levels of miscellaneous contamination at 32% of the 

total.  These items are typical of general residual waste being placed into recycling bins.  

 

Table 5.4.3: Proportional breakdown of blue bin contaminants (% of contamination).  

 

% OF 
CONTAMINANTS 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PAPER & CARD 22.09% 26.25% 23.24% 10.23% 37.98% 19.92% 10.70% 28.31% 

PLASTIC FILM 4.74% 11.25% 14.85% 2.49% 3.87% 8.66% 3.70% 8.48% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PLASTICS 43.90% 41.25% 24.42% 35.58% 24.04% 52.71% 35.46% 30.78% 

TEXTILES 0.00% 4.86% 12.28% 14.84% 0.21% 2.16% 0.00% 5.38% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
GLASS 0.64% 7.36% 0.62% 0.00% 0.88% 4.96% 0.00% 2.43% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
METALS 18.22% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 6.17% 0.92% 1.27% 

FOOD WASTE 0.00% 9.03% 6.80% 26.73% 22.82% 2.86% 13.33% 13.94% 

LIQUIDS 5.09% 0.00% 3.68% 9.59% 0.00% 0.00% 4.04% 1.91% 

ALL OTHER 
CONTAMINATION 5.32% 0.00% 14.12% 0.55% 10.19% 2.55% 31.86% 7.52% 

TOTAL 
CONTAMINATION 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

 

 

 

Page 178



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 5
1 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 5

.4
.2

: P
ro

po
rt

io
na

l b
re

ak
do

w
n 

of
 b

lu
e 

bi
n 

co
nt

am
in

an
ts

 (%
 o

f c
on

ta
m

in
at

io
n)

.  

0
%

1
0
%

2
0
%

3
0
%

4
0
%

5
0
%

6
0
%

7
0
%

8
0
%

9
0
%

1
0
0
%

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

A
L
L
 O

T
H

E
R

 C
O

N
T
A

M
IN

A
T
IO

N

L
IQ

U
ID

S

F
O

O
D

 W
A

S
T
E

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

 M
E
T

A
L
S

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

 G
L
A

S
S

T
E
X

T
IL

E
S

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

 P
L
A

S
T

IC
S

P
L
A

S
T
IC

 F
IL

M

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

 P
A

P
E

R
 &

C
A

R
D

Page 179



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 52 - 

6)   Green Bin Organic Recycling Waste 

 

6.1 Set out rates and waste generation 

 

Table 6.1.1 and Figure 6.1.1 highlight the average set out rates for green bin organic recycling waste 

observed during the compositional analysis. Table 6.1.2 and Figure 6.1.2 show the average amounts of this 

recycling waste generated in kg/hh/wk.  Set out rates ranged between 50% for Acorn 4 and 65% for Acorn 

5(LPA) were observed.  Across Cambridge around 58% of residents are opting to place out organic waste 

containers for collection. 

 

Table 6.1.1: Average Set Out For Green Bin Waste (%)  

 

ACORN % SET OUT 

1 61% 

2 57% 

3 63% 

4 50% 

5 56% 

5 (LPA) 65% 

COMMUNAL N/A 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE 58% 

 
 

Figure 6.1.1: Average Set Out For Green Bin Waste (%) 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

 

Page 180



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 53 - 

In this survey the amount of green bin recycling generated ranged between 1.86kg/hh/wk from Acorn 2 to 

7.66kg/hh/wk from Acorn 1. Across Cambridge around 2.96kg/hh/wk organically recycled waste is being 

collected from the kerbside. 

 

Table 6.1.2: Average green bin waste generation rates (kg/hh/wk) 

 

ACORN KG/HH/WK 

1 7.66 

2 1.86 

3 4.95 

4 2.71 

5 2.27 

5 (LPA) 3.13 

COMMUNAL 2.69 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE 2.96 

 

 
 

Figure 6.1.2: Average green bin waste generation rates (kg/hh/wk)  

 

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

7.00

8.00

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

 

 

 

 

Page 181



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 54 - 

6.2 Compositional analysis of green recycling bins 

 

This section looks at the average amount and composition of the green bin organic recycling waste 

presented by participating households sampled throughout Cambridge. Results can again be expressed in 

terms of percentage concentration and kg/hh/wk for individual samples and in relation to the household 

Acorn surveyed. 

 

Table 6.2.1 and Figure 6.2.1 show green bin recycling data in terms of percentage composition with Table 

6.2.2 and Figure 6.2.2 showing average generation rates for major materials in terms of kg/hh/wk. As 

residual waste will contain a proportion that is classified as potentially recyclable; then recycling waste will 

contain a faction that is deemed to be contamination.  That is to say that it is not compatible with the 

materials currently acceptable to the green bin recycling scheme.  

 

Table 6.2.1: Average Composition of organic recycling (% concentration) by Acorn 

 

ORGANIC RECYCLING 
KG/HH/WK 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) 

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 
AV. 

HOME COMPOSTABLE 
FOODS 

2.50% 1.99% 11.17% 10.82% 6.71% 2.90% 25.30% 5.93% 

NON-HOME 
COMPOSTABLE FOODS 0.66% 15.64% 3.09% 7.53% 0.88% 9.13% 1.41% 6.38% 

FLORA ORGANICS 92.93% 79.43% 81.99% 74.25% 77.77% 72.68% 0.39% 82.30% 

OTHER ACCEPTABLE 
ORGANICS 3.67% 2.83% 1.24% 2.73% 4.95% 13.64% 41.62% 2.84% 

SOIL & TURF 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 4.22% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.13% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PAPER & CARD 

0.00% 0.11% 0.02% 0.08% 0.13% 1.01% 8.60% 0.06% 

PLASTICS 0.00% 0.00% 0.02% 0.00% 0.07% 0.00% 6.17% 0.02% 

TEXTILES 0.24% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 3.37% 0.00% 2.21% 0.59% 

GLASS 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.53% 0.00% 

METALS 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.25% 0.00% 

ALL OTHER WASTE 0.00% 0.00% 2.47% 0.36% 6.13% 0.64% 13.52% 1.75% 

TOTAL 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 

 

Page 182



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 55 - 

Table 6.2.2: Average Composition of organic recycling (kg/hh/wk) by Acorn 

 

 

ORGANIC RECYCLING 
KG/HH/WK 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

HOME COMPOSTABLE 
FOODS 0.19 0.04 0.55 0.29 0.15 0.09 0.68 0.18 

NON-HOME 
COMPOSTABLE FOODS 0.05 0.29 0.15 0.20 0.02 0.29 0.04 0.19 

FLORA ORGANICS 7.12 1.48 4.06 2.01 1.77 2.28 0.01 2.43 

OTHER ACCEPTABLE 
ORGANICS 

0.28 0.05 0.06 0.07 0.11 0.43 1.12 0.08 

SOIL & TURF 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PAPER & CARD 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.03 0.23 0.00 

PLASTICS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.17 0.00 

TEXTILES 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.08 0.00 0.06 0.02 

GLASS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.00 

METALS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.00 

ALL OTHER WASTE 0.00 0.00 0.12 0.01 0.14 0.02 0.36 0.05 

TOTAL 7.66 1.86 4.95 2.71 2.27 3.13 2.69 2.96 

Page 183



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 5
6 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 6

.2
.1

: A
ve

ra
ge

 C
om

po
si

tio
n 

of
 o

rg
an

ic
 r

ec
yc

lin
g 

(%
 b

y 
w

ei
gh

t) 
by

 A
co

rn
 

0
%

1
0
%

2
0
%

3
0
%

4
0
%

5
0
%

6
0
%

7
0
%

8
0
%

9
0
%

1
0
0
%

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

A
L
L
 O

T
H

E
R

 W
A

S
T
E

M
E
T
A

L
S

G
L
A

S
S

T
E
X

T
IL

E
S

P
L
A

S
T
IC

S

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P
E
R

&
 C

A
R

D

S
O

IL
 &

 T
U

R
F

O
T
H

E
R

 A
C

C
E
P
T
A

B
L
E

O
R

G
A

N
IC

S

F
L
O

R
A

 O
R

G
A

N
IC

S

N
O

N
-H

O
M

E
 C

O
M

P
O

S
T
A

B
L
E

F
O

O
D

S

H
O

M
E
 C

O
M

P
O

S
T
A

B
L
E

F
O

O
D

S

 

Page 184



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 5
7 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 6

.2
.2

: C
om

po
si

tio
n 

of
 o

rg
an

ic
 r

ec
yc

lin
g 

(k
g/

hh
/w

k)
 b

y 
A

co
rn

 

 

0
.0

1
.0

2
.0

3
.0

4
.0

5
.0

6
.0

7
.0

8
.0

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5
 (L

PA
)

C
O

M
M
U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

A
L
L
 O

T
H

E
R

 W
A

S
T
E

M
E
T
A

L
S

G
L
A

S
S

T
E
X

T
IL

E
S

P
L
A

S
T
IC

S

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P
E
R

&
 C

A
R

D

S
O

IL
 &

 T
U

R
F

O
T
H

E
R

 A
C

C
E
P
T
A

B
L
E

O
R

G
A

N
IC

S

F
L
O

R
A

 O
R

G
A

N
IC

S

N
O

N
-H

O
M

E
 C

O
M

P
O

S
T
A

B
L
E

F
O

O
D

S

H
O

M
E
 C

O
M

P
O

S
T
A

B
L
E

F
O

O
D

S

Page 185



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 58 - 

6.3 Materials placed out for green bin recycling collections 

 

This chapter looks in more detail at the individual materials placed out for green bin recycling collections 

and highlights the effectiveness with which this scheme is capturing these items.  Looking at the 

relationship between the residual, dry recycling and green bin recycling waste presented will additionally 

give indications as to the overall diversion being achieved throughout Cambridge. 

 

Table 6.3.1: Summary table for material capture and diversion rates (%) for green bin recycling 

 

CAPTURE & 
DIVERSION 
RATES (%) 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

HOME COMPOSTABLE 
FOODS 46.37% 4.67% 58.24% 38.15% 24.18% 14.92% 46.36% 23.12% 

NON-HOME 
COMPOSTABLE 

FOODS* 
9.71% 35.45% 15.16% 13.65% 1.61% 25.11% 3.37% 20.00% 

ALL FOOD WASTE 25.96% 20.33% 36.04% 21.97% 9.25% 21.56% 27.69% 21.39% 

FLORA ORGANICS 98.55% 93.12% 100.00% 96.06% 98.29% 91.73% 7.40% 97.15% 

PET BEDDING & 
UNTREATED WOOD 100.00% N/A N/A 0.00% N/A 100.00% 100.00% 75.69% 

ACCEPTABLE PAPER & 
CARD 4.14% 2.37% 3.07% 4.56% 5.27% 7.22% 32.03% 3.28% 

ALL ORGANICS 90.49% 56.22% 79.01% 52.97% 52.93% 65.41% 27.50% 66.27% 

% DIVERSION 53.76% 19.36% 28.89% 21.23% 13.54% 28.75% 12.45% 23.10% 

 

* Contains all unidentifiable and unsortable composite food waste.  Some of this will be home compostable 

fragments, however, due to a significant proportion being non fruit and vegetable waste; this faction is 

deemed non-home compostable.  

 

Table 6.3.1 summarises the average capture and diversion rates seen for materials achieved for the green 

bin organic recycling collections. By far the most efficient recyclers of organic waste were Acorn 1 

households who recycled over 90% of that being generated.  Acorn 3 households captured over 79% of 

their organics whilst the rate for Acorns 2, 4 and 5 was between 53% and 56%.  IN contrast it was seen that 

residents in communal bin areas only managed to capture 27.5% of the organic waste that they were 

disposing of.  Across Cambridge, 66.3% of the organics available for green bin recycling were correctly 

captured by participating households.   

Page 186



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 59 - 

6.3.1 Paper & Card Capture 

 

Residents are able to recycle paper, thin card and corrugated cardboard in their green bins. It is however 

the case that with the exception of shredded paper, it is preferable for these recyclables to be placed into 

blue recycling bins.  

 

Figure 6.3.1.1. shows the distribution of recyclable paper, card and cardboard throughout the three kerbside 

schemes by Acorn category.  It is clear that residents using communal bins not only generate the most 

recyclable paper and card; they also place by far the highest proportion in their green bins at 32%.  

Typically between 2% and 5% of all recyclable paper and card was present in green bins for Acorns 1 – 5 

with just over 7% seen for the Acorn 5(LPA) sample.  

 

Figure 6.3.1.1   Distribution of recyclable paper & card within residual and recycling samples (kg/hh/wk) 

 

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

ACORN 1

ACORN 2

ACORN 3

ACORN 4

ACORN 5

ACORN 5 
(L

PA)

COMMUNAL

  W
EIG

HTED A
V.

RECYCLABLE PAPER &
CARD - RESIDUAL BIN

RECYCLABLE PAPER &
CARD - BLUE BIN

RECYCLABLE PAPER &
CARD - GREEN BIN

 
 

 

 

 

Page 187



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 60 - 

6.3.2 Garden Waste Capture 

Residents are able to recycle garden clippings in their green bins. With the exception of the communal bin 

residents it was seen that garden waste was by far the greatest constituent of the presented organic 

recycling.    Just 7% of garden waste was captured in communal bins areas although very little of this type 

of waste is actually generated.  On average it is seen that over 97% of the available garden waste is 

recycled by Cambridge residents.  All Acorns recorded capture rates of between 92% and 100%.   

 

It is seen that communal bin households generated just 0.13kg/hh/wk of recyclable garden waste compared 

with 7.23kg/hh/wk from Acorn 1 households.  On average residents throughout Cambridge create 

2.51kg/hh/wk of recyclable garden waste.   

 

Soil and turf are also classed as garden waste but are not allowable in green bins. This waste was only 

generated in low amounts across Cambridge (0.02kg/hh/wk) with around 22% ending up in green bins.  

 

 

Figure 6.3.2.1. Distribution of garden waste within residual and recycling samples (kg/hh/wk)  

 

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

ACO
RN 1

ACORN 2

ACORN 3

ACO
RN 4

ACORN 5

ACORN 5 
(L

PA)

CO
MMUNAL

  W
EIG

HTED A
V.

RECYCLABLE GARDEN
WASTE - RESIDUAL BIN

RECYCLABLE GARDEN
WASTE - BLUE BIN

RECYCLABLE GARDEN
WASTE - GREEN BIN

 

 

 

 

Page 188



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 61 - 

6.3.3 Food Waste Capture 

Residents are able to all forms of food waste in their green bins. Capture rates were seen to vary greatly 

across the samples taken.  Food waste can broadly be divided into two types.  Firstly ‘home-compostable’ 

which covers things like raw fruit and vegetable waste, egg shells, tea bags etc which could potentially be 

composted in standard compost bins.  Non-home compostable food are generally cooked and prepared 

foods and plate scrapings which residents would not normally compost with their garden, fruit and 

vegetable wastes.   

 

Overall capture rates for all food waste varied at between 9.3% in Acorn 5 up to 36% in Acorn 3.  This 

represented an average figure of 21.4% for Cambridge.    Acorn 1 households produced just 0.93kg/hh/wk 

of total food waste compared with 2.59kg/hh/wk from communal bin households.  On average Cambridge 

residents are producing of 1.70kg/hh/wk of food waste.   

 

As well as differences in the levels and capture rates for food waste between the Acorn samples, there was 

a significant difference between the types of food being recycled.  Home compostable food waste is 

generally less ‘messy’ than non-home compostable food waste and was seen to have capture rates of 

between 4.7% (Acorn 2) and 58.2% (Acorn 3) at an average of 23.1%.  Conversely capture rates for non-

home compostable food waste were lower at between 1.6% (Acorn 5) and 35.5% (Acorn 2); an average of 

20%.   

 

In terms of diversion solely through the green bin recycling it is seen that just 12.5% diversion is achieved 

by communal bin users compared with almost 54% for Acorn 1.  Overall this is an average diversion of 

23.1% which is very similar to that recorded for blue bins.  Total diversion rates for the combined recycling 

collections are shown in section 7.   

 

With the exception of communal bin users, all sample areas were seen to generate more non-home 

compostable food waste than home compostable food waste at average figures of 0.94kg/hh/wk and 

0.76kg/hh/wk respectively.  During the sorting of the waste it is the method to class some of the food waste 

as unidentifiable or unsortable.  This is basically a degraded mixture of foods which are recyclable and are 

classified as non-compostable as will contain waste other than fruit and vegetable matter.   

 

Figure 6.3.3.1 shows the distribution and levels of food waste throughout the residual and green bin 

containers. Overall, 0.58kg/hh/wk of home compostable and 0.75kg/hh/wk of non-home composable food 

waste is not being recycled in the green bins.  This represents a total of 1.34kg/hh/wk of potentially 

recyclable material.  

Page 189



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 6
2 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 6

.3
.2

.1
. D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

of
 fo

od
 w

as
te

 w
ith

in
 r

es
id

ua
l a

nd
 r

ec
yc

lin
g 

sa
m

pl
es

 (k
g/

hh
/w

k)
  

0
.0

0
.5

1
.0

1
.5

2
.0

2
.5

3
.0

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O
R
N
 3

AC
O
R
N
 4

AC
O
R
N
 5

AC
O
R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O
M

M
U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

N
O

N
-H

O
M

E
 C

O
M

P
O

S
T

A
B

L
E

F
O

O
D

S
 -

 R
E
S

ID
U

A
L
 B

IN

H
O

M
E

 C
O

M
P
O

S
T

A
B

L
E

F
O

O
D

S
 -

 R
E
S

ID
U

A
L
 B

IN

A
L

L
 F

O
O

D
 W

A
S

T
E

 -
 B

L
U

E
B

IN

N
O

N
-H

O
M

E
 C

O
M

P
O

S
T

A
B

L
E

F
O

O
D

S
 -

 G
R

E
E
N

 B
IN

H
O

M
E

 C
O

M
P
O

S
T

A
B

L
E

F
O

O
D

S
 -

 G
R

E
E
N

 B
IN

Page 190



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 63 - 

6.4 Green Bin Recycling Contamination 

 

From Table 6.2.1 it has been shown that between 0.1% (Acorn 2) and 31.3% (communal bin users) of 

collected green bin recycling is due to contamination. Across Cambridge approximately 2.6% of green bin 

recycling waste was not compatible with the accepted materials, equating to 0.08kg/hh/wk. This section 

looks to breakdown the amounts and concentrations of various contaminants being placed into the green 

bin recycling waste in Cambridge.  

 

Table 6.4.1 and Figures 6.4.1 and 6.4.2 show the proportions of contamination materials in each area. 

 

Table 6.4.1: Percentage breakdown of contamination in green bin waste 

 

% BREAKDOWN OF 
CONTAMINANTS 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

SOIL & TURF 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 90.45% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 5.28% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PAPER & CARD 0.00% 100.00% 0.65% 1.77% 1.31% 61.27% 27.50% 2.47% 

PLASTICS 0.00% 0.00% 0.65% 0.00% 0.76% 0.00% 19.71% 0.66% 

TEXTILES 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 34.71% 0.00% 7.07% 22.96% 

GLASS 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 1.70% <0.01% 

METALS 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.79% <0.01% 

ALL OTHER WASTE 0.00% 0.00% 98.70% 7.78% 63.22% 38.73% 43.22% 68.63% 

TOTAL 
CONTAMINATION 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

CONTAMINATION 
KG/HH/WK 0.02 0.00 0.12 0.13 0.22 0.05 0.84 0.08 

% CONTAMINATION  0.24% 0.11% 2.50% 4.67% 9.70% 1.64% 31.28% 2.55% 

 

 

 

 

Page 191



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 64 - 

Figure 6.4.1: Contamination materials in green bin recycling 

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.9

ACORN 1

ACORN 2

ACORN 3

ACORN 4

ACORN 5

ACO
RN 5 

(L
PA)

COMMUNAL

  W
EIG

HTED A
V.

ALL OTHER WASTE

METALS

GLASS

TEXTILES

PLASTICS

NON-RECYCLABLE PAPER
& CARD

SOIL & TURF

 
 

Figure 6.4.2: % breakdown of contaminants within green recycling bins 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

ACORN 1

ACORN 2

ACORN 3

ACORN 4

ACORN 5

ACORN 5 
(L

PA)

COMMUNAL

  W
EIG

HTED A
V.

ALL OTHER WASTE

METALS

GLASS

TEXTILES

PLASTICS

NON-RECYCLABLE PAPER
& CARD

SOIL & TURF

 

Page 192



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 65 - 

Overall it was seen that 68.8% of the contamination was due to miscellaneous other waste.  This would be 

a mixture of general waste that can generally be considered to be residual waste.  This material formed up 

to 99% of the contamination seen in Acorn 3 green bins.  Up to 23% of contamination was due to textile 

waste.  Around 35% of Acorn 5 green bin contamination was due to waste textiles.  All of the contamination 

in Acorn 2 green bins was due to non-recyclable paper and card and over 90% of the contamination in 

Acorn 4 was due to soil and turf.  Combined these wastes formed just under 8% of the contamination.  

 

The composition of the organic recycling collected from households using communal bins was markedly 

different from all of the other samples.  Of the 2.69kg/hh/wk presented up to 0.84kg/hh/wk or 31.3% was 

due to contaminants; this was far greater than any of the other samples.  A wide range of contaminants 

including general residual waste, glass, metal and plastic were seen in these recycling bins and they 

appear to be used by residents as general waste disposal containers.  These bins also contain significantly 

more paper and cardboard waste than other sample surveyed.  

 

 

Figure 6.4.3 % breakdown of contaminants within green recycling bins from communal users 

 

GLASS
0.5%

METALS
0.2%

ALL OTHER WASTE
13.5%

TEXTILES
2.2%

PLASTICS
6.2%

OTHER ORGANICS
1.2%

GARDEN WASTE
0.4%

FOOD WASTE
26.7%

ACCEPTABLE 
PAPER & CARD

40.4%

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PAPER & CARD

8.6%

 
 

 

Page 193



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 66 - 

 

7)    Overall Diversion through Recycling Collections 

 

7.1 Total waste generation levels & diversion 

 

Capture rates determine how much of a material that should be recycled actually is being recycled. 

Diversion rates show the percentage of total generated waste produced from an area that is being 

‘Diverted’ via the available recycling stream(s). 

 

Table 7.1.1 and Figure 7.1.1 show the total waste generation (residual, blue bin and green bin recycling) for 

each of areas sampled. Acorn 2 produced the lowest levels of total waste at 9.59kg/hh/wk with the 

households from Acorn 3 generating the most at 16.71kg/hh/wk.  Across Cambridge it is estimated that the 

weekly output of kerbside waste is 12.48kg/hh/wk.  

 

Table 7.1.2 and Figure 7.1.2 show the proportion of this total waste that is being diverted through the 

various kerbside recycling collections. Using the blue and green recycling bins, Cambridge residents are 

diverting an average of 46.8% of all waste generated at the kerbside.  Residents from Acorn 1 were 

managing to divert almost 69% of their waste compared with 50% for Acorns 2 and 3, 42% for Acorn 4 and 

32% for Acorn 5.  The low performing Acorn 5 area residents also diverted around 50% of their waste with 

households using communal bins diverting around 34.5%. 

 

Table 7.1.1: Average annual waste generation levels by Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

TOTAL KERBSIDE 
WASTE (KG/HH/WK) 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

RESIDUAL WASTE 4.20 4.66 7.93 6.50 9.80 5.06 8.33 6.36 

BLUE BIN RECYCLING 2.36 3.07 3.83 2.95 3.09 2.52 3.80 3.16 

GREEN BIN 
RECYCLING 7.66 1.86 4.95 2.71 2.27 3.13 2.69 2.96 

TOTAL WASTE 14.22 9.59 16.71 12.16 15.17 10.71 14.82 12.48 

 

Page 194



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 67 - 

Figure 7.1.1: Total waste generation levels by Acorn (kg/hh/wk)  

0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL   WEIGHTED
AV.

RESIDUAL WASTE BLUE BIN RECYCLING GREEN BIN RECYCLING

 

 

Table 7.1.2: Diversion rates (%) for individual recycling collections and overall 

 

% DIVERSION ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

BLUE RECYCLING 
BINS 15.19% 30.96% 21.27% 21.04% 18.11% 21.66% 22.01% 23.69% 

GREEN RECYCLING 
BINS 53.76% 19.36% 28.89% 21.23% 13.54% 28.75% 12.45% 23.10% 

TOTAL DIVERSION 68.96% 50.32% 50.16% 42.27% 31.65% 50.41% 34.46% 46.79% 

 

 

Page 195



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 68 - 

Figure 7.1.2: Diversion rates (%) for individual recycling collections and overall 

 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL   WEIGHTED
AV.

BLUE BIN DIVERSION GREEN BIN DIVERSION

 
 

 

Current recycling figures for Cambridge suggest a waste diversion rate of 43.7%. Therefore weighted 

figures for the City during this survey show a level of around 3% above this rate and 1.8% above the 

aspirational target of 45% for 2012.  

 

Data from this survey suggests a level of 331.9kg/hh/yr for residual waste and 651.1kg/hh/yr for total 

kerbside waste. 

 

Were all of the currently recyclable materials being disposed of at the kerbside placed into the correct 

recycling bin then the maximum achievable diversion rate for Cambridge would be 65%.  

 

 

Page 196



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 69 - 

Appendix 1: ACORN Category Classification1.  
 
 

 ACORN 1 – WEALTHY ACHIEVERS – U.K. AVERAGE 23.3% 
 

These are some of the most successful and affluent people in the UK. They live in wealthy, high status rural, 
semi-rural and suburban areas of the country. Middle-aged or older people predominate, with many empty 

nesters and wealthy retired. Some neighbourhoods contain large numbers of well-off families with school age 
children, particularly in the more suburban locations. These people live in large houses, which are usually 
detached with four or more bedrooms.  Almost 90% are owner occupiers, with half of those owning their 

home outright. They are very well educated and most are employed in managerial and professional occupations. 
Many own their own business.  Car ownership is high, with many households running two or more cars. 

Incomes are high, as are levels of savings and investments.  These people are well established at the top 
of the social ladder. They enjoy all the advantages of being healthy, wealthy and confident consumers. 

 
ACORN 2 – URBAN PROSPERITY – U.K. AVERAGE 13.3% 

 
These are well educated and mostly prosperous people living in our major towns and cities. They include both 
older wealthy people living in the most exclusive parts of London and other cities, and highly educated younger 
professionals moving up the corporate ladder. This category also includes some well educated but less affluent 

individuals, such as students and graduates in their first jobs.  The wealthier people tend to be in senior 
managerial or professional careers, and often live in large terraced or detached houses with four or more 

bedrooms. Some of the younger professionals may be buying or renting flats.  The less affluent will be privately 
renting.  These people have a cosmopolitan outlook and enjoy their urban lifestyle.  They like to eat out in 

restaurants, go to the theatre and cinema and make the most of the culture and nightlife of the big city. 
 

ACORN 3 – COMFORTABLY OFF – U.K. AVERAGE 28.1% 
 

This category contains much of ‘middle-of-the-road’ Britain. Most people are comfortably off. They 
may not be wealthy, but they have few major financial worries.  All life stages are represented in this category. 

Younger singles and couples, just starting out on their careers, are the dominant group in some areas. 
Other areas have mostly stable families and empty nesters, especially in suburban or semi-rural locations. 
Comfortably off pensioners, living in retirement areas around the coast or in the countryside, form the other 

main group in this category.  Most people own their own home, with owner occupation exceeding 80%. 
Most houses are semidetached or detached. Employment is in a mix of professional and managerial, 
clerical and skilled occupations. Educational qualifications tend to be in line with the national average. 

This category incorporates the home-owning, stable and fairly comfortable backbone of modern Britain. 
 

ACORN 4 – MODERATE MEANS – U.K. AVERAGE 13.2% 
 

This category contains much of what used to be the country’s industrial heartlands. Many people 
are still employed in traditional, blue-collar occupations. Others have become employed in service and retail 

jobs as the employment landscape has changed.  In the better off areas, incomes are in line with 
the national average and people have reasonable standards of living. However, in other areas, where levels 

of qualifications are low, incomes can fall below the national average. There are also some isolated pockets of 
unemployment and long-term illness.  This category also includes some neighbourhoods with very high 
concentrations of Asian families on low incomes.  Most housing is terraced, with two or three bedrooms, 

and largely owner occupied.  It includes many former council houses, bought by their tenants in the 1980s. 
Overall, the people in this category have modest lifestyles, but are able to get by. 

 
ACORN 5 – HARD PRESSED – U.K. AVERAGE 21.7% 

 
This category contains the poorest areas of the UK. Unemployment is well above the national average. 

Levels of qualifications are low and those in work are likely to be employed in unskilled occupations. 
Household incomes are low and there are high levels of long-term illness in some areas.  Housing is a mix 

of low-rise estates, with terraced or semi-detached houses, and purpose built flats, including high-rise blocks. 
Properties tend to be small and there is much overcrowding. Over 50% of the housing is rented from the local 
Council or a housing association.  There are a large number of single adult households, including many single 
Pensioners and lone parents. In some neighbourhoods, there are high numbers of black and Asian residents. 

These people are experiencing the most difficult social and economic conditions in the whole country, and appear 
to have limited opportunity to improve their circumstances. 

 
 

                                                   
 
 
 
 
 
1 http://www.caci.co.uk/download.aspx?path=/libraries/document/394.pdf 

Page 197



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 70 - 

 

 
 

Page 198



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 0 - 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cambridge City Waste 
Composition Analysis 

 

Cambridge Council 
 

May / June 2012 
 

FINAL REPORT  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 199



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 1 - 

 

Contents Page 

1) Project details and acknowledgements........................................................ - 3 - 

2) Introduction ...................................................................................................... - 4 - 

Background .................................................................................................................. - 4 - 

Objectives ..................................................................................................................... - 4 - 

Acknowledgements ..................................................................................................... - 5 - 

Accuracy Statement .................................................................................................... - 5 - 

3) Executive Summary......................................................................................... - 6 - 

Key findings.................................................................................................................. - 6 - 

Kerbside residual waste.............................................................................................. - 6 - 

Mixed recycling – Blue bins........................................................................................ - 7 - 

Organic waste recycling – Green bins....................................................................... - 7 - 

4) Compositional Analysis of Residual Waste ................................................. - 8 - 

4.1 Set out rates and waste generation levels................................................... - 8 - 

4.2 Compositional analysis of household residual waste ............................. - 11 - 

4.2.1 Organic Waste .............................................................................................. - 15 - 

4.2.2 Paper.............................................................................................................. - 17 - 

4.2.3 Card & Cardboard......................................................................................... - 19 - 

4.2.4 Plastics .......................................................................................................... - 21 - 

4.2.5 Metals............................................................................................................. - 23 - 

4.2.6 Glass.............................................................................................................. - 25 - 

4.2.7 Textiles .......................................................................................................... - 27 - 

4.2.8 Hazardous Items (HHW) & WEEE............................................................... - 29 - 

4.2.9 Disposable Nappies ..................................................................................... - 30 - 

5) Mixed dry recycling waste ............................................................................ - 35 - 

5.1 Set out rates and waste generation............................................................ - 35 - 

5.2 Compositional analysis of mixed recycling waste ................................... - 37 - 

Page 200



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 2 - 

5.3 Materials placed out for mixed recycling collections............................... - 40 - 

5.3.1 Paper Capture............................................................................................... - 41 - 

5.3.2 Card & Cardboard Capture.......................................................................... - 42 - 

5.3.3 Plastic Bottles Capture ................................................................................ - 43 - 

5.4 Blue Bin Recycling Contamination ............................................................ - 47 - 

6) Green Bin Organic Recycling Waste........................................................... - 52 - 

6.1 Set out rates and waste generation............................................................ - 52 - 

6.2 Compositional analysis of green recycling bins....................................... - 54 - 

6.3 Materials placed out for green bin recycling collections......................... - 58 - 

6.3.2 Garden Waste Capture................................................................................. - 60 - 

6.3.3 Food Waste Capture .................................................................................... - 61 - 

6.4 Green Bin Recycling Contamination.......................................................... - 63 - 

7) Overall Diversion through Recycling Collections ..................................... - 66 - 

7.1 Total waste generation levels & diversion................................................. - 66 - 

Appendix ................................................................................................................... 69 

 

Page 201



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

1) Project details and acknowledgements 

 

 

 

 

 

 

M·E·L Research  

8 Holt Court 

Aston Science Park 

Birmingham B7 4AX 

Tel: 0121 604 4664 

Fax: 0121 604 6776 

Email: info@m-e-l.co.uk 

Web:   www.m-e-l.co.uk 

Title Cambridge City Waste Composition Analysis. 

  

Client Cambridge City 

  

Project number 12012 

  

Client reference Final Report_Version_1 

  

Author Philip Wells 

  

Contract Manager Darren Coss 

Page 202



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

2)     Introduction 

Background  

Cambridge City Council currently has a combined recycling and composting rate of 43.7% (2010/11).  The 

Authority now wishes to study the composition of domestic kerbside collected residual and recycling waste 

streams to provide current baseline data and to help inform future communication campaigns. As well as 

giving indications as to the current levels of waste and recycling being generated, observations will be made 

showing the levels of materials that are currently recyclable at the kerbside and those which could 

potentially be recyclable via future schemes.  The Council hopes to achieve 45% by the end of 2012 with a 

future target for 2015-16 of 50-55%.  

 

This report presents results from the analysis of kerbside collected residual and recycling waste collected 

during a two week period in May / June 2012.  The survey focused on the levels and composition of all 

waste containers that are currently available for residents to place for collection at the kerbside.  The 

sampling regime involved the direct collection and compositional analysis of residual waste from a target of 

300 properties representing each of the five main socio-demographic categories (Acorns). Results could 

therefore be weighted to give an even better picture of the waste being collected by the authority as a 

whole.  Additionally around 120 properties were highlighted from a low performing area and a group of 

properties using communal bins.  Knowledge of the waste in these differing areas will help the City Council 

develop strategies to increase the efficiency with which its residents are recycling their waste. The overall 

findings of this project will highlight several factors important for improving the recycling rate and directing 

future strategy and communication campaigns: 

 

Objectives 

Specific aims of the work were to: 

 

§ Understand, using socio-demographic profiling which sectors of the community are producing 
which types of waste and which are using the recycling provision most effectively 

§ Detect capture rates for individual materials which are already collected separately for recycling 

§ Evaluate the amount of specific materials collected in the residual bin that could potentially be 
collected separately for recycling 

§ Evaluate the use of the receptacles used for collecting waste and recycling 

§ Detect the amount of packaging and biodegradable material present  

§ Assess the amount of contamination in receptacles meant for recycling material 

§ Assess the amount of recyclable material being placed in the residual bin 

 

This report will highlight key results recorded for Cambridge City showing data for individual socio-

demographics as well as weighted for the City as a whole.   

Page 203



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 5 - 

Acknowledgements  

M·E·L Research would like to thank the collection authority and their staff who participated and helped in 

the setup and fieldwork stages of the project, and those who provided additional data and other information 

to inform the project. This report highlights key results, presents the results in tables and charts and 

discusses the findings. The views and opinions expressed in this report are those of M.E.L Research Ltd. 

and are not necessarily shared by officers from Cambridge City Council.  

 

Accuracy Statement 

Results from the standard M·E·L sampling protocol for compositional analysis can be taken as accurate for 

each material category to within error bands of +/-10% at the 95% confidence level (2 standard deviations), 

assuming a normal statistical distribution. At the data entry stage 1 in 10 parts of data that is inputted are 

checked with the data sheets and if errors are found all the data is then rechecked. 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 204



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

3)     Executive Summary 

Key findings  

Kerbside residual waste 

§ Weighted across all Acorn samples, 84% of households sampled throughout Cambridge 
presented residual waste bins for collection. 

§ In terms of waste generation, households were setting out an average of 6.36kg/hh/wk. 

§ Food waste was seen to be the major component of residual waste forming 20.6% of the total, 
equating to 1.31kg/hh/wk – 45% of this is potentially home compostable 

§ Paper items made up 10.2% of the residual waste; 53% of this (0.35kg/hh/wk) was alternatively 
recyclable at the kerbside. 

§ Card and cardboard made up around 3.5% of collected residual waste; 84% of this (0.18kg/hh/wk) 
was alternatively recyclable at the kerbside. 

§ Plastics formed 14.9% of the residual waste; 10% of dense plastic waste (0.05kg/hh/wk) was due 
to recyclable plastic bottles with a further 0.21kg/hh/wk formed from the types of plastic containers 
that will be recyclable from July 2012.  

§ Just under 3% of residual waste was metallic; 53% of this (0.09kg/hh/wk) was recyclable in blue 
bins. 

§ Around 3% of residual waste was seen to be glass; 94% of this (0.16kg/hh/wk) was recyclable in 
blue bins. 

§ Over 6% of residual waste was due to textiles; 53% of these items (0.21kg/hh/wk) were seen to 
consist of reusable clothing and shoes 

§ Just under 1.6% of residual waste was deemed to be either Hazardous or WEEE. An additional 
17% consisted of disposable nappies 

§ Just over 1.3% of residual waste was found to be garden waste. Around 17% of this was non-
recyclable soil and turf, with the remainder consisting of recyclable garden trimmings 

§ Overall just over 13% of collected residual waste could have been placed into the blue recycling 
containers available– the equivalent of 0.84kg/hh/wk. 

§ Just under 22% of collected residual waste could have been placed into the green recycling 
containers available– the equivalent of 1.40kg/hh/wk. 

§ In total over 35% of residual waste collected could have been recycled alternatively at the kerbside 
– 2.23kg/hh/wk. 

§ Around 59% of potentially recyclable materials consisted of food waste with 15% being paper and 
8% being card and cardboard.  

§ Residual waste collected from Cambridge households was deemed to be around 51% 
biodegradable. 

§ Collected waste had a packaging content of 17%. 

 

Page 205



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 7 - 

Mixed recycling – Blue bins 

§ Over the survey, 78% of households presented blue bins for collection  

§ In terms of waste generation, kerbside households were setting out an average of 3.16kg/hh/wk in 
their blue bins. 

§ Overall 6.4% of blue bin recycling waste collected from all properties was classified as 
contamination – the equivalent of 0.20kg/hh/wk.  

§ Around 77% of paper, 87% of recyclable glass, 73% of card and cardboard, 78% of plastic bottles 
and 59% of the recyclable metals available for mixed recycling were correctly captured. 

§ Kerbside properties diverted around 23.7% of their waste through their blue bins.  

Organic waste recycling – Green bins 

§ Over the survey, 58% of households opted to present their green organic recycling bins at the 
kerbside for collection. 

§ In terms of waste generation, households were setting out an average of 2.96kg/hh/wk at the 
kerbside. 

§ Overall 2.6% of green bin recycling waste collected from all properties was classified as 
contamination – the equivalent of 0.08kg/hh/wk. 

§ Green bins collected from households on a communal service had very high contamination levels 
of 31.3%.  Bins had significant levels of residual waste and also large amounts of paper and 
cardboard.  

§ The majority of contamination of green bin waste was due to general residual materials; forming 
69% of the contamination.  Up to 23% of contamination was due to textiles. 

§ 21% of food waste and 97% of garden waste was correctly captured by households using the 
scheme. 

§ Properties on the green bin collection scheme diverted an average of around 23.1% of their waste 
through these collections. 

§ When combined with the diversion through mixed recycling collections, Cambridge households are 
diverting around 46.8% (5.84kg/hh/wk) of their total waste (12.48kg/hh/wk) through recycling 
collections. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 206



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 8 - 

4)     Compositional Analysis of Residual Waste 

4.1 Set out rates and waste generation levels  

 

Table 4.1.2 and Figure 4.1.2 highlight the average set out rates for residual waste observed at the time 

waste was collected for compositional analysis. Table 4.1.3 and Figure 4.1.3 show the average amount of 

residual waste generated in kg/hh/wk. Around 60 households were selected for each sample from each 

Acorn category with the set out relating to the proportion of these households actively placing out their 

waste. The amount of waste in kilograms per household per week is collected from each sample of 60 

households, not just those that are participating. Results are shown by Acorn; as all five Acorn categories 

were sampled it was possible to weight the results according to the socio-demographic profile for 

Cambridge as per Table 4.1.1.  A table giving a brief description of the types of households typical for each 

Acorn category is shown in the appendix section. 

 

Table 4.1.1: Acorn profile for Cambridge 

ACORN % SET OUT 

1 7.12% 

2 49.66% 

3 18.08% 

4 3.45% 

5 20.71% 

UNCLASSIFIED 0.98% 

TOTAL 100% 

 

Figure 4.1.1: Acorn profile for Cambridge 

UNCLASSIFIED
0.98%

ACORN 3
18.08%

ACORN 4
3.45%

ACORN 5
20.71%

ACORN 1
7.12%

ACORN 2
49.66%

Page 207



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 9 - 

Observed set out rates for residual waste ranged between 71% in the low performing Acorn 5 area (LPA) to 

95% in Acorn 3.  On average 84% of households in Cambridge are projected to be setting out their residual 

waste for collection. 

 

Table 4.1.2: Kerbside residual waste set out rates for each Acorn sample  

 

ACORN % SET OUT 

1 77% 

2 82% 

3 95% 

4 82% 

5 82% 

5 (LPA)* 71% 

COMMUNAL N/A** 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE 84% 

 

*Acorn 5 Low Performing Area 

** Do not have their own bin so set out is not applicable 

 

Figure 4.1.2: Kerbside residual waste set out rates by Acorn (%)  

 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

Page 208



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 10 - 

From observed results, the level of residual waste being disposed of at the kerbside ranged between 

4.20kg/hh/wk in Acorn 1 to 9.80kg/hh/wk in Acorn 5. On average 6.36kg/hh/wk of residual waste is being 

disposed of by households throughout Cambridge. 

 

Table 4.1.3:  Kerbside residual waste generation rates for each Acorn sample (kg/hh/wk) 

 

ACORN KG/HH/WK 

1 4.20 

2 4.66 

3 7.93 

4 6.50 

5 9.80 

5 (LPA) 5.06 

COMMUNAL 8.33 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE 6.36 

 

 

 
Figure 4.1.3: Average residual waste generation rates by Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

7.00

8.00

9.00

10.00

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

Page 209



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 11 - 

4.2 Compositional analysis of household residual waste 

 

This section looks at the average amount and composition of the residual waste presented by various 

socio-demographic households sampled throughout the City. Hand sorting of the residual waste gave 

concentration by weight figures for the fifteen main categories of waste as well as the more detailed sub-

categories.   

 

Looking at the concentration percentages gives an indication as to the proportions of each waste category. 

This can be translated into a figure relating to the average waste generation expected for each waste 

category; this is given in kilograms per household per week (kg/hh/wk). 

 

By knowing the composition of waste from the various Acorn samples it is possible to gain an insight into 

the make-up and volumes of the residual waste that can be expected from the City as a whole. Additional 

information on the selected lower performing and communal bins areas can also be gained.  Detailed 

residual composition tables can be found in a separate data appendix.  

 

Table 4.2.1 and Figure 4.2.1 show residual waste data in terms of percentage composition with Table 4.2.2 

and Figure 4.2.2 showing generation rates for major materials in terms of kg/hh/wk. All residual waste will 

contain a proportion that is classified as potentially recyclable. That is to say that is should have been 

placed into one of the recycling receptacles supplied by the Council.   

Page 210



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 12 - 

 

Table 4.2.1: Average residual waste composition weighted by Acorn (%) 
 

 RESIDUAL WASTE 
ACORN 

1 
ACORN 

2 
ACORN 

3 
ACORN 

4 
ACORN 

5 
ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AVERAGE 

PAPER 13.84% 11.35% 8.51% 7.78% 9.78% 5.93% 6.74% 10.19% 

CARD & CARDBOARD 5.01% 3.32% 3.11% 2.57% 3.71% 1.92% 2.77% 3.45% 

PLASTIC FILM 5.36% 7.98% 6.54% 4.06% 6.07% 8.81% 5.45% 6.77% 

DENSE PLASTIC 10.76% 8.28% 12.09% 6.64% 4.78% 9.45% 5.83% 8.08% 

TEXTILES 1.00% 6.24% 5.48% 7.74% 7.24% 3.66% 5.71% 6.19% 

MISC COMBUSTIBLES 22.52% 16.70% 28.71% 17.69% 33.61% 30.14% 35.67% 25.19% 

MISC NON-COMBUSTIBLES 12.58% 7.20% 11.17% 5.22% 11.50% 0.71% 0.34% 9.67% 

GLASS 1.01% 4.13% 2.48% 2.21% 1.70% 4.42% 4.59% 2.75% 

FERROUS METAL 5.19% 1.92% 2.02% 2.96% 2.06% 1.03% 2.48% 2.18% 

NON-FERROUS METAL 0.57% 0.78% 0.53% 0.43% 0.55% 0.83% 0.74% 0.63% 

GARDEN WASTE 2.49% 2.34% 0.52% 4.26% 0.31% 4.02% 1.57% 1.35% 

PUTRESCIBLES 16.52% 28.37% 16.20% 32.97% 17.10% 28.45% 24.13% 21.57% 

FINES 0.52% 0.00% 0.00% 1.22% 0.93% 0.20% 0.97% 0.37% 

HHW 1.47% 0.30% 1.33% 0.00% 0.00% 0.03% 0.10% 0.48% 

WEEE 1.17% 1.10% 1.32% 4.27% 0.67% 0.41% 2.91% 1.13% 

TOTAL 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE 17.47% 15.67% 11.43% 10.41% 11.16% 11.48% 14.01% 13.15% 

GREEN BIN RECYCLABLE 18.94% 29.72% 15.72% 32.64% 16.78% 31.01% 23.21% 21.95% 

TOTAL RECYCLABLE 36.41% 45.39% 27.15% 43.05% 27.94% 42.50% 37.21% 35.11% 

 

Table 4.2.2: Average residual waste generation weighted by Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 
 

 RESIDUAL WASTE 
ACORN 

1 
ACORN 

2 
ACORN 

3 
ACORN 

4 
ACORN 

5 
ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AVERAGE 

PAPER 0.58 0.53 0.67 0.51 0.96 0.30 0.56 0.65 

CARD & CARDBOARD 0.21 0.15 0.25 0.17 0.36 0.10 0.23 0.22 

PLASTIC FILM 0.23 0.37 0.52 0.26 0.59 0.45 0.45 0.43 

DENSE PLASTIC 0.45 0.39 0.96 0.43 0.47 0.48 0.49 0.51 

TEXTILES 0.04 0.29 0.43 0.50 0.71 0.18 0.48 0.39 

MISC COMBUSTIBLES 0.95 0.78 2.28 1.15 3.29 1.52 2.97 1.60 

MISC NON-COMBUSTIBLES 0.53 0.34 0.89 0.34 1.13 0.04 0.03 0.62 

GLASS 0.04 0.19 0.20 0.14 0.17 0.22 0.38 0.18 

FERROUS METAL 0.22 0.09 0.16 0.19 0.20 0.05 0.21 0.14 

NON-FERROUS METAL 0.02 0.04 0.04 0.03 0.05 0.04 0.06 0.04 

GARDEN WASTE 0.10 0.11 0.04 0.28 0.03 0.20 0.13 0.09 

PUTRESCIBLES 0.69 1.32 1.28 2.14 1.68 1.44 2.01 1.37 

FINES 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.08 0.09 0.01 0.08 0.02 

HHW 0.06 0.01 0.11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.03 

WEEE 0.05 0.05 0.10 0.28 0.07 0.02 0.24 0.07 

TOTAL 4.20 4.66 7.93 6.50 9.80 5.06 8.33 6.36 

BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE 0.73 0.73 0.91 0.68 1.09 0.58 1.17 0.84 

GREEN BIN RECYCLABLE 0.80 1.38 1.25 2.12 1.64 1.57 1.93 1.40 

TOTAL RECYCLABLE 1.53 2.11 2.15 2.80 2.74 2.15 3.10 2.23 

 

Page 211



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 1
3 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.1

: A
ve

ra
ge

 r
es

id
ua

l w
as

te
 c

om
po

si
tio

n 
w

ei
gh

te
d 

by
 A

co
rn

 (%
) 

0
%

10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

1
00

%

AC
O

RN 1

AC
O

RN 2

AC
O

RN 3

AC
O

RN 4

AC
O

RN 5

AC
O

RN 5
 (L

PA
)

CO
M

M
UNAL

W
EIG

HTE
D A

VE
RAGE

W
E

EE

H
H

W

F
IN

E
S

P
U

T
R

E
S

C
IB

LE
S

G
A

R
D

EN
 W

A
S

T
E

N
O

N
-F

ER
R

O
U

S
 M

ET
A

L

F
ER

R
O

U
S

 M
E

TA
L

G
L

A
S

S

M
IS

C
 N

O
N

-C
O

M
B

U
S

T
IB

L
ES

M
IS

C
 C

O
M

B
U

S
T

IB
LE

S

T
EX

TI
LE

S

D
EN

S
E 

P
LA

S
TI

C

P
LA

S
TI

C
 F

IL
M

C
A

R
D

 &
 C

A
R

D
B

O
A

R
D

P
A

PE
R

 

Page 212



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 1
4 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.2

: A
ve

ra
ge

 r
es

id
ua

l w
as

te
 g

en
er

at
io

n 
w

ei
gh

te
d 

by
 A

co
rn

 (k
g/

hh
/w

k)
 

0.
00

1.
00

2.
00

3.
00

4.
00

5.
00

6.
00

7.
00

8.
00

9.
00

10
.0

0 AC
O

RN 1

AC
O

RN 2

AC
O

RN 3

AC
O

RN 4

AC
O

RN 5

ACO
RN 5

 (L
PA)

CO
M

M
UNAL

W
EIG

HTE
D A

VE
RAGE

W
EE

E

H
H

W

FI
N

ES

PU
TR

ES
C

IB
LE

S

G
A

R
D

EN
 W

A
S

TE

N
O

N
-F

ER
R

O
U

S
 M

ET
A

L

FE
R

R
O

U
S

 M
ET

A
L

G
LA

S
S

M
IS

C
 N

O
N

-C
O

M
B

U
S

TI
B

L
ES

M
IS

C
 C

O
M

B
U

S
TI

B
LE

S

TE
X

T
IL

E
S

D
EN

S
E 

P
LA

S
TI

C

PL
A

S
TI

C
 F

IL
M

C
A

R
D

 &
 C

A
R

D
B

O
A

R
D

PA
PE

R

 

Page 213



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 15 - 

4.2.1 Organic Waste 

Organic waste, which includes garden and food waste (putrescibles), formed the greatest weight 

concentration of the primary waste categories for all Acorns. Ranges seen were from 16.7% from Acorn 3 

households to 33.9% in Acorn 5 (LPA) households. Across the City as a whole around 23.3% of all residual 

waste (1.48kg/hh/wk) is classified as organic waste.  Food waste accounted for between 15.6% (Acorn 3) 

and 27.4% (Acorn 2) of residual waste. Across the City as a whole around 20.6% of all residual waste 

(1.31kg/hh/wk) is classified as food waste. Currently Cambridge residents are able to recycle food waste at 

the kerbside using their green bin collection.   Residents from Acorn 3 placed the most recyclable food into 

their residual bins at 2.81kg/hh/wk.  Overall approximately 45% of this food waste (0.58kg/hh/wk) is 

potentially compostable in a general garden compost bin.  

 

Residents throughout Cambridge can also utilise their green bins for the collection of general garden waste.   

In Acorns 3 and 5 levels of garden waste in residual bins were very low at 0.5% and 0.3% respectively. This 

equated to less than 0.05kg/hh/wk in total.  In contrast the residual waste from Acorn 4 and Acorn 5(LPA) 

was over 4% garden waste; the equivalent of 0.28kg/hh/wk and 0.20kg/hh/wk respectively.  Averaged for 

Cambridge it is seen that 17% of this garden waste consisted of soil and turf which is discouraged from the 

recycling collection.  Across the City, recyclable forms of garden waste (i.e. garden clippings but not soil and 

turf) are responsible for an average of just 1.1%, or 0.07kg/hh/wk of residual waste. Table 4.2.1.1 and 

Figure 4.2.1.1 show the amounts of the different forms of organic waste found within the samples from each 

sample. 

 

Table 4.2.1.1: Levels of organic wastes within residual waste of each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL 
ORGANICS 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 5 
(LPA) 

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 
AVERAGE 

FLORA 
ORGANICS 0.10 0.11 0.00 0.08 0.03 0.20 0.13 0.07 

SOIL & TURF 0.00 0.00 0.04 0.19 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 

COMPOSTABLE 
FOOD WASTE 0.22 0.75 0.40 0.47 0.48 0.52 0.78 0.58 

NON-HOME 
COMPOSTABLE 
FOOD WASTE 

0.47 0.52 0.84 1.19 1.14 0.85 1.02 0.73 

HERBIVOROUS 
PET BEDDING 0.00 0.05 0.00 0.05 0.06 0.07 0.21 0.04 

LIQUIDS, FATS & 
OILS 0.00 0.05 0.05 0.10 0.06 0.07 0.21 0.05 

KG/HH/WK 
ORGANICS 0.80 1.48 1.33 2.09 1.77 1.72 2.35 1.48 

% ORGANICS 19.08% 31.71% 16.71% 32.09% 18.06% 33.92% 28.22% 23.31% 

KG/HH/WK FOOD 
WASTE 0.69 1.27 1.23 1.66 1.61 1.37 1.80 1.31 

% FOOD WASTE 16.45% 27.37% 15.57% 25.53% 16.47% 27.00% 21.61% 20.59% 

Page 214



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 1
6 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.1

.1
: L

ev
el

s 
of

 o
rg

an
ic

 w
as

te
s 

w
ith

in
 r

es
id

ua
l w

as
te

 o
f e

ac
h 

A
co

rn
 (k

g/
hh

/w
k)

 

0
.0

0

0
.5

0

1
.0

0

1
.5

0

2
.0

0

2
.5

0

AC
O

RN 1

AC
O

RN 2

AC
O

RN 3

AC
O

RN 4

AC
O

RN 5

AC
O

RN 5
 (L

PA
)

CO
M

M
UNAL

  W
EI

GHTE
D A

V.

L
IQ

U
ID

S
, 
F
A

T
S

 &
 O

IL
S

H
E
R

B
IV

O
R

O
U

S
 P

E
T

B
E
D

D
IN

G

N
O

N
-H

O
M

E
 C

O
M

P
O

S
T
A

B
L
E

F
O

O
D

 W
A

S
T
E

C
O

M
P
O

S
T
A

B
L
E
 F

O
O

D
W

A
S

T
E

S
O

IL
 &

 T
U

R
F

F
L
O

R
A

 O
R

G
A

N
IC

S

 

Page 215



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 17 - 

4.2.2 Paper  

On average, Acorn 1 residents had the highest concentrations of this type of waste (13.8%), with Acorn 5 

disposing of the most at 0.96kg/hh/wk. In comparison just 5.9% (0.30kg/hh/wk) of residual waste from 

Acorn 5(LPA) was due to paper based materials. Across the City it was seen that around 10.2% or 

0.65kg/hh/wk of residual waste consisted of discarded paper. 

 

A proportion of this paper is available for recycling at the kerbside. Cambridge residents have a blue bin for 

recycling higher grade white paper such as newspapers, junk mail, envelopes and directories.  In addition 

to this higher grade paper, Cambridge residents are able to place shredded paper into their green organics 

bin. It was found that between 50.5% (Acorn 3 and Acorn 5(LPA) and 74.8% (Acorn 1) of paper could have 

been placed in either the blue or green bins as opposed to the residual bin.  

 

When accounting for all of the various types of paper within the residual waste, it is seen that 53.3% of 

residual paper was recyclable which accounted for 5.4% of all the residual waste or 0.35kg/hh/wk.   

 

Table 4.2.2.1 and Figure 4.2.2.1 show the amounts of the different forms of paper waste for each Acorn. 

 

Table 4.2.2.1: Levels of paper wastes within residual waste of each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL PAPER ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 5 
(LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

RECYCLABLE 
PAPER 0.43 0.28 0.33 0.30 0.48 0.15 0.36 0.34 

SHREDDED 
PAPER 

0.00 0.00 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

NON-
RECYCLABLE 

PAPER 
0.15 0.25 0.33 0.21 0.48 0.15 0.20 0.30 

KG/HH/WK TOTAL 
PAPER  0.58 0.53 0.67 0.51 0.96 0.30 0.56 0.65 

KG/HH/WK 
RECYCLABLE 

PAPER 
0.43 0.28 0.34 0.30 0.48 0.15 0.37 0.35 

% PAPER 
RECYCLABLE 

74.77% 53.37% 50.52% 59.17% 49.83% 50.52% 65.29% 53.27% 

 

Page 216



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 1
8 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.2

.1
: L

ev
el

s 
of

 p
ap

er
 w

as
te

s 
w

ith
in

 r
es

id
ua

l w
as

te
 o

f e
ac

h 
A

co
rn

 (k
g/

hh
/w

k)
 

0
.0

0

0
.2

0

0
.4

0

0
.6

0

0
.8

0

1
.0

0

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

CO
M

M
U
N
AL

  W
EI

GH
TE

D
 A

V.

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P
E
R

S
H

R
E
D

D
E
D

 P
A

P
E
R

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P
E
R

 

Page 217



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 19 - 

4.2.3 Card & Cardboard 

On average, Acorn 1 residents had the highest concentrations of this type of waste (5%), with Acorn 5 

disposing of the most at 0.36kg/hh/wk. In comparison just 1.9% (0.10kg/hh/wk) of residual waste from 

Acorn 5(LPA) was due to card and cardboard based materials. Across the City it was seen that around 

3.5% or 0.22kg/hh/wk of residual waste consisted of discarded card and cardboard. 

 

A proportion of this card & cardboard is available for recycling at the kerbside. Cambridge residents have a 

blue bin for recycling thin card, corrugated cardboard and drinks cartons.  It was found that between 65% 

(Acorn 1) and 94% (Acorn 5-LPA) of card and cardboard could have been placed in the blue bin as 

opposed to the residual bin. Across Cambridge, 84% of residual card and cardboard was compatible with 

recycling collections which accounted for 2.9% of all the residual waste or 0.18kg/hh/wk.   

 

Table 4.2.3.1 and Figure 4.2.3.1 show the amounts of the different forms of card and cardboard waste for 

each Acorn. 

 

When combining paper and card together it is estimated that 61% of that present in residual bins could 

have been recycled via kerbside recycling collections.  This amounts to 8.3% of all the residual waste being 

collected – a total of 0.53kg/hh/wk.  

 

Table 4.2.3.1: Levels of card wastes within residual waste of each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL CARD 
ACORN 

1 
ACORN 

2 
ACORN 

3 
ACORN 

4 
ACORN 

5 
ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

RECYCLABLE THIN 
CARD 0.05 0.08 0.15 0.07 0.14 0.05 0.16 0.10 

RECYCLABLE 
CORRUGATED 
CARDBOARD 

0.07 0.02 0.07 0.05 0.17 0.02 0.03 0.07 

BEVERAGE CARTONS 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.02 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
CARD 0.07 0.04 0.02 0.04 0.04 0.01 0.02 0.04 

KG/HH/WK  TOTAL 
CARD & CARDBOARD  0.21 0.15 0.25 0.17 0.36 0.10 0.23 0.22 

KG/HH/WK 
RECYCLABLE CARD & 

CARDBOARD 
0.14 0.12 0.23 0.12 0.33 0.09 0.21 0.18 

% CARD KERBSIDE 
RECYCLABLE 65.22% 77.15% 93.19% 74.50% 89.79% 94.04% 90.71% 83.93% 

 

 

 

Page 218



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 2
0 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.3

.1
: L

ev
el

s 
of

 c
ar

d 
w

as
te

s 
w

ith
in

 r
es

id
ua

l w
as

te
 o

f e
ac

h 
A

co
rn

 (k
g/

hh
/w

k)
 

0
.0

0

0
.0

5

0
.1

0

0
.1

5

0
.2

0

0
.2

5

0
.3

0

0
.3

5

0
.4

0

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 C

A
R

D

B
E
V

E
R

A
G

E
 C

A
R

T
O

N
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

C
O

R
R

U
G

A
T
E
D

C
A

R
D

B
O

A
R

D

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 T

H
IN

 C
A

R
D

Page 219



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 21 - 

4.2.4 Plastics 

As a UK average approximately 12% of the waste disposed of by households is plastic. In this sampling 

campaign average ranges seen were 10.7% total plastic by weight from Acorn 4 households to 18.6% in 

the waste from Acorn 3 households. Cambridge residents currently recycle plastic bottles as part of their 

blue bin collections. Across the City as a whole, 14.9% of residual waste was classified as plastic which 

equates to 0.94kg/hh/wk. On the whole plastic waste, although not heavy in itself, can produce large 

volumes of waste. 

 

Figure 4.2.4.1 clearly shows the levels of recyclable plastic bottles within the plastic portion of the residual 

waste. On average, around 46% of this plastic waste present in the residual was due to plastic film with the 

remainder being dense plastic. Up to 9.9% of residual dense plastic consisted of plastic bottles meaning 

that just 0.8% of residual waste (0.05kg/hh/wk) collected throughout Cambridge was made up of plastic 

bottles that could have been recycled.  Up to 0.13kg/hh/wk of plastic bottles were seen in communal bins 

representing over a quarter of all the dense plastic present.   

 

From July 2012 Cambridge households will be able to recycle plastic food containers in addition to plastic 

bottles.  On average these formed 3.4% of the total residual waste equating to 0.21kg/hh/wk.  This means 

that 0.27kg/hh/wk or 4.2% of the residual waste is due to recyclable plastic bottles and containers.  

 

Table 4.2.4.1 and Figure 4.2.4.1 show the amounts of the different forms of plastic waste found within the 

residual samples from each Acorn. 

 

Table 4.2.4.1: Levels of plastics within residual waste of each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL 
PLASTICS 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

PLASTIC FILM 0.23 0.37 0.52 0.26 0.59 0.45 0.45 0.43 

PLASTIC BOTTLES 0.09 0.04 0.06 0.06 0.05 0.04 0.13 0.05 

PLASTIC FOOD 
CONTAINERS 

0.12 0.23 0.27 0.17 0.18 0.12 0.22 0.21 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PLASTICS 0.25 0.11 0.63 0.20 0.24 0.31 0.14 0.25 

KG/HH/WK  TOTAL 
PLASTIC 0.68 0.76 1.48 0.70 1.06 0.92 0.94 0.94 

% DENSE PLASTIC 
RECYCLABLE 19.39% 11.04% 6.41% 14.22% 9.84% 9.18% 26.63% 9.85% 

Page 220



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 2
2 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.4

.1
: L

ev
el

s 
of

 p
la

st
ic

s 
w

ith
in

 r
es

id
ua

l w
as

te
 o

f e
ac

h 
A

co
rn

 (k
g/

hh
/w

k)
 

0
.0

0

0
.2

5

0
.5

0

0
.7

5

1
.0

0

1
.2

5

1
.5

0

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O
R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

P
L
A

S
T
IC

S

P
L
A

S
T
IC

 F
O

O
D

C
O

N
T
A

IN
E
R

S

P
L
A

S
T
IC

 B
O

T
T
L
E
S

P
L
A

S
T
IC

 F
IL

M

Page 221



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 23 - 

4.2.5 Metals 

In this sampling campaign average concentrations of residual metals were seen to be 1.9% total metal by 

weight from Acorn 5(LPA) households to 5.8% in the waste from Acorn 1 households, averaging 2.8% 

overall. Cambridge residents have access to a recycling collection of food and drink cans as well as empty 

aerosols and clean foil via their blue bin service. The average weight of metals in the residual waste from 

Acorn 5(LPA) was 0.09kg/hh/wk rising to 0.27kg/hh/wk in communal bins.   

 

A proportion of this metal waste is available for recycling at the kerbside relative to the blue bin collection.  It 

was found that just 13% of Acorn 1 metals were recyclable rising to 77% for the metals in Acorn 5(LPA) 

residual waste. Across the City an average of 52.5% or 0.09kg/hh/wk of residual metal is classified as 

recyclable, this equates to 1.5% of all collected residual waste. 

 

On the whole 78% of metals were ferrous accounting for 0.14kg/hh/wk with non-ferrous metals contributing 

0.04kg/hh/wk. The majority of metallic waste present in all samples was seen to be ferrous.  

 

Table 4.2.5.1 and Figure 4.2.5.1 show the amounts of the different forms of metallic waste found within the 

samples from each Acorn. Food cans tend to require a degree of washing before being placed into 

recycling containers and as such are often less well diverted than cleaner drinks cans.   

 

Table 4.2.5.1: Levels of metals within residual waste of each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL METALS ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

DRINK CANS 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.03 0.02 0.02 0.01 

FOOD TINS & CANS 0.01 0.05 0.04 0.03 0.04 0.02 0.04 0.04 

AEROSOLS 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.01 

ALUMINIUM FOIL AND 
FOOD TRAYS 0.01 0.02 0.03 0.01 0.03 0.02 0.03 0.03 

OTHER NON-
RECYCLABLE METALS 0.21 0.03 0.10 0.16 0.15 0.02 0.15 0.08 

RECYCLABLE METALS 0.03 0.10 0.10 0.06 0.11 0.07 0.12 0.09 

TOTAL METALS 0.24 0.13 0.20 0.22 0.26 0.09 0.27 0.18 

% FERROUS 90.16% 71.00% 79.19% 87.30% 78.93% 55.42% 77.02% 77.64% 

%  RECYCLABLE 13.31% 76.02% 49.78% 28.45% 42.69% 77.11% 42.82% 52.46% 

 

Page 222



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 2
4 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.5

.1
: L

ev
el

s 
of

 m
et

al
s 

w
ith

in
 r

es
id

ua
l w

as
te

 o
f e

ac
h 

A
co

rn
 (k

g/
hh

/w
k)

 

0
.0

0

0
.0

5

0
.1

0

0
.1

5

0
.2

0

0
.2

5

0
.3

0 AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

O
T
H

E
R

 N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

M
E
T
A

L
S

A
L
U

M
IN

IU
M

 F
O

IL
 A

N
D

 F
O

O
D

T
R

A
Y

S

A
E
R

O
S

O
L
S

F
O

O
D

 T
IN

S
 &

 C
A

N
S

D
R

IN
K

 C
A

N
S

Page 223



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 25 - 

4.2.6 Glass 

In this sampling campaign the average concentration of residual glass was seen to be 1% total glass by 

weight from Acorn 1 households rising to 4.6% in the waste from communal bins. Cambridge residents are 

able to recycle glass bottles and jars at the kerbside using their blue bin service.   The weight of glass in the 

residual waste from Acorn 1 was 0.04kg/hh/wk rising to 0.38kg/hh/wk in communal bins.  This represented 

a City wide average of 2.8% or 0.18kg/hh/wk. 

 

A proportion of this glass consists of bottles and jars which could have been recycled at the kerbside. It was 

found that across Cambridge an average of 94% or 0.16kg/hh/wk of residual glass is classified as 

recyclable, this equates to 2.6% of all collected residual waste. 

 

In most samples the majority of recyclable glass was seen to be higher grade clear glass, across 

Cambridge 64% of recyclable glass was clear, accounting for 0.11kg/hh/wk of residual waste.  Around 52% 

of the clear glass was due to jars as opposed to bottles.   

 

Table 4.2.6.1 and Figure 4.2.6.1 show the amounts of the different forms of glass waste found within the 

samples from each Acorn.   

 

Table 4.2.6.1: Levels of glass within residual waste of each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL GLASS 
ACORN 

1 
ACORN 

2 
ACORN 

3 
ACORN 

4 
ACORN 

5 
ACORN 5 

(LPA) COMMUNAL 
WEIGHTED 

AV. 

GREEN GLASS 0.00 0.09 0.00 0.02 0.02 0.12 0.04 0.05 

BROWN, BLUE, RED 
GLASS 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.03 0.02 0.01 0.04 0.01 

CLEAR BOTTLES 0.01 0.03 0.17 0.07 0.03 0.06 0.15 0.05 

CLEAR JARS 0.03 0.07 0.01 0.00 0.06 0.04 0.12 0.05 

OTHER NON 
PACKAGING GLASS 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.03 0.00 0.03 0.01 

KG/HH/WK TOTAL 
GLASS 0.04 0.19 0.20 0.14 0.17 0.22 0.38 0.18 

KG/HH/WK RECYCLABLE 
GLASS 0.04 0.19 0.19 0.13 0.13 0.22 0.35 0.16 

% RECYCLABLE 100% 98.99% 94.36% 89.99% 80.74% 99.24% 91.15% 94.17% 

% OF RECYCLABLE 
GLASS - CLEAR 100% 49.56% 95.85% 57.08% 70.33% 42.98% 76.93% 63.76% 

 

 

Page 224



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 2
6 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.6

.1
: L

ev
el

s 
of

 g
la

ss
 w

ith
in

 r
es

id
ua

l w
as

te
 o

f e
ac

h 
A

co
rn

 (k
g/

hh
/w

k)
 

0
.0

0

0
.0

5

0
.1

0

0
.1

5

0
.2

0

0
.2

5

0
.3

0

0
.3

5

0
.4

0

AC
O
R
N
 1

AC
O
R
N
 2

AC
O
R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O
R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O
M
M
U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

O
T
H

E
R

 N
O

N
 P

A
C

K
A

G
IN

G
G

L
A

S
S

C
L
E
A

R
 J

A
R

S

C
L
E
A

R
 B

O
T
T
L
E

S

B
R

O
W

N
, 
B

L
U

E
, 
R

E
D

 G
L
A

S
S

G
R

E
E
N

 G
L
A

S
S

Page 225



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 27 - 

4.2.7 Textiles 

 

The concentration of residual textile waste was seen to be 1% textiles from Acorn 1 households to 7.7% in 

the waste from Acorn 4 households. Cambridge residents are currently not able to recycle textiles at the 

kerbside. The average weight of textile waste in the residual waste from Acorn 1 was 0.04kg/hh/wk rising to 

0.71kg/hh/wk in Acorn 5.  On average 6.2% or 0.39kg/hh/wk of residual waste is classified as textile waste.  

 

A proportion of this textile waste is available for recycling either at bring banks or charity outlets in the form 

of reusable clothes and shoes. It was found that between 37% (Acorn 2) and 67% of Acorn 5(LPA) of textile 

waste was of this potentially recyclable type. Up to 0.44kg/hh/wk (Acorn 5) of recyclable textiles are being 

placed into the residual waste by Cambridge householders. Across Cambridge an average of 52.5% or 

0.21kg/hh/wk of residual textiles is classified as reusable, this equates to 3.3% of all collected residual 

waste. 

 

Table 4.2.7.1 and Figure 4.2.7.1 show the amounts of the different forms of textile waste found within the 

samples from each Acorn. 

 

Table 4.2.7.1: Levels of textiles within residual waste of each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL TEXTILES 
ACORN 

1 
ACORN 

2 
ACORN 

3 
ACORN 

4 
ACORN 

5 
ACORN 5 

(LPA) COMMUNAL 
WEIGHTED 

AV. 

REUSABLE 
CLOTHING 0.03 0.07 0.25 0.20 0.33 0.08 0.22 0.15 

SHOES 0.00 0.04 0.02 0.12 0.11 0.05 0.07 0.05 

ALL OTHER 
TEXTILES 0.01 0.18 0.17 0.19 0.27 0.06 0.19 0.19 

KG/HH/WK TOTAL 
TEXTILES 0.04 0.29 0.43 0.50 0.71 0.18 0.48 0.39 

KG/HH/WK 
REUSABLE TEXTILES 0.03 0.11 0.27 0.31 0.44 0.12 0.28 0.21 

% REUSABLE 
TEXTILES 66.10% 36.88% 61.45% 61.89% 61.69% 67.35% 59.77% 52.51% 

 

 

 

Page 226



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 2
8 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.7

.1
: L

ev
el

s 
of

 te
xt

ile
s 

w
ith

in
 r

es
id

ua
l w

as
te

 o
f e

ac
h 

A
co

rn
 (k

g/
hh

/w
k)

 

0
.0

0

0
.0

5

0
.1

0

0
.1

5

0
.2

0

0
.2

5

0
.3

0

0
.3

5

0
.4

0

0
.4

5

0
.5

0

0
.5

5

0
.6

0

0
.6

5

0
.7

0

0
.7

5

AC
O
R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O
R
N
 3

AC
O
R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M
U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

A
L
L
 O

T
H

E
R

 T
E
X

T
IL

E
S

S
H

O
E
S

R
E
U

S
A

B
L
E
 C

L
O

T
H

IN
G

Page 227



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 29 - 

4.2.8 Hazardous Items (HHW) & WEEE 

In this sampling campaign the average overall concentration of hazardous and WEEE waste was seen to 

be 1.6% which equates to around 0.10kg/hh/wk. Acorn 4 households disposed of the most HHW and 

WEEE waste, where it was responsible for 4.3% of collected waste or 0.28kg/hh/wk. Table 4.2.8.1 shows 

the amounts of HHW and WEEE within the samples from each Acorn. 

 

Table 4.2.8.1: Levels of HHW and WEEE within each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL HHW & 
WEEE 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 5 
(LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

HHW 0.06 0.01 0.11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.03 

WEEE 0.05 0.05 0.10 0.28 0.07 0.02 0.24 0.07 

TOTAL 0.11 0.06 0.21 0.28 0.07 0.02 0.25 0.10 

% HHW & WEEE 2.64% 1.40% 2.65% 4.27% 0.67% 0.44% 3.00% 1.61% 

 

HHW WEEE 

PAINT CHARGERS 

HALOGEN BULB GAME REMOTE 

BATTERIES XMAS LIGHTS 

MEDICINES THERMOSTAT 

WEED KILLER MOBILE PHONE 

 TORCHES 

 SMOKE ALARM 

 SWITCH 

 MODEM 

 LAMPS 

 KETTLES 

 STEREO & SPEAKERS 

 MOTOR 

 TELEPHONE 

 HAIR STRAIGHTENERS 

 CABLES & LEADS 

 SOCKERS 

 DEEP FAT FRYER 

 FAN 

 BLENDER 

 CALCULATOR 

 

Page 228



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 30 - 

4.2.9 Disposable Nappies 

The profile of this type of waste has increased in recent years. Levels of this waste within the residual bins 

of households with babies can be extremely high. In this survey the concentrations of disposable nappies 

ranged between 1.3% in Acorn 3 up to 33.5% in communal bins. Communal bins were seen to contain 

around 2.79kg/hh/wk of disposable nappies. Throughout Cambridge as a whole around 17% of collected 

residual waste consists of disposable nappies, which equates to 1.08kg/hh/wk. 

 

4.3 Potential recyclability of the residual waste 

The overall recyclability of the residual waste relates to all the items present that could have been accepted 

into the kerbside recycling schemes currently running in Cambridge. Results from the survey showed that 

the overall recyclability of the residual waste was highest in Acorn 2 households at 45.4%, and lowest in 

Acorn 3 at 27.2%. Across Cambridge it is expected that 35.1% of all residual waste being disposed of is 

recyclable at the kerbside.   

 

The majority of the recyclable materials present within the residual waste were compatible with the green 

organics bin.  On average 22% of residual waste could have been recycled in the green bin ranging from 

15.7% of Acorn 3 waste up to 32.6% of Acorn 4 waste.   

 

On average just over 13% of the residual waste throughout Cambridge was recyclable via the blue bin 

collection.  Around 10 4% of the residual waste from Acorn 4 was compatible with blue bins compared with 

17.5% of that from Acorn 1.   

 

 

Table 4.3.1.1: Proportion of residual waste currently recyclable relative to current schemes (%) 

 

% RECYCLABLE 
MATERIALS WITHIN 
RESIDUAL WASTE 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE 17.47% 15.67% 11.43% 10.41% 11.16% 11.48% 14.01% 13.15% 

GREEN BIN RECYCLABLE 18.94% 29.72% 15.72% 32.64% 16.78% 31.01% 23.21% 21.95% 

TOTAL RECYCLABLE 36.41% 45.39% 27.15% 43.05% 27.94% 42.50% 37.21% 35.11% 

 

 

Page 229



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 31 - 

In terms of the amount of recyclables disposed of it is seen that Acorn 1 householders place around 

1.53kg/hh/wk of materials in residual bins that could either be placed into their blue or green recycling bins. 

For communal bins this amount was 3.1kg/hh/wk.  Across Cambridge around 2.23kg/hh/wk of recyclable 

material is being disposed of in the residual waste. 

 

Table 4.3.1.2: Kg/hh/wk of residual waste currently and potentially recyclable relative to current schemes 

 

KG/HH/WK RECYCLABLE 
MATERIALS WITHIN 
RESIDUAL WASTE 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE 0.73 0.73 0.91 0.68 1.09 0.58 1.17 0.84 

GREEN BIN RECYCLABLE 0.80 1.38 1.25 2.12 1.64 1.57 1.93 1.40 

TOTAL RECYCLABLE 1.53 2.11 2.15 2.80 2.74 2.15 3.10 2.23 

 

 

Figure 4.3.1.1 clearly shows the levels of residual materials currently collectable in the recycling collections 

available in Cambridge. Different households were seen to dispose of differing levels of recyclable 

materials, both in terms of volume and composition (Table 4.3.1.3). Without exception it is seen that the two 

Acorn 5 samples and the waste from the communal bins contained the highest levels of each material 

compatible with kerbside recycling.   

  

Table 4.3.1.3: Kg/hh/wk of residual waste potentially recyclable relative to Acorn (Kg/hh/wk) 

 

KG/HH/WK RECYCLABLE 
MATERIALS WITHIN 
RESIDUAL WASTE 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

RECYCLABLE PAPER 0.43 0.28 0.34 0.30 0.48 0.15 0.37 0.35 

RECYCLABLE CARD & 
CARDBOARD 

0.14 0.12 0.23 0.12 0.33 0.09 0.21 0.18 

RECYCLABLE PLASTIC 
BOTTLES 0.09 0.04 0.06 0.06 0.05 0.04 0.13 0.05 

RECYCLABLE GLASS 0.04 0.19 0.19 0.13 0.13 0.22 0.35 0.16 

RECYCLABLE METALS 0.03 0.10 0.10 0.06 0.11 0.07 0.12 0.09 

RECYCLABLE FOOD 
WASTE 0.69 1.27 1.23 1.66 1.61 1.37 1.80 1.31 

RECYCLABLE GARDEN 
WASTE 0.10 0.11 0.00 0.08 0.03 0.20 0.13 0.07 

RECYCLABLE PET 
BEDDING 

0.00 0.05 0.00 0.05 0.06 0.07 0.21 0.01 

TOTAL RECYCLABLE 1.53 2.16 2.15 2.47 2.80 2.22 3.31 2.23 

Page 230



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 3
2 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.3
.1

.1
: K

g/
hh

/w
k 

of
 r

es
id

ua
l w

as
te

 p
ot

en
tia

lly
 r

ec
yc

la
bl

e 
re

la
tiv

e 
to

 A
co

rn
 (K

g/
hh

/w
k)

 

0
.0

0

0
.5

0

1
.0

0

1
.5

0

2
.0

0

2
.5

0

3
.0

0

3
.5

0

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

E
T
 B

E
D

D
IN

G

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 G

A
R

D
E
N

W
A

S
T
E

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 F

O
O

D
W

A
S

T
E

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 M

E
T
A

L
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 G

L
A

S
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

L
A

S
T
IC

B
O

T
T

L
E
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 C

A
R

D
 &

C
A

R
D

B
O

A
R

D

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P
E
R

Page 231



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 33 - 

 

4.4 Biodegradable waste 

 

These figures are useful when considering the proportion of biodegradable waste, which may be subject to 

the national provision of the Landfill Directive. The data has been calculated using the compositional data in 

accordance with the percentages outlined in previous reports. For example, only 50% of miscellaneous 

combustible materials are considered to be biodegradable whereas 100% of paper and card is considered 

to be biodegradable. 

 

National average figures are around 68%; in this survey the biodegradability of residual waste weighted 

across Cambridge was well below this level at 50.7%. Acorn 4 residual waste displayed the highest 

concentration of biodegradable items at 59.4%, with Acorn 3 residual waste being just 44.4% 

biodegradable. On average, around 3.22kg/hh/wk of biodegradable material was being placed into residual 

containers by Cambridge residents. 

 

Table 4.4.1: Percentage composition of residual waste per Acorn – biodegradable materials 

 

BIODEGRADABLE 
CONTRIBUTION 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

PAPER AND CARD 17.19% 12.94% 10.94% 9.61% 11.96% 7.39% 8.80% 12.25% 

TEXTILES 0.50% 3.12% 2.74% 3.87% 3.62% 1.83% 2.85% 3.10% 

11.26% 8.35% 14.36% 8.84% 16.80% 15.07% 17.84% 12.60% 
MISC. 

COMBUSTIBLE* 
7.94% 5.73% 8.53% 4.78% 12.16% 12.51% 16.76% 8.51% 

PUTRESCIBLES 18.98% 30.22% 16.40% 36.43% 17.10% 31.74% 24.44% 22.53% 

FINES 0.26% 0.00% 0.00% 0.61% 0.46% 0.10% 0.49% 0.18% 

TOTAL 
BIODEGRADABLE 48.18% 54.63% 44.44% 59.36% 49.94% 56.13% 54.42% 50.66% 

 

* Disposable nappies are part of the miscellaneous combustible section. Their contribution to this section of 

biodegradable waste is highlighted in red. 

 

Page 232



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 34 - 

4.5 Packaging Waste 

 

These figures are useful when considering the proportion of packaging waste, which may be subject to the 

national provision of the Landfill Directive. The data has been calculated using a similar method to that used 

to calculate biodegradability. 

 

Levels of packaging in the residual waste ranged from 12.3% in Acorn 5 residual waste to 22.1% in Acorn 2 

residual waste. On average, around 1.08kg/hh/wk of packaging materials were being placed into residual 

containers by Cambridge residents, 17% of the total waste being disposed of. 

  

Table 4.5.1: Percentage composition of residual waste per Acorn – packaging materials 

 

PACKAGING 
CONTRIBUTION 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) 

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 
AV. 

PAPER AND CARD 4.62% 4.43% 3.32% 2.98% 4.28% 2.41% 3.88% 4.09% 

PLASTIC FILM 3.69% 5.06% 4.61% 2.62% 2.89% 5.53% 3.40% 4.11% 

DENSE PLASTIC 7.36% 6.70% 4.88% 3.90% 2.81% 4.28% 4.41% 4.96% 

GLASS 1.01% 4.08% 2.34% 1.99% 1.37% 4.39% 4.18% 2.59% 

METALS 0.63% 1.79% 1.05% 0.89% 0.98% 1.27% 1.17% 1.27% 

TOTAL 
PACKAGING 17.31% 22.06% 16.20% 12.37% 12.34% 17.87% 17.05% 17.02% 

 

Page 233



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 35 - 

 

5)    Mixed dry recycling waste 

5.1 Set out rates and waste generation 

 

Table 5.1.1 and Figure 5.1.1 highlight the set out rates for blue recycling bins observed at the time waste 

was collected for compositional analysis. Table 5.1.2 and Figure 5.1.2 show the amount of mixed recycling 

waste generated in kg/hh/wk. The same houses were visited that had their residual waste surveyed. It was 

possible to calculate the set out relating to the proportion of these households actively placing out their 

waste. The amount of waste in kilograms per household per week is derived from the number of 

households who could set out waste and not just those that are participating. Set out rates for mixed 

recycling waste ranged between 66% for Acorn 4 and 84% for Acorn 3. Across Cambridge it is estimated 

that around 78% of residents are placing out their blue bins for collection.  

 

Table 5.1.1: Average Set Out for mixed recycling waste (%)  

 

ACORN % SET OUT 

1 74% 

2 75% 

3 84% 

4 66% 

5 82% 

5 (LPA) 78% 

COMMUNAL N/A 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE 78% 

 

In this survey the average amount of mixed recycling generated in blue bins ranged between 2.36kg/hh/wk 

from Acorn 1 to 3.83kg/hh/wk from Acorn 3. Across Cambridge around 3.16kg/hh/wk of blue bin recycling 

waste is being placed out for collection at the kerbside.  

 

Table 5.1.2: Average Mixed Recycling waste generation rates (kg/hh/wk)  

 

ACORN KG/HH/WK 

1 2.36 

2 3.07 

3 3.83 

4 2.95 

5 3.09 

5 (LPA) 2.52 

COMMUNAL 3.80 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE 3.16 

 

 

Page 234



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 36 - 

Figure 5.1.1: Average Set Out for mixed recycling waste (%)  

 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

 
 

Figure 5.1.2: Average Mixed recycling waste generation rates (kg/hh/wk)  

 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

 

Page 235



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 37 - 

5.2 Compositional analysis of mixed recycling waste 

This section looks at the average amount and composition of the mixed recycling waste presented by 

households sampled throughout Cambridge. Hand sorting of the recycling waste gave concentration by 

weight figures for the fifteen main categories of waste as well as the more detailed sub-categories.  Results 

can again be expressed in terms of percentage concentration and kg/hh/wk for individual samples and in 

relation to the household Acorn type surveyed.   Table 5.2.1 and Figure 5.2.1 show mixed recycling data in 

terms of percentage composition with Table 5.2.2 and Figure 5.2.2 showing generation rates for major 

materials in terms of kg/hh/wk for each sample taken from the blue recycling bins.  

 

As residual waste will contain a proportion that is classified as potentially recyclable; then recycling waste 

will contain a faction that is deemed to be contamination. That is to say that it is not compatible with the 

materials currently acceptable to the recycling container it is placed into.  

 

Table 5.2.1: Composition of mixed recycling (% concentration) by Acorn 

 

BLUE BIN 
RECYCLING 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

RECYCLABLE PAPER 50.89% 46.17% 23.96% 25.91% 23.28% 31.61% 32.48% 36.16% 

RECYCLABLE CARD 
& CARDBOARD 12.80% 12.42% 14.12% 13.13% 17.38% 13.94% 14.95% 13.85% 

RECYCLABLE 
PLASTIC BOTTLES 4.33% 4.28% 7.60% 5.74% 7.68% 8.58% 7.17% 5.76% 

RECYCLABLE GLASS 18.59% 30.83% 41.13% 36.02% 35.39% 32.94% 25.61% 33.55% 

RECYCLABLE 
METALS 5.08% 2.87% 6.02% 5.95% 5.12% 4.86% 5.56% 4.25% 

CONTAMINATION 
MATERIALS 8.32% 3.43% 7.18% 13.23% 11.15% 8.06% 14.22% 6.42% 

TOTAL RECYCLING 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 

 

Table 5.2.2: Composition of mixed recycling (kg/hh/wk) by Acorn 

 

BLUE BIN 
RECYCLING 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

RECYCLABLE PAPER 1.20 1.42 0.92 0.76 0.72 0.80 1.24 1.14 

RECYCLABLE CARD 
& CARDBOARD 0.30 0.38 0.54 0.39 0.54 0.35 0.57 0.44 

RECYCLABLE 
PLASTIC BOTTLES 

0.10 0.13 0.29 0.17 0.24 0.22 0.27 0.18 

RECYCLABLE GLASS 0.44 0.95 1.58 1.06 1.09 0.83 0.97 1.06 

RECYCLABLE 
METALS 

0.12 0.09 0.23 0.18 0.16 0.12 0.21 0.13 

CONTAMINATION 
MATERIALS 0.20 0.11 0.27 0.39 0.34 0.20 0.54 0.20 

TOTAL RECYCLING 2.36 3.07 3.83 2.95 3.09 2.52 3.80 3.16 

Page 236



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 3
8 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 5

.2
.1

: C
om

po
si

tio
n 

of
 m

ix
ed

 r
ec

yc
lin

g 
(%

) b
y 

A
co

rn
 

0
%

1
0
%

2
0
%

3
0
%

4
0
%

5
0
%

6
0
%

7
0
%

8
0
%

9
0
%

1
0
0
%

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

C
O

N
T
A

M
IN

A
T
IO

N
M

A
T
E
R

IA
L
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 M

E
T
A

L
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 G

L
A

S
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

L
A

S
T
IC

B
O

T
T
L
E
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 C

A
R

D
 &

C
A

R
D

B
O

A
R

D

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P
E
R

 

Page 237



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 3
9 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 5

.2
.2

: C
om

po
si

tio
n 

of
 m

ix
ed

 r
ec

yc
lin

g 
(k

g/
hh

/w
k)

 b
y 

A
co

rn
  

0
.0

0

0
.5

0

1
.0

0

1
.5

0

2
.0

0

2
.5

0

3
.0

0

3
.5

0

4
.0

0

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

C
O

N
T
A

M
IN

A
T
IO

N
M

A
T
E
R

IA
L
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 M

E
T
A

L
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 G

L
A

S
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

L
A

S
T
IC

B
O

T
T
L
E
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 C

A
R

D
 &

C
A

R
D

B
O

A
R

D

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P
E
R

Page 238



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 40 - 

5.3 Materials placed out for mixed recycling collections 

 

This chapter looks in more detail at the individual materials placed out for blue bin recycling collections and 

highlights the effectiveness with which the mixed recycling scheme is capturing these items. Looking at the 

relationship between the residual and recycling waste streams presented will additionally give indications as 

to the overall diversion being achieved in the Cambridge samples. 

 

Table 5.3.1 summarises the capture and diversion rates seen for the range of materials collected in the dry 

recycling collections. Recyclable paper, card & cardboard, plastics, glass and metals are collected in the 

blue bin.   

 

Across Cambridge around 75.6% of all the materials currently collected in blue bins are being correctly 

recycled at the kerbside.  Acorns 1 – 4 all recycled between 73% and 79% of their blue bin materials.  In 

comparison Acorn 5 households recycled 69% whilst those using communal bins recycled just 58%.  

Overall it is estimated that 23.7% of kerbside waste throughout Cambridge is diverted through blue bin 

collections.   

 

Table 5.3.1: Summary table for material capture and diversion rates (%) for mixed recycling  

 

% CAPTURE RATES 
ACORN 

1 
ACORN 

2 
ACORN 

3 
ACORN 

4 
ACORN 

5 
ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

RECYCLABLE PAPER 73.72% 83.14% 72.96% 72.49% 59.96% 84.58% 83.29% 76.73% 

RECYCLABLE CARD & 
CARDBOARD 72.89% 77.28% 72.19% 77.83% 66.54% 82.21% 81.76% 72.67% 

PLASTIC BOTTLES 53.80% 75.57% 82.58% 73.38% 83.76% 83.16% 62.63% 78.24% 

COLOURED GLASS 
BOTTLES & JARS 100.00% 87.60% 99.09% 88.53% 93.66% 72.18% 80.07% 91.55% 

CLEAR GLASS BOTTLES 91.08% 86.29% 70.26% 89.58% 90.54% 81.91% 74.03% 82.40% 

CLEAR GLASS JARS 79.37% 60.32% 96.72% N/A 74.00% 86.58% 65.68% 75.68% 

ALL RECYCLABLE 
GLASS 91.20% 83.29% 89.45% 89.15% 89.05% 78.94% 73.64% 86.53% 

DRINK CANS 67.43% 75.29% 75.31% 82.71% 63.14% 64.51% 68.55% 71.54% 

FOOD TINS 88.57% 51.11% 78.10% 73.66% 70.06% 75.17% 65.10% 65.51% 

AEROSOLS 100.00% 35.30% 71.44% 61.23% 46.61% 52.05% 43.96% 51.30% 

OTHER RECYCLABLE 
METALS 19.96% 7.86% 25.61% 26.29% 12.14% 29.91% 63.26% 14.45% 

ALL RECYCLABLE 
METALS 78.80% 47.98% 69.56% 73.66% 59.18% 62.96% 63.49% 58.87% 

ALL BLUE BIN 
MATERIALS 72.69% 79.14% 78.60% 77.33% 69.48% 77.35% 58.45% 76.55% 

% DIVERSION 15.19% 30.96% 21.27% 21.04% 18.11% 21.66% 22.01% 23.69% 

Page 239



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 41 - 

5.3.1 Paper Capture 

Acorn 2 residents captured the highest proportion of their recyclable paper with 82% correctly being 

recycled; they generated 1.73kg/hh/wk of this material. Residents in communal bin areas captured the least 

recyclable paper at 56% additionally they also generated the most of this recyclable paper at 2.19kg/hh/wk.   

 

Across Cambridge it is estimated that 1.50kg/hh/wk of recyclable paper is generated with around 76% 

being correctly placed into the blue bin*.   

 

There are many different forms of paper and decisions have to be made by residents as to whether a 

particular piece of paper is to go into the recycling or residual waste.  On average, the majority of all 

recyclable forms of paper are being correctly diverted by all the residents sampled although there is around 

0.36kg/hh/wk of potentially recyclable paper not being placed into blue bins. On average 23% of recyclable 

paper is in the residual bin with 1% in the organic bin.  Figure 5.3.2.1 shows the distribution of recyclable 

paper throughout the residual and recycling waste by Acorn category. 

 

Figure 5.3.1.1: Distribution of recyclable paper within residual and mixed recycling samples (kg/hh/wk) 

 

0.00

0.25

0.50

0.75

1.00

1.25

1.50

1.75

2.00

2.25

2.50

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL   WEIGHTED
AV.

RECYCLABLE PAPER BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE PAPER RESIDUAL BIN RECYCLABLE PAPER ORGANIC BIN

 
* This capture rate includes the paper disposed of in the organics bin.  Although it is preferential that 
recyclable paper is put into the blue bin it is acceptable for the green bin.  Shredded paper is only 
acceptable in green bins.  

Page 240



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 42 - 

5.3.2 Card & Cardboard Capture 

Acorn 2 residents captured the highest proportion of their recyclable card & cardboard with 73% correctly 

being recycled; they generated 0.52kg/hh/wk of this material. Residents in communal bin areas captured 

the least at less than 44% additionally they also generated the most of this recyclable card & cardboard at 

1.30kg/hh/wk.   

 

Across Cambridge it is estimated that 0.67kg/hh/wk of recyclable paper is generated with around 65% 

being correctly placed into the blue bin*.   

 

As for paper,  are many different forms of card & cardboard and decisions have to be made by residents as 

to whether a particular piece is to go into the recycling or residual waste.  With the exception of residents in 

the communal bin sample, the majority of all recyclable forms of card & cardboard are being correctly 

diverted by all the residents surveyed although there is around 0.24kg/hh/wk of potentially recyclable card & 

cardboard not being placed into blue bins. On average 27% of recyclable card & cardboard is in the 

residual bin with 8% in the organic bin.  Figure 5.3.3.1 shows the distribution of recyclable card & cardboard 

throughout the residual and recycling waste by Acorn category. 

 

Figure 5.3.2.1: Distribution of recyclable card within residual and mixed recycling samples (kg/hh/wk) 

0.00

0.25

0.50

0.75

1.00

1.25

1.50

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL   WEIGHTED
AV.

RECYCLABLE CARD BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE CARD RESIDUAL BIN RECYCLABLE CARD ORGANIC BIN

 

* This capture rate includes certain card disposed of in the organics bin.  Although it is preferential that 
recyclable card & cardboard is put into the blue bin it is acceptable for the green bin.  Tetrapaks are only 
acceptable in blue bins.  

Page 241



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 43 - 

5.3.3 Plastic Bottles Capture 

Acorn 5 residents captured the highest proportion of their recyclable plastic bottles with 84% correctly being 

recycled; they generated 0.26kg/hh/wk of this material. Residents in Acorn 1 areas captured the least 

recyclable paper at 54% additionally they generated 0.19kg/hh/wk.   

 

Across Cambridge it is estimated that 0.23kg/hh/wk of recyclable plastic bottles are generated with around 

78% being correctly placed into the blue bin.   

 

Plastic bottles are easily identifiable when compared with other non-recyclable plastics.  The majority of all 

recyclable plastic bottles are being correctly diverted by all the residents surveyed and there is just 

0.05kg/hh/wk of these bottles not being placed into blue bins. On average 22% of recyclable plastic bottles 

are in the residual bin.  Figure 5.3.3.1 shows the distribution of recyclable plastic bottles throughout the 

residual and recycling waste by Acorn category. 

 

Figure 5.3.3.1: Distribution of recyclable plastic bottles within residual and mixed recycling samples (kg/hh/wk) 

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL   WEIGHTED
AV.

RECYCLABLE PLASTIC BOTTLES ORGANIC BIN

RECYCLABLE PLASTIC BOTTLES RESIDUAL BIN

RECYCLABLE PLASTIC BOTTLES BLUE BIN

Page 242



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 44 - 

5.3.4 Glass Capture 

 

Acorn 1 residents captured the highest proportion of their recyclable glass with 91% correctly being 

recycled, while residents from communal bin areas captured 74%. Acorn 3 residents produced the most 

recyclable glass in their combined kerbside waste at 1.76kg/hh/wk compared with 0.48kg/hh/wk from Acorn 

1. On average, 87% of all recyclable glass is being correctly diverted by the Cambridge residents sampled 

with around 1.23kg/hh/wk being sampled. 

 

Overall capture rates for coloured glass bottles were 92% with 82% of clear glass bottles similarly captured.  

Clear glass is generally considered to be more highly valued as a recyclate and it was seen that just 76% of 

glass jars were captured.   It is often seen to be the case that empty jars are more messy than empty 

bottles and residents may not clean them for recycling, thus choosing to place them in the residual bins.   

On average, the vast majority of all recyclable forms of glass are being correctly diverted by the residents 

sampled although there is around 13% or 0.16kg/hh/wk of potentially recyclable glass not being placed into 

blue bins.  Figure 5.3.4.1 shows the distribution of recyclable glass throughout the residual and mixed 

recycling waste. 

 

Figure 5.3.4.1: Distribution of recyclable glass within residual and mixed recycling samples (kg/hh/wk)  

 

0.00

0.20

0.40

0.60

0.80

1.00

1.20

1.40

1.60

1.80

2.00

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL   WEIGHTED
AV.

RECYCLABLE GLASS BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE GLASS RESIDUAL BIN RECYCLABLE GLASS ORGANIC BIN

 

Page 243



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 45 - 

5.3.5 Metals Capture 

 

Acorn 1 residents captured the highest proportion of their recyclable metals with 79% correctly being 

recycled, while residents from Acorn 2 captured just 48%. Acorn 3 and communal bin users produced the 

most recyclable metals in their combined kerbside waste at 0.33kg/hh/wk compared with 0.15kg/hh/wk from 

Acorn 1. On average, 59% of all recyclable metals are being correctly diverted by Cambridge residents 

sampled with around 0.23kg/hh/wk being generated. 

 

Overall capture rates for drinks cans were 72%, with 66% of food tins recycled. It is often seen to be the 

case that residents are unwilling to clean out food tins before recycling and this can lead to low capture 

rates when compared with cleaner drinks cans. Capture rates for empty aerosols were seen to be lower 

with just 51% of those available being placed into recycling containers. With the exception of Acorn 2 

residents, the majority of all recyclable forms of metals are being correctly diverted, although there is around 

0.09kg/hh/wk of potentially recyclable metal not being placed into blue bins. On average 41% of recyclable 

metal are in the residual bin. Figure 5.3.5.1 shows the distribution of recyclable metals throughout the 

residual and mixed recycling waste. 

 

Figure 5.3.5.1: Distribution of recyclable metals within residual and mixed recycling samples (kg/hh/wk)  

 

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL   WEIGHTED
AV.

RECYCLABLE METALS BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE METALS RESIDUAL BIN RECYCLABLE METALS ORGANIC BIN

 

Page 244



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 4
6 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 5

.3
.5

.2
: S

um
m

ar
y 

ch
ar

t o
f c

ap
tu

re
 r

at
es

 fo
r 

bl
ue

 b
in

 r
ec

yc
la

bl
es

.  

14
%

51
%

66
%

72
%73
%76

%77
%78
%82

%

92
%

0%
10

%
20

%
30

%
40

%
50

%
60

%
70

%
80

%
90

%
10

0%

O
TH

ER
 R

EC
Y

CL
A

BL
E 

M
ET

A
LS

A
ER

O
SO

LS

FO
O

D 
TI

NS

DR
IN

K 
CA

NS

RE
CY

CL
A

BL
E 

CA
RD

 &
 C

A
RD

BO
A

RD

CL
EA

R 
G

LA
SS

 J
A

RS

RE
CY

CL
A

BL
E 

PA
PE

R

PL
A

ST
IC

 B
O

TT
LE

S

CL
EA

R 
G

LA
SS

 B
O

TT
LE

S

CO
LO

UR
ED

 G
LA

SS
 B

O
TT

LE
S 

& 
JA

RS

 

 

Page 245



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 47 - 

5.4 Blue Bin Recycling Contamination 

 

From Table 5.2.1 it has been shown that on average 6.4% of blue bin recycling is made up of 

contamination. This equates to around 0.20kg/hh/wk.  This section looks to breakdown the amounts and 

concentrations of various contaminants being placed into the recycling waste in Cambridge. 

 

Some forms of contamination may be due to residents’ lack of knowledge in relation to the recycling 

scheme. For example a householder may believe all plastic containers are accepted alongside recyclable 

plastic bottles. Other contamination will be formed from waste that is totally unrelated to the materials 

collected (i.e. disposable nappies, wood or bagged kitchen waste). Table 5.4.1 and Figure 5.4.1 show the 

amounts of contamination materials recovered from the blue bin.  

 

The blue bin contained between 0.11kg/hh/wk (Acorn 2) and 0.54kg/hh/wk (communal bin households) of 

contamination.   

 

 

Table 5.4.1: Breakdown of contamination materials in the blue bin recycling waste (kg/hh/wk) 

 

BLUE BIN 
CONTAMINATION 

KG/HH/WK 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PAPER & CARD 0.04 0.03 0.06 0.04 0.13 0.04 0.06 0.06 

PLASTIC FILM 0.01 0.01 0.04 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.02 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PLASTICS 0.09 0.04 0.07 0.14 0.08 0.11 0.19 0.06 

TEXTILES 0.00 0.01 0.03 0.06 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
GLASS 

0.00 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.00 <0.01 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
METALS 0.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.01 <0.01 

FOOD WASTE 0.00 0.01 0.02 0.10 0.08 0.01 0.07 0.03 

LIQUIDS 0.01 0.00 0.01 0.04 0.00 0.00 0.02 <0.01 

ALL OTHER 
CONTAMINATION 0.01 0.00 0.04 0.00 0.04 0.01 0.17 0.02 

TOTAL 
CONTAMINATION 0.20 0.11 0.27 0.39 0.34 0.20 0.54 0.20 

 

Page 246



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 4
8 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 5

.4
.1

: B
re

ak
do

w
n 

of
 c

on
ta

m
in

at
io

n 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 p
re

se
nt

 w
ith

in
 b

lu
e 

bi
n 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
co

nt
ai

ne
rs

 (k
g/

hh
/w

k)
. 

0
.0

0

0
.1

0

0
.2

0

0
.3

0

0
.4

0

0
.5

0

0
.6

0

A
C

O
R

N
 1

A
C

O
R

N
 2

A
C

O
R

N
 3

A
C

O
R

N
 4

A
C

O
R

N
 5

A
C

O
R

N
 5

(L
P

A
)

C
O

M
M

U
N

A
L

  
W

E
IG

H
T
E
D

A
V

.

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P

E
R

 &
 C

A
R

D
P
L
A

S
T
IC

 F
IL

M
N

O
N

-R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

L
A

S
T
IC

S
T
E
X

T
IL

E
S

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 G

L
A

S
S

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

 M
E
T
A

L
S

F
O

O
D

 W
A

S
T
E

L
IQ

U
ID

S
A

L
L
 O

T
H

E
R

 C
O

N
T
A

M
IN

A
T
IO

N

Page 247



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 49 - 

Table 5.4.2 shows the levels of contamination materials recovered from the blue bin as a percentage of the 

total.   On average 6.4% of blue bin recycling is deemed to be contamination.  Almost 4% of contamination 

is due to non-recyclable plastic containers, paper and card.  Just over 3% of Acorn 2 recycling was classed 

as contamination compared with over 14% of that from households on communal bins.    

 

Table 5.4.2: Levels of contamination within the blue bin recycling waste (% of total) 

 

BLUE BIN 
CONTAMINATION % 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PAPER & CARD 1.84% 0.90% 1.67% 1.35% 4.23% 1.61% 1.52% 1.82% 

PLASTIC FILM 0.39% 0.39% 1.07% 0.33% 0.43% 0.70% 0.53% 0.54% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PLASTICS 3.65% 1.42% 1.75% 4.71% 2.68% 4.25% 5.04% 1.98% 

TEXTILES 0.00% 0.17% 0.88% 1.96% 0.02% 0.17% 0.00% 0.35% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
GLASS 0.05% 0.25% 0.04% 0.00% 0.10% 0.40% 0.00% 0.16% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
METALS 1.52% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.50% 0.13% 0.08% 

FOOD WASTE 0.00% 0.31% 0.49% 3.54% 2.54% 0.23% 1.90% 0.89% 

LIQUIDS 0.42% 0.00% 0.26% 1.27% 0.00% 0.00% 0.57% 0.12% 

ALL OTHER 
CONTAMINATION 0.44% 0.00% 1.01% 0.07% 1.14% 0.21% 4.53% 0.48% 

TOTAL 
CONTAMINATION 8.32% 3.43% 7.18% 13.23% 11.15% 8.06% 14.22% 6.42% 

 

 

Page 248



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 50 - 

Table 5.4.3 and Figure 5.4.2 show a breakdown of the contaminants to highlight materials causing the 

greatest contribution to the overall contamination levels within blue bins. Around 31% of the contamination 

was due to non-recyclable dense plastics, these formed over half of the contamination from Acorn 5(LPA) 

households.  Over 28% of contamination was due to non-recyclable paper and card; this formed almost 

40% of Acorn 5 contamination.  Up to 14% of contamination was formed from food waste and this material 

represented a quarter of the overall contamination from Acorn 4 and 5 households.  

 

Blue bins from communal households had very high levels of miscellaneous contamination at 32% of the 

total.  These items are typical of general residual waste being placed into recycling bins.  

 

Table 5.4.3: Proportional breakdown of blue bin contaminants (% of contamination).  

 

% OF 
CONTAMINANTS 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PAPER & CARD 22.09% 26.25% 23.24% 10.23% 37.98% 19.92% 10.70% 28.31% 

PLASTIC FILM 4.74% 11.25% 14.85% 2.49% 3.87% 8.66% 3.70% 8.48% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PLASTICS 43.90% 41.25% 24.42% 35.58% 24.04% 52.71% 35.46% 30.78% 

TEXTILES 0.00% 4.86% 12.28% 14.84% 0.21% 2.16% 0.00% 5.38% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
GLASS 0.64% 7.36% 0.62% 0.00% 0.88% 4.96% 0.00% 2.43% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
METALS 18.22% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 6.17% 0.92% 1.27% 

FOOD WASTE 0.00% 9.03% 6.80% 26.73% 22.82% 2.86% 13.33% 13.94% 

LIQUIDS 5.09% 0.00% 3.68% 9.59% 0.00% 0.00% 4.04% 1.91% 

ALL OTHER 
CONTAMINATION 5.32% 0.00% 14.12% 0.55% 10.19% 2.55% 31.86% 7.52% 

TOTAL 
CONTAMINATION 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

 

 

 

Page 249



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 5
1 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 5

.4
.2

: P
ro

po
rt

io
na

l b
re

ak
do

w
n 

of
 b

lu
e 

bi
n 

co
nt

am
in

an
ts

 (%
 o

f c
on

ta
m

in
at

io
n)

.  

0
%

1
0
%

2
0
%

3
0
%

4
0
%

5
0
%

6
0
%

7
0
%

8
0
%

9
0
%

1
0
0
%

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

A
L
L
 O

T
H

E
R

 C
O

N
T
A

M
IN

A
T
IO

N

L
IQ

U
ID

S

F
O

O
D

 W
A

S
T
E

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

 M
E
T

A
L
S

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

 G
L
A

S
S

T
E
X

T
IL

E
S

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

 P
L
A

S
T

IC
S

P
L
A

S
T
IC

 F
IL

M

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

 P
A

P
E

R
 &

C
A

R
D

Page 250



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 52 - 

6)   Green Bin Organic Recycling Waste 

 

6.1 Set out rates and waste generation 

 

Table 6.1.1 and Figure 6.1.1 highlight the average set out rates for green bin organic recycling waste 

observed during the compositional analysis. Table 6.1.2 and Figure 6.1.2 show the average amounts of this 

recycling waste generated in kg/hh/wk.  Set out rates ranged between 50% for Acorn 4 and 65% for Acorn 

5(LPA) were observed.  Across Cambridge around 58% of residents are opting to place out organic waste 

containers for collection. 

 

Table 6.1.1: Average Set Out For Green Bin Waste (%)  

 

ACORN % SET OUT 

1 61% 

2 57% 

3 63% 

4 50% 

5 56% 

5 (LPA) 65% 

COMMUNAL N/A 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE 58% 

 
 

Figure 6.1.1: Average Set Out For Green Bin Waste (%) 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

 

Page 251



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 53 - 

In this survey the amount of green bin recycling generated ranged between 1.86kg/hh/wk from Acorn 2 to 

7.66kg/hh/wk from Acorn 1. Across Cambridge around 2.96kg/hh/wk organically recycled waste is being 

collected from the kerbside. 

 

Table 6.1.2: Average green bin waste generation rates (kg/hh/wk) 

 

ACORN KG/HH/WK 

1 7.66 

2 1.86 

3 4.95 

4 2.71 

5 2.27 

5 (LPA) 3.13 

COMMUNAL 2.69 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE 2.96 

 

 
 

Figure 6.1.2: Average green bin waste generation rates (kg/hh/wk)  

 

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

7.00

8.00

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

 

 

 

 

Page 252



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 54 - 

6.2 Compositional analysis of green recycling bins 

 

This section looks at the average amount and composition of the green bin organic recycling waste 

presented by participating households sampled throughout Cambridge. Results can again be expressed in 

terms of percentage concentration and kg/hh/wk for individual samples and in relation to the household 

Acorn surveyed. 

 

Table 6.2.1 and Figure 6.2.1 show green bin recycling data in terms of percentage composition with Table 

6.2.2 and Figure 6.2.2 showing average generation rates for major materials in terms of kg/hh/wk. As 

residual waste will contain a proportion that is classified as potentially recyclable; then recycling waste will 

contain a faction that is deemed to be contamination.  That is to say that it is not compatible with the 

materials currently acceptable to the green bin recycling scheme.  

 

Table 6.2.1: Average Composition of organic recycling (% concentration) by Acorn 

 

ORGANIC RECYCLING 
KG/HH/WK 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) 

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 
AV. 

HOME COMPOSTABLE 
FOODS 

2.50% 1.99% 11.17% 10.82% 6.71% 2.90% 25.30% 5.93% 

NON-HOME 
COMPOSTABLE FOODS 0.66% 15.64% 3.09% 7.53% 0.88% 9.13% 1.41% 6.38% 

FLORA ORGANICS 92.93% 79.43% 81.99% 74.25% 77.77% 72.68% 0.39% 82.30% 

OTHER ACCEPTABLE 
ORGANICS 3.67% 2.83% 1.24% 2.73% 4.95% 13.64% 41.62% 2.84% 

SOIL & TURF 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 4.22% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.13% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PAPER & CARD 

0.00% 0.11% 0.02% 0.08% 0.13% 1.01% 8.60% 0.06% 

PLASTICS 0.00% 0.00% 0.02% 0.00% 0.07% 0.00% 6.17% 0.02% 

TEXTILES 0.24% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 3.37% 0.00% 2.21% 0.59% 

GLASS 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.53% 0.00% 

METALS 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.25% 0.00% 

ALL OTHER WASTE 0.00% 0.00% 2.47% 0.36% 6.13% 0.64% 13.52% 1.75% 

TOTAL 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 

 

Page 253



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 55 - 

Table 6.2.2: Average Composition of organic recycling (kg/hh/wk) by Acorn 

 

 

ORGANIC RECYCLING 
KG/HH/WK 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

HOME COMPOSTABLE 
FOODS 0.19 0.04 0.55 0.29 0.15 0.09 0.68 0.18 

NON-HOME 
COMPOSTABLE FOODS 0.05 0.29 0.15 0.20 0.02 0.29 0.04 0.19 

FLORA ORGANICS 7.12 1.48 4.06 2.01 1.77 2.28 0.01 2.43 

OTHER ACCEPTABLE 
ORGANICS 

0.28 0.05 0.06 0.07 0.11 0.43 1.12 0.08 

SOIL & TURF 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PAPER & CARD 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.03 0.23 0.00 

PLASTICS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.17 0.00 

TEXTILES 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.08 0.00 0.06 0.02 

GLASS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.00 

METALS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.00 

ALL OTHER WASTE 0.00 0.00 0.12 0.01 0.14 0.02 0.36 0.05 

TOTAL 7.66 1.86 4.95 2.71 2.27 3.13 2.69 2.96 

Page 254



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 5
6 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 6

.2
.1

: A
ve

ra
ge

 C
om

po
si

tio
n 

of
 o

rg
an

ic
 r

ec
yc

lin
g 

(%
 b

y 
w

ei
gh

t) 
by

 A
co

rn
 

0
%

1
0
%

2
0
%

3
0
%

4
0
%

5
0
%

6
0
%

7
0
%

8
0
%

9
0
%

1
0
0
%

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

A
L
L
 O

T
H

E
R

 W
A

S
T
E

M
E
T
A

L
S

G
L
A

S
S

T
E
X

T
IL

E
S

P
L
A

S
T
IC

S

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P
E
R

&
 C

A
R

D

S
O

IL
 &

 T
U

R
F

O
T
H

E
R

 A
C

C
E
P
T
A

B
L
E

O
R

G
A

N
IC

S

F
L
O

R
A

 O
R

G
A

N
IC

S

N
O

N
-H

O
M

E
 C

O
M

P
O

S
T
A

B
L
E

F
O

O
D

S

H
O

M
E
 C

O
M

P
O

S
T
A

B
L
E

F
O

O
D

S

 

Page 255



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 5
7 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 6

.2
.2

: C
om

po
si

tio
n 

of
 o

rg
an

ic
 r

ec
yc

lin
g 

(k
g/

hh
/w

k)
 b

y 
A

co
rn

 

 

0
.0

1
.0

2
.0

3
.0

4
.0

5
.0

6
.0

7
.0

8
.0

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5
 (L

PA
)

C
O

M
M
U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

A
L
L
 O

T
H

E
R

 W
A

S
T
E

M
E
T
A

L
S

G
L
A

S
S

T
E
X

T
IL

E
S

P
L
A

S
T
IC

S

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P
E
R

&
 C

A
R

D

S
O

IL
 &

 T
U

R
F

O
T
H

E
R

 A
C

C
E
P
T
A

B
L
E

O
R

G
A

N
IC

S

F
L
O

R
A

 O
R

G
A

N
IC

S

N
O

N
-H

O
M

E
 C

O
M

P
O

S
T
A

B
L
E

F
O

O
D

S

H
O

M
E
 C

O
M

P
O

S
T
A

B
L
E

F
O

O
D

S

Page 256



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 58 - 

6.3 Materials placed out for green bin recycling collections 

 

This chapter looks in more detail at the individual materials placed out for green bin recycling collections 

and highlights the effectiveness with which this scheme is capturing these items.  Looking at the 

relationship between the residual, dry recycling and green bin recycling waste presented will additionally 

give indications as to the overall diversion being achieved throughout Cambridge. 

 

Table 6.3.1: Summary table for material capture and diversion rates (%) for green bin recycling 

 

CAPTURE & 
DIVERSION 
RATES (%) 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

HOME COMPOSTABLE 
FOODS 46.37% 4.67% 58.24% 38.15% 24.18% 14.92% 46.36% 23.12% 

NON-HOME 
COMPOSTABLE 

FOODS* 
9.71% 35.45% 15.16% 13.65% 1.61% 25.11% 3.37% 20.00% 

ALL FOOD WASTE 25.96% 20.33% 36.04% 21.97% 9.25% 21.56% 27.69% 21.39% 

FLORA ORGANICS 98.55% 93.12% 100.00% 96.06% 98.29% 91.73% 7.40% 97.15% 

PET BEDDING & 
UNTREATED WOOD 100.00% N/A N/A 0.00% N/A 100.00% 100.00% 75.69% 

ACCEPTABLE PAPER & 
CARD 4.14% 2.37% 3.07% 4.56% 5.27% 7.22% 32.03% 3.28% 

ALL ORGANICS 90.49% 56.22% 79.01% 52.97% 52.93% 65.41% 27.50% 66.27% 

% DIVERSION 53.76% 19.36% 28.89% 21.23% 13.54% 28.75% 12.45% 23.10% 

 

* Contains all unidentifiable and unsortable composite food waste.  Some of this will be home compostable 

fragments, however, due to a significant proportion being non fruit and vegetable waste; this faction is 

deemed non-home compostable.  

 

Table 6.3.1 summarises the average capture and diversion rates seen for materials achieved for the green 

bin organic recycling collections. By far the most efficient recyclers of organic waste were Acorn 1 

households who recycled over 90% of that being generated.  Acorn 3 households captured over 79% of 

their organics whilst the rate for Acorns 2, 4 and 5 was between 53% and 56%.  IN contrast it was seen that 

residents in communal bin areas only managed to capture 27.5% of the organic waste that they were 

disposing of.  Across Cambridge, 66.3% of the organics available for green bin recycling were correctly 

captured by participating households.   

Page 257



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 59 - 

6.3.1 Paper & Card Capture 

 

Residents are able to recycle paper, thin card and corrugated cardboard in their green bins. It is however 

the case that with the exception of shredded paper, it is preferable for these recyclables to be placed into 

blue recycling bins.  

 

Figure 6.3.1.1. shows the distribution of recyclable paper, card and cardboard throughout the three kerbside 

schemes by Acorn category.  It is clear that residents using communal bins not only generate the most 

recyclable paper and card; they also place by far the highest proportion in their green bins at 32%.  

Typically between 2% and 5% of all recyclable paper and card was present in green bins for Acorns 1 – 5 

with just over 7% seen for the Acorn 5(LPA) sample.  

 

Figure 6.3.1.1   Distribution of recyclable paper & card within residual and recycling samples (kg/hh/wk) 

 

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

ACORN 1

ACORN 2

ACORN 3

ACORN 4

ACORN 5

ACORN 5 
(L

PA)

COMMUNAL

  W
EIG

HTED A
V.

RECYCLABLE PAPER &
CARD - RESIDUAL BIN

RECYCLABLE PAPER &
CARD - BLUE BIN

RECYCLABLE PAPER &
CARD - GREEN BIN

 
 

 

 

 

Page 258



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 60 - 

6.3.2 Garden Waste Capture 

Residents are able to recycle garden clippings in their green bins. With the exception of the communal bin 

residents it was seen that garden waste was by far the greatest constituent of the presented organic 

recycling.    Just 7% of garden waste was captured in communal bins areas although very little of this type 

of waste is actually generated.  On average it is seen that over 97% of the available garden waste is 

recycled by Cambridge residents.  All Acorns recorded capture rates of between 92% and 100%.   

 

It is seen that communal bin households generated just 0.13kg/hh/wk of recyclable garden waste compared 

with 7.23kg/hh/wk from Acorn 1 households.  On average residents throughout Cambridge create 

2.51kg/hh/wk of recyclable garden waste.   

 

Soil and turf are also classed as garden waste but are not allowable in green bins. This waste was only 

generated in low amounts across Cambridge (0.02kg/hh/wk) with around 22% ending up in green bins.  

 

 

Figure 6.3.2.1. Distribution of garden waste within residual and recycling samples (kg/hh/wk)  

 

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

ACO
RN 1

ACORN 2

ACORN 3

ACO
RN 4

ACORN 5

ACORN 5 
(L

PA)

CO
MMUNAL

  W
EIG

HTED A
V.

RECYCLABLE GARDEN
WASTE - RESIDUAL BIN

RECYCLABLE GARDEN
WASTE - BLUE BIN

RECYCLABLE GARDEN
WASTE - GREEN BIN

 

 

 

 

Page 259



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 61 - 

6.3.3 Food Waste Capture 

Residents are able to all forms of food waste in their green bins. Capture rates were seen to vary greatly 

across the samples taken.  Food waste can broadly be divided into two types.  Firstly ‘home-compostable’ 

which covers things like raw fruit and vegetable waste, egg shells, tea bags etc which could potentially be 

composted in standard compost bins.  Non-home compostable food are generally cooked and prepared 

foods and plate scrapings which residents would not normally compost with their garden, fruit and 

vegetable wastes.   

 

Overall capture rates for all food waste varied at between 9.3% in Acorn 5 up to 36% in Acorn 3.  This 

represented an average figure of 21.4% for Cambridge.    Acorn 1 households produced just 0.93kg/hh/wk 

of total food waste compared with 2.59kg/hh/wk from communal bin households.  On average Cambridge 

residents are producing of 1.70kg/hh/wk of food waste.   

 

As well as differences in the levels and capture rates for food waste between the Acorn samples, there was 

a significant difference between the types of food being recycled.  Home compostable food waste is 

generally less ‘messy’ than non-home compostable food waste and was seen to have capture rates of 

between 4.7% (Acorn 2) and 58.2% (Acorn 3) at an average of 23.1%.  Conversely capture rates for non-

home compostable food waste were lower at between 1.6% (Acorn 5) and 35.5% (Acorn 2); an average of 

20%.   

 

In terms of diversion solely through the green bin recycling it is seen that just 12.5% diversion is achieved 

by communal bin users compared with almost 54% for Acorn 1.  Overall this is an average diversion of 

23.1% which is very similar to that recorded for blue bins.  Total diversion rates for the combined recycling 

collections are shown in section 7.   

 

With the exception of communal bin users, all sample areas were seen to generate more non-home 

compostable food waste than home compostable food waste at average figures of 0.94kg/hh/wk and 

0.76kg/hh/wk respectively.  During the sorting of the waste it is the method to class some of the food waste 

as unidentifiable or unsortable.  This is basically a degraded mixture of foods which are recyclable and are 

classified as non-compostable as will contain waste other than fruit and vegetable matter.   

 

Figure 6.3.3.1 shows the distribution and levels of food waste throughout the residual and green bin 

containers. Overall, 0.58kg/hh/wk of home compostable and 0.75kg/hh/wk of non-home composable food 

waste is not being recycled in the green bins.  This represents a total of 1.34kg/hh/wk of potentially 

recyclable material.  

Page 260



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 6
2 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 6

.3
.2

.1
. D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

of
 fo

od
 w

as
te

 w
ith

in
 r

es
id

ua
l a

nd
 r

ec
yc

lin
g 

sa
m

pl
es

 (k
g/

hh
/w

k)
  

0
.0

0
.5

1
.0

1
.5

2
.0

2
.5

3
.0

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O
R
N
 3

AC
O
R
N
 4

AC
O
R
N
 5

AC
O
R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O
M

M
U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

N
O

N
-H

O
M

E
 C

O
M

P
O

S
T

A
B

L
E

F
O

O
D

S
 -

 R
E
S

ID
U

A
L
 B

IN

H
O

M
E

 C
O

M
P
O

S
T

A
B

L
E

F
O

O
D

S
 -

 R
E
S

ID
U

A
L
 B

IN

A
L

L
 F

O
O

D
 W

A
S

T
E

 -
 B

L
U

E
B

IN

N
O

N
-H

O
M

E
 C

O
M

P
O

S
T

A
B

L
E

F
O

O
D

S
 -

 G
R

E
E
N

 B
IN

H
O

M
E

 C
O

M
P
O

S
T

A
B

L
E

F
O

O
D

S
 -

 G
R

E
E
N

 B
IN

Page 261



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 63 - 

6.4 Green Bin Recycling Contamination 

 

From Table 6.2.1 it has been shown that between 0.1% (Acorn 2) and 31.3% (communal bin users) of 

collected green bin recycling is due to contamination. Across Cambridge approximately 2.6% of green bin 

recycling waste was not compatible with the accepted materials, equating to 0.08kg/hh/wk. This section 

looks to breakdown the amounts and concentrations of various contaminants being placed into the green 

bin recycling waste in Cambridge.  

 

Table 6.4.1 and Figures 6.4.1 and 6.4.2 show the proportions of contamination materials in each area. 

 

Table 6.4.1: Percentage breakdown of contamination in green bin waste 

 

% BREAKDOWN OF 
CONTAMINANTS 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

SOIL & TURF 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 90.45% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 5.28% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PAPER & CARD 0.00% 100.00% 0.65% 1.77% 1.31% 61.27% 27.50% 2.47% 

PLASTICS 0.00% 0.00% 0.65% 0.00% 0.76% 0.00% 19.71% 0.66% 

TEXTILES 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 34.71% 0.00% 7.07% 22.96% 

GLASS 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 1.70% <0.01% 

METALS 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.79% <0.01% 

ALL OTHER WASTE 0.00% 0.00% 98.70% 7.78% 63.22% 38.73% 43.22% 68.63% 

TOTAL 
CONTAMINATION 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

CONTAMINATION 
KG/HH/WK 0.02 0.00 0.12 0.13 0.22 0.05 0.84 0.08 

% CONTAMINATION  0.24% 0.11% 2.50% 4.67% 9.70% 1.64% 31.28% 2.55% 

 

 

 

 

Page 262



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 64 - 

Figure 6.4.1: Contamination materials in green bin recycling 

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.9

ACORN 1

ACORN 2

ACORN 3

ACORN 4

ACORN 5

ACO
RN 5 

(L
PA)

COMMUNAL

  W
EIG

HTED A
V.

ALL OTHER WASTE

METALS

GLASS

TEXTILES

PLASTICS

NON-RECYCLABLE PAPER
& CARD

SOIL & TURF

 
 

Figure 6.4.2: % breakdown of contaminants within green recycling bins 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

ACORN 1

ACORN 2

ACORN 3

ACORN 4

ACORN 5

ACORN 5 
(L

PA)

COMMUNAL

  W
EIG

HTED A
V.

ALL OTHER WASTE

METALS

GLASS

TEXTILES

PLASTICS

NON-RECYCLABLE PAPER
& CARD

SOIL & TURF

 

Page 263



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 65 - 

Overall it was seen that 68.8% of the contamination was due to miscellaneous other waste.  This would be 

a mixture of general waste that can generally be considered to be residual waste.  This material formed up 

to 99% of the contamination seen in Acorn 3 green bins.  Up to 23% of contamination was due to textile 

waste.  Around 35% of Acorn 5 green bin contamination was due to waste textiles.  All of the contamination 

in Acorn 2 green bins was due to non-recyclable paper and card and over 90% of the contamination in 

Acorn 4 was due to soil and turf.  Combined these wastes formed just under 8% of the contamination.  

 

The composition of the organic recycling collected from households using communal bins was markedly 

different from all of the other samples.  Of the 2.69kg/hh/wk presented up to 0.84kg/hh/wk or 31.3% was 

due to contaminants; this was far greater than any of the other samples.  A wide range of contaminants 

including general residual waste, glass, metal and plastic were seen in these recycling bins and they 

appear to be used by residents as general waste disposal containers.  These bins also contain significantly 

more paper and cardboard waste than other sample surveyed.  

 

 

Figure 6.4.3 % breakdown of contaminants within green recycling bins from communal users 

 

GLASS
0.5%

METALS
0.2%

ALL OTHER WASTE
13.5%

TEXTILES
2.2%

PLASTICS
6.2%

OTHER ORGANICS
1.2%

GARDEN WASTE
0.4%

FOOD WASTE
26.7%

ACCEPTABLE 
PAPER & CARD

40.4%

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PAPER & CARD

8.6%

 
 

 

Page 264



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 66 - 

 

7)    Overall Diversion through Recycling Collections 

 

7.1 Total waste generation levels & diversion 

 

Capture rates determine how much of a material that should be recycled actually is being recycled. 

Diversion rates show the percentage of total generated waste produced from an area that is being 

‘Diverted’ via the available recycling stream(s). 

 

Table 7.1.1 and Figure 7.1.1 show the total waste generation (residual, blue bin and green bin recycling) for 

each of areas sampled. Acorn 2 produced the lowest levels of total waste at 9.59kg/hh/wk with the 

households from Acorn 3 generating the most at 16.71kg/hh/wk.  Across Cambridge it is estimated that the 

weekly output of kerbside waste is 12.48kg/hh/wk.  

 

Table 7.1.2 and Figure 7.1.2 show the proportion of this total waste that is being diverted through the 

various kerbside recycling collections. Using the blue and green recycling bins, Cambridge residents are 

diverting an average of 46.8% of all waste generated at the kerbside.  Residents from Acorn 1 were 

managing to divert almost 69% of their waste compared with 50% for Acorns 2 and 3, 42% for Acorn 4 and 

32% for Acorn 5.  The low performing Acorn 5 area residents also diverted around 50% of their waste with 

households using communal bins diverting around 34.5%. 

 

Table 7.1.1: Average annual waste generation levels by Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

TOTAL KERBSIDE 
WASTE (KG/HH/WK) 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

RESIDUAL WASTE 4.20 4.66 7.93 6.50 9.80 5.06 8.33 6.36 

BLUE BIN RECYCLING 2.36 3.07 3.83 2.95 3.09 2.52 3.80 3.16 

GREEN BIN 
RECYCLING 7.66 1.86 4.95 2.71 2.27 3.13 2.69 2.96 

TOTAL WASTE 14.22 9.59 16.71 12.16 15.17 10.71 14.82 12.48 

 

Page 265



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 67 - 

Figure 7.1.1: Total waste generation levels by Acorn (kg/hh/wk)  

0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL   WEIGHTED
AV.

RESIDUAL WASTE BLUE BIN RECYCLING GREEN BIN RECYCLING

 

 

Table 7.1.2: Diversion rates (%) for individual recycling collections and overall 

 

% DIVERSION ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

BLUE RECYCLING 
BINS 15.19% 30.96% 21.27% 21.04% 18.11% 21.66% 22.01% 23.69% 

GREEN RECYCLING 
BINS 53.76% 19.36% 28.89% 21.23% 13.54% 28.75% 12.45% 23.10% 

TOTAL DIVERSION 68.96% 50.32% 50.16% 42.27% 31.65% 50.41% 34.46% 46.79% 

 

 

Page 266



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 68 - 

Figure 7.1.2: Diversion rates (%) for individual recycling collections and overall 

 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL   WEIGHTED
AV.

BLUE BIN DIVERSION GREEN BIN DIVERSION

 
 

 

Current recycling figures for Cambridge suggest a waste diversion rate of 43.7%. Therefore weighted 

figures for the City during this survey show a level of around 3% above this rate and 1.8% above the 

aspirational target of 45% for 2012.  

 

Data from this survey suggests a level of 331.9kg/hh/yr for residual waste and 651.1kg/hh/yr for total 

kerbside waste. 

 

Were all of the currently recyclable materials being disposed of at the kerbside placed into the correct 

recycling bin then the maximum achievable diversion rate for Cambridge would be 65%.  

 

 

Page 267



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 69 - 

Appendix 1: ACORN Category Classification1.  
 
 

 ACORN 1 – WEALTHY ACHIEVERS – U.K. AVERAGE 23.3% 
 

These are some of the most successful and affluent people in the UK. They live in wealthy, high status rural, 
semi-rural and suburban areas of the country. Middle-aged or older people predominate, with many empty 

nesters and wealthy retired. Some neighbourhoods contain large numbers of well-off families with school age 
children, particularly in the more suburban locations. These people live in large houses, which are usually 
detached with four or more bedrooms.  Almost 90% are owner occupiers, with half of those owning their 

home outright. They are very well educated and most are employed in managerial and professional occupations. 
Many own their own business.  Car ownership is high, with many households running two or more cars. 

Incomes are high, as are levels of savings and investments.  These people are well established at the top 
of the social ladder. They enjoy all the advantages of being healthy, wealthy and confident consumers. 

 
ACORN 2 – URBAN PROSPERITY – U.K. AVERAGE 13.3% 

 
These are well educated and mostly prosperous people living in our major towns and cities. They include both 
older wealthy people living in the most exclusive parts of London and other cities, and highly educated younger 
professionals moving up the corporate ladder. This category also includes some well educated but less affluent 

individuals, such as students and graduates in their first jobs.  The wealthier people tend to be in senior 
managerial or professional careers, and often live in large terraced or detached houses with four or more 

bedrooms. Some of the younger professionals may be buying or renting flats.  The less affluent will be privately 
renting.  These people have a cosmopolitan outlook and enjoy their urban lifestyle.  They like to eat out in 

restaurants, go to the theatre and cinema and make the most of the culture and nightlife of the big city. 
 

ACORN 3 – COMFORTABLY OFF – U.K. AVERAGE 28.1% 
 

This category contains much of ‘middle-of-the-road’ Britain. Most people are comfortably off. They 
may not be wealthy, but they have few major financial worries.  All life stages are represented in this category. 

Younger singles and couples, just starting out on their careers, are the dominant group in some areas. 
Other areas have mostly stable families and empty nesters, especially in suburban or semi-rural locations. 
Comfortably off pensioners, living in retirement areas around the coast or in the countryside, form the other 

main group in this category.  Most people own their own home, with owner occupation exceeding 80%. 
Most houses are semidetached or detached. Employment is in a mix of professional and managerial, 
clerical and skilled occupations. Educational qualifications tend to be in line with the national average. 

This category incorporates the home-owning, stable and fairly comfortable backbone of modern Britain. 
 

ACORN 4 – MODERATE MEANS – U.K. AVERAGE 13.2% 
 

This category contains much of what used to be the country’s industrial heartlands. Many people 
are still employed in traditional, blue-collar occupations. Others have become employed in service and retail 

jobs as the employment landscape has changed.  In the better off areas, incomes are in line with 
the national average and people have reasonable standards of living. However, in other areas, where levels 

of qualifications are low, incomes can fall below the national average. There are also some isolated pockets of 
unemployment and long-term illness.  This category also includes some neighbourhoods with very high 
concentrations of Asian families on low incomes.  Most housing is terraced, with two or three bedrooms, 

and largely owner occupied.  It includes many former council houses, bought by their tenants in the 1980s. 
Overall, the people in this category have modest lifestyles, but are able to get by. 

 
ACORN 5 – HARD PRESSED – U.K. AVERAGE 21.7% 

 
This category contains the poorest areas of the UK. Unemployment is well above the national average. 

Levels of qualifications are low and those in work are likely to be employed in unskilled occupations. 
Household incomes are low and there are high levels of long-term illness in some areas.  Housing is a mix 

of low-rise estates, with terraced or semi-detached houses, and purpose built flats, including high-rise blocks. 
Properties tend to be small and there is much overcrowding. Over 50% of the housing is rented from the local 
Council or a housing association.  There are a large number of single adult households, including many single 
Pensioners and lone parents. In some neighbourhoods, there are high numbers of black and Asian residents. 

These people are experiencing the most difficult social and economic conditions in the whole country, and appear 
to have limited opportunity to improve their circumstances. 

 
 

                                                   
 
 
 
 
 
1 http://www.caci.co.uk/download.aspx?path=/libraries/document/394.pdf 

Page 268



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 70 - 

 

 
 

Page 269



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 0 - 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cambridge City Waste 
Composition Analysis 

 

Cambridge Council 
 

May / June 2012 
 

FINAL REPORT  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 270



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 1 - 

 

Contents Page 

1) Project details and acknowledgements........................................................ - 3 - 

2) Introduction ...................................................................................................... - 4 - 

Background .................................................................................................................. - 4 - 

Objectives ..................................................................................................................... - 4 - 

Acknowledgements ..................................................................................................... - 5 - 

Accuracy Statement .................................................................................................... - 5 - 

3) Executive Summary......................................................................................... - 6 - 

Key findings.................................................................................................................. - 6 - 

Kerbside residual waste.............................................................................................. - 6 - 

Mixed recycling – Blue bins........................................................................................ - 7 - 

Organic waste recycling – Green bins....................................................................... - 7 - 

4) Compositional Analysis of Residual Waste ................................................. - 8 - 

4.1 Set out rates and waste generation levels................................................... - 8 - 

4.2 Compositional analysis of household residual waste ............................. - 11 - 

4.2.1 Organic Waste .............................................................................................. - 15 - 

4.2.2 Paper.............................................................................................................. - 17 - 

4.2.3 Card & Cardboard......................................................................................... - 19 - 

4.2.4 Plastics .......................................................................................................... - 21 - 

4.2.5 Metals............................................................................................................. - 23 - 

4.2.6 Glass.............................................................................................................. - 25 - 

4.2.7 Textiles .......................................................................................................... - 27 - 

4.2.8 Hazardous Items (HHW) & WEEE............................................................... - 29 - 

4.2.9 Disposable Nappies ..................................................................................... - 30 - 

5) Mixed dry recycling waste ............................................................................ - 35 - 

5.1 Set out rates and waste generation............................................................ - 35 - 

5.2 Compositional analysis of mixed recycling waste ................................... - 37 - 

Page 271



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 2 - 

5.3 Materials placed out for mixed recycling collections............................... - 40 - 

5.3.1 Paper Capture............................................................................................... - 41 - 

5.3.2 Card & Cardboard Capture.......................................................................... - 42 - 

5.3.3 Plastic Bottles Capture ................................................................................ - 43 - 

5.4 Blue Bin Recycling Contamination ............................................................ - 47 - 

6) Green Bin Organic Recycling Waste........................................................... - 52 - 

6.1 Set out rates and waste generation............................................................ - 52 - 

6.2 Compositional analysis of green recycling bins....................................... - 54 - 

6.3 Materials placed out for green bin recycling collections......................... - 58 - 

6.3.2 Garden Waste Capture................................................................................. - 60 - 

6.3.3 Food Waste Capture .................................................................................... - 61 - 

6.4 Green Bin Recycling Contamination.......................................................... - 63 - 

7) Overall Diversion through Recycling Collections ..................................... - 66 - 

7.1 Total waste generation levels & diversion................................................. - 66 - 

Appendix ................................................................................................................... 69 

 

Page 272



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

1) Project details and acknowledgements 

 

 

 

 

 

 

M·E·L Research  

8 Holt Court 

Aston Science Park 

Birmingham B7 4AX 

Tel: 0121 604 4664 

Fax: 0121 604 6776 

Email: info@m-e-l.co.uk 

Web:   www.m-e-l.co.uk 

Title Cambridge City Waste Composition Analysis. 

  

Client Cambridge City 

  

Project number 12012 

  

Client reference Final Report_Version_1 

  

Author Philip Wells 

  

Contract Manager Darren Coss 

Page 273



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

2)     Introduction 

Background  

Cambridge City Council currently has a combined recycling and composting rate of 43.7% (2010/11).  The 

Authority now wishes to study the composition of domestic kerbside collected residual and recycling waste 

streams to provide current baseline data and to help inform future communication campaigns. As well as 

giving indications as to the current levels of waste and recycling being generated, observations will be made 

showing the levels of materials that are currently recyclable at the kerbside and those which could 

potentially be recyclable via future schemes.  The Council hopes to achieve 45% by the end of 2012 with a 

future target for 2015-16 of 50-55%.  

 

This report presents results from the analysis of kerbside collected residual and recycling waste collected 

during a two week period in May / June 2012.  The survey focused on the levels and composition of all 

waste containers that are currently available for residents to place for collection at the kerbside.  The 

sampling regime involved the direct collection and compositional analysis of residual waste from a target of 

300 properties representing each of the five main socio-demographic categories (Acorns). Results could 

therefore be weighted to give an even better picture of the waste being collected by the authority as a 

whole.  Additionally around 120 properties were highlighted from a low performing area and a group of 

properties using communal bins.  Knowledge of the waste in these differing areas will help the City Council 

develop strategies to increase the efficiency with which its residents are recycling their waste. The overall 

findings of this project will highlight several factors important for improving the recycling rate and directing 

future strategy and communication campaigns: 

 

Objectives 

Specific aims of the work were to: 

 

§ Understand, using socio-demographic profiling which sectors of the community are producing 
which types of waste and which are using the recycling provision most effectively 

§ Detect capture rates for individual materials which are already collected separately for recycling 

§ Evaluate the amount of specific materials collected in the residual bin that could potentially be 
collected separately for recycling 

§ Evaluate the use of the receptacles used for collecting waste and recycling 

§ Detect the amount of packaging and biodegradable material present  

§ Assess the amount of contamination in receptacles meant for recycling material 

§ Assess the amount of recyclable material being placed in the residual bin 

 

This report will highlight key results recorded for Cambridge City showing data for individual socio-

demographics as well as weighted for the City as a whole.   

Page 274



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 5 - 

Acknowledgements  

M·E·L Research would like to thank the collection authority and their staff who participated and helped in 

the setup and fieldwork stages of the project, and those who provided additional data and other information 

to inform the project. This report highlights key results, presents the results in tables and charts and 

discusses the findings. The views and opinions expressed in this report are those of M.E.L Research Ltd. 

and are not necessarily shared by officers from Cambridge City Council.  

 

Accuracy Statement 

Results from the standard M·E·L sampling protocol for compositional analysis can be taken as accurate for 

each material category to within error bands of +/-10% at the 95% confidence level (2 standard deviations), 

assuming a normal statistical distribution. At the data entry stage 1 in 10 parts of data that is inputted are 

checked with the data sheets and if errors are found all the data is then rechecked. 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 275



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

3)     Executive Summary 

Key findings  

Kerbside residual waste 

§ Weighted across all Acorn samples, 84% of households sampled throughout Cambridge 
presented residual waste bins for collection. 

§ In terms of waste generation, households were setting out an average of 6.36kg/hh/wk. 

§ Food waste was seen to be the major component of residual waste forming 20.6% of the total, 
equating to 1.31kg/hh/wk – 45% of this is potentially home compostable 

§ Paper items made up 10.2% of the residual waste; 53% of this (0.35kg/hh/wk) was alternatively 
recyclable at the kerbside. 

§ Card and cardboard made up around 3.5% of collected residual waste; 84% of this (0.18kg/hh/wk) 
was alternatively recyclable at the kerbside. 

§ Plastics formed 14.9% of the residual waste; 10% of dense plastic waste (0.05kg/hh/wk) was due 
to recyclable plastic bottles with a further 0.21kg/hh/wk formed from the types of plastic containers 
that will be recyclable from July 2012.  

§ Just under 3% of residual waste was metallic; 53% of this (0.09kg/hh/wk) was recyclable in blue 
bins. 

§ Around 3% of residual waste was seen to be glass; 94% of this (0.16kg/hh/wk) was recyclable in 
blue bins. 

§ Over 6% of residual waste was due to textiles; 53% of these items (0.21kg/hh/wk) were seen to 
consist of reusable clothing and shoes 

§ Just under 1.6% of residual waste was deemed to be either Hazardous or WEEE. An additional 
17% consisted of disposable nappies 

§ Just over 1.3% of residual waste was found to be garden waste. Around 17% of this was non-
recyclable soil and turf, with the remainder consisting of recyclable garden trimmings 

§ Overall just over 13% of collected residual waste could have been placed into the blue recycling 
containers available– the equivalent of 0.84kg/hh/wk. 

§ Just under 22% of collected residual waste could have been placed into the green recycling 
containers available– the equivalent of 1.40kg/hh/wk. 

§ In total over 35% of residual waste collected could have been recycled alternatively at the kerbside 
– 2.23kg/hh/wk. 

§ Around 59% of potentially recyclable materials consisted of food waste with 15% being paper and 
8% being card and cardboard.  

§ Residual waste collected from Cambridge households was deemed to be around 51% 
biodegradable. 

§ Collected waste had a packaging content of 17%. 

 

Page 276



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 7 - 

Mixed recycling – Blue bins 

§ Over the survey, 78% of households presented blue bins for collection  

§ In terms of waste generation, kerbside households were setting out an average of 3.16kg/hh/wk in 
their blue bins. 

§ Overall 6.4% of blue bin recycling waste collected from all properties was classified as 
contamination – the equivalent of 0.20kg/hh/wk.  

§ Around 77% of paper, 87% of recyclable glass, 73% of card and cardboard, 78% of plastic bottles 
and 59% of the recyclable metals available for mixed recycling were correctly captured. 

§ Kerbside properties diverted around 23.7% of their waste through their blue bins.  

Organic waste recycling – Green bins 

§ Over the survey, 58% of households opted to present their green organic recycling bins at the 
kerbside for collection. 

§ In terms of waste generation, households were setting out an average of 2.96kg/hh/wk at the 
kerbside. 

§ Overall 2.6% of green bin recycling waste collected from all properties was classified as 
contamination – the equivalent of 0.08kg/hh/wk. 

§ Green bins collected from households on a communal service had very high contamination levels 
of 31.3%.  Bins had significant levels of residual waste and also large amounts of paper and 
cardboard.  

§ The majority of contamination of green bin waste was due to general residual materials; forming 
69% of the contamination.  Up to 23% of contamination was due to textiles. 

§ 21% of food waste and 97% of garden waste was correctly captured by households using the 
scheme. 

§ Properties on the green bin collection scheme diverted an average of around 23.1% of their waste 
through these collections. 

§ When combined with the diversion through mixed recycling collections, Cambridge households are 
diverting around 46.8% (5.84kg/hh/wk) of their total waste (12.48kg/hh/wk) through recycling 
collections. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 277



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 8 - 

4)     Compositional Analysis of Residual Waste 

4.1 Set out rates and waste generation levels  

 

Table 4.1.2 and Figure 4.1.2 highlight the average set out rates for residual waste observed at the time 

waste was collected for compositional analysis. Table 4.1.3 and Figure 4.1.3 show the average amount of 

residual waste generated in kg/hh/wk. Around 60 households were selected for each sample from each 

Acorn category with the set out relating to the proportion of these households actively placing out their 

waste. The amount of waste in kilograms per household per week is collected from each sample of 60 

households, not just those that are participating. Results are shown by Acorn; as all five Acorn categories 

were sampled it was possible to weight the results according to the socio-demographic profile for 

Cambridge as per Table 4.1.1.  A table giving a brief description of the types of households typical for each 

Acorn category is shown in the appendix section. 

 

Table 4.1.1: Acorn profile for Cambridge 

ACORN % SET OUT 

1 7.12% 

2 49.66% 

3 18.08% 

4 3.45% 

5 20.71% 

UNCLASSIFIED 0.98% 

TOTAL 100% 

 

Figure 4.1.1: Acorn profile for Cambridge 

UNCLASSIFIED
0.98%

ACORN 3
18.08%

ACORN 4
3.45%

ACORN 5
20.71%

ACORN 1
7.12%

ACORN 2
49.66%

Page 278



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 9 - 

Observed set out rates for residual waste ranged between 71% in the low performing Acorn 5 area (LPA) to 

95% in Acorn 3.  On average 84% of households in Cambridge are projected to be setting out their residual 

waste for collection. 

 

Table 4.1.2: Kerbside residual waste set out rates for each Acorn sample  

 

ACORN % SET OUT 

1 77% 

2 82% 

3 95% 

4 82% 

5 82% 

5 (LPA)* 71% 

COMMUNAL N/A** 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE 84% 

 

*Acorn 5 Low Performing Area 

** Do not have their own bin so set out is not applicable 

 

Figure 4.1.2: Kerbside residual waste set out rates by Acorn (%)  

 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

Page 279



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 10 - 

From observed results, the level of residual waste being disposed of at the kerbside ranged between 

4.20kg/hh/wk in Acorn 1 to 9.80kg/hh/wk in Acorn 5. On average 6.36kg/hh/wk of residual waste is being 

disposed of by households throughout Cambridge. 

 

Table 4.1.3:  Kerbside residual waste generation rates for each Acorn sample (kg/hh/wk) 

 

ACORN KG/HH/WK 

1 4.20 

2 4.66 

3 7.93 

4 6.50 

5 9.80 

5 (LPA) 5.06 

COMMUNAL 8.33 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE 6.36 

 

 

 
Figure 4.1.3: Average residual waste generation rates by Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

7.00

8.00

9.00

10.00

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

Page 280



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 11 - 

4.2 Compositional analysis of household residual waste 

 

This section looks at the average amount and composition of the residual waste presented by various 

socio-demographic households sampled throughout the City. Hand sorting of the residual waste gave 

concentration by weight figures for the fifteen main categories of waste as well as the more detailed sub-

categories.   

 

Looking at the concentration percentages gives an indication as to the proportions of each waste category. 

This can be translated into a figure relating to the average waste generation expected for each waste 

category; this is given in kilograms per household per week (kg/hh/wk). 

 

By knowing the composition of waste from the various Acorn samples it is possible to gain an insight into 

the make-up and volumes of the residual waste that can be expected from the City as a whole. Additional 

information on the selected lower performing and communal bins areas can also be gained.  Detailed 

residual composition tables can be found in a separate data appendix.  

 

Table 4.2.1 and Figure 4.2.1 show residual waste data in terms of percentage composition with Table 4.2.2 

and Figure 4.2.2 showing generation rates for major materials in terms of kg/hh/wk. All residual waste will 

contain a proportion that is classified as potentially recyclable. That is to say that is should have been 

placed into one of the recycling receptacles supplied by the Council.   

Page 281



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 12 - 

 

Table 4.2.1: Average residual waste composition weighted by Acorn (%) 
 

 RESIDUAL WASTE 
ACORN 

1 
ACORN 

2 
ACORN 

3 
ACORN 

4 
ACORN 

5 
ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AVERAGE 

PAPER 13.84% 11.35% 8.51% 7.78% 9.78% 5.93% 6.74% 10.19% 

CARD & CARDBOARD 5.01% 3.32% 3.11% 2.57% 3.71% 1.92% 2.77% 3.45% 

PLASTIC FILM 5.36% 7.98% 6.54% 4.06% 6.07% 8.81% 5.45% 6.77% 

DENSE PLASTIC 10.76% 8.28% 12.09% 6.64% 4.78% 9.45% 5.83% 8.08% 

TEXTILES 1.00% 6.24% 5.48% 7.74% 7.24% 3.66% 5.71% 6.19% 

MISC COMBUSTIBLES 22.52% 16.70% 28.71% 17.69% 33.61% 30.14% 35.67% 25.19% 

MISC NON-COMBUSTIBLES 12.58% 7.20% 11.17% 5.22% 11.50% 0.71% 0.34% 9.67% 

GLASS 1.01% 4.13% 2.48% 2.21% 1.70% 4.42% 4.59% 2.75% 

FERROUS METAL 5.19% 1.92% 2.02% 2.96% 2.06% 1.03% 2.48% 2.18% 

NON-FERROUS METAL 0.57% 0.78% 0.53% 0.43% 0.55% 0.83% 0.74% 0.63% 

GARDEN WASTE 2.49% 2.34% 0.52% 4.26% 0.31% 4.02% 1.57% 1.35% 

PUTRESCIBLES 16.52% 28.37% 16.20% 32.97% 17.10% 28.45% 24.13% 21.57% 

FINES 0.52% 0.00% 0.00% 1.22% 0.93% 0.20% 0.97% 0.37% 

HHW 1.47% 0.30% 1.33% 0.00% 0.00% 0.03% 0.10% 0.48% 

WEEE 1.17% 1.10% 1.32% 4.27% 0.67% 0.41% 2.91% 1.13% 

TOTAL 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE 17.47% 15.67% 11.43% 10.41% 11.16% 11.48% 14.01% 13.15% 

GREEN BIN RECYCLABLE 18.94% 29.72% 15.72% 32.64% 16.78% 31.01% 23.21% 21.95% 

TOTAL RECYCLABLE 36.41% 45.39% 27.15% 43.05% 27.94% 42.50% 37.21% 35.11% 

 

Table 4.2.2: Average residual waste generation weighted by Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 
 

 RESIDUAL WASTE 
ACORN 

1 
ACORN 

2 
ACORN 

3 
ACORN 

4 
ACORN 

5 
ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AVERAGE 

PAPER 0.58 0.53 0.67 0.51 0.96 0.30 0.56 0.65 

CARD & CARDBOARD 0.21 0.15 0.25 0.17 0.36 0.10 0.23 0.22 

PLASTIC FILM 0.23 0.37 0.52 0.26 0.59 0.45 0.45 0.43 

DENSE PLASTIC 0.45 0.39 0.96 0.43 0.47 0.48 0.49 0.51 

TEXTILES 0.04 0.29 0.43 0.50 0.71 0.18 0.48 0.39 

MISC COMBUSTIBLES 0.95 0.78 2.28 1.15 3.29 1.52 2.97 1.60 

MISC NON-COMBUSTIBLES 0.53 0.34 0.89 0.34 1.13 0.04 0.03 0.62 

GLASS 0.04 0.19 0.20 0.14 0.17 0.22 0.38 0.18 

FERROUS METAL 0.22 0.09 0.16 0.19 0.20 0.05 0.21 0.14 

NON-FERROUS METAL 0.02 0.04 0.04 0.03 0.05 0.04 0.06 0.04 

GARDEN WASTE 0.10 0.11 0.04 0.28 0.03 0.20 0.13 0.09 

PUTRESCIBLES 0.69 1.32 1.28 2.14 1.68 1.44 2.01 1.37 

FINES 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.08 0.09 0.01 0.08 0.02 

HHW 0.06 0.01 0.11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.03 

WEEE 0.05 0.05 0.10 0.28 0.07 0.02 0.24 0.07 

TOTAL 4.20 4.66 7.93 6.50 9.80 5.06 8.33 6.36 

BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE 0.73 0.73 0.91 0.68 1.09 0.58 1.17 0.84 

GREEN BIN RECYCLABLE 0.80 1.38 1.25 2.12 1.64 1.57 1.93 1.40 

TOTAL RECYCLABLE 1.53 2.11 2.15 2.80 2.74 2.15 3.10 2.23 

 

Page 282



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 1
3 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.1

: A
ve

ra
ge

 r
es

id
ua

l w
as

te
 c

om
po

si
tio

n 
w

ei
gh

te
d 

by
 A

co
rn

 (%
) 

0
%

10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

1
00

%

AC
O

RN 1

AC
O

RN 2

AC
O

RN 3

AC
O

RN 4

AC
O

RN 5

AC
O

RN 5
 (L

PA
)

CO
M

M
UNAL

W
EIG

HTE
D A

VE
RAGE

W
E

EE

H
H

W

F
IN

E
S

P
U

T
R

E
S

C
IB

LE
S

G
A

R
D

EN
 W

A
S

T
E

N
O

N
-F

ER
R

O
U

S
 M

ET
A

L

F
ER

R
O

U
S

 M
E

TA
L

G
L

A
S

S

M
IS

C
 N

O
N

-C
O

M
B

U
S

T
IB

L
ES

M
IS

C
 C

O
M

B
U

S
T

IB
LE

S

T
EX

TI
LE

S

D
EN

S
E 

P
LA

S
TI

C

P
LA

S
TI

C
 F

IL
M

C
A

R
D

 &
 C

A
R

D
B

O
A

R
D

P
A

PE
R

 

Page 283



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 1
4 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.2

: A
ve

ra
ge

 r
es

id
ua

l w
as

te
 g

en
er

at
io

n 
w

ei
gh

te
d 

by
 A

co
rn

 (k
g/

hh
/w

k)
 

0.
00

1.
00

2.
00

3.
00

4.
00

5.
00

6.
00

7.
00

8.
00

9.
00

10
.0

0 AC
O

RN 1

AC
O

RN 2

AC
O

RN 3

AC
O

RN 4

AC
O

RN 5

ACO
RN 5

 (L
PA)

CO
M

M
UNAL

W
EIG

HTE
D A

VE
RAGE

W
EE

E

H
H

W

FI
N

ES

PU
TR

ES
C

IB
LE

S

G
A

R
D

EN
 W

A
S

TE

N
O

N
-F

ER
R

O
U

S
 M

ET
A

L

FE
R

R
O

U
S

 M
ET

A
L

G
LA

S
S

M
IS

C
 N

O
N

-C
O

M
B

U
S

TI
B

L
ES

M
IS

C
 C

O
M

B
U

S
TI

B
LE

S

TE
X

T
IL

E
S

D
EN

S
E 

P
LA

S
TI

C

PL
A

S
TI

C
 F

IL
M

C
A

R
D

 &
 C

A
R

D
B

O
A

R
D

PA
PE

R

 

Page 284



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 15 - 

4.2.1 Organic Waste 

Organic waste, which includes garden and food waste (putrescibles), formed the greatest weight 

concentration of the primary waste categories for all Acorns. Ranges seen were from 16.7% from Acorn 3 

households to 33.9% in Acorn 5 (LPA) households. Across the City as a whole around 23.3% of all residual 

waste (1.48kg/hh/wk) is classified as organic waste.  Food waste accounted for between 15.6% (Acorn 3) 

and 27.4% (Acorn 2) of residual waste. Across the City as a whole around 20.6% of all residual waste 

(1.31kg/hh/wk) is classified as food waste. Currently Cambridge residents are able to recycle food waste at 

the kerbside using their green bin collection.   Residents from Acorn 3 placed the most recyclable food into 

their residual bins at 2.81kg/hh/wk.  Overall approximately 45% of this food waste (0.58kg/hh/wk) is 

potentially compostable in a general garden compost bin.  

 

Residents throughout Cambridge can also utilise their green bins for the collection of general garden waste.   

In Acorns 3 and 5 levels of garden waste in residual bins were very low at 0.5% and 0.3% respectively. This 

equated to less than 0.05kg/hh/wk in total.  In contrast the residual waste from Acorn 4 and Acorn 5(LPA) 

was over 4% garden waste; the equivalent of 0.28kg/hh/wk and 0.20kg/hh/wk respectively.  Averaged for 

Cambridge it is seen that 17% of this garden waste consisted of soil and turf which is discouraged from the 

recycling collection.  Across the City, recyclable forms of garden waste (i.e. garden clippings but not soil and 

turf) are responsible for an average of just 1.1%, or 0.07kg/hh/wk of residual waste. Table 4.2.1.1 and 

Figure 4.2.1.1 show the amounts of the different forms of organic waste found within the samples from each 

sample. 

 

Table 4.2.1.1: Levels of organic wastes within residual waste of each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL 
ORGANICS 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 5 
(LPA) 

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 
AVERAGE 

FLORA 
ORGANICS 0.10 0.11 0.00 0.08 0.03 0.20 0.13 0.07 

SOIL & TURF 0.00 0.00 0.04 0.19 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 

COMPOSTABLE 
FOOD WASTE 0.22 0.75 0.40 0.47 0.48 0.52 0.78 0.58 

NON-HOME 
COMPOSTABLE 
FOOD WASTE 

0.47 0.52 0.84 1.19 1.14 0.85 1.02 0.73 

HERBIVOROUS 
PET BEDDING 0.00 0.05 0.00 0.05 0.06 0.07 0.21 0.04 

LIQUIDS, FATS & 
OILS 0.00 0.05 0.05 0.10 0.06 0.07 0.21 0.05 

KG/HH/WK 
ORGANICS 0.80 1.48 1.33 2.09 1.77 1.72 2.35 1.48 

% ORGANICS 19.08% 31.71% 16.71% 32.09% 18.06% 33.92% 28.22% 23.31% 

KG/HH/WK FOOD 
WASTE 0.69 1.27 1.23 1.66 1.61 1.37 1.80 1.31 

% FOOD WASTE 16.45% 27.37% 15.57% 25.53% 16.47% 27.00% 21.61% 20.59% 

Page 285



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 1
6 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.1

.1
: L

ev
el

s 
of

 o
rg

an
ic

 w
as

te
s 

w
ith

in
 r

es
id

ua
l w

as
te

 o
f e

ac
h 

A
co

rn
 (k

g/
hh

/w
k)

 

0
.0

0

0
.5

0

1
.0

0

1
.5

0

2
.0

0

2
.5

0

AC
O

RN 1

AC
O

RN 2

AC
O

RN 3

AC
O

RN 4

AC
O

RN 5

AC
O

RN 5
 (L

PA
)

CO
M

M
UNAL

  W
EI

GHTE
D A

V.

L
IQ

U
ID

S
, 
F
A

T
S

 &
 O

IL
S

H
E
R

B
IV

O
R

O
U

S
 P

E
T

B
E
D

D
IN

G

N
O

N
-H

O
M

E
 C

O
M

P
O

S
T
A

B
L
E

F
O

O
D

 W
A

S
T
E

C
O

M
P
O

S
T
A

B
L
E
 F

O
O

D
W

A
S

T
E

S
O

IL
 &

 T
U

R
F

F
L
O

R
A

 O
R

G
A

N
IC

S

 

Page 286



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 17 - 

4.2.2 Paper  

On average, Acorn 1 residents had the highest concentrations of this type of waste (13.8%), with Acorn 5 

disposing of the most at 0.96kg/hh/wk. In comparison just 5.9% (0.30kg/hh/wk) of residual waste from 

Acorn 5(LPA) was due to paper based materials. Across the City it was seen that around 10.2% or 

0.65kg/hh/wk of residual waste consisted of discarded paper. 

 

A proportion of this paper is available for recycling at the kerbside. Cambridge residents have a blue bin for 

recycling higher grade white paper such as newspapers, junk mail, envelopes and directories.  In addition 

to this higher grade paper, Cambridge residents are able to place shredded paper into their green organics 

bin. It was found that between 50.5% (Acorn 3 and Acorn 5(LPA) and 74.8% (Acorn 1) of paper could have 

been placed in either the blue or green bins as opposed to the residual bin.  

 

When accounting for all of the various types of paper within the residual waste, it is seen that 53.3% of 

residual paper was recyclable which accounted for 5.4% of all the residual waste or 0.35kg/hh/wk.   

 

Table 4.2.2.1 and Figure 4.2.2.1 show the amounts of the different forms of paper waste for each Acorn. 

 

Table 4.2.2.1: Levels of paper wastes within residual waste of each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL PAPER ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 5 
(LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

RECYCLABLE 
PAPER 0.43 0.28 0.33 0.30 0.48 0.15 0.36 0.34 

SHREDDED 
PAPER 

0.00 0.00 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

NON-
RECYCLABLE 

PAPER 
0.15 0.25 0.33 0.21 0.48 0.15 0.20 0.30 

KG/HH/WK TOTAL 
PAPER  0.58 0.53 0.67 0.51 0.96 0.30 0.56 0.65 

KG/HH/WK 
RECYCLABLE 

PAPER 
0.43 0.28 0.34 0.30 0.48 0.15 0.37 0.35 

% PAPER 
RECYCLABLE 

74.77% 53.37% 50.52% 59.17% 49.83% 50.52% 65.29% 53.27% 

 

Page 287



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 1
8 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.2

.1
: L

ev
el

s 
of

 p
ap

er
 w

as
te

s 
w

ith
in

 r
es

id
ua

l w
as

te
 o

f e
ac

h 
A

co
rn

 (k
g/

hh
/w

k)
 

0
.0

0

0
.2

0

0
.4

0

0
.6

0

0
.8

0

1
.0

0

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

CO
M

M
U
N
AL

  W
EI

GH
TE

D
 A

V.

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P
E
R

S
H

R
E
D

D
E
D

 P
A

P
E
R

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P
E
R

 

Page 288



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 19 - 

4.2.3 Card & Cardboard 

On average, Acorn 1 residents had the highest concentrations of this type of waste (5%), with Acorn 5 

disposing of the most at 0.36kg/hh/wk. In comparison just 1.9% (0.10kg/hh/wk) of residual waste from 

Acorn 5(LPA) was due to card and cardboard based materials. Across the City it was seen that around 

3.5% or 0.22kg/hh/wk of residual waste consisted of discarded card and cardboard. 

 

A proportion of this card & cardboard is available for recycling at the kerbside. Cambridge residents have a 

blue bin for recycling thin card, corrugated cardboard and drinks cartons.  It was found that between 65% 

(Acorn 1) and 94% (Acorn 5-LPA) of card and cardboard could have been placed in the blue bin as 

opposed to the residual bin. Across Cambridge, 84% of residual card and cardboard was compatible with 

recycling collections which accounted for 2.9% of all the residual waste or 0.18kg/hh/wk.   

 

Table 4.2.3.1 and Figure 4.2.3.1 show the amounts of the different forms of card and cardboard waste for 

each Acorn. 

 

When combining paper and card together it is estimated that 61% of that present in residual bins could 

have been recycled via kerbside recycling collections.  This amounts to 8.3% of all the residual waste being 

collected – a total of 0.53kg/hh/wk.  

 

Table 4.2.3.1: Levels of card wastes within residual waste of each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL CARD 
ACORN 

1 
ACORN 

2 
ACORN 

3 
ACORN 

4 
ACORN 

5 
ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

RECYCLABLE THIN 
CARD 0.05 0.08 0.15 0.07 0.14 0.05 0.16 0.10 

RECYCLABLE 
CORRUGATED 
CARDBOARD 

0.07 0.02 0.07 0.05 0.17 0.02 0.03 0.07 

BEVERAGE CARTONS 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.02 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
CARD 0.07 0.04 0.02 0.04 0.04 0.01 0.02 0.04 

KG/HH/WK  TOTAL 
CARD & CARDBOARD  0.21 0.15 0.25 0.17 0.36 0.10 0.23 0.22 

KG/HH/WK 
RECYCLABLE CARD & 

CARDBOARD 
0.14 0.12 0.23 0.12 0.33 0.09 0.21 0.18 

% CARD KERBSIDE 
RECYCLABLE 65.22% 77.15% 93.19% 74.50% 89.79% 94.04% 90.71% 83.93% 

 

 

 

Page 289



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 2
0 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.3

.1
: L

ev
el

s 
of

 c
ar

d 
w

as
te

s 
w

ith
in

 r
es

id
ua

l w
as

te
 o

f e
ac

h 
A

co
rn

 (k
g/

hh
/w

k)
 

0
.0

0

0
.0

5

0
.1

0

0
.1

5

0
.2

0

0
.2

5

0
.3

0

0
.3

5

0
.4

0

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 C

A
R

D

B
E
V

E
R

A
G

E
 C

A
R

T
O

N
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

C
O

R
R

U
G

A
T
E
D

C
A

R
D

B
O

A
R

D

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 T

H
IN

 C
A

R
D

Page 290



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 21 - 

4.2.4 Plastics 

As a UK average approximately 12% of the waste disposed of by households is plastic. In this sampling 

campaign average ranges seen were 10.7% total plastic by weight from Acorn 4 households to 18.6% in 

the waste from Acorn 3 households. Cambridge residents currently recycle plastic bottles as part of their 

blue bin collections. Across the City as a whole, 14.9% of residual waste was classified as plastic which 

equates to 0.94kg/hh/wk. On the whole plastic waste, although not heavy in itself, can produce large 

volumes of waste. 

 

Figure 4.2.4.1 clearly shows the levels of recyclable plastic bottles within the plastic portion of the residual 

waste. On average, around 46% of this plastic waste present in the residual was due to plastic film with the 

remainder being dense plastic. Up to 9.9% of residual dense plastic consisted of plastic bottles meaning 

that just 0.8% of residual waste (0.05kg/hh/wk) collected throughout Cambridge was made up of plastic 

bottles that could have been recycled.  Up to 0.13kg/hh/wk of plastic bottles were seen in communal bins 

representing over a quarter of all the dense plastic present.   

 

From July 2012 Cambridge households will be able to recycle plastic food containers in addition to plastic 

bottles.  On average these formed 3.4% of the total residual waste equating to 0.21kg/hh/wk.  This means 

that 0.27kg/hh/wk or 4.2% of the residual waste is due to recyclable plastic bottles and containers.  

 

Table 4.2.4.1 and Figure 4.2.4.1 show the amounts of the different forms of plastic waste found within the 

residual samples from each Acorn. 

 

Table 4.2.4.1: Levels of plastics within residual waste of each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL 
PLASTICS 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

PLASTIC FILM 0.23 0.37 0.52 0.26 0.59 0.45 0.45 0.43 

PLASTIC BOTTLES 0.09 0.04 0.06 0.06 0.05 0.04 0.13 0.05 

PLASTIC FOOD 
CONTAINERS 

0.12 0.23 0.27 0.17 0.18 0.12 0.22 0.21 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PLASTICS 0.25 0.11 0.63 0.20 0.24 0.31 0.14 0.25 

KG/HH/WK  TOTAL 
PLASTIC 0.68 0.76 1.48 0.70 1.06 0.92 0.94 0.94 

% DENSE PLASTIC 
RECYCLABLE 19.39% 11.04% 6.41% 14.22% 9.84% 9.18% 26.63% 9.85% 

Page 291



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 2
2 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.4

.1
: L

ev
el

s 
of

 p
la

st
ic

s 
w

ith
in

 r
es

id
ua

l w
as

te
 o

f e
ac

h 
A

co
rn

 (k
g/

hh
/w

k)
 

0
.0

0

0
.2

5

0
.5

0

0
.7

5

1
.0

0

1
.2

5

1
.5

0

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O
R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

P
L
A

S
T
IC

S

P
L
A

S
T
IC

 F
O

O
D

C
O

N
T
A

IN
E
R

S

P
L
A

S
T
IC

 B
O

T
T
L
E
S

P
L
A

S
T
IC

 F
IL

M

Page 292



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 23 - 

4.2.5 Metals 

In this sampling campaign average concentrations of residual metals were seen to be 1.9% total metal by 

weight from Acorn 5(LPA) households to 5.8% in the waste from Acorn 1 households, averaging 2.8% 

overall. Cambridge residents have access to a recycling collection of food and drink cans as well as empty 

aerosols and clean foil via their blue bin service. The average weight of metals in the residual waste from 

Acorn 5(LPA) was 0.09kg/hh/wk rising to 0.27kg/hh/wk in communal bins.   

 

A proportion of this metal waste is available for recycling at the kerbside relative to the blue bin collection.  It 

was found that just 13% of Acorn 1 metals were recyclable rising to 77% for the metals in Acorn 5(LPA) 

residual waste. Across the City an average of 52.5% or 0.09kg/hh/wk of residual metal is classified as 

recyclable, this equates to 1.5% of all collected residual waste. 

 

On the whole 78% of metals were ferrous accounting for 0.14kg/hh/wk with non-ferrous metals contributing 

0.04kg/hh/wk. The majority of metallic waste present in all samples was seen to be ferrous.  

 

Table 4.2.5.1 and Figure 4.2.5.1 show the amounts of the different forms of metallic waste found within the 

samples from each Acorn. Food cans tend to require a degree of washing before being placed into 

recycling containers and as such are often less well diverted than cleaner drinks cans.   

 

Table 4.2.5.1: Levels of metals within residual waste of each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL METALS ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

DRINK CANS 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.03 0.02 0.02 0.01 

FOOD TINS & CANS 0.01 0.05 0.04 0.03 0.04 0.02 0.04 0.04 

AEROSOLS 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.01 

ALUMINIUM FOIL AND 
FOOD TRAYS 0.01 0.02 0.03 0.01 0.03 0.02 0.03 0.03 

OTHER NON-
RECYCLABLE METALS 0.21 0.03 0.10 0.16 0.15 0.02 0.15 0.08 

RECYCLABLE METALS 0.03 0.10 0.10 0.06 0.11 0.07 0.12 0.09 

TOTAL METALS 0.24 0.13 0.20 0.22 0.26 0.09 0.27 0.18 

% FERROUS 90.16% 71.00% 79.19% 87.30% 78.93% 55.42% 77.02% 77.64% 

%  RECYCLABLE 13.31% 76.02% 49.78% 28.45% 42.69% 77.11% 42.82% 52.46% 

 

Page 293



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 2
4 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.5

.1
: L

ev
el

s 
of

 m
et

al
s 

w
ith

in
 r

es
id

ua
l w

as
te

 o
f e

ac
h 

A
co

rn
 (k

g/
hh

/w
k)

 

0
.0

0

0
.0

5

0
.1

0

0
.1

5

0
.2

0

0
.2

5

0
.3

0 AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

O
T
H

E
R

 N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

M
E
T
A

L
S

A
L
U

M
IN

IU
M

 F
O

IL
 A

N
D

 F
O

O
D

T
R

A
Y

S

A
E
R

O
S

O
L
S

F
O

O
D

 T
IN

S
 &

 C
A

N
S

D
R

IN
K

 C
A

N
S

Page 294



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 25 - 

4.2.6 Glass 

In this sampling campaign the average concentration of residual glass was seen to be 1% total glass by 

weight from Acorn 1 households rising to 4.6% in the waste from communal bins. Cambridge residents are 

able to recycle glass bottles and jars at the kerbside using their blue bin service.   The weight of glass in the 

residual waste from Acorn 1 was 0.04kg/hh/wk rising to 0.38kg/hh/wk in communal bins.  This represented 

a City wide average of 2.8% or 0.18kg/hh/wk. 

 

A proportion of this glass consists of bottles and jars which could have been recycled at the kerbside. It was 

found that across Cambridge an average of 94% or 0.16kg/hh/wk of residual glass is classified as 

recyclable, this equates to 2.6% of all collected residual waste. 

 

In most samples the majority of recyclable glass was seen to be higher grade clear glass, across 

Cambridge 64% of recyclable glass was clear, accounting for 0.11kg/hh/wk of residual waste.  Around 52% 

of the clear glass was due to jars as opposed to bottles.   

 

Table 4.2.6.1 and Figure 4.2.6.1 show the amounts of the different forms of glass waste found within the 

samples from each Acorn.   

 

Table 4.2.6.1: Levels of glass within residual waste of each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL GLASS 
ACORN 

1 
ACORN 

2 
ACORN 

3 
ACORN 

4 
ACORN 

5 
ACORN 5 

(LPA) COMMUNAL 
WEIGHTED 

AV. 

GREEN GLASS 0.00 0.09 0.00 0.02 0.02 0.12 0.04 0.05 

BROWN, BLUE, RED 
GLASS 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.03 0.02 0.01 0.04 0.01 

CLEAR BOTTLES 0.01 0.03 0.17 0.07 0.03 0.06 0.15 0.05 

CLEAR JARS 0.03 0.07 0.01 0.00 0.06 0.04 0.12 0.05 

OTHER NON 
PACKAGING GLASS 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.03 0.00 0.03 0.01 

KG/HH/WK TOTAL 
GLASS 0.04 0.19 0.20 0.14 0.17 0.22 0.38 0.18 

KG/HH/WK RECYCLABLE 
GLASS 0.04 0.19 0.19 0.13 0.13 0.22 0.35 0.16 

% RECYCLABLE 100% 98.99% 94.36% 89.99% 80.74% 99.24% 91.15% 94.17% 

% OF RECYCLABLE 
GLASS - CLEAR 100% 49.56% 95.85% 57.08% 70.33% 42.98% 76.93% 63.76% 

 

 

Page 295



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 2
6 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.6

.1
: L

ev
el

s 
of

 g
la

ss
 w

ith
in

 r
es

id
ua

l w
as

te
 o

f e
ac

h 
A

co
rn

 (k
g/

hh
/w

k)
 

0
.0

0

0
.0

5

0
.1

0

0
.1

5

0
.2

0

0
.2

5

0
.3

0

0
.3

5

0
.4

0

AC
O
R
N
 1

AC
O
R
N
 2

AC
O
R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O
R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O
M
M
U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

O
T
H

E
R

 N
O

N
 P

A
C

K
A

G
IN

G
G

L
A

S
S

C
L
E
A

R
 J

A
R

S

C
L
E
A

R
 B

O
T
T
L
E

S

B
R

O
W

N
, 
B

L
U

E
, 
R

E
D

 G
L
A

S
S

G
R

E
E
N

 G
L
A

S
S

Page 296



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 27 - 

4.2.7 Textiles 

 

The concentration of residual textile waste was seen to be 1% textiles from Acorn 1 households to 7.7% in 

the waste from Acorn 4 households. Cambridge residents are currently not able to recycle textiles at the 

kerbside. The average weight of textile waste in the residual waste from Acorn 1 was 0.04kg/hh/wk rising to 

0.71kg/hh/wk in Acorn 5.  On average 6.2% or 0.39kg/hh/wk of residual waste is classified as textile waste.  

 

A proportion of this textile waste is available for recycling either at bring banks or charity outlets in the form 

of reusable clothes and shoes. It was found that between 37% (Acorn 2) and 67% of Acorn 5(LPA) of textile 

waste was of this potentially recyclable type. Up to 0.44kg/hh/wk (Acorn 5) of recyclable textiles are being 

placed into the residual waste by Cambridge householders. Across Cambridge an average of 52.5% or 

0.21kg/hh/wk of residual textiles is classified as reusable, this equates to 3.3% of all collected residual 

waste. 

 

Table 4.2.7.1 and Figure 4.2.7.1 show the amounts of the different forms of textile waste found within the 

samples from each Acorn. 

 

Table 4.2.7.1: Levels of textiles within residual waste of each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL TEXTILES 
ACORN 

1 
ACORN 

2 
ACORN 

3 
ACORN 

4 
ACORN 

5 
ACORN 5 

(LPA) COMMUNAL 
WEIGHTED 

AV. 

REUSABLE 
CLOTHING 0.03 0.07 0.25 0.20 0.33 0.08 0.22 0.15 

SHOES 0.00 0.04 0.02 0.12 0.11 0.05 0.07 0.05 

ALL OTHER 
TEXTILES 0.01 0.18 0.17 0.19 0.27 0.06 0.19 0.19 

KG/HH/WK TOTAL 
TEXTILES 0.04 0.29 0.43 0.50 0.71 0.18 0.48 0.39 

KG/HH/WK 
REUSABLE TEXTILES 0.03 0.11 0.27 0.31 0.44 0.12 0.28 0.21 

% REUSABLE 
TEXTILES 66.10% 36.88% 61.45% 61.89% 61.69% 67.35% 59.77% 52.51% 

 

 

 

Page 297



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 2
8 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
.7

.1
: L

ev
el

s 
of

 te
xt

ile
s 

w
ith

in
 r

es
id

ua
l w

as
te

 o
f e

ac
h 

A
co

rn
 (k

g/
hh

/w
k)

 

0
.0

0

0
.0

5

0
.1

0

0
.1

5

0
.2

0

0
.2

5

0
.3

0

0
.3

5

0
.4

0

0
.4

5

0
.5

0

0
.5

5

0
.6

0

0
.6

5

0
.7

0

0
.7

5

AC
O
R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O
R
N
 3

AC
O
R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M
U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

A
L
L
 O

T
H

E
R

 T
E
X

T
IL

E
S

S
H

O
E
S

R
E
U

S
A

B
L
E
 C

L
O

T
H

IN
G

Page 298



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 29 - 

4.2.8 Hazardous Items (HHW) & WEEE 

In this sampling campaign the average overall concentration of hazardous and WEEE waste was seen to 

be 1.6% which equates to around 0.10kg/hh/wk. Acorn 4 households disposed of the most HHW and 

WEEE waste, where it was responsible for 4.3% of collected waste or 0.28kg/hh/wk. Table 4.2.8.1 shows 

the amounts of HHW and WEEE within the samples from each Acorn. 

 

Table 4.2.8.1: Levels of HHW and WEEE within each Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

RESIDUAL HHW & 
WEEE 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 5 
(LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

HHW 0.06 0.01 0.11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.03 

WEEE 0.05 0.05 0.10 0.28 0.07 0.02 0.24 0.07 

TOTAL 0.11 0.06 0.21 0.28 0.07 0.02 0.25 0.10 

% HHW & WEEE 2.64% 1.40% 2.65% 4.27% 0.67% 0.44% 3.00% 1.61% 

 

HHW WEEE 

PAINT CHARGERS 

HALOGEN BULB GAME REMOTE 

BATTERIES XMAS LIGHTS 

MEDICINES THERMOSTAT 

WEED KILLER MOBILE PHONE 

 TORCHES 

 SMOKE ALARM 

 SWITCH 

 MODEM 

 LAMPS 

 KETTLES 

 STEREO & SPEAKERS 

 MOTOR 

 TELEPHONE 

 HAIR STRAIGHTENERS 

 CABLES & LEADS 

 SOCKERS 

 DEEP FAT FRYER 

 FAN 

 BLENDER 

 CALCULATOR 

 

Page 299



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 30 - 

4.2.9 Disposable Nappies 

The profile of this type of waste has increased in recent years. Levels of this waste within the residual bins 

of households with babies can be extremely high. In this survey the concentrations of disposable nappies 

ranged between 1.3% in Acorn 3 up to 33.5% in communal bins. Communal bins were seen to contain 

around 2.79kg/hh/wk of disposable nappies. Throughout Cambridge as a whole around 17% of collected 

residual waste consists of disposable nappies, which equates to 1.08kg/hh/wk. 

 

4.3 Potential recyclability of the residual waste 

The overall recyclability of the residual waste relates to all the items present that could have been accepted 

into the kerbside recycling schemes currently running in Cambridge. Results from the survey showed that 

the overall recyclability of the residual waste was highest in Acorn 2 households at 45.4%, and lowest in 

Acorn 3 at 27.2%. Across Cambridge it is expected that 35.1% of all residual waste being disposed of is 

recyclable at the kerbside.   

 

The majority of the recyclable materials present within the residual waste were compatible with the green 

organics bin.  On average 22% of residual waste could have been recycled in the green bin ranging from 

15.7% of Acorn 3 waste up to 32.6% of Acorn 4 waste.   

 

On average just over 13% of the residual waste throughout Cambridge was recyclable via the blue bin 

collection.  Around 10 4% of the residual waste from Acorn 4 was compatible with blue bins compared with 

17.5% of that from Acorn 1.   

 

 

Table 4.3.1.1: Proportion of residual waste currently recyclable relative to current schemes (%) 

 

% RECYCLABLE 
MATERIALS WITHIN 
RESIDUAL WASTE 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE 17.47% 15.67% 11.43% 10.41% 11.16% 11.48% 14.01% 13.15% 

GREEN BIN RECYCLABLE 18.94% 29.72% 15.72% 32.64% 16.78% 31.01% 23.21% 21.95% 

TOTAL RECYCLABLE 36.41% 45.39% 27.15% 43.05% 27.94% 42.50% 37.21% 35.11% 

 

 

Page 300



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 31 - 

In terms of the amount of recyclables disposed of it is seen that Acorn 1 householders place around 

1.53kg/hh/wk of materials in residual bins that could either be placed into their blue or green recycling bins. 

For communal bins this amount was 3.1kg/hh/wk.  Across Cambridge around 2.23kg/hh/wk of recyclable 

material is being disposed of in the residual waste. 

 

Table 4.3.1.2: Kg/hh/wk of residual waste currently and potentially recyclable relative to current schemes 

 

KG/HH/WK RECYCLABLE 
MATERIALS WITHIN 
RESIDUAL WASTE 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE 0.73 0.73 0.91 0.68 1.09 0.58 1.17 0.84 

GREEN BIN RECYCLABLE 0.80 1.38 1.25 2.12 1.64 1.57 1.93 1.40 

TOTAL RECYCLABLE 1.53 2.11 2.15 2.80 2.74 2.15 3.10 2.23 

 

 

Figure 4.3.1.1 clearly shows the levels of residual materials currently collectable in the recycling collections 

available in Cambridge. Different households were seen to dispose of differing levels of recyclable 

materials, both in terms of volume and composition (Table 4.3.1.3). Without exception it is seen that the two 

Acorn 5 samples and the waste from the communal bins contained the highest levels of each material 

compatible with kerbside recycling.   

  

Table 4.3.1.3: Kg/hh/wk of residual waste potentially recyclable relative to Acorn (Kg/hh/wk) 

 

KG/HH/WK RECYCLABLE 
MATERIALS WITHIN 
RESIDUAL WASTE 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

RECYCLABLE PAPER 0.43 0.28 0.34 0.30 0.48 0.15 0.37 0.35 

RECYCLABLE CARD & 
CARDBOARD 

0.14 0.12 0.23 0.12 0.33 0.09 0.21 0.18 

RECYCLABLE PLASTIC 
BOTTLES 0.09 0.04 0.06 0.06 0.05 0.04 0.13 0.05 

RECYCLABLE GLASS 0.04 0.19 0.19 0.13 0.13 0.22 0.35 0.16 

RECYCLABLE METALS 0.03 0.10 0.10 0.06 0.11 0.07 0.12 0.09 

RECYCLABLE FOOD 
WASTE 0.69 1.27 1.23 1.66 1.61 1.37 1.80 1.31 

RECYCLABLE GARDEN 
WASTE 0.10 0.11 0.00 0.08 0.03 0.20 0.13 0.07 

RECYCLABLE PET 
BEDDING 

0.00 0.05 0.00 0.05 0.06 0.07 0.21 0.01 

TOTAL RECYCLABLE 1.53 2.16 2.15 2.47 2.80 2.22 3.31 2.23 

Page 301



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 3
2 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.3
.1

.1
: K

g/
hh

/w
k 

of
 r

es
id

ua
l w

as
te

 p
ot

en
tia

lly
 r

ec
yc

la
bl

e 
re

la
tiv

e 
to

 A
co

rn
 (K

g/
hh

/w
k)

 

0
.0

0

0
.5

0

1
.0

0

1
.5

0

2
.0

0

2
.5

0

3
.0

0

3
.5

0

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

E
T
 B

E
D

D
IN

G

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 G

A
R

D
E
N

W
A

S
T
E

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 F

O
O

D
W

A
S

T
E

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 M

E
T
A

L
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 G

L
A

S
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

L
A

S
T
IC

B
O

T
T

L
E
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 C

A
R

D
 &

C
A

R
D

B
O

A
R

D

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P
E
R

Page 302



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 33 - 

 

4.4 Biodegradable waste 

 

These figures are useful when considering the proportion of biodegradable waste, which may be subject to 

the national provision of the Landfill Directive. The data has been calculated using the compositional data in 

accordance with the percentages outlined in previous reports. For example, only 50% of miscellaneous 

combustible materials are considered to be biodegradable whereas 100% of paper and card is considered 

to be biodegradable. 

 

National average figures are around 68%; in this survey the biodegradability of residual waste weighted 

across Cambridge was well below this level at 50.7%. Acorn 4 residual waste displayed the highest 

concentration of biodegradable items at 59.4%, with Acorn 3 residual waste being just 44.4% 

biodegradable. On average, around 3.22kg/hh/wk of biodegradable material was being placed into residual 

containers by Cambridge residents. 

 

Table 4.4.1: Percentage composition of residual waste per Acorn – biodegradable materials 

 

BIODEGRADABLE 
CONTRIBUTION 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

PAPER AND CARD 17.19% 12.94% 10.94% 9.61% 11.96% 7.39% 8.80% 12.25% 

TEXTILES 0.50% 3.12% 2.74% 3.87% 3.62% 1.83% 2.85% 3.10% 

11.26% 8.35% 14.36% 8.84% 16.80% 15.07% 17.84% 12.60% 
MISC. 

COMBUSTIBLE* 
7.94% 5.73% 8.53% 4.78% 12.16% 12.51% 16.76% 8.51% 

PUTRESCIBLES 18.98% 30.22% 16.40% 36.43% 17.10% 31.74% 24.44% 22.53% 

FINES 0.26% 0.00% 0.00% 0.61% 0.46% 0.10% 0.49% 0.18% 

TOTAL 
BIODEGRADABLE 48.18% 54.63% 44.44% 59.36% 49.94% 56.13% 54.42% 50.66% 

 

* Disposable nappies are part of the miscellaneous combustible section. Their contribution to this section of 

biodegradable waste is highlighted in red. 

 

Page 303



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 34 - 

4.5 Packaging Waste 

 

These figures are useful when considering the proportion of packaging waste, which may be subject to the 

national provision of the Landfill Directive. The data has been calculated using a similar method to that used 

to calculate biodegradability. 

 

Levels of packaging in the residual waste ranged from 12.3% in Acorn 5 residual waste to 22.1% in Acorn 2 

residual waste. On average, around 1.08kg/hh/wk of packaging materials were being placed into residual 

containers by Cambridge residents, 17% of the total waste being disposed of. 

  

Table 4.5.1: Percentage composition of residual waste per Acorn – packaging materials 

 

PACKAGING 
CONTRIBUTION 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) 

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 
AV. 

PAPER AND CARD 4.62% 4.43% 3.32% 2.98% 4.28% 2.41% 3.88% 4.09% 

PLASTIC FILM 3.69% 5.06% 4.61% 2.62% 2.89% 5.53% 3.40% 4.11% 

DENSE PLASTIC 7.36% 6.70% 4.88% 3.90% 2.81% 4.28% 4.41% 4.96% 

GLASS 1.01% 4.08% 2.34% 1.99% 1.37% 4.39% 4.18% 2.59% 

METALS 0.63% 1.79% 1.05% 0.89% 0.98% 1.27% 1.17% 1.27% 

TOTAL 
PACKAGING 17.31% 22.06% 16.20% 12.37% 12.34% 17.87% 17.05% 17.02% 

 

Page 304



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 35 - 

 

5)    Mixed dry recycling waste 

5.1 Set out rates and waste generation 

 

Table 5.1.1 and Figure 5.1.1 highlight the set out rates for blue recycling bins observed at the time waste 

was collected for compositional analysis. Table 5.1.2 and Figure 5.1.2 show the amount of mixed recycling 

waste generated in kg/hh/wk. The same houses were visited that had their residual waste surveyed. It was 

possible to calculate the set out relating to the proportion of these households actively placing out their 

waste. The amount of waste in kilograms per household per week is derived from the number of 

households who could set out waste and not just those that are participating. Set out rates for mixed 

recycling waste ranged between 66% for Acorn 4 and 84% for Acorn 3. Across Cambridge it is estimated 

that around 78% of residents are placing out their blue bins for collection.  

 

Table 5.1.1: Average Set Out for mixed recycling waste (%)  

 

ACORN % SET OUT 

1 74% 

2 75% 

3 84% 

4 66% 

5 82% 

5 (LPA) 78% 

COMMUNAL N/A 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE 78% 

 

In this survey the average amount of mixed recycling generated in blue bins ranged between 2.36kg/hh/wk 

from Acorn 1 to 3.83kg/hh/wk from Acorn 3. Across Cambridge around 3.16kg/hh/wk of blue bin recycling 

waste is being placed out for collection at the kerbside.  

 

Table 5.1.2: Average Mixed Recycling waste generation rates (kg/hh/wk)  

 

ACORN KG/HH/WK 

1 2.36 

2 3.07 

3 3.83 

4 2.95 

5 3.09 

5 (LPA) 2.52 

COMMUNAL 3.80 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE 3.16 

 

 

Page 305



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 36 - 

Figure 5.1.1: Average Set Out for mixed recycling waste (%)  

 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

 
 

Figure 5.1.2: Average Mixed recycling waste generation rates (kg/hh/wk)  

 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

 

Page 306



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 37 - 

5.2 Compositional analysis of mixed recycling waste 

This section looks at the average amount and composition of the mixed recycling waste presented by 

households sampled throughout Cambridge. Hand sorting of the recycling waste gave concentration by 

weight figures for the fifteen main categories of waste as well as the more detailed sub-categories.  Results 

can again be expressed in terms of percentage concentration and kg/hh/wk for individual samples and in 

relation to the household Acorn type surveyed.   Table 5.2.1 and Figure 5.2.1 show mixed recycling data in 

terms of percentage composition with Table 5.2.2 and Figure 5.2.2 showing generation rates for major 

materials in terms of kg/hh/wk for each sample taken from the blue recycling bins.  

 

As residual waste will contain a proportion that is classified as potentially recyclable; then recycling waste 

will contain a faction that is deemed to be contamination. That is to say that it is not compatible with the 

materials currently acceptable to the recycling container it is placed into.  

 

Table 5.2.1: Composition of mixed recycling (% concentration) by Acorn 

 

BLUE BIN 
RECYCLING 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

RECYCLABLE PAPER 50.89% 46.17% 23.96% 25.91% 23.28% 31.61% 32.48% 36.16% 

RECYCLABLE CARD 
& CARDBOARD 12.80% 12.42% 14.12% 13.13% 17.38% 13.94% 14.95% 13.85% 

RECYCLABLE 
PLASTIC BOTTLES 4.33% 4.28% 7.60% 5.74% 7.68% 8.58% 7.17% 5.76% 

RECYCLABLE GLASS 18.59% 30.83% 41.13% 36.02% 35.39% 32.94% 25.61% 33.55% 

RECYCLABLE 
METALS 5.08% 2.87% 6.02% 5.95% 5.12% 4.86% 5.56% 4.25% 

CONTAMINATION 
MATERIALS 8.32% 3.43% 7.18% 13.23% 11.15% 8.06% 14.22% 6.42% 

TOTAL RECYCLING 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 

 

Table 5.2.2: Composition of mixed recycling (kg/hh/wk) by Acorn 

 

BLUE BIN 
RECYCLING 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

RECYCLABLE PAPER 1.20 1.42 0.92 0.76 0.72 0.80 1.24 1.14 

RECYCLABLE CARD 
& CARDBOARD 0.30 0.38 0.54 0.39 0.54 0.35 0.57 0.44 

RECYCLABLE 
PLASTIC BOTTLES 

0.10 0.13 0.29 0.17 0.24 0.22 0.27 0.18 

RECYCLABLE GLASS 0.44 0.95 1.58 1.06 1.09 0.83 0.97 1.06 

RECYCLABLE 
METALS 

0.12 0.09 0.23 0.18 0.16 0.12 0.21 0.13 

CONTAMINATION 
MATERIALS 0.20 0.11 0.27 0.39 0.34 0.20 0.54 0.20 

TOTAL RECYCLING 2.36 3.07 3.83 2.95 3.09 2.52 3.80 3.16 

Page 307



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 3
8 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 5

.2
.1

: C
om

po
si

tio
n 

of
 m

ix
ed

 r
ec

yc
lin

g 
(%

) b
y 

A
co

rn
 

0
%

1
0
%

2
0
%

3
0
%

4
0
%

5
0
%

6
0
%

7
0
%

8
0
%

9
0
%

1
0
0
%

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

C
O

N
T
A

M
IN

A
T
IO

N
M

A
T
E
R

IA
L
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 M

E
T
A

L
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 G

L
A

S
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

L
A

S
T
IC

B
O

T
T
L
E
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 C

A
R

D
 &

C
A

R
D

B
O

A
R

D

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P
E
R

 

Page 308



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 3
9 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 5

.2
.2

: C
om

po
si

tio
n 

of
 m

ix
ed

 r
ec

yc
lin

g 
(k

g/
hh

/w
k)

 b
y 

A
co

rn
  

0
.0

0

0
.5

0

1
.0

0

1
.5

0

2
.0

0

2
.5

0

3
.0

0

3
.5

0

4
.0

0

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

C
O

N
T
A

M
IN

A
T
IO

N
M

A
T
E
R

IA
L
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 M

E
T
A

L
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 G

L
A

S
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

L
A

S
T
IC

B
O

T
T
L
E
S

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 C

A
R

D
 &

C
A

R
D

B
O

A
R

D

R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P
E
R

Page 309



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 40 - 

5.3 Materials placed out for mixed recycling collections 

 

This chapter looks in more detail at the individual materials placed out for blue bin recycling collections and 

highlights the effectiveness with which the mixed recycling scheme is capturing these items. Looking at the 

relationship between the residual and recycling waste streams presented will additionally give indications as 

to the overall diversion being achieved in the Cambridge samples. 

 

Table 5.3.1 summarises the capture and diversion rates seen for the range of materials collected in the dry 

recycling collections. Recyclable paper, card & cardboard, plastics, glass and metals are collected in the 

blue bin.   

 

Across Cambridge around 75.6% of all the materials currently collected in blue bins are being correctly 

recycled at the kerbside.  Acorns 1 – 4 all recycled between 73% and 79% of their blue bin materials.  In 

comparison Acorn 5 households recycled 69% whilst those using communal bins recycled just 58%.  

Overall it is estimated that 23.7% of kerbside waste throughout Cambridge is diverted through blue bin 

collections.   

 

Table 5.3.1: Summary table for material capture and diversion rates (%) for mixed recycling  

 

% CAPTURE RATES 
ACORN 

1 
ACORN 

2 
ACORN 

3 
ACORN 

4 
ACORN 

5 
ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

RECYCLABLE PAPER 73.72% 83.14% 72.96% 72.49% 59.96% 84.58% 83.29% 76.73% 

RECYCLABLE CARD & 
CARDBOARD 72.89% 77.28% 72.19% 77.83% 66.54% 82.21% 81.76% 72.67% 

PLASTIC BOTTLES 53.80% 75.57% 82.58% 73.38% 83.76% 83.16% 62.63% 78.24% 

COLOURED GLASS 
BOTTLES & JARS 100.00% 87.60% 99.09% 88.53% 93.66% 72.18% 80.07% 91.55% 

CLEAR GLASS BOTTLES 91.08% 86.29% 70.26% 89.58% 90.54% 81.91% 74.03% 82.40% 

CLEAR GLASS JARS 79.37% 60.32% 96.72% N/A 74.00% 86.58% 65.68% 75.68% 

ALL RECYCLABLE 
GLASS 91.20% 83.29% 89.45% 89.15% 89.05% 78.94% 73.64% 86.53% 

DRINK CANS 67.43% 75.29% 75.31% 82.71% 63.14% 64.51% 68.55% 71.54% 

FOOD TINS 88.57% 51.11% 78.10% 73.66% 70.06% 75.17% 65.10% 65.51% 

AEROSOLS 100.00% 35.30% 71.44% 61.23% 46.61% 52.05% 43.96% 51.30% 

OTHER RECYCLABLE 
METALS 19.96% 7.86% 25.61% 26.29% 12.14% 29.91% 63.26% 14.45% 

ALL RECYCLABLE 
METALS 78.80% 47.98% 69.56% 73.66% 59.18% 62.96% 63.49% 58.87% 

ALL BLUE BIN 
MATERIALS 72.69% 79.14% 78.60% 77.33% 69.48% 77.35% 58.45% 76.55% 

% DIVERSION 15.19% 30.96% 21.27% 21.04% 18.11% 21.66% 22.01% 23.69% 

Page 310



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 41 - 

5.3.1 Paper Capture 

Acorn 2 residents captured the highest proportion of their recyclable paper with 82% correctly being 

recycled; they generated 1.73kg/hh/wk of this material. Residents in communal bin areas captured the least 

recyclable paper at 56% additionally they also generated the most of this recyclable paper at 2.19kg/hh/wk.   

 

Across Cambridge it is estimated that 1.50kg/hh/wk of recyclable paper is generated with around 76% 

being correctly placed into the blue bin*.   

 

There are many different forms of paper and decisions have to be made by residents as to whether a 

particular piece of paper is to go into the recycling or residual waste.  On average, the majority of all 

recyclable forms of paper are being correctly diverted by all the residents sampled although there is around 

0.36kg/hh/wk of potentially recyclable paper not being placed into blue bins. On average 23% of recyclable 

paper is in the residual bin with 1% in the organic bin.  Figure 5.3.2.1 shows the distribution of recyclable 

paper throughout the residual and recycling waste by Acorn category. 

 

Figure 5.3.1.1: Distribution of recyclable paper within residual and mixed recycling samples (kg/hh/wk) 

 

0.00

0.25

0.50

0.75

1.00

1.25

1.50

1.75

2.00

2.25

2.50

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL   WEIGHTED
AV.

RECYCLABLE PAPER BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE PAPER RESIDUAL BIN RECYCLABLE PAPER ORGANIC BIN

 
* This capture rate includes the paper disposed of in the organics bin.  Although it is preferential that 
recyclable paper is put into the blue bin it is acceptable for the green bin.  Shredded paper is only 
acceptable in green bins.  

Page 311



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 42 - 

5.3.2 Card & Cardboard Capture 

Acorn 2 residents captured the highest proportion of their recyclable card & cardboard with 73% correctly 

being recycled; they generated 0.52kg/hh/wk of this material. Residents in communal bin areas captured 

the least at less than 44% additionally they also generated the most of this recyclable card & cardboard at 

1.30kg/hh/wk.   

 

Across Cambridge it is estimated that 0.67kg/hh/wk of recyclable paper is generated with around 65% 

being correctly placed into the blue bin*.   

 

As for paper,  are many different forms of card & cardboard and decisions have to be made by residents as 

to whether a particular piece is to go into the recycling or residual waste.  With the exception of residents in 

the communal bin sample, the majority of all recyclable forms of card & cardboard are being correctly 

diverted by all the residents surveyed although there is around 0.24kg/hh/wk of potentially recyclable card & 

cardboard not being placed into blue bins. On average 27% of recyclable card & cardboard is in the 

residual bin with 8% in the organic bin.  Figure 5.3.3.1 shows the distribution of recyclable card & cardboard 

throughout the residual and recycling waste by Acorn category. 

 

Figure 5.3.2.1: Distribution of recyclable card within residual and mixed recycling samples (kg/hh/wk) 

0.00

0.25

0.50

0.75

1.00

1.25

1.50

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL   WEIGHTED
AV.

RECYCLABLE CARD BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE CARD RESIDUAL BIN RECYCLABLE CARD ORGANIC BIN

 

* This capture rate includes certain card disposed of in the organics bin.  Although it is preferential that 
recyclable card & cardboard is put into the blue bin it is acceptable for the green bin.  Tetrapaks are only 
acceptable in blue bins.  

Page 312



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 43 - 

5.3.3 Plastic Bottles Capture 

Acorn 5 residents captured the highest proportion of their recyclable plastic bottles with 84% correctly being 

recycled; they generated 0.26kg/hh/wk of this material. Residents in Acorn 1 areas captured the least 

recyclable paper at 54% additionally they generated 0.19kg/hh/wk.   

 

Across Cambridge it is estimated that 0.23kg/hh/wk of recyclable plastic bottles are generated with around 

78% being correctly placed into the blue bin.   

 

Plastic bottles are easily identifiable when compared with other non-recyclable plastics.  The majority of all 

recyclable plastic bottles are being correctly diverted by all the residents surveyed and there is just 

0.05kg/hh/wk of these bottles not being placed into blue bins. On average 22% of recyclable plastic bottles 

are in the residual bin.  Figure 5.3.3.1 shows the distribution of recyclable plastic bottles throughout the 

residual and recycling waste by Acorn category. 

 

Figure 5.3.3.1: Distribution of recyclable plastic bottles within residual and mixed recycling samples (kg/hh/wk) 

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL   WEIGHTED
AV.

RECYCLABLE PLASTIC BOTTLES ORGANIC BIN

RECYCLABLE PLASTIC BOTTLES RESIDUAL BIN

RECYCLABLE PLASTIC BOTTLES BLUE BIN

Page 313



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 44 - 

5.3.4 Glass Capture 

 

Acorn 1 residents captured the highest proportion of their recyclable glass with 91% correctly being 

recycled, while residents from communal bin areas captured 74%. Acorn 3 residents produced the most 

recyclable glass in their combined kerbside waste at 1.76kg/hh/wk compared with 0.48kg/hh/wk from Acorn 

1. On average, 87% of all recyclable glass is being correctly diverted by the Cambridge residents sampled 

with around 1.23kg/hh/wk being sampled. 

 

Overall capture rates for coloured glass bottles were 92% with 82% of clear glass bottles similarly captured.  

Clear glass is generally considered to be more highly valued as a recyclate and it was seen that just 76% of 

glass jars were captured.   It is often seen to be the case that empty jars are more messy than empty 

bottles and residents may not clean them for recycling, thus choosing to place them in the residual bins.   

On average, the vast majority of all recyclable forms of glass are being correctly diverted by the residents 

sampled although there is around 13% or 0.16kg/hh/wk of potentially recyclable glass not being placed into 

blue bins.  Figure 5.3.4.1 shows the distribution of recyclable glass throughout the residual and mixed 

recycling waste. 

 

Figure 5.3.4.1: Distribution of recyclable glass within residual and mixed recycling samples (kg/hh/wk)  

 

0.00

0.20

0.40

0.60

0.80

1.00

1.20

1.40

1.60

1.80

2.00

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL   WEIGHTED
AV.

RECYCLABLE GLASS BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE GLASS RESIDUAL BIN RECYCLABLE GLASS ORGANIC BIN

 

Page 314



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 45 - 

5.3.5 Metals Capture 

 

Acorn 1 residents captured the highest proportion of their recyclable metals with 79% correctly being 

recycled, while residents from Acorn 2 captured just 48%. Acorn 3 and communal bin users produced the 

most recyclable metals in their combined kerbside waste at 0.33kg/hh/wk compared with 0.15kg/hh/wk from 

Acorn 1. On average, 59% of all recyclable metals are being correctly diverted by Cambridge residents 

sampled with around 0.23kg/hh/wk being generated. 

 

Overall capture rates for drinks cans were 72%, with 66% of food tins recycled. It is often seen to be the 

case that residents are unwilling to clean out food tins before recycling and this can lead to low capture 

rates when compared with cleaner drinks cans. Capture rates for empty aerosols were seen to be lower 

with just 51% of those available being placed into recycling containers. With the exception of Acorn 2 

residents, the majority of all recyclable forms of metals are being correctly diverted, although there is around 

0.09kg/hh/wk of potentially recyclable metal not being placed into blue bins. On average 41% of recyclable 

metal are in the residual bin. Figure 5.3.5.1 shows the distribution of recyclable metals throughout the 

residual and mixed recycling waste. 

 

Figure 5.3.5.1: Distribution of recyclable metals within residual and mixed recycling samples (kg/hh/wk)  

 

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL   WEIGHTED
AV.

RECYCLABLE METALS BLUE BIN RECYCLABLE METALS RESIDUAL BIN RECYCLABLE METALS ORGANIC BIN

 

Page 315



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 4
6 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 5

.3
.5

.2
: S

um
m

ar
y 

ch
ar

t o
f c

ap
tu

re
 r

at
es

 fo
r 

bl
ue

 b
in

 r
ec

yc
la

bl
es

.  

14
%

51
%

66
%

72
%73
%76

%77
%78
%82

%

92
%

0%
10

%
20

%
30

%
40

%
50

%
60

%
70

%
80

%
90

%
10

0%

O
TH

ER
 R

EC
Y

CL
A

BL
E 

M
ET

A
LS

A
ER

O
SO

LS

FO
O

D 
TI

NS

DR
IN

K 
CA

NS

RE
CY

CL
A

BL
E 

CA
RD

 &
 C

A
RD

BO
A

RD

CL
EA

R 
G

LA
SS

 J
A

RS

RE
CY

CL
A

BL
E 

PA
PE

R

PL
A

ST
IC

 B
O

TT
LE

S

CL
EA

R 
G

LA
SS

 B
O

TT
LE

S

CO
LO

UR
ED

 G
LA

SS
 B

O
TT

LE
S 

& 
JA

RS

 

 

Page 316



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 47 - 

5.4 Blue Bin Recycling Contamination 

 

From Table 5.2.1 it has been shown that on average 6.4% of blue bin recycling is made up of 

contamination. This equates to around 0.20kg/hh/wk.  This section looks to breakdown the amounts and 

concentrations of various contaminants being placed into the recycling waste in Cambridge. 

 

Some forms of contamination may be due to residents’ lack of knowledge in relation to the recycling 

scheme. For example a householder may believe all plastic containers are accepted alongside recyclable 

plastic bottles. Other contamination will be formed from waste that is totally unrelated to the materials 

collected (i.e. disposable nappies, wood or bagged kitchen waste). Table 5.4.1 and Figure 5.4.1 show the 

amounts of contamination materials recovered from the blue bin.  

 

The blue bin contained between 0.11kg/hh/wk (Acorn 2) and 0.54kg/hh/wk (communal bin households) of 

contamination.   

 

 

Table 5.4.1: Breakdown of contamination materials in the blue bin recycling waste (kg/hh/wk) 

 

BLUE BIN 
CONTAMINATION 

KG/HH/WK 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PAPER & CARD 0.04 0.03 0.06 0.04 0.13 0.04 0.06 0.06 

PLASTIC FILM 0.01 0.01 0.04 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.02 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PLASTICS 0.09 0.04 0.07 0.14 0.08 0.11 0.19 0.06 

TEXTILES 0.00 0.01 0.03 0.06 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
GLASS 

0.00 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.00 <0.01 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
METALS 0.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.01 <0.01 

FOOD WASTE 0.00 0.01 0.02 0.10 0.08 0.01 0.07 0.03 

LIQUIDS 0.01 0.00 0.01 0.04 0.00 0.00 0.02 <0.01 

ALL OTHER 
CONTAMINATION 0.01 0.00 0.04 0.00 0.04 0.01 0.17 0.02 

TOTAL 
CONTAMINATION 0.20 0.11 0.27 0.39 0.34 0.20 0.54 0.20 

 

Page 317



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 4
8 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 5

.4
.1

: B
re

ak
do

w
n 

of
 c

on
ta

m
in

at
io

n 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 p
re

se
nt

 w
ith

in
 b

lu
e 

bi
n 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
co

nt
ai

ne
rs

 (k
g/

hh
/w

k)
. 

0
.0

0

0
.1

0

0
.2

0

0
.3

0

0
.4

0

0
.5

0

0
.6

0

A
C

O
R

N
 1

A
C

O
R

N
 2

A
C

O
R

N
 3

A
C

O
R

N
 4

A
C

O
R

N
 5

A
C

O
R

N
 5

(L
P

A
)

C
O

M
M

U
N

A
L

  
W

E
IG

H
T
E
D

A
V

.

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P

E
R

 &
 C

A
R

D
P
L
A

S
T
IC

 F
IL

M
N

O
N

-R
E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

L
A

S
T
IC

S
T
E
X

T
IL

E
S

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 G

L
A

S
S

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

 M
E
T
A

L
S

F
O

O
D

 W
A

S
T
E

L
IQ

U
ID

S
A

L
L
 O

T
H

E
R

 C
O

N
T
A

M
IN

A
T
IO

N

Page 318



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 49 - 

Table 5.4.2 shows the levels of contamination materials recovered from the blue bin as a percentage of the 

total.   On average 6.4% of blue bin recycling is deemed to be contamination.  Almost 4% of contamination 

is due to non-recyclable plastic containers, paper and card.  Just over 3% of Acorn 2 recycling was classed 

as contamination compared with over 14% of that from households on communal bins.    

 

Table 5.4.2: Levels of contamination within the blue bin recycling waste (% of total) 

 

BLUE BIN 
CONTAMINATION % 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PAPER & CARD 1.84% 0.90% 1.67% 1.35% 4.23% 1.61% 1.52% 1.82% 

PLASTIC FILM 0.39% 0.39% 1.07% 0.33% 0.43% 0.70% 0.53% 0.54% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PLASTICS 3.65% 1.42% 1.75% 4.71% 2.68% 4.25% 5.04% 1.98% 

TEXTILES 0.00% 0.17% 0.88% 1.96% 0.02% 0.17% 0.00% 0.35% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
GLASS 0.05% 0.25% 0.04% 0.00% 0.10% 0.40% 0.00% 0.16% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
METALS 1.52% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.50% 0.13% 0.08% 

FOOD WASTE 0.00% 0.31% 0.49% 3.54% 2.54% 0.23% 1.90% 0.89% 

LIQUIDS 0.42% 0.00% 0.26% 1.27% 0.00% 0.00% 0.57% 0.12% 

ALL OTHER 
CONTAMINATION 0.44% 0.00% 1.01% 0.07% 1.14% 0.21% 4.53% 0.48% 

TOTAL 
CONTAMINATION 8.32% 3.43% 7.18% 13.23% 11.15% 8.06% 14.22% 6.42% 

 

 

Page 319



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 50 - 

Table 5.4.3 and Figure 5.4.2 show a breakdown of the contaminants to highlight materials causing the 

greatest contribution to the overall contamination levels within blue bins. Around 31% of the contamination 

was due to non-recyclable dense plastics, these formed over half of the contamination from Acorn 5(LPA) 

households.  Over 28% of contamination was due to non-recyclable paper and card; this formed almost 

40% of Acorn 5 contamination.  Up to 14% of contamination was formed from food waste and this material 

represented a quarter of the overall contamination from Acorn 4 and 5 households.  

 

Blue bins from communal households had very high levels of miscellaneous contamination at 32% of the 

total.  These items are typical of general residual waste being placed into recycling bins.  

 

Table 5.4.3: Proportional breakdown of blue bin contaminants (% of contamination).  

 

% OF 
CONTAMINANTS 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PAPER & CARD 22.09% 26.25% 23.24% 10.23% 37.98% 19.92% 10.70% 28.31% 

PLASTIC FILM 4.74% 11.25% 14.85% 2.49% 3.87% 8.66% 3.70% 8.48% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PLASTICS 43.90% 41.25% 24.42% 35.58% 24.04% 52.71% 35.46% 30.78% 

TEXTILES 0.00% 4.86% 12.28% 14.84% 0.21% 2.16% 0.00% 5.38% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
GLASS 0.64% 7.36% 0.62% 0.00% 0.88% 4.96% 0.00% 2.43% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
METALS 18.22% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 6.17% 0.92% 1.27% 

FOOD WASTE 0.00% 9.03% 6.80% 26.73% 22.82% 2.86% 13.33% 13.94% 

LIQUIDS 5.09% 0.00% 3.68% 9.59% 0.00% 0.00% 4.04% 1.91% 

ALL OTHER 
CONTAMINATION 5.32% 0.00% 14.12% 0.55% 10.19% 2.55% 31.86% 7.52% 

TOTAL 
CONTAMINATION 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

 

 

 

Page 320



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 5
1 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 5

.4
.2

: P
ro

po
rt

io
na

l b
re

ak
do

w
n 

of
 b

lu
e 

bi
n 

co
nt

am
in

an
ts

 (%
 o

f c
on

ta
m

in
at

io
n)

.  

0
%

1
0
%

2
0
%

3
0
%

4
0
%

5
0
%

6
0
%

7
0
%

8
0
%

9
0
%

1
0
0
%

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

A
L
L
 O

T
H

E
R

 C
O

N
T
A

M
IN

A
T
IO

N

L
IQ

U
ID

S

F
O

O
D

 W
A

S
T
E

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

 M
E
T

A
L
S

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

 G
L
A

S
S

T
E
X

T
IL

E
S

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

 P
L
A

S
T

IC
S

P
L
A

S
T
IC

 F
IL

M

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E

 P
A

P
E

R
 &

C
A

R
D

Page 321



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 52 - 

6)   Green Bin Organic Recycling Waste 

 

6.1 Set out rates and waste generation 

 

Table 6.1.1 and Figure 6.1.1 highlight the average set out rates for green bin organic recycling waste 

observed during the compositional analysis. Table 6.1.2 and Figure 6.1.2 show the average amounts of this 

recycling waste generated in kg/hh/wk.  Set out rates ranged between 50% for Acorn 4 and 65% for Acorn 

5(LPA) were observed.  Across Cambridge around 58% of residents are opting to place out organic waste 

containers for collection. 

 

Table 6.1.1: Average Set Out For Green Bin Waste (%)  

 

ACORN % SET OUT 

1 61% 

2 57% 

3 63% 

4 50% 

5 56% 

5 (LPA) 65% 

COMMUNAL N/A 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE 58% 

 
 

Figure 6.1.1: Average Set Out For Green Bin Waste (%) 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

 

Page 322



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 53 - 

In this survey the amount of green bin recycling generated ranged between 1.86kg/hh/wk from Acorn 2 to 

7.66kg/hh/wk from Acorn 1. Across Cambridge around 2.96kg/hh/wk organically recycled waste is being 

collected from the kerbside. 

 

Table 6.1.2: Average green bin waste generation rates (kg/hh/wk) 

 

ACORN KG/HH/WK 

1 7.66 

2 1.86 

3 4.95 

4 2.71 

5 2.27 

5 (LPA) 3.13 

COMMUNAL 2.69 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE 2.96 

 

 
 

Figure 6.1.2: Average green bin waste generation rates (kg/hh/wk)  

 

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

7.00

8.00

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE

 

 

 

 

Page 323



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 54 - 

6.2 Compositional analysis of green recycling bins 

 

This section looks at the average amount and composition of the green bin organic recycling waste 

presented by participating households sampled throughout Cambridge. Results can again be expressed in 

terms of percentage concentration and kg/hh/wk for individual samples and in relation to the household 

Acorn surveyed. 

 

Table 6.2.1 and Figure 6.2.1 show green bin recycling data in terms of percentage composition with Table 

6.2.2 and Figure 6.2.2 showing average generation rates for major materials in terms of kg/hh/wk. As 

residual waste will contain a proportion that is classified as potentially recyclable; then recycling waste will 

contain a faction that is deemed to be contamination.  That is to say that it is not compatible with the 

materials currently acceptable to the green bin recycling scheme.  

 

Table 6.2.1: Average Composition of organic recycling (% concentration) by Acorn 

 

ORGANIC RECYCLING 
KG/HH/WK 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) 

COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 
AV. 

HOME COMPOSTABLE 
FOODS 

2.50% 1.99% 11.17% 10.82% 6.71% 2.90% 25.30% 5.93% 

NON-HOME 
COMPOSTABLE FOODS 0.66% 15.64% 3.09% 7.53% 0.88% 9.13% 1.41% 6.38% 

FLORA ORGANICS 92.93% 79.43% 81.99% 74.25% 77.77% 72.68% 0.39% 82.30% 

OTHER ACCEPTABLE 
ORGANICS 3.67% 2.83% 1.24% 2.73% 4.95% 13.64% 41.62% 2.84% 

SOIL & TURF 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 4.22% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.13% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PAPER & CARD 

0.00% 0.11% 0.02% 0.08% 0.13% 1.01% 8.60% 0.06% 

PLASTICS 0.00% 0.00% 0.02% 0.00% 0.07% 0.00% 6.17% 0.02% 

TEXTILES 0.24% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 3.37% 0.00% 2.21% 0.59% 

GLASS 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.53% 0.00% 

METALS 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.25% 0.00% 

ALL OTHER WASTE 0.00% 0.00% 2.47% 0.36% 6.13% 0.64% 13.52% 1.75% 

TOTAL 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 

 

Page 324



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 55 - 

Table 6.2.2: Average Composition of organic recycling (kg/hh/wk) by Acorn 

 

 

ORGANIC RECYCLING 
KG/HH/WK 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

HOME COMPOSTABLE 
FOODS 0.19 0.04 0.55 0.29 0.15 0.09 0.68 0.18 

NON-HOME 
COMPOSTABLE FOODS 0.05 0.29 0.15 0.20 0.02 0.29 0.04 0.19 

FLORA ORGANICS 7.12 1.48 4.06 2.01 1.77 2.28 0.01 2.43 

OTHER ACCEPTABLE 
ORGANICS 

0.28 0.05 0.06 0.07 0.11 0.43 1.12 0.08 

SOIL & TURF 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PAPER & CARD 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.03 0.23 0.00 

PLASTICS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.17 0.00 

TEXTILES 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.08 0.00 0.06 0.02 

GLASS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.00 

METALS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.00 

ALL OTHER WASTE 0.00 0.00 0.12 0.01 0.14 0.02 0.36 0.05 

TOTAL 7.66 1.86 4.95 2.71 2.27 3.13 2.69 2.96 

Page 325



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 5
6 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 6

.2
.1

: A
ve

ra
ge

 C
om

po
si

tio
n 

of
 o

rg
an

ic
 r

ec
yc

lin
g 

(%
 b

y 
w

ei
gh

t) 
by

 A
co

rn
 

0
%

1
0
%

2
0
%

3
0
%

4
0
%

5
0
%

6
0
%

7
0
%

8
0
%

9
0
%

1
0
0
%

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O

M
M

U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

A
L
L
 O

T
H

E
R

 W
A

S
T
E

M
E
T
A

L
S

G
L
A

S
S

T
E
X

T
IL

E
S

P
L
A

S
T
IC

S

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P
E
R

&
 C

A
R

D

S
O

IL
 &

 T
U

R
F

O
T
H

E
R

 A
C

C
E
P
T
A

B
L
E

O
R

G
A

N
IC

S

F
L
O

R
A

 O
R

G
A

N
IC

S

N
O

N
-H

O
M

E
 C

O
M

P
O

S
T
A

B
L
E

F
O

O
D

S

H
O

M
E
 C

O
M

P
O

S
T
A

B
L
E

F
O

O
D

S

 

Page 326



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 5
7 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 6

.2
.2

: C
om

po
si

tio
n 

of
 o

rg
an

ic
 r

ec
yc

lin
g 

(k
g/

hh
/w

k)
 b

y 
A

co
rn

 

 

0
.0

1
.0

2
.0

3
.0

4
.0

5
.0

6
.0

7
.0

8
.0

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O

R
N
 3

AC
O

R
N
 4

AC
O

R
N
 5

AC
O

R
N
 5
 (L

PA
)

C
O

M
M
U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

A
L
L
 O

T
H

E
R

 W
A

S
T
E

M
E
T
A

L
S

G
L
A

S
S

T
E
X

T
IL

E
S

P
L
A

S
T
IC

S

N
O

N
-R

E
C

Y
C

L
A

B
L
E
 P

A
P
E
R

&
 C

A
R

D

S
O

IL
 &

 T
U

R
F

O
T
H

E
R

 A
C

C
E
P
T
A

B
L
E

O
R

G
A

N
IC

S

F
L
O

R
A

 O
R

G
A

N
IC

S

N
O

N
-H

O
M

E
 C

O
M

P
O

S
T
A

B
L
E

F
O

O
D

S

H
O

M
E
 C

O
M

P
O

S
T
A

B
L
E

F
O

O
D

S

Page 327



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 58 - 

6.3 Materials placed out for green bin recycling collections 

 

This chapter looks in more detail at the individual materials placed out for green bin recycling collections 

and highlights the effectiveness with which this scheme is capturing these items.  Looking at the 

relationship between the residual, dry recycling and green bin recycling waste presented will additionally 

give indications as to the overall diversion being achieved throughout Cambridge. 

 

Table 6.3.1: Summary table for material capture and diversion rates (%) for green bin recycling 

 

CAPTURE & 
DIVERSION 
RATES (%) 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL 

WEIGHTED 
AV. 

HOME COMPOSTABLE 
FOODS 46.37% 4.67% 58.24% 38.15% 24.18% 14.92% 46.36% 23.12% 

NON-HOME 
COMPOSTABLE 

FOODS* 
9.71% 35.45% 15.16% 13.65% 1.61% 25.11% 3.37% 20.00% 

ALL FOOD WASTE 25.96% 20.33% 36.04% 21.97% 9.25% 21.56% 27.69% 21.39% 

FLORA ORGANICS 98.55% 93.12% 100.00% 96.06% 98.29% 91.73% 7.40% 97.15% 

PET BEDDING & 
UNTREATED WOOD 100.00% N/A N/A 0.00% N/A 100.00% 100.00% 75.69% 

ACCEPTABLE PAPER & 
CARD 4.14% 2.37% 3.07% 4.56% 5.27% 7.22% 32.03% 3.28% 

ALL ORGANICS 90.49% 56.22% 79.01% 52.97% 52.93% 65.41% 27.50% 66.27% 

% DIVERSION 53.76% 19.36% 28.89% 21.23% 13.54% 28.75% 12.45% 23.10% 

 

* Contains all unidentifiable and unsortable composite food waste.  Some of this will be home compostable 

fragments, however, due to a significant proportion being non fruit and vegetable waste; this faction is 

deemed non-home compostable.  

 

Table 6.3.1 summarises the average capture and diversion rates seen for materials achieved for the green 

bin organic recycling collections. By far the most efficient recyclers of organic waste were Acorn 1 

households who recycled over 90% of that being generated.  Acorn 3 households captured over 79% of 

their organics whilst the rate for Acorns 2, 4 and 5 was between 53% and 56%.  IN contrast it was seen that 

residents in communal bin areas only managed to capture 27.5% of the organic waste that they were 

disposing of.  Across Cambridge, 66.3% of the organics available for green bin recycling were correctly 

captured by participating households.   

Page 328



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 59 - 

6.3.1 Paper & Card Capture 

 

Residents are able to recycle paper, thin card and corrugated cardboard in their green bins. It is however 

the case that with the exception of shredded paper, it is preferable for these recyclables to be placed into 

blue recycling bins.  

 

Figure 6.3.1.1. shows the distribution of recyclable paper, card and cardboard throughout the three kerbside 

schemes by Acorn category.  It is clear that residents using communal bins not only generate the most 

recyclable paper and card; they also place by far the highest proportion in their green bins at 32%.  

Typically between 2% and 5% of all recyclable paper and card was present in green bins for Acorns 1 – 5 

with just over 7% seen for the Acorn 5(LPA) sample.  

 

Figure 6.3.1.1   Distribution of recyclable paper & card within residual and recycling samples (kg/hh/wk) 

 

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

ACORN 1

ACORN 2

ACORN 3

ACORN 4

ACORN 5

ACORN 5 
(L

PA)

COMMUNAL

  W
EIG

HTED A
V.

RECYCLABLE PAPER &
CARD - RESIDUAL BIN

RECYCLABLE PAPER &
CARD - BLUE BIN

RECYCLABLE PAPER &
CARD - GREEN BIN

 
 

 

 

 

Page 329



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 60 - 

6.3.2 Garden Waste Capture 

Residents are able to recycle garden clippings in their green bins. With the exception of the communal bin 

residents it was seen that garden waste was by far the greatest constituent of the presented organic 

recycling.    Just 7% of garden waste was captured in communal bins areas although very little of this type 

of waste is actually generated.  On average it is seen that over 97% of the available garden waste is 

recycled by Cambridge residents.  All Acorns recorded capture rates of between 92% and 100%.   

 

It is seen that communal bin households generated just 0.13kg/hh/wk of recyclable garden waste compared 

with 7.23kg/hh/wk from Acorn 1 households.  On average residents throughout Cambridge create 

2.51kg/hh/wk of recyclable garden waste.   

 

Soil and turf are also classed as garden waste but are not allowable in green bins. This waste was only 

generated in low amounts across Cambridge (0.02kg/hh/wk) with around 22% ending up in green bins.  

 

 

Figure 6.3.2.1. Distribution of garden waste within residual and recycling samples (kg/hh/wk)  

 

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

ACO
RN 1

ACORN 2

ACORN 3

ACO
RN 4

ACORN 5

ACORN 5 
(L

PA)

CO
MMUNAL

  W
EIG

HTED A
V.

RECYCLABLE GARDEN
WASTE - RESIDUAL BIN

RECYCLABLE GARDEN
WASTE - BLUE BIN

RECYCLABLE GARDEN
WASTE - GREEN BIN

 

 

 

 

Page 330



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 61 - 

6.3.3 Food Waste Capture 

Residents are able to all forms of food waste in their green bins. Capture rates were seen to vary greatly 

across the samples taken.  Food waste can broadly be divided into two types.  Firstly ‘home-compostable’ 

which covers things like raw fruit and vegetable waste, egg shells, tea bags etc which could potentially be 

composted in standard compost bins.  Non-home compostable food are generally cooked and prepared 

foods and plate scrapings which residents would not normally compost with their garden, fruit and 

vegetable wastes.   

 

Overall capture rates for all food waste varied at between 9.3% in Acorn 5 up to 36% in Acorn 3.  This 

represented an average figure of 21.4% for Cambridge.    Acorn 1 households produced just 0.93kg/hh/wk 

of total food waste compared with 2.59kg/hh/wk from communal bin households.  On average Cambridge 

residents are producing of 1.70kg/hh/wk of food waste.   

 

As well as differences in the levels and capture rates for food waste between the Acorn samples, there was 

a significant difference between the types of food being recycled.  Home compostable food waste is 

generally less ‘messy’ than non-home compostable food waste and was seen to have capture rates of 

between 4.7% (Acorn 2) and 58.2% (Acorn 3) at an average of 23.1%.  Conversely capture rates for non-

home compostable food waste were lower at between 1.6% (Acorn 5) and 35.5% (Acorn 2); an average of 

20%.   

 

In terms of diversion solely through the green bin recycling it is seen that just 12.5% diversion is achieved 

by communal bin users compared with almost 54% for Acorn 1.  Overall this is an average diversion of 

23.1% which is very similar to that recorded for blue bins.  Total diversion rates for the combined recycling 

collections are shown in section 7.   

 

With the exception of communal bin users, all sample areas were seen to generate more non-home 

compostable food waste than home compostable food waste at average figures of 0.94kg/hh/wk and 

0.76kg/hh/wk respectively.  During the sorting of the waste it is the method to class some of the food waste 

as unidentifiable or unsortable.  This is basically a degraded mixture of foods which are recyclable and are 

classified as non-compostable as will contain waste other than fruit and vegetable matter.   

 

Figure 6.3.3.1 shows the distribution and levels of food waste throughout the residual and green bin 

containers. Overall, 0.58kg/hh/wk of home compostable and 0.75kg/hh/wk of non-home composable food 

waste is not being recycled in the green bins.  This represents a total of 1.34kg/hh/wk of potentially 

recyclable material.  

Page 331



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

 C
O

M
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  M
·E

·L
 R

E
S

E
A

R
C

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
2 

  

- 6
2 

- 

Fi
gu

re
 6

.3
.2

.1
. D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

of
 fo

od
 w

as
te

 w
ith

in
 r

es
id

ua
l a

nd
 r

ec
yc

lin
g 

sa
m

pl
es

 (k
g/

hh
/w

k)
  

0
.0

0
.5

1
.0

1
.5

2
.0

2
.5

3
.0

AC
O

R
N
 1

AC
O

R
N
 2

AC
O
R
N
 3

AC
O
R
N
 4

AC
O
R
N
 5

AC
O
R
N
 5

 (L
PA

)

C
O
M

M
U
N
AL

  W
EI

G
H
TE

D
 A

V.

N
O

N
-H

O
M

E
 C

O
M

P
O

S
T

A
B

L
E

F
O

O
D

S
 -

 R
E
S

ID
U

A
L
 B

IN

H
O

M
E

 C
O

M
P
O

S
T

A
B

L
E

F
O

O
D

S
 -

 R
E
S

ID
U

A
L
 B

IN

A
L

L
 F

O
O

D
 W

A
S

T
E

 -
 B

L
U

E
B

IN

N
O

N
-H

O
M

E
 C

O
M

P
O

S
T

A
B

L
E

F
O

O
D

S
 -

 G
R

E
E
N

 B
IN

H
O

M
E

 C
O

M
P
O

S
T

A
B

L
E

F
O

O
D

S
 -

 G
R

E
E
N

 B
IN

Page 332



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 
 

- 63 - 

6.4 Green Bin Recycling Contamination 

 

From Table 6.2.1 it has been shown that between 0.1% (Acorn 2) and 31.3% (communal bin users) of 

collected green bin recycling is due to contamination. Across Cambridge approximately 2.6% of green bin 

recycling waste was not compatible with the accepted materials, equating to 0.08kg/hh/wk. This section 

looks to breakdown the amounts and concentrations of various contaminants being placed into the green 

bin recycling waste in Cambridge.  

 

Table 6.4.1 and Figures 6.4.1 and 6.4.2 show the proportions of contamination materials in each area. 

 

Table 6.4.1: Percentage breakdown of contamination in green bin waste 

 

% BREAKDOWN OF 
CONTAMINANTS 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

SOIL & TURF 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 90.45% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 5.28% 

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PAPER & CARD 0.00% 100.00% 0.65% 1.77% 1.31% 61.27% 27.50% 2.47% 

PLASTICS 0.00% 0.00% 0.65% 0.00% 0.76% 0.00% 19.71% 0.66% 

TEXTILES 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 34.71% 0.00% 7.07% 22.96% 

GLASS 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 1.70% <0.01% 

METALS 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.79% <0.01% 

ALL OTHER WASTE 0.00% 0.00% 98.70% 7.78% 63.22% 38.73% 43.22% 68.63% 

TOTAL 
CONTAMINATION 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

CONTAMINATION 
KG/HH/WK 0.02 0.00 0.12 0.13 0.22 0.05 0.84 0.08 

% CONTAMINATION  0.24% 0.11% 2.50% 4.67% 9.70% 1.64% 31.28% 2.55% 

 

 

 

 

Page 333



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 64 - 

Figure 6.4.1: Contamination materials in green bin recycling 

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.9

ACORN 1

ACORN 2

ACORN 3

ACORN 4

ACORN 5

ACO
RN 5 

(L
PA)

COMMUNAL

  W
EIG

HTED A
V.

ALL OTHER WASTE

METALS

GLASS

TEXTILES

PLASTICS

NON-RECYCLABLE PAPER
& CARD

SOIL & TURF

 
 

Figure 6.4.2: % breakdown of contaminants within green recycling bins 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

ACORN 1

ACORN 2

ACORN 3

ACORN 4

ACORN 5

ACORN 5 
(L

PA)

COMMUNAL

  W
EIG

HTED A
V.

ALL OTHER WASTE

METALS

GLASS

TEXTILES

PLASTICS

NON-RECYCLABLE PAPER
& CARD

SOIL & TURF

 

Page 334



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 65 - 

Overall it was seen that 68.8% of the contamination was due to miscellaneous other waste.  This would be 

a mixture of general waste that can generally be considered to be residual waste.  This material formed up 

to 99% of the contamination seen in Acorn 3 green bins.  Up to 23% of contamination was due to textile 

waste.  Around 35% of Acorn 5 green bin contamination was due to waste textiles.  All of the contamination 

in Acorn 2 green bins was due to non-recyclable paper and card and over 90% of the contamination in 

Acorn 4 was due to soil and turf.  Combined these wastes formed just under 8% of the contamination.  

 

The composition of the organic recycling collected from households using communal bins was markedly 

different from all of the other samples.  Of the 2.69kg/hh/wk presented up to 0.84kg/hh/wk or 31.3% was 

due to contaminants; this was far greater than any of the other samples.  A wide range of contaminants 

including general residual waste, glass, metal and plastic were seen in these recycling bins and they 

appear to be used by residents as general waste disposal containers.  These bins also contain significantly 

more paper and cardboard waste than other sample surveyed.  

 

 

Figure 6.4.3 % breakdown of contaminants within green recycling bins from communal users 

 

GLASS
0.5%

METALS
0.2%

ALL OTHER WASTE
13.5%

TEXTILES
2.2%

PLASTICS
6.2%

OTHER ORGANICS
1.2%

GARDEN WASTE
0.4%

FOOD WASTE
26.7%

ACCEPTABLE 
PAPER & CARD

40.4%

NON-RECYCLABLE 
PAPER & CARD

8.6%

 
 

 

Page 335



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 66 - 

 

7)    Overall Diversion through Recycling Collections 

 

7.1 Total waste generation levels & diversion 

 

Capture rates determine how much of a material that should be recycled actually is being recycled. 

Diversion rates show the percentage of total generated waste produced from an area that is being 

‘Diverted’ via the available recycling stream(s). 

 

Table 7.1.1 and Figure 7.1.1 show the total waste generation (residual, blue bin and green bin recycling) for 

each of areas sampled. Acorn 2 produced the lowest levels of total waste at 9.59kg/hh/wk with the 

households from Acorn 3 generating the most at 16.71kg/hh/wk.  Across Cambridge it is estimated that the 

weekly output of kerbside waste is 12.48kg/hh/wk.  

 

Table 7.1.2 and Figure 7.1.2 show the proportion of this total waste that is being diverted through the 

various kerbside recycling collections. Using the blue and green recycling bins, Cambridge residents are 

diverting an average of 46.8% of all waste generated at the kerbside.  Residents from Acorn 1 were 

managing to divert almost 69% of their waste compared with 50% for Acorns 2 and 3, 42% for Acorn 4 and 

32% for Acorn 5.  The low performing Acorn 5 area residents also diverted around 50% of their waste with 

households using communal bins diverting around 34.5%. 

 

Table 7.1.1: Average annual waste generation levels by Acorn (kg/hh/wk) 

 

TOTAL KERBSIDE 
WASTE (KG/HH/WK) 

ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

RESIDUAL WASTE 4.20 4.66 7.93 6.50 9.80 5.06 8.33 6.36 

BLUE BIN RECYCLING 2.36 3.07 3.83 2.95 3.09 2.52 3.80 3.16 

GREEN BIN 
RECYCLING 7.66 1.86 4.95 2.71 2.27 3.13 2.69 2.96 

TOTAL WASTE 14.22 9.59 16.71 12.16 15.17 10.71 14.82 12.48 

 

Page 336



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 67 - 

Figure 7.1.1: Total waste generation levels by Acorn (kg/hh/wk)  

0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL   WEIGHTED
AV.

RESIDUAL WASTE BLUE BIN RECYCLING GREEN BIN RECYCLING

 

 

Table 7.1.2: Diversion rates (%) for individual recycling collections and overall 

 

% DIVERSION ACORN 
1 

ACORN 
2 

ACORN 
3 

ACORN 
4 

ACORN 
5 

ACORN 
5 (LPA) COMMUNAL WEIGHTED 

AV. 

BLUE RECYCLING 
BINS 15.19% 30.96% 21.27% 21.04% 18.11% 21.66% 22.01% 23.69% 

GREEN RECYCLING 
BINS 53.76% 19.36% 28.89% 21.23% 13.54% 28.75% 12.45% 23.10% 

TOTAL DIVERSION 68.96% 50.32% 50.16% 42.27% 31.65% 50.41% 34.46% 46.79% 

 

 

Page 337



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 68 - 

Figure 7.1.2: Diversion rates (%) for individual recycling collections and overall 

 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

ACORN 1 ACORN 2 ACORN 3 ACORN 4 ACORN 5 ACORN 5
(LPA)

COMMUNAL   WEIGHTED
AV.

BLUE BIN DIVERSION GREEN BIN DIVERSION

 
 

 

Current recycling figures for Cambridge suggest a waste diversion rate of 43.7%. Therefore weighted 

figures for the City during this survey show a level of around 3% above this rate and 1.8% above the 

aspirational target of 45% for 2012.  

 

Data from this survey suggests a level of 331.9kg/hh/yr for residual waste and 651.1kg/hh/yr for total 

kerbside waste. 

 

Were all of the currently recyclable materials being disposed of at the kerbside placed into the correct 

recycling bin then the maximum achievable diversion rate for Cambridge would be 65%.  

 

 

Page 338



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 69 - 

Appendix 1: ACORN Category Classification1.  
 
 

 ACORN 1 – WEALTHY ACHIEVERS – U.K. AVERAGE 23.3% 
 

These are some of the most successful and affluent people in the UK. They live in wealthy, high status rural, 
semi-rural and suburban areas of the country. Middle-aged or older people predominate, with many empty 

nesters and wealthy retired. Some neighbourhoods contain large numbers of well-off families with school age 
children, particularly in the more suburban locations. These people live in large houses, which are usually 
detached with four or more bedrooms.  Almost 90% are owner occupiers, with half of those owning their 

home outright. They are very well educated and most are employed in managerial and professional occupations. 
Many own their own business.  Car ownership is high, with many households running two or more cars. 

Incomes are high, as are levels of savings and investments.  These people are well established at the top 
of the social ladder. They enjoy all the advantages of being healthy, wealthy and confident consumers. 

 
ACORN 2 – URBAN PROSPERITY – U.K. AVERAGE 13.3% 

 
These are well educated and mostly prosperous people living in our major towns and cities. They include both 
older wealthy people living in the most exclusive parts of London and other cities, and highly educated younger 
professionals moving up the corporate ladder. This category also includes some well educated but less affluent 

individuals, such as students and graduates in their first jobs.  The wealthier people tend to be in senior 
managerial or professional careers, and often live in large terraced or detached houses with four or more 

bedrooms. Some of the younger professionals may be buying or renting flats.  The less affluent will be privately 
renting.  These people have a cosmopolitan outlook and enjoy their urban lifestyle.  They like to eat out in 

restaurants, go to the theatre and cinema and make the most of the culture and nightlife of the big city. 
 

ACORN 3 – COMFORTABLY OFF – U.K. AVERAGE 28.1% 
 

This category contains much of ‘middle-of-the-road’ Britain. Most people are comfortably off. They 
may not be wealthy, but they have few major financial worries.  All life stages are represented in this category. 

Younger singles and couples, just starting out on their careers, are the dominant group in some areas. 
Other areas have mostly stable families and empty nesters, especially in suburban or semi-rural locations. 
Comfortably off pensioners, living in retirement areas around the coast or in the countryside, form the other 

main group in this category.  Most people own their own home, with owner occupation exceeding 80%. 
Most houses are semidetached or detached. Employment is in a mix of professional and managerial, 
clerical and skilled occupations. Educational qualifications tend to be in line with the national average. 

This category incorporates the home-owning, stable and fairly comfortable backbone of modern Britain. 
 

ACORN 4 – MODERATE MEANS – U.K. AVERAGE 13.2% 
 

This category contains much of what used to be the country’s industrial heartlands. Many people 
are still employed in traditional, blue-collar occupations. Others have become employed in service and retail 

jobs as the employment landscape has changed.  In the better off areas, incomes are in line with 
the national average and people have reasonable standards of living. However, in other areas, where levels 

of qualifications are low, incomes can fall below the national average. There are also some isolated pockets of 
unemployment and long-term illness.  This category also includes some neighbourhoods with very high 
concentrations of Asian families on low incomes.  Most housing is terraced, with two or three bedrooms, 

and largely owner occupied.  It includes many former council houses, bought by their tenants in the 1980s. 
Overall, the people in this category have modest lifestyles, but are able to get by. 

 
ACORN 5 – HARD PRESSED – U.K. AVERAGE 21.7% 

 
This category contains the poorest areas of the UK. Unemployment is well above the national average. 

Levels of qualifications are low and those in work are likely to be employed in unskilled occupations. 
Household incomes are low and there are high levels of long-term illness in some areas.  Housing is a mix 

of low-rise estates, with terraced or semi-detached houses, and purpose built flats, including high-rise blocks. 
Properties tend to be small and there is much overcrowding. Over 50% of the housing is rented from the local 
Council or a housing association.  There are a large number of single adult households, including many single 
Pensioners and lone parents. In some neighbourhoods, there are high numbers of black and Asian residents. 

These people are experiencing the most difficult social and economic conditions in the whole country, and appear 
to have limited opportunity to improve their circumstances. 

 
 

                                                   
 
 
 
 
 
1 http://www.caci.co.uk/download.aspx?path=/libraries/document/394.pdf 

Page 339



CAMBRIDGE CITY WASTE COMPOSITION ANALYSIS                                                                                            M·E·L RESEARCH JUNE 2012 
 

 

- 70 - 

 

 
 

Page 340



Report Page No: 1 

Appendix B 
 
Existing project work being carried out in 2012/13 
 
This work is over and above the routine work carried out by the team. 
 
1 Development of the Recycling Champions scheme 
2 Promotion of the addition of plastic pots, tubs and trays to the blue bin 
scheme including:- 
• redesigning signs, vehicle liveries, stickers, calendars, radio adverts 
Cambridge Matters articles and posters) 

3 Route Optimisation work – communication with residents including  
stickers, letters, press releases, radio adverts 

 
4 Contamination of recycling bins at flats including 
• working with Housing and other stakeholders 
• redoing the flats leaflet 
 

5 RECAP Partnership work including  
• Love Food Hate Waste campaign 
• Wear It Love It Share It campaign 
 

6 Give and Take Days 
7 Changing colleges and schools to chargeable commingled collections 
8 Facilitation of Waste Analysis project 
9 DCLG bid 
10  Installation of new recycling sites and banks 
11 Implementation of clear sacks for recycling 
12 Reduce the number of unapproved additional black bins 
13 Increasing recycling at flats 
14 Small WEEE promotions project 
15 Facebook page 
 

 
Project work being considered for 2013/14 
 
1 Changing remaining flats with segregated recycling collections to 
commingled collections (Linked to Route Optimisation project) 

2 Second black bin work – to continue work across the whole city. 
3 DCLG food waste for flats – if successful with funding 
4 Partnership waste prevention and recycling projects 
5 Investigation ways in which we may be able to increase metal recycling, 
exploring possible external funding streams.  

 
 

Page 341



Report Page No: 2 

Work being carried out under successful bid for £7,000 for 
targeted communication for students living in tenanted 
properties including HMO’s 
 
1 Purchase and promotion of bicycle seat covers promoting our Facebook 
page 

2 Attending Freshers Fairs 
3 Advertising regularly in Varsity and Cambridge Student 
4 Flyers for Freshers Fairs – these can also be used for sticking on internal 
bins 

5 Meetings with Housekeepers 
• to identify Best Practice and communicate this with all colleges 
• Inform them about services including end of term collections 
• Offer support re services eg blue bags, caddies, clear sacks 

6 Survey with 3rd year students 
7 End of term collections 
8 Web page for students – dedicated url 
9 Landlord pack and distribution 
10 New property work with Community Services 
11 Investigating possibility of smart phone app for bin day reminders 
12  Updating student Green Officer on changes to schemes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 342



DRAFT 

Report Page No: 1 v3 

 

 
Cambridge City Council 

 
 

 
To: Executive Councillor for Environmental and Waste 

Services 
Report by: Head of Streets and Open Spaces 
Relevant scrutiny 
committee:  

ENVIRONMENT 9th October 2012 
Wards affected: All 
 
Dog Control Orders 
Key Decision 
 
 
1. Executive summary  
1.1 The Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 allows local 
authorities to introduce Dog Control Orders to replace byelaws and also the 
Dogs (Fouling of Land) Act 1996.  Cambridge City Council is defined as a 
primary authority for the purpose of this Act. 
The Dog Control Orders (Prescribed Offences and Penalties, etc) 
Regulations 2006 provide for five offences which may be prescribed in a 
Dog Control Order:- 

a) Failing to remove dog faeces; 
b) Not keeping a dog on a lead; 
c) Not putting, and keeping, a dog on a lead when directed to do so by 

an authorised officer; 
d) Permitting a dog to enter land from which dogs are excluded; 
e) Taking more than a specified number of dogs onto land. 
 

1.2 The penalty for committing an offence contained in a Dog Control 
Order is a maximum fine of level 3 on the standard scale Currently £1000).  
Alternatively the opportunity to pay a fixed penalty may be offered in place 
of prosecution. 
 
1.3 The introduction of Dog Control Orders will not only offer transparency 
and consistency within the City Council boundary it will give PCSO’s the 
ability to issue fixed penalty notices for offences. 
 
1.4 The report outlines the process that has to be undertaken to introduce 
Dog Control Orders and seeks approval from the Executive Councillor to 
implement Dog Control Orders. 
 
2. Recommendations  
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 343



DRAFT 

Report Page No: 2 v3 

2.1 The Executive Councillor is recommended:  
a) To approve the implementation of Dog Control Orders. 
b) To approve a schedule of Dog Control Orders for public consultation 

and representations. 
c) To approve the finalised Dog Control Orders in consultation with 

Spokes. 
d) To approve the fixed penalty charge of £75 full cost, £50 reduced cost. 
 

3. Background  
3.1 Within the Streets and Open Spaces division the Dog Warden and 
Public Realm Enforcement services are provided.  These services are very 
much integrated with a single manager and Enforcement Officers supporting 
the work of the Dog Warden.  Current service provision includes education 
and enforcement in line with the Council’s Enforcement policy. Enforcement 
action for environmental crime is either taken under current legislation or 
byelaws. 
 
3.2 The Council is unable to be supported by PCSO’s in issuing fixed 
penalty notices for Dog Fouling (or other offences) without the introduction 
of Dog Control Orders. 
 
3.3 The Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 allows local 
authorities to introduce Dog Control Orders to replace byelaws and also the 
Dogs (Fouling of Land) Act 1996.  Cambridge City Council is defined as a 
primary authority for the purpose of this Act. 
 
3.4 The Dog Control Orders (Prescribed Offences and Penalties, etc) 
Regulations 2006 provide for five offences which may be prescribed in a 
Dog Control Order:- 

a) Failing to remove dog faeces; 
b) Not keeping a dog on a lead; 
c) Not putting, and keeping, a dog on a lead when directed to do so by 

an authorised officer; 
d) Permitting a dog to enter land from which dogs are excluded; 
e) Taking more than a specified number of dogs onto land. 
 

3.5 The penalty for committing an offence contained in a Dog Control 
Order is a maximum fine of level 3 on the standard scale.  Alternatively the 
opportunity to pay a fixed penalty may be offered in place of prosecution. 
 
3.6 Dog Control Orders may be made in respect of any land, which is 
open to the air and to which the public are entitled or permitted to have 
access (with or without payment).  Land, which is covered but open on one 
side, is included in this definition e.g. a bus shelter.  However it should be 

Page 344



DRAFT 

Report Page No: 3 v3 

noted that roads (including highways) may not be subject to a Dog Control 
Order which excludes dogs (this refers to para 3.4 d). 
 
3.7 The introduction of Dog Control Orders will enable the Dog Warden 
and Public Realm Enforcement services to seek the support of PCSO’s in 
the issuing of fixed penalty notices. 
 
3.8 Types of Dog Control Orders 

a) Failing to remove dog faeces – this order repeals the Dogs (Fouling of 
Land) Act 1996 legislation and would make it an offence to fail to 
remove dog faeces deposited by a dog under a persons control.   

Example of usage by other authorities: Borough or District wide 
within administrative boundaries. 

b) The Dogs on Leads Order – this order allows a local authority to 
designate dogs on leads areas and would make it an offence not to 
keep a dog under a persons control on a lead in a designated area. 

Example of usage by other authorities:  Active Cemeteries 
where burials are still taking place, sports pitches and school 
playing fields. 
 

c) The Dogs on Lead by Direction Order- this order would allow 
authorised officers to direct a dog under a persons control to be put on 
a lead and would make it an offence to fail to comply with the 
authorised officer’s request. 

Example of usage by other authorities:  Borough or District wide 
within administrative boundaries and used when dogs are a 
nuisance to others or wildlife. 

 
d) The Dogs Exclusion Order – this order allows a local authority to 

designate dog exclusion areas and would make it an offence to allow 
a dog under a person’s control to enter an area designated as a dog 
exclusion area. 

Example of usage by other authorities: Children’s Play Areas, 
Tennis Courts, Bowling Greens, Paddling Pools and Water Play 
 

e) The Dogs (Specified Maximum) Order – this order would allow a local 
authority to designate areas of land where a person may take no more 
than a specified maximum number of dogs and would make it an 
offence if a person took more than a specified maximum number of 
dogs onto such land. 

Example of usage by other authorities: Used when professional 
dog walkers become a nuisance and exercise large numbers of 
dogs and have little control. 
 

Page 345



DRAFT 

Report Page No: 4 v3 

3.9 Keep Britain Tidy, the national campaigning group for improving local 
environmental quality states that in 2010 the UK dog population was 
estimated to be 8 million, with dogs producing approximately 1,000 tonnes 
of excrement each day. In a recent survey of over 10,000 sites dog fouling 
was present on 7% of these sites. Some dog owners still fail to clean up 
after their dogs and the highest level of dog fouling can be found in areas 
where people actually live. 
 
3.10 The table below shows the number of complaints that have been 
received where requests have been made to the Dog Warden to investigate 
or customers have asked for dog fouling to be removed within the City 
boundary. 
 
Year Fouling Investigations 

by Dog Warden 
Fouling Removal 
Requests 

2009/10 78 112 
2010/11 76 99 
2011/12 100 93 
 
3.11 Procedure 
The Dog Control Orders (Procedures) Regulations 2006 require that:- 

1. An authority must consult with any other primary or secondary 
authority within the area. (County or Parish Councils) 

2. Authorities must also publish a notice describing the proposed order in 
a local newspaper circulating in the same area as the land to which 
the order would apply and invite representations on the proposal.  The 
notice must:- 

a. Identify the land to which the order will apply. 
b. Summarise the order. 
c. If the order will refer to a map, say where the map may be 

inspected.  This must be in an address in the authority’s area, be 
free of charge, and at all reasonable hours during the 
consultation period. 

d. Give the address to which, and the date by which, 
representations must be made to the authority.  The final date 
for representation must be at least 28 days after the publication 
of the notice. 

3. At the end of the consultation period the authority must consider any 
representations that have been made.  If it then decides to proceed 
with the order, it must decide when the order will come into force.  
This must be at least 14 days from the date on which it was made.  
Once made the authority must then publish a notice in the local 
newspaper at least seven days prior to commencement. 

4. Where practicable, signs must be placed summarising the order on 
land to which it applies.  However in respect of a large area, for 

Page 346



DRAFT 

Report Page No: 5 v3 

example, in respect of fouling by dogs, signs should be placed at 
regular intervals warning the public that it is an offence not to clear up 
dog faeces. 

 
3.12 As part of the consultation process it is proposed that officers consult 
with area committees to gain views from the public and ward Councillors. 
 
3.13 Fixed Penalty Notices. 
The legislation allows for a full fixed penalty amount of between £80 and 
£50.  But a reduction for early payment may be offered but the fine, when 
reduced, should be no less than £50.  The Council currently charge £75 full 
cost and £50 reduced cost for littering and it is suggested that the charge be 
the same for dog fouling. 
 
3.14 It is proposed that officers, subject to the required consultation, 
prepare a schedule of Dog Control Orders to be introduced in the City. 
 
4. Implications  
 

(a) Financial Implications 
There will be costs associated with the public notices in the newspaper and 
also for signage across the district.  It is thought that signage could be in the 
region of £7,000 to £10,000 for which a capital bid will have to be submitted.  
The issuing of Fixed Penalty Notices will generate additional income, which 
can offset the cost of signage in future years if considered appropriate.  
Other costs including newspaper advertising, fixed penalty notices and 
implementation preparation will be met from existing budgets. 
 
(b) Staffing Implications   (if not covered in Consultations Section) 
There are no additional staffing implications as officers are already 
equipped to deal with dog fouling and nuisances. 
 
(c) Equal Opportunities Implications 
The following are exempt from Dog Control Orders – an individual who is 
registered blind under section 29 of the National Assistance Act 1948 or an 
individual who has a disability which affects their mobility, manual dexterity, 
physical co-ordination or ability to lift, carry or otherwise move everyday 
objects and has a dog trained by one of the following charities: Dogs for the 
Disabled (registered charity number 700454), Support Dogs (registered 
charity number 1088281) or Canine Partners for Independence (registered 
charity number 803680) for which he relies upon for assistance. It is also 
intended that as part of the consultation that the Guide Dogs for the Blind 
association be consulted. 
 

Page 347



DRAFT 

Report Page No: 6 v3 

Working support dogs for the disabled will be exempt from the Orders.  It is 
also intended that as part of the consultation that the Guide Dogs for the 
Blind association be consulted. 
 
 
 
 (d) Environmental Implications 
There will be a positive effect on local environmental quality with the 
introduction of Dog Control Orders and the enforcement against dog fouling.  
In addition there will be a +L impact on climate change in the future with a 
reduction in vehicle activity on attending to customer clean up requests. 

(e) Procurement 
Not applicable for this report. 

(f) Consultation and communication 
As outlined above and to additionally include website and social media. 

(g) Community Safety 
The introduction of Dog Control Orders will have a positive effect on 
Community Safety, reducing the risks associated with Toxocariasis and 
nuisance dogs. 
 
 
5. Background papers  
 
Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005. 
DEFRA Guidance, Dog Control Orders 2006. 
 
6. Appendices  
 
 
7. Inspection of papers  
 
To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report 
please contact: 
 
Author’s Name: Toni Ainley 
Author’s Phone Number:  01223 458201 
Author’s Email:  Toni.Ainley@cambridge.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 348



Report Page No: 1 

 

 

Cambridge City Council 
 

 

 

To: Executive Councillor for Planning and Climate 
Change: Councillor Tim Ward 

Report by: Head of Corporate Strategy 
Relevant scrutiny 
committee:  

Environment 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

9/10/2012 

Wards affected: All Wards 
 
CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL CLIMATE CHANGE STRATEGY 
Key Decision 
 
 
1. Executive summary  
 
1.1 The City Council has consulted on a revised Climate Change Strategy 

for 2012-2016 that will set the framework for action by the Council to 
address climate change over the next five years. An updated draft of 
the Strategy is attached at Appendix A. The Strategy sets out three 
strategic objectives for action by the Council aimed at reducing carbon 
emissions and managing the risks associated with climate change. It 
includes an Action Plan that sets out the key steps the Council will 
take over the next four years to deliver these objectives.   

 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 The Executive Councillor is recommended to approve the revised 

Climate Change Strategy for 2012-2016. 
 
3. Background  
 
3.1 One of the Council’s 8 corporate vision statements is ‘a City in the 

forefront of low carbon living and minimising its impact on the 
environment from waste and pollution.’ The City Council made a 
formal commitment to tackle climate change by signing the 
Nottingham Declaration on Climate Change in September 2006 and 
published its first Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan in 2008, 
which set out a vision and framework for action over a five-year 
period. 

 
3.2 Although the City Council has undertaken a significant amount of 

action in the past five years, climate change still presents very 
significant risks to the City of Cambridge and there remains a pressing 

Agenda Item 8

Page 349



Report Page No: 2 

need for action at the local level. Cambridge City Council has chosen 
to produce a revised Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan to set 
the framework for its action to address the causes and consequences 
of climate change between 2012 and 2016.  

 
3.3 The draft Strategy explains the case for action on climate change, and 

sets out the national and international policy context.  It also explains 
what has been achieved under the previous strategy, and the lessons 
learned.  There have been a number of significant developments since 
the City Council’s first Climate Change Strategy was produced. These 
include:   

 
• the introduction of binding national targets for reducing carbon 

emissions through the Climate Change Act 2008;  
• changes to planning legislation and policy to promote energy 

efficiency and sustainable design and construction;  
• new national initiatives to support households and non-domestic 

users to install energy efficiency measures (e.g. the Green Deal 
and Energy Company Obligation) and renewable energy sources 
(e.g. the Feed-In Tariff and Renewable Heat Incentive schemes); 

• the current challenging economic climate, which means that it is 
more important than ever to make the best use of available 
resources and focus on the areas where the greatest impact on 
climate change can be achieved. 

 
3.4 These developments are reflected in the objectives for the Strategy, 

and the actions set out in the Action Plan. The three objectives of the 
Strategy are: 

 
1. To reduce carbon emissions from the Council’s estate and 

operations and manage the risks to its staff and property; 
2. To set high standards and assist residents, businesses and 

organisations to reduce their carbon emissions and manage 
climate risks; 

3. To work in partnership with other organisations to address the 
causes and effects of climate change. 

 
3.5 Objective 1 will be delivered primarily through the Council’s Carbon 

Management Plan for 2011-2016, which was approved by the 
Executive Councillor for Planning and Climate Change on 26 June 
2012. The Carbon Management Plan sets out 64 carbon reduction 
projects targeted at the areas of the Council’s activity which contribute 
most to our carbon emissions (e.g. swimming pools, car parks, vehicle 
fleet, offices and sheltered and temporary housing).  

 

Page 350



Report Page No: 3 

3.6 Objective 2 will be achieved by putting climate change at the heart of 
services such as Planning (not least through the development of the 
Council’s new Local Plan), Refuse and Environment and Estates and 
Facilities.  Objective 3 will be achieved by continuing our leadership in 
partnerships with neighbouring local authorities, the city’s universities, 
and the voluntary, community and business sectors. 

 
4. Consultation  
 
4.1 On 26 June 2012 the Executive Councillor for Planning and Climate 

Change approved a draft Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan 
for consultation. The consultation ran for 10 weeks, starting on 5 July 
2012 and finishing on 5 September 2012.  

 
4.2 The consultation was promoted through a variety of methods: 
 

• Publication on the consultation pages of the Council’s website. 
• Promotion via the Council’s Twitter feed. 
• Sending the Strategy and the key consultation questions directly to 

more than 80 residents associations and promoting the 
consultation via the Federation of Cambridge Residents’ 
Associations (FeCRA).  

• A meeting with Transitions Cambridge and Cambridge Carbon 
Footprint to discuss their views on the Strategy. 

• Meeting with other key partners, including the Sustainability 
Manager at Addenbrooke’s Hospital, and energy and carbon 
management officers at the University of Cambridge. 

• Sending the Strategy and consultation questions directly to 
academics at the University of Cambridge, including members of 
the University’s Environment Strategy Committee. 

 
4.3 A summary of the responses to the consultation is set out in Appendix 

B. The City Council has provided a reply to each consultation 
response, to explain if each suggestion can be incorporated in the 
Strategy and Action Plan, or if the City Council already has a means 
or an alternative way of doing what is being suggested. Where a 
suggested cannot be taken forward, the City Council has explained 
why not. The draft Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan 2012-
2016 has been updated to reflect the consultation responses, and is 
attached at Appendix A. 

 
4.4 A total of 77 different comments from 16 different respondents were 

received. The key themes raised in these responses were: 
 

• Setting challenging targets for reducing emissions from the City 
Council’s operations and estate and views on whether the City 

Page 351



Report Page No: 4 

Council should set targets for reducing emissions from the City of 
Cambridge as a whole. 

• Planning and growth related issues, including policies on 
sustainable construction standards, renewable energy provision 
and tall buildings. 

• Promoting sustainable forms of transport and reducing congestion. 
• Managing water resources and promoting water efficiency. 
• Views on whether the Strategy and Action Plan should go beyond 

the Committee on Climate Change’s recommendation that local 
authorities should focus on reducing emissions from energy, waste 
and transport, to focus on emissions from leisure activities, food 
and other forms of consumption. 

• Setting standards and enforcing policies, regulations and legislation 
relating to climate change. 

• Supporting residents to reduce their carbon footprint, including 
communications, awareness-raising campaigns and advice and 
guidance. 

• Supporting voluntary and community groups focussing on 
environmental issues, including requests for core funding and 
provision of meeting space. 

• Supporting businesses to reduce their emissions and manage 
climate change risks. 

 
 
5. Implications  
 
(a) Financial Implications 
 
The Carbon Management Plan (which is the primary vehicle for delivering 
Objective 1 of the Strategy) will deliver significant financial savings, albeit 
potentially in the form of future cost-avoidance. Based on information that is 
currently available, the projects planned to date require a total investment of 
£2.3m over the next 5 years.  However, we expect these projects will reduce 
the Council’s likely energy and fuel costs by around £340,000 each year. 
This means that the projects will have paid for themselves within fewer than 
seven years and many will deliver further savings beyond this period. These 
figures are subject to change and the exact costs and benefits of a number 
of the projects will become clearer as detailed work is carried out.  The Plan 
explains the varying degrees of confidence and certainty around achieving 
the anticipated savings and emissions reductions. 
 
The actions contained in the Climate Change Strategy Action Plan under 
Objectives 2 and 3 will be funded through: 
 
• Existing budgets for delivering key services, particularly for projects or 

actions that will deliver climate change benefits as part of wider planned 
Page 352



Report Page No: 5 

developments or improvements to key services. These fall within the 
General Fund or the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) depending on the 
services involved. 

• Government and other external funding sources for climate change 
initiatives. 

 
(b) Staffing Implications    
 
Lead officers have been identified for projects in the Climate Change 
Strategy Action Plan who have the capacity to deliver the projects within the 
stated timescales. The Climate Change Officer will manage and co-ordinate 
the overall delivery of the Carbon Management Plan, with support from the 
Carbon Management Team, which is a corporate group that includes many 
of the lead officers. The Environmental Strategy Group (ESG), which is 
chaired by the Chief Executive and relevant Heads of Service, will provide 
strategic direction for the delivery of the Climate Change Strategy Action 
Plan and the Carbon Management Plan.  
 
(c) Equal Opportunities Implications 
 
An Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) of the aims and objectives of the 
Climate Change Strategy and the Carbon Management Plan has not 
identified any specific negative impacts. However, the needs of different 
protected characteristics will need to be considered when implementing the 
range of actions contained in the two documents. This is to ensure that the 
strategy is implemented effectively and that all people are able to benefit 
from the work being undertaken. Consequently further Equality Impact 
Assessments may be undertaken for individual projects. The EqIA can be 
accessed on the City Council’s website at: 
 
http://www.cambridge.gov.uk/ccm/content/council-and-democracy/how-the-
council-works/council-policies-and-plans/equality-and-diversity/equality-
impact-assessments.en 
 
(d) Environmental Implications 
 
The Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan and the Carbon Management 
Plan will have a high impact on the environment by setting out a planned 
approach to: reducing the Council’s carbon emissions; setting high 
standards for residents, businesses and organisations to reduce their 
carbon emissions and manage climate risks; and working in partnership 
with, influencing and learning from other organisations to address the 
causes and effects of climate change. 
 
(e) Procurement 
 

Page 353



Report Page No: 6 

The Climate Change Strategy Action Plan includes two actions relating to 
procurement. The first focuses on improving the Council’s contract 
management processes to ensure that contractors deliver the sustainability 
requirements of contracts. The second relates to exploring with partner 
organisations the potential for procuring a joint energy contract with 
associated sustainability criteria. 
 
(f) Consultation and communication 
 

Details of the public consultation on the Climate Change Strategy and 
Action Plan are provided at paragraphs 4.1 – 4.4 in this report. 
 

(g) Community Safety 
 
The Strategy and Action Plan have minimal impact on Community Safety. 
 
6. Background papers  
 
These background papers were used in the preparation of this report: 
 
Cambridge City Council Carbon Management Plan. The Plan can be 
accessed on the sustainability pages of the Council’s website at: 
http://www.cambridge.gov.uk/public/docs/carbon-management-plan-2011-
16.pdf 
 
7. Appendices  
 
Appendix A – Revised Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan 
Appendix B – Summary of consultation responses 
 
8. Inspection of papers  
 
To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report 
please contact: 
 
Author’s Name: David Kidston 
Author’s Phone Number:  01223 - 457043 
Author’s Email:  david.kidston@cambridge.gov.uk 
 

Page 354



 
 

 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Cambridge City Council  
Climate Change Strategy  
2012 – 2016 
 
October 2012  
 

Page 355



 
 

 2

 
 
CONTENTS 
             Page 
Foreword 3 
Executive summary  4 
1.0 Introduction 5 
2.0 Context  6 
How is our climate changing?  6 
The impact of climate change  7 
Risks for Cambridge  8 
International and national action on climate change  9 
3.0 A Climate Change Strategy for Cambridge 11 
Purpose 12 
The Case for Action  12 
Action to date  13 
Lessons learnt  17 
Aims and Objectives for future action  17 
Resources  21 
Targets  21 
Performance Management  
 

21 
Appendix A – Action Plan  23 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 356



 
 

 3

Foreword 
 
The debates about whether climate change is happening and if it is caused by human 
activity are over. The time for action has arrived; both to manage the effects of the 
climate change that is already taking place, as well as to reduce the adverse impact of 
climate change in the future. 
 
I am therefore delighted to introduce the second Cambridge City Council Climate 
Change Strategy and Action Plan. This builds on our first Strategy and Action Plan, 
which provided the framework for increased action from 2008 to 2012. It also delivers 
the commitment that we made in August 2012, by signing the ‘Climate Local’ 
declaration, to publish a set of actions to reduce carbon emissions and to manage 
climate impacts. 
 
Cambridge City Council has already taken a range of actions to tackle climate change. 
For example, we began using lower emission fuels in our vehicles in 1998; we have 
made energy efficiency improvements to Council-owned homes which reduced fuel bills 
for local tenants by approximately £1,200,000 between 2007/8 and 2010/11; through 
our home energy efficiency work we have contributed to a reduction of 11% per 
household in domestic gas consumption between 2005 and 2010; and we set high 
environmental standards for new developments in the city, including requiring 
renewable energy generation in new developments. But there is much more that must 
be done if we are to play our part in averting dangerous climate change in the future.  
 
Despite introducing a number of innovative projects as part of the implementation of we 
our first Climate Change Strategy, we acknowledge that the Council has not reduced 
carbon emissions from its own operations by as much as we had expected to. By 
adopting a more planned approach to reducing our emissions, the Council anticipates 
that it will be able to reduce its emissions of carbon dioxide and other greenhouse 
gases by 20% by March 2016 from the baseline year of 2010/11. The five-year Carbon 
Management Plan which sits underneath this strategy sets out 64 projects which will 
deliver this commitment, ranging from installation of solar thermal technology to provide 
a source of renewable energy for Abbey swimming pool, to the installation of highly 
energy efficient lighting solutions in Council buildings and facilities. 
 
We will not tackle the causes and consequences of climate change by focussing on our 
own emissions alone. The people who live and work in Cambridge demonstrate daily 
their desire to tackle climate change. Many residents travel to work by bike or foot; the 
proportion of household waste recycled or composted is amongst the highest in the 
country; and the city's universities and institutes lead the world in researching the 
potential solutions and adaptations to climate change.  
 
We will set the bar high for businesses, local communities and other organisations to 
follow. For example, we will use our planning policies to push for the highest 
environmental standards in new developments. We will also deliver the services needed 
to support local communities and businesses to achieve these high standards, including 

Page 357



 
 

 4

increased opportunities for recycling, support for households and landlords to improve 
the energy efficiency of properties, and initiatives to encourage cycling and use of public 
transport. We will also work closely with our partner organisations to maximise the local 
impact of national funding for climate change initiatives and deliver low carbon 
infrastructure and energy efficiency improvements which will have lasting benefits for 
the City.  
 
International and national action to tackle climate change is gathering pace. This 
strategy and action plan sets out the steps that the City Council will take, working with 
local communities, businesses and partner organisations, to help tackle global climate 
change. 
 
Tim Ward    
Executive Councillor for Planning and Climate Change

Page 358



 
 

 5

1.0  Introduction – Cambridge, a city at the forefront of low carbon living 
 
Our climate is changing. It has always changed in response to natural environmental 
processes, but it is now widely accepted that human activities are leading to climate 
change of a scale and pace that threatens our very way of life. Such a global challenge 
requires a global response, and the international framework for action is becoming 
stronger. The UK Government has initiated a broad range of policies and programmes 
that contribute to this response and address the causes and consequences of climate 
change in the UK. 
 
Individuals, communities and organisations in localities across the world need to take 
action if national and global efforts to address climate change are to be successful. 
Cambridge City Council has played a leading role in work to tackle climate change at 
the local level. One of the City Council’s eight corporate vision statements is: ‘a city in 
the forefront of low carbon living and minimising its impact on the environment from 
waste and pollution.’ 
 
Through implementing its first Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan for 2008-2012, 
the City Council has already achieved a considerable amount. However, there remains 
much to be done if challenging international targets on reducing greenhouse gases are 
to be achieved.  The City Council remains committed to playing a leading role in efforts 
at the local level. This revised Strategy and Action Plan establishes the framework for 
action by the City Council to address the causes and consequences of climate change 
over the next five years. It describes the current context, our rationale for intervention, 
our future objectives and the actions we plan to take in order to achieve them. 
 
2.0  Context 
 
How is our climate changing? 
 
Climate change is influenced by the ‘greenhouse effect’. This is a natural process which 
keeps the earth warmer than it would otherwise be and makes life on earth possible. 
Light from the sun passes through the atmosphere and warms the surface of the earth. 
Most of the heat escapes into space, but like the glass in a greenhouse, certain gases 
in our atmosphere trap the heat, preventing it from escaping back to space. Over time, 
human activity has led to an increase in the amount of carbon dioxide and other 
greenhouse gases in the atmosphere, which has increased the greenhouse effect and 
is causing the climate to change.  
The latest climate monitoring figures from the Met Office show that global temperatures 
have increased by 0.75 °C during the 100 years up to 20111. The greatest change 
occurred in the period since the mid-1970s, when average global temperatures 
increased by more than 0.15 °C per decade. The most recent report by the 
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) in 2007 concluded it is more than 
                                                           
1 http://www.metoffice.gov.uk/climate-change/guide/science/monitoring 

Page 359



 
 

 6

90% likely that most of the global warming that has occurred since the mid-20th century 
is due to the increase in human-caused greenhouse gas concentrations. 
Unless we take action now, global warming will continue. The most recent report by the 
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) in 2007 concluded that average 
global temperatures are likely to increase by 1.8-4 °C by the year 2100 compared with 
1999, and possibly as much as 6.4 °C 2.  
The IPCC also concluded that we can expect to see global temperatures rise by about 
0.2 °C per decade for the next few decades regardless of what we do, because it takes 
the climate 30-40 years to react to the gases that we emit now. 
The impact of Climate Change on Cambridge 
Predicting future changes to our climate is a complex process, and becomes even more 
difficult when trying to narrow those predictions to smaller areas. In 2002 the UK 
Climate Impacts Programme (UKCIP) produced scenarios of future climate changes for 
the UK. In 2009 the UK Climate Projections (UKCP) programme provided projections of 
how the climate will change in each region based on low, medium and high emissions 
scenarios. The data from these two programmes suggests that by 2080 the East of 
England will experience: 
• An increase in average temperatures of between 2 and 4.5 °C3. 
• Average seasonal temperatures are likely to increase, with average summer 

temperatures increasing by 1.3 to 4.7 °C and average winter temperatures 
increasing by between 2.6 to 3.7 °C4. 

• An increase in the number of ‘extremely’ warm days, by up to 14 days on a low 
emissions scenario and 30 days on a high emissions scenario3. 

• Increases in rainfall overall, with mean precipitation increasing by 1% to 2%4 
• Greater seasonal extremes in rainfall, with average winter rainfall increasing by 

between 16% and 26% and average summer rainfall decreasing by between 14% 
and 27%4. 

• Seasonal increases in the intensity of rainfall, with around 0.25-1.25 more days of 
intense rainfall in winter3 

• Decrease in summer and autumn soil moisture by up to 50%3. 

                                                           
2 Pachauri, R.K. and Reisinger, A. (Eds.), (2007), Fourth Assessment Report of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change, 
IPCC, Geneva, Switzerland  http://www.ipcc.ch/publications_and_data/ar4/syr/en/spms3.html 
3 UK Climate Impacts Programme, 2002.  
4 UK Climate Projections programme, 2009. All figures are based on central estimates for the low and high emissions scenarios 

Page 360



 
 

 7

Risks for Cambridge 
There are three key risks for Cambridge associated with the predicted changes in 
climate identified above:  
• increased summer temperatures and heatwaves;  
• flooding; and  
• water shortages and droughts.  

It is essential that Cambridge City Council contributes to wider efforts to reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions in order to limit the scale of change to our climate and the 
associated impacts. However, it is also vital that we take steps to manage the risks and 
adapt to the changes in our climate. 
Increased summer temperatures and heatwaves 
Increased summer temperatures could lead to summer heat waves and the 
exceptionally hot years experienced in 2003 and 2006 could become the norm by the 
2050s5. This would have significant impacts on people, the economy and the 
environment. The UK Climate Change Risk Assessment6 and the Government’s 
Heatwave Plan7 identifies the following potential risks from increased summer 
temperatures: 
• An increased risk of heat-related deaths. The summer 2003 heatwave, which 

saw the highest ever temperature recorded in Cambridge of 36.9 degrees, led to 
a significant increase in the number of heat-related deaths  

• Increased incidence of heat-related illnesses including heat stroke, heat 
exhaustion, heat rash and heat cramps  

• An increased risk in the number of skin cancer cases and deaths 
• An increased health risk from water, vector and food borne diseases 
• A loss of productivity for businesses due to overheating. Based on the medium or 

high UKCP09 scenarios, the East of England and the South East are likely to 
face the highest loss of staff days due to heat8 

• Increased energy consumption from cooling and refrigeration 
• Subsidence and heat-related damage or disruption to buildings, energy and 

transport networks 
• Increased risk of wildfires 

                                                           
5  Climate UK, A Summary of Climate Change Risks for East England: to coincide with the publication of the UK Climate Change 
Risk Assessment (CCRA), 2012 
6 DEFRA, UK Climate Change Risk Assessment: Government Report, January 2012, London, The Stationery Office 
7 Department of Health, Heatwave Plan for England, 2007 
8 Climate UK, A Summary of Climate Change Risks for East England: to coincide with the publication of the UK Climate Change 
Risk Assessment (CCRA), 2012 

Page 361



 
 

 8

• Threat of extinction to some species which are already at the limits of their 
habitat ranges 

• Species and habitat migration, including the invasion of non-native species, pests 
and diseases for which we may not be prepared 

However, while there is likely to be an increased risk of heat-related deaths as a result 
of hotter summer weather, it should be noted that there are currently more cold-related 
deaths in the UK, the number of which may reduce as a winter temperatures increase. 
Milder winters are also likely to lead to a reduction in energy consumption in winter 
months from heating buildings. 
Flooding 
Increases in the amount and intensity of rainfall in the winter are predicted to increase 
the area of severe flood risk in Cambridge City from the River Cam. Experience of 
recent floods suggests that there is also a significant risk from flash flooding. The 
interim review of the summer 2007 floods in the Midlands and Yorkshire found that 
around two-thirds of the flooding resulted from rainfall exceeding the local drainage 
capacity rather than rivers bursting their banks.  
The key impacts of any flooding would be: 

• Public health and safety risks for residents 
• Long-term physical and mental health impacts for residents 
• Damage to buildings and infrastructure 
• Disruption of the local economy through lost work days, disruption of transport and 

supplies and insurance and repair costs 
• Habitat changes and restoration costs 
Water shortages and droughts 
Our water supply is determined by the level of rainfall that feeds our rivers and 
recharges groundwater levels. The UKCP09 data outlined above suggests that in future 
the East of England will experience greater seasonal extremes in rainfall, with wetter 
winters and drier summers. Coupled with higher summer temperatures, which increase 
evaporation rates and water use by vegetation, the level of available water resources 
could decrease even more. 
The risk of water shortages and droughts can therefore be expected to increase as the 
climate changes. This would have varying degrees of impact on water users, including: 

• The need for water rationing  
• Hosepipe bans 
• Disruption of water-reliant businesses 
• Closure of water-reliant recreational activities 

Page 362



 
 

 9

• Reduced water quality standards 
• Species and habitat stress 
• Deterioration of river and wetland ecology 
There are a range of responses that could be adopted by water users, including the 
installation of more water efficient fixtures and fittings in properties. 
International and national action on climate change 
Man-made climate change is a global challenge that requires a global response. The 
United Nations has played a central role in co-ordinating international efforts to slow the 
pace of climate change and manage the risks associated with it. The international 
framework for action is built upon:  

• The UN Framework Convention on Climate Change (UNFCCC), which sets the 
overall framework for international efforts to tackle climate change. The Convention 
was adopted at the Rio Summit in 1992 and 195 countries have now signed up to it. 
The goal of the convention is to stabilise greenhouse gas concentrations at a level 
that would prevent dangerous man-made interference in the climate system. The 
Convention places the onus on industrialised nations, as the major source of 
emissions to date, and directs funding to developing countries to address climate 
change.  

• The Kyoto Protocol, which was adopted in 1997 and came into force in 2005. It set 
binding targets for 37 industrialised countries and the European Union for reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions by 5.2 per cent against 1990 levels over the five-year 
period 2008-2012. The European Union agreed to reduce its emissions by a total of 
8%, and the UK’s share of this corresponds to a legally binding target for the UK to 
reduce its emissions by 12.5% below 1990 levels by 2012. 

 
As the scientific consensus around the causes of climate change has grown, the 
international framework for action on climate change has become stronger. This 
Strategy and Action Plan aims to help stimulate action by individuals, communities and 
organisations in Cambridge that will contribute to these international efforts. The key 
developments that have occurred since the 2008-2012 Strategy was developed have 
included: 
 
• The Cancun Agreements in 2010, which set out commitments to enhance 

international action and co-operation on the management of climate change risks, 
particularly in developing countries. National governments also agreed in 2010 that 
emissions need to be reduced so that global temperature increases are limited to 
less than 2 degrees. 

• The UN Climate Change Conference in Durban in 2011, which delivered a 
breakthrough in the international community’s response to climate change, with a 
decision by national governments to adopt a universal legal agreement on climate 
change as soon as possible, and no later than 2015.  

Page 363



 
 

 10 

In response to greater agreement at the international level, increased scientific 
consensus and greater public recognition of the need for action, the UK Government 
has introduced a significant amount of new national legislation, policies and initiatives  
to address climate change since the adoption of our Strategy for 2008-2012. This 
refreshed Cambridge City Council strategy reflects and responds to the key changes, 
including: 
• The Climate Change Act 2008 establishes a long-term framework for tackling 

climate change. It introduces a unilateral, binding national target to reduce carbon 
emissions by at least 80% below 1990 levels by 2050, with an interim target of a 
34% reduction by 2020.  The Act requires Parliament to agree four five-year carbon 
budgets, which set the level of emissions reductions needed to achieve these overall 
targets. The Act also introduces a number of measures to promote the management 
of climate change risks, including a requirement for the Government to conduct a 
national Climate Change Risk Assessment and establish a national adaptation 
programme, and a requirement for public bodies and utilities to report on the steps 
they are taking to address climate change risks to their work. 

• The Carbon Plan, published in December 2011 sets out Government’s Plan for 
achieving the emissions targets set in the first four carbon budgets. It identifies the 
emissions reductions that will be needed in five key areas of the economy (homes 
and buildings; transport; industry; electricity; and agriculture, land use, forestry and 
waste) and how these can be achieved.  

• Changes to planning policy to support action to address climate change. The 
Planning Act 2008 introduced a duty on Local Development Frameworks to include 
policies that make a contribution to both climate change mitigation and adaptation. 
The Planning and Energy Act 2008 enables local authorities to set energy 
requirements for energy use and energy efficiency in Development Plans. Building 
on the existing Code for Sustainable Homes, which sets a national standard for 
sustainable design and construction of houses, the Zero Carbon Homes Policy will 
come into effect in 2016 which will require all carbon emissions from energy use in 
new homes to be eliminated. Public buildings will be required to be zero carbon by 
2018; all other non-residential buildings will be required to be zero carbon by 2019. 

• The Energy Act 2008 introduced a number of measures to encourage renewable 
energy generation by households and non-domestic users (including the public and 
private sectors). This included the Feed In Tariff scheme, and the Renewable Heat 
Incentive, which will provide financial support for renewable heat sources. 

• The Energy Act 2011 introduced a number of new measures to stimulate energy 
efficiency measures for homes and businesses. The Green Deal will support 
improvements to the energy efficiency of homes and non-domestic properties, 
funded by a charge on energy bills rather than upfront charges to the consumer. The 
Energy Company Obligation will take over from existing obligations (such as the 
Carbon Emissions Reduction Target) that expire at the end of 2012 and will require 
energy companies to target support where there is greatest need, including 
vulnerable people on low incomes and residents in hard-to-treat housing.  

Page 364



 
 

 11 

• The UK Climate Change Risk Assessment (CCRA), published in 2012, sets out 
the potential impacts of climate change at a national level. DEFRA commissioned  
Regional Climate Change Partnerships to produce a summary of regional climate 
change risks, which was produced by Sustainability East for the East of England 
region. The National Adaptation Programme (NAP), which the Government plans 
to publish in 2013, will set out proposals and policies for how the Government, 
private sector and others should respond to the risks identified in the CCRA.  

 
The role of local authorities in tackling climate change  
 
Climate Local 
 
In August 2012, Cambridge City Council was among the first local authorities to sign the 
‘Climate Local’ declaration. Climate Local has been developed by the Local 
Government Association as the successor to the Nottingham Declaration on Climate 
Change, which the Council signed up to in 2006. The Climate Local declaration 
identifies the following three roles for local authorities in tackling climate change: 
   
• Community leader – helping local people and businesses to be smarter about their 

energy use and to prepare for climate impacts. 
• Service provider – delivering services that are resource efficient, less carbon 

intensive, resilient and that protect those who are most vulnerable to climate 
impacts. 

• Estate manager – ensuring that our own buildings and operations are resource 
efficient, use clean energy, and are well prepared for the impacts of a changing 
climate. 

 
Through developing and implementing this Strategy and the associated Carbon 
Management Plan, we will deliver the following specific Climate Local commitments: 
 
• Setting locally-owned and determined commitments and actions to reduce carbon 

emissions and to manage climate impacts.  
• Publishing our commitments, actions and progress, enabling local communities to 

hold us to account. 
• Sharing the learning from our experiences and achievements with other councils. 
• Regularly refreshing our commitments and actions to ensure they are current and 

continue to reflect local priorities. 
 
Committee on Climate Change 
 
In May 2012, the Committee on Climate Change, an independent advisory body to 
Government on climate change matters, published its report on the role of local 
authorities in reducing emissions and managing climate risk. In developing this Strategy 
and identifying the actions that we will take over the next fours years, we have taken as 

Page 365



 
 

 12 

a starting point those measures recommended by the Committee that are within the 
scope of a district Council. They include: 
 
• Drawing up carbon reduction plans which include a high-level ambition for emissions 

reductions (e.g. 20% reduction across buildings, surface transport and waste by 
2020 relative to 2010 levels). 

• Reducing emissions from local authority estates, primarily through use of their own 
buildings, transport and procurement. 

• Influencing emissions from domestic buildings through energy efficiency measures. 
Primarily through home insulation measures, delivered through national programmes 
such as the Green Deal and Energy Company Obligation (ECO). 

• Influencing emissions from non-domestic buildings. 
• Using planning and building control functions to enforce energy efficiency standards 

in new buildings and extensions. 
• Reducing transport emissions by concentrating new developments in existing cities 

and large towns and/or ensuring they are well served by public transport. 
• Working with developers to make renewable energy projects acceptable to local 

communities. 
• Planning for infrastructure such as low-carbon district heating networks, green 

infrastructure and sustainable drainage systems. 
• Developing and making district heating schemes commercially viable. 
• Promoting sustainable transport through: implementing sustainable travel plans; 

providing cycling infrastructure; providing better public transport; and promoting low-
carbon vehicles by supporting investment in electric vehicle charging infrastructure, 
and purchasing. 

• Waste management initiatives, including: awareness-raising campaigns and 
providing separate collection for recycling and food waste. 

• Preparing for climate change impacts through: 
o Using planning policy to ensure that new development is located in areas of 

lowest flood risk.  
o Using planning policy and other levers to ensure that buildings and 

infrastructure are resilient to flooding and heat stress. 
o Managing and extending natural resources to promote biodiversity and 

reduce flood risk 
 
 
 

Page 366



 
 

 13 

3.0 A Climate Change Strategy for Cambridge 
 
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of this Climate Change Strategy and the associated Action Plan is to 
establish the framework for the City Council’s action to address the causes and 
consequences of climate change over the next four years. It will help deliver Cambridge 
City Council’s vision of ‘a City in the forefront of low carbon living and minimising its 
impact on the environment from waste and pollution.’  
 

The Strategy is a cross-cutting document which will influence the delivery of key 
services and the development and implementation of other key strategies and policies, 
such as the Local Plan, Waste Strategy, Housing Strategy, Office Accommodation 
Strategy and Portfolio and Operational Plans.  

 
The Case for Action 
 
Taking action on climate change continues to be a key priority for Cambridge City 
Council. We believe that doing nothing is not an option and that it is essential for the 
City Council to take action now to address climate change for the following reasons: 
 

1. Limiting the local impact of climate change - As outlined in section 2, the 
predicted impacts of climate change pose major risks to the safety, prosperity 
and environment of people and organisations in Cambridge.  There is a need to 
take action now to manage the climate change risks that we cannot avoid, whilst 
at the same time reducing our greenhouse gas emissions to avert even more 
dangerous climate change in the decades beyond.  

2. Global fairness – Climate change requires co-ordinated action around the world, 
and Cambridge needs to make its fair contribution towards international efforts. 
People in Cambridge currently produce almost twice as much carbon dioxide per 
person as the global average and several times more than the average person in 
many developing countries. Although the effects will be felt strongly in the UK, 
many developing countries will experience the worst impacts of climate change.  

3. Cost-effectiveness – The Stern Review illustrated how the costs to the global 
economy rise as the climate changes and that early action to limit the extent of 
climate change is ultimately cheaper than waiting to manage the impacts of 
climate change when they become more severe. 

4. A sustainable economy – The future costs of doing ‘business as usual’ will 
increase as the cost of climate change impacts is felt. They are also likely to 
increase if the global supply of oil becomes scarcer and energy prices rises as a 
result. Many observers believe that global oil production will peak at some point. 
There are a wide variety of forecasts of when this point will be reached, from 
those who believe that ‘peak oil’ has already occurred, to those who argue that 

Page 367



 
 

 14 

the peak will not occur until the 2030s at the earliest9. It is important, therefore, 
that both local and national economies become more sustainable and resource-
efficient if they are to remain strong and competitive. The global need for action 
on climate change will also create increasing business opportunities in the 
development of sustainable technologies and processes, although it remains to 
be seen the extent to which the Cambridge and UK economies will benefit from 
these opportunities. 

5. Quality of life – Strong action to address climate change can also improve other 
aspects of life for Cambridge residents. For example, improving the energy 
efficiency of homes can reduce fuel bills and make them more comfortable to live 
in. Similarly, increasing walking, cycling and use of public transport can reduce 
traffic congestion, increase air quality and improve the health of residents. 

 
Action to date  
 
Cambridge City Council has been taking action to address climate change for over 15 
years. We made a formal commitment by signing the Nottingham Declaration on 
Climate Change on 22nd September 2006. This was followed by the publication of the  
City Council’s first five-year Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan in 2008, which 
set out a clear vision and framework for increased action. 
 
Through implementing the approach set out in this previous Strategy and the key 
measures contained in the Action Plan, the City Council has already made a 
contribution to international and national efforts to tackle the causes of climate change 
and manage the risks to communities, the local economy and the natural environment.  
 
The strategy identified three roles for the City Council: 
 
(i) Council management – actions to reduce carbon dioxide emissions and manage 
climate change risks associated with management of the Council’s own buildings and 
functions. 
 
We have implemented a number of carbon reduction projects across our operations and 
our estate, including using our dedicated Climate Change Fund to trial new approaches.  
These included the installation of a more efficient fan system in the Grand Arcade Car 
Park Annex and voltage optimisation technology in the Guildhall. Collectively, the 16 
projects funded between 2008 and 2011 have delivered estimated savings of £48,000 
and 243 tonnes of CO2 per year. 
 
(ii) Service delivery - incorporation of carbon reduction and climate change risk 
management actions within the services delivered by Cambridge City Council. 
 
                                                           
9 Department of Energy and Climate Change (2011), DECC call for evidence: summary of responses: prospects for 
crude oil supply and demand 

Page 368



 
 

 15 

We have set high standard for residents, businesses and other organisations to follow, 
not least through our planning policies, and where necessary we have taken action to 
enforce these standards. We have also delivered projects and services that have 
assisted residents to reduce their carbon emissions. 
 
Along with seasonal and yearly temperature changes and the effects with the economic 
downturn, Council initiatives have contributed to a 16% reduction in CO2 emissions per 
capita from the City of Cambridge as a whole between 2005-200910 (a 9% reduction in 
absolute terms – the per capita figure reflects the city’s rising population). However, it 
should be noted that these figures do not take into account the carbon emissions 
resulting from the production and transportation of the goods that were consumed by 
residents and businesses in the City. If these emissions are included in the figures, 
carbon emissions for the City of Cambridge increased over this period. 
 
Some of the key measures and projects that we have implemented over the past five 
years have included: 
 
• Setting high sustainability standards for new housing development and the 

growth of the City. We have required all new affordable housing on the growth 
sites to be built to at least Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes and proposals 
for market housing on the growth sites are required to meet Code Level 3 as a 
minimum, rising to Code Level 4 after a certain number of units have been delivered.  
Even higher standards have been set at some sites.  For example, the North West 
Cambridge Area Action Plan (AAP), which was adopted in October 2008, set a UK-
leading policy requiring the majority of this 3,000 home development to be delivered 
at Code Level 5.  

• Working with developers to demonstrate the benefits of sustainable 
construction of new homes. For example, a Code Level 5 concept house will be 
built at the Skanska development on the Clay Farm site to aid the developer in 
meeting higher standards on future sites.  At the Trumpington Meadows site an 
Enhanced Sustainability Show Home constructed to Code Level 5 will enable new 
home-owners to enhance the specification of their properties by, for example, 
increasing the amount of renewable energy provision or the installation of rainwater 
harvesting systems.   

• Promoting exemplar redevelopment and ‘retrofit’ schemes. For example, the 
City Council was involved in the redevelopment of the Simons House (now Richard 
Newcombe Court) Sheltered Housing Scheme, which has achieved Code Level 5. 
The City Council also piloted the installation of innovative energy efficiency solutions 
at a Council-owned property in Byron Square as part of the Technology Strategy 
Board ‘Retrofit for the Future’ project. As a result, the energy rating of the property 
has risen from C to A. 

                                                           
10 Department of Energy and Climate Change, (2011), Carbon Dioxide Emissions within the scope of 
influence of local authorities 2005-2009, 
http://www.decc.gov.uk/en/content/cms/statistics/local_auth/co2_las/co2_las.aspx 

Page 369



 
 

 16 

• Using planning policies to drive the installation and take-up of renewable 
energy sources. Since 2006 we have required all major new developments in the 
City to meet at least 10% of their energy requirements through the use of renewable 
energy. We have increased these requirements for a number of flagship 
developments. For example, 15% of the energy required by the Station Area 
redevelopment will have to come from renewable energy sources. 

• Installing energy efficiency measures in Council-owned homes through the 
Decent Homes programme and other routes. Based on the average savings that 
these types of measures yield, we have calculated that between 2007/08 and 
2010/11this work is likely to have prevented more than 6450 tonnes of CO2 
emissions, saved more than 29 million kWh of energy and reduced fuel bills for local 
tenants by more than £1,200,000. 

• Increasing the energy efficiency of sheltered housing schemes. For example, 
motion sensor lighting controls at the Ditchburn Place and School Court Sheltered 
Housing schemes have reduced lighting electricity costs by more than 90%. 

• Carrying out community engagement activities to promote energy efficiency 
and low carbon living and increase our understanding of the specific issues facing 
the City of Cambridge. The Pilot Action Zone project in 2007 targeted over 200 
properties in Cherry Hinton and the Comfort Zone project in January 2009 covered 
584 properties in the Arbury and West Chesterton wards. A successful series of four 
events in Queen Edith’s ward in 2010 and 2011 brought together local residents, 
community groups, schools and service providers and resulted in an increased 
number of referrals for energy efficiency advice. 

• Launching a voluntary landlord accreditation scheme in 2007 to improve the 
physical condition and management standards of privately rented homes. As part of 
the scheme we have provided financial support to the landlords of 50 properties to 
carry out energy efficiency improvements and meet a minimum energy standard.  

• Delivering and supporting a range of initiatives to reduce car use and promote 
alternative, sustainable forms of transport. For example, we have: supported 
improvements to local bus services, including bus shelters and real time information, 
with operators and partners; installed electric vehicle charging points at Grafton East 
Car park and Queen Anne Terrace car park; worked jointly with the County Council 
to implement an agreed programme of improvements to cycling facilities in 
Cambridge; and, where possible, secured cycle parking facilities in new 
developments through the planning process. 

 
(iii) Partnership and influencing – working together with other organisations and 
partnerships. 
 
We have worked closely in partnership with the voluntary and community sector, 
businesses and other public sector organisations to maximise our collective impact on 
the causes and effects of climate change. Examples include: 
 

Page 370



 
 

 17 

• Providing over £360,000 funding to local voluntary and community groups 
since 2008 through our Sustainable City Project Grants programme for work 
that tackles the causes and consequences of climate change, reduces waste and 
protects the local environment.  Over 90 projects have been supported, ranging from 
wildlife ponds and community allotments to home energy education and supporting 
businesses to reduce wasted heat. One of the projects supported, Cambridge 
Carbon Footprint’s ‘Carbon Conversations’, was judged to be one of the 20 best 
climate change solutions at the 2009 Manchester International Festival, and similar 
projects are now delivered across the UK.  

• The Close the Door Campaign has received support from MPs, climate scientists 
and the Women’s Institute for its simple message to retailers both large and small.  
As a result of its persuasive, science-based technique, one of the largest coffee 
shop chains, Costa Coffee, is to bring in a ‘close the door’ policy across all of its 
outlets. 

• Working in partnership with neighbouring local authorities and other 
organisations through the Cambridgeshire Travel for Work Partnership, 
Cambridgeshire & Peterborough Biodiversity Partnership and Recycling in 
Cambridgeshire & Peterborough (RECAP).  RECAP has set an ambitious target to 
recycle or compost 50-55% of household waste by 2015 and was awarded Green 
Flag status in 2009 in recognition of exceptional performance and innovation. 

• Engaging in the Home Energy Liaison Group, which aims to raise awareness of 
climate change mitigation initiatives and research, particularly in relation to 
refurbishment of housing stock and other buildings and deliver initiatives. The Group 
includes construction industry representatives, the University of Cambridge, 
Cambridge Regional College, and voluntary groups such as Cambridge Carbon 
Footprint and Transition Cambridge.    

• Working with local voluntary and community groups such as Cambridge Carbon 
Footprint to develop and deliver events and projects focussing on low carbon living 
including ‘Open Eco Homes’, the  ‘Low Carbon Living’ events, and the ‘Climate 
Friendly Homes’. 

 
Much of the focus of the Council’s work to date has been aimed at reducing the extent 
of climate change. However, we have also taken action to manage the risks associated 
with climate change and to help the natural environment adapt to a changing climate. 
For example: 
 
• Implementing a number of projects that will help manage the risks to the 

Council’s estate and operations from climate change. For example we have 
used our dedicated Climate Change Fund to support measures that will help reduce 
the water resources used at two Council sites. In 2009 we installed a rainwater 
harvesting system as part of the refurbishment of the public toilets at Arbury Court, 
and in 2010 we installed two ‘grey water recycling units’ at our depot on Mill Road, 
which enable us to recycle the water used for cleaning our fleet vehicles.  

Page 371



 
 

 18 

• Taking action to increase the urban forest cover. Trees help cities adapt to a 
changing climate by providing cooling, capturing pollution, intercepting and 
infiltrating rainfall and helping to guard against the fragmentation of wildlife habitats. 
We have measured the extent of tree canopy cover across Cambridge City and are 
currently exploring ways to protect the existing level of cover and to increase stock in 
wards and land uses where canopy levels are low; for example directly through 
planting programmes, or indirectly via guidance or the planning process. 

• Working in partnership we have restored and enhanced local wildlife sites and 
watercourses across the City, assisting species and habitats to adapt to a 
changing climate and extreme events. New Local Nature Reserves such as Cherry 
Hinton Chalk Pits and Coldham's Common have been designated and management 
plans adopted to ensure favourable ecological conditions. 

• Creating extensive green corridors within the growth areas of the City such as 
at Clay Farm and Trumpington Meadows, which are designed to protect existing 
habitat networks and create new wetland and grassland habitats linking the City with 
the surrounding countryside. 

 
Lessons learnt 
 
We have learnt a number of lessons from the experience of implementing our first 
Climate Change Strategy, which have informed the approach we will adopt to tackling 
the causes, and managing the impacts, of climate change over the next five years. 
These have included: 
 
• The Council’s dedicated Climate Change Fund has given us the flexibility to trial a 

range of new approaches and technologies across our estate and operations. These 
projects have helped limit or reduce our carbon emissions from the sites where they 
were implemented, and we plan to roll out the most cost effective and replicable of 
them (such as voltage optimisation and LED lighting) across other Council sites 
during the next five years.  

• We recognise that we have not reduced carbon emissions from our own estate and 
operations by as much as we aimed to when we developed the previous Strategy 
and Action Plan.  As is explained later in this document, this is partly because, 
although we reduced energy at some sites through targeted projects, we consumed 
more energy on others as part of wider programmes to improve services and provide 
better outcomes for residents. We have learnt that we need to take into account the 
impact on our energy usage and carbon emissions when we make such decisions in 
future. 

• We anticipate that by adopting a more strategic and planned approach in future we 
will be able to achieve a more significant reduction in our emissions by March 2016. 
The Carbon Management Plan that accompanies this Strategy identifies the specific 
projects and resources that will enable us to achieve this reduction. The Plan 
focuses our efforts on the areas of our operations and estate which contribute most 
to our emissions, including our swimming pools, car parks, vehicle fleet, offices and 

Page 372



 
 

 19 

sheltered and temporary housing. By targeting projects at these areas we will be 
able to maximise the impact of the resources we have available to tackle climate 
change and achieve a greater reduction in our emissions. 

• In order to effectively measure the impact of our projects and ensure that they are 
reducing our emissions, it is vital that we have effective monitoring systems in place. 
As part of the work to develop the baseline for our Carbon Management Plan, it has 
become apparent that the data we have for some Council-owned buildings and sites 
is based, at least in part, on estimated bills from our energy suppliers. In order to 
improve the accuracy of the data we hold on our energy usage, we have installed 
Automatic Meter Reading (AMR) meters on 90% of the sites included in the Carbon 
Management Plan that use electricity. We are working to install electricity and gas 
AMRs on all sites that do not currently have them, and will also be taking annual 
visual meter readings for all sites in future. 

• It is important that the steps taken by the City Council to tackle climate change are 
cost effective. In order to receive funding from the City Council’s Climate Change 
Fund, projects focussing on our own estate and operations have to date required a 
payback period of less than 5 years and cost less than £100 per tonne of CO2 that 
they save. However, in order to significantly reduce carbon emissions in future, the 
City Council recognises that it will be necessary in future to support some projects 
that do not meet these current criteria, but for which a sound business case exists. 
We expect the projects included in the Carbon Management Plan to reduce the 
Council’s likely energy and fuel costs by around £340,000 each year. This means 
that the projects will have paid for themselves within fewer than seven years and 
many will deliver further savings beyond this period.11 When selecting projects for 
inclusion in the plan, we have prioritised those that sit highest in the ‘energy 
hierarchy’ (i.e. those that prevent unnecessary energy use and increase energy 
efficiency) and therefore will deliver the greatest level of carbon reduction in return 
for the investment being made. 

 
• As the level of technology and standards of sustainable construction continue to 

advance, it will be important to ensure that we adapt our planning policies to ensure 
that we secure the highest possible sustainability standards in the design and 
construction of new homes and buildings. We will use our developing Local Plan to 
set ambitious standards reflecting the aspirations in the Quality Charter. 

 
Aims and Objectives for future action 
 
Cambridge City Council’s existing environmental outcomes and objectives are set out in 
a range of policies and plans, including the previous Climate Change Strategy and 
Action Plan, the Cambridge Home Energy and Affordable Warmth Policy, the Joint 
                                                           
11 These figures are subject to change and the exact costs and benefits of a number of the projects will 
become clearer as detailed work is carried out.  The Plan explains the varying degrees of confidence and 
certainty around achieving the anticipated savings and emissions reductions. 

Page 373



 
 

 20 

Municipal Waste Strategy for Cambridgeshire and Peterbrough, the Cambridge Air 
Quality Action Plan and the Cambridge Nature Conservation Strategy. These outcomes 
are summarised in the table below: 
 
Outcomes Objectives 
A. Tackle the causes and consequences 
of climate change 

A1. Reduce carbon dioxide emissions 
A2. Manage climate change risks 
A3. Reduce fuel poverty 
 

B. Minimise waste B1. Reduce the amount of waste 
generated 
B2. Increase waste reuse, recycling and 
composting 
B3. Reduce waste sent to landfill 
 

C. Protect the local environment C1. Reduce pollution of air, water and land 
C2. Improve street and environmental 
cleanliness by reducing levels of litter, 
detritus, graffiti and fly-posting and fly-
tipping 
C3. Protect and enhance local wildlife  
 

 
The need for the Council to respond to climate change has not changed since we 
produced our first Strategy in 2008; if anything, there is an even more pressing need for 
action at the local level. The overall aims of our work on Climate Change remain to: 
 
1. Take action that contributes to national and international efforts to avert dangerous 

climate change by limiting temperature increases. 
2. To ensure that the climate changes risks facing the City of Cambridge are 

appropriately planned and managed. 
 
However, a number of significant changes and developments have taken place over the 
past five years, some of which have been outlined in Section 3 of this document. As a 
result, the focus of the objectives for this Strategy, and the actions that will deliver these 
objectives, is slightly different from those set by the preceding Strategy, particularly the 
more programmed approach to reducing our own emissions. 
 
Objective 1: To reduce carbon emissions from the Council’s estate and 
operations and manage the risks to its staff and property  
 
While the Council has reduced its carbon footprint over the past five years (on a 
kilogrammes per head of population basis), we are committed to making greater 
reductions in carbon emissions from our estate and operations by 2016.  Working with 
the support of the Carbon Trust, the Council has developed a detailed Carbon 

Page 374



 
 

 21 

Management Plan, which sits under this Strategy and will guide delivery of this 
objective.  
 
The Carbon Management Plan identifies a challenging programme of 64 projects that 
we plan to deliver over the next five years, ranging from installation of solar thermal 
technology to provide renewable energy for Council swimming pools, to the installation 
of more energy efficient lighting solutions in Council buildings and facilities.  
 
By adopting a rigorous and planned approach which focuses primarily on the areas of 
the Council’s activity which contribute most to our carbon emissions (e.g. swimming 
pools, car parks, vehicle fleet, offices and sheltered and temporary housing), we are 
aiming to reduce carbon dioxide emissions from our estate and operations by 20% by 
the end of March 2016.  
 
The broad areas of intervention are listed in Action 1 in the Action Plan at the end of this 
Strategy, but more detail on the specific projects, and the wider organisational and 
cultural changes we will be making alongside these projects, can be found in the 
Carbon Management Plan itself. 
 
It is equally important that the Council ensures that it effectively manages the risks to its 
staff, property and activities so that we can continue to deliver efficient and effective 
services for residents and businesses in Cambridge.   Actions 2-8 in the Action Plan set 
out the key steps that we will take to ensure that we adapt as effectively as possible to 
the key risks of increased temperatures, flooding and water shortages identified in 
Section 3 above.  
 
Objective 2 - To set high standards and assist residents, businesses and 
organisations to reduce their carbon emissions and manage climate risks  
 
While the City Council can make a valuable contribution to wider efforts to tackle climate 
change by minimising carbon emissions from our operations and our estate, we 
recognise the Council also has a vital leadership role to play in setting high standards 
and supporting and working with local residents, businesses and other organisations to 
make the changes needed to reduce their carbon footprint and manage the risks posed 
by climate change.  
 
The Council will use its regulatory functions to set high standards for businesses and 
residents on reducing their emissions and managing climate change risks.  For 
example, the Issues and Options report for the developing Cambridge Local Plan 
published in May 2011 includes a dedicated Chapter on Sustainable Development, 
Climate Change, Water and Flooding12. This includes a range of proposals to reduce 
the climate change impact of new development in the City of Cambridge through the 
planning process, including: 
                                                           
12 Cambridge City Council, (2012), Cambridge Local Plan towards 2031: Issues and Options report, 
Chapter 6: Sustainable Development, Climate Change, Water and Flooding 

Page 375



 
 

 22 

 
• setting higher sustainability standards for new developments in the Cambridge Local 

Plan, including at least Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes for residential 
developments, and BREEAM certification13 at ‘very good’ or ‘excellent’ level or Zero 
Carbon Buildings standards for non-residential developments.   

• setting high standards for renewable energy provision and actively engaging with 
developers to secure renewable energy as part of planning agreements for new 
developments.   

• exploring the inclusion of climate change infrastructure requirements in the 
development of our approach to the Community Infrastructure Levy. 

 
Where appropriate we will take action to ensure that businesses and residents meet 
these high standards. For example, we will take action to ensure that businesses and 
residents meet any climate change requirements that are a formal part of a planning 
permission or Section 106 agreement. 
 
We will also assist residents and businesses to reduce their carbon emissions and 
manage climate risks through the way in which we deliver services, including by: 
 
• providing support to homeowners, private landlords, private tenants and housing 

associations to improve the energy efficiency of properties. In the short-term, we will 
encourage take up of subsidies available for loft and cavity wall insulation through 
the Carbon Emissions Reduction Target (CERT) scheme by providing grant funding 
to cover the £150 contribution that residents would otherwise have to make. Moving 
forward, we are working with partner organisations across Cambridgeshire to 
explore opportunities for a joint approach to promoting the Government’s Green 
Deal, which comes into effect in 2013 and will allow energy consumers to pay for up-
front energy efficiency improvements through an ongoing charge on their energy 
bills. 

• providing specific services that will help residents and businesses to reduce their 
contribution to climate change. For example we will deliver a range of initiatives to 
make informed choices about their carbon footprint, for example through: conducting 
door-knocking campaigns on recycling and waste reduction issues; providing 
information on cycling and walking opportunities; providing grants to groups that can 
encourage residents to cycle and walk more often; conducting awareness 
campaigns on home energy efficiency issues; and publishing and promoting Energy 
Performance Certificates for Council properties. 

• making improvements to Council-owned buildings and facilities which will assist 
service users to reduce their carbon emissions, such as improving the energy 
efficiency of Council-owned homes, which will reduce the emissions of our tenants, 
and exploring new technology which will reduce the emissions of drivers using our 
car parks. 

                                                           
13 BREEAM is an internationally recognised assessment method for sustainable building design, 
construction and operation 

Page 376



 
 

 23 

• ensuring that climate change impacts are a key consideration when we are 
designing and developing new services. 

 
Objective 3 - To work in partnership with other organisations to address the 
causes and effects of climate change 
 
In recent years, Cambridge City Council has sought to provide local leadership on 
climate change issues. However, the context that the Council is operating in has 
changed significantly since we developed our first Strategy and Action Plan. The 
economic climate facing the City Council and local residents and businesses is much 
more challenging than it was five years ago.  At the same time, as outlined in Section 
3.0, the Government has introduced a greater range of national initiatives and 
incentives for action on climate change since 2008. It is therefore vital that the Council 
works with other organisations in Cambridge and beyond to identify opportunities for 
collaboration and maximise the impact of available funding and resources. The Council 
is committed to working in partnership with other organisations, including: 
 
• Working closely with the voluntary and community sector, including providing 

financial support for community-led projects which address the causes and 
manage the impact of climate change. 

• Working with Cambridgeshire County Council and other neighbouring district 
councils to ensure that climate change issues are addressed as part of joint 
policies and plans, such as the Cambridge Area Transport Strategy, County-wide 
planning advice on surface water flood-risk and emergency planning through the 
Cambridgeshire Resilience Forum. 

• Working with Government, neighbouring local authorities, the voluntary sector 
and business through partnerships such as the Low Carbon Hub and the 
Cambridgeshire Renewables Infrastructure Framework to deliver low carbon 
infrastructure and low carbon living, potentially including district heating. 

• Working with the University of Cambridge, the private sector and other 
stakeholders in the Cambridge Retrofit project to explore a model for financing 
and delivering energy efficiency improvements to existing properties in 
Cambridge over the next 30 years. 

• Exploring and exploiting innovative funding arrangements, such as the Carbon 
Offset Fund, Community Energy Fund, Community Infrastructure Levy, Green 
Bank and Green Deal. 

 
While we have developed a considerable amount of experience in relation to the climate 
change agenda that we share freely with other organisations, the Council also 
recognises that we need to continue to learn from organisations with expertise at a 
local, national and international level. To this end, we will continue to share knowledge 
with the University of Cambridge and Anglia Ruskin University and voluntary and 
community sector groups. We will also learn from other local authorities who have 

Page 377



 
 

 24 

piloted successful approaches, particularly those who have also signed the Climate 
Local commitment.  
 
Resources 
 
The actions identified in the Action Plan will be funded through a mixture of sources: 
 
• Existing budgets for delivering key services, particularly for projects or actions that 

will deliver climate change benefits as part of wider planned developments or 
improvements to services. These fall within the City Council’s General Fund or 
Housing Revenue Account depending on the services involved. 

• The City Council’s Repair and Renewals (R&R) budget, which makes provision for 
maintenance and replacement of assets. 

• The City Council’s Climate Change Fund, which is a dedicated fund for supporting 
initiatives that deliver both carbon and financial savings. 

• Government and other external funding sources for climate change initiatives. 
 
While some of the actions and initiatives set out in the Action Plan will require additional 
resources, many of the proposed projects will also deliver significant financial savings 
for the Council. For example, the 64 projects included in the Carbon Management Plan 
are expected to a require an investment of £2.3m over the next 5 years (of which 
around £1.7m has already been planned).   
 
Based on information that is currently available, it is anticipated that the implementation 
of these projects will reduce the Council’s energy and fuel costs by around £340,000 
each year. This means that the projects will have paid for themselves in fewer than 7 
years and many will deliver further savings beyond this period. We aim to develop 
effective reporting mechanisms to ensure that these savings are captured as part of the 
Council’s budget process and contribute to the delivery of our wider savings targets for 
the coming years. 
 
Targets 
 
In the previous strategy for 2008-2012, the City Council aimed to reduce carbon dioxide 
emissions from its activities by 11% from 60.9 kilos per resident per year in 2005/06 to 
54.2 kilos per resident per year by 2010/11. Our current data tells us that the City 
Council in fact reduced its carbon emissions between 2005/06 and 2010/11 by around 
0.59% per resident. However, total energy consumption at sites owned by the Council 
rose very slightly (by around 23,000kwh or 0.1%) in this period and total emissions from 
the City Council’s activities rose by 3.2%.  
 
Cambridge City Council has not reduced carbon dioxide emissions from its activities 
since 2005/6 by the amount hoped for a number of reasons, including: 
 

Page 378



 
 

 25 

• While the City Council reduced energy use at some sites through projects funded 
through our Climate Change Fund and other initiatives, we consumed more 
energy on others as part of initiatives to improve services and provide better 
outcomes for residents, such as extended opening hours at swimming pools, 
increased hiring of community centres and installing better lighting in a number of 
car parks. 

• The mix of electricity and gas used by the Council has changed during this 
period, so although total energy consumption fell from 2009/10 to 2010/11 for 
instance, emissions went up, as a greater proportion of the total energy used was 
from electricity. 

• A number of factors in the 2005/6 baseline data referred to in the previous 
strategy have made it more complex to make direct comparisons. The baseline 
included figures for a number of sites which we were either erroneous, or gave a 
distorting impression because the buildings were closed for refurbishment during 
that year and therefore not consuming gas and/or electricity at anywhere near the 
normal rate (whilst being fully operational in 2010/11).  If one excluded those 
sites from the figures to give a more “like for like” comparison, the total energy 
consumption would be around 1,250,000kwh less in 2010/11 than in 2005/06 for 
the remaining sites, giving a reduction in per capita emissions of 4.84%. 

 
We have adopted a robust, structured approach to reducing our future energy 
consumption and carbon emissions through the development of the detailed Carbon 
Management Plan that sits under this Strategy. By delivering the 64 projects in this plan, 
we anticipate reducing our carbon emissions by a much greater amount over the next 
five years than we have achieved since 2005/6. Our aspiration is to reduce carbon 
emissions from our estate and operations by 20% by the end of March 2016. 
 
The targets set in the previous strategy regarding the carbon footprint of the City of 
Cambridge as a whole have been met. In the previous strategy, we said that by working 
with local communities, businesses and partner organisations we would aim to reduce 
the city's carbon dioxide emissions from 6.2 tonnes per person in 2005 to 5.5 tonnes per 
person by 2010 (11% cut). The most up-to-date data available from the Department for 
Energy and Climate Change (DECC)14 suggests that per capita emissions in the City 
between 2005 and 2009 fell by 16% from 6.9 tonnes to 5.8 tonnes. Total carbon 
emissions for the City of Cambridge, including those from homes and businesses, 
reduced by 9% between 2005 and 2009 from 768,600 tonnes to 706,100 tonnes. If this 
trend were to continue, we would anticipate the total carbon emissions for the City to 
reduce to 622,000 tonnes and per capita emissions to reduce to 4.6 tonnes by the end 
of 2016.  
 
                                                           
14 Department of Energy and Climate Change, (2011), Carbon Dioxide Emissions within the scope of 
influence of local authorities 2005-2009, 
http://www.decc.gov.uk/en/content/cms/statistics/local_auth/co2_las/co2_las.aspx 

Page 379



 
 

 26 

However, it should be noted that these figures do not take into account the carbon 
emissions resulting from the production and transportation of the goods that were 
consumed by residents and businesses in the City. If these emissions are included in 
the figures, carbon emissions for the City of Cambridge increased over this period. 
 
While the initiatives introduced by Cambridge City Council may have had an impact on 
emissions from the City as a whole, it is difficult to identify the extent of this impact. It is 
likely that other factors, including the impact of the economic downturn and seasonal 
and yearly variations in temperature, have had a significant impact on energy and fuel 
consumption in the City of Cambridge since 2005 and therefore the level of carbon 
emissions. 
 
Domestic energy efficiency in Cambridge has also improved significantly during the 
period covered. There was an 11% reduction in average domestic gas consumption and 
a 9% reduction in average domestic electricity consumption in the City between 2005-
2010. This is equivalent to an average reduction in CO2   emissions per household of 
approximately 800 kg over 5 years. Despite a 5% increase in the total number of 
electricity and gas meters in Cambridge between 2005 and 2010, total domestic gas 
consumption in the City fell by 13% and total domestic electricity consumption fell by 
6%. This is equivalent to a total reduction in CO2  emissions of approximately 24,000 
tonnes over 5 years.  
 
Again, while the Council’s energy efficiency initiatives may have had an impact on levels 
of domestic energy consumption, it is difficult to identify what proportion of the reduction 
they are responsible for. It is likely that a combination of the economic downturn and 
seasonal and yearly temperature variations have had a significant impact on 
consumption. 
 
Performance Management 
 
The Council recognises that it will be important to monitor the delivery of the actions 
contained in the Action Plan. At an officer level, six-monthly update reports on progress 
against the key actions will be provided to the Council’s Environmental Strategy Group. 
At an elected Member level, annual reports on progress against the key actions will be 
made to the Executive Councillor at the Environment Scrutiny Committee of the Council.  
 
We will regularly monitor our energy and fuel use and report performance against the 
CO2 reduction target set by the Carbon Management Plan to the Environmental 
Strategy Group. We have published details of Greenhouse Gas emissions on an annual 
basis for a number of years. We will continue to publish this information on our website 
annually, along with performance against our CO2 reduction target. 
 
In addition to monitoring our CO2 emissions, during 2012 the Council will also be 
developing a system to monitor our water usage and waste production more effectively. 
 

Page 380



 
 

 27 

Regular reports will also be provided to the officers’ Environmental Strategy Group 
highlighting progress being made by individual carbon reduction projects in the Carbon 
Management Plan, using a Red/Amber/Green reporting system and in particular 
flagging up any projects with delivery issues/ concerns.  
Progress against individual projects and the programme as a whole will be reported to 
our Strategy and Resources Scrutiny Committee on an annual basis. 
 
 
Cambridge City Council 
October 2012 
 

Page 381



 
 

 28 

 
Appendix A – Action Plan 
 
No. Action Completion date Service Lead Officer 
Objective 1  - To reduce the Council’s CO2 emissions and manage the risks to its staff property and functions from climate change. 
Reducing CO2 emissions and addressing the causes of climate change 
1 Reduce the Council's carbon footprint through measures identified in the Carbon 

Management Plan, including:  
a) Installation of solar thermal technology in council properties 
b) Roll out of voltage optimisation technology across 10 council sites 
c) Installation of more efficient lighting in council buildings and car parks, including 
lighting controls, LED lighting, motion control sensors 
d) Installation of efficient heating, ventilation and air conditioning systems, including 
condensing boilers, optimum start controls, timers on boilers and heating sequencing. 
e) Improvements to the energy efficiency of fleet vehicles and implementing the 
findings of the route optimisation exercise for refuse vehicles  
f) Improvements to the Council's contract management processes to ensure that 
contractors deliver sustainability requirements of contracts  

2012/13-2015/16 a) Arts and 
Recreation/Estates 
and Facilities 
b) Corporate 
Strategy/Arts and 
Recreation 
c) Specialist 
Services/Estates 
and Facilities 
d) Estates and 
Facilities 
e) Refuse and 
Environment 
f) Debbie Quincey 

a) Ian Ross/Sam 
Griggs 

b) Clare Palferman 
and Sally 
Pidgeon/Ian Ross 

c) Sean Cleary (car 
parks)/Jim Stocker 
(Council buildings) 

d) Jim Stocker 
e) Dave Cox/Chloe 

Hipwood 
f) Debbie Quincey 

Managing climate change risks  
2 Through the Office Accommodation Strategy ensure that:  

a) temperatures in existing council buildings are controlled  
b) if Council staff are relocated to new office buildings, risks to staff from higher 
temperatures and flooding are mitigated as part of building design 

2012-2014 Human Resources/ 
Estates and 
Facilities/ 
Planning 

Paul Parry/Jim 
Stocker/Simon Bunn 

3 Explore opportunities for using developer contributions to install sustainable drainage 
measures in Council-owned open spaces; where such projects are mutually beneficial 
and increase the amenity or biodiversity value of the open space. 

Ongoing Planning/ Streets 
and Open Spaces 

Simon Bunn/Alistair 
Wilson 

4 Ensure that where possible sustainable drainage measures and permeable surfaces 
are installed as part of refurbishment of Council property or construction of any new 
buildings 

Ongoing Planning Simon Bunn 

5 Replace shrubs in City Council owned and managed open spaces with drought 
resistant species when they come to the end of their natural life 

Ongoing Streets and Open 
Spaces 

Alistair Wilson 

6 Explore opportunities to include maintenance of trees and other green infrastructure 
once developments have finished within the scope of planning obligations. 

Ongoing  Streets and Open 
Spaces 

Matthew Magrath 

7 Consider potential challenges to native wildlife associated with climate change as part 
of review of Nature Conservation Strategy and adjust related management plans for 

2016 Streets & Open 
Spaces 

Guy Belcher 

P
age 382



 
 

 29 

No. Action Completion date Service Lead Officer 
Local Nature Reserves and other city green spaces to be adjusted accordingly. 
 

8 Ensure that planting of trees and other urban greening measures are included as part 
of the refurbishment of Council property where appropriate. 

Ongoing Streets and Open 
Spaces 

Matthew Magrath 

Objective 2 - To set high standards and assist residents, businesses and organisations to reduce their carbon emissions 
and manage climate risks. 

 
Reducing CO2 emissions and addressing the causes of climate change 
9 Improve the energy efficiency of Council-owned homes and reduce the energy 

consumption of tenants through ongoing improvement work to:  
a) meet the Decent Homes Standard.  
b) increase the SAP rating of properties.  
c) deliver the Fuel Poverty Reduction Plan 

Ongoing - revised 
annual targets to 
be developed 
through Home 
Energy Strategy 

Estates and 
Facilities 

Sam Griggs 

10 Inform residents of the energy efficiency of properties through publishing Energy 
Performance Certificates for Council properties  

Ongoing - revised 
annual targets to 
be developed 
through Home 
Energy Strategy 

Estates and 
Facilities 

Sam Griggs 

11 Encourage and support private landlords, housing associations, homeowners, private 
tenants to improve the energy efficiency of properties by: 
a) identifying homes that would benefit from further insulation through the 
Heatseekers initiative  
b) increase take-up of the national increase take up of subsidies available through the 
Carbon Emissions Reduction Target (CERT) scheme for loft and cavity wall insulation 
by providing grant funding to cover the £150 contribution that residents would 
otherwise have to make. 
c) providing grants to landlords applying to the landlord accreditation scheme to bring 
properties up to D standard  
d) maximising opportunities available through the Green Deal 
e) producing guidance on making energy efficiency improvements to properties in 
conservation areas 
   

a) March 2013 
b) April-Dec 2012  
c) March 2013 
d) March 2013 
e) From Autumn 
2012 onwards 

Refuse and 
Environment 

a) Justin Smith 
b) Justin Smith 
c) Emma Barker 
d) Jo Dicks 
e) Justin Smith 

 

12 Conduct engagement, communications and awareness raising campaigns with 
residents businesses on:  
a) energy efficiency issues across all housing tenures  
b) recycling and waste reduction and prevention, through signposting businesses to 

b) 2013/14 
a), c) and d) 
Ongoing;  
 

a) Estates and 
Facilities/ 
Refuse and 
Environment  

a) Sam Griggs/Justin 
Smith  

b) Jen Robertson  
c) Clare Rankin 

P
age 383



 
 

 30 

No. Action Completion date Service Lead Officer 
advice and information and conducting door-knocking campaigns and events with 
assistance from volunteer Recycling Champions thereby increasing valuable face to 
face contact with residents 
c) cycling and walking opportunities 
 

b) Refuse and 
Environment  

c) Streets and 
Open Spaces 

 

13 Explore opportunities to further increase participation in recycling schemes (including 
incentive schemes and real-time IT systems in refuse vehicles) and implement 
appropriate systems in order to help meet our target of recycling 50-55% of our waste 
by 2015-16.   

2015/16 Refuse and 
Environment 

Jen Robertson/ 
Michael Parsons 

14 Explore opportunities to increase the types of material that can be recycled. 2014/15 Refuse and 
Environment 

Jen Robertson 

15 Setting high sustainability standards the design and construction of new 
developments through identifying opportunities in the development of the Cambridge 
Local Plan to ensure that: 
a) meets recognised sustainability standards, including at least Level 4 of the Code for 
Sustainable Homes for residential developments or BREEAM or Zero Carbon  
Buildings for non-residential developments  
b) further promotes waste minimisation and recycling, including the minimisation of 
construction waste  
c) meets at least the level 4 water efficiency standards of the Code for Sustainable 
Homes  
d) addresses high temperature, subsidence and high wind risks 

Spring 2014 Planning Emma Davies 

16 Ensure that all new affordable housing is constructed to at least Level 4 of the Code 
for Sustainable Homes  

Ongoing Strategic Housing Alan Carter 

17 Continuing to set high standards for renewable energy provision and actively 
engaging with developers to secure renewable energy as part of planning agreements 
for major new developments. 

Ongoing Planning Emma Davies 

18 Ensure that developments comply with climate change-related conditions of their 
planning consent or Section 106 agreements  

Ongoing Planning Patsy Dell 

19 Identify opportunities in the development of the Cambridge Local Plan to minimise 
traffic generation and promote public transport, cycling and walking  

Spring 2014 Planning Matthew Bowles 

20 Implement a four year programme of improvements to the quality of existing bus 
shelters and install new bus shelters 

2014/15 Planning Andrew Preston 

P
age 384



 
 

 31 

No. Action Completion date Service Lead Officer 
21 Explore options for installing new technology in Council car parks which will deliver 

climate change benefits, including:  
a) installing ticket-less and cash-less systems in car parks, which will reduce 
emissions from queuing cars  
b) encouraging the take-up of  charging points for electric vehicles in Council car 
parks 
c) using specialist mechanical cleaning techniques in car parks, which will reduce the 
build up of carbon dust 

2013/14 Specialist Services Paul Necus 

22 Explore the potential for emissions-based charging for non-season ticket holders in 
the Grand Arcade car park 

2014/15 Specialist Services Paul Necus 

23 Explore opportunities to: 
a) negotiate "green lease" clauses into standard leases with new short-term 

tenants of Council-owned offices, industrial and retail premises.  
b) negotiate variations to existing leases and/or use a model form of 

Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) between the landlord and tenant.  
The “green lease” clauses and MoU would set out additional provisions where the 
landlord and tenant undertake specific responsibilities/obligations relating to the 
sustainable operation of property, which could include provisions on energy efficiency, 
reducing water consumption, recycling and waste reduction. 

Ongoing Property Services Philip Doggett 

Managing climate change risks 
24 Consult on the inclusion of a specific policy on climate change adaptation measures in 

the revised Local Plan, including:  
• maximising opportunities for natural ventilation strategies through innovative 

building design and construction. 
• reducing the impacts of higher temperatures through the use of ‘cool’ building 

materials. 
• reducing flood risk and aiding urban cooling through water sensitive urban design 

and landscaping features.  
• Considering setting a tree canopy cover requirement for new developments. 
• Aiding urban cooling by protecting, enhancing and expanding green spaces. 

April 2013 Planning Policy  Sara Saunders 

25 Encourage private developers to install sustainable drainage measures and 
permeable surfaces as part of new developments  

Ongoing Planning Simon Bunn 

26 Provide advice to residents, businesses and other organisations on how tree planting 
can help the City adapt to a changing climate 

Ongoing  Streets and Open 
Spaces 

Matthew Macgrath 

Objective 3 - To work in partnership with, influence and learn from other organisations to address the causes and effects of climate change 

P
age 385



 
 

 32 

No. Action Completion date Service Lead Officer 
Reducing CO2 emissions and addressing the causes of climate change  
27 Build the capacity of voluntary and community groups to undertake activities which 

address climate change and sustainability issues, for example through: 
a) providing an annual Sustainable City Grants programme 
b) providing cycling and walking promotion grants 
c) supporting and facilitating bids for external funding 

Ongoing a) and c) 
Community 
Development/ 
Corporate 
Strategy 

b) Streets and 
Open Spaces 

a) and c) Jackie 
Hanson/Helen 
Brookes 

b) Clare Rankin 

28 Working with central Government, neighbouring local authorities, the voluntary sector, 
businesses and communities through the Cambridgeshire Renewables Infrastructure 
Framework (CRIF) to deliver low carbon infrastructure. This will include exploring and 
exploiting innovative funding arrangements, potentially including the Carbon Offset 
Fund/Community Energy Fund, Community Infrastructure Levy and Green Bank. 

2016 Planning/Corporate 
Strategy 

Emma Davies/Andrew 
Limb 

29 Work with partner organisations including the University of Cambridge, Anglia Ruskin 
University and the private sector to develop options for a commercially viable district 
heating scheme 

2012/13 Environment 
Department 

Simon Payne/Emma 
Davies 

30 Work with neighbouring authorities and other stakeholders to explore the potential for 
low carbon living in Cambridgeshire through the Low Carbon Hub 

2016 Corporate Strategy Andrew Limb 

31 Work with the University of Cambridge, the private sector and other stakeholders in 
the Cambridge Retrofit project to explore a model for financing and delivering energy 
efficiency improvements to existing properties in Cambridge over the next 30 years 

2013 Refuse and 
Environment 

Jo Dicks 

32 Work with partners to provide a new joint use Community Centre at Clay Farm to 
serve the Southern Fringe development. The Centre will provide community room, a 
health centre and library facilities and will be built to BREEAM excellent standards as 
a minimum. 

2015 Corporate project 
lead by Strategic 
Housing 

Alan Carter 

33 Ensure that the sale of City Council land at Clay Farm includes conditions that any 
development on the site should be of quality design and a sustainability exemplar. 
This will be achieved through a Development Agreement, with the City Council 
providing 50% Affordable Housing. 

2012 Corporate project 
lead by Strategic 
Housing 

Alan Carter/Sabrina 
Walston 
 

34 Explore the potential for the delivery of exemplar sustainable design and construction 
schemes as part of any future disposals of City Council land, balancing this against 
other objectives for our land.   

Ongoing as land 
disposals come up 
for consideration 

Property Services Head of Property 

35 Explore with partner organisations the potential for procuring a joint energy contract 
with associated sustainability criteria 

2012/13 Estates and 
Facilities/ 
Procurement 

Jim Stocker/Debbie 
Quincey 

36 Continue to support the development of measures which deliver carbon reductions as 
part of the Cambridge Area Transport Strategy 

2013 Planning Matthew Bowles 

P
age 386



 
 

 33 

No. Action Completion date Service Lead Officer 
37 Work jointly with the County Council to implement an agreed programme of 

improvements to cycling facilities and infrastructure in Cambridge, including cycling 
parking and new routes. 

2014 Planning Clare Rankin 

38 Work with bus operators and partners to support improvements to local bus services, 
including through targeted subsidies and higher emissions standards 

Rolling 
improvements 
across the 
timescale of the 
strategy 

Planning Matthew Bowles 

39 Work with the County Council to explore opportunities to create on-street spaces for 
car clubs in Cambridge 

Ongoing Planning Matthew Bowles 

Managing climate change risks 
40 Work with partners in the Cambridgeshire Flood Risk management partnership to 

manage climate change-related flood risks 
Ongoing Planning Simon Bunn 

41 Contribute to County-wide planning advice on minimising surface water flood risk and 
incorporate this into planning policy 

Spring 2014 Planning Simon Bunn 

42 Work with members of the Cambridgeshire Resilience Forum to ensure that plans are 
in place to adapt to climate change risks (including severe weather, increased 
temperatures and flooding) 

Ongoing Human Resources Paul Parry 

43 Working with neighbouring authorities, landowners and wildlife organisations to 
protect, enhance and restore a network of healthy wildlife habitats. This will involve  
appropriate land management, advice to outside groups and maximising 
improvements through the planning process. 

Ongoing Streets and Open 
Spaces 

Guy Belcher 

44 Explore the capacity of voluntary and community group to undertake climate change 
adaptation projects with respect to tree planting 

Ongoing Streets and Open 
Spaces 

Matthew Macgrath 

 
 

P
age 387



Page 388

This page is intentionally left blank



No. Respondent Response Cambridge City Council comments

1 Residents' Association Our Committee welcomes this document and fully supports its content.  Welcomed

2 Cambridge Carbon 
Footprint

While the excellent Carbon Management Plan (CMP) devoted to reducing 
carbon emissions from the council's property and functions is very 
detailed, with attention to costs, timescale and sources of funding, there 
is no corresponding document for the rest of the Climate Change 
Strategy and Action Plan (CCSAP), which means: (a) actions (apart from 
those in the CMP) are not sufficiently fleshed out and properly costed; (b) 
important areas of the carbon footprint have been omitted, with no actions 
at all.

a) The Council recognises that there is a difference in the level of detail 
included in the Climate Change Strategy Action Plan (CCSAP) and the 
Carbon Management Plan (CMP). The CCSAP is intended to be a high-
level, cross-cutting document setting out the Council's approach to 
addressing the causes and affects of climate change. As such, it brings 
together a range of actions that will be taken by different Council services 
over the lifetime of the Strategy. Further detail on these actions can be 
found in the seven Portfolio Plans and in relevant strategies and action 
plans produced by individual services. For example, further detail on 
many of the planning-related actions included in the CCSAP can be found 
in the Issues and Options report for the developing Local Plan. In 
contrast, the CMP is intended to provide a more focussed plan to deliver 
the Council's emissions reduction target. As such, it contains details of 
specific capital projects that the Council will deliver by 2016. 
b) See response to comment 19 below.

3 Cambridge Carbon 
Footprint

On page 15, the bullet point on Cambridge Carbon Footprint under 
"Working with local voluntary and community groups" should read 
"including 'Open Eco Homes', 'Low Carbon Living' events and 'Climate-
friendly Homes'. 

Amendments made

4 Individual resident Why has it taken so long for the Council to adopt a strategy on this, way 
behind other areas and organisations?

This is the City Council's second Climate Change Strategy and Action 
Plan. The first Climate Strategy and Action Plan was adopted in 2008 and 
covered a four-year period.

5 Director, Centre for 
Climate Change Mitigation 
Research, University of 
Cambridge

It is promising to see that lead officers have been identified in the Action 
Plan

Welcomed

6 Energy Manager, 
Addenbrooke's Hospital

I would like to see references to the other departments in CCC that have 
responsibility and contributions to the plan.

As part of the development of the CCSAP and the CMP all services in the 
City Council have been asked to identify actions and projects that would 
contribute to the objectives of the Strategy. As a result, the actions 
included in the CCSAP and CMP cover all the main services that have 
the potential to impact on climate change. 

7 Transition Cambridge The council should showcase more of its achievements, as an example 
for residents, partner organisations and other local authorities.

The Climate Change Strategy sets out some of the Council's key 
achievements over the past 5 years. These included the development of 
a number of exemplar energy efficiency, water efficiency and renewable 
energy schemes, including the Richard Newcombe Court sheltered 
housing scheme and the 'Retrofit for the Future' project in Byron Square. 
By signing up to the Climate Local commitment the Council has 
committed to sharing learning with authorities and key projects will be 
highlighted on the LGA website to this end. Meetings have been held with 
staff at the University of Cambridge and Addenbrooke's Hospital to share 
learning from our respective Carbon Management Plans and the 
communications plan for the City Council's CMP will include a focus on 
sharing the learning from successful carbon reduction projects.

Appendix B - Climate Change Strategy 2012-2016 Consultation

Summary of Consultation Responses

General comments

Providing leadership on Climate Change issues

P
age 389



8 Director, Centre for 
Climate Change Mitigation 
Research, University of 
Cambridge

It sounds like the Carbon Management Plan is restricted to reducing 
emissions from the government estate. I would like to see the Council 
drive change more broadly

The City Council's Carbon Management Plan focuses on emissions from 
the Council's estate and operations as this is where we can have greatest 
direct impact. The focus of our work with residents and businesses is on 
setting and enforcing high standards where appropriate (e.g. through 
planning policy and conditions) and providing a range of support to assist 
them to reduce their emissions. However, we have shared learning from 
the development of our Carbon Management Plan with Addenbrooke's 
Hospital and the University of Cambridge. We will be sharing learning 
with other local authorities joining the Climate Local network and we are 
willing to share the learning from our projects with non-public sector 
partners. 

9 Transition Cambridge The Strategy needs to report on failures as well as successes. The Strategy identifies in the 'lessons learnt' section elements of the 
previous Strategy that went less well and the steps that the Council is 
taking in response, including the reasons why the Council did not meet 
the target for reducing emissions from the Council's operations and 
estate and the areas of our energy usage and carbon emissions data and 
monitoring that we need to improve. 

10 Cambridge Carbon 
Footprint

Action 31 is welcome: an exploration of the retrofit of existing properties, 
and its funding.  With few opportunities to set and enforce high standards, 
reducing carbon emission from existing buildings, we’d like to see those 
available included in this CCSAP, such as:  Consequential improvements 
policy, as in Option 50 of the 2031 Local Draft Plan:  When work on 
existing properties (like an extension) is undertaken, require additional 
measures to improve the building’s energy efficiency, compensating for 
the extra heat-loss from the extension. Lower the normal 1,000m2 
threshold of Part L of Building Regulations for this in Cambridge.  In spite 
of the government shelving a similar scheme recently, we support the 
City Council providing local leadership on this.

The City Council is exploring the potential of developing a planning policy 
that would require residents and developers to implement additional cost 
effective measures to improve energy efficiency (for example loft or cavity 
wall insulation) when other improvements are made to an existing 
building. Application of such a policy would need to take account of: the 
nature of the building in question; what would be an appropriate measure 
to implement; whether the building is a heritage asset; and whether there 
are any opportunities to fund such improvements through programmes 
such as the Green Deal.  

11 Cambridge Friends of the 
Earth

More compulsion to comply with legislation and guidelines would have a 
greater and faster impact on your emissions targets. This could possibly 
be achieved by stronger planning conditions for new developments 

As outlined in Action 15 in the CCSAP, as part of the Local Plan Review 
the City Council is looking to set high construction standards for new 
developments linked to the Code for Sustainable Homes, BREEAM and 
levels of carbon emissions. If these policies are adopted in the Local 
Plan, they will be secured through the use of planning conditions on new 
developments.  

12 Residents' Association Only allow paving of parts of gardens under certain circumstances. National planning legislation already requires the use of permeable 
materials when providing hard standings where the surface to be covered 
is over 5 metres squared.  The City Council is also considering 
developing a new planning policy to further highlight the need for 
permeable materials, as well as considering the impact of paving over 
front gardens on visual amenity and biodiversity. 

13 Energy Manager, 
Addenbrooke's Hospital

I would like references made by the CCC regarding enforcement of 
legislation designed to promote Carbon saving. If CCC is committed to 
Climate change reduction it must ensure it is using its regulatory powers 
to ensure others are complying.

As a district Council, the primary tool available to the City Council to 
promote carbon reduction is through setting high standards for 
development through planning policy and securing these through 
negotiation of planning conditions with developers. The other licensing 
and regulatory powers available to the City Council offer limited scope for 
enforcing carbon reduction.

Planning and growth

P
age 390



14 Cambridge Close the Door It would be very helpful if the department made it a rule when considering 
retail planning applications to insist on doors that function properly as 
doors, appropriate to the number of people using of the space, rather 
than as optional open spaces during times when energy is being used for 
heating or cooling inside. Council guidelines for a door policy for 
businesses operating in the city to ensure doors are closed whenever 
outside temperatures vary from the CIBSE range for healthy working, and 
energy is being used for heating or aircon inside, would be extremely 
useful in achieving significant and measurable energy savings/carbon 
reduction. Guidelines for maintaining the CIBSE range of temperatures 
inside the store would also assist this carbon reduction measure.

To an extent this issue could be addressed by planning policy if, as part 
of the review of the Local Plan, the Council were to develop a policy 
requiring certain levels of carbon reduction from new non residential 
development. If the Council chose to set the levels of reduction in line 
with the proposed changes to Building Regulations, developers of retail 
developments would need to make their buildings more energy efficient 
utilising the fabric first approach, which will include the specification of 
doors with greater levels of air tightness. The Council could also explore 
opportunities to include encouraging sustainable behaviours in building 
occupants as we develop our new sustainable development/sustainable 
construction policy, although it would be difficult to use planning policy to 
ensure that retailers close doors when the temperatures are colder 
outside.

15 Individual resident Halt the development of unaffordable high rise buildings in order to 
assess their carbon emissions and toll on resources and the 
infrastructure.   

The City Council will be developing a tall buildings policy and a number of 
options were put forward for consideration in the Local Plan Review 
Issues and Options Report, ranging from setting a limit on the height of 
buildings in the City, to looking to whether there are certain parts of the 
City where tall buildings could be considered more acceptable. 

16 Individual resident Seek to change law so that opportunities for insulation, drainage and 
energy efficiency are enabled at planning stage.

It is not necessary for a change in legislation to permit these measures. 
As part of the current Local Plan Review, options are being considered to 
include higher standards of energy efficiency and sustainable drainage in 
new developments. If these policies were adopted, they would be secured 
through the use of planning conditions on new developments. 

17 Cambridge Carbon 
Footprint

We would like to see code 5 adopted as a minimum development 
requirement for housing in the Carbon Management Plan and the Local 
Plan. 

The Local Plan Review Issues and Options report includes an option to 
allow for the development of a policy requiring a minimum level of the 
Code for Sustainable Homes (at least Level 4). Consideration could also 
be given to setting much higher standards for specific scales and types of 
development, as has been the case with the North West Cambridge Area 
Action Plan. Flexibility could be written into the policy to enable the 
standards set to rise should more ambitious national standards be 
adopted in the future through the government’s Zero Carbon Policy.

18 Energy Manager, 
Addenbrooke's Hospital 

Why does the Council not have a 'Merton rule' policy?  What do planning 
officers insist on in terms of climate change? 

The Council currently has a 'Merton rule' of requiring all major new 
development to meet at least 10% of their energy requirements through 
the use of renewable energy. We have increased these requirements for 
a number of flagship developments, including the station area 
redevelopment. The Local Plan Review Issues and Options report 
identifies a range of options for standards on renewable energy provision 
in new developments.

19 Cambridge Carbon 
Footprint

We would like feedback to the public on the need for enforcement and 
whether this enforcement is successful.  Enforcement also needs to be 
adequately funded.  When enforcement isn’t appropriate, persuasive and 
supportive approaches are needed, like:  engaging people with the global 
threat of climate change and the need for massive reductions in carbon 
emissions;  realising we can help solve this together;  fostering creativity 
in devising low-carbon solutions;  supporting their implementation;  
helping build communities where this is the norm

The main area where the Council has enforcement powers is in relation 
to planning agreements. The Council is securing sustainability in new 
developments, such as those on the fringe of the City, through the use of 
legal agreements requiring developer funding for this activity. The Council 
recognises the importance of monitoring and enforcing delivery of these 
agreements and will report on this publicly through the Joint Development 
Control Committee. Action 18 in the CCS Action Plan states that the 
Council will 'Ensure that developments comply with climate change-
related conditions of their planning consent or Section 106 agreements'. 

Waste and recycling

P
age 391



20 Cambridge Woodworks The council should source separate waste at all locations where it is 
generated, and not co-mingle it all which is capital intensive, carbon 
intensive and generates little employment.  Source separation can 
achieve up to 100% landfill diversion, is less capital intensive, creates 
more jobs and can actually generate income for the council in the long 
run.  It will take years to change the way we have learnt to do things, but 
as it seems we have a long period of austerity to look forward to it might 
be worth considering.  There are plenty of case studies around the world 
showing the benefits of source separation.

In the interest of running both a comprehensive and efficient kerbside 
service, recycling from households is commingled but we are able to 
collect separated materials at 23 public recycling points around the city.  
The Council is committed to making ongoing improvements to its 
recycling service with the aim of increasing rates of household recycling, 
but there are currently no plans for kerbside recycling to be separated at 
source. The City Council's own rubbish collection is also a combination of 
commingled (general office recycling) and segregated, for example, the 
waste dealt with via our depot at Mill Road.  

21 Transition Cambridge Could CCC work with supermarkets to reduce waste from packaging 
coming into the city?  CCC has no regulatory power but it could still play a 
part in a partnership· Business to business recycling service should be 
more widely promoted

Current legislation requires supermarkets to minimise their packaging 
waste, but the City Council has no regulatory power in relation to 
supermarkets and their waste. Decisions about the packaging that 
supermarkets and other retailers use are usually made at a national 
rather than local level, so it is at the national level that local government 
representative bodies and other important players are working with 
retailers on packaging.  

22 Transition Cambridge Recycling targets should be set at % or kg per capita of population. The Council's current target is for 50-55% of total household waste to be 
reused, recycled or composted by 2015, which is consistent with the 
County-wide target set in the 2007/8 Joint Municipal Waste Management 
Strategy. This target is consistent with the approach adopted under the 
former National Indicator 192 and therefore allows us to compare our 
performance with other local authorities that continue to collect this 
information. 23 Residents' Association Promote reduction of consumption and reusing resources rather than 

focusing on recycling.  Provide public drinking water taps to reduce 
reliance on plastic bottles.

The City Council has run campaigns in the past to provide reusable water 
bottles for students. The Council also supports the  national Go Real 
Campaign for washable nappies and holds regular "Give and Take" 
events around the City to encourage donation and reuse of unwanted 
household items. The Council is also a member of the regional waste 
partnership, RECAP, which runs campaigns to educate people about 
preventing food waste and reusing materials. However, the City Council 
recognises that there is scope for further work to promote waste 
prevention.

24 Transition Cambridge The Strategy needs to include more of a focus on promoting behaviour 
change. This includes spearheading external campaigns (e.g. 
encouraging residents to reduce the amount of waste going to landfill 
through reuse as well as recycling, encouraging residents to think about 
travel etc) and internal communications and staff awareness initiatives. 
There are opportunities for joint campaigns with voluntary and community 
groups, which could help maximise their impact.

While the Strategy does not explicitly mention behaviour change, the 
Action Plan includes a number of communication and engagement 
actions, designed to encourage residents to change their behaviour, 
including campaigns to promote recycling, take up of energy efficiency 
advice and support, and walking and cycling opportunities. Our recycling 
campaigns are conducted jointly with volunteer Recycling Champions, but 
we would welcome opportunities to work with voluntary groups to promote 
other climate change messages. As part of the implementation of the 
CMP, the Council is currently developing an internal communications and 
staff awareness plan.

25 Cambridge Carbon 
Footprint

In general in this document there is an imbalance in the coverage given 
to different areas of the footprint, with most of the attention given to 
energy efficiency in buildings, followed by some attention to transport and 
waste, with almost no attention paid to other areas of the footprint. In the 
Carbon Trust's report "The carbon emissions generated in all we 
consume", there is a chart on page one giving the split of all emissions by 
high-level consumer need, and this shows that recreation and leisure is 
by far the highest category.  

The Strategy takes as a starting point the recommendations made by the 
Committee on Climate Change, the Government's independent advisory 
body on climate change issues, on the role of local authorities. The 
Committee recommended that local authorities should focus their efforts 
on the following elements of the carbon footprint: energy efficiency 
measures in domestic and non-domestic buildings; promoting sustainable 
transport and concentrating new development in existing settlements with 
good public transport links; and waste management initiatives. 

Behaviour change, food and consumption

P
age 392



26 Cambridge Carbon 
Footprint

The issue of food consumption and food security is not mentioned in the 
strategy - this is something that the Council should be collaborating with 
other organisations on. While encouraging people to understand their 
food footprints and the contribution their food choices make to climate 
change is part of climate change mitigation, focusing on the issue of food 
security and the importance of increasing the proportion of food produced 
locally is a necessary part of climate change adaptation, as a changing 
climate produces food shortages and large price increases. Sourcing 
food locally and seasonally should be part of both mitigation and 
adaptation strategies.

27 Cambridge Carbon 
Footprint

The Council could explore the possibility of working with local and 
regional organisations (e.g. Food and Climate Research Network) looking 
at reducing food footprints. Cambridge Carbon Footprint would be very 
interested in a collaborative partnership along these lines (following the 
model of the Home Energy Liaison Group) and is keen to organise a food 
conference in 2013.

28 Transition Cambridge Food sustainability needs to be included in the remit of either CCC or 
County – ownership/responsibility needs to be taken by an organisation 
with authority to do something

29 Cambridge Carbon 
Footprint

The wording of the second objective should be changed to, "To set high 
standards for residents, businesses and organisations to reduce their 
carbon emissions in all areas of their footprint, and manage climate 
risks", to ensure that essential areas such as food and general 
consumption are covered. (Please note that, according to the Carbon 
Trust, the average food footprint makes up 20% of an individual's total).

30 Cambridge Carbon 
Footprint

Action 12 (d) should be lengthened to "wider sustainability issues such as 
the importance of understanding the contribution made to individual 
footprints by food, drink and general consumption, including recreation 
and leisure".  

31 Transition Cambridge Sustainable City Grant objectives should include an objective on food 
production and community gardens, as current objectives make it difficult 
for a group to show a strong link to their project

We will consider whether the objectives for Sustainable City Grants 
should be expanded to include sustainable food production and 
promotion.

32 Transition Cambridge and 
a Residents' Association

The Council's own tree planting planting should include fruit and nut 
trees, and trees for fuel (coppicing). These should be accessible to all 
residents.

The Council's forthcoming Arboricultural Strategy will include a focus on 
tree planting on Council property.  However, in the context of climate 
change adaptation, it is unlikely that the Arboricultural Strategy will deal 
directly with planting trees in order to address food and fuel security 
issues at this stage. Whilst fruit trees will play a role, we would plan to 
adopt a 'right tree right place' approach to urban greening with a focus on 
encouraging large species trees which are shown to play a proportionally 
greater role in mitigating the effects of climate change. Indirectly 
however, we plan to be encouraging new community orchards and the 
recycling of all arisings produced as a result of all tree works within the 
city. 

For the reasons outlined in our response to comments the preceding four 
comments, Objective 2 and Action 12 have not been amended to include 
other aspects of the carbon footprint. However, the City Council would 
welcome the chance to discuss opportunities for joint working with 
interested voluntary groups on these issues.

Consequently the actions included in the Strategy and Action Plan focus 
primarily on these aspects of the carbon footprint. However, the Council 
does currently engage in activities to promote more sustainable food 
sources, such as providing allotments and supporting fairtrade products, 
and is working with residents and partner organisations to reduce the 
level of waste produced in the City (see responses to comments 23 and 
33 for further details). The City Council would welcome the chance to 
discuss opportunities for joint working with CCF and Transitions Cambridge. 

P
age 393



33 Transition Cambridge The City Council should explore opportunities for a city farm and 
opportunities to provide more allotments

The City Council's Community Services Committee considered a 
proposal to set up a city farm project at Cherry Hinton Hall, but a 
feasibility study conducted in April 2011 concluded that a city farm at that 
location would not be feasible.  The Council is however supportive of the 
concept of a city farm in Cambridge, and is willing to consider alternative 
sites that may be suggested by local residents.  

The City Council currently manages allotments on 8 of the 22 allotment 
sites in the city; the remainder are managed by allotment societies.  The 
Council is seeking to establish a further 50 allotment plots this year on 
newly converted land and at an existing allotment site.  There are no 
further areas of land identified for new allotments within the city (outside 
of the growth sites).  Given the restrictions on suitable space for new 
allotment sites, the Council's strategy has been to create starter plots, i.e. 
reducing a full size plot into halves, quarters and eighths, thereby 
increasing the number of plots but not the number of 'allotments'.

34 Transition Cambridge Peak oil and energy price rises need to be considered alongside climate 
change issues.  These come under risk management, but the strategy 
could make this more explicit

A reference to the potential for a peak in global oil production and the 
likely impact of this on energy prices has been added to the section on 'a 
sustainable economy' on page 13 of the Strategy.

35 Cambridge Carbon 
Footprint

Action 27 We consider that there is a need for core funding for voluntary 
and community groups in order to ensure they have sufficient capacity to 
continue to "undertake activities which address climate change and 
sustainability issues". While annual Sustainable City project funding is 
very welcome, it cannot replace core funding, especially at a time when 
external funding is becoming increasingly difficult to obtain. Voluntary 
organisations with volunteers are often seen as "trusted communicators" 
and can complement the Council's activities.

The City Council values the contribution that local voluntary and 
community organisations make to addressing climate change. It provides 
support for such groups through its Sustainable City Grants.  Following a 
review of the Sustainable City Grants programme in 2011, the Council 
decided to: combine two separate elements (core funding and projects) of 
the Grants into a single pot; focus grants on defined projects that will 
deliver defined objectives aligned to the Council's environmental 
objectives; encourage organisations to reduce dependency on core 
funding from the City Council; and signpost organisations to alternative 
sources of funding aimed at helping them adapt to a tougher financial 
climate, including the Government's £100m Transitions Fund. However, 
although the Council no longer provides core funding, projects can be 
costed to include all relevant overheads within a full cost recovery budget, 
provide this can be evidenced.

36 Transition Cambridge The Council needs to provide space for community groups such as 
Cambridge Carbon Footprint and Transition Cambridge to base 
themselves, store equipment, hold meetings etc.  Groups are mainly run 
by volunteers so not short of people, enthusiasm or ideas, but are 
definitely hampered by lack of storage space and a large place to hold 
meetings and events that doesn’t cost too much to hire

The Council recognises that availability of space is a general issue for 
many voluntary and community groups in the City. The Council's 
community facilities have a range of hire charges including a lower rate to 
community groups. However, City Council community facilities are also 
there to further other community development objectives, focussing on 
localised activity. The space is in high demand and contributions to the 
costs of managing the facilities have to be made, so we are unable to 
give free use to voluntary groups. 

37 Cambridge Carbon 
Footprint

The Council should support businesses by:
a) consider setting up a group for businesses similar to HELG (Home 
Energy Liaison Group)
b) encourage sign up to existing sustainability accreditation schemes. 
c) set up sustainable tourism awards for city businesses. 
d) promoting the savings the Council has made to other businesses.

The City Council has supported the Climate Change Charter and the 
associated website, which has provided an online forum for businesses to 
share ideas and learning on carbon reduction and sustainability 
measures. It is currently exploring other opportunities to provide support 
to businesses on climate change issues (e.g. a seminar on sustainability 
for tourism businesses as part of a wider series of events), but it is 
important that these do not duplicate the support provided by other 
agencies.   

Working with voluntary sector groups

Working with businesses

P
age 394



38 Cambridge Carbon 
Footprint

We are particularly pleased to see that action 23 talks about 'green lease' 
clauses, and would like to see this fleshed out more, for example with 
awareness-raising campaigns.

Further detail has been added to action 23 to make it clear which types of 
leases the Council will focus on and the types of provisions that could be 
included in "green lease" clauses of MoUs. As the action relates to 
properties that the Council owns and leases to commercial tenants, the 
intention is to negotiate agreements directly with existing and prospective 
tenants, rather than conducting an awareness-raising campaign. 
However, if this initiative proves successful, the Council will share the 
learning with other Councils and interested organisations. 

39 Individual resident Suggestions for education campaign on household water use, and 
working with water companies.  

The Council works closely with Cambridge Water, the local water 
company. Cambridge Water gives away a range of products that can help 
residents to reduce their water consumption and provides advice on its 
website on how to calculate your water consumption, practical steps to 
save water in the home and the garden, and the benefits of installing grey-
water recycling and rainwater harvesting systems. The Council is 
considering signposting residents to these messages.

40 Individual resident The growth of city is putting too much pressure on existing water 
resources.  

The Council recognises that water suppliues are finite and Cambridge is 
an area of severe water stress. The Council currently addresses levels of 
water consumption from new housing developments through requesting 
higher levels of sustainability under the Code for Sustainable Homes. The 
local plan review may potentially go further in these requirements. The 
Local Plan Review Issues and Options report sets out three options to 
limit the impact of new development on water resources, each of which 
entails different levels of cost and requires different levels of technology 
to be used: 
1) Requiring all new developments to be 'water neutral'
2) Requiring that all new developments be designed to achieve a 
maximum water consumption of 80 litres per head per day, in
line with Code for Sustainable Homes level 5 or 6.
3) Requiring that all new developments be designed to achieve a 
maximum water consumption of 105 litres per head per day in
line with Code for Sustainable Homes level 3 or 4.

41 Individual resident The Council should promote more green roofs and rainwater harvesting. The council has installed rainwater harvesting systems in some public 
toilets in the City. The Local Plan Review Issues and Options Report 
includes an option for the development of a green roof policy for 
developments in Cambridge. If the 'water neutral' policy option for new 
developments outlined in response to the preceding comment were 
adopted, rainwater harvesting and grey water recycling would be need to 
be included in new developments to achieve it.

42 Transition Cambridge The City Council needs to develop a water strategy, potentially in 
partnership with Cambridge Water. In addition to a focus on water 
efficiency in new development, it should also focus on older properties.

The Council does not currently have plans to develop a water strategy in 
partnership with Cambridge Water and other organisation organisations. 
However, the Local Plan Issues and Options report does include an 
option to develop a comprehensive water management policy, which 
could require new developments to include a range of measures to 
reduce flood risk and enhance biodiversity.

43 Individual resident I suggest that the strategy should be more closely integrated with 
biodiversity.  

The Strategy sets out the actions that the Council has taken to date to 
protect biodiversity and help the natural environment to adapt to the 
impacts of climate change. The CCSAP includes a number of actions 
relating to increasing the tree canopy in the City, reviewing its Nature 
Conservation Strategy, adjusting management plans for Local Nature 
Reserves to manage risks associated with climate change, and working 
with partners to restore a network of healthy habitats.

Trees and biodiversity

Water management and efficiency

P
age 395



44 Transition Cambridge The City Council should provide more tree planting space for 
communities.

The Council has commissioned an independent report to look at levels of 
canopy cover across the city on both public and private land. We plan to 
prioritise those areas where cover is low with the overall aim to raise 
levels of tree cover in the city as a whole. We plan to achieve this through 
a number of strategies, including: statutory tree protection (TPO) of 
suitable trees; reducing inappropriate tree removals through encouraging 
and enforcing (where appropriate) good management practices; 
promoting and encouraging new planting and; the promotion of the 
multiple benefits trees bring to the urban environment.

45 Residents' Association Protect trees in gardens - only allow them to be removed under certain 
circumstances, and require they be replaced.  Provide advice on suitable 
trees for gardens with climate change in mind.

The City Council plans to adopt three strategies to influencing the 
removal of trees on private property. By promoting the multiple benefits 
that trees bring to the urban environment; by protecting appropriate trees 
with Tree Preservation Orders; and by reducing removals through 
encouraging and enforcing where appropriate good tree management 
practices. 

46 Cambridge Friends of the 
Earth

Compel landlords to comply with voluntary Landlord Accreditation 
Scheme and its energy efficiency obligations - or make it compulsory.    

The Council has developed a voluntary landlord accreditation scheme (as 
outlined on page 16 of the Strategy). The Council has provided grants to 
private landlords joining the scheme to carry out energy efficiency 
improvements to bring the property up to a minimum standard. The 
Council intends to continue the scheme and the financial support in future 
(as referenced in Action 11c in the Action Plan). However, national 
legislation does not currently allow local authorities to make such 
accreditation schemes mandatory. Legislation allows local authorities to 
license private landlords of Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs), but 
under this legislation licensing requirements can include the provision of 
decent heating, but not energy efficiency or other carbon reduction 
measures.

47 Energy Manager, 
Addenbrooke's Hospital

Insist that private landlords providing a service to CCC for 
accommodation or office space have their premises evaluated for carbon 
reduction measures and engage on a time-limited program of change.

Last year Cambridge City Council rented 37 properties from private 
sector landlords to meet the needs of City Council clients. The City 
Council is open to working with private landlords that it rents properties 
from to identify how the emissions from properties could be reduced. 
However, this would need to be set against the existing difficulties of 
securing enough privately rented properties for City Council clients. In 
order to prevent landlords from being further discouraged from renting 
properties to the Council, we would need to offer a supportive approach 
to landlords, including advice, information and funding and the timescales 
for any change would need to be reasonable.

48 Cambridge Carbon 
Footprint

The standards need to extend to cover all areas of our footprint, not just 
emissions from electricity, heating and transport.  For example food and 
our other purchases.  According to the Carbon Trust, the average food 
footprint makes up 20% of an individual's total. 
www.carbontrust.com/news/2012/03/food-the-carbon-story .  These 
emissions are harder to measure, but need acknowledging in the 
CCSAP, with an Action explore how to include them better in the future. 

The rationale for focussing our efforts on reducing emissions associated 
with energy efficiency, transport and waste is outlined above. The Council 
has limited scope for setting and enforcing standards relating to food 
consumption and other aspects of the carbon footprint within existing 
legislation. However, as outlined above the Council would welcome a 
discussion with CCF of the opportunities for joint work on these issues. 

49 Residents' Association Forbid use of outdoor heating for cafes and other businesses.  Forbid 
shops and offices to have doors open to street when heating is on in the 
building. 

Setting standards and enforcing policies, legislation and regulations

The City Council has no regulatory powers, either as a licensing authority 
or planning authority, in relation to outdoor heating for cafes and other 
businesses. As the licensing authority, the City Council has a duty to 

P
age 396



50 Cambridge Close the Door Council guidelines for a door policy for businesses operating in the city to 
ensure doors are closed whenever outside temperatures vary from the 
CIBSE range for healthy working, and energy is being used for heating or 
aircon inside, would be extremely useful in achieving significant and 
measurable energy savings/carbon reduction. Guidelines for maintaining 
the CIBSE range of temperatures inside the store would also assist this 
carbon reduction measure.

51 Cambridge Close the Door It would be very helpful if the department made it a rule when considering 
retail planning applications to insist on doors that function properly as 
doors, appropriate to the number of people using of the space, rather 
than as optional open spaces during times when energy is being used for 
heating or cooling inside. Council guidelines for a door policy for 
businesses operating in the city to ensure doors are closed whenever 
outside temperatures vary from the CIBSE range for healthy working, and 
energy is being used for heating or aircon inside, would be extremely 
useful in achieving significant and measurable energy savings/carbon 
reduction. Guidelines for maintaining the CIBSE range of temperatures 
inside the store would also assist this carbon reduction measure.

This issue could be addressed in future to an extent through the City 
Council's planning policies. The Government is currently consulting on 
changes to Building Regulations which would require new developments, 
including retail developments to meet carbon reduction targets. If, as part 
of the review of the Local Plan, the Council were to develop a policy 
requiring certain levels of carbon reduction from new non residential 
development in line with the levels set by revised Building Regulations, 
developers of retail developments would need to make their buildings 
more energy efficient utilising the 'fabric first' approach, which will include 
the specification of doors with greater levels of air tightness.

52 Director, Centre for 
Climate Change Mitigation 
Research, University of 
Cambridge

Re Objective 2 on page 18 - The greatest challenge is not reducing 
emissions from new homes and buildings, it is reducing emissions from 
existing buildings

Action 11 in the CCS Action Plan sets out the range of support that the 
Council will be providing to homeowners, private tenants, private 
landlords and housing associations to help improve the energy efficiency 
of properties. This includes providing additional grants in the short-term, 
producing guidance on improving the energy efficiency of propoerties in 
Conservation Areas, and exploring opportunities for a joint approach to 
the Green Deal with parts across Cambridgeshire. An additional bullet 
point summarising this work has been added to the text in the main body 
of the Strategy on page 21. Action 31 also highlights the Council's 
involvement with the University of Cambridge and other partners in the 
Cambridge Retrofit p[roject, which will explore a model for financing and 
delivering energy efficiency improvements to existing properties in 
Cambridge over the next 30 years. This is highlighted in the main body of 
the Strategy on page 23.

53 Transition Cambridge The Council could promote to people in conservation areas what can be 
done as much as what restrictions are placed on them in retrofitting 
properties.  The council has several exemplar houses that could be used 
to promote retrofitting more

The City Council is currently developing specific guidance on retrofitting 
properties in conservation areas, which will outline both the relevant 
restrictions and the types of energy efficiency measures that can be 
installed. Once the guidance has been produced, the Council will 
consider what specific promotional work could be done. 

54 Individual resident The Council could provide an interactive website for people to calculate 
their environmental impact and provide help and advice on being more 
energy efficient.  

The City Council does not wish to duplicate the online tools for calculating 
carbon footprints already provided by the World Wildlife Fund (WWF) 
and other organisations. The Cambridge City Council website provides 
advice on home energy efficiency options.

55 Cambridge Carbon 
Footprint

The Council could provide advice, information and support in making 
significant lifestyle changes concerning the whole of the individual carbon 
footprint, not just the areas of home energy, transport and waste. 
Cambridge Carbon Footprint is happy to work with the Council on this. 
This should include an emphasis on the importance of the psychology of 
behaviour change in adopting a low carbon lifestyle.

The rationale for focussing our efforts on reducing emissions associated 
with energy efficiency, transport and waste is outlined above. However, 
as outlined above the Council would welcome a discussion with CCF and 
other interested voluntary groups of the opportunities for joint work on 
other aspects of the carbon footprint.

56 Cambridge Friends of the 
Earth

The Council could provide more publicity relating to the benefits of saving 
energy, suggestions for practical, small scale, actions that the public can 
take on an individual basis

The Strategy outlined a series of energy efficiency awareness-raising 
campaigns that the Council has carried out since 2007. The Cambridge 
City Council website provides advice on home energy efficiency options.

Supporting residents to reduce their carbon emissions

promote the four licensing objectives of: the prevention of crime and 
disorder; public safety; the prevention of public nuisance; and  the 
protection of children from harm.  Outdoor heating is not an issue 
covered by any of these objectives.  However, the City Council has 
provided funding to the Close the Door Campaign, which works with local 
business and encourages them to keep doors closed during winter 
months when the heating is on in the premises. As we develop our new 
sustainable construction policies, the Council could also explore 
opportunities to include measures to encourage sustainable behaviours in 
building occupants.

P
age 397



57 Cambridge Carbon 
Footprint

On page 21 the second bullet point which says "helping residents to 
make informed choices about their carbon footprint, e.g. through 
communication and engagement activities" needs concrete examples and 
details of how this is to be financed.

The relevant bullet point has been amended to provide further details of 
the types of communication and engagement activities that will be 
undertaken.

58 Individual resident Council should have better contact with residents especially families as 
they will be most affected by climate change.

The Council acknowledges the importance of communicating with 
residents on a wide variety of issues, including climate change and 
sustainability.  It does this through various means, including the Council 
website and quarterly issues of Cambridge Matters magazine which is 
distributed to every household in the City and is available to view on the 
website.  In response to our 2011 Citizen's Survey, city residents 
indicated that they prefer to receive information from the City Council 
through the Council website, local newspapers and Cambridge Matters 
magazine. The Council's Community Development teams also produce 
seven quarterly newsletters for different areas of the City, in which they 
often include environmental articles and events information, such as the 
neighbourhood 'give and take' days.

59 Residents' Association 
and individual resident

Introduce a 'Boris bikes' cycle hire scheme in Cambridge.  The City Council introduced a free scheme in 1993, but the scheme was 
discontinued following theft, damage and abandonment of the bikes. The 
City Council is not currently progressing a city-wide cycle hire scheme, 
but it has not ruled out implementing one in future. Any future scheme 
would need to consider issues relating to: funding; likely levels of demand 
in a city which already has high rates of cycling and bicycle ownership; 
and location of the cycle hire racks, particularly in the city centre where 
there is limited space.

60 Individual resident Provide cycling routes and cycle parking.  Reduce speed limits. Cambridge City Council and Cambridgeshire County Council jointly fund 
a programme of cycle infrastructure schemes (referred to in Action 37 in 
the CCS Action Plan), including cycling parking and new routes. The 
Action has been amended in the revised version of the Strategy to make 
this clearer. The City Council's Environment Improvement Schemes can 
also include improvements to cycle routes and installation of cycle 
parking. 

The Council is working with the County Council on a project to implement 
a 20mph speed limit in all residential streets in Cambridge.  A dedicated 
officer is now in post to deliver this project over the next 2 years.

61 Residents' Association Provide greater subsidies for smaller, more flexible and sustainable bus 
services.

Action 38 in the CCSAP commits the Council to work jointly with bus 
operators and partners to support improvements to local bus services, 
including through targeted subsidies and higher emissions standards. 
This work will include a focus on more flexible and sustainable bus 
services.

62 Individual resident Rationalisation of traffic movements required and cannot be solved by 
giving additional rights to some modes of travel while penalising others.  
Undue preference to cyclists who continue to commit unpublished traffic 
offences.

The County Council, as the Highways Authority, is responsible for 
managing traffic movements, but the City Council does support 
prioritising sustainable modes of travel such as walking, cycling and 
public transport over car use. The City Council promotes safe and 
considerate cycling through information on the back of the City Cycling 
Map and Cycletips bookmarks given out to school children and foreign 
language students. The Community Safety Partnership has supported 
police initiatives such as fitting lights for cyclists fined for having no lights. 
The Council's City Rangers remove abandoned bicycles, especially those 
causing an obstruction, and hang notices on parked bicycles which are 
likely to cause an obstruction. The City Council also facilitates a Cycling 
and Walking Liaison Group which includes members from pedestrian and 
disability groups.

63 Cambridge Friends of the 
Earth

Include specific objective on reduction of emissions from transport The City Council has not included a specific objective on reducing 
emissions from transport in the Strategy, as it does not have primary 
responsibility for local transport issues. However, the action plan does 
include a number of actions to promote sustainable transport which would 
help reduce transport emissions in the City.

Promoting low carbon transport and reducing journeys

P
age 398



64 Cambridge Friends of the 
Earth

Increasing the availability of social housing in the city will reduce 
commuting and therefore traffic congestion and pollution.

The City Council is not aware of any evidence to suggest that tenants of 
social housing are less likely to travel significant distances to work than 
residents in other tenures. The City Council and Housing Associations 
provided 11,700 rented homes in 2011 (7,263 Council and 4,437 Housing 
Association). The City Council expects 1300 new affordable homes to be 
delivered in the City between 2011 and 2015. Most of these will be 
developed by Housing Associations, but 146 are due to be built by the 
Council. The Council is aiming for 75% of these properties to be 
social/affordable rent, and 25% to be intermediate tenures such as 
shared ownership. The Council will continue to promote the construction 
of new Affordable Homes to Code for Sustainable Homes Level 4 as a 
minimum, but aiming to meet 'Zero Carbon' standards prior to the 
implementation of national policy in this area anticipated from 2016.

65 Individual resident Why is the council is undertaking such extensive house building in the 
Trumpington area which will cause traffic congestion and an increase in 
climate change emissions.  Even if energy efficient homes are built, the 
gain in energy savings will be lost through an additional half hour of daily 
travel per person.

66 Individual resident The growth of the city is unsustainable in the long term.  Members of 
BENERA view local development policies in Trumpington as misguided 
and unsustainable, and not see that the City understands the ‘cause and 
effect’ that obtains.

67 Residents' Association Work with large retailers on Newmarket Road etc on delivering bulky 
items to Park and Ride sites as John Lewis does.

The Council acknowledges that while this suggestion might help reduce 
traffic congestion in the city centre, it would be dependent on both 
commercial decisions by retailers and the availability of suitable land in 
appropriate locations. The potential to divert potential customers from the 
city centre, which could adversely affect the viability of other city centre 
businesses, would also need to be considered.

68 Director, Centre for 
Climate Change Mitigation 
Research, University of 
Cambridge

It would be best if the savings from the Carbon Management Plan were 
ploughed back into further reductions via a revolving fund.

The City Council has already made financial provision for all the projects 
included in the Carbon Management Plan for 2011/12-2013/14. Provision 
for projects included in the final two years of the Plan will be made 
through the Council's annual budget-setting process. A mechanism has 
been developed for capturing the majority of the financial savings that will 
be generated by projects included in the Carbon Management Plan. The 
City Council has considered reinvesting these savings in a dedicated 
revolving fund, but it has decided that in the context of the wider need to 
realise savings year-on-year from the Council's overall budget, it would 
be more prudent not to restrict the use that these savings can be put to.

69 Cambridge Carbon 
Footprint

We would like to take this opportunity to say how useful the Climate 
Challenge Fund is in ensuring that the actions in the CMP are taken, and 
would like to seek assurances from the Council that this fund will 
continue.

The aim of the Carbon Management Plan is to identify a programme of 
projects that will reduce emissions from the Council's estate and 
operations. The Council will use the Climate Change Fund, along with 
other sources of funding including the Housing Revenue Account and 
individual service budgets to meet the costs of projects included in the 
Plan. 

70 Director, Centre for 
Climate Change Mitigation 
Research, University of 
Cambridge

The issue of cost effectiveness of projects piloted through the Council's 
Climate Change Fund needs addressing if this programme is to be rolled 
out to non-public sector partners

This comment has been addressed through the inclusion of an additional 
paragraph on cost-effectiveness of Climate Change Fund and Carbon 
Management Plan projects in the 'lessons learnt' on page 18-19 of the 
Strategy.

71 Individual resident The Council may have to prioritise amongst these 44 actions, as it is 
likely to have to freeze council tax (e.g. effect on discretionary grants).  It 
should concentrate on quick payback measures. 

The City Council currently expects to be able to carry out all the actions 
included in the Action Plan within expected levels of resources, although 
some actions which require the Council to explore the opportunities or 
options for taking a particular course of action may not be fully costed at 
this stage. 

72 Individual resident Council tax and business rates be levied higher on CO2 emissions.  The City Council is not currently considering charging different levels of 
council tax and business rates based on levels of carbon emissions.

Resources

The City Council has permitted housing development on several growth 
sites on the fringes of the City for a number of reasons. One of these is to 
try to redress the balance between homes and jobs in the City. A large 
number of people currently live outside the City and commute into the 
City for employment, which contributes to traffic congestion and transport-
related emissions. By locating new development on sites on the fringes of 
the City rather than outside the City, this will reduce the commuting 
distance for occupants of the new homes who work in the City and 
increase the likelihood that they will opt for more sustainable modes of 

P
age 399



73 Transition Cambridge The City Council should investigate the potential to procure 100% 
renewable energy from Good Energy or Ecotricity (not just a green tariff). 
It should also  include sustainability requirements in tender specifications 
and contracts and try to influence the whole supply chain. 

The Council's current electricity contract supplies 100% 'green tariff' 
electricity.  The Council has investigated purchasing renewable electricity, 
but  the cost was significantly higher than for 'green tariff' electricity.  The 
Council recognises that, with regard to the energy purchasing, it has a 
responsibility to strike a balance between obtaining value for money and 
promoting carbon reduction.

74 Cambridge Carbon 
Footprint

The 2012 strategy contains no overarching target concerning 
Cambridge's emissions as a whole, unlike the 2008 strategy. The CCSAP 
is very clear and open about the fact that the council's target in the 2008 
Strategy of an 11% reduction in the council's own emissions was not 
achieved, and it is understandable that the council is now very anxious to 
set ambitious but achievable targets in this regard. This should not mean, 
however, that no targets at all should be set for emissions reduction 
outside this.  We would like to see how each action or group of actions 
might contribute to the overall emissions target.

While the Council has set a target of a 20% reduction in emissions from 
its operations and estate in the CMP, the Council has decided not to 
include a target for reducing emissions from the City of Cambridge as a 
whole. While the actions included under Objective 2 in the CCSAP will 
assist them to reduce their carbon emissions, the individual actions of  
residents, businesses and other organisations will also have a significant 
impact. Wider factors such as the economic climate and seasonal and 
annual variations in temperature will also have a significant impact. It is 
therefore difficult to identify what proportion of any changes in carbon 
emissions from the City as a whole can be directly attributed to the 
support provided by the Council activities.   

75 Residents' Association We would urge the City Council to constantly aim to achieve higher levels 
of reduction in Carbon Emissions more rapidly than the targets that have 
been set in the Climate Change Act 2008. We believe that these 
government targets may be ‘too little, too late’.

The Climate Change Act sets a target for the second carbon budget of 
reducing carbon emissions by 29% by 2017 from 1990 levels. These 
targets relate to emissions from all sectors. For the reasons outlined 
above, the Council has chosen not to set a target for the City of 
Cambridge as a whole, so a direct comparison is not possible. However, 
the target of a 20% reduction in emissions from our own estate and 
operations is comparable with targets set by other local authorities.

76 Cambridge Carbon 
Footprint

We would like to see a comprehensive and detailed comparison of how 
the Council has measured up to all the targets in the 2008 Strategy.  

We have provided details on pages 20-22 of the Council's performance 
against the two key targets in the previous Climate Change Strategy, 
which relate to a) emissions from the Council's estate and activities, and 
b) emissions from the City of Cambridge as a whole. We will report on 
our progress towards our new target set in the CCS and the CMP for 
reducing emissions from our operations and estate in our annual 
Greenhouse Gas report. However, for the reasons outlined above, in 
future we will not be reporting on emissions from the City of Cambridge 
as a whole. 

77 Director, Centre for 
Climate Change Mitigation 
Research, University of 
Cambridge

A range of comments on the statistics referred to in the Strategy, 
including:
1) figures on domestic energy consumption in the City of Cambridge.
2) heat and cold related deaths.
3) figures on the overall reduction in emissions from the City of 
Cambridge, which do not include figures on 'embedded carbon' (the 
carbon emissions associated with production and transportation of the 
goods that are consumed by residents and businesses).
4) the approach to calculating the carbon and financial savings 
associated with energy efficiency improvements to Council properties.

All addressed in revised Strategy

Emissions targets

P
age 400



Report Page No: 1 

 

 
Cambridge City Council 

 
 

 
To: Executive Councillor for Planning and Climate 

Change: Councillor Tim Ward 
Report by: Head of Planning Services 
Relevant scrutiny 
committee:  

Environment Scrutiny Committee 9/10/2012 
Wards affected: All  
 
Adoption of the Interim Planning Policy Guidance (IPPG) on The 
Protection of Public Houses in the City of Cambridge 
Key Decision 
 
 
1. Executive summary  
 
1.1 The Council, in response to local concern regarding the loss of public 

houses in Cambridge, commissioned consultants to produce the 
Cambridge Public House Study and Interim Planning Policy Guidance 
(IPPG) on The Protection of Public Houses in the City of Cambridge. 

 
1.2 This report relates to the adoption of the IPPG on The Protection of 

Public Houses in the City of Cambridge. 
 
1.3 Consultation on the draft IPPG on The Protection of Public Houses 

took place for six weeks between 15th June and 27th July 2012.  A 
number of comments were received and a steer from the Executive 
Councillor for Planning and Climate Change and the members of  
Development Plan Scrutiny Sub Committee was sought in September 
2012 on a series of key issues (listed in Table 3.1) that were raised 
during the consultation. The final revisions have now been made to 
the document. 

 
1.4 Appendix A summarises the representations received to the draft 

IPPG and proposed responses.  Appendix B provides a track-changed 
version of the IPPG.  Appendix C provides a copy of the Cambridge 
Public House Study. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 401



Report Page No: 2 

2. Recommendations  
The Executive Councillor is recommended: 
2.1 To agree the draft responses to the representations received to the 

draft IPPG (Appendix A) and the consequential amendments to the 
IPPG; 

 
2.2 To adopt the IPPG (Appendix B) with immediate effect; 
 
2.3 To agree the contents of Cambridge Public House Study (Appendix C) 

and to endorse it as an evidence base document with immediate 
effect. 

 
3. Background  
 
3.1 The Council, in response to local concern regarding the loss of public 

houses in Cambridge, commissioned consultants to produce the 
Cambridge Public House Study and Interim Planning Policy Guidance 
(IPPG) on The Protection of Public Houses in the City of Cambridge. 

 
3.2 The Cambridge Public House Study explains how public houses are 

an important part of the Cambridge economy, not just for the direct 
and indirect jobs they provide in the pub, supplier, food and brewing 
industries, but in supporting the city’s main industries by attracting and 
providing a meeting place for students, academics, scientists and 
entrepreneurs, and in attracting office workers, shoppers and tourists. 

 
3.3 Alongside the Cambridge Public House Study, the draft IPPG was 

produced in order to set out the principles for development affecting 
public house sites in Cambridge until the adoption of the new Local 
Plan (scheduled for April 2014). The draft IPPG also recommended 
guidance for proposals affecting the loss of a public house and was 
prepared to take account of the following development management 
principles: 

 
• The need to preserve the important social/community function of 

the public house; 
• The need to preserve the important economic function of the public 

house; and 
• The need to allow flexibility in terms of responding to economic 

change. 
 
3.4 The IPPG recommended guidance for proposals affecting the loss of a 

public house and contained a list of public house sites to be 
safeguarded and those not to be included on the safeguarding list with 
a brief explanation for their categorisation. 

Page 402



Report Page No: 3 

 
3.5 The draft IPPG and its supporting documents remain available on the 

Council’s website at http://www.cambridge.gov.uk/publichouses.  
 
Recent Appeal Decisions 
 
3.6 Since the IPPG was approved three appeal decisions relating to the 

loss of public houses in Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire have 
been received. These are listed below with a brief summary of their 
relevance to the IPPG. It should be noted that they were all dismissed 
and the complete appeal decisions are attached in Appendix B. 
• For the Unicorn PH, 15 High Street, Cherry Hinton, involving the change of use 

from a public house to single dwellinghouse the Inspector noted: 
o A settlement with a growing population needs to have clear evidence that a 

site is no longer suitable for social/community use before a change of use 
is considered; and 

o There was a lack of evidence to prove no other pub operator was 
interested in the site and this fails to guard against the unnecessary loss of 
a pub; and 

o There was no evidence that diversification could not retain the site for the 
benefit of the community. 

• For the Carpenters Arms PH, 182-186 Victoria Road, involving the conversion 
of a public house and letting rooms to residential apartments the Inspector 
noted: 
o Public houses considered to be local community facilities include those that 

are valued by a local community; 
o There was no evidence that the public house was priced and marketed as 

a public house for a reasonable length of time, with an agent who 
specialised in the licensed trade, and therefore it has not been 
demonstrated that a different approach to operating the public house would 
not be viable; and 

o The NPPF is an important material consideration and a more recent 
publication therefore it is given significant weight compared to the 
Cambridge Local Plan; and 

o According to the NPPF, to determine whether a change of use of the 
building (a valued community facility) is necessary it should first be 
marketed as a public house. This approach would also be consistent with 
how applications for changes of use in relation to other local community 
facilities are dealt with under policy 5/11 of the Local Plan. 

• The Plough (former public house), High Street, Shepreth, Royston, involving 
the change of use from a restaurant (in use since 2004) to a residential 
dwelling the Inspector noted: 
o Looking solely at the last use of the premises is rather too narrow and 

simplistic. Changing a pub to A3 use class through permitted development 
is a way of circumventing policy restrictions seeking to prevent the loss of 
pubs as community facilities; 

o The former pub is suitable for a pub use and the proposed development 
would result in the loss of a potentially viable community facility; 

o The site should be marketed at a realistic price throughout that period; and 
o The loss of a potentially valuable community facility was unacceptable. 

 
 

Page 403



Report Page No: 4 

Consultation 
 
3.7 Development Plan Scrutiny Sub-Committee agreed the draft IPPG 

public consultation on 12th June 2012. Please see link to the relevant 
committee report: 
http://mgsqlmh01/documents/g682/Public%20reports%20pack%2012t
h-Jun-2012%2016.30%20Development%20Plan%20Scrutiny%20Sub-
Committee.pdf?T=10. The public consultation took place from 15th 
June to 27th July 2012. 

 
3.8 Notification of the consultation was sent to the statutory and other 

consultees identified in the June 2012 Development Plan Scrutiny 
Sub-Committee report. The consultation material and response forms 
were made available at the Customer Service Centre in Mandela 
House and were sent to public libraries.  All of the consultation 
material was made available on the Council’s website and an online 
consultation system was utilised to allow people to submit their 
comments via the Internet (hard copies of the response forms were 
made available to those who do not have access to the internet).  In 
addition an article was placed in the Cambridge Matters Summer 2012 
containing information about the consultation and how people could 
get involved. The Cambridge Evening News ran an article on the 
consultation. There was also interest from planning media including 
the Morning Advertiser and Planning Resource. A Members briefing 
was also held in July to provide a forum for particular questions 
regarding the IPPG. The British Beer & Pub Association, the principal 
organisation representing Britain’s brewers and pub companies was 
also consulted. 

 
3.9 By the end of the consultation period, a total of 42 respondents had 

lodged 159 separate representations: 43 in support of and 116 of 
objection to the draft IPPG.  Officers have drafted responses to all 
representations.  Summaries of all representations and the draft 
responses have been attached for information as Appendix A to this 
report. 

 
3.10 Almost 30% of the representations made were in support of the IPPG. 

The remainder were either not in support of the IPPG or requests for 
amendments to the IPPG. There was a broad consensus that the 
IPPG was needed however there were questions related to the weight 
that could be afforded to it in comparison to other Local Plan policies 
and the competing demands between community facilities, student 
accommodation and housing. Other representations concluded that 
changing social circumstances would inevitably lead to the decline in 
the number of public houses. Concern was raised over the onerous 
conditions that needed to be satisfied, including the marketing strategy 

Page 404



Report Page No: 5 

and requested alternative criteria to be considered. However, support 
was also provided for these tests in particular for continued viability 
and alternative operators to be allowed to run public houses. 

 
3.11 Suggestions to alter the marketing criteria included requests for both 

an increase and decrease to the proposed 12 month marketing period 
by six months. Whilst a six month period was considered to provide 
greater flexibility and a fairer reflection of economic circumstances, the 
increase to a minimum 18 months would be less than 2 years 
currently asked for by Merton Council Local Plan Policy L15 and  was 
suggested to broaden the viability tests regarding a pub’s marketing 
and diversification.   

 
3.12 Cambridge Past, Present and Future (CPPF) and the voluntary 

organisation ‘Campaign for Real Ale’ (CAMRA) generally supported 
the IPPG development principles but disagreed with the flexibility of 
diversifying a former public house use into an alternative community 
facility or other ‘A’ class use. This point was also raised in other 
representations. 

 
3.13 Both CPPF and CAMRA also suggested the use of Article 41 

directions to prevent the unnecessary loss of a local amenity. Putting 
an Article 4 in place is a separate legal process from that of the IPPG 
and therefore would need to be established separately. Officers will 
investigate this matter in more detail but it should not prevent the 
adoption of the IPPG. 

 
3.14 Assessing overall provision for an area over time could provide a 

means of measuring adequate alternative provision. 
 
3.15 CAMRA supported the list of safeguarded pubs however along with 

CPPF indicated a number of corrections to the list and suggested the 
inclusion of a number of former public houses where the public house 
use could return (most of which are currently restaurants). 

 
3.16 Concern was also raised about the justification for the proposed IPPG 

and the failure of the Cambridge Public House Study to have properly 
assessed each public house or indeed visited each pub site. Both the 
Cambridge Public House Study and proposed IPPG were 
commissioned in response to growing local concern surrounding the 
loss of public houses in Cambridge. The evidence gathered which 
involved visiting every public house site as part of the Public House 
Study’s audit will be used to develop any emerging policy in the Local 

                                            
1 An Article 4 direction allows Local Planning Authorities to withdraw the ‘permitted development’ rights that 
would otherwise apply by virtue of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) 
Order 1995 as amended. An article 4 direction will not prevent the development to which it applies, but 
instead requires that planning permission is first obtained from the LPA for that development. 

Page 405



Report Page No: 6 

Plan Review. Appendix A contains summaries of all representations in 
plan order for reference. 

 
3.17 The remaining representations objected to a range of different issues 

and these are outlined in Table 3.1 with suggested changes to the 
draft IPPG.  These issues and suggested changes were considered 
and agreed by Development Plan Scrutiny Sub Committee on 11 
September 2012.  Please see link to the relevant committee report: 
http://mgsqlmh01/documents/s13423/IPPG%20DPSSC%20Report%2
0Sept.pdf.  
Draft responses and associated changes to the IPPG have since been 
made in line with the key issues raised and are included in Appendix A 
(Draft responses to representations) and Appendix B (Tracked version 
of the IPPG). 
 
Table 3.1 

Issue 1 The issue of public house viability and the use of 
marketing to test this condition were raised. A number of 
representations regarded marketing as unnecessary 
especially where the public house had proved not to be a 
viable business. 
Recent appeal decisions (please see para 3.6 in main report) 
support the use of marketing to evidence their viability. 
 

Change to 
Plan 

Add reference to recent appeal decisions 
Reference 
to 
documents 

Cambridge Public House Study (see p51 of Appendix C) and 
IPPG para 2.16 (Appendix B) 

Issue 2 Need to clarify how the IPPG fits with the NPPF. 
The IPPG is not intended to conflict with the NPPF and 
therefore further explanation is needed to explain how the 
IPPG works within the NPPF, with particular reference to 
paragraphs cited in the representations. 
 

Change to 
Plan 

Amend relevant sections of the IPPG, including references to 
recent applicable appeal decisions and clarifying the 
relationship between Local Plan Policy 5/11 and its 
relationship with the NPPF (including paragraphs 14, 21 and 
153) and public houses as a community facility and emerging 
policy. 
 

Reference 
to IPPG 

IPPG para 2.8-2.13 & 2.16 (Appendix B) 
 
 
 

Page 406



Report Page No: 7 

Issue 3 
 

Lack of reference to how pubs help form the character of 
Cambridge other than a general reference. 

Change to 
Plan 

Add explanation of how pubs in the City make a positive 
contribution to the character and appearance of Cambridge, 
for example: 
How the various public houses along the River Cam help 
retain and enhance the quality of the river’s setting and 
appearance; and 
How pubs allow both local people and visitors, alike to enjoy 
the City’s character, including their historical importance. 

Reference 
to IPPG 

IPPG para 3.5 & Section 5 (Appendix B) 
Issue 4 
 

English Heritage raised a specific concern regarding the 
deliberate neglect of public houses with reference to the 
NPPF, paragraph 130 

Change to 
Plan 

Insert appropriate comment into the IPPG reflecting the 
advice of English Heritage for decision making to ignore a 
pubs deteriorated state in any decision concerning its future 
or demolition where there is evidence of deliberate neglect or 
damage. 

Reference 
to IPPG 

IPPG para 3.5 & Section 5 (Appendix B) 
Issue 5 
 

Lack of explanation of how new public houses are 
supported by the IPPG 

Change to 
Plan 

Add brief explanation of how new public houses are treated 
by the current Local Plan saved policies in particular Local 
Plan Policy 5/12. 

Reference 
to IPPG 

IPPG para 2.14, 2.17, 4.15-4.18 (Appendix B) 
Issue 6 
 

Confusion regarding the requirement to provide one pub 
per 750 working age adults (in criterion 4(c)). 
The 750 working age adults threshold reflected the Public 
House Study’s assessment of the minimum size of a local 
catchment area that could support a community public house 
in Cambridge. 

Change to 
Plan 

Simplify development criteria in paragraph 4.5; move 
contents of criterion 4(c) 

Reference 
to IPPG 

IPPG original criterion 4(c) contents moved to Annex C 
(Appendix B) 

Issue 7 
 

400mtr catchment areas are too restrictive and 
unjustified. Concern was raised about the adoption of this 
catchment distance in criterion 4(c) 

Change to 
Plan 

Simplify criterion 4(c) as part of review of Issue 6 
 

Reference 
to IPPG 

IPPG original criterion 4(c) contents moved to Annex C 
(Appendix B) 

Page 407



Report Page No: 8 

Issue 8 
 

Difficulty with the application of the IPPG on a former 
public house site not on the list of safeguarded public 
house sites (see paragraph 3.9 Appendix 3 of DPSSC 
committee report 11/09/12). 

Change to 
Plan 

Under the Use Class Order, public houses and other A4 uses 
can change to higher order use class (A3, A2 or A1) without 
needing planning permission. Although, planning permission 
could be required for building alterations. 
Taking the case of a restaurant in a former public house 
building, if the public house already served food it may 
already have had a kitchen with extractor fans etc. in order to 
provide food. Overtime, it would be permissible for the pub to 
turn into a restaurant without formerly requiring planning 
permission. It is therefore difficult to determine when a public 
house changed into a restaurant unless some form of audit 
took place or specific planning permission was granted 
indicating a different use was now in operation. Anecdotal 
evidence may suggest when a pub became a restaurant 
however this could not be relied upon as a means of 
determining its date of conversion. This means it is difficult to 
establish when a public house stopped being a public house 
and changed use legitimately into a different use without 
planning permission. 
It would therefore be reasonable to only apply the proposed 
guidance to those public house sites on the safeguarding list 
that were audited. 
 

Reference 
to IPPG 

IPPG original para 4.14 removed (Appendix B) 
 
 

Issue 9 
 

Should public house sites that have unimplemented 
planning permission be included in the list of pub sites 
to be safeguarded? 
 

Change to 
Plan 

Yes. While the loss of the pub site may not have been an 
issue at the time of the planning decision, the loss of a pub or 
a potential pub is now a concern. Therefore the IPPG should 
be applicable in any new planning application that involves 
the loss of a pub site (audited) despite it already having been 
granted planning permission for alternative use. 
Any existing approved planning permission would not be 
affected by the guidance. 
 

Reference 
to IPPG 

IPPG para 2.2 & Section 5 (Appendix B) 
 
 

Page 408



Report Page No: 9 

Issue 10 
 

The IPPG does not make any specific reference to the 
protection / retention of pub gardens/car parks. This issue 
was raised at the IPPG Member’s briefing. 

Change to 
Plan 

The IPPG needs to retain sufficient flexibility to allow public 
house sites to adapt to changing consumer trends and permit 
some form of diversification to retain the public house use on 
site. 
However, it is also important that the amenity area of the 
public house site is protected. This would therefore be 
emphasised in the IPPG with the inclusion of a reference to 
the application of Local Plan Policy 3/10 ‘Sub-division of 
garden plots’ to proposals affecting public house outdoor 
space such as the pub garden and car park area. 
Any development on these ‘open’ areas would need to be 
justified and linked to the long-term viability of the public 
house. 

Reference 
to IPPG 

IPPG para 4.19-4.21 (Appendix B) 
 
3.8 Appendix B includes a tracked change version of IPPG where deleted 

text is struck through and new text is underlined. 
 
Next Steps 

 
3.9 Subject to approval by the Executive Councillor: 
 

• The public consultation responses will be published and loaded on 
the Council’s public consultation website; 
• The IPPG will act as a material planning consideration and be 
published and loaded on the Council’s website; and 
• The Cambridge Public House Study will be published and loaded 
on the Council’s website. 

 
3.10 All Councillors and relevant officers will be notified about the approved 

IPPG and Cambridge Public House Study. 
 
3.11 In terms of status, following adoption, the IPPG will be used as a 

material consideration in the planning process and as part of the 
evidence base for the Local Plan Review.  It will be used as a material 
consideration with immediate effect for planning applications 
submitted on or after 9 October 2012. 

 
3.12 As a material consideration, if a proposal for development came 

forward which might give rise to the loss of a public house site listed 
under those to de safeguarded, the work included allows the Council 
the opportunity to require the applicant has satisfied the guidance 

Page 409



Report Page No: 10 

criteria. The case officer for the planning application would use the 
findings supplied by the applicant to inform decision-making on the 
principle of the loss of the public house site. 

 
3.13 In relation to forming part of the evidence base for the Local Plan 

Review, the Cambridge Public House Study and IPPG will be used to 
inform any proposed policy regarding public house sites in the Local 
Plan Review. 

 
4. Implications  
 
(a) Financial Implications 
 The financial implications are set out within the report above. 
 
(b) Staffing Implications   
 There are no direct staffing implications 
 
(c) Equal Opportunities Implications 

No. There are no direct physical equality and diversity implications.  
Involvement of local people in the work followed the guidance set out 
in the Statement of Community Involvement.  

 
(d) Environmental Implications 
 Nil. There are no direct environmental implications. 
 
(e) Procurement 
 There are no procurement implications 
 
(f) Consultation and communication 

The consultations are set out in the report above and are in 
accordance with the Council’s Code of Practice. 

 
(g) Community Safety 

There are no direct community safety implications. 
 
5. Background papers 
 
5.1 These background papers were used in the preparation of this report: 

• Cambridge Local Plan 
http://www.cambridge.gov.uk/public/docs/Local%20Plan%202006.pdf 

 
6. Appendices  
 
Appendix A  - Summary of Draft Consultation Responses  
 

Page 410



Report Page No: 11 

Appendix B - Interim Planning Policy Guidance on The Protection of Public 
Houses in the City of Cambridge (October 2012) with track changes 
 
Appendix C - Cambridge Public House Study 

 
7. Inspection of papers  
 
To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report 
please contact: 
 
Author’s Name: Bruce Waller 
Author’s Phone Number:  01223 457333 
Author’s Email:  Bruce.waller@cambridge.gov.uk 
 

Page 411



Page 412

This page is intentionally left blank



P
ub

lic
 P

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

R
ep

or
t

In
te

ri
m

 P
la

nn
in

g 
P

ol
ic

y 
G

ui
da

nc
e 

on
 T

he
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
of

 P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

s 
in

 th
e 

C
ity

 o
f C

am
br

id
ge

Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

1.
 In

tr
od

uc
tio

n

1.
 In

tr
od

uc
tio

n

A
ct

io
n

1.
 In

tr
od

uc
tio

n
1.

 In
tr

od
uc

tio
n

-R
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
ns

 m
ad

e 
on

 b
eh

al
f o

f B
on

ds
w

ay
 L

td
 

(B
L)

 a
nd

 L
uc

y 
C

av
en

di
sh

 C
ol

le
ge

 (
LC

C
),

 p
ro

sp
ec

tiv
e 

jo
in

t a
pp

lic
an

ts
 fo

r 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 r

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f t

he
 

fo
rm

er
 R

an
ch

 P
H

 fo
r 

es
se

nt
ia

l n
ew

 S
tu

de
nt

 
A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
fo

r 
m

at
ur

e 
fe

m
al

e 
st

ud
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

oc
cu

pi
ed

 b
y 

LC
C

.
-B

L 
ha

ve
 c

on
si

de
ra

bl
e 

co
nc

er
ns

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 

po
lic

y 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
ch

an
ge

 o
f u

se
 o

f A
LL

 
P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se
s 

an
d 

ar
e 

es
pe

ci
al

ly
 c

on
ce

rn
ed

 th
at

 
un

fa
ir 

op
po

si
tio

n 
co

ul
d

be
 a

ttr
ac

te
d 

to
 th

ei
r 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

on
 th

e 
ba

si
s 

of
 th

e 
IP

P
G

, w
hi

ch
 h

as
 n

ot
 b

ee
n 

fu
lly

 c
on

si
de

re
d.

-C
on

ce
rn

 th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

ov
er

re
ac

te
d,

 b
ow

ed
 to

 
pr

es
su

re
 g

ro
up

s 
an

d 
no

t t
ho

ug
ht

 c
le

ar
ly

 o
n 

th
e 

is
su

e.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
hi

s 
is

su
e 

is
 c

ov
er

ed
 in

 n
ew

 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

2.
2 

of
 th

e 
IP

P
G

 w
hi

ch
 r

ea
ds

 "
T

he
 IP

P
G

 
gu

id
an

ce
 is

 to
 b

e 
ap

pl
ie

d 
to

 p
re

m
is

es
 th

at
 w

er
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
in

 J
ul

y 
20

06
, t

he
 d

at
e 

w
he

n 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t L
oc

al
 P

la
n 

w
as

 a
do

pt
ed

.  
T

hi
s 

en
su

re
s 

co
ns

is
te

nc
y 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

Lo
ca

l P
la

n 
an

d 
th

e 
N

P
P

F
.

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 th

at
 w

er
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
in

 J
ul

y 
20

06
 a

re
 

pr
es

en
t o

n 
th

e 
lis

t o
f s

af
eg

ua
rd

ed
 p

ub
s 

at
 S

ec
tio

n 
5 

an
d 

al
l o

f t
he

se
 a

re
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 th
e 

IP
P

G
.  

T
hi

s 
lis

t 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

ny
 p

ub
s 

w
ith

 u
ni

m
pl

em
en

te
d 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
pe

rm
is

si
on

s 
an

d 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 in

vo
lv

in
g 

th
es

e 
pu

bs
 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 

de
sp

ite
 th

e 
pr

es
en

ce
 o

f u
ni

m
pl

em
en

te
d 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
pe

rm
is

si
on

s 
fo

r 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
us

es
."

80
81

 -
 J

an
ua

ry
s

O
bj

ec
t

In
se

rt
 n

ew
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 2
.2

 to
 r

ea
d 

"T
he

 IP
P

G
 

gu
id

an
ce

 is
 to

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 p

re
m

is
es

 th
at

 w
er

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

in
 J

ul
y 

20
06

, t
he

 d
at

e 
w

he
n 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
w

as
 a

do
pt

ed
.  

T
hi

s 
en

su
re

s 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

an
d 

th
e 

N
P

P
F

.  
B

ui
ld

in
gs

 th
at

 w
er

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

in
 J

ul
y 

20
06

 a
re

 p
re

se
nt

 o
n 

th
e 

lis
t o

f s
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 p
ub

s 
at

 
S

ec
tio

n 
5 

an
d 

al
l o

f t
he

se
 a

re
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 th
e 

IP
P

G
.

T
hi

s 
lis

t i
nc

lu
de

s 
an

y 
pu

bs
 w

ith
 u

ni
m

pl
em

en
te

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

er
m

is
si

on
s 

an
d 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
th

es
e 

pu
bs

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 
th

e 
IP

P
G

 d
es

pi
te

 th
e 

pr
es

en
ce

 o
f u

ni
m

pl
em

en
te

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

er
m

is
si

on
s 

fo
r 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

us
es

."

P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 6

.1
7 

of
  t

he
 G

V
A

 r
ep

or
t r

ec
om

m
en

ds
, a

 
fle

xi
bl

e 
po

lic
y 

ap
pr

oa
ch

, a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
cr

ite
ria

 fo
r 

th
e 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

re
-d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f s
uc

h 
si

te
s 

in
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s.

 T
he

 IP
P

G
 fa

ils
 to

 r
ef

le
ct

 
th

is
 a

nd
 c

ut
s 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
N

P
P

F
 a

nd
 th

er
ef

or
e 

th
e 

IP
P

G
 c

an
no

t b
e 

pr
og

re
ss

ed
 in

 is
ol

at
io

n 
of

 a
 w

id
er

 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

re
vi

ew
. 

T
he

 N
P

P
F

 m
ak

es
 it

 c
le

ar
 p

la
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

pr
es

um
pt

io
n 

in
 fa

vo
ur

 o
f s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t, 

w
ith

 c
le

ar
 lo

ca
l p

ol
ic

ie
s.

 T
hi

s 
is

 n
ot

 
re

fle
ct

ed
 in

 th
e 

IP
P

G
, w

hi
ch

 e
xp

re
ss

ly
 s

ee
ks

 to
 

pr
ev

en
t d

ev
el

op
m

en
t.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

 H
ow

ev
er

, i
t i

s 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 a

cc
or

ds
 w

ith
 th

e 
N

P
P

F
 in

 te
rm

s 
of

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
to

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s 
be

in
g 

im
po

rt
an

t 
co

m
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

hi
le

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
r 

ch
an

ge
 o

f u
se

 is
 p

os
si

bl
e 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 a

 s
et

 o
f c

rit
er

ia
 b

ei
ng

 m
et

.  
T

he
 IP

P
G

 s
et

s 
ou

t i
n 

S
ec

tio
n 

1 
th

e 
re

as
on

in
g 

be
hi

nd
 th

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 ta

ke
n 

to
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
th

e 
IP

P
G

. T
he

 IP
P

G
 s

up
pl

em
en

ts
 

sa
ve

d 
po

lic
ie

s 
in

 th
e 

C
am

br
id

ge
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
20

06
 

an
d,

 o
nc

e 
ad

op
te

d,
 w

ill
 c

on
st

itu
te

 a
 m

at
er

ia
l 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
in

 th
e 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
in

 C
am

br
id

ge
. I

t 
is

 in
te

nd
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
fin

di
ng

s 
of

 it
s 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
C

am
br

id
ge

 P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 S
tu

dy
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
s 

it 
pr

og
re

ss
es

.

81
41

 -
 J

an
ua

ry
s

O
bj

ec
t

In
co

rp
or

at
e 

th
e 

IP
P

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
fin

di
ng

s 
of

 it
s 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
C

am
br

id
ge

 P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 S
tu

dy
 in

to
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
s 

it 
pr

og
re

ss
es

.

P
ag

e 
1 

of
 5

6

Page 413



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

1.
 In

tr
od

uc
tio

n

1.
 In

tr
od

uc
tio

n

A
ct

io
n

G
V

A
's

 c
om

m
is

si
on

 a
nd

 th
e 

LP
A

's
 s

ub
se

qu
en

t b
rie

f 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e.

 T
he

 P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 S
tu

dy
 is

 
fu

nd
am

en
ta

lly
 u

ns
ou

nd
 to

 d
ea

l w
ith

 th
is

 is
su

e 
in

 
is

ol
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 is

su
es

 th
at

 in
fo

rm
 a

 L
oc

al
 

P
la

n 
re

vi
ew

.
-G

V
A

 a
re

 p
ot

en
tia

lly
 c

om
pr

om
is

ed
 to

 c
om

m
en

t o
n 

th
e 

su
bj

ec
t g

iv
en

 th
ei

r 
ve

st
ed

 in
te

re
st

 in
 th

e 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

of
 

P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

s.
-A

re
 G

V
A

 H
um

be
rt

s 
(a

 L
ei

su
re

 S
ur

ve
yo

r)
 b

es
t p

la
ce

d 
to

 e
va

lu
at

e 
th

e 
is

su
e?

-W
e 

qu
es

tio
n 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

re
po

rt
 is

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

ly
 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 a

s 
th

e 
re

po
rt

 a
pp

ea
rs

 to
 b

e 
a 

de
fe

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
P

ub
 in

du
st

ry
 a

nd
 o

f p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s,
 a

nd
 n

ot
 a

 
ba

la
nc

ed
 o

r 
ob

je
ct

iv
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

pr
od

uc
ed

 th
e 

br
ie

f f
or

 
th

is
 w

or
k 

an
d 

ap
po

in
te

d 
th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

s 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t p
ro

to
co

ls
.

T
he

 IP
P

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
fin

di
ng

s 
of

 th
e 

C
am

br
id

ge
 P

ub
lic

 
H

ou
se

 S
tu

dy
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
C

am
br

id
ge

 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
s 

it 
pr

og
re

ss
es

.  
It 

is
 r

ec
og

ni
se

d 
th

at
 th

e 
IP

P
G

 a
nd

 th
e 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 C

am
br

id
ge

 P
ub

lic
 

H
ou

se
 S

tu
dy

 a
re

 a
m

on
gs

t t
he

 fi
rs

t o
f t

he
ir 

ki
nd

 to
 b

e 
pr

od
uc

ed
 in

 E
ng

la
nd

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 lo
ca

lly
 a

ss
es

se
d 

ev
id

en
ce

 b
as

e 
on

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s.
  G

iv
en

 lo
ca

l 
co

nc
er

ns
 r

el
at

in
g 

to
 th

e 
lo

ss
 o

f p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s,
 it

 is
 

re
as

on
ab

le
 to

 p
ro

du
ce

 s
om

e 
in

te
rim

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
pr

io
r 

to
 th

e 
ne

w
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
be

in
g 

ad
op

te
d.

81
42

 -
 J

an
ua

ry
s

O
bj

ec
t

In
co

rp
or

at
e 

th
e 

IP
P

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
fin

di
ng

s 
of

 th
e 

C
am

br
id

ge
 P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se
 S

tu
dy

 in
to

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l P
la

n 
R

ev
ie

w
 p

ro
ce

ss
.

N
o 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
r 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
ns

 w
ith

 o
pe

ra
to

rs
, 

br
ew

er
ie

s 
an

d 
ow

ne
rs

 o
f p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

in
 C

am
br

id
ge

.
N

ec
es

sa
ry

 p
rio

r 
to

 th
e 

ad
op

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
IP

P
G

.
T

he
 s

ur
ve

y 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t f
ro

m
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

C
am

br
id

ge
 

P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 S
tu

dy
 w

as
 a

 ti
ck

-b
ox

 e
xe

rc
is

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 

a 
vi

su
al

 d
riv

e-
by

 -
 n

o 
in

iti
al

 c
on

su
lta

tio
ns

. 
C

on
su

lta
tio

ns
 a

nd
 r

es
ul

tin
g 

in
pu

t a
re

 v
ita

lly
 im

po
rt

an
t 

pr
io

r 
to

 a
ny

 a
do

pt
io

n 
of

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

fu
lly

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

bu
si

ne
ss

 m
od

el
s,

 s
oc

ia
l a

nd
 

ec
on

om
ic

 c
ha

ng
e 

an
d 

th
ei

r 
ef

fe
ct

s 
on

 th
e 

da
y 

to
 d

ay
 

op
er

at
io

ns
 o

f p
ub

s,
 a

nd
 th

e 
re

as
on

s 
w

hy
 b

ot
h 

di
sp

os
al

 a
nd

 a
cq

ui
si

tio
n 

of
 li

ce
ns

ed
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
ta

ke
s 

pl
ac

e.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

 S
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

 c
on

su
lta

tio
ns

 w
er

e 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t i
n 

ad
va

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

. 
T

he
se

 in
cl

ud
ed

 C
A

M
R

A
, b

re
w

er
ie

s 
an

d 
C

am
br

id
ge

 
P

as
t, 

P
re

se
nt

 &
 F

ut
ur

e.
 E

ac
h 

pu
b 

w
as

 s
ep

ar
at

el
y 

vi
si

te
d 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 c

on
du

ct
 th

e 
au

di
t s

ta
ge

. 

T
he

se
 c

on
su

lta
tio

ns
, v

is
its

 a
nd

 th
e 

P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 
S

tu
dy

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
s 

th
e 

is
su

es
 s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
 th

e 
lo

ss
 o

f p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s 
in

 
C

am
br

id
ge

.

14
80

9 
- 

C
ha

rle
s 

W
el

ls
 L

td
O

bj
ec

t
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

P
ag

e 
2 

of
 5

6

Page 414



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

1.
 In

tr
od

uc
tio

n

1.
 In

tr
od

uc
tio

n

A
ct

io
n

I o
bj

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
in

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 th
is

 In
te

rim
 P

la
nn

in
g 

P
ol

ic
y 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
as

 th
e 

ra
tio

na
le

 b
eh

in
d 

th
e 

'c
om

m
un

ity
 c

at
ch

m
en

ts
' i

s 
un

so
un

d,
 fu

rt
he

rm
or

e 
th

e 
gu

id
an

ce
 in

 p
ar

t i
s 

on
er

ou
s,

 in
fle

xi
bl

e 
an

d 
di

sp
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 p
la

ce
 u

nn
ec

es
sa

ry
 

fin
an

ci
al

 b
ur

de
ns

 o
n 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t; 

co
nf

lic
tin

g 
w

ith
 

pa
ra

gr
ap

hs
 2

1 
an

d 
15

3 
of

 th
e 

F
ra

m
ew

or
k.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  H
ow

ev
er

, i
t i

s 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 a

cc
or

ds
 w

ith
 th

e 
N

P
P

F
 in

 te
rm

s 
of

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
to

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s 
be

in
g 

im
po

rt
an

t 
co

m
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
es

 w
hi

le
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

r 
ch

an
ge

 o
f u

se
 is

 p
os

si
bl

e 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 a
 s

et
 o

f c
rit

er
ia

 b
ei

ng
 m

et
. T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ac

ce
pt

s 
th

at
 th

is
 c

rit
er

io
n 

as
 w

or
de

d 
is

 u
nc

le
ar

.  
T

he
 n

ee
ds

 
to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 a
de

qu
at

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

t l
ea

st
 o

ne
 p

ub
 p

er
 

75
0 

w
or

ki
ng

 a
ge

 a
du

lts
 w

ith
in

 a
 4

00
m

 c
at

ch
m

en
t 

ra
di

us
, i

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 a
re

a 
w

ith
in

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
 is

 lo
ca

te
d.

  H
ow

 th
is

 w
ou

ld
 w

or
k 

in
 

pr
ac

tic
e 

w
ou

ld
 b

e:

1.
 Id

en
tif

y 
a 

40
0m

 b
uf

fe
r 

fr
om

 th
e 

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 p

ub
 lo

ss
.

2.
 Id

en
tif

y 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 w
or

ki
ng

 a
ge

 a
du

lts
 w

ith
in

 
th

is
 b

uf
fe

r.
3.

 Id
en

tif
y 

w
ha

t a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

w
ith

in
 th

is
 b

uf
fe

r 
or

 n
ea

rb
y.

4.
 C

al
cu

la
te

 h
ow

 m
an

y 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
pe

r 
w

or
ki

ng
 a

ge
 a

du
lt.

13
08

3 
- 

C
al

de
co

tte
 C

on
su

lta
nt

s
O

bj
ec

t
S

im
pl

ify
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t c

rit
er

ia
 in

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 4

.5
; a

nd
 

am
en

d 
A

nn
ex

 C
, C

om
m

un
ity

 C
at

ch
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 
C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
to

 c
la

rif
y 

ho
w

 it
 c

an
 b

e 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
d 

th
at

 th
e 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 n
ee

ds
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
 o

r 
an

y 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
'A

' o
r 

'D
1'

 c
la

ss
 u

se
 

an
d 

its
 lo

ss
 w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 d
am

ag
e 

th
e 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

of
 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
er

ci
al

 o
r 

co
m

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

th
at

 
pr

ov
id

e 
fo

r 
da

y-
to

-d
ay

 n
ee

ds
 in

 th
e 

lo
ca

l a
re

a.

N
o 

co
m

m
en

t
N

ot
ed

.
13

03
5 

- 
N

at
ur

al
 E

ng
la

nd
S

up
po

rt
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

C
am

br
id

ge
P

P
F

 b
ro

ad
ly

 w
el

co
m

es
 th

e 
pr

op
os

al
s 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 a

nd
 th

at
 th

es
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 

w
ill

 b
ec

om
e 

a 
'm

at
er

ia
l c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n'

 in
 d

et
er

m
in

in
g 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 in
 th

e 
C

ity
.

W
e 

be
lie

ve
 th

es
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 a

re
 u

rg
en

tly
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

in
 

or
de

r 
th

at
 th

e 
ne

w
 p

ro
te

ct
io

ns
, g

iv
en

 to
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

un
de

r 
N

P
P

F
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 7
0,

 a
re

 p
ro

pe
rly

 a
nd

 
co

ns
is

te
nt

ly
 a

pp
lie

d 
in

 th
e 

C
ity

.

S
up

po
rt

 n
ot

ed
.

86
57

 -
 C

am
br

id
ge

 P
as

t, 
P

re
se

nt
 

an
d 

F
ut

ur
e

S
up

po
rt

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

I a
pp

ro
ve

 o
f t

hi
s 

pl
an

, b
ut

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

vi
gi

la
nt

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
 o

w
ne

rs
 d

o 
ge

nu
in

el
y 

ex
er

t t
he

ir 
be

st
 e

ffo
rt

s 
to

 k
ee

p 
bu

ild
in

gs
 

op
en

 a
s 

pu
bs

.

S
up

po
rt

 n
ot

ed
.

68
59

S
up

po
rt

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

P
ag

e 
3 

of
 5

6

Page 415



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

1.
 In

tr
od

uc
tio

n

S
co

pe
 a

nd
 P

ur
po

se

A
ct

io
n

Sc
op

e 
an

d 
P

ur
po

se
- 

T
he

 s
ec

tio
n 

co
ul

d 
be

 m
or

e 
po

si
tiv

e 
ab

ou
t t

he
 

be
ne

fit
s 

of
 th

e 
ci

ty
's

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s
- 

T
he

re
 is

 n
o 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 th
e 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pr
es

su
re

s 
fa

ci
ng

 th
e 

ci
ty

- 
Is

 th
is

 s
im

pl
y 

a 
re

sp
on

se
 to

 c
om

m
un

ity
 c

on
ce

rn
 o

r 
is

 
it 

an
 a

tte
m

pt
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 p
ol

ic
y 

th
at

 p
rio

rit
is

es
 th

e 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s 
ov

er
 o

th
er

 fo
rm

s 
of

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t?

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
he

 IP
P

G
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

pr
od

uc
ed

 to
 

ac
t a

s 
a 

m
at

er
ia

l c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 a
ny

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
in

 C
am

br
id

ge
, i

n 
ad

va
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

C
am

br
id

ge
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
T

ow
ar

ds
 2

03
1.

  I
t i

s 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

pa
ra

gr
ap

hs
 in

 th
e 

'S
co

pe
 a

nd
 

P
ur

po
se

' s
ec

tio
n 

se
t o

ut
 th

e 
re

as
on

in
g 

be
hi

nd
 th

e 
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
IP

P
G

69
47

O
bj

ec
t

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

W
e 

ob
je

ct
 to

 th
e 

as
se

rt
io

n 
th

at
 c

lo
se

d 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

m
or

e 
vi

ab
le

 if
 m

an
ag

ed
 u

nd
er

 a
 d

iff
er

en
t 

sy
st

em
 o

r 
m

or
e 

im
m

un
e 

to
 c

lo
su

re
 th

an
 ti

ed
 p

ub
s.

 
T

he
re

 is
 n

o 
ev

id
en

ce
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 th
is

 c
la

im
, o

n 
th

e 
co

nt
ra

ry
 a

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 r

ec
en

t p
ub

 c
lo

su
re

 s
ta

tis
tic

s 
fr

ee
ho

ld
 p

ub
s 

ar
e 

ac
tu

al
ly

 c
lo

si
ng

 a
t a

 fa
st

er
 r

at
e 

th
an

 
tie

d 
pu

bs
.

C
on

ce
rn

 n
ot

ed
. T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 n
ot

 a
ss

er
tin

g 
th

at
 

fr
ee

ho
ld

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s 
ar

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
ily

 m
or

e 
vi

ab
le

 
th

an
 ti

ed
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s,

 th
e 

po
in

t b
ei

ng
 r

ai
se

d 
is

 th
at

 
di

ffe
re

nt
 w

ay
s 

of
 m

an
ag

in
g 

pr
em

is
es

 c
an

 b
e 

m
or

e 
th

an
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l t
ha

n 
ot

he
rs

. H
en

ce
 ju

st
 b

ec
au

se
 

on
e 

op
er

at
or

 h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
ab

le
 to

 m
ak

e 
a 

su
cc

es
s 

of
 a

 p
ub

 d
oe

s 
no

t m
ea

n 
th

at
 a

ll 
op

er
at

or
s 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
fa

il.

14
68

9 
- 

B
rit

is
h 

B
ee

r 
&

 P
ub

 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
O

bj
ec

t
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

I a
gr

ee
 th

at
 w

ith
 s

up
er

m
ar

ke
ts

 s
el

lin
g 

al
co

ho
l s

o 
ch

ea
pl

y 
an

d 
be

in
g 

so
 e

as
y 

to
 b

uy
 fr

om
, p

ub
s 

in
 th

e 
qu

an
tit

y 
C

am
br

id
ge

 h
ad

 d
id

n'
t s

ta
nd

 a
 c

ha
nc

e.
 I 

am
 

m
or

e 
sa

d 
ab

ou
t a

 p
ub

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
be

in
g 

kn
oc

ke
d 

do
w

n 
fo

r 
fla

ts
 th

an
 I 

am
 to

 s
ee

 it
 s

hu
t. 

I'd
 m

uc
h 

ra
th

er
 th

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

w
as

 k
ep

t a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

an
d 

us
ed

 fo
r 

ot
he

r 
us

es
 fo

r 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

. O
nc

e 
th

ey
're

 fl
at

s,
 th

ey
 c

an
't 

be
 c

ha
ng

ed
 b

ac
k 

in
to

 p
ub

s 
ag

ai
n.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
he

 IP
P

G
 s

et
s 

ou
t c

rit
er

ia
 fo

r 
th

e 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

of
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 a
ffe

ct
in

g 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

an
d 

do
es

 s
ee

k 
to

 p
ro

te
ct

 p
ub

lic
 

ho
us

es
 a

nd
 th

ei
r 

bu
ild

in
gs

 b
y 

re
ta

in
in

g 
th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 

us
e.

  W
he

re
 m

ar
ke

tin
g 

ha
s 

sh
ow

n 
th

at
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 
ho

us
e 

is
 n

ot
 v

ia
bl

e,
 th

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

of
 p

ro
te

ct
in

g 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 lo
ss

 o
f t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

its
el

f r
el

at
e 

to
 w

ht
he

r 
it 

is
 a

 L
is

te
d 

B
ui

ld
in

g,
 w

ith
in

 a
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
or

 
pr

ot
ec

te
d 

by
 a

n 
A

rt
ic

le
 4

 d
ire

ct
io

n.
  T

he
 r

et
en

tio
n 

of
 

th
e 

bu
ild

in
g 

its
el

f c
ou

ld
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 b

y 
ap

pl
yi

ng
 fo

r 
lis

tin
g 

of
 p

ub
s 

of
 h

ig
h 

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

 q
ua

lit
y,

 e
xt

en
di

ng
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
as

 to
 in

co
rp

or
at

e 
pu

b 
bu

ild
in

gs
 o

f 
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

al
 m

er
it 

, a
nd

/o
r 

en
ac

tin
g 

A
rt

ic
le

 4
 

di
re

ct
io

ns
 to

 r
em

ov
e 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t r
ig

ht
s 

in
 

re
sp

ec
t o

f d
em

ol
iti

on
.  

P
ut

tin
g 

A
rt

ic
le

 4
 d

ire
ct

io
ns

 in
 

pl
ac

e 
re

qu
ire

s 
a 

se
pa

ra
te

 le
ga

l p
ro

ce
ss

 to
 th

at
 o

f t
he

 
IP

P
G

, w
ith

 c
on

se
qu

en
t r

es
ou

rc
es

 im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

.  

W
hi

ls
t a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

ar
e 

al
re

ad
y 

lis
te

d,
 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 a
re

 a
lre

ad
y 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 a

pp
ly

in
g 

fo
r 

lis
tin

g 
of

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 
C

am
br

id
ge

, a
s 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y,
 a

nd
 c

on
si

de
rin

g 
an

d 
am

en
di

ng
 th

e 
bo

un
da

rie
s 

of
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

as
.

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
in

tr
od

uc
e 

A
rt

ic
le

 4
 d

ire
ct

io
ns

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s.

12
77

6
S

up
po

rt
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 c

on
si

de
r 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

in
tr

od
uc

e 
A

rt
ic

le
 4

 d
ire

ct
io

ns
 to

 p
ro

te
ct

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s.
  T

hi
s 

a 
se

pa
ra

te
 le

ga
l p

ro
ce

ss
 to

 th
at

 o
f t

he
 IP

P
G

.

P
ag

e 
4 

of
 5

6

Page 416



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

1.
 In

tr
od

uc
tio

n

S
co

pe
 a

nd
 P

ur
po

se

A
ct

io
n

W
e 

su
pp

or
t t

he
 p

re
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 p
ub

 s
ite

 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t -

 e
no

ug
h 

is
 e

no
ug

h.
S

up
po

rt
 n

ot
ed

.
87

81
S

up
po

rt
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

T
he

 c
ha

ng
e 

of
 u

se
 fr

om
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
 to

 h
ou

si
ng

 is
 

of
te

n 
se

en
 a

s 
a 

w
ay

 o
f m

ak
in

g 
a 

'q
ui

ck
 b

uc
k'

 b
y 

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
. T

he
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 lo

os
e 

w
he

n 
th

is
 

ha
pp

en
s.

S
up

po
rt

 n
ot

ed
.

12
78

4
S

up
po

rt
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

St
at

us
 o

f t
he

 IP
P

G
W

e 
ob

je
ct

 to
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f a

n 
IP

P
G

 fo
r 

th
is

 
pu

rp
os

e 
w

hi
ch

 in
 o

ur
 v

ie
w

 g
oe

s 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 s
pi

rit
 o

f 
th

e 
N

P
P

F
 to

 r
ed

uc
e 

ob
st

ac
le

s 
to

 g
ro

w
th

 a
nd

 a
llo

w
 fo

r 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 to
 c

ha
ng

e 
an

d 
ad

ap
t t

o 
a 

ch
an

gi
ng

 
m

ar
ke

t.

C
on

ce
rn

 n
ot

ed
. T

he
 N

P
P

F
 a

ls
o 

m
ak

es
 it

 c
le

ar
 th

at
 

pu
bs

 a
re

 c
ap

ab
le

 o
f b

ei
ng

 im
po

rt
an

t c
om

m
un

ity
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

pr
ot

ec
te

d.
 T

hi
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 
co

nf
irm

ed
 a

t a
pp

ea
l f

or
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 in
 C

am
br

id
ge

 (
e.

g.
 th

e 
U

ni
co

rn
 a

nd
 th

e 
C

ar
pe

nt
er

s 
A

rm
s)

, w
he

re
 la

ck
 o

f m
ar

ke
tin

g 
as

 a
 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

 w
as

 a
 k

ey
 is

su
e.

 T
he

 IP
P

G
 d

oe
s 

al
lo

w
 

fle
xi

bi
lit

y 
fo

r 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t w

he
re

 th
e 

cr
ite

ria
 in

 th
e 

do
cu

m
en

t a
re

 m
et

.

14
69

0 
- 

B
rit

is
h 

B
ee

r 
&

 P
ub

 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
O

bj
ec

t
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

P
ag

e 
5 

of
 5

6

Page 417



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

1.
 In

tr
od

uc
tio

n

S
ta

tu
s 

of
 th

e 
IP

P
G

A
ct

io
n

-T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ne
ed

s 
to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 th
at

 th
e 

ad
ve

rs
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

of
 p

er
m

itt
in

g 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f a

 P
H

 s
ite

 
w

ou
ld

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 a
nd

 d
em

on
st

ra
bl

y 
ou

tw
ei

gh
 th

e 
be

ne
fit

s 
of

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

ss
es

se
d 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
 

N
P

P
F

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
"a

s 
a 

w
ho

le
" 

(N
P

F
F

 p
ar

a 
14

).

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
he

 IP
P

G
 is

 n
ot

 in
te

nd
ed

 to
 

co
nf

lic
t w

ith
 th

e 
N

P
P

F
.  

T
he

 IP
P

G
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

am
en

de
d 

to
 r

ef
le

ct
 th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 fu
rt

he
r 

ex
pl

ai
n 

ho
w

 it
 

w
or

ks
 w

ith
 th

e 
N

P
P

F
.  

A
 n

ew
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 2
.2

 h
as

 
be

en
 in

se
rt

ed
 to

 r
ea

d:
 "

T
he

 IP
P

G
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

is
 to

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 p

re
m

is
es

 th
at

 w
er

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

in
 J

ul
y 

20
06

, t
he

 d
at

e 
w

he
n 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
w

as
 

ad
op

te
d.

  T
hi

s 
en

su
re

s 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

an
d 

th
e 

N
P

P
F

.  
B

ui
ld

in
gs

 th
at

 w
er

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

in
 J

ul
y 

20
06

 a
re

 p
re

se
nt

 o
n 

th
e 

lis
t o

f 
sa

fe
gu

ar
de

d 
pu

bs
 a

t S
ec

tio
n 

5 
an

d 
al

l o
f t

he
se

 a
re

 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

IP
P

G
.  

T
hi

s 
lis

t i
nc

lu
de

s 
an

y 
pu

bs
 w

ith
 

un
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

er
m

is
si

on
s 

an
d 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
th

es
e 

pu
bs

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
IP

P
G

 d
es

pi
te

 th
e 

pr
es

en
ce

 o
f 

un
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

er
m

is
si

on
s 

fo
r 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

us
es

."
  A

 n
ew

 s
en

te
nc

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 in

se
rt

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 2

.4
 to

 r
ea

d 
"G

iv
en

 th
es

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
ec

on
om

ic
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l b
en

ef
its

, i
t i

s 
vi

ta
l t

o 
co

ns
id

er
 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 p
ub

s 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

s 
pe

r 
th

e 
N

P
P

F
."

  F
ur

th
er

m
or

e 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
s 

w
er

e 
ad

de
d 

at
 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
2.

10
 o

nw
ar

ds
 to

 r
ea

d:
 T

hi
s 

ne
ed

 fo
r 

fle
xi

bi
lit

y 
is

 a
ls

o 
hi

gh
lig

ht
ed

 in
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
53

 w
ith

 
re

ga
rd

 to
 L

oc
al

 P
la

ns
.  

T
hi

s 
st

at
es

 th
at

:
"E

ac
h 

lo
ca

l p
la

nn
in

g 
au

th
or

ity
 s

ho
ul

d 
pr

od
uc

e 
a 

Lo
ca

l P
la

n 
fo

r 
its

 a
re

a.
  T

hi
s 

ca
n 

be
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 in
 

w
ho

le
 o

r 
in

 p
ar

t t
o 

re
sp

on
d 

fle
xi

bl
y 

to
 c

ha
ng

in
g 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s.
  A

ny
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
la

n 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 s
ho

ul
d 

on
ly

 b
e 

us
ed

 w
he

re
 c

le
ar

ly
 

ju
st

ifi
ed

. S
up

pl
em

en
ta

ry
 p

la
nn

in
g 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 u
se

d 
w

he
re

 th
ey

 c
an

 h
el

p 
ap

pl
ic

an
ts

 m
ak

e 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 o
r 

ai
d 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 d

el
iv

er
y,

 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 n
ot

 b
e 

us
ed

 to
 a

dd
 u

nn
ec

es
sa

ril
y 

to
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 b

ur
de

ns
 o

n 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t"
 (

em
ph

as
is

 
un

de
rli

ne
d)

.
T

he
 IP

P
G

 a
cc

or
ds

 w
ith

 th
e 

N
P

P
F

 in
 te

rm
s 

of
 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

to
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

be
in

g 
im

po
rt

an
t c

om
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

hi
le

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
r 

ch
an

ge
 o

f u
se

 is
 p

os
si

bl
e 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 a

 s
et

 o
f c

rit
er

ia
 b

ei
ng

 m
et

.  
T

hi
s 

en
su

re
s 

th
at

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 is

 n
ot

 a
nt

i d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 th
e 

fle
xi

bi
lit

y 
to

 a
llo

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t w

he
re

 it
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

in
 

th
e 

in
te

re
st

s 
of

 th
e 

ec
on

om
y 

or
 c

om
m

un
ity

.
N

ot
w

ith
st

an
di

ng
 th

e 
te

rm
s 

of
 th

e 
IP

P
G

, p
ub

lic
 

ho
us

es
 w

ill
 r

et
ai

n 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 d

eg
re

e 
of

 e
co

no
m

ic
 

80
86

 -
 J

an
ua

ry
s

O
bj

ec
t

In
se

rt
 a

 n
ew

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 2

.2
 to

 r
ea

d:
 "

T
he

 IP
P

G
 

gu
id

an
ce

 is
 to

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 p

re
m

is
es

 th
at

 w
er

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

in
 J

ul
y 

20
06

, t
he

 d
at

e 
w

he
n 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
w

as
 a

do
pt

ed
.  

T
hi

s 
en

su
re

s 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

an
d 

th
e 

N
P

P
F

.  
B

ui
ld

in
gs

 th
at

 w
er

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

in
 J

ul
y 

20
06

 a
re

 p
re

se
nt

 o
n 

th
e 

lis
t o

f s
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 p
ub

s 
at

 
S

ec
tio

n 
5 

an
d 

al
l o

f t
he

se
 a

re
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 th
e 

IP
P

G
.

T
hi

s 
lis

t i
nc

lu
de

s 
an

y 
pu

bs
 w

ith
 u

ni
m

pl
em

en
te

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

er
m

is
si

on
s 

an
d 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
th

es
e 

pu
bs

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 
th

e 
IP

P
G

 d
es

pi
te

 th
e 

pr
es

en
ce

 o
f u

ni
m

pl
em

en
te

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

er
m

is
si

on
s 

fo
r 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

us
es

."

In
se

rt
 a

 n
ew

 s
en

te
nc

e 
 o

n 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 2

.4
 

to
 r

ea
d 

"G
iv

en
 th

es
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

co
no

m
ic

 a
nd

 
so

ci
al

 b
en

ef
its

, i
t i

s 
vi

ta
l t

o 
co

ns
id

er
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

pu
bs

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
as

 p
er

 th
e 

N
P

P
F

."

In
se

rt
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
s 

at
 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
2.

10
 o

nw
ar

ds
 to

 r
ea

d:
 

"T
hi

s 
ne

ed
 fo

r 
fle

xi
bi

lit
y 

is
 a

ls
o 

hi
gh

lig
ht

ed
 in

 
P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
53

 w
ith

 r
eg

ar
d 

to
 L

oc
al

 P
la

ns
.  

T
hi

s 
st

at
es

 th
at

:
"E

ac
h 

lo
ca

l p
la

nn
in

g 
au

th
or

ity
 s

ho
ul

d 
pr

od
uc

e 
a 

Lo
ca

l P
la

n 
fo

r 
its

 a
re

a.
  T

hi
s 

ca
n 

be
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 in
 

w
ho

le
 o

r 
in

 p
ar

t t
o 

re
sp

on
d 

fle
xi

bl
y 

to
 c

ha
ng

in
g 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s.
  A

ny
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
la

n 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 s
ho

ul
d 

on
ly

 b
e 

us
ed

 w
he

re
 c

le
ar

ly
 

ju
st

ifi
ed

. S
up

pl
em

en
ta

ry
 p

la
nn

in
g 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
us

ed
 w

he
re

 th
ey

 c
an

 h
el

p 
ap

pl
ic

an
ts

 
m

ak
e 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 o

r 
ai

d 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 
de

liv
er

y,
 a

nd
 s

ho
ul

d 
no

t b
e 

us
ed

 to
 a

dd
 

un
ne

ce
ss

ar
ily

 to
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 b

ur
de

ns
 o

n 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t"
 (

em
ph

as
is

 u
nd

er
lin

ed
).

T
he

 IP
P

G
 a

cc
or

ds
 w

ith
 th

e 
N

P
P

F
 in

 te
rm

s 
of

 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
to

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s 
be

in
g 

im
po

rt
an

t c
om

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
hi

le
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

r 
ch

an
ge

 o
f u

se
 is

 p
os

si
bl

e 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 a
 s

et
 o

f c
rit

er
ia

 b
ei

ng
 m

et
.  

T
hi

s 
en

su
re

s 
th

at
 th

e 
IP

P
G

 is
 n

ot
 a

nt
i d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 th

at
 th

er
e 

is
 th

e 
fle

xi
bi

lit
y 

to
 a

llo
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
he

re
 it

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

 
th

e 
in

te
re

st
s 

of
 th

e 
ec

on
om

y 
or

 c
om

m
un

ity
.

N
ot

w
ith

st
an

di
ng

 th
e 

te
rm

s 
of

 th
e 

IP
P

G
, p

ub
lic

 

P
ag

e 
6 

of
 5

6

Page 418



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

1.
 In

tr
od

uc
tio

n

S
ta

tu
s 

of
 th

e 
IP

P
G

A
ct

io
n

fle
xi

bi
lit

y 
w

ith
 th

ei
r 

ab
ili

ty
 to

 c
ha

ng
e 

to
 a

ny
 o

f U
se

 
C

la
ss

es
 A

1,
 A

2 
or

 A
3 

w
ith

ou
t p

la
nn

in
g 

co
ns

en
t. 

 
P

le
as

e 
no

te
 th

at
 it

 is
 n

ot
 p

ro
po

se
d 

to
 w

ith
dr

aw
 th

es
e 

rig
ht

s 
(t

hr
ou

gh
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 a
n 

A
rt

ic
le

 IV
 D

ire
ct

io
n)

 in
 

or
de

r 
to

 r
et

ai
n 

su
ffi

ci
en

t f
le

xi
bi

lit
y 

to
 a

llo
w

 th
e 

pu
b 

m
ar

ke
t t

o 
be

 a
bl

e 
to

 a
da

pt
 to

 r
ap

id
 c

ha
ng

e.
 

P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 1

30
 o

f t
he

 N
P

P
F

 is
 a

ls
o 

re
le

va
nt

.  
It 

re
fe

rs
 to

 th
e 

de
lib

er
at

e 
ne

gl
ec

t o
f h

er
ita

ge
 a

ss
et

s 
an

d 
w

ou
ld

 r
el

at
e 

to
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

w
he

re
 th

ey
 a

re
 

lo
ca

lly
 o

r 
na

tio
na

lly
 li

st
ed

 o
r 

pa
rt

 o
f a

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a.

  T
he

 N
P

P
F

 a
dv

is
es

 th
at

 th
e 

de
te

rio
ra

te
d 

st
at

e 
of

 th
e 

he
rit

ag
e 

as
se

t s
ho

ul
d 

no
t b

e 
ta

ke
n 

in
to

 
ac

co
un

t i
n 

an
y 

pl
an

ni
ng

 d
ec

is
io

n.
  T

he
 N

P
P

F
 

de
fin

iti
on

 o
f a

 h
er

ita
ge

 a
ss

et
 is

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
G

lo
ss

ar
y 

to
 th

is
 IP

P
G

.
Lo

ca
l E

xi
st

in
g 

po
lic

y 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 p
ub

s 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

is
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 th
e 

C
am

br
id

ge
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
(2

00
6)

 (
po

lic
ie

s 
sa

ve
d 

in
 J

ul
y 

20
09

) 
- 

S
av

ed
 P

ol
ic

y 
6/

6 
(C

ha
ng

e 
of

 U
se

 in
 th

e 
C

ity
 C

en
tr

e)
, S

av
ed

 P
ol

ic
y 

6/
7 

(S
ho

pp
in

g 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 C

ha
ng

e 
of

 U
se

 in
 

D
is

tr
ic

t a
nd

 L
oc

al
 C

en
tr

es
),

 S
av

ed
 P

ol
ic

y 
6/

10
 (

F
oo

d 
&

 D
rin

k 
O

ut
le

ts
),

 S
av

ed
 P

ol
ic

y 
5/

11
 (

C
om

m
un

ity
 

F
ac

ili
tie

s:
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
of

 E
xi

st
in

g 
F

ac
ili

tie
s)

, S
av

ed
 

P
ol

ic
y 

5/
12

 (
N

ew
 C

om
m

un
ity

 F
ac

ili
tie

s)
 a

nd
 S

av
ed

 
P

ol
ic

y 
3/

10
 (

S
ub

-d
iv

is
io

n 
of

 E
xi

st
in

g 
P

lo
ts

).
N

on
e 

of
 th

e 
fir

st
 th

re
e 

po
lic

ie
s 

se
ek

 to
 p

re
ve

nt
 th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

r 
ch

an
ge

 o
f u

se
 o

f p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s.
S

av
ed

 P
ol

ic
y 

5/
11

 r
el

at
es

 to
 c

om
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
  

A
lth

ou
gh

 it
 d

oe
s 

no
t s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
 in

cl
ud

e 
pu

bl
ic

 
ho

us
es

, i
n 

th
e 

re
ce

nt
 a

pp
ea

l d
is

m
is

sa
l c

on
ce

rn
in

g 
T

he
 C

ar
pe

nt
er

s 
A

rm
s 

(1
82

-1
86

 V
ic

to
ria

 R
oa

d,
 

C
am

br
id

ge
),

 th
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r 
fo

llo
w

ed
 a

dv
ic

e 
in

 th
e 

N
P

P
F

 c
on

ce
rn

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
be

in
g 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
ap

pl
ie

d 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 w
ei

gh
t t

o 
th

e 
N

P
P

F
 

in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f t
hi

s 
gu

id
an

ce
.  

T
he

 In
sp

ec
to

r 
co

nc
lu

de
d 

th
at

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
w

he
th

er
 a

 
ch

an
ge

 o
f u

se
 o

f t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
(a

 v
al

ue
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

fa
ci

lit
y)

 is
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

, i
t s

ho
ul

d 
fir

st
 b

e 
m

ar
ke

te
d 

as
 a

 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
.  

T
hi

s 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 w

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
be

 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 h
ow

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

ch
an

ge
s 

of
 u

se
 

in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 o

th
er

 lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

ar
e 

de
al

t w
ith

 u
nd

er
 p

ol
ic

y 
5/

11
 o

f t
he

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n.

  T
he

 
in

sp
ec

to
r 

th
er

ef
or

e 
de

ci
de

d 
to

 tr
ea

t p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s 
as

 
a 

co
m

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
pu

rp
os

es
 o

f S
av

ed
 

P
ol

ic
y 

5/
11

.
In

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f n

ew
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s,

 S
av

ed
 P

ol
ic

y 
5/

12
 

ho
us

es
 w

ill
 r

et
ai

n 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 d

eg
re

e 
of

 e
co

no
m

ic
 

fle
xi

bi
lit

y 
w

ith
 th

ei
r 

ab
ili

ty
 to

 c
ha

ng
e 

to
 a

ny
 o

f U
se

 
C

la
ss

es
 A

1,
 A

2 
or

 A
3 

w
ith

ou
t p

la
nn

in
g 

co
ns

en
t. 

 
P

le
as

e 
no

te
 th

at
 it

 is
 n

ot
 p

ro
po

se
d 

to
 w

ith
dr

aw
 

th
es

e 
rig

ht
s 

(t
hr

ou
gh

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 a

n 
A

rt
ic

le
 IV

 
D

ire
ct

io
n)

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 r

et
ai

n 
su

ffi
ci

en
t f

le
xi

bi
lit

y 
to

 
al

lo
w

 th
e 

pu
b 

m
ar

ke
t t

o 
be

 a
bl

e 
to

 a
da

pt
 to

 r
ap

id
 

ch
an

ge
.

P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 1

30
 o

f t
he

 N
P

P
F

 is
 a

ls
o 

re
le

va
nt

.  
It 

re
fe

rs
 to

 th
e 

de
lib

er
at

e 
ne

gl
ec

t o
f h

er
ita

ge
 a

ss
et

s 
an

d 
w

ou
ld

 r
el

at
e 

to
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

w
he

re
 th

ey
 a

re
 

lo
ca

lly
 o

r 
na

tio
na

lly
 li

st
ed

 o
r 

pa
rt

 o
f a

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a.

  T
he

 N
P

P
F

 a
dv

is
es

 th
at

 th
e 

de
te

rio
ra

te
d 

st
at

e 
of

 th
e 

he
rit

ag
e 

as
se

t s
ho

ul
d 

no
t b

e 
ta

ke
n 

in
to

 
ac

co
un

t i
n 

an
y 

pl
an

ni
ng

 d
ec

is
io

n.
  T

he
 N

P
P

F
 

de
fin

iti
on

 o
f a

 h
er

ita
ge

 a
ss

et
 is

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
G

lo
ss

ar
y 

to
 th

is
 IP

P
G

.
Lo

ca
l

E
xi

st
in

g 
po

lic
y 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 p

ub
s 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
is

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 th

e 
C

am
br

id
ge

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n 

(2
00

6)
 (

po
lic

ie
s 

sa
ve

d 
in

 J
ul

y 
20

09
) 

- 
S

av
ed

 P
ol

ic
y 

6/
6 

(C
ha

ng
e 

of
 U

se
 in

 th
e 

C
ity

 C
en

tr
e)

, S
av

ed
 

P
ol

ic
y 

6/
7 

(S
ho

pp
in

g 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 C

ha
ng

e 
of

 
U

se
 in

 D
is

tr
ic

t a
nd

 L
oc

al
 C

en
tr

es
),

 S
av

ed
 P

ol
ic

y 
6/

10
 (

F
oo

d 
&

 D
rin

k 
O

ut
le

ts
),

 S
av

ed
 P

ol
ic

y 
5/

11
 

(C
om

m
un

ity
 F

ac
ili

tie
s:

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

of
 E

xi
st

in
g 

F
ac

ili
tie

s)
, S

av
ed

 P
ol

ic
y 

5/
12

 (
N

ew
 C

om
m

un
ity

 
F

ac
ili

tie
s)

 a
nd

 S
av

ed
 P

ol
ic

y 
3/

10
 (

S
ub

-d
iv

is
io

n 
of

 
E

xi
st

in
g 

P
lo

ts
).

N
on

e 
of

 th
e 

fir
st

 th
re

e 
po

lic
ie

s 
se

ek
 to

 p
re

ve
nt

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
r 

ch
an

ge
 o

f u
se

 o
f p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s.

S
av

ed
 P

ol
ic

y 
5/

11
 r

el
at

es
 to

 o
nl

y 
to

 tr
ad

iti
on

al
ly

 
de

fin
ed

 c
om

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

  A
lth

ou
gh

 it
 d

oe
s 

no
t 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 in

cl
ud

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s,

 in
 th

e 
re

ce
nt

 
ap

pe
al

 d
is

m
is

sa
l c

on
ce

rn
in

g 
T

he
 C

ar
pe

nt
er

s 
A

rm
s 

(1
82

-1
86

 V
ic

to
ria

 R
oa

d,
 C

am
br

id
ge

),
 th

e 
In

sp
ec

to
r 

fo
llo

w
ed

 a
dv

ic
e 

in
 th

e 
N

P
P

F
 c

on
ce

rn
in

g 
pu

bl
ic

 
ho

us
es

 b
ei

ng
 c

om
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
ap

pl
ie

d 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 w
ei

gh
t t

o 
th

e 
N

P
P

F
 in

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f t

hi
s 

gu
id

an
ce

.  
T

he
 In

sp
ec

to
r 

co
nc

lu
de

d 
th

at
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 
de

te
rm

in
e 

w
he

th
er

 a
 c

ha
ng

e 
of

 u
se

 o
f t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

(a
 v

al
ue

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
y)

 is
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

, i
t 

sh
ou

ld
 fi

rs
t b

e 
m

ar
ke

te
d 

as
 a

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

.  
T

hi
s 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 w
ou

ld
 a

ls
o 

be
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 h
ow

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
ch

an
ge

s 
of

 u
se

 in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 o

th
er

 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
ar

e 
de

al
t w

ith
 u

nd
er

 

P
ag

e 
7 

of
 5

6

Page 419



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

1.
 In

tr
od

uc
tio

n

S
ta

tu
s 

of
 th

e 
IP

P
G

A
ct

io
n

"N
ew

 C
om

m
un

ity
 F

ac
ili

tie
s"

 w
ou

ld
 a

pp
ly

.  
T

he
 N

P
P

F
 

st
at

es
 th

at
 a

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

 is
 a

 c
om

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

y 
an

d 
th

er
ef

or
e 

ne
w

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 a

ga
in

st
 S

av
ed

 P
ol

ic
y 

5/
12

.  
E

ss
en

tia
lly

, 
it 

is
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 to
 p

ro
ve

 a
 lo

ca
l n

ee
d 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 b

e 
in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 th
e 

P
ol

ic
y.

  H
ow

ev
er

, i
t w

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
be

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 a
dh

er
e 

to
 o

th
er

 g
en

er
al

 d
es

ig
n 

po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

ha
ve

 r
eg

ar
d 

to
 n

or
m

al
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

an
d 

am
en

ity
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
ns

.
In

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
or

 r
et

en
tio

n 
of

 la
rg

e 
pu

b 
ga

rd
en

s 
or

 c
ar

 p
ar

ks
, S

av
ed

 P
ol

ic
y 

3/
10

 "
S

ub
-

di
vi

si
on

 o
f E

xi
st

in
g 

P
lo

ts
" 

w
ill

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d.

  L
ar

ge
 

ou
td

oo
r 

sp
ac

es
 a

tta
ch

ed
 to

 p
ub

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

si
m

ila
r 

pr
es

su
re

s 
fo

r 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
s 

fo
r 

la
rg

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
dw

el
lin

gh
ou

se
 g

ar
de

ns
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

op
en

 
sp

ac
es

.  
T

hi
s 

P
ol

ic
y 

in
cl

ud
es

 a
s 

cr
ite

rio
n 

b,
 th

e 
ne

ed
 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

de
qu

at
e 

am
en

ity
 s

pa
ce

 a
nd

 p
ar

ki
ng

 fo
r 

ex
is

tin
g 

pr
op

er
tie

s.
  T

he
re

fo
re

, r
es

id
en

tia
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

ro
po

se
d 

on
 p

ub
 g

ar
de

ns
 o

r 
ca

r 
pa

rk
s 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 o

pe
n 

am
en

ity
 s

pa
ce

 le
ft 

fo
r 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 th
e 

pu
b 

an
d 

its
 

cu
st

om
er

s.
"

po
lic

y 
5/

11
 o

f t
he

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n.

 
In

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f n

ew
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s,

 S
av

ed
 P

ol
ic

y 
5/

12
 

"N
ew

 C
om

m
un

ity
 F

ac
ili

tie
s"

 w
ou

ld
 a

pp
ly

.  
T

he
 

N
P

P
F

 s
ta

te
s 

th
at

 a
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
 is

 a
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
fa

ci
lit

y 
an

d 
th

er
ef

or
e 

ne
w

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 a

ga
in

st
 S

av
ed

 P
ol

ic
y 

5/
12

.  
E

ss
en

tia
lly

, 
it 

is
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 to
 p

ro
ve

 a
 lo

ca
l n

ee
d 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 b

e 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

P
ol

ic
y.

  H
ow

ev
er

, i
t w

ou
ld

 
al

so
 b

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 a

dh
er

e 
to

 o
th

er
 g

en
er

al
 

de
si

gn
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

an
d 

ha
ve

 r
eg

ar
d 

to
 n

or
m

al
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l a
nd

 a
m

en
ity

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

ns
.

In
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

or
 r

et
en

tio
n 

of
 la

rg
e 

pu
b 

ga
rd

en
s 

or
 c

ar
 p

ar
ks

, S
av

ed
 P

ol
ic

y 
3/

10
 "

S
ub

-
di

vi
si

on
 o

f E
xi

st
in

g 
P

lo
ts

" 
w

ill
 b

e 
ap

pl
ie

d.
  L

ar
ge

 
ou

td
oo

r 
sp

ac
es

 a
tta

ch
ed

 to
 p

ub
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
si

m
ila

r 
pr

es
su

re
s 

fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

s 
fo

r 
la

rg
e 

pr
iv

at
e 

dw
el

lin
gh

ou
se

 g
ar

de
ns

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
op

en
 

sp
ac

es
.  

T
hi

s 
P

ol
ic

y 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

s 
cr

ite
rio

n 
b,

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

de
qu

at
e 

am
en

ity
 s

pa
ce

 a
nd

 
pa

rk
in

g 
fo

r 
ex

is
tin

g 
pr

op
er

tie
s.

  T
he

re
fo

re
, 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
po

se
d 

on
 p

ub
 g

ar
de

ns
 

or
 c

ar
 p

ar
ks

 w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 
su

ffi
ci

en
t o

pe
n 

am
en

ity
 s

pa
ce

 le
ft 

fo
r 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 
th

e 
pu

b 
an

d 
its

 c
us

to
m

er
s.

"

T
he

 s
ta

tu
s 

of
 th

e 
IP

P
G

 h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
cl

ar
ifi

ed
, a

nd
 th

e 
w

ei
gh

t t
o 

be
 a

tta
ch

ed
 to

 it
 is

 e
qu

al
ly

 u
nc

le
ar

. T
hi

s 
ne

ed
s 

to
 b

e 
co

rr
ec

te
d.

In
 o

ur
 v

ie
w

 th
e 

w
ei

gh
t a

tta
ch

ed
 to

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
ex

tr
em

el
y 

lim
ite

d.
 It

 is
 b

ei
ng

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
of

f t
he

 b
ac

k 
of

 
an

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
ba

se
, w

hi
ch

 h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

up
on

 o
r 

ex
am

in
ed

 in
 th

e 
w

ay
 a

 p
ol

ic
y 

em
er

gi
ng

 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

w
ou

ld
 b

e.

T
he

 N
P

P
F

 a
dv

is
es

 th
at

 w
ei

gh
t g

iv
en

 to
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

in
 

em
er

gi
ng

 p
la

ns
 s

ho
ul

d 
ac

co
rd

 to
 th

e 
st

ag
e 

of
 p

la
n 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n.

 In
 th

e 
ev

en
t o

f u
nr

es
ol

ve
d 

ob
je

ct
io

ns
, 

co
ns

is
te

nc
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

pl
an

 w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 a
 fa

ct
or

.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

 It
 is

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

th
at

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 

ac
co

rd
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

N
P

P
F

 in
 te

rm
s 

of
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

to
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

be
in

g 
im

po
rt

an
t 

co
m

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
hi

le
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

r 
ch

an
ge

 o
f u

se
 is

 p
os

si
bl

e 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 a
 s

et
 o

f c
rit

er
ia

 b
ei

ng
 m

et
. G

iv
en

 lo
ca

l c
on

ce
rn

s,
 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 th

e 
lo

ss
 o

f p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s,
 it

 is
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
to

 p
ro

du
ce

 s
om

e 
in

te
rim

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
pr

io
r 

to
 th

e 
ne

w
 

Lo
ca

l P
la

n 
be

in
g 

ad
op

te
d.

  T
he

 IP
P

G
 s

et
s 

ou
t i

n 
S

ec
tio

n 
1 

th
e 

re
as

on
in

g 
be

hi
nd

 th
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 ta
ke

n 
to

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

th
e 

IP
P

G
. T

he
 IP

P
G

 s
up

pl
em

en
ts

 
sa

ve
d 

po
lic

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
C

am
br

id
ge

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n 

20
06

 
an

d,
 o

nc
e 

ad
op

te
d,

 w
ill

 c
on

st
itu

te
 a

 m
at

er
ia

l 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
de

te
rm

in
at

io
n 

of
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 a
ffe

ct
in

g 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

in
 C

am
br

id
ge

. I
t 

is
 in

te
nd

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
IP

P
G

 a
nd

 th
e 

fin
di

ng
s 

of
 it

s 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

C
am

br
id

ge
 P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se
s 

S
tu

dy
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
s 

it 
pr

og
re

ss
es

.

14
69

8 
- 

Ja
nu

ar
ys

 C
on

su
lta

nt
 

S
ur

ve
yo

rs
O

bj
ec

t
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 in

co
rp

or
at

e 
th

e 
IP

P
G

 a
nd

 th
e 

fin
di

ng
s 

of
 th

e 
C

am
br

id
ge

 P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

s 
S

tu
dy

 
in

to
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

R
ev

ie
w

 p
ro

ce
ss

.

P
ag

e 
8 

of
 5

6

Page 420



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

1.
 In

tr
od

uc
tio

n

S
ta

tu
s 

of
 th

e 
IP

P
G

A
ct

io
n

N
o 

po
lic

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

th
at

 p
ro

te
ct

 
P

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s.

 N
P

P
F

: T
he

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
re

m
ai

ns
 th

e 
st

ar
tin

g 
po

in
t f

or
 d

ec
is

io
n 

ta
ki

ng
. 

T
he

re
fo

re
 li

ttl
e 

w
ei

gh
t c

an
 b

e 
at

ta
ch

ed
 to

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 a

t 
th

is
 p

oi
nt

.
T

he
 IP

P
G

 fa
ils

 to
 c

la
rif

y 
w

ha
t w

ei
gh

t c
an

 r
ea

so
na

bl
y 

be
 g

iv
en

 to
 th

e 
gu

id
an

ce
, a

 m
aj

or
 s

ho
rt

co
m

in
g 

of
 th

e 
do

cu
m

en
t.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
he

 IP
P

G
 s

et
s 

ou
t i

n 
S

ec
tio

n 
1 

th
e 

re
as

on
in

g 
be

hi
nd

 th
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 ta
ke

n 
to

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

th
e 

IP
P

G
.  

T
he

 IP
P

G
 s

up
pl

em
en

ts
 s

av
ed

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
in

 
th

e 
C

am
br

id
ge

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n 

20
06

 a
nd

, o
nc

e 
ad

op
te

d,
 

w
ill

 c
on

st
itu

te
 a

 m
at

er
ia

l c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
in

 C
am

br
id

ge
.  

It 
is

 in
te

nd
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
fin

di
ng

s 
of

 it
s 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
C

am
br

id
ge

 
P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se
s 

S
tu

dy
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
s 

it 
pr

og
re

ss
es

.

80
99

 -
 J

an
ua

ry
s

O
bj

ec
t

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 in
co

rp
or

at
e 

th
e 

IP
P

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
fin

di
ng

s 
of

 th
e 

C
am

br
id

ge
 P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se
s 

S
tu

dy
 

in
to

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l P
la

n 
R

ev
ie

w
 p

ro
ce

ss
.

C
on

ce
rn

 r
em

ai
ns

 th
at

 th
e 

w
ei

gh
t o

ffi
ce

rs
 a

nd
 

m
em

be
rs

 a
re

 a
bl

e 
to

 g
iv

e 
to

 In
fo

rm
al

 P
la

nn
in

g 
P

ol
ic

y 
G

ui
da

nc
e 

un
til

 th
e 

ne
w

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n 

is
 in

 p
la

ce
 m

ay
 b

e 
in

su
ffi

ci
en

t a
ga

in
st

 p
re

ss
ur

es
 fr

om
 d

ev
el

op
er

s 
ho

w
ev

er
.

C
on

ce
rn

 n
ot

ed
.  

T
he

 IP
P

G
 w

ill
 n

on
et

he
le

ss
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
po

lic
y 

si
tu

at
io

n 
on

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s 
in

 
C

am
br

id
ge

.  
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 a
ls

o 
in

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

of
 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 o

ve
ra

rc
hi

ng
 p

ol
ic

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

of
 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

ne
w

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n 

an
d 

ha
s 

co
ns

ul
te

d 
on

 a
 r

an
ge

 o
f o

pt
io

ns
 o

n 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

in
 

th
e 

re
ce

nt
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
on

 th
e 

C
am

br
id

ge
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
T

ow
ar

ds
 2

03
1-

 Is
su

es
 a

nd
 O

pt
io

ns
 r

ep
or

t.

14
77

8
O

bj
ec

t
C

on
tin

ue
 to

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 

C
am

br
id

ge
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
T

ow
ar

ds
 2

03
1.

O
ld

 C
he

st
er

to
n 

R
es

id
en

ts
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
(O

C
R

A
) 

w
el

co
m

es
 th

e 
IP

P
G

 o
n 

pu
bs

 a
nd

 th
e 

in
te

nt
 to

 
in

co
rp

or
at

e 
st

re
ng

th
en

ed
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
re

te
nt

io
n 

of
 p

ub
s 

in
to

 th
e 

fo
rt

hc
om

in
g 

Lo
ca

l P
la

n.
 C

on
ce

rn
 

re
m

ai
ns

 th
at

 th
e 

w
ei

gh
t o

ffi
ce

rs
 a

nd
 m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 

ab
le

 to
 g

iv
e 

to
 In

fo
rm

al
 P

la
nn

in
g 

P
ol

ic
y 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
un

til
 

th
e 

ne
w

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n 

is
 in

 p
la

ce
 m

ay
 b

e 
in

su
ffi

ci
en

t 
ag

ai
ns

t p
re

ss
ur

es
 fr

om
 d

ev
el

op
er

s 
ho

w
ev

er
.

C
on

ce
rn

 n
ot

ed
.  

T
he

 IP
P

G
 w

ill
 n

on
et

he
le

ss
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
po

lic
y 

si
tu

at
io

n 
on

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s 
in

 
C

am
br

id
ge

.  
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 a
ls

o 
in

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

of
 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 o

ve
ra

rc
hi

ng
 p

ol
ic

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

of
 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

ne
w

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n 

an
d 

ha
s 

co
ns

ul
te

d 
on

 a
 r

an
ge

 o
f o

pt
io

ns
 o

n 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

in
 

th
e 

re
ce

nt
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
on

 th
e 

C
am

br
id

ge
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
T

ow
ar

ds
 2

03
1-

 Is
su

es
 a

nd
 O

pt
io

ns
 r

ep
or

t.

14
85

5 
- 

O
ld

 C
he

st
er

to
n 

R
es

id
en

ts
' A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
O

bj
ec

t
C

on
tin

ue
 to

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
th

e 
C

am
br

id
ge

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n 

T
ow

ar
ds

 2
03

1.

-T
he

 IP
P

G
 s

ho
ul

d 
st

at
e 

w
ho

 is
 p

re
ci

se
ly

 c
on

ce
rn

ed
 

w
ith

 th
e 

lo
ss

 o
f p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s.

-"
lo

ca
l p

ub
lic

 c
on

ce
rn

s"
 n

ee
ds

 to
 b

e 
cl

ar
ifi

ed
 a

s 
to

 
w

ho
 th

is
 is

 a
pa

rt
 fr

om
 k

no
w

n 
pr

es
su

re
 g

ro
up

s 
C

P
P

F
 

(C
am

br
id

ge
 P

as
t P

re
se

nt
 &

 F
ut

ur
e)

 &
 C

A
M

R
A

 
(C

am
pa

ig
n 

fo
r 

R
ea

l A
le

).
-T

he
 IP

P
G

 m
ak

es
 n

o 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

to
 th

e 
dr

am
at

ic
 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 C
of

fe
e 

S
ho

ps
 a

nd
 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

m
ee

tin
g 

pl
ac

es
 in

 th
e 

C
ity

, a
nd

 th
e 

ad
ve

nt
 

of
 s

oc
ia

l m
ed

ia
, w

hi
ch

 h
as

 in
 p

ar
t u

su
rp

ed
 th

e 
tr

ad
iti

on
al

 "
vi

si
t t

o 
th

e 
pu

b"
.

-T
he

 IP
P

G
 is

 o
ve

r 
si

m
pl

is
tic

.

A
s 

di
sc

us
se

d 
in

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 1

.5
 o

f t
he

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

do
cu

m
en

t, 
th

e 
'lo

ca
l p

ub
lic

 c
on

ce
rn

s'
 e

xp
re

ss
ed

 
ha

ve
 in

cl
ud

ed
 r

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
 to

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
, s

to
rie

s 
in

 th
e 

lo
ca

l p
re

ss
, a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
in

te
re

st
 fr

om
 p

re
ss

ur
e 

gr
ou

ps
 s

uc
h 

as
 

C
A

M
R

A
 a

nd
 C

am
br

id
ge

 P
as

t, 
P

re
se

nt
 a

nd
 F

ut
ur

e.
W

hi
ls

t t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

do
es

 n
ot

 b
el

ie
ve

 it
 is

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
de

ta
il 

on
 th

es
e 

co
nc

er
ne

d 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
an

d 
gr

ou
ps

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
IP

P
G

, i
t i

s 
co

nv
in

ce
d 

th
at

 th
e 

co
nc

er
ns

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 a

re
 b

ot
h 

ge
nu

in
e 

an
d 

le
gi

tim
at

e.

81
12

 -
 J

an
ua

ry
s

O
bj

ec
t

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n

P
ag

e 
9 

of
 5

6

Page 421



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

1.
 In

tr
od

uc
tio

n

S
ta

tu
s 

of
 th

e 
IP

P
G

A
ct

io
n

It 
is

 u
nc

le
ar

 fr
om

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 w

he
th

er
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
th

e 
po

w
er

 to
 a

do
pt

 a
 p

la
nn

in
g 

po
lic

y 
ot

he
r 

th
an

 b
y 

re
lia

nc
e 

on
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
la

id
 d

ow
n 

by
 P

ar
t 2

 o
f t

he
 

P
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
C

om
pu

ls
or

y 
P

ur
ch

as
e 

A
ct

 2
00

4 
an

d 
th

e 
T

ow
n 

an
d 

C
ou

nt
ry

 P
la

nn
in

g 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 2

01
2.

 T
he

se
 

m
ak

e 
it 

cl
ea

r 
po

lic
y 

m
us

t b
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 a
s 

a 
lo

ca
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t d

oc
um

en
t a

nd
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 
fo

r 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n,
 e

xa
m

in
at

io
n 

an
d 

S
E

A
. T

he
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 
po

w
er

 b
ei

ng
 u

se
d 

ne
ed

s 
to

 b
e 

cl
ar

ifi
ed

, w
ith

ou
t t

hi
s 

ad
po

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
IP

P
G

 is
 a

rg
ua

bl
y 

un
la

w
fu

l. 

IP
P

G
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 ta
ke

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

pr
oc

es
s 

an
d 

is
 p

re
m

at
ur

e 
at

 th
e 

m
om

en
t.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

 T
he

 IP
P

G
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

pr
od

uc
ed

 to
 

ac
t a

s 
a 

m
at

er
ia

l c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 a
ny

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
af

fe
ct

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
in

 
C

am
br

id
ge

, i
n 

ad
va

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
C

am
br

id
ge

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n 

T
ow

ar
ds

 2
03

1.
  T

he
 IP

P
G

 
se

ts
 o

ut
 in

 S
ec

tio
n 

1 
th

e 
re

as
on

in
g 

be
hi

nd
 th

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 ta

ke
n 

to
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
th

e 
IP

P
G

. T
he

 IP
P

G
 

su
pp

le
m

en
ts

 s
av

ed
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
C

am
br

id
ge

 L
oc

al
 

P
la

n 
20

06
 a

nd
, o

nc
e 

ad
op

te
d,

 w
ill

 c
on

st
itu

te
 a

 
m

at
er

ia
l c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
de

te
rm

in
at

io
n 

of
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 a
ffe

ct
in

g 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

in
 

C
am

br
id

ge
. I

t i
s 

in
te

nd
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
fin

di
ng

s 
of

 it
s 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
C

am
br

id
ge

 P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 
S

tu
dy

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l P
la

n 
R

ev
ie

w
 a

s 
it 

pr
og

re
ss

es
.

18
60

0 
- 

Ja
nu

ar
ys

O
bj

ec
t

In
co

rp
or

at
e 

th
e 

IP
P

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
fin

di
ng

s 
of

 it
s 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
C

am
br

id
ge

 P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 S
tu

dy
 in

to
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
s 

it 
pr

og
re

ss
es

.

a 
cl

ea
r 

po
lic

y 
on

 p
ub

s 
ne

ed
s 

to
 b

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 

th
e 

lo
ca

l p
la

n.
 It

 is
 g

oo
d 

to
 ta

ke
 th

is
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 to

 
st

re
nt

he
n 

th
e 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
of

 p
ub

s 
un

de
r 

th
e 

lo
ca

l p
la

n.

S
up

po
rt

 n
ot

ed
.  

T
he

 C
am

br
id

ge
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
T

ow
ar

ds
 

20
31

: I
ss

ue
s 

an
d 

O
pt

io
ns

 c
on

si
de

rs
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 

op
tio

ns
 p

er
ta

in
in

g 
to

 th
e 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
of

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s.
 

C
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

re
sp

on
se

s 
to

 th
e 

Is
su

es
 a

nd
 O

pt
io

ns
 r

ep
or

t i
s 

un
de

rw
ay

.

12
80

1
S

up
po

rt
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

T
hi

s 
is

 a
 p

re
ss

in
g 

is
su

e 
an

d 
in

te
rim

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
is

 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

an
d 

w
el

co
m

e.
S

up
po

rt
 n

ot
ed

.
69

48
S

up
po

rt
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

P
ag

e 
10

 o
f 5

6

Page 422



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

2.
 C

on
te

xt

2.
 C

on
te

xt

A
ct

io
n

2.
 C

on
te

xt
2.

 C
on

te
xt

W
e 

re
co

gn
is

e 
lo

ca
l c

on
ce

rn
 a

t t
he

 r
ec

en
t d

ec
lin

e 
in

 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 p
ub

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

C
ity

 o
f C

am
br

id
ge

, a
 

de
cl

in
e 

th
at

 r
ef

le
ct

s 
na

tio
na

l t
re

nd
s.

 W
e 

an
tic

ip
at

e 
th

at
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 tr
ad

iti
on

al
 p

ub
s 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 

de
cl

in
e 

w
ith

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
so

ci
al

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s 
an

d 
co

ns
um

er
 s

pe
nd

in
g 

pa
tte

rn
s,

 a
nd

 th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

sh
ou

ld
 a

cc
ep

t t
hi

s 
na

tio
na

l s
itu

at
io

n.
 A

s 
su

pe
rm

ar
ke

ts
 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
ou

tle
ts

 c
om

e 
to

 d
om

in
at

e 
th

e 
m

as
s 

m
ar

ke
t 

fo
r 

be
er

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

al
co

ho
lic

 b
ev

er
ag

es
, p

ub
s 

m
us

t 
lo

ok
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

ly
 to

 n
ew

 b
us

in
es

s 
m

od
el

s 
th

at
 s

er
ve

 
em

er
gi

ng
 n

ic
he

 m
ar

ke
ts

 w
he

re
 a

dd
ed

 v
al

ue
 is

 c
rit

ic
al

 
to

 s
uc

ce
ss

, b
ut

 th
is

 c
an

no
t a

pp
ly

 in
 a

ll 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

 T
he

 IP
P

G
 a

llo
w

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s 
w

he
n 

th
e 

cr
ite

ria
 in

 
it 

ar
e 

m
et

. W
he

n 
th

e 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s 

de
sc

rib
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

re
sp

on
de

nt
 o

cc
ur

, a
nd

 d
em

an
d 

fo
r 

a 
pu

bl
ic

 
ho

us
e 

de
cl

in
es

, i
t w

ill
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 b
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

fo
r 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

us
es

 a
s 

lo
ng

 a
s 

it 
ca

n 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 th

e 
cr

ite
ria

 a
re

 m
et

.

14
81

1 
- 

C
ha

rle
s 

W
el

ls
 L

td
O

bj
ec

t
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

I w
ou

ld
 li

ke
 to

 s
ee

 a
n 

am
en

dm
en

t t
o 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
ol

ic
y 

to
 a

llo
w

 p
ub

lic
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
on

 w
he

th
er

 th
e 

ch
an

ge
 o

f 
us

e 
of

 a
 p

ub
 to

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 p

re
m

is
es

 o
th

er
 th

an
 a

 p
ub

 
w

ith
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 fo
od

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 e

g.
 a

 r
es

ta
ur

an
t 

at
ta

ch
ed

 w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

to
 g

ai
n 

a 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
lo

ca
l 

ar
ea

 c
on

se
nt

 b
ef

or
e 

an
y 

ot
he

r 
us

e 
su

ch
 a

s 
a 

sh
op

 o
r 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t w

as
 a

llo
w

ed
. I

 s
tr

on
gl

y 
di

sa
gr

ee
 w

ith
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 
2.

8 
an

d 
2.

9,
 b

ut
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 a

nd
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

pa
ra

gr
ap

hs
.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
he

 IP
P

G
 s

ee
ks

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 p

ub
lic

 
ho

us
es

 b
y 

re
qu

iri
ng

 a
 s

et
 o

f c
rit

er
ia

 to
 b

e 
m

et
, p

rio
r 

to
 a

ny
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
 b

ei
ng

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 c

ha
ng

e 
of

 u
se

 
or

 r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

 T
he

 o
nl

y 
w

ay
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 th
is

 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

m
ak

e 
an

 A
rt

ic
le

 4
 d

ire
ct

io
n 

to
 r

em
ov

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t r

ig
ht

s 
in

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f c

ha
ng

in
g 

fr
om

 u
se

 c
la

ss
 A

4 
to

 A
3,

 A
2 

or
 A

1.
  P

ut
tin

g 
A

rt
ic

le
 4

 
di

re
ct

io
ns

 in
 p

la
ce

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
a 

se
pa

ra
te

 le
ga

l p
ro

ce
ss

 
to

 th
at

 o
f t

he
 IP

P
G

, w
ith

 c
on

se
qu

en
t r

es
ou

rc
es

 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
.  

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

to
 in

tr
od

uc
e 

A
rt

ic
le

 4
 d

ire
ct

io
ns

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 p

ub
lic

 
ho

us
es

.

11
29

0
O

bj
ec

t
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 c

on
si

de
r 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

in
tr

od
uc

e 
A

rt
ic

le
 4

 D
ire

ct
io

ns
.

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

su
bm

itt
ed

 o
n 

be
ha

lf 
of

 P
ac

e 
In

ve
st

m
en

ts
 L

td
, f

re
eh

ol
d 

ow
ne

rs
 o

f t
he

 la
nd

 a
t 

B
et

je
m

an
 H

ou
se

/(
ne

w
) 

B
ot

an
ic

 H
ou

se
, F

ra
nc

is
 

H
ou

se
, t

he
 O

sb
ou

rn
e 

A
rm

s 
an

d 
F

ly
in

g 
P

ig
 P

H
s,

 H
ill

s 
R

oa
d,

 C
am

br
id

ge
.

S
up

po
rt

 fo
r 

th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l t

he
m

e 
of

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
ve

ry
 im

po
rt

an
t r

ol
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 u

se
s 

pr
ov

id
e.

T
he

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

re
po

rt
:

-r
ec

og
ni

se
s 

th
e 

cr
uc

ia
l r

ol
e 

th
at

 p
ub

s 
pl

ay
 in

 
m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 th

e 
vi

br
an

cy
 a

nd
 v

ita
lit

y 
of

 lo
ca

l 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rh

oo
ds

 a
nd

 th
ei

r 
pl

ac
e 

an
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

to
 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
;

-p
ro

m
ot

es
 a

 r
ob

us
t p

la
nn

in
g 

po
lic

y 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

in
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s 

an
d 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 a

 tr
en

d 
in

 fa
lli

ng
 n

um
be

rs
.

S
up

po
rt

 n
ot

ed
.

11
81

2 
- 

M
et

ro
po

lis
pd

S
up

po
rt

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

P
ag

e 
11

 o
f 5

6

Page 423



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

2.
 C

on
te

xt

A
re

a 
co

ve
re

d 
by

 th
is

 IP
P

G

A
ct

io
n

A
re

a 
co

ve
re

d 
by

 th
is

 IP
P

G
P

ub
s 

ar
e 

un
de

r 
se

ve
re

 p
re

ss
ur

e 
fr

om
 ta

x 
an

d 
re

gu
la

to
ry

 b
ur

de
ns

.
S

up
po

rt
 p

ub
s 

by
 a

lle
vi

at
in

g 
th

e 
bu

rd
en

s 
af

fe
ct

in
g 

th
em

, w
he

re
 p

os
si

bl
e.

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

m
ig

ht
 c

on
si

de
r 

lo
ok

in
g 

at
:

* 
O

ffe
rin

g 
ad

di
tio

na
l d

is
cr

et
io

na
ry

 b
us

in
es

s 
ra

te
s 

re
lie

f 
to

 s
m

al
l b

us
in

es
se

s 
an

d 
th

os
e 

of
fe

rin
g 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
va

lu
e 

to
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

.
* 

T
ak

in
g 

a 
m

or
e 

po
si

tiv
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 r

eg
ul

at
or

y 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t, 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 w

ith
 r

eg
ar

d 
to

 li
ce

ns
in

g 
as

 
th

is
 c

an
 b

e 
on

e 
of

 th
e 

bi
gg

es
t b

ur
de

ns
 o

n 
bu

si
ne

ss
.

* 
T

ak
in

g 
a 

po
si

tiv
e 

an
d 

fle
xi

bl
e 

at
tit

ud
e 

to
 p

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

lic
en

si
ng

 to
 a

llo
w

 n
ew

 p
ub

 b
us

in
es

se
s 

to
 s

ta
rt

 u
p 

an
d 

su
cc

ee
d 

if 
an

d 
w

he
re

 th
er

e 
is

 d
em

an
d.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

 B
us

in
es

s 
ra

te
 r

el
ie

f a
nd

 li
ce

ns
in

g 
is

su
es

 a
re

 o
ut

si
de

 th
e 

sc
op

e 
of

 p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
th

e 
IP

P
G

 a
nd

 a
re

 n
ot

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
 th

is
 r

es
po

ns
e.

 H
ow

ev
er

 
yo

ur
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

pa
ss

ed
 o

nt
o 

re
le

va
nt

 
co

lle
ag

ue
s.

W
ith

 r
eg

ar
d 

ta
ki

ng
 a

 p
os

iti
ve

 a
nd

 fl
ex

ib
le

 a
tti

tu
de

 in
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 to
 a

llo
w

 n
ew

 p
ub

s,
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ag

re
es

 w
ith

 
po

in
t a

nd
 w

ill
 ta

ke
 a

 p
os

iti
ve

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 a
ny

 
pr

op
os

al
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

.

14
68

8 
- 

B
rit

is
h 

B
ee

r 
&

 P
ub

 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
O

bj
ec

t
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

P
la

nn
in

g 
P

ol
ic

y 
C

on
te

xt
W

e 
ob

je
ct

 to
 th

e 
in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
w

or
di

ng
 o

f t
he

 
N

at
io

na
l P

la
nn

in
g 

P
ol

ic
y 

F
ra

m
ew

or
k.

 In
 o

ur
 v

ie
w

 
so

m
e 

of
 th

e 
qu

ot
ed

 s
ec

tio
ns

 a
re

 ta
ke

n 
ou

t o
f c

on
te

xt
 

an
d 

us
ed

 to
 ju

st
ify

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
re

st
ric

tiv
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
po

lic
ie

s 
in

 th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t. 
T

he
 p

ol
ic

y 
as

 a
 w

ho
le

 g
oe

s 
en

tir
el

y 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 s
pi

rit
s 

an
d 

in
te

nt
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 N
P

P
F

 
w

hi
ch

 s
ou

gh
t t

o 
al

le
vi

at
e 

co
st

 a
nd

 b
ur

de
ns

 o
n 

bu
si

ne
ss

 fr
om

 th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 s
ys

te
m

.

C
on

ce
rn

 n
ot

ed
. T

he
 N

P
P

F
 is

 c
le

ar
 a

bo
ut

 n
ot

 p
la

ci
ng

 
un

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
bu

rd
en

s 
on

 b
us

in
es

s.
 N

ot
w

ith
st

an
di

ng
 

th
is

, t
he

 N
P

P
F

 is
 a

ls
o 

cl
ea

r 
ab

ou
t t

he
 n

ee
d 

to
 

pr
ot

ec
t c

om
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s.
F

ur
th

er
m

or
e,

 in
 th

e 
re

ce
nt

 a
pp

ea
l d

is
m

is
sa

l 
co

nc
er

ni
ng

 T
he

 C
ar

pe
nt

er
s 

A
rm

s 
(1

82
-1

86
 V

ic
to

ria
 

R
oa

d,
 C

am
br

id
ge

),
 th

e 
In

sp
ec

to
r 

fo
llo

w
ed

 a
dv

ic
e 

in
 

th
e 

N
P

P
F

 c
on

ce
rn

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
be

in
g 

co
m

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

ap
pl

ie
d 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 w

ei
gh

t t
o 

th
e 

N
P

P
F

 in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f t
hi

s 
gu

id
an

ce
.  

T
he

 In
sp

ec
to

r 
de

ci
de

d 
th

at
 a

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 th

e 
N

P
P

F
, t

o 
de

te
rm

in
e 

w
he

th
er

 a
 c

ha
ng

e 
of

 u
se

 o
f t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

(a
 v

al
ue

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
y)

 is
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

, i
t s

ho
ul

d 
fir

st
 b

e 
m

ar
ke

te
d 

as
 a

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

.  
T

hi
s 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 w
ou

ld
 

al
so

 b
e 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

ith
 h

ow
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
ch

an
ge

s 
of

 u
se

 in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 o

th
er

 lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

ar
e 

de
al

t w
ith

 u
nd

er
 p

ol
ic

y 
5/

11
 o

f t
he

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n.

T
he

 IP
P

G
 is

 a
tte

m
pt

in
g 

to
 s

tr
ik

e 
a 

ba
la

nc
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 b
us

in
es

s 
an

d 
th

e 
ne

w
ly

 a
ris

en
 is

su
e 

su
rr

ou
nd

in
g 

lo
ss

 o
f p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s.

14
69

2 
- 

B
rit

is
h 

B
ee

r 
&

 P
ub

 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
O

bj
ec

t
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

S
ev

er
al

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t a

pp
ea

l j
ud

ge
m

en
ts

 m
us

t b
e 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
in

 th
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 IP
P

G
 a

nd
 a

ny
 n

ew
 L

oc
al

 
P

la
n 

po
lic

y 
- 

na
m

el
y 

th
e 

ap
pe

al
s 

at
 th

e 
P

lo
ug

h 
at

 
S

he
pr

et
h,

 T
he

 U
ni

co
rn

 a
nd

 T
he

 C
ar

pe
nt

er
s 

A
rm

s.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
he

 IP
P

G
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

am
en

de
d 

at
 

ne
w

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 2

.1
6 

an
d 

ne
w

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 4

.9
 to

 m
ak

e 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

to
 a

pp
ea

l d
ec

is
io

ns
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 

ho
us

es
 in

 a
nd

 a
ro

un
d 

C
am

br
id

ge
.

14
85

6 
- 

O
ld

 C
he

st
er

to
n 

R
es

id
en

ts
' A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
O

bj
ec

t
A

m
en

d 
IP

P
G

 a
t n

ew
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 
2.

16
 a

nd
 4

.9
 to

 
m

ak
e 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 a
pp

ea
l d

ec
is

io
ns

 a
ffe

ct
in

g 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

in
 a

nd
 a

ro
un

d 
C

am
br

id
ge

. P
ag

e 
12

 o
f 5

6

Page 424



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

2.
 C

on
te

xt

P
la

nn
in

g 
P

ol
ic

y 
C

on
te

xt

A
ct

io
n

W
e 

ob
je

ct
 to

 th
e 

as
se

rt
io

n 
th

at
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

w
ill

 
ha

ve
 e

no
ug

h 
fle

xi
bi

lit
y 

si
m

pl
y 

to
 c

ha
ng

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
A

 
U

se
 C

la
ss

es
. W

hi
ls

t t
hi

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
an

 o
pt

io
n 

an
d 

cl
ea

rly
 

on
e 

th
at

 c
om

pa
ni

es
 m

ay
 lo

ok
 a

t, 
ul

tim
at

el
y 

w
ith

 a
 fa

st
 

ch
an

gi
ng

 e
co

no
m

ic
 c

lim
at

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 a
re

 o
fte

n 
un

de
r 

pr
es

su
re

 to
 s

el
l o

ff 
un

vi
ab

le
 b

us
in

es
se

s.
 If

 th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

de
m

an
d 

fo
r 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

A
 U

se
 C

la
ss

 
th

en
 it

 m
ay

 th
e 

ca
se

 th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

op
tio

n 
bu

t t
o 

ch
an

ge
 to

 a
no

th
er

 u
se

 b
y 

ap
pl

yi
ng

 fo
r 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
pe

rm
is

si
on

.

C
on

ce
rn

 n
ot

ed
. I

n 
th

at
 c

as
e,

 th
e 

pu
b 

ow
ne

r/
op

er
at

or
 

w
ou

ld
 n

ee
d 

to
 a

pp
ly

 fo
r 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
er

m
is

si
on

 a
nd

 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
te

rm
s 

of
 th

e 
IP

P
G

.  
T

he
 IP

P
G

 
in

co
rp

or
at

es
 fl

ex
ib

ili
ty

 fo
r 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t i
f t

he
 

cr
ite

ria
 a

re
 m

et
.

14
69

3 
- 

B
rit

is
h 

B
ee

r 
&

 P
ub

 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
O

bj
ec

t
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

-P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 2

.4
 fo

cu
se

s 
on

 a
 v

er
y 

na
rr

ow
ly

 d
ef

in
ed

 
us

e 
of

 o
ne

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 N

P
F

F
, a

nd
 in

te
rp

re
ts

 a
nd

 a
da

pt
 

se
ct

io
ns

 in
 a

n 
eq

ua
lly

 b
rie

f a
nd

 in
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l w
ay

.
-T

he
 b

la
nk

et
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
of

 P
H

s 
(a

s 
op

po
se

d 
to

 o
nl

y 
va

lu
ed

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s)
 d

oe
s 

no
t r

ef
le

ct
 th

e 
ke

y 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t 
of

 th
e 

N
P

P
F

 a
nd

 th
er

ef
or

e 
is

 n
ot

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
 p

ro
pe

rly
 

by
 th

e 
IP

P
G

.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
he

 IP
P

G
 a

cc
or

ds
 w

ith
 th

e 
N

P
P

F
 

in
 te

rm
s 

of
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

to
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

be
in

g 
im

po
rt

an
t c

om
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

hi
le

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 r

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
r 

ch
an

ge
 o

f u
se

 is
 p

os
si

bl
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
a 

se
t o

f c
rit

er
ia

 b
ei

ng
 m

et
.  

T
hi

s 
en

su
re

s 
th

at
 th

e 
IP

P
G

 is
 n

ot
 a

nt
i d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 th

at
 th

er
e 

is
 th

e 
fle

xi
bi

lit
y 

to
 a

llo
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
he

re
 it

 w
ou

ld
 

be
 in

 th
e 

in
te

re
st

s 
of

 th
e 

ec
on

om
y 

or
 c

om
m

un
ity

.  
T

he
 P

la
nn

in
g 

P
ol

ic
y 

C
on

te
xt

 s
ec

tio
n 

in
cl

ud
es

 a
 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 
w

hi
ch

 e
xp

la
in

 h
ow

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 

w
or

ks
 w

ith
 th

e 
N

P
P

F
.

18
60

1 
- 

Ja
nu

ar
ys

O
bj

ec
t

A
m

en
d 

th
e 

P
la

nn
in

g 
P

ol
ic

y 
C

on
te

xt
 s

ec
tio

n 
to

 
ex

pl
ai

n 
fu

rt
he

r 
ho

w
 th

e 
IP

P
G

 w
or

ks
 w

ith
 th

e 
N

P
P

F
.

-P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 2

.3
 o

ve
rs

ta
te

s 
C

am
br

id
ge

's
 d

ep
en

de
nc

y 
on

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s 
to

 a
ttr

ac
t t

he
 s

tu
de

nt
s,

 a
ca

de
m

ic
s,

 
yo

un
g 

w
or

ke
rs

 a
nd

 to
ur

is
ts

 th
at

 it
s 

ec
on

om
y 

an
d 

fu
tu

re
 g

ro
w

th
 d

ep
en

d 
up

on
. T

he
 s

ta
te

m
en

t i
s 

no
t 

ba
se

d 
on

 v
er

ifi
ab

le
 e

vi
de

nc
e,

 a
nd

 is
 s

ym
pt

om
at

ic
 o

f 
th

e 
la

ck
 o

f b
al

an
ce

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
do

cu
m

en
t.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
he

 s
en

te
nc

e 
"W

ith
ou

t i
ts

 p
ub

s,
 

C
am

br
id

ge
 w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 a
ttr

ac
t t

he
 s

tu
de

nt
s,

 
ac

ad
em

ic
s,

 y
ou

ng
 w

or
ke

rs
 a

nd
 to

ur
is

ts
 th

at
 it

s 
ec

on
om

y 
an

d 
fu

tu
re

 g
ro

w
th

 d
ep

en
d 

up
on

."
 w

ill
 b

e 
am

en
de

d 
to

 r
ea

d 
"C

am
br

id
ge

's
 p

ub
s 

co
nt

rib
ut

e 
st

ro
ng

ly
 to

 a
ttr

ac
tin

g 
st

ud
en

ts
, a

ca
de

m
ic

s,
 y

ou
ng

 
w

or
ke

rs
 a

nd
 to

ur
is

ts
 th

at
 it

s 
ec

on
om

y 
an

d 
fu

tu
re

 
gr

ow
th

 d
ep

en
d 

up
on

."

81
22

 -
 J

an
ua

ry
s

O
bj

ec
t

A
m

en
d 

th
ird

 s
en

te
nc

e 
of

 2
.4

 to
 r

ea
d:

 "
C

am
br

id
ge

's
 

pu
bs

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

st
ro

ng
ly

 to
 a

ttr
ac

tin
g 

st
ud

en
ts

, 
ac

ad
em

ic
s,

 y
ou

ng
 w

or
ke

rs
 a

nd
 to

ur
is

ts
 th

at
 it

s 
ec

on
om

y 
an

d 
fu

tu
re

 g
ro

w
th

 d
ep

en
d 

up
on

."

P
ag

e 
13

 o
f 5

6

Page 425



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

2.
 C

on
te

xt

P
la

nn
in

g 
P

ol
ic

y 
C

on
te

xt

A
ct

io
n

F
ur

th
er

 p
la

nn
in

g 
re

st
ric

tio
ns

 o
n 

ch
an

ge
 o

f u
se

 a
re

 
co

un
te

rp
ro

du
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

go
 a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
sp

iri
t o

f t
he

 
N

P
P

F
 th

at
 s

ee
ks

 to
 r

ed
uc

e 
re

d 
ta

pe
 a

nd
 d

el
ay

s 
ar

ou
nd

 p
la

nn
in

g 
to

 a
llo

w
 b

us
in

es
s 

to
 m

or
e 

ea
si

ly
 

ad
ap

t t
o 

ch
an

gi
ng

 m
ar

ke
ts

.
T

he
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
qu

ot
es

 th
e 

LD
F

 in
 s

ta
tin

g 
th

at
 

'p
la

nn
in

g 
sh

ou
ld

 r
ea

di
ly

 a
da

pt
 to

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
' a

 s
en

tim
en

t e
xp

re
ss

ed
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

N
P

P
F

.
T

he
 p

ol
ic

y 
to

 'r
es

is
t t

he
 lo

ss
 o

f P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

D
rin

ki
ng

 E
st

ab
lis

hm
en

ts
' i

s 
th

e 
op

po
si

te
 o

f t
hi

s 
w

ith
 p

ub
s 

ha
vi

ng
 to

 a
da

pt
 to

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
co

ns
um

er
 

ha
bi

ts
 a

w
ay

 fr
om

 p
ub

 g
oi

ng
 a

nd
 p

la
nn

in
g 

re
st

ric
tio

ns
 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
th

ei
r 

vi
ab

ili
ty

 a
nd

 s
uc

ce
ss

 in
 th

is
 s

itu
at

io
n.

C
on

ce
rn

 n
ot

ed
. T

he
 IP

P
G

 is
 a

da
pt

in
g 

to
 c

ha
ng

in
g 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s,
 th

e 
is

su
e 

of
 lo

ss
 o

f p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s 
ha

s 
ar

is
en

 s
in

ce
 th

e 
ad

op
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l P
la

n 
20

06
 

an
d 

is
 a

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 th

e 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s 

fa
ci

ng
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
 S

uf
fic

ie
nt

 fl
ex

ib
ili

ty
 r

em
ai

ns
 in

 te
rm

s 
of

 th
e 

ab
ili

ty
 to

 c
ha

ng
e 

us
e 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
A

 u
se

 c
la

ss
, a

nd
 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

is
 s

til
l p

er
m

is
si

bl
e 

if 
th

e 
cr

ite
ria

 in
 th

e 
IP

P
G

 a
re

 m
et

.

14
68

7 
- 

B
rit

is
h 

B
ee

r 
&

 P
ub

 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
O

bj
ec

t
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

W
hi

ls
t w

e 
su

pp
or

t t
he

 C
ou

nc
il'

s 
co

m
m

en
ts

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 p

ub
s 

to
 th

e 
lo

ca
l e

co
no

m
y 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
, 

w
e 

do
 n

ot
 b

el
ie

ve
 th

at
 th

e 
pr

op
os

al
s 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 th
is

 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
ar

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

, a
nd

 w
e 

qu
es

tio
n 

th
ei

r 
le

ga
lit

y.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

 T
he

 IP
P

G
 s

et
s 

ou
t i

n 
S

ec
tio

n 
1 

th
e 

re
as

on
in

g 
be

hi
nd

 th
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 ta
ke

n 
to

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

th
e 

IP
P

G
. T

he
 IP

P
G

 s
up

pl
em

en
ts

 s
av

ed
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

in
 

th
e 

C
am

br
id

ge
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
20

06
 a

nd
, o

nc
e 

ad
op

te
d,

 
w

ill
 c

on
st

itu
te

 a
 m

at
er

ia
l c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
de

te
rm

in
at

io
n 

of
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 a
ffe

ct
in

g 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

in
 C

am
br

id
ge

. I
t i

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
IP

P
G

 a
nd

 th
e 

fin
di

ng
s 

of
 it

s 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

C
am

br
id

ge
 

P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 S
tu

dy
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
s 

it 
pr

og
re

ss
es

.

14
69

1 
- 

B
rit

is
h 

B
ee

r 
&

 P
ub

 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
O

bj
ec

t
In

co
rp

or
at

e 
th

e 
IP

P
G

 a
nd

 th
e 

fin
di

ng
s 

of
 th

e 
C

am
br

id
ge

 P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 S
tu

dy
 in

to
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

R
ev

ie
w

 p
ro

ce
ss

.

P
ar

a 
2.

7 
&

 2
.8

 -
 T

he
 n

ee
d 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 b

us
in

es
s 

is
 

m
ad

e 
cl

ea
r 

by
 th

es
e 

pa
ra

gr
ap

hs
, h

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

a 
ch

an
ge

 o
f u

se
 is

 o
ve

r 
bu

rd
en

so
m

e,
 w

he
re

 s
up

pl
y 

an
d 

de
m

an
d,

 a
nd

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

es
, i

s 
no

t f
ul

ly
 c

on
si

de
re

d.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
he

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
s 

in
 th

e 
P

la
nn

in
g 

P
ol

ic
y 

C
on

te
xt

 s
ec

tio
n 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
up

da
te

d 
to

 fu
rt

he
r 

re
in

fo
rc

e 
th

e 
N

P
P

F
's

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n.
  T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
do

es
 

no
t c

on
si

de
r 

th
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 b

e 
ov

er
ly

 b
ur

de
ns

om
e,

 
ha

vi
ng

 ta
ke

n 
in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 e

co
no

m
y 

ba
la

nc
ed

 a
ga

in
st

 th
e 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
.

13
08

7 
- 

C
al

de
co

tte
 C

on
su

lta
nt

s
O

bj
ec

t
U

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pa

ra
gr

ap
hs

 in
 th

e 
P

la
nn

in
g 

P
ol

ic
y 

C
on

te
xt

 s
ec

tio
n 

to
 r

ei
nf

or
ce

 th
e 

N
P

P
F

's
 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

on
 th

es
e 

is
su

es
.

T
he

re
 h

av
e 

be
en

 s
ev

er
al

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t a

pp
ea

l 
ju

dg
em

en
ts

 (
T

he
 P

lo
ug

h 
at

 S
he

pr
et

h,
 T

he
 U

ni
co

rn
, 

T
he

 C
ar

pe
nt

er
s 

A
rm

s)
 w

hi
ch

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 
in

to
 th

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 IP

P
G

 a
nd

 a
ny

 n
ew

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n 

po
lic

y.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
he

 IP
P

G
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

am
en

de
d 

at
 

ne
w

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 2

.1
6 

an
d 

ne
w

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 4

.9
 to

 m
ak

e 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

to
 a

pp
ea

l d
ec

is
io

ns
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 

ho
us

es
 in

 a
nd

 a
ro

un
d 

C
am

br
id

ge
.

14
77

9
O

bj
ec

t
A

m
en

d 
IP

P
G

 a
t n

ew
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 
2.

16
 a

nd
 4

.9
 to

 
m

ak
e 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 a
pp

ea
l d

ec
is

io
ns

 a
ffe

ct
in

g 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

in
 a

nd
 a

ro
un

d 
C

am
br

id
ge

. P
ag

e 
14

 o
f 5

6

Page 426



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

2.
 C

on
te

xt

P
la

nn
in

g 
P

ol
ic

y 
C

on
te

xt

A
ct

io
n

W
e 

qu
es

tio
n 

w
he

th
er

 in
 a

 ti
gh

tly
 c

on
st

ra
in

ed
 c

ity
, i

t i
s 

so
un

d 
to

 im
po

se
 a

 p
ro

te
ct

iv
e 

po
lic

y 
on

 a
 s

in
gl

e 
is

su
e 

ba
si

s 
w

ith
ou

t r
eg

ar
d 

to
 th

e 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
ot

he
r 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
th

e 
IP

P
G

 c
on

fli
ct

s 
w

ith
 th

e 
N

P
P

F
, w

hi
ch

 m
ak

es
 c

le
ar

 th
at

 th
e 

do
cu

m
en

t s
ho

ul
d 

be
 r

ea
d 

as
 a

 w
ho

le
, a

nd
 th

os
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

ro
po

sa
ls

 
th

at
 a

cc
or

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
la

n 
m

us
t b

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 w

ith
ou

t d
el

ay
.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  H
ow

ev
er

, i
t i

s 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 a

cc
or

ds
 w

ith
 th

e 
N

P
P

F
 in

 te
rm

s 
of

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
to

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s 
be

in
g 

im
po

rt
an

t 
co

m
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

hi
le

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
r 

ch
an

ge
 o

f u
se

 is
 p

os
si

bl
e 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 a

 s
et

 o
f c

rit
er

ia
 b

ei
ng

 m
et

.  
T

hi
s 

en
su

re
s 

th
at

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 is

 n
ot

 a
nt

i-d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 th
e 

fle
xi

bi
lit

y 
to

 a
llo

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t w

he
re

 it
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

in
 

th
e 

in
te

re
st

s 
of

 th
e 

ec
on

om
y 

or
 c

om
m

un
ity

.

T
he

 IP
P

G
 s

et
s 

ou
t i

n 
S

ec
tio

n 
1 

th
e 

re
as

on
in

g 
be

hi
nd

 
th

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 ta

ke
n 

to
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
th

e 
IP

P
G

. T
he

 
IP

P
G

 s
up

pl
em

en
ts

 s
av

ed
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
C

am
br

id
ge

 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

20
06

 a
nd

, o
nc

e 
ad

op
te

d,
 w

ill
 c

on
st

itu
te

 a
 

m
at

er
ia

l c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
in

 
C

am
br

id
ge

. I
t i

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
IP

P
G

 a
nd

 th
e 

fin
di

ng
s 

of
 it

s 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

C
am

br
id

ge
 P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se
 

S
tu

dy
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
s 

it 
pr

og
re

ss
es

.

81
01

 -
 J

an
ua

ry
s

O
bj

ec
t

A
m

en
d 

th
e 

P
la

nn
in

g 
P

ol
ic

y 
C

on
te

xt
 s

ec
tio

n 
to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
fu

rt
he

r 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 h
ow

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 w

or
ks

 
w

ith
 th

e 
N

P
P

F
.

W
hi

le
 th

e 
na

tio
na

l p
la

nn
in

g 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

is
 g

oo
d 

fo
r 

pu
bs

, i
t i

s 
im

po
rt

an
t t

o 
ge

t t
hi

s 
ca

rr
ie

d 
fo

rw
ar

d 
in

to
 th

e 
lo

ca
l p

la
n

S
up

po
rt

 n
ot

ed
.  

T
he

 C
am

br
id

ge
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
T

ow
ar

ds
 

20
31

: I
ss

ue
s 

an
d 

O
pt

io
ns

 c
on

si
de

rs
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 

op
tio

ns
 p

er
ta

in
in

g 
to

 th
e 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
of

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s.
 

C
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

re
sp

on
se

s 
to

 th
e 

Is
su

es
 a

nd
 O

pt
io

ns
 r

ep
or

t i
s 

un
de

rw
ay

.

12
80

7
S

up
po

rt
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

P
ag

e 
15

 o
f 5

6

Page 427



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

2.
 C

on
te

xt

N
ee

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
IP

P
G

A
ct

io
n

N
ee

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
IP

P
G

T
he

re
 is

 n
ot

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

to
 b

e 
an

y 
ju

st
ifi

ca
tio

n 
fo

r 
a 

cu
rr

en
t, 

si
ng

le
 is

su
e 

po
lic

y 
re

vi
ew

 o
ut

w
ith

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l 
P

la
n 

R
ev

ie
w

 p
ro

ce
ss

. T
he

 IP
P

G
 d

oe
s 

no
t l

oo
k 

at
 th

e 
is

su
es

 s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s 
in

 a
 b

al
an

ce
d 

m
an

ne
r,

 a
nd

 d
oe

s 
no

t c
on

si
de

r 
ot

he
r 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 o
f 

th
is

 p
ol

ic
y.

 
T

he
 IP

P
G

 is
 p

re
m

at
ur

e,
 n

ot
 fo

un
de

d 
on

 a
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
ev

id
en

ce
 b

as
e,

 a
nd

 s
ho

ul
d 

no
t b

e 
pr

og
re

ss
ed

 o
ut

w
ith

 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

R
ev

ie
w

.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
he

 IP
P

G
 a

cc
or

ds
 w

ith
 th

e 
N

P
P

F
 

in
 te

rm
s 

of
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

to
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

be
in

g 
im

po
rt

an
t c

om
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

hi
le

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 r

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
r 

ch
an

ge
 o

f u
se

 is
 p

os
si

bl
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
a 

se
t o

f c
rit

er
ia

 b
ei

ng
 m

et
.  

T
hi

s 
en

su
re

s 
th

at
 th

e 
IP

P
G

 is
 n

ot
 a

nt
i d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 th

at
 th

er
e 

is
 th

e 
fle

xi
bi

lit
y 

to
 a

llo
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
he

re
 it

 w
ou

ld
 

be
 in

 th
e 

in
te

re
st

s 
of

 th
e 

ec
on

om
y 

or
 c

om
m

un
ity

.  
T

he
 P

la
nn

in
g 

P
ol

ic
y 

C
on

te
xt

 s
ec

tio
n 

in
cl

ud
es

 a
 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 
w

hi
ch

 e
xp

la
in

 h
ow

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 

w
or

ks
 w

ith
 th

e 
N

P
P

F
.  

T
he

 IP
P

G
 s

et
s 

ou
t i

n 
S

ec
tio

n 
1 

th
e 

re
as

on
in

g 
be

hi
nd

 th
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 ta
ke

n 
to

 
de

liv
er

in
g 

th
e 

IP
P

G
. T

he
 IP

P
G

 s
up

pl
em

en
ts

 s
av

ed
 

po
lic

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
C

am
br

id
ge

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n 

20
06

 a
nd

, o
nc

e 
ad

op
te

d,
 w

ill
 c

on
st

itu
te

 a
 m

at
er

ia
l c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

in
 

th
e 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
in

 C
am

br
id

ge
. I

t i
s 

in
te

nd
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
fin

di
ng

s 
of

 it
s 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
C

am
br

id
ge

 
P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se
s 

S
tu

dy
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
s 

it 
pr

og
re

ss
es

.

14
69

9 
- 

Ja
nu

ar
ys

 C
on

su
lta

nt
 

S
ur

ve
yo

rs
O

bj
ec

t
A

m
en

d 
th

e 
P

la
nn

in
g 

P
ol

ic
y 

C
on

te
xt

 s
ec

tio
n 

to
 

ex
pl

ai
n 

fu
rt

he
r 

ho
w

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 w

or
ks

 w
ith

 th
e 

N
P

P
F

.

In
co

rp
or

at
e 

th
e 

IP
P

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
fin

di
ng

s 
of

 it
s 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
C

am
br

id
ge

 P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

s 
S

tu
dy

 in
to

 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
s 

it 
pr

og
re

ss
es

.

T
he

 IP
P

G
 is

 a
 s

ca
nd

al
ou

s 
w

as
te

 o
f o

ur
 m

on
ey

.

If 
pu

bs
 p

ro
du

ce
 a

 r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

pr
of

it 
th

ey
 w

ill
 p

ro
ba

bl
y 

st
ay

 o
pe

n 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

th
ey

 w
ill

 c
lo

se
.

T
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

ca
nn

ot
 m

ak
e 

a 
pu

b 
st

ay
 o

pe
n 

if 
th

e 
br

ew
er

y 
an

d 
/o

r 
ow

ne
r 

de
ci

de
s 

ot
he

rw
is

e.

W
ha

t i
s 

be
tte

r 
an

 e
ye

so
re

 o
f a

n 
em

pt
y 

bu
ild

in
g 

(a
nd

 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

m
an

y 
di

su
se

d 
pu

bs
 to

 il
lu

st
ra

te
 th

is
 fo

r 
ex

am
pl

e 
th

e 
G

re
yh

ou
nd

, C
ol

dh
am

's
 L

an
e)

 o
r 

a 
co

up
le

 
of

 h
ou

se
s/

sm
al

l b
lo

ck
 o

f f
la

ts
.

S
oc

ia
l l

ife
 is

 c
ha

ng
in

g.
 P

ub
s 

ha
ve

 a
lw

ay
s 

cl
os

ed
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

s.
 G

et
 s

pe
nd

in
g 

ou
r 

m
on

ey
 o

n 
so

m
et

hi
ng

 
im

po
rt

an
t i

n 
th

es
e 

ha
rd

 ti
m

es
 a

nd
 n

ot
 o

n 
th

in
gs

 li
ke

 
th

is
!

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
th

is
 IP

P
G

 in
 r

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 c
om

m
un

ity
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

ov
er

 
th

e 
lo

ss
 o

f p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s.
  T

he
 G

re
yh

ou
nd

 P
ub

lic
 

H
ou

se
 h

as
 r

ec
en

tly
 b

ee
n 

th
e 

su
bj

ec
t o

f a
n 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

12
/0

25
5/

F
U

L 
fo

r 
th

e 
de

m
ol

iti
on

 o
f t

he
 

bu
ild

in
g 

an
d 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t w

ith
 a

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 
tw

o 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 u

ni
ts

 in
 B

1/
B

2/
B

8 
U

se
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
tr

ad
e 

co
un

te
rs

.  
T

he
 G

re
yh

ou
nd

 P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 h
as

 
be

en
 c

lo
se

d 
fr

om
 s

om
e 

tim
e,

 a
nd

 is
 s

itu
at

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ed

ge
 o

f a
n 

in
du

st
ria

l a
re

a 
an

d 
a 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
a,

 
w

ith
 C

ol
dh

am
s 

La
ne

 s
ep

ar
at

in
g 

th
e 

tw
o.

  T
he

 P
ub

lic
 

H
ou

se
 s

its
 o

n 
th

e 
in

du
st

ria
l s

id
e 

of
 C

ol
dh

am
s 

La
ne

, 
w

ith
 th

e 
bu

sy
 r

oa
d 

se
gr

eg
at

in
g 

th
e 

P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 
fr

om
 th

e 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

a.
  D

ue
 to

 it
s 

po
si

tio
ni

ng
, t

he
 

P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 w
as

 n
ot

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 

co
m

m
un

ity
, a

nd
 w

as
 n

ot
 th

er
ef

or
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 to

 b
e 

a 
va

lu
ed

 fa
ci

lit
y,

 w
hi

ch
 m

et
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

's
 d

ay
-t

o-
da

y 
ne

ed
s.

72
96

O
bj

ec
t

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

P
ag

e 
16

 o
f 5

6

Page 428



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

2.
 C

on
te

xt

N
ee

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
IP

P
G

A
ct

io
n

R
at

he
r 

th
an

 fo
cu

ss
in

g 
on

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 p

ub
s 

lo
st

 in
 

re
ce

nt
 y

ea
rs

, i
t m

ig
ht

 b
e 

m
or

e 
us

ef
ul

 to
 fo

cu
s 

on
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f t

ho
se

 lo
ss

es
. I

f t
he

 m
aj

or
ity

 o
f t

he
 p

ub
s 

cl
os

ed
 w

er
e 

no
t o

f a
ny

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

 to
 th

e 
lo

ca
l 

co
m

m
un

ity
 b

ut
 th

e 
ne

w
 u

se
 h

as
 c

le
ar

ly
 c

re
at

ed
 a

 
m

or
e 

ne
ed

ed
 u

se
 w

hy
 is

 th
is

 n
ot

 a
na

ly
se

d 
in

 th
e 

re
po

rt
 a

s 
su

re
ly

 th
is

 is
 th

e 
w

ho
le

 is
su

e?

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  H
ow

ev
er

, w
hi

ls
t i

t i
s 

di
ffi

cu
lt 

to
 

m
ea

su
re

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f t
he

 lo
ss

 o
f t

he
 p

ub
s 

al
re

ad
y 

lo
st

 to
 o

th
er

 u
se

s 
re

tr
os

pe
ct

iv
el

y,
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
re

sp
on

de
d 

to
 th

e 
ch

an
gi

ng
 e

co
no

m
ic

 c
lim

at
e 

af
fe

ct
in

g 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

an
d 

th
e 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
le

ve
l o

f 
in

te
re

st
 fr

om
 r

es
id

en
ts

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l i
nt

er
es

t g
ro

up
s 

by
 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

th
e 

C
am

br
id

ge
 P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se
 S

tu
dy

 
an

d 
pr

od
uc

in
g 

th
e 

IP
P

G
 to

 h
el

p 
sa

fe
gu

ar
d 

th
e 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

in
 th

e 
ci

ty
.  

W
he

re
 it

 is
 

pr
ov

en
 th

at
 th

e 
cr

ite
ria

 in
 th

e 
IP

P
G

 h
av

e 
be

en
 u

se
d 

to
 m

ar
ke

t a
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
 w

ith
ou

t s
uc

ce
ss

 fo
r 

th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 ti
m

e 
pe

rio
d,

 th
er

e 
re

m
ai

ns
 s

co
pe

 fo
r 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s.

  F
ur

th
er

m
or

e,
 

se
ve

ra
l a

pp
ea

l d
ec

is
io

ns
 (

e.
g.

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
s 

5.
67

 -
 

5.
10

9 
of

 th
e 

C
am

br
id

ge
 P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se
 S

tu
dy

) 
co

ns
ul

te
d 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
re

se
ar

ch
 s

ta
ge

 in
di

ca
te

d 
th

at
 

In
sp

ec
to

rs
 w

er
e 

co
ns

id
er

in
g 

bo
th

 h
ow

 a
 p

ub
 h

ad
 

be
en

 o
pe

ra
te

d 
an

d 
w

ht
he

r 
it 

ha
d 

m
ad

e 
an

y 
at

te
m

pt
 

to
 d

iv
er

si
fy

 o
r 

su
pp

le
m

en
t t

he
 p

ub
 o

pe
ra

tio
n.

18
60

4 
- 

Ja
nu

ar
ys

O
bj

ec
t

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

W
e 

do
 n

ot
 b

el
ie

ve
 th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ar

e 
ab

le
 to

 m
ak

e 
ge

ne
ra

lis
at

io
ns

 a
bo

ut
 w

ha
t m

od
el

 o
f p

ub
s 

is
 m

os
t 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 e

.g
. o

ffe
rin

g 
a 

w
id

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 r

ea
l a

le
s.

 It
 is

 
im

po
ss

ib
le

 to
 s

pe
cu

la
te

 w
he

th
er

 o
r 

no
t t

he
 p

ub
s 

th
at

 
ha

ve
 c

lo
se

d 
in

 C
am

br
id

ge
 w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
su

rv
iv

ed
 w

ith
 a

 
di

ffe
re

nt
 o

ffe
r 

or
 b

us
in

es
s 

m
od

el
. I

t i
s 

be
yo

nd
 th

e 
re

m
it 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 s
pe

cu
la

te
 in

 th
is

 m
an

ne
r 

or
 

se
ek

 to
 p

re
sc

rib
e 

w
ha

t p
ub

s 
sh

ou
ld

 d
o 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 

at
tr

ac
t b

us
in

es
s 

an
d 

re
m

ai
n 

vi
ab

le
.

C
on

ce
rn

 n
ot

ed
. T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 n
ot

 s
ee

ki
ng

 to
 

pr
es

cr
ib

e 
w

ha
t s

ho
ul

d 
be

 d
on

e 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 r
em

ai
n 

vi
ab

le
. T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 c
on

ce
rn

ed
 th

at
 w

he
re

 a
 

va
lu

ab
le

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
lo

st
, a

ll 
ef

fo
rt

s 
ar

e 
m

ad
e 

to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

th
is

 b
us

in
es

s 
as

 a
 v

ia
bl

e,
 o

ng
oi

ng
 

pr
op

os
iti

on
, f

or
 th

e 
be

ne
fit

 o
f t

he
 c

om
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

. S
ev

er
al

 a
pp

ea
l d

ec
is

io
ns

 (
e.

g.
 p

ar
ar

ga
ph

s 
5.

67
-5

.1
09

 o
f t

he
 C

am
br

id
ge

 P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 S
tu

dy
) 

co
ns

ul
te

d 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

re
se

ar
ch

 s
ta

ge
 in

di
ca

te
d 

th
at

 
In

sp
ec

to
rs

 w
er

e 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
bo

th
 h

ow
 a

 p
ub

 h
ad

 
be

en
 o

pe
ra

te
d 

an
d 

w
he

th
er

 it
 h

ad
 m

ad
e 

an
y 

at
te

m
pt

 
to

 d
iv

er
si

fy
 o

r 
su

pp
le

m
en

t t
he

 p
ub

 o
pe

ra
tio

n.

14
69

4 
- 

B
rit

is
h 

B
ee

r 
&

 P
ub

 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
O

bj
ec

t
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

T
he

re
 is

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 a

 v
ia

bl
e 

m
ar

ke
t f

or
 lo

ca
l p

ub
s 

he
nc

e 
w

hy
 s

o 
m

an
y 

ar
e 

no
w

 c
lo

se
d.

 P
eo

pl
e 

ca
n 

ei
th

er
 n

ot
 a

ffo
rd

, o
r 

si
m

pl
y 

ch
oo

se
 n

ot
 to

 s
pe

nd
 th

ei
r 

m
on

ey
 in

 p
ub

s.
 T

he
re

 a
re

 p
le

nt
y 

of
 p

ub
s 

an
d 

ba
rs

 
in

/a
ro

un
d 

th
e 

ci
ty

 c
en

tr
e 

fo
r 

pe
op

le
 to

 g
o 

to
 if

 th
ey

 
w

is
h.

 L
oc

al
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ou
ld

 r
at

he
r 

ha
ve

 m
or

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g,

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 it

 is
 v

er
y 

di
ffi

cu
lt 

to
 fi

nd
 a

 h
ou

se
 to

 
bu

y 
in

 C
am

br
id

ge
 b

ec
au

se
 o

f t
he

 s
ho

rt
fa

ll.
 S

om
e 

lo
ca

l 
pu

bs
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
 g

re
at

 s
ou

rc
e 

of
 c

on
ce

rn
 to

 lo
ca

l 
re

si
de

nt
s 

be
ca

us
e 

of
 n

oi
se

 a
nd

 a
nt

is
oc

ia
l b

eh
av

io
ur

.

C
on

ce
rn

 n
ot

ed
.  

It 
is

 n
ot

ed
 th

at
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 fa
ct

or
s 

w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 h

av
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

ed
 to

 th
e 

de
cl

in
e 

in
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
co

m
pe

tit
io

n 
fr

om
 

su
pe

rm
ar

ke
t d

is
co

un
tin

g 
of

 a
lc

oh
ol

; c
ha

ng
es

 to
 

pe
op

le
's

 d
rin

ki
ng

 h
ab

its
; t

he
 s

m
ok

in
g 

ba
n 

in
 p

ub
lic

 
ar

ea
s;

 a
nd

 p
re

ss
ur

es
 to

 r
ea

lis
e 

hi
gh

er
 v

al
ue

 h
ou

si
ng

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
 W

hi
ls

t a
ck

no
w

le
dg

in
g 

th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r 

ho
us

in
g 

in
 C

am
br

id
ge

, t
hi

s 
ne

ed
s 

to
 b

e 
ba

la
nc

ed
 

w
ith

 r
et

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 c

re
at

in
g 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
lo

ca
l 

co
m

m
un

ity
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s.

69
50

O
bj

ec
t

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

P
ag

e 
17

 o
f 5

6

Page 429



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

2.
 C

on
te

xt

N
ee

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
IP

P
G

A
ct

io
n

C
le

ar
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t t

o 
pr

es
er

ve
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 n
um

be
r 

of
 p

ub
s 

- 
se

ve
ra

l a
re

as
 o

f c
am

br
id

ge
 a

re
 a

lre
ad

y 
ve

ry
 

po
or

ly
 s

er
ve

d.

S
up

po
rt

 n
ot

ed
.

71
51

S
up

po
rt

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

It 
ha

s 
be

en
 to

o 
ea

sy
 fo

r 
pu

bs
 to

 c
ha

ng
e 

fr
om

 p
ub

s 
to

 
re

st
au

ra
nt

s,
 to

 fa
ile

d 
re

st
au

ra
nt

s,
 to

 r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

. 
T

hi
s 

ne
ed

s 
to

 b
e 

st
op

pe
d 

as
 p

ub
s 

ca
n 

be
 th

e 
sa

vi
ou

r 
of

 o
ur

 h
ig

h 
st

re
et

s.
 T

he
 s

uc
ce

ss
 o

f a
 p

ub
 in

 
C

am
br

id
ge

 is
 u

su
al

ly
 d

ep
en

de
nt

 o
n 

th
e 

la
nd

lo
rd

. 
W

he
re

 th
er

e 
is

 th
e 

w
ill

 to
 m

ak
e 

a 
pu

b 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 in
 

C
am

br
id

ge
, i

t g
en

er
al

ly
 s

uc
ce

ed
s.

S
up

po
rt

 n
ot

ed
.

12
83

3
S

up
po

rt
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

I a
m

 r
el

ie
ve

d 
th

at
 th

e 
C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
fin

al
ly

 r
ea

lis
es

 
th

er
e 

is
 a

 p
ro

bl
em

 a
nd

 is
 fi

na
lly

 ta
ki

ng
 a

ct
io

n.
  I

 
ge

ne
ra

lly
 s

up
po

rt
 a

ny
 m

ea
su

re
s 

ta
ke

n 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

 
m

or
e 

pu
b 

cl
os

ur
es

, e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 w

ith
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 
po

pu
la

tio
n,

 s
o 

th
at

 th
e 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 o

ne
s,

 e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 th

e 
go

od
 o

ne
s,

 b
ec

om
e 

so
 b

us
y 

th
at

 it
 is

 d
iff

ic
ul

t t
o 

re
lia

bl
y 

vi
si

t t
he

m
 w

ith
 a

 g
ro

up
 o

f f
rie

nd
s 

as
 th

ey
 a

re
 

to
o 

cr
ow

de
d.

S
up

po
rt

 n
ot

ed
.

68
80

S
up

po
rt

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

S
tr

on
gl

y 
su

pp
or

t t
he

 n
ee

d 
fo

r 
th

is
 IP

P
G

 -
 p

ub
s 

w
er

en
't 

in
 d

an
ge

r 
in

 th
e 

20
06

 lo
ca

l p
la

n,
 a

nd
 th

us
 n

ot
 

in
cl

ud
ed

, b
ec

au
se

 o
f t

ha
t r

ea
so

n,
 r

at
he

r 
th

an
 b

ec
au

se
 

pu
bs

 w
er

e 
no

t v
al

ue
d.

 W
ith

 th
e 

re
ce

nt
 n

um
be

r 
of

 p
ub

 
cl

os
ur

es
 a

nd
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 in

 c
am

br
id

ge
 w

he
re

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t l
an

d 
is

 
at

 a
 p

re
m

iu
m

, t
hi

s 
IP

P
G

 is
 b

ot
h 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
an

d 
w

el
co

m
e.

S
up

po
rt

 n
ot

ed
.

14
08

2
S

up
po

rt
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

I w
ou

ld
 li

ke
 to

 e
xp

re
ss

 m
y 

su
pp

or
t f

or
, a

nd
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t 
w

ith
 th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r 
an

d 
go

al
s 

of
 th

e 
IP

P
G

.
S

up
po

rt
 n

ot
ed

.
10

13
8

S
up

po
rt

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

P
ag

e 
18

 o
f 5

6

Page 430



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

3.
 T

he
 Im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se

3.
 T

he
 Im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se

A
ct

io
n

3.
 T

he
 Im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se
3.

 T
he

 Im
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

T
he

 IP
P

G
 p

re
su

m
es

 th
at

 a
ll 

pu
bs

 (
an

d 
fo

rm
er

 p
ub

s)
 

ar
e 

va
lu

ed
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

 T
he

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
ba

se
 in

 th
e 

fo
rm

 o
f 

th
e 

G
V

A
 G

rim
le

y 
st

ud
y 

pr
ov

id
es

 n
o 

in
di

ca
tio

n 
of

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 v
al

ue
.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  H
ow

ev
er

, b
ot

h 
th

e 
G

V
A

 
C

am
br

id
ge

 P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 S
tu

dy
 a

nd
 th

e 
IP

P
G

 
di

sc
us

s 
th

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

at
 le

ng
th

.

14
70

0 
- 

Ja
nu

ar
ys

 C
on

su
lta

nt
 

S
ur

ve
yo

rs
O

bj
ec

t
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

A
lth

ou
gh

 th
e 

N
P

P
F

 c
la

ss
ifi

es
 p

ub
s 

as
 a

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

fa
ci

lit
y,

 it
 fa

ils
 to

 r
ec

og
ni

se
 th

at
 th

is
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
fu

nc
tio

n 
is

 d
ep

en
de

nt
 o

n 
th

e 
ex

is
te

nc
e 

of
 a

 v
ia

bl
e 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 e
nt

er
pr

is
e.

S
oc

ia
l n

et
w

or
ks

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 fa

m
ili

es
, h

av
e 

be
co

m
e 

lo
os

er
 a

nd
 le

ss
 g

eo
gr

ap
hi

ca
lly

 c
on

ce
nt

ra
te

d.
  N

ew
 

In
te

rn
et

 b
as

ed
 s

oc
ia

l n
et

w
or

ks
 a

re
 li

ke
ly

 to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

th
es

e 
tr

en
ds

.  
T

he
 d

ay
s 

w
he

n 
pu

bs
 a

ct
 a

s 
a 

fo
cu

s 
fo

r 
ge

og
ra

ph
ic

al
ly

 d
ef

in
ed

 lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
re

 la
rg

el
y 

ov
er

.
P

ub
s 

do
 n

ot
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

s 
m

an
y 

jo
bs

 a
s 

su
gg

es
te

d,
 a

nd
 

ar
e 

th
er

ef
or

e 
no

t a
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t p
ar

t o
f t

he
 lo

ca
l 

ec
on

om
y.

  D
em

an
ds

 o
f l

oc
al

 g
ro

up
s 

ar
e 

vo
la

til
e.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

 T
he

 IP
P

G
 d

oe
s 

re
co

gn
is

e 
th

at
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 fu
nc

tio
n 

of
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

is
 d

ep
en

de
nt

 
on

 th
e 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 v
ia

bi
lit

y 
of

 th
e 

pr
em

is
es

. T
he

 
cr

ite
ria

 fo
r 

ju
dg

in
g 

lo
ss

es
 o

f p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s 
ar

e 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

on
go

in
g 

vi
ab

ili
ty

 o
f t

he
 p

ub
lic

 
ho

us
e 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
th

e 
va

lu
e 

it 
pr

ov
id

es
 to

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
. 

P
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 c
om

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

y 
fu

nc
tio

ns
 a

nd
 th

ro
ug

h 
ou

r 
re

se
ar

ch
, h

av
e 

co
nc

lu
de

d 
th

at
 p

ub
s 

re
m

ai
n 

an
 im

po
rt

an
t p

ar
t o

f t
he

 s
oc

ia
l 

fa
br

ic
 o

f a
n 

ur
ba

n 
ar

ea
.

T
he

 IP
P

G
 s

et
s 

ou
t h

ow
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

he
lp

 
co

nt
rib

ut
e 

to
 th

e 
lo

ca
l a

nd
 w

id
er

 e
co

no
m

y.
 T

he
se

 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

re
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t a
lth

ou
gh

 d
iff

ic
ul

t t
o 

qu
an

tif
y,

 e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 th

e 
in

di
re

ct
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

. O
ne

 
fu

rt
he

r 
ex

am
pl

e 
of

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
fo

r 
th

is
 is

 th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
C

am
br

id
ge

 C
lu

st
er

 a
t 5

0 
st

ud
y 

th
at

 s
ha

re
d 

so
ci

al
 s

pa
ce

s 
ar

e 
im

po
rt

an
t t

o 
th

e 
su

cc
es

s 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t a
re

as
.

14
81

3 
- 

C
ha

rle
s 

W
el

ls
 L

td
O

bj
ec

t
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

T
he

 d
oc

um
en

t a
pp

ea
rs

 to
 li

st
 p

ro
s 

bu
t n

o 
co

ns
. T

hi
s 

gi
ve

s 
an

 u
nb

al
an

ce
d 

vi
ew

 a
s 

to
 th

e 
be

ne
fit

 o
f a

 p
ub

 to
 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
. F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

 o
ne

 o
f t

he
 r

ea
so

ns
 

pe
op

le
 s

to
pp

ed
 g

oi
ng

 to
 th

e 
P

en
ny

 F
er

ry
 w

as
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

s.
 A

no
th

er
 r

ea
so

n,
 w

as
 fo

r 
m

e,
 

th
e 

de
te

rio
ra

tin
g 

st
at

e 
of

 th
e 

gr
ou

nd
s,

 o
ve

rg
ro

w
n 

tr
ee

s 
w

hi
ch

 c
ut

 o
ff 

an
y 

w
ar

m
 o

r 
lig

ht
 o

ut
si

de
.

A
no

th
er

 is
 th

e 
de

tr
im

en
ta

l e
ffe

ct
 th

at
 a

lc
oh

ol
 h

as
 o

n 
ce

rt
ai

n 
in

di
vi

du
al

s.
 P

ub
s 

ar
e 

no
t d

es
ig

ne
d 

as
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 c

en
tr

es
. P

la
ce

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
sc

ho
ol

,s
po

rt
s 

or
 

ch
ur

ch
 h

al
ls

 c
an

 m
ak

e 
be

tte
r 

m
ee

tin
g 

pl
ac

es
.

P
le

as
e 

lis
t n

eg
at

iv
es

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 b

al
an

ce
 th

e 
di

sc
us

si
on

.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ac
ce

pt
s 

th
at

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
as

pe
ct

s 
to

 p
ub

s.
  H

ow
ev

er
, i

t i
s 

no
t t

he
 p

ub
 

us
e 

its
el

f w
hi

ch
 is

 d
et

rim
en

ta
l t

o 
an

 a
re

a.
  S

om
e 

of
 

th
e 

pr
ob

le
m

s 
de

sc
rib

ed
 c

an
 b

e 
ov

er
co

m
e 

by
 a

 
ch

an
ge

 to
 th

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t/o
w

ne
r.

72
56

O
bj

ec
t

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

P
ag

e 
19

 o
f 5

6

Page 431



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

3.
 T

he
 Im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se

3.
 T

he
 Im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se

A
ct

io
n

N
o 

m
en

tio
n 

is
 m

ad
e 

of
 o

pe
ni

ng
 h

ou
rs

 o
f i

nd
iv

id
ua

l 
pu

bs
. P

er
so

na
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
te

lls
 m

e 
w

hi
ch

 p
ub

s 
ar

e 
be

tte
r 

fo
r 

ne
tw

or
ki

ng
 a

nd
 m

ee
tin

gs
 w

ith
ou

t h
av

in
g 

to
 

re
m

em
be

r 
th

ei
r 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

op
en

in
g 

ho
ur

s.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  I
t w

ou
ld

 b
e 

to
o 

cu
m

be
rs

om
e 

to
 g

o 
in

to
 th

e 
le

ve
l o

f d
et

ai
l i

n 
th

e 
IP

P
G

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 
an

al
ys

in
g 

di
ffe

re
nt

 o
pe

ni
ng

 h
ou

rs
.  

A
s 

op
en

in
g 

ho
ur

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

ch
an

ge
 in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
, t

hi
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

w
ou

ld
 a

ls
o 

be
 li

ke
ly

 to
 b

e 
re

nd
er

ed
 

ob
so

le
te

 q
ui

te
 s

w
ift

ly
.

70
35

 -
 F

rie
nd

s 
of

 M
id

su
m

m
er

 
C

om
m

on
O

bj
ec

t
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

T
he

 im
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f a
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
 is

 fu
lly

 r
ec

og
ni

se
d 

bu
t t

he
 s

ta
tis

tic
s 

in
 th

is
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 a
re

 u
nh

el
pf

ul
, 

un
fo

un
de

d,
 a

nd
 u

nr
el

ia
bl

e.
 F

ur
th

er
 c

la
rif

ic
at

io
n 

is
 

ne
ed

ed
 fr

om
 a

 m
or

e 
im

pa
rt

ia
l s

ou
rc

e.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

re
fe

rr
ed

 
to

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
IP

P
R

's
 P

ub
s 

an
d 

P
la

ce
s 

re
po

rt
 (

2n
d 

E
di

tio
n)

 a
nd

 C
A

M
R

A
 r

es
ea

rc
h 

as
 b

ot
h 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 th
e 

va
lu

e 
of

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s.
It 

is
 r

ec
og

ni
se

d 
th

at
 th

is
 a

re
 n

ot
 th

e 
on

ly
 s

ou
rc

es
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
av

ai
la

bl
e,

 b
ut

 th
ey

 d
o 

re
pr

es
en

t 
im

po
rt

an
t s

ou
rc

es
 o

f r
es

ea
rc

h.

13
09

1 
- 

C
al

de
co

tte
 C

on
su

lta
nt

s
O

bj
ec

t
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

It 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
co

gn
is

ed
 th

at
 p

ub
s 

ar
e 

no
t j

us
t 

"c
ul

tu
ra

lly
 im

po
rt

an
t i

ns
tit

ut
io

ns
".

 M
an

y 
ar

e 
al

so
 

"h
is

to
ric

al
ly

 a
nd

 a
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
ly

 im
po

rt
an

t i
ns

tit
ut

io
ns

".
 

R
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t m

ig
ht

 d
es

tr
oy

 th
es

e 
at

tr
ib

ut
es

.

C
on

ce
rn

 n
ot

ed
.  

R
ef

er
en

ce
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
in

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 to

 th
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

pu
bs

 p
la

y 
to

 th
e 

hi
st

or
ic

 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

of
 C

am
br

id
ge

.  
T

he
 n

ew
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 3
.5

 w
ill

 
re

ad
 "

F
ur

th
er

m
or

e,
 th

e 
ne

tw
or

k 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
pu

bl
ic

 
ho

us
es

 m
ak

es
 a

 p
os

iti
ve

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

 th
e 

hi
st

or
ic

 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

an
d 

ap
pe

ar
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 c
ity

.  
T

hi
s 

is
 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 th
e 

ca
se

 fo
r 

th
os

e 
pu

bs
 in

 th
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 o
r 

al
on

g 
th

e 
riv

er
si

de
.  

A
lo

ng
 th

e 
R

iv
er

 C
am

, 
pu

bs
 h

el
p 

to
 r

et
ai

n 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f t

he
 

riv
er

's
 s

et
tin

g 
an

d 
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

.  
O

fte
n 

ol
de

r 
pu

bl
ic

 
ho

us
es

 a
re

 lo
ca

te
d 

in
 a

nd
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

 th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
of

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
as

 o
r 

ar
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 to

 b
e 

of
 

su
ffi

ci
en

t a
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
 o

r 
hi

st
or

ic
 m

er
it 

to
 w

ar
ra

nt
 

lis
te

d 
bu

ild
in

gs
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n.
  S

om
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
no

t 
be

ne
fit

in
g 

fr
om

 n
at

io
na

l l
is

te
d 

bu
ild

in
g 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
ar

e 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 a
s 

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 o

f L
oc

al
 In

te
re

st
 (

B
LI

).
F

ou
rt

ee
n 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
in

 C
am

br
id

ge
 b

en
ef

it 
fr

om
 

na
tio

na
l l

is
tin

g.
  A

 fu
rt

he
r 

te
n 

ar
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
B

LI
 li

st
.  

T
he

 li
st

 o
f p

ub
s 

at
 S

ec
tio

n 
5 

is
 a

nn
ot

at
ed

 
w

ith
 e

ith
er

 L
B

 o
r 

B
LI

 to
 s

ho
w

 w
hi

ch
 o

ne
s 

be
ne

fit
 

fr
om

 th
is

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n.
  T

he
 p

re
se

nc
e 

of
 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
in

 a
 c

ity
 h

el
p 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
vi

si
to

rs
 a

lik
e 

to
 e

nj
oy

 th
e 

C
ity

's
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

its
 h

is
to

ry
."

70
34

 -
 F

rie
nd

s 
of

 M
id

su
m

m
er

 
C

om
m

on
O

bj
ec

t
In

se
rt

 n
ew

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 3

.5
 to

 r
ea

d 
"F

ur
th

er
m

or
e,

 th
e 

ne
tw

or
k 

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
m

ak
es

 a
 p

os
iti

ve
 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

to
 th

e 
hi

st
or

ic
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 a
nd

 
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 c

ity
.  

T
hi

s 
is

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 th
e 

ca
se

 fo
r 

th
os

e 
pu

bs
 in

 th
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 o
r 

al
on

g 
th

e 
riv

er
si

de
.  

A
lo

ng
 th

e 
R

iv
er

 C
am

, p
ub

s 
he

lp
 to

 r
et

ai
n 

an
d 

en
ha

nc
e 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f t
he

 r
iv

er
's

 s
et

tin
g 

an
d 

ap
pe

ar
an

ce
.  

O
fte

n 
ol

de
r 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
ar

e 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 a
nd

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

to
 th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

of
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

as
 o

r 
ar

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 to
 b

e 
of

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

 o
r 

hi
st

or
ic

 m
er

it 
to

 w
ar

ra
nt

 li
st

ed
 

bu
ild

in
gs

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n.

S
om

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

no
t 

be
ne

fit
in

g 
fr

om
 n

at
io

na
l l

is
te

d 
bu

ild
in

g 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

ar
e 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 a

s 
B

ui
ld

in
gs

 o
f L

oc
al

 In
te

re
st

 (
B

LI
).

F
ou

rt
ee

n 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

in
 C

am
br

id
ge

 b
en

ef
it 

fr
om

 
na

tio
na

l l
is

tin
g.

  A
 fu

rt
he

r 
te

n 
ar

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 w

ith
in

 
th

e 
B

LI
 li

st
.  

T
he

 li
st

 o
f p

ub
s 

at
 S

ec
tio

n 
5 

is
 

an
no

ta
te

d 
w

ith
 e

ith
er

 L
B

 o
r 

B
LI

 to
 s

ho
w

 w
hi

ch
 o

ne
s 

be
ne

fit
 fr

om
 th

is
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n.

  T
he

 
pr

es
en

ce
 o

f p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s 
in

 a
 c

ity
 h

el
p 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
vi

si
to

rs
 a

lik
e 

to
 e

nj
oy

 th
e 

C
ity

's
 

ch
ar

ac
te

r,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

its
 h

is
to

ry
."

P
ag

e 
20

 o
f 5

6

Page 432



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

3.
 T

he
 Im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se

3.
 T

he
 Im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se

A
ct

io
n

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
va

lu
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
pr

ov
id

e 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ec
on

om
ic

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n,
 jo

b 
pr

ov
is

io
n,

 s
oc

ia
l 

fu
nc

tio
n 

as
 c

om
m

un
ity

 h
ub

s 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

in
g 

th
e 

di
ve

rs
ity

 a
nd

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 o

f a
re

as
.

N
ee

d 
to

 r
ec

og
ni

se
 th

at
 p

ub
s 

ar
e 

st
ill

 b
us

in
es

se
s 

an
d 

m
us

t r
em

ai
n 

vi
ab

le
 to

 s
ur

vi
ve

.
A

tte
m

pt
s 

to
 r

es
is

t c
ha

ng
e 

of
 u

se
 o

r 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f 

cl
os

ed
 p

ub
s 

w
ill

 n
ot

 p
re

ve
nt

 p
ub

s 
fa

ili
ng

 if
 th

ey
 a

re
 

un
vi

ab
le

, d
es

pi
te

 b
es

t e
ffo

rt
s,

 s
om

e 
w

ill
 in

ev
ita

bl
y 

st
ill

 
cl

os
e.

It 
is

 c
ru

ci
al

 th
at

 p
ub

 b
us

in
es

se
s 

an
d 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

ca
n 

re
-

po
si

tio
n 

or
 d

is
po

se
 o

f t
he

 p
ub

s 
to

 r
ei

nv
es

t i
n 

ot
he

r 
si

te
s 

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

 T
he

 IP
P

G
 r

ec
og

ni
se

s 
th

at
 p

ub
s 

ar
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 a

nd
 n

ee
d 

to
 r

em
ai

n 
vi

ab
le

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 

su
rv

iv
e.

 T
he

 IP
P

G
 in

co
rp

or
at

es
 th

e 
fle

xi
bi

lit
y 

fo
r 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
to

 b
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

or
 c

ha
ng

e 
us

e,
 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
ce

rt
ai

n 
cr

ite
ria

 b
ei

ng
 m

et
.

14
68

4 
- 

B
rit

is
h 

B
ee

r 
&

 P
ub

 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
O

bj
ec

t
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

I w
ou

ld
 li

ke
 to

 a
dd

 m
y 

su
pp

or
t t

o 
th

e 
gr

ow
in

g 
in

te
re

st
 

in
 r

et
ai

ni
ng

 th
e 

'F
ly

in
g 

P
ig

' P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 a
s 

it 
is

.
T

he
re

 s
ee

m
s 

to
 b

e 
no

 m
er

it 
in

 th
e 

de
st

ru
ct

io
n 

an
d 

th
en

 r
e-

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
of

 a
n 

ex
is

tin
g 

co
m

m
un

ity
 a

ss
et

, 
in

de
ed

 a
 g

re
at

 lo
ss

 o
f a

m
en

ity
 to

 th
is

 p
oc

ke
t o

f 
C

am
br

id
ge

 w
ou

ld
 o

cc
ur

.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 a
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

06
/0

55
2/

F
U

L 
fo

r 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 m

ix
ed

 u
se

 s
ch

em
e 

co
m

pr
is

in
g 

15
6 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l u

ni
ts

 (
in

cl
ud

in
g 

40
%

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
);

 
B

1 
of

fic
e 

us
e;

 r
et

ai
l /

 fo
od

 a
nd

 d
rin

k 
(C

la
ss

es
 A

1;
 A

3 
an

d 
A

4 
us

es
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 r
et

en
tio

n 
of

 'F
ly

in
g 

P
ig

' 
P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se
),

 a
nd

 n
ew

 c
om

m
un

ity
 u

se
, t

og
et

he
r 

w
ith

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

ba
se

m
en

t c
ar

 p
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ci

ng
; 

am
en

ity
 s

pa
ce

 (
ex

te
rn

al
 a

nd
 in

te
rn

al
) 

w
ith

 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 h
ar

d 
an

d 
so

ft 
la

nd
sc

ap
in

g;
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

re
-

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
w

ar
 m

em
or

ia
l a

nd
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f p

ub
lic

 
ar

t r
es

pe
ct

iv
el

y.
  A

s 
P

ha
se

 1
 o

f t
hi

s 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t, 

th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 r
em

ai
ns

 e
xt

an
t. 

 W
hi

ls
t t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

its
el

f 
m

ay
 n

ot
 r

em
ai

n,
 th

is
 p

la
nn

in
g 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 d

oe
s 

sa
fe

gu
ar

d 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
 u

se
.

92
47

S
up

po
rt

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

A
s 

a 
re

si
de

nt
 o

f R
om

se
y 

I f
ee

l i
t i

s 
im

po
rt

an
t t

o 
sa

ve
 

th
is

 b
ui

ld
in

g.
 I 

su
pp

or
t i

t b
ei

ng
 o

pe
ne

d 
as

 a
 R

ea
l A

le
 

pu
b 

w
ith

 in
sp

ire
d 

fo
od

 m
en

u.
 It

 c
ou

ld
 o

ffe
r 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

, r
oo

m
s 

fo
r 

a 
sm

al
l m

us
ic

/c
om

ed
y 

ve
nu

e.
 R

om
se

y 
is

 g
ro

w
in

g 
w

ith
 v

ib
ra

nc
e,

 m
an

y 
ne

w
 

fa
m

ili
es

 a
re

 m
ov

in
g 

in
to

 th
e 

ar
ea

. W
ha

t w
e 

ne
ed

 is
 a

 
fo

ca
l p

oi
nt

. T
hi

s 
co

ul
d 

be
 th

e 
fir

st
 s

te
p 

to
 r

e-
in

vi
go

ra
tin

g 
an

 h
is

to
ric

 a
re

a.
 T

he
 b

en
ef

its
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

m
an

y.
T

hi
s 

de
ve

lo
pe

r 
ha

s 
al

re
ad

y 
de

st
ro

ye
d 

on
e 

pu
b 

ho
us

e 
lo

ca
lly

 "
T

he
 J

ub
ile

e"
, s

ho
ul

d 
no

t b
e 

gi
ve

n 
a 

se
co

nd
 

op
po

rt
un

ity
.

B
e 

br
av

e 
C

C
C

, t
hi

nk
 o

f t
he

 g
lo

rio
us

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

.

S
up

po
rt

 n
ot

ed
.

70
19

S
up

po
rt

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

P
ag

e 
21

 o
f 5

6

Page 433



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

3.
 T

he
 Im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se

3.
 T

he
 Im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se

A
ct

io
n

I a
gr

ee
d 

w
ith

 th
es

e 
st

at
em

en
ts

.
S

up
po

rt
 n

ot
ed

.
12

83
4

S
up

po
rt

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

E
ng

lis
h 

H
er

ita
ge

 a
gr

ee
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

th
at

 th
e 

ne
tw

or
k 

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
m

ak
e 

a 
po

si
tiv

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
to

 th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
an

d 
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 

ci
ty

 a
nd

 a
re

 im
po

rt
an

t i
n 

pr
om

ot
in

g 
so

ci
al

 c
oh

es
io

n 
an

d 
as

 v
en

ue
s 

fo
r 

so
ci

al
 r

ec
re

at
io

n 
an

d 
le

is
ur

e.
  W

e 
th

er
ef

or
e 

w
el

co
m

e 
th

e 
dr

af
t I

P
P

G
 a

s 
a 

to
ol

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
vi

ab
le

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s 
ar

e 
re

ta
in

ed
 in

 th
e 

us
e 

fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 

th
ey

 w
er

e 
in

te
nd

ed
.

S
up

po
rt

 n
ot

ed
.  

R
ef

er
en

ce
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
in

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 to

 th
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

pu
bs

 p
la

y 
to

 th
e 

hi
st

or
ic

 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

of
 C

am
br

id
ge

. T
he

 n
ew

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 3

.5
 w

ill
 

re
ad

 "
F

ur
th

er
m

or
e,

 th
e 

ne
tw

or
k 

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 

ho
us

es
 m

ak
es

 a
 p

os
iti

ve
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

to
 th

e 
hi

st
or

ic
 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
an

d 
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 c

ity
. T

hi
s 

is
 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 th
e 

ca
se

 fo
r 

th
os

e 
pu

bs
 in

 th
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 o
r 

al
on

g 
th

e 
riv

er
si

de
. A

lo
ng

 th
e 

R
iv

er
 C

am
, 

pu
bs

 h
el

p 
to

 r
et

ai
n 

an
d 

en
ha

nc
e 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f t
he

 
riv

er
's

 s
et

tin
g 

an
d 

ap
pe

ar
an

ce
. O

fte
n 

ol
de

r 
pu

bl
ic

 
ho

us
es

 a
re

 lo
ca

te
d 

in
 a

nd
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

 th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
of

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
as

 o
r 

ar
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 to

 b
e 

of
 

su
ffi

ci
en

t a
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
 o

r 
hi

st
or

ic
 m

er
it 

to
 w

ar
ra

nt
 

lis
te

d 
bu

ild
in

gs
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n.
 S

om
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
no

t 
be

ne
fit

in
g 

fr
om

 n
at

io
na

l l
is

te
d 

bu
ild

in
g 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
ar

e 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 a
s 

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 o

f L
oc

al
 In

te
re

st
 (

B
LI

).
 

F
ou

rt
ee

n 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

in
 C

am
br

id
ge

 b
en

ef
it 

fr
om

 
na

tio
na

l l
is

tin
g.

 A
 fu

rt
he

r 
te

n 
ar

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

B
LI

 li
st

. T
he

 li
st

 o
f p

ub
s 

at
 S

ec
tio

n 
5 

is
 a

nn
ot

at
ed

 
w

ith
 e

ith
er

 L
B

 o
r 

B
LI

 to
 s

ho
w

 w
hi

ch
 o

ne
s 

be
ne

fit
 

fr
om

 th
is

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n.
 T

he
 p

re
se

nc
e 

of
 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
in

 a
 c

ity
 h

el
p 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
vi

si
to

rs
 a

lik
e 

to
 e

nj
oy

 th
e 

C
ity

's
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

its
 h

is
to

ry
."

14
27

8 
- 

E
ng

lis
h 

H
er

ita
ge

 (
E

as
t o

f 
E

ng
la

nd
 R

eg
io

n)
S

up
po

rt
In

se
rt

 n
ew

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 3

.5
 to

 r
ea

d 
"F

ur
th

er
m

or
e,

 th
e 

ne
tw

or
k 

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
m

ak
es

 a
 p

os
iti

ve
 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

to
 th

e 
hi

st
or

ic
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 a
nd

 
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 c

ity
. T

hi
s 

is
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 th

e 
ca

se
 

fo
r 

th
os

e 
pu

bs
 in

 th
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 o
r 

al
on

g 
th

e 
riv

er
si

de
. A

lo
ng

 th
e 

R
iv

er
 C

am
, p

ub
s 

he
lp

 to
 r

et
ai

n 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f t

he
 r

iv
er

's
 s

et
tin

g 
an

d 
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

. O
fte

n 
ol

de
r 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
ar

e 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 a
nd

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

to
 th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

of
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

as
 o

r 
ar

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 to
 b

e 
of

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

 o
r 

hi
st

or
ic

 m
er

it 
to

 w
ar

ra
nt

 li
st

ed
 

bu
ild

in
gs

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n.

 S
om

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

no
t 

be
ne

fit
in

g 
fr

om
 n

at
io

na
l l

is
te

d 
bu

ild
in

g 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

ar
e 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 a

s 
B

ui
ld

in
gs

 o
f L

oc
al

 In
te

re
st

 (
B

LI
).

 
F

ou
rt

ee
n 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
in

 C
am

br
id

ge
 b

en
ef

it 
fr

om
 

na
tio

na
l l

is
tin

g.
 A

 fu
rt

he
r 

te
n 

ar
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
B

LI
 li

st
. T

he
 li

st
 o

f p
ub

s 
at

 S
ec

tio
n 

5 
is

 a
nn

ot
at

ed
 

w
ith

 e
ith

er
 L

B
 o

r 
B

LI
 to

 s
ho

w
 w

hi
ch

 o
ne

s 
be

ne
fit

 
fr

om
 th

is
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n.

 T
he

 p
re

se
nc

e 
of

 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

in
 a

 c
ity

 h
el

p 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

lo
ca

l p
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

vi
si

to
rs

 a
lik

e 
to

 e
nj

oy
 th

e 
C

ity
's

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
its

 h
is

to
ry

."

T
he

 F
ly

in
g 

P
ig

 h
as

 a
lw

ay
s 

be
en

 a
n 

ex
ce

lle
nt

 p
ub

lic
 

ho
us

e 
w

hi
ch

 s
up

pl
ie

s 
re

as
on

ab
ly

 p
ric

ed
 fo

od
. I

'v
e 

be
en

 a
 r

eg
ul

ar
 fo

r 
m

an
y 

ye
ar

s 
an

d 
w

ou
ld

 m
is

s 
its

 
un

iq
ue

 a
tm

os
ph

er
e 

if 
it 

w
as

 to
 b

e 
de

m
ol

is
he

d.
 It

's
 

sa
fe

 to
 s

ay
 th

at
 s

ho
ul

d 
th

is
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
 b

e 
lo

st
 th

en
 

it 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

a 
sa

d 
da

y 
fo

r 
th

is
 p

ar
t o

f C
am

br
id

ge
. 

T
he

se
 ty

pe
s 

of
 e

st
ab

lis
hm

en
ts

 o
nl

y 
de

ve
lo

p 
ov

er
 

m
an

y 
ye

ar
s 

an
d 

on
ce

 it
s 

lo
st

, i
t c

an
no

t b
e 

re
pl

ac
ed

. 
P

le
as

e 
sa

ve
 th

e 
F

ly
in

g 
P

ig
.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 a
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

06
/0

55
2/

F
U

L 
fo

r 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 m
ix

ed
 u

se
 s

ch
em

e 
co

m
pr

is
in

g 
15

6 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l u
ni

ts
 (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
40

%
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

);
 

B
1 

of
fic

e 
us

e;
 r

et
ai

l /
 fo

od
 a

nd
 d

rin
k 

(C
la

ss
es

 A
1;

 A
3 

an
d 

A
4 

us
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 r

et
en

tio
n 

of
 'F

ly
in

g 
P

ig
' 

P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

),
 a

nd
 n

ew
 c

om
m

un
ity

 u
se

, t
og

et
he

r 
w

ith
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
ba

se
m

en
t c

ar
 p

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ci
ng

; 
am

en
ity

 s
pa

ce
 (

ex
te

rn
al

 a
nd

 in
te

rn
al

) 
w

ith
 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 h

ar
d 

an
d 

so
ft 

la
nd

sc
ap

in
g;

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
re

-
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

w
ar

 m
em

or
ia

l a
nd

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f p
ub

lic
 

ar
t r

es
pe

ct
iv

el
y.

  A
s 

P
ha

se
 1

 o
f t

hi
s 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t, 
th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 r

em
ai

ns
 e

xt
an

t. 
 W

hi
ls

t t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
its

el
f 

m
ay

 n
ot

 r
em

ai
n,

 th
is

 p
la

nn
in

g 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 d
oe

s 
sa

fe
gu

ar
d 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

 u
se

.

73
02

S
up

po
rt

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

P
ag

e 
22

 o
f 5

6

Page 434



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

3.
 T

he
 Im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se

3.
 T

he
 Im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se

A
ct

io
n

T
he

 F
ly

in
g 

P
ig

 is
 a

 c
ul

tu
ra

l a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l h

ub
.

It 
it 

a 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 b
us

in
es

s.
It 

ha
s 

a 
cr

iti
ca

l r
ol

e 
in

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
.

It 
of

fe
rs

 a
n 

im
po

rt
an

t s
en

se
 o

f s
ca

le
 in

 th
e 

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
e 

of
 th

e 
ar

ea
.

It 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

n 
es

se
nt

ia
l s

er
vi

ce
 to

 a
 v

er
y 

di
ve

rs
e 

cu
st

om
er

 b
as

e.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 a
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

06
/0

55
2/

F
U

L 
fo

r 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 m
ix

ed
 u

se
 s

ch
em

e 
co

m
pr

is
in

g 
15

6 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l u
ni

ts
 (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
40

%
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

);
 

B
1 

of
fic

e 
us

e;
 r

et
ai

l /
 fo

od
 a

nd
 d

rin
k 

(C
la

ss
es

 A
1;

 A
3 

an
d 

A
4 

us
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 r

et
en

tio
n 

of
 'F

ly
in

g 
P

ig
' 

P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

),
 a

nd
 n

ew
 c

om
m

un
ity

 u
se

, t
og

et
he

r 
w

ith
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
ba

se
m

en
t c

ar
 p

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ci
ng

; 
am

en
ity

 s
pa

ce
 (

ex
te

rn
al

 a
nd

 in
te

rn
al

) 
w

ith
 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 h

ar
d 

an
d 

so
ft 

la
nd

sc
ap

in
g;

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
re

-
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

w
ar

 m
em

or
ia

l a
nd

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f p
ub

lic
 

ar
t r

es
pe

ct
iv

el
y.

  A
s 

P
ha

se
 1

 o
f t

hi
s 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t, 
th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 r

em
ai

ns
 e

xt
an

t. 
 W

hi
ls

t t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
its

el
f 

m
ay

 n
ot

 r
em

ai
n,

 th
is

 p
la

nn
in

g 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 d
oe

s 
sa

fe
gu

ar
d 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

 u
se

.

W
hi

le
 th

e 
lo

ss
 o

f t
he

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

 m
ay

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

n 
is

su
e 

at
 th

e 
tim

e 
of

 th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 d
ec

is
io

n,
 

th
e 

lo
ss

 o
f a

 p
ub

 o
r 

a 
po

te
nt

ia
l p

ub
 is

 n
ow

 a
 

co
nc

er
n.

  T
he

re
fo

re
, t

he
 IP

P
G

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 
to

 a
ny

 n
ew

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
th

at
 in

vo
lv

es
 th

e 
lo

ss
 o

f a
 p

ub
 s

ite
 (

au
di

te
d)

 d
es

pi
te

 it
 a

lre
ad

y 
ha

vi
ng

 
an

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
er

m
is

si
on

.

71
49

S
up

po
rt

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

I a
gr

ee
 w

ith
 a

ll 
of

 th
e 

po
in

ts
 m

ad
e 

in
 th

e 
do

cu
m

en
t. 

 I 
do

  n
ot

 g
o 

to
 a

 p
ub

 th
at

 o
fte

n,
 b

ut
 th

ey
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

 
th

e 
at

m
os

ph
er

e 
of

 a
n 

ar
ea

, w
ith

ou
t w

hi
ch

 s
tr

ee
ts

 c
an

 
be

co
m

e 
dr

ea
ry

 h
ou

si
ng

 e
st

at
es

.  
It 

is
 a

 v
al

ua
bl

e 
am

en
ity

 in
 th

e 
ci

ty
 b

ot
h 

fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

s 
an

d 
vi

si
to

rs
 to

 
ha

ve
 s

om
ew

he
re

 to
 g

o 
fo

r 
a 

ca
su

al
 d

rin
k 

w
ith

ou
t 

ha
vi

ng
 to

 g
o 

a 
re

st
au

ra
nt

.  
P

ub
s 

ar
e 

a 
ve

ry
 B

rit
is

h 
in

st
itu

tio
n 

an
d 

it 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

a 
pi

ty
 o

f t
he

y 
di

sa
pp

ea
re

d 
fr

om
 e

ve
ry

w
he

re
 e

xc
ep

t t
he

 h
is

to
ric

 c
en

tr
e.

S
up

po
rt

 n
ot

ed
.

71
95

S
up

po
rt

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

P
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s 
m

ak
e 

an
 im

po
rt

an
t c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

to
 

so
ci

al
 li

fe
 in

 C
am

br
id

ge
.

S
up

po
rt

 n
ot

ed
.

15
35

6
S

up
po

rt
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

P
ag

e 
23

 o
f 5

6

Page 435



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

4.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
rin

ci
pl

es

4.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
rin

ci
pl

es

A
ct

io
n

4.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
ri

nc
ip

le
s

4.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
ri

nc
ip

le
s W

ith
 r

ef
er

en
ce

 to
 th

e 
w

or
di

ng
 o

f t
he

 p
ol

ic
y,

 it
 m

ig
ht

 b
e 

be
ne

fic
ia

l t
o 

co
ns

id
er

 a
dd

in
g 

a 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

on
 

de
lib

er
at

e 
ne

gl
ec

t. 
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 1
30

 o
f t

he
 N

P
P

F
 

co
ns

id
er

s 
th

e 
is

su
e 

of
 d

el
ib

er
at

e 
ne

gl
ec

t o
f h

er
ita

ge
 

as
se

ts
 a

nd
 th

at
 w

or
di

ng
 m

ig
ht

 b
e 

ad
ap

te
d 

fo
r 

us
e 

re
sp

ec
t o

f p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

 in
 th

e 
ci

ty
. T

hi
s 

m
ig

ht
 r

ea
d:

'W
he

re
 th

er
e 

is
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 d

el
ib

er
at

e 
ne

gl
ec

t o
r 

da
m

ag
e 

to
 a

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

 th
e 

de
te

rio
ra

te
d 

st
at

e 
of

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

 w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 in

 a
ny

 
de

ci
si

on
 c

on
ce

rn
in

g 
its

 fu
tu

re
 u

se
 o

r 
de

m
ol

iti
on

.'

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  A
 n

ew
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 4
.1

0 
ha

s 
be

en
 

in
tr

od
uc

ed
 to

 r
ea

d 
"I

n 
ca

se
s 

w
he

re
 a

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
co

nc
er

ns
 a

 h
er

ita
ge

 a
ss

et
 (

pl
ea

se
 r

ef
er

 
to

 th
e 

gl
os

sa
ry

 in
 s

ec
tio

n 
6.

 fo
r 

a 
de

fin
iti

on
) 

an
d 

th
er

e 
is

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 d
el

ib
er

at
e 

ne
gl

ec
t o

f o
r 

da
m

ag
e 

th
en

 th
e 

de
te

rio
ra

te
d 

st
at

e 
of

 th
e 

he
rit

ag
e 

as
se

t w
ill

 
no

t b
e 

ta
ke

n 
in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 in

 a
ny

 p
la

nn
in

g 
de

ci
si

on
."

14
28

5 
- 

E
ng

lis
h 

H
er

ita
ge

 (
E

as
t o

f 
E

ng
la

nd
 R

eg
io

n)
O

bj
ec

t
In

tr
od

uc
e 

a 
ne

w
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 4
.1

0 
to

 r
ea

d 
"I

n 
ca

se
s 

w
he

re
 a

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
co

nc
er

ns
 a

 h
er

ita
ge

 
as

se
t (

pl
ea

se
 r

ef
er

 to
 th

e 
gl

os
sa

ry
 in

 s
ec

tio
n 

6.
 fo

r 
a 

de
fin

iti
on

) 
an

d 
th

er
e 

is
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 d

el
ib

er
at

e 
ne

gl
ec

t o
f o

r 
da

m
ag

e 
th

en
 th

e 
de

te
rio

ra
te

d 
st

at
e 

of
 

th
e 

he
rit

ag
e 

as
se

t w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 in

 
an

y 
pl

an
ni

ng
 d

ec
is

io
n.

"

P
ag

e 
24

 o
f 5

6

Page 436



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

4.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
rin

ci
pl

es

4.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
rin

ci
pl

es

A
ct

io
n

N
o 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

en
tir

el
y 

ne
w

 P
ub

lic
 

H
ou

se
s.

N
P

P
F

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 7

 s
ta

te
s 

th
at

 o
ne

 o
f t

he
 N

P
P

F
's

 
'd

im
en

si
on

s'
 is

 "
a 

so
ci

al
 r

ol
e 

- 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

st
ro

ng
, 

vi
br

an
t a

nd
 h

ea
lth

y 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
...

w
ith

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

lo
ca

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
th

at
 r

ef
le

ct
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

's
 n

ee
ds

 a
nd

 
su

pp
or

t i
ts

 h
ea

lth
, s

oc
ia

l a
nd

 c
ul

tu
ra

l w
el

l-b
ei

ng
".

A
dd

 a
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 in
 s

ec
tio

n 
4 

th
at

:
-w

el
co

m
es

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

ne
w

 P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

s 
in

 th
e 

C
ity

, p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 w
ith

 o
ut

do
or

 a
re

as
, t

ha
t p

ro
m

ot
e 

th
es

e 
ai

m
s;

-a
ny

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t m
us

t d
em

on
st

ra
te

 h
ow

 th
ey

 
w

ill
 m

ee
t '

co
m

m
un

ity
 n

ee
ds

', 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t t
he

 
re

si
de

nt
's

 's
oc

ia
l a

nd
 c

ul
tu

ra
l w

el
l-b

ei
ng

', 
by

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
n 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se
(s

).

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

 R
ef

er
en

ce
s 

to
 n

ew
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
in

se
rt

ed
 a

t p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 2

.1
7 

(d
es

cr
ib

in
g 

S
av

ed
 P

ol
ic

y 
5/

12
) 

an
d 

at
  p

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 
4.

15
 -

 4
.1

8 
(P

ro
po

sa
ls

 fo
r 

ne
w

 P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

s 
(A

4 
us

es
))

.

86
63

 -
 C

am
br

id
ge

 P
as

t, 
P

re
se

nt
 

an
d 

F
ut

ur
e

O
bj

ec
t

In
se

rt
 n

ew
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 2
.1

7 
to

 r
ea

d:

"I
n 

re
sp

ec
t o

f n
ew

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s,
 S

av
ed

 P
ol

ic
y 

5/
12

 "
N

ew
 C

om
m

un
ity

 F
ac

ili
tie

s"
 w

ou
ld

 a
pp

ly
.  

T
he

 
N

P
P

F
 s

ta
te

s 
th

at
 a

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

 is
 a

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

fa
ci

lit
y 

an
d 

th
er

ef
or

e 
ne

w
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 a
ga

in
st

 S
av

ed
 P

ol
ic

y 
5/

12
.  

E
ss

en
tia

lly
, 

it 
is

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 p
ro

ve
 a

 lo
ca

l n
ee

d 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 b
e 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
P

ol
ic

y.
  H

ow
ev

er
, i

t w
ou

ld
 

al
so

 b
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 a
dh

er
e 

to
 o

th
er

 g
en

er
al

 
de

si
gn

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
an

d 
ha

ve
 r

eg
ar

d 
to

 n
or

m
al

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l a

nd
 a

m
en

ity
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
ns

."

In
se

rt
 n

ew
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 
4.

15
 -

 4
1.

8 
to

 r
ea

d:

"P
ro

po
sa

ls
 fo

r 
ne

w
 P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se
s 

(A
4 

us
es

)
4.

15
 T

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
is

 u
nd

er
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 

sh
ou

ld
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 s
ite

s 
fo

r 
ne

w
 h

ou
si

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

co
m

e 
fo

rw
ar

d 
in

 th
e 

ne
xt

 p
la

n 
pe

rio
d,

 th
er

e 
co

ul
d 

be
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 n

ew
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

to
 

sa
tis

fy
 lo

ca
l d

em
an

d 
an

d 
he

lp
 to

 c
re

at
e 

vi
br

an
t &

 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
.

4.
16

 S
av

ed
 P

ol
ic

y 
5/

12
 "

N
ew

 C
om

m
un

ity
 F

ac
ili

tie
s"

 
en

co
ur

ag
es

 n
ew

 c
om

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

  T
he

 N
P

P
F

 
at

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 7

0 
co

nf
irm

s 
th

at
 p

la
nn

in
g 

po
lic

ie
s 

sh
ou

ld
 p

la
n 

po
si

tiv
el

y 
fo

r 
co

m
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s,
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 s
ec

ur
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

.
4.

17
 A

cc
or

di
ng

ly
, p

ro
po

sa
ls

 fo
r 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
w

ill
 

be
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

d 
to

 s
er

ve
 n

ew
 r

es
id

en
tia

l 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 o

f m
or

e 
th

an
 3

,0
00

 n
ew

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s;

 
w

he
re

 th
e 

pu
b 

is
 c

o-
lo

ca
te

d 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 n
ew

 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
, r

et
ai

l &
 c

om
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

re
cr

ea
tio

na
l a

nd
 a

m
en

ity
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e;
 a

nd
, w

he
re

 
th

e 
pu

b 
is

 c
en

tr
al

ly
 lo

ca
te

d 
on

 a
 p

ro
m

in
en

t s
ite

 w
ith

 
go

od
 v

is
ib

ili
ty

 o
r 

on
 th

e 
m

ai
n 

ar
te

ria
l t

ra
ns

po
rt

 r
ou

te
 

in
to

 a
nd

 o
ut

 o
f t

he
 n

ew
 c

om
m

un
ity

.
4.

18
 It

 w
ou

ld
 a

ls
o 

be
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 to
 a

dh
er

e 
to

 o
th

er
 

ge
ne

ra
l d

es
ig

n 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
ha

ve
 r

eg
ar

d 
to

 n
or

m
al

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l a

nd
 a

m
en

ity
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
ns

."

P
ag

e 
25

 o
f 5

6

Page 437



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

4.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
rin

ci
pl

es

4.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
rin

ci
pl

es

A
ct

io
n

P
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s 
in

 th
e 

su
bu

rb
an

 e
st

at
es

 a
re

 a
m

on
gs

t 
th

e 
m

os
t m

ar
gi

na
l, 

th
e 

co
ns

eq
ue

nc
e 

of
 c

om
pe

tit
io

n 
fr

om
 o

ff 
lic

en
ce

 o
ut

le
ts

, a
nd

 w
ith

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

nd
 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 w
he

re
 it

 is
 d

iff
ic

ul
t t

o 
ad

op
t s

om
e 

of
 th

e 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 n
ic

he
 b

us
in

es
s 

m
od

el
s.

  W
ith

ou
t a

 v
ia

bl
e 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 o
pe

ra
tio

n,
 th

es
e 

pu
bs

 c
an

no
t a

ct
 a

s 
a 

co
m

m
un

ity
 fo

cu
s 

un
le

ss
 s

om
e 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l f

or
m

 o
f 

su
bs

id
y 

is
 a

va
ila

bl
e.

  A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

cr
ite

ria
 fo

r 
m

ar
ke

tin
g 

st
ra

te
gy

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

   
H

ow
ev

er
, a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 r

ec
en

t 
ap

pe
al

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 h

av
e 

su
pp

or
te

d 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 
m

ar
ke

tin
g 

to
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

vi
ab

ili
ty

.  
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
in

se
rt

ed
 a

 n
ew

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 4

.9
 o

f t
he

 IP
P

G
 to

 r
ea

d 
"I

n 
pr

ep
ar

in
g 

th
e 

IP
P

G
, a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 a

pp
ea

l d
ec

is
io

ns
 

de
al

in
g 

w
ith

 th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r 

m
ar

ke
tin

g 
w

er
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
.  

T
he

se
 a

re
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 th
e 

G
V

A
 

C
am

br
id

ge
 P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se
 S

tu
dy

 R
ep

or
t."

14
81

7 
- 

C
ha

rle
s 

W
el

ls
 L

td
O

bj
ec

t
In

se
rt

 a
 n

ew
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 4
.9

 o
f t

he
 IP

P
G

 to
 r

ea
d 

"I
n 

pr
ep

ar
in

g 
th

e 
IP

P
G

, a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 a
pp

ea
l d

ec
is

io
ns

 
de

al
in

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r 
m

ar
ke

tin
g 

w
er

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

.  
T

he
se

 a
re

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 th

e 
G

V
A

 
C

am
br

id
ge

 P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 S
tu

dy
 R

ep
or

t."

C
am

br
id

ge
 &

 D
is

tr
ic

t C
A

M
R

A
 v

er
y 

m
uc

h 
w

el
co

m
es

 
th

is
 in

iti
at

iv
e 

an
d 

ap
pl

au
ds

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

fo
r 

re
co

gn
is

in
g 

th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 p

re
se

rv
e 

th
e 

ci
ty

's
 r

em
ai

ni
ng

 p
ub

s 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 g
en

er
at

io
ns

. H
ow

ev
er

, w
e 

w
is

h 
to

 s
ee

 th
e 

po
lic

ie
s 

st
re

ng
th

en
ed

 s
o 

th
at

 a
ny

 c
on

ve
rs

io
n 

of
 a

 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
 to

 a
no

th
er

 u
se

 (
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ot
he

r 
A

 c
la

ss
 

us
es

) 
w

ill
 r

eq
ui

re
 p

la
nn

in
g 

pe
rm

is
si

on
.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
he

 IP
P

G
 s

ee
ks

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 p

ub
lic

 
ho

us
es

 b
y 

re
qu

iri
ng

 a
 s

et
 o

f c
rit

er
ia

 to
 b

e 
m

et
, p

rio
r 

to
 a

ny
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
 b

ei
ng

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 c

ha
ng

e 
of

 u
se

 
or

 r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

 T
he

 o
nl

y 
w

ay
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 th
is

 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

m
ak

e 
an

 A
rt

ic
le

 4
 d

ire
ct

io
n 

to
 r

em
ov

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t r

ig
ht

s 
in

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f c

ha
ng

in
g 

fr
om

 u
se

 c
la

ss
 A

4 
to

 A
3,

 A
2 

or
 A

1.
  P

ut
tin

g 
A

rt
ic

le
 4

 
di

re
ct

io
ns

 in
 p

la
ce

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
a 

se
pa

ra
te

 le
ga

l p
ro

ce
ss

 
to

 th
at

 o
f t

he
 IP

P
G

, w
ith

 c
on

se
qu

en
t r

es
ou

rc
es

 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
.  

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

to
 in

tr
od

uc
e 

A
rt

ic
le

 4
 d

ire
ct

io
ns

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 p

ub
lic

 
ho

us
es

.

10
15

3 
- 

C
am

br
id

ge
 &

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
B

ra
nc

h 
of

 th
e 

C
am

pa
ig

n 
fo

r 
R

ea
l 

A
le

 (
C

A
M

R
A

)

O
bj

ec
t

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
in

tr
od

uc
e 

A
rt

ic
le

 4
 d

ire
ct

io
ns

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s.

P
ag

e 
26

 o
f 5

6

Page 438



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

4.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
rin

ci
pl

es

4.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
rin

ci
pl

es

A
ct

io
n

T
he

re
 d

oe
sn

't 
se

em
 to

 b
e 

an
yt

hi
ng

 in
 th

e 
dr

af
t t

ha
t 

ad
dr

es
se

s 
th

e 
ca

se
 w

he
re

 a
n 

ex
is

tin
g 

pu
b 

is
 to

 b
e 

de
m

ol
is

he
d 

an
d 

re
pl

ac
ed

 b
y 

a 
ne

w
 p

ub
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f a
 

w
id

er
 r

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
T

he
 d

ev
el

op
er

 c
ou

ld
 a

rg
ue

 th
at

 
as

 th
e 

pu
b 

is
 n

ot
 b

ei
ng

 'l
os

t' 
th

e 
IP

P
G

 is
 n

ot
 r

el
ev

an
t 

in
 th

is
 c

as
e.

  I
 w

ou
ld

 a
rg

ue
 th

at
 th

e 
pu

b 
(e

g 
F

ly
in

g 
P

ig
) 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
lo

st
 a

s 
th

e 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t p
ub

 w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 

ha
ve

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

et
c.

 C
ou

ld
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l l
oo

k 
in

to
 th

is
 a

nd
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

is
 ty

pe
 o

f c
as

e 
in

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 a

nd
 

th
e 

re
su

lti
ng

 p
ol

ic
y 

gu
id

an
ce

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 to

 it
.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  W
hi

le
 th

e 
lo

ss
 o

f t
he

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

 
m

ay
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
n 

is
su

e 
at

 th
e 

tim
e 

of
 th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 d

ec
is

io
n,

 th
e 

lo
ss

 o
f a

 p
ub

 o
r 

a 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

pu
b 

is
 n

ow
 a

 c
on

ce
rn

.  
T

he
re

fo
re

, t
he

 IP
P

G
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 to

 a
ny

 n
ew

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
th

at
 

in
vo

lv
es

 th
e 

lo
ss

 o
f a

 p
ub

 s
ite

 (
au

di
te

d)
 d

es
pi

te
 it

 
al

re
ad

y 
ha

vi
ng

 a
n 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
er

m
is

si
on

.
R

ef
er

en
ce

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
m

ad
e 

in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f n
ew

 p
ub

lic
 

ho
us

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

in
  p

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 
4.

15
 -

 4
.1

8 
in

 th
e 

am
en

de
d 

IP
P

G
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n.

  W
hi

ls
t t

he
 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
of

 a
 p

ub
 m

ig
ht

 c
ha

ng
e,

 it
 is

 im
po

rt
an

t t
ha

t 
a 

pu
b 

w
ill

 r
em

ai
n 

on
 th

e 
si

te
.  

S
ho

ul
d 

th
e 

lo
ss

 o
f 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
be

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 th

en
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ou
ld

 ta
ke

 th
at

 in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 w
he

n 
de

te
rm

in
in

g 
th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n.

71
47

O
bj

ec
t

In
se

rt
 n

ew
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 
4.

15
 -

 4
.1

8 
to

 r
ea

d:

"P
ro

po
sa

ls
 fo

r 
ne

w
 P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se
s 

(A
4 

us
es

)

4.
15

 T
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n 

is
 u

nd
er

 r
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 
sh

ou
ld

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 s

ite
s 

fo
r 

ne
w

 h
ou

si
ng

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
co

m
e 

fo
rw

ar
d 

in
 th

e 
ne

xt
 p

la
n 

pe
rio

d,
 th

er
e 

co
ul

d 
be

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 n
ew

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s 
to

 
sa

tis
fy

 lo
ca

l d
em

an
d 

an
d 

he
lp

 to
 c

re
at

e 
vi

br
an

t &
 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

.

4.
16

 S
av

ed
 P

ol
ic

y 
5/

12
 "

N
ew

 C
om

m
un

ity
 F

ac
ili

tie
s"

 
en

co
ur

ag
es

 n
ew

 c
om

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

  T
he

 N
P

P
F

 
at

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 7

0 
co

nf
irm

s 
th

at
 p

la
nn

in
g 

po
lic

ie
s 

sh
ou

ld
 p

la
n 

po
si

tiv
el

y 
fo

r 
co

m
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s,
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 s
ec

ur
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

.

4.
17

 A
cc

or
di

ng
ly

, p
ro

po
sa

ls
 fo

r 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

w
ill

 
be

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
d 

to
 s

er
ve

 n
ew

 r
es

id
en

tia
l 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 o
f m

or
e 

th
an

 3
,0

00
 n

ew
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

s;
 

w
he

re
 th

e 
pu

b 
is

 c
o-

lo
ca

te
d 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 n

ew
 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

, r
et

ai
l &

 c
om

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
re

cr
ea

tio
na

l a
nd

 a
m

en
ity

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e;

 a
nd

, w
he

re
 

th
e 

pu
b 

is
 c

en
tr

al
ly

 lo
ca

te
d 

on
 a

 p
ro

m
in

en
t s

ite
 w

ith
 

go
od

 v
is

ib
ili

ty
 o

r 
on

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
ar

te
ria

l t
ra

ns
po

rt
 r

ou
te

 
in

to
 a

nd
 o

ut
 o

f t
he

 n
ew

 c
om

m
un

ity
.

4.
18

 It
 w

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
be

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 a
dh

er
e 

to
 o

th
er

 
ge

ne
ra

l d
es

ig
n 

po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

ha
ve

 r
eg

ar
d 

to
 n

or
m

al
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l a
nd

 a
m

en
ity

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

ns
."

P
ag

e 
27

 o
f 5

6

Page 439



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

4.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
rin

ci
pl

es

4.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
rin

ci
pl

es

A
ct

io
n

P
ro

te
ct

io
ni

st
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ol

ic
ie

s 
co

ul
d 

ha
ve

 p
er

ve
rs

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
in

 e
nc

ou
ra

gi
ng

 th
e 

cl
os

ur
e 

of
 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

ly
 m

ar
gi

na
l o

r 
po

or
ly

 lo
ca

te
d 

pu
bl

ic
 

ho
us

es
. T

he
se

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
ne

ed
 to

 b
e 

m
or

e 
fle

xi
bl

e.
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ol
ic

ie
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
po

si
tiv

el
y 

w
or

de
d 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 p

ub
 d

iv
er

si
fic

at
io

n 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 d
in

in
g 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 s

m
ok

in
g 

sh
el

te
rs

 a
nd

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

ro
om

s.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ol
ic

ie
s 

sh
ou

ld
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 h
os

pi
ta

lit
y 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

pu
bs

, r
es

ta
ur

an
ts

, 
cl

ub
s 

an
d 

vi
si

to
r 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
ci

ty
 c

en
tr

e 
an

d 
ed

ge
 o

f c
ity

 c
lu

st
er

s 
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 th
e 

C
am

br
id

ge
 P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se
 S

tu
dy

.

C
on

ce
rn

 n
ot

ed
. T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
di

sa
gr

ee
s 

th
at

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 

w
ill

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
ly

 m
ar

gi
na

l o
r 

po
or

ly
 

lo
ca

te
d 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
to

 c
lo

se
. I

n 
th

e 
ex

am
pl

e 
gi

ve
n 

it 
is

 n
ot

 c
le

ar
 w

hy
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
 w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 c
lo

se
 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 w

as
 a

do
pt

ed
 o

r 
no

t, 
an

d 
he

nc
e 

ho
w

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 is

 s
up

po
se

d 
to

 h
av

e 
en

co
ur

ag
ed

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

 to
 c

lo
se

. T
he

 IP
P

G
 is

 s
uf

fic
en

tly
 

fle
xi

bl
e,

 a
nd

 if
 th

e 
cr

ite
ria

 c
on

ta
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 it
 a

re
 m

et
 

th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t c
an

 o
cc

ur
. 

T
he

 IP
P

G
 is

 p
os

iti
ve

ly
 w

or
de

d,
 d

iv
er

si
fic

at
io

n 
is

 
en

co
ur

ag
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

pa
rt

 (
b)

 o
f p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 4
.5

.

F
ol

lo
w

in
g 

an
 a

ud
it 

of
 C

am
br

id
ge

's
 p

ub
s 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
so

m
e 

fo
rm

er
 p

ub
s 

in
 u

se
 a

s 
re

st
au

ra
nt

s)
, t

he
se

 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

as
se

ss
ed

 a
s 

m
ee

tin
g 

a 
lo

ca
l s

ub
ur

ba
n 

co
m

m
un

ity
 n

ee
d,

 o
r 

a 
br

oa
de

r 
ci

ty
 w

id
e 

an
d 

lo
ca

l 
co

m
m

un
ity

 n
ee

d 
w

ith
in

 a
n 

im
po

rt
an

t c
lu

st
er

 o
f 

re
la

te
d 

pu
b 

ty
pe

s,
 o

r 
a 

ci
ty

/v
ill

ag
e 

ce
nt

re
 e

co
no

m
ic

 
an

d 
to

ur
is

t n
ee

d.
  T

he
se

 a
re

 li
st

ed
 in

 S
ec

tio
n 

5 
of

 
th

is
 IP

P
G

. T
he

se
 in

cl
ud

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

th
at

 a
re

 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

ci
ty

 c
en

tr
e 

an
d 

in
 s

ub
ur

ba
n 

es
ta

te
s.

 T
he

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t r
ec

og
ni

se
s 

th
e 

di
ffe

re
nt

 fu
nc

tio
ns

 th
es

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

pe
rf

or
m

. T
he

 m
ar

ke
tin

g 
st

ra
te

gy
 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
IP

P
G

 is
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
th

e 
le

as
t 

on
er

ou
s 

st
ra

te
gy

 th
at

 is
 c

ap
ab

le
 o

f d
em

on
st

ra
tin

g 
th

at
 a

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 e

xe
rc

is
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n.

14
81

6 
- 

C
ha

rle
s 

W
el

ls
 L

td
O

bj
ec

t
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

P
rin

ci
pl

es
 c

ov
er

 th
e 

is
su

es
 w

el
l

S
up

po
rt

 n
ot

ed
.

88
05

S
up

po
rt

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

S
up

po
rt

 in
 g

en
er

al
 fo

r 
th

e 
pr

op
os

al
s

S
up

po
rt

 n
ot

ed
.

15
89

8
S

up
po

rt
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

P
ag

e 
28

 o
f 5

6

Page 440



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

4.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
rin

ci
pl

es

P
ro

po
sa

ls
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

cu
rr

en
tly

 o
r 

la
st

 u
se

d 
as

 a
 C

la
ss

 A
4 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

A
ct

io
n

P
ro

po
sa

ls
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

cu
rr

en
tly

 o
r 

la
st

 u
se

d 
as

 a
 C

la
ss

 A
4 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

A
tte

m
pt

s 
to

 r
es

tr
ic

t c
ha

ng
e 

of
 u

se
 w

ill
 c

ut
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
'C

om
m

un
ity

 R
ig

ht
 to

 B
id

' p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

in
 th

e 
Lo

ca
lis

m
 

A
ct

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 d

ue
 to

 c
om

e 
in

 la
te

r 
th

is
 y

ea
r,

 w
hi

ch
 

gi
ve

s 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 th

e 
po

w
er

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
pu

bs
 th

at
 in

 r
ar

e 
ca

se
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

un
de

r 
th

re
at

 o
f 

cl
os

ur
e.

 H
ow

ev
er

, i
t a

ls
o 

en
su

re
s 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 
ge

nu
in

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
up

po
rt

 b
eh

in
d 

a 
pu

b 
as

 w
ith

ou
t 

it,
 in

 th
e 

lo
ng

 r
un

, t
he

 p
ub

 w
ill

 s
til

l c
lo

se
.

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

sh
ou

ld
 w

ai
t u

nt
il 

th
e 

Lo
ca

lis
m

 A
ct

 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 c
om

e 
in

 a
s 

th
es

e 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

th
e 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
 if

 a
ny

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 lo

ca
l p

ub
s 

th
at

 g
en

ui
ne

ly
 

ha
ve

 lo
ca

l s
up

po
rt

.

C
on

ce
rn

 n
ot

ed
. I

f a
 m

or
at

or
iu

m
 is

 tr
ig

ge
re

d,
 th

is
 

do
es

n'
t s

to
p 

th
e 

pu
b 

ow
ne

r 
fr

om
 m

ar
ke

tin
g 

th
e 

pu
b,

 
ju

st
 fr

om
 s

el
lin

g 
it,

 s
o 

th
ey

 c
ou

ld
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 m
ar

ke
t 

th
e 

pu
b 

on
 th

e 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

th
at

 it
 w

as
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 
m

or
at

or
iu

m
. T

he
 p

ur
po

se
 o

f t
he

 IP
P

G
 is

 to
 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 th
e 

ow
ne

r/
de

ve
lo

pe
r 

ha
s 

m
ar

ke
te

d 
it 

at
 

a 
th

e 
pr

ic
e 

of
 a

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

 th
at

 o
th

er
 p

ub
 

op
er

at
or

s,
 o

r 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

, c
an

 a
ffo

rd
, r

at
he

r 
th

an
 

m
ar

ke
tin

g 
it 

at
 r

es
id

en
tia

l v
al

ue
s.

  I
f a

 a
no

th
er

 p
ub

 
op

er
at

or
 w

an
ts

 to
 b

uy
 th

e 
pu

b 
as

 a
 r

es
ul

t o
f s

ai
d 

m
ar

ke
tin

g,
 th

en
 s

ur
el

y 
th

is
 s

av
es

 th
e 

pu
b 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 li

ke
ly

 b
e 

su
pp

or
te

d 
by

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 th

at
 

tr
ig

ge
re

d 
th

e 
rig

ht
 to

 b
uy

? 
 D

el
ay

in
g 

th
e 

m
ar

ke
tin

g 
of

 
th

e 
pu

b,
 a

t a
 p

ub
 p

ric
e,

 to
 p

ub
 o

pe
ra

to
rs

 m
ay

 s
im

pl
y 

pr
ol

on
g 

it'
s 

tim
e 

ou
t o

f p
ub

 u
se

, l
ea

di
ng

 to
 th

e 
lo

ss
 

of
 r

eg
ul

ar
 c

us
to

m
er

s 
m

ak
in

g 
it 

m
or

e 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
to

 
re

op
en

 th
e 

pu
b.

  W
ai

tin
g 

un
til

 th
e 

Lo
ca

lis
m

 A
ct

 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 c
om

e 
in

 w
ill

 m
ea

n 
fu

rt
he

r 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

ar
e 

lo
st

.

14
68

5 
- 

B
rit

is
h 

B
ee

r 
&

 P
ub

 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
O

bj
ec

t
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

P
ar

a 
4.

5 
(c

)
A

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

is
 v

er
y 

w
ea

k.
 T

he
 a

rg
um

en
t u

se
d 

by
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

th
e 

lo
ss

 o
f t

he
 P

en
ny

 
F

er
ry

/P
ik

e 
an

d 
E

el
 li

st
in

g 
th

e 
G

re
en

 D
ra

go
n 

as
 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
bu

t n
ot

 ta
ki

ng
 a

cc
ou

nt
 o

f t
he

 
w

id
er

 lo
ss

 in
 E

as
t C

he
st

er
to

n 
an

d 
th

at
 in

 fa
ct

 lo
ss

 o
f 

th
e 

P
en

ny
 F

er
ry

 w
ou

ld
 m

ea
n 

th
e 

ar
ea

 w
as

 d
ow

n 
to

 1
 

pu
b 

fo
r 

70
00

 h
om

es
.

N
ee

ds
 to

 b
e 

ex
pa

nd
ed

 to
 c

on
si

de
r 

ov
er

al
l a

re
a 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

pu
b 

lo
ss

es
 (

or
 g

ai
ns

) 
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 
ov

er
 ti

m
e 

(o
ve

r 
th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 1

0 
ye

ar
 p

er
io

d)
 n

ot
 ju

st
 a

 
tig

ht
 c

irc
le

 r
ou

nd
 th

e 
pu

b 
its

el
f.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ac
ce

pt
s 

th
at

 th
is

 
cr

ite
rio

n 
as

 w
or

de
d 

is
 u

nc
le

ar
. H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
co

ns
id

er
s 

th
at

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 th

at
 th

er
e 

is
 

ad
eq

ua
te

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 
at

 le
as

t o
ne

 p
ub

 p
er

 7
50

 w
or

ki
ng

 a
ge

 a
du

lts
 w

ith
in

 a
 

40
0m

 c
at

ch
m

en
t r

ad
iu

s,
 is

 fo
r 

th
e 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 a

re
a 

w
ith

in
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

 is
 lo

ca
te

d.
 H

ow
 th

is
 

w
ou

ld
 w

or
k 

in
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

w
ou

ld
 b

e:

1.
 Id

en
tif

y 
a 

40
0m

 b
uf

fe
r 

fr
om

 th
e 

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 p

ub
 lo

ss
.

2.
 Id

en
tif

y 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 w
or

ki
ng

 a
ge

 a
du

lts
 w

ith
in

 
th

is
 b

uf
fe

r.
3.

 Id
en

tif
y 

w
ha

t a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

w
ith

in
 th

is
 b

uf
fe

r 
or

 n
ea

rb
y.

4.
 C

al
cu

la
te

 h
ow

 m
an

y 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
pe

r 
w

or
ki

ng
 a

ge
 a

du
lts

.

14
78

4
O

bj
ec

t
S

im
pl

ify
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t c

rit
er

ia
 in

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 4

.5
; a

nd
 

am
en

d 
an

ne
x 

C
, C

om
m

un
ity

 C
at

ch
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 
C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
to

 c
la

rif
y 

ho
w

 it
 c

an
 b

e 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
d 

th
at

 th
e 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 n
ee

ds
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
 o

r 
an

y 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
'A

' o
r 

'D
1'

 c
la

ss
 u

se
 

an
d 

its
 lo

ss
 w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 d
am

ag
e 

th
e 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

of
 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
er

ci
al

 o
r 

co
m

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

th
at

 
pr

ov
id

e 
fo

r 
da

y-
to

 -
da

y 
ne

ed
s 

in
 th

e 
lo

ca
l a

re
a.

P
ag

e 
29

 o
f 5

6

Page 441



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

4.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
rin

ci
pl

es

P
ro

po
sa

ls
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

cu
rr

en
tly

 o
r 

la
st

 u
se

d 
as

 a
 C

la
ss

 A
4 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

A
ct

io
n

W
ha

t w
ei

gh
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

gi
ve

n 
to

 th
e 

ot
he

r 
as

pi
ra

tio
ns

 
of

 th
e 

N
P

P
F

, s
uc

h 
as

 e
nc

ou
ra

gi
ng

 b
et

te
r 

us
e 

of
 

br
ow

nf
ie

ld
 s

ite
s?

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

pr
od

uc
ed

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e 

lo
ss

 o
f p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

an
d 

to
 s

et
 

ou
t c

rit
er

ia
 to

 b
e 

us
ed

 in
 d

et
er

m
in

in
g 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s.
  E

ac
h 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
m

us
t s

til
l b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 o
n 

its
 o

w
n 

m
er

its
, w

ith
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

gi
ve

n 
to

 th
e 

br
ea

dt
h 

of
 th

e 
N

P
P

F
.

18
60

5 
- 

Ja
nu

ar
ys

O
bj

ec
t

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

-U
nc

le
ar

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

on
e 

pu
b 

pe
r 

75
0

w
or

ki
ng

 a
ge

 a
du

lts
. N

o 
ev

id
en

ce
 to

 c
la

rif
y 

w
he

th
er

 
th

is
 is

 th
e 

op
tim

um
 r

at
io

 fo
r 

C
am

br
id

ge
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 G
V

A
 R

ep
or

t, 
on

ly
 a

 h
ig

hl
y 

si
m

pl
is

tic
 b

en
ch

-m
ar

ki
ng

 e
xe

rc
is

e.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ac
ce

pt
s 

th
at

 th
is

 
cr

ite
rio

n 
as

 w
or

de
d 

is
 u

nc
le

ar
. T

he
 n

ee
d 

to
 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 a
de

qu
at

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

t l
ea

st
 o

ne
 p

ub
 p

er
 

75
0 

w
or

ki
ng

 a
ge

 a
du

lts
 w

ith
in

 a
 4

00
m

 c
at

ch
m

en
t 

ra
di

us
, i

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 a
re

a 
w

ith
in

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
 is

 lo
ca

te
d.

 H
ow

 th
is

 w
ou

ld
 w

or
k 

in
 

pr
ac

tic
e 

w
ou

ld
 b

e:

1.
 Id

en
tif

y 
a 

40
0m

 b
uf

fe
r 

fr
om

 th
e 

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 p

ub
 lo

ss
.

2.
 Id

en
tif

y 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 w
or

ki
ng

 a
ge

 a
du

lts
 w

ith
in

 
th

is
 b

uf
fe

r.
3.

 Id
en

tif
y 

w
ha

t a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

w
ith

in
 th

is
 b

uf
fe

r 
or

 n
ea

rb
y.

4.
 C

al
cu

la
te

 h
ow

 m
an

y 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
pe

r 
w

or
ki

ng
 a

ge
 a

du
lts

.

18
60

2 
- 

Ja
nu

ar
ys

O
bj

ec
t

S
im

pl
ify

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t c
rit

er
ia

 in
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 4
.5

; a
nd

 
am

en
d 

an
ne

x 
C

, C
om

m
un

ity
 C

at
ch

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

to
 c

la
rif

y 
ho

w
 it

 c
an

 b
e 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

d 
th

at
 th

e 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 n

ee
ds

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

 o
r 

an
y 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

'A
' o

r 
'D

1'
 c

la
ss

 u
se

 
an

d 
its

 lo
ss

 w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 d

am
ag

e 
th

e 
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y 
of

 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

er
ci

al
 o

r 
co

m
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
th

at
 

pr
ov

id
e 

fo
r 

da
y-

to
 -

da
y 

ne
ed

s 
in

 th
e 

lo
ca

l a
re

a.

P
ar

a 
4.

5 
(c

)
T

he
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

is
 v

er
y 

w
ea

k.
T

hi
s 

op
tio

n 
fa

ils
 to

 ta
ke

 a
cc

ou
nt

 o
f t

he
 w

id
er

 lo
ss

 in
 

E
as

t C
he

st
er

to
n,

 fo
r 

ex
am

pl
e.

 S
o 

it 
ne

ed
s 

to
 b

e 
ex

pa
nd

ed
 to

 c
on

si
de

r 
ov

er
al

l a
re

a 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
pu

b 
lo

ss
es

 (
or

 g
ai

ns
) 

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 o

ve
r 

tim
e 

(s
ay

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 1

0 
ye

ar
 p

er
io

d)
 n

ot
 ju

st
 a

 ti
gh

t c
irc

le
 

ro
un

d 
th

e 
pu

b 
its

el
f.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ac
ce

pt
s 

th
at

 th
is

 
cr

ite
rio

n 
as

 w
or

de
d 

is
 u

nc
le

ar
. T

he
 n

ee
d 

to
 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 a
de

qu
at

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

t l
ea

st
 o

ne
 p

ub
 p

er
 

75
0 

w
or

ki
ng

 a
ge

 a
du

lts
 w

ith
in

 a
 4

00
m

 c
at

ch
m

en
t 

ra
di

us
, i

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 a
re

a 
w

ith
in

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
 is

 lo
ca

te
d.

 H
ow

 th
is

 w
ou

ld
 w

or
k 

in
 

pr
ac

tic
e 

w
ou

ld
 b

e:

1.
 Id

en
tif

y 
a 

40
0m

 b
uf

fe
r 

fr
om

 th
e 

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 p

ub
 lo

ss
.

2.
 Id

en
tif

y 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 w
or

ki
ng

 a
ge

 a
du

lts
 w

ith
in

 
th

is
 b

uf
fe

r.
3.

 Id
en

tif
y 

w
ha

t a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

w
ith

in
 th

is
 b

uf
fe

r 
or

 n
ea

rb
y.

4.
 C

al
cu

la
te

 h
ow

 m
an

y 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
pe

r 
w

or
ki

ng
 a

ge
 a

du
lts

.

14
85

8 
- 

O
ld

 C
he

st
er

to
n 

R
es

id
en

ts
' A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
O

bj
ec

t
S

im
pl

ify
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t c

rit
er

ia
 in

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 4

.5
; a

nd
 

am
en

d 
an

ne
x 

C
, C

om
m

un
ity

 C
at

ch
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 
C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
to

 c
la

rif
y 

ho
w

 it
 c

an
 b

e 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
d 

th
at

 th
e 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 n
ee

ds
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
 o

r 
an

y 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
'A

' o
r 

'D
1'

 c
la

ss
 u

se
 

an
d 

its
 lo

ss
 w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 d
am

ag
e 

th
e 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

of
 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
er

ci
al

 o
r 

co
m

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

th
at

 
pr

ov
id

e 
fo

r 
da

y-
to

-d
ay

 n
ee

ds
 in

 th
e 

lo
ca

l a
re

a.

P
ag

e 
30

 o
f 5

6

Page 442



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

4.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
rin

ci
pl

es

P
ro

po
sa

ls
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

cu
rr

en
tly

 o
r 

la
st

 u
se

d 
as

 a
 C

la
ss

 A
4 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

A
ct

io
n

P
ar

a 
4.

5 
(a

) 
an

d 
(b

)
T

he
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

ta
ke

n 
in

 r
eg

ar
d 

to
 a

cc
ep

ta
bi

lit
y 

of
 lo

ss
 

is
 a

lm
os

t s
ol

el
y 

a 
na

rr
ow

 m
ar

ke
t l

ed
 v

ia
bi

lit
y 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 
fa

vo
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ap
pl

ic
an

ts
 w

hi
ch

 is
 a

ls
o 

co
nt

ra
ry

 a
s 

w
el

l 
to

 th
e 

w
id

er
 v

ie
w

 o
n 

vi
ab

ili
ty

 o
f r

ec
en

t a
pp

ea
ls

.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

co
ns

id
er

s 
th

at
 th

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 4
.5

 is
 a

lre
ad

y 
su

ffi
ci

en
tly

 s
tr

on
g.

  
T

o 
en

ha
nc

e 
it 

fu
rt

he
r 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
de

tr
im

en
ta

l t
o 

th
e 

in
te

re
st

s 
of

 b
us

in
es

s 
gr

ow
th

 a
nd

 fl
ex

ib
ili

ty
 in

 
C

am
br

id
ge

.  
W

e 
ha

ve
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

 th
e 

re
ce

nt
 a

pp
ea

l 
de

ci
si

on
s 

in
 th

e 
IP

P
G

 a
nd

 th
e 

C
am

br
id

ge
 P

ub
lic

 
H

ou
se

s 
S

tu
dy

.

14
85

7 
- 

O
ld

 C
he

st
er

to
n 

R
es

id
en

ts
' A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
O

bj
ec

t
In

se
rt

 a
 n

ew
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 4
.9

 o
f t

he
 IP

P
G

 to
 r

ea
d 

"I
n 

pr
ep

ar
in

g 
th

e 
IP

P
G

, a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 a
pp

ea
l d

ec
is

io
ns

 
de

al
in

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r 
m

ar
ke

tin
g 

w
er

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

.  
T

he
se

 a
re

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 th

e 
G

V
A

 
C

am
br

id
ge

 P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 S
tu

dy
 R

ep
or

t."

P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 4

.5
(c

) 
 W

e 
ap

pl
au

d 
th

e 
am

bi
tio

ns
 o

f t
hi

s 
cr

ite
rio

n 
an

d 
th

e 
su

gg
es

te
d 

40
0 

m
et

re
s 

w
al

ki
ng

 
di

st
an

ce
 s

ee
m

s 
ab

ou
t r

ig
ht

. W
e 

ar
e 

no
t c

le
ar

, 
ho

w
ev

er
, h

ow
 th

is
 ti

es
 in

 w
ith

 th
e 

"o
ne

 p
ub

 p
er

 7
50

 
w

or
ki

ng
 a

ge
 a

du
lts

".
 D

oe
s 

th
is

 r
ef

er
 to

 th
e 

ci
ty

 a
s 

a 
w

ho
le

, o
r 

th
e 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 a

re
a 

of
 th

e 
ci

ty
 in

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
pu

b 
is

 lo
ca

te
d?

 -
  a

nd
, i

f t
he

 la
tte

r,
 h

ow
 is

 th
e 

ar
ea

  
de

fin
ed

 a
nd

 th
e 

"p
ub

 p
er

 7
50

" 
fig

ur
e 

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
?

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ac
ce

pt
s 

th
at

 th
is

 
cr

ite
rio

n 
as

 w
or

de
d 

is
 u

nc
le

ar
. T

he
 n

ee
d 

to
 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 a
de

qu
at

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

t l
ea

st
 o

ne
 p

ub
 p

er
 

75
0 

w
or

ki
ng

 a
ge

 a
du

lts
 w

ith
in

 a
 4

00
m

 c
at

ch
m

en
t 

ra
di

us
, i

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 a
re

a 
w

ith
in

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
 is

 lo
ca

te
d.

 H
ow

 th
is

 w
ou

ld
 w

or
k 

in
 

pr
ac

tic
e 

w
ou

ld
 b

e:

1.
 Id

en
tif

y 
a 

40
0m

 b
uf

fe
r 

fr
om

 th
e 

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 p

ub
 lo

ss
.

2.
 Id

en
tif

y 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 w
or

ki
ng

 a
ge

 a
du

lts
 w

ith
in

 
th

is
 b

uf
fe

r.
3.

 Id
en

tif
y 

w
ha

t a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

w
ith

in
 th

is
 b

uf
fe

r 
or

 n
ea

rb
y.

4.
 C

al
cu

la
te

 h
ow

 m
an

y 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
pe

r 
w

or
ki

ng
 a

ge
 a

du
lts

.

10
16

1 
- 

C
am

br
id

ge
 &

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
B

ra
nc

h 
of

 th
e 

C
am

pa
ig

n 
fo

r 
R

ea
l 

A
le

 (
C

A
M

R
A

)

O
bj

ec
t

S
im

pl
ify

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t c
rit

er
ia

 in
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 4
.5

; a
nd

 
am

en
d 

an
ne

x 
C

, C
om

m
un

ity
 C

at
ch

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

to
 c

la
rif

y 
ho

w
 it

 c
an

 b
e 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

d 
th

at
 th

e 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 n

ee
ds

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

 o
r 

an
y 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

'A
' o

r 
'D

1'
 c

la
ss

 u
se

 
an

d 
its

 lo
ss

 w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 d

am
ag

e 
th

e 
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y 
of

 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

er
ci

al
 o

r 
co

m
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
th

at
 

pr
ov

id
e 

da
y-

to
-d

ay
 n

ee
ds

 in
 th

e 
lo

ca
l a

re
a.

P
ar

a 
4.

5(
b)

T
he

 'd
iv

er
si

fic
at

io
n 

op
tio

ns
' o

f a
 p

ub
 n

ee
ds

 to
 b

e 
fu

rt
he

r 
cl

ar
ifi

ed
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
ty

pe
 o

f 
ev

id
en

ce
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 d

iv
er

si
fic

at
io

n 
op

tio
ns

 tr
ie

d.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  A
ny

 v
ia

bi
lit

y 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
su

bm
itt

ed
 w

ill
, b

y 
its

 v
er

y 
na

tu
re

, n
ee

d 
to

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

pr
em

is
es

 a
s 

th
is

 w
ill

 im
pa

ct
 

di
re

ct
ly

 u
po

n 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
an

d 
fu

tu
re

 c
us

to
m

er
 b

as
e,

 
th

e 
ov

er
al

l o
ffe

r 
of

 th
e 

pu
b,

 a
nd

 th
e 

sc
op

e 
fo

r 
di

ve
rs

ifi
ca

tio
n.

  S
im

ila
rly

, i
nv

es
tm

en
t w

ill
 h

av
e 

to
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 in
 a

pp
ra

is
in

g 
di

ffe
re

nt
 o

pt
io

ns
 

fo
r 

di
ve

rs
ifi

ca
tio

n.
  T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
do

es
 n

ot
 c

on
si

de
r 

it 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 m

or
e 

cl
ar

ity
 o

n 
di

ve
rs

ifi
ca

tio
n 

op
tio

ns
 a

s 
th

ey
 c

an
 v

ar
y 

co
ns

id
er

ab
ly

 a
nd

 th
e 

do
cu

m
en

t c
an

no
t h

op
e 

to
 c

ov
er

 a
ll 

po
ss

ib
le

 
di

ve
rs

ifi
ca

tio
n 

op
tio

ns
 in

 d
et

ai
l.

13
10

6 
- 

C
al

de
co

tte
 C

on
su

lta
nt

s
O

bj
ec

t
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

P
ag

e 
31

 o
f 5

6

Page 443



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

4.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
rin

ci
pl

es

P
ro

po
sa

ls
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

cu
rr

en
tly

 o
r 

la
st

 u
se

d 
as

 a
 C

la
ss

 A
4 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

A
ct

io
n

P
oi

nt
 A

: T
he

 s
pe

ci
fie

d 
12

 m
on

th
 p

er
io

d 
fo

r 
m

ar
ke

tin
g 

is in
ad

eq
ua

te
. T

he
 L

oc
al

is
m

 A
ct

, u
nd

er
 th

e 
'C

om
m

un
ity

 
R

ig
ht

 to
 B

id
', 

al
lo

w
s 

co
m

m
un

ity
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 to
 

no
m

in
at

e 
'a

ss
et

s 
of

 c
om

m
un

ity
 v

al
ue

' i
nc

lu
di

ng
 P

ub
lic

 
H

ou
se

s.
 If

 th
e 

ow
ne

r 
of

 a
 li

st
ed

 a
ss

et
 th

en
 w

an
ts

 to
 

se
ll 

th
en

 a
 s

ix
 m

on
th

 m
or

at
or

iu
m

 p
er

io
d 

is
 tr

ig
ge

re
d 

du
rin

g 
w

hi
ch

 th
e 

as
se

t c
an

no
t b

e 
so

ld
. A

ny
 m

ar
ke

tin
g 

pe
rio

d 
m

us
t s

ta
rt

 a
fte

r 
th

e 
6 

m
on

th
 m

or
at

or
iu

m
 h

as
 

el
ap

se
d.

 IP
P

G
 s

ho
ul

d 
cl

ar
ift

 th
is

.
M

er
to

n 
C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

P
ol

ic
y 

L1
5 

st
at

es
 th

at
 th

e 
m

ar
ke

tin
g 

pe
rio

d 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

2 
ye

ar
s.

 T
he

 m
ar

ke
tin

g 
pe

rio
d 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

to
 a

 m
in

im
um

 1
8 

m
on

th
s.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

 H
ow

ev
er

, i
f a

 m
or

at
or

iu
m

 is
 

tr
ig

ge
re

d,
 th

is
 d

oe
s 

no
t s

to
p 

th
e 

pu
b 

ow
ne

r 
fr

om
 

m
ar

ke
tin

g 
th

e 
pu

b,
 ju

st
 fr

om
 s

el
lin

g 
it,

 s
o 

th
ey

 c
ou

ld
 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 m

ar
ke

t t
he

 p
ub

 o
n 

th
e 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
th

at
 it

 w
as

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 a

 m
or

at
or

iu
m

.  
T

he
 w

ho
le

 
pu

rp
os

e 
of

 th
e 

gu
id

an
ce

 is
 to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 th
at

 a
n 

ow
ne

r/
de

ve
lo

pe
r 

ha
s 

m
ar

ke
te

d 
it 

at
 a

 p
ub

 p
ric

e 
th

at
 

ot
he

r 
pu

b 
op

er
at

or
s,

 o
r 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
, c

an
 a

ffo
rd

, 
ra

th
er

 th
an

 m
ar

ke
tin

g 
it 

to
 r

es
id

en
tia

l d
ev

el
op

er
s.

  I
f 

a 
an

ot
he

r 
pu

b 
op

er
at

or
 w

an
ts

 to
 b

uy
 th

e 
pu

b 
as

 a
 

re
su

lt 
of

 s
ai

d 
m

ar
ke

tin
g,

 th
en

 s
ur

el
y 

th
is

 w
ou

ld
 

sa
ve

s 
th

e 
pu

b 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 li
ke

ly
 b

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 th
at

 tr
ig

ge
re

d 
th

e 
rig

ht
 to

 b
uy

.  
D

el
ay

in
g 

th
e 

m
ar

ke
tin

g 
of

 th
e 

pu
b,

 a
t a

 p
ub

 p
ric

e,
 to

 p
ub

 
op

er
at

or
s 

m
ay

 s
im

pl
y 

pr
ol

on
g 

its
 ti

m
e 

ou
t o

f p
ub

 
us

e,
 le

ad
in

g 
to

 th
e 

lo
ss

 o
f r

eg
ul

ar
 c

us
to

m
er

s 
m

ak
in

g 
it 

m
or

e 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
to

 r
eo

pe
n 

th
e 

pu
b.

86
58

 -
 C

am
br

id
ge

 P
as

t, 
P

re
se

nt
 

an
d 

F
ut

ur
e

O
bj

ec
t

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n

P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 4

.5
(a

) 
 W

e 
w

ou
ld

 p
re

fe
r 

th
is

 to
 r

ea
d 

"T
he

 
pu

b 
ha

s 
be

en
 m

ar
ke

te
d 

fo
r 

a 
m

in
im

um
 o

f 1
2 

m
on

th
s 

as
 a

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

 fr
ee

 o
f t

ie
 a

nd
 r

es
tr

ic
tiv

e 
co

ve
na

nt
, 

at
 a

 p
ric

e 
ag

re
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
an

 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l v
al

ua
tio

n 
(p

ai
d 

fo
r 

by
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
r)

 a
nd

 th
er

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 n

o 
in

te
re

st
 in

 e
ith

er
 

th
e 

fr
ee

- 
or

 le
as

e-
ho

ld
 a

s 
a 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

".
  T

hi
s 

w
ou

ld
 

tie
 in

 m
or

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
w

ith
 4

.6
 a

nd
 A

nn
ex

 A
, w

he
re

 
th

e 
m

ar
ke

tin
g 

st
ra

te
gy

 is
 (

rig
ht

ly
) 

pr
im

ar
ily

 g
ea

re
d 

to
 

se
lli

ng
 fo

r 
pu

b 
us

e.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

no
te

s 
th

e 
su

pp
or

t f
or

 
th

e 
12

 m
on

th
s 

m
ar

ke
tin

g 
pe

rio
d.

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

m
ak

es
 r

ef
er

en
ce

 to
 o

th
er

 A
 c

la
ss

 u
se

s 
du

e 
to

 th
e 

ab
ili

ty
 o

f t
he

 p
ub

 to
 c

ha
ng

e 
its

 u
se

 to
 A

1,
 A

2 
or

 A
3 

w
ith

ou
t p

er
m

is
si

on
.  

F
ur

th
er

m
or

e,
 it

 is
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 to
 

re
fe

r 
to

 C
la

ss
 D

1 
as

 s
uc

h 
us

es
 a

ls
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
co

m
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
y.

  

T
he

 IP
P

G
 s

ee
ks

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

by
 

re
qu

iri
ng

 a
 s

et
 o

f c
rit

er
ia

 to
 b

e 
m

et
, p

rio
r 

to
 a

ny
 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

 b
ei

ng
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 c
ha

ng
e 

of
 u

se
 o

r 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

co
ul

d 
m

ak
e 

an
 A

rt
ic

le
 

4 
di

re
ct

io
n 

to
 r

em
ov

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t r

ig
ht

s 
in

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f c

ha
ng

in
g 

fr
om

 u
se

 c
la

ss
 A

4 
to

 A
3,

 A
2 

or
 A

1.
  P

ut
tin

g 
A

rt
ic

le
 4

 d
ire

ct
io

ns
 in

 p
la

ce
 r

eq
ui

re
s 

a 
se

pa
ra

te
 le

ga
l p

ro
ce

ss
 to

 th
at

 o
f t

he
 IP

P
G

, w
ith

 
co

ns
eq

ue
nt

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
.  

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 
co

ns
id

er
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
in

tr
od

uc
e 

A
rt

ic
le

 4
 

di
re

ct
io

ns
 to

 p
ro

te
ct

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s.

10
15

9 
- 

C
am

br
id

ge
 &

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
B

ra
nc

h 
of

 th
e 

C
am

pa
ig

n 
fo

r 
R

ea
l 

A
le

 (
C

A
M

R
A

)

O
bj

ec
t

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
in

tr
od

uc
e 

A
rt

ic
le

 4
 d

ire
ct

io
ns

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s.

P
ag

e 
32

 o
f 5

6

Page 444



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

4.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
rin

ci
pl

es

P
ro

po
sa

ls
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

cu
rr

en
tly

 o
r 

la
st

 u
se

d 
as

 a
 C

la
ss

 A
4 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

A
ct

io
n

M
ar

ke
tin

g 
is

 n
ot

 a
 w

ay
 to

 te
st

 w
he

th
er

 th
e 

fa
ci

lit
y 

is
 a

 
'v

al
ue

d'
 fa

ci
lit

y,
 w

hi
ch

 is
 a

 k
ey

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

N
P

P
F

, o
r 

th
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

of
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
us

es
 o

n 
th

e 
si

te
. 

Its
 im

po
rt

an
ce

 a
s 

a 
'm

ea
su

re
' o

f v
al

ue
 is

 v
er

y 
m

uc
h 

ov
er

st
at

ed
. T

he
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t f

or
 m

ar
ke

tin
g 

sh
ou

ld
 o

nl
y 

be
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 if
 it

 is
 a

cc
ep

te
d 

th
at

 a
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
 is

 
va

lu
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

ou
ts

et
. I

t s
ho

ul
d 

no
t b

e 
th

e 
st

ar
tin

g 
po

in
t t

o 
an

y 
as

se
ss

m
en

t.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

   
H

ow
ev

er
, a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 r

ec
en

t 
ap

pe
al

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 h

av
e 

su
pp

or
te

d 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 
m

ar
ke

tin
g 

to
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

vi
ab

ili
ty

.  
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
in

se
rt

ed
 a

 n
ew

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 4

.9
 o

f t
he

 IP
P

G
 to

 r
ea

d 
"I

n 
pr

ep
ar

in
g 

th
e 

IP
P

G
, a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 a

pp
ea

l d
ec

is
io

ns
 

de
al

in
g 

w
ith

 th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r 

m
ar

ke
tin

g 
w

er
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
.  

T
he

se
 a

re
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 th
e 

C
am

br
id

ge
 

P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 S
tu

dy
 R

ep
or

t."
  F

ur
th

er
m

or
e,

 b
y 

pr
e-

ag
re

ei
ng

 a
 fo

cu
ss

ed
 m

ar
ke

tin
g 

st
ra

te
gy

 w
ith

 
C

am
br

id
ge

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il,

 it
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 to
 

re
du

ce
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
m

ar
ke

tin
g 

pe
rio

d.
  T

he
se

 e
ar

ly
 

ne
go

tia
tio

ns
 m

ig
ht

 a
ls

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
in

di
ca

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 

va
lu

e 
of

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

 to
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

.

81
25

 -
 J

an
ua

ry
s

O
bj

ec
t

In
se

rt
 a

 n
ew

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 4

.9
 o

f t
he

 IP
P

G
 to

 r
ea

d 
"I

n 
pr

ep
ar

in
g 

th
e 

IP
P

G
, a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 a

pp
ea

l d
ec

is
io

ns
 

de
al

in
g 

w
ith

 th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r 

m
ar

ke
tin

g 
w

er
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
.  

T
he

se
 a

re
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 th
e 

C
am

br
id

ge
 

P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 S
tu

dy
 R

ep
or

t."

O
f t

he
 2

8 
ci

ty
 p

ub
s 

w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

cl
os

ed
 s

in
ce

 2
00

2,
 1

1 
w

er
e 

co
nv

er
te

d 
to

 r
es

ta
ur

an
ts

 a
nd

 th
es

e 
of

 c
ou

rs
e 

ha
ve

 c
on

si
de

ra
bl

y 
le

ss
 o

f a
 c

om
m

un
ity

 fo
cu

s 
th

an
 th

e 
pu

bs
 th

ey
 r

ep
la

ce
d.

 W
e 

fe
el

, t
he

re
fo

re
, t

ha
t t

he
 

cr
ite

ria
, c

er
ta

in
ly

 s
o 

fa
r 

as
 e

xi
st

in
g 

pu
bs

 a
re

 
co

nc
er

ne
d,

 s
ho

ul
d 

se
ek

 to
 p

re
se

rv
e 

pu
bs

 a
s 

pu
bs

 -
 

th
e 

cr
ite

ria
 a

s 
dr

af
te

d 
ap

pe
ar

 to
 b

e 
re

la
xe

d 
ab

ou
t t

he
 

pr
os

pe
ct

 o
f t

he
m

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
to

 o
th

er
 A

 c
la

ss
 u

se
s 

an
d 

D
1 

as
 w

el
l.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
he

 IP
P

G
 m

ak
es

 r
ef

er
en

ce
 to

 
ot

he
r 

A
 c

la
ss

 u
se

s 
du

e 
to

 th
e 

ab
ili

ty
 o

f t
he

 p
ub

 to
 

ch
an

ge
 it

s 
us

e 
to

 A
1,

 A
2 

or
 A

3 
w

ith
ou

t p
er

m
is

si
on

.  
F

ur
th

er
m

or
e,

 it
 is

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 r
ef

er
 to

 C
la

ss
 D

1 
as

 
su

ch
 u

se
s 

al
so

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 c

om
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
y.

10
15

6 
- 

C
am

br
id

ge
 &

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
B

ra
nc

h 
of

 th
e 

C
am

pa
ig

n 
fo

r 
R

ea
l 

A
le

 (
C

A
M

R
A

)

O
bj

ec
t

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

P
ar

a 
4.

5 
(d

)
W

e 
co

ns
id

er
 a

ls
o 

th
at

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t m

an
ag

em
en

t 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

 n
ee

ds
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e 

em
ph

as
is

 o
fte

n 
st

re
ss

ed
 b

y 
de

ve
lo

pe
rs

 o
n 

th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r 

ho
us

in
g 

in
 

C
am

br
id

ge
 a

nd
 g

iv
e 

gr
ea

te
r 

gu
id

an
ce

 o
n 

ho
w

 to
 

ba
la

nc
e 

th
at

 a
ga

in
st

 th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l l
os

s 
of

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 T

he
 r

ea
lit

y 
in

 C
am

br
id

ge
 is

 th
at

 la
nd

 
co

ns
tr

ai
nt

s 
m

ea
n 

ho
us

in
g 

ne
ed

 c
an

 n
ev

er
 b

e 
fu

lly
 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
an

d 
it 

w
ill

 a
lw

ay
s 

re
m

ai
n 

a 
ve

ry
 h

ig
h 

ne
ed

, 
so

 a
ny

 c
rit

er
ia

 b
as

ed
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f a

cc
ep

ta
bi

lit
y 

of
 

lo
ss

 n
ee

ds
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
is

 b
al

an
ce

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
so

ci
al

 a
m

en
ity

 v
al

ue
 e

xp
lic

itl
y.

 
P

ar
a 

4.
5 

(d
) 

do
es

 n
ot

 d
o 

th
is

 a
nd

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
st

re
ng

th
en

ed
.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  W
hi

ls
t r

ec
og

ni
si

ng
 th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r 
ho

us
in

g 
in

 C
am

br
id

ge
, t

he
 IP

P
G

 s
et

s 
ou

t c
rit

er
ia

 fo
r 

th
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t o

f p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
in

 C
am

br
id

ge
.  

T
he

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 
an

y 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
w

ill
 r

eq
ui

re
 a

 b
al

an
ce

d 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 th
e 

m
er

its
 o

f t
he

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n.

14
85

9 
- 

O
ld

 C
he

st
er

to
n 

R
es

id
en

ts
' A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
O

bj
ec

t
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

P
ag

e 
33

 o
f 5

6

Page 445



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

4.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
rin

ci
pl

es

P
ro

po
sa

ls
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

cu
rr

en
tly

 o
r 

la
st

 u
se

d 
as

 a
 C

la
ss

 A
4 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

A
ct

io
n

-N
o 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
is

 m
ad

e 
to

 L
oc

al
 C

en
tr

es
, w

hi
ch

 in
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t L
oc

al
 P

la
n 

ar
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
to

 m
ee

t 
lo

ca
l d

ay
-t

o-
da

y 
ne

ed
s 

(p
ar

a 
6.

24
 o

f t
he

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n 

20
06

),
 w

he
re

as
 o

ut
si

de
 s

uc
h 

zo
ne

s 
it 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

as
on

ab
le

 to
 a

ffo
rd

 a
 lo

w
er

 d
eg

re
e 

of
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n.
-L

oc
al

 P
la

ns
 s

ho
ul

d 
re

co
gn

is
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

s 
as

 th
e 

he
ar

t o
f t

he
ir 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 p
ur

su
e 

po
lic

ie
s 

to
 

su
pp

or
t t

he
ir 

vi
ab

ili
ty

 a
nd

 v
ita

lit
y.

 T
hi

s 
is

 in
 n

o 
w

ay
 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

IP
P

G
.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  N
on

e 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

re
ta

il 
po

lic
ie

s 
in

 th
e 

C
am

br
id

ge
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
20

06
 a

re
 a

bl
e 

to
 

pr
ot

ec
t p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

w
he

th
er

 in
 lo

ca
l c

en
tr

es
 o

r 
no

t. 
 T

hi
s 

is
 d

is
cu

ss
ed

 in
 th

e 
C

am
br

id
ge

 P
ub

lic
 

H
ou

se
 S

tu
dy

 S
ec

tio
ns

 5
.1

7 
to

 5
.2

5.
  O

fte
n 

it 
is

 th
os

e 
pu

bs
 o

ut
si

de
 o

f l
oc

al
 c

en
tr

es
 th

at
 o

ffe
r 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

be
ne

fit
, b

ut
 a

re
 m

or
e 

su
sc

ep
tib

le
 to

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pr

es
su

re
s 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

 
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
do

es
 n

ot
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
su

gg
es

tio
n 

th
at

 
pu

bs
 o

ut
si

de
 o

f l
oc

al
 c

en
tr

es
 s

ho
ul

d 
ha

ve
 le

ss
 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n.

81
36

 -
 J

an
ua

ry
s

O
bj

ec
t

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 4

.5
(b

) 
 F

or
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

re
as

on
, w

e 
w

ou
ld

 
pr

ef
er

 th
e 

w
or

di
ng

 to
 r

ea
d 

".
...

.r
et

ai
n 

th
e 

bu
ild

in
g 

or
 

si
te

 fo
r 

its
 e

xi
st

in
g 

A
4 

cl
as

s 
us

e.
" 

 A
ga

in
, t

he
 v

ia
bi

lit
y 

te
st

 a
t A

nn
ex

 B
 is

 o
rie

nt
ed

 to
w

ar
ds

 p
ub

 u
se

 s
o 

th
e 

ne
xu

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
cr

ite
rio

n 
an

d 
an

ne
x 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
st

ro
ng

er
.

C
on

ce
rn

 n
ot

ed
. W

e 
ha

ve
 to

 m
ak

e 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

to
 o

th
er

 
A

 c
la

ss
 u

se
s 

du
e 

to
 th

e 
ab

ili
ty

 o
f t

he
 p

ub
 to

 c
ha

ng
e 

its
 u

se
 to

 A
1,

 A
2 

or
 A

3 
w

ith
ou

t p
er

m
is

si
on

.  
F

ur
th

er
m

or
e,

 it
 is

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 r
ef

er
 to

 C
la

ss
 D

1 
as

 
su

ch
 u

se
s 

al
so

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 c

om
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
y.

10
16

0 
- 

C
am

br
id

ge
 &

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
B

ra
nc

h 
of

 th
e 

C
am

pa
ig

n 
fo

r 
R

ea
l 

A
le

 (
C

A
M

R
A

)

O
bj

ec
t

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 4

.5
(d

) 
 A

ga
in

, w
e 

w
ou

ld
 s

ug
ge

st
 d

el
et

io
n 

of
 

"a
ny

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

A
 o

r 
D

1 
cl

as
s 

us
e"

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

m
ak

es
 r

ef
er

en
ce

 to
 

ot
he

r 
A

 c
la

ss
 u

se
s 

du
e 

to
 th

e 
ab

ili
ty

 o
f t

he
 p

ub
 to

 
ch

an
ge

 it
s 

us
e 

to
 A

1,
 A

2 
or

 A
3 

w
ith

ou
t p

er
m

is
si

on
.  

F
ur

th
er

m
or

e,
 it

 is
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 to
 r

ef
er

 to
 C

la
ss

 D
1 

as
 

su
ch

 u
se

s 
al

so
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 c
om

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

y.

T
he

 IP
P

G
 s

ee
ks

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

by
 

re
qu

iri
ng

 a
 s

et
 o

f c
rit

er
ia

 to
 b

e 
m

et
, p

rio
r 

to
 a

ny
 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

 b
ei

ng
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 c
ha

ng
e 

of
 u

se
 o

r 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

T
he

 o
nl

y 
w

ay
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 th
is

 w
ou

ld
 

be
 m

ak
e 

an
 A

rt
ic

le
 4

 d
ire

ct
io

n 
to

 r
em

ov
e 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t r
ig

ht
s 

in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f c
ha

ng
in

g 
fr

om
 u

se
 

cl
as

s 
A

4 
to

 A
3,

 A
2 

or
 A

1.
  P

ut
tin

g 
A

rt
ic

le
 4

 d
ire

ct
io

ns
 

in
 p

la
ce

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
a 

se
pa

ra
te

 le
ga

l p
ro

ce
ss

 to
 th

at
 o

f 
th

e 
IP

P
G

, w
ith

 c
on

se
qu

en
t r

es
ou

rc
es

 im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

.  
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 c

on
si

de
r 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

in
tr

od
uc

e 
A

rt
ic

le
 4

 d
ire

ct
io

ns
 to

 p
ro

te
ct

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s.

10
16

3 
- 

C
am

br
id

ge
 &

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
B

ra
nc

h 
of

 th
e 

C
am

pa
ig

n 
fo

r 
R

ea
l 

A
le

 (
C

A
M

R
A

)

O
bj

ec
t

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
in

tr
od

uc
e 

A
rt

ic
le

 4
 d

ire
ct

io
ns

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s.

P
ag

e 
34

 o
f 5

6

Page 446



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

4.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
rin

ci
pl

es

P
ro

po
sa

ls
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

cu
rr

en
tly

 o
r 

la
st

 u
se

d 
as

 a
 C

la
ss

 A
4 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

A
ct

io
n

P
ar

a 
4.

5(
a)

A
 m

or
e 

pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
w

ou
ld

 r
eq

ui
re

 le
ss

 
on

er
ou

s 
cr

ite
ria

 fo
r 

pr
op

os
al

s,
 fo

r 
a 

ch
an

ge
 o

f u
se

 to
 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
in

 a
n 

ur
ba

n 
ar

ea
, w

he
re

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 

m
in

im
um

 n
um

be
r 

of
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
pu

bs
 in

 r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

w
al

ki
ng

 d
is

ta
nc

e.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 is
su

e 
of

 a
lte

rn
at

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 is
 to

 b
e 

de
al

t w
ith

 in
 A

nn
ex

 C
 

of
 th

e 
IP

P
G

.  
T

he
 s

ec
on

d 
m

ai
n 

bu
lle

t i
n 

A
nn

ex
 C

 w
ill

 
be

 a
lte

re
d 

to
 r

ea
d:

 "
D

ev
el

op
er

s 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 c
ar

ry
 

ou
t a

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f t

he
 n

ee
ds

 o
f t

he
 lo

ca
l 

co
m

m
un

ity
 fo

r 
co

m
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
to

 s
ho

w
 th

at
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
or

 fo
rm

er
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
 is

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 n

ee
de

d 
an

d 
w

he
th

er
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

is
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
t l

ea
st

 o
ne

 p
ub

 p
er

 7
50

 w
or

ki
ng

 a
ge

 
ad

ul
ts

 w
ith

in
 a

 4
00

m
 c

at
ch

m
en

t r
ad

iu
s.

"

13
10

3 
- 

C
al

de
co

tte
 C

on
su

lta
nt

s
O

bj
ec

t
A

lte
r 

th
e 

se
co

nd
 m

ai
n 

bu
lle

t i
n 

A
nn

ex
 C

 to
 r

ea
d:

 
"D

ev
el

op
er

s 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 c
ar

ry
 o

ut
 a

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f t

he
 n

ee
ds

 o
f t

he
 lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

 
fo

r 
co

m
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
to

 s
ho

w
 th

at
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
or

 
fo

rm
er

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

 is
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 n
ee

de
d 

an
d 

w
he

th
er

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

t l
ea

st
 o

ne
 p

ub
 p

er
 7

50
 w

or
ki

ng
 

ag
e 

ad
ul

ts
 w

ith
in

 a
 4

00
m

 c
at

ch
m

en
t r

ad
iu

s.
"

-C
rit

er
ia

 B
 a

nd
 D

 g
oe

s 
w

el
l b

ey
on

d 
th

e 
sc

op
e 

of
 th

e 
G

V
A

 p
ub

 s
tu

dy
, i

n 
su

gg
es

tin
g 

th
at

 v
ia

bi
lit

y 
sh

ou
ld

 
al

so
 b

e 
as

se
ss

ed
 in

 th
e 

co
nt

ex
t o

f a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

A
 C

la
ss

 
an

d 
D

1 
us

es
. T

he
 IP

P
G

 h
as

 n
o 

re
m

it 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

po
lic

ie
s 

w
hi

ch
 c

ut
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f t

he
 L

oc
al

 
P

la
n.

 N
o 

ev
id

en
ce

 b
as

e 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 th
is

 a
pp

ro
ac

h.
-R

eq
ui

rin
g 

ev
er

y 
cr

ite
rio

n 
to

 b
e 

sa
tis

fie
d 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
 

bl
an

ke
t a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 r

es
is

tin
g 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
w

ith
ou

t 
re

ta
in

in
g 

se
ns

ib
le

 fl
ex

ib
ili

ty
 in

 th
e 

em
er

gi
ng

 p
ol

ic
y.

 
N

or
w

ic
h 

po
lic

y 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

is
 le

ss
 o

ne
ro

us
.

-M
ar

ke
tin

g 
m

ay
 c

on
fir

m
 a

 s
ite

's
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 in

te
re

st
, 

bu
t w

he
n 

sh
ou

ld
 a

n 
ow

ne
r 

fo
rc

ed
 to

 s
el

l a
 s

ite
, a

nd
 o

n 
w

ha
t b

as
is

?

T
he

 IP
P

G
 m

ak
es

 r
ef

er
en

ce
 to

 o
th

er
 A

 c
la

ss
 u

se
s 

du
e 

to
 th

e 
ab

ili
ty

 o
f t

he
 p

ub
 to

 c
ha

ng
e 

its
 u

se
 to

 A
1,

 
A

2 
or

 A
3 

w
ith

ou
t p

er
m

is
si

on
.  

F
ur

th
er

m
or

e,
 it

 is
 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 r
ef

er
 to

 C
la

ss
 D

1 
as

 s
uc

h 
us

es
 a

ls
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
co

m
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
y.

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

be
lie

ve
s 

th
at

 th
e 

am
en

de
d 

cr
ite

ria
 

re
pr

es
en

t a
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

th
e 

lo
ss

 o
f p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

in
 C

am
br

id
ge

.

T
he

 o
w

ne
r 

is
 n

ot
 fo

rc
ed

 to
 s

el
l a

 s
ite

 -
 th

ey
 a

re
 o

nl
y 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 s

ho
w

 th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

m
ar

ke
t i

nt
er

es
t i

n 
th

e 
si

te
 a

s 
a 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

 o
r 

A
1 

- 
A

3 
or

 D
1 

us
es

.  
If 

th
er

e 
is

 a
 m

ar
ke

t i
nt

er
es

t, 
th

e 
IP

P
G

 d
oe

s 
no

t a
nd

 
ca

nn
ot

 r
eq

ui
re

 th
e 

ow
ne

r 
to

 s
el

l t
he

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

.

81
38

 -
 J

an
ua

ry
s

O
bj

ec
t

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

P
ar

a 
4.

5(
d)

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t c
on

tr
ol

 p
rin

ci
pl

es
 n

ee
d 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

e 
em

ph
as

is
 o

fte
n 

st
re

ss
ed

 b
y 

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
 o

n 
th

e 
ne

ed
 

fo
r 

ho
us

in
g 

in
 C

am
br

id
ge

 a
nd

 g
iv

e 
gr

ea
te

r 
gu

id
an

ce
 

on
 h

ow
 to

 b
al

an
ce

 th
at

 a
ga

in
st

 th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l l
os

s 
of

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 T

he
 r

ea
lit

y 
in

 C
am

br
id

ge
 is

 th
at

 
la

nd
 c

on
st

ra
in

ts
 m

ea
n 

ho
us

in
g 

ne
ed

 c
an

 n
ev

er
 b

e 
fu

lly
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

 a
nd

  i
t w

ill
 a

lw
ay

s 
re

m
ai

n 
a 

ve
ry

 h
ig

h 
ne

ed
, s

o 
an

y 
cr

ite
ria

 b
as

ed
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f 

ac
ce

pt
ab

ili
ty

 o
f l

os
s 

ne
ed

s 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
is

 b
al

an
ce

 
be

tw
ee

n 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
so

ci
al

 a
m

en
ity

 v
al

ue
 e

xp
lic

itl
y.

4.
5 

(d
) 

do
es

 n
ot

 d
o 

th
is

 a
nd

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
st

re
ng

th
en

ed
.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  W
hi

ls
t r

ec
og

ni
si

ng
 th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r 
ho

us
in

g 
in

 C
am

br
id

ge
, t

he
 IP

P
G

 s
et

s 
ou

t c
rit

er
ia

 fo
r 

th
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t o

f p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
in

 C
am

br
id

ge
.  

T
he

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 
an

y 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
w

ill
 r

eq
ui

re
 a

 b
al

an
ce

d 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 th
e 

m
er

its
 o

f t
he

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n.

14
78

5
O

bj
ec

t
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

P
ag

e 
35

 o
f 5

6

Page 447



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

4.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
rin

ci
pl

es

P
ro

po
sa

ls
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

cu
rr

en
tly

 o
r 

la
st

 u
se

d 
as

 a
 C

la
ss

 A
4 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

A
ct

io
n

P
ar

a 
4.

5 
(a

) 
an

d 
(b

)
T

he
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

ta
ke

n 
in

 r
eg

ar
d 

to
 a

cc
ep

ta
bi

lit
y 

of
 lo

ss
 

is
 a

lm
os

t s
ol

el
y 

a 
na

rr
ow

 m
ar

ke
t l

ed
 v

ia
bi

lit
y 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 
fa

vo
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ap
pl

ic
an

ts
 w

hi
ch

 is
 a

ls
o 

co
nt

ra
ry

 a
s 

w
el

l 
to

 th
e 

w
id

er
 v

ie
w

 o
n 

vi
ab

ili
ty

 o
f r

ec
en

t a
pp

ea
ls

.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

co
ns

id
er

s 
th

at
 th

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 4
.5

 is
 a

lre
ad

y 
su

ffi
ci

en
tly

 s
tr

on
g.

  
T

o 
en

ha
nc

e 
it 

fu
rt

he
r 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
de

tr
im

en
ta

l t
o 

th
e 

in
te

re
st

s 
of

 b
us

in
es

s 
gr

ow
th

 a
nd

 fl
ex

ib
ili

ty
 in

 
C

am
br

id
ge

.  
W

e 
ha

ve
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

 th
e 

re
ce

nt
 a

pp
ea

l 
de

ci
si

on
s 

in
 th

e 
IP

P
G

 a
nd

 th
e 

C
am

br
id

ge
 P

ub
lic

 
H

ou
se

 S
tu

dy
.

14
78

2
O

bj
ec

t
In

se
rt

 a
 n

ew
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 4
.9

 o
f t

he
 IP

P
G

 to
 r

ea
d 

"I
n 

pr
ep

ar
in

g 
th

e 
IP

P
G

, a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 a
pp

ea
l d

ec
is

io
ns

 
de

al
in

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r 
m

ar
ke

tin
g 

w
er

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

.  
T

he
se

 a
re

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 th

e 
G

V
A

 
C

am
br

id
ge

 P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 S
tu

dy
 R

ep
or

t."

T
hi

s 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t i
s 

no
t s

om
et

hi
ng

 th
at

 th
at

 is
 w

ith
in

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s 

re
m

it.
 It

 is
 u

na
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

to
 r

eq
ui

re
 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 th
is

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

an
 

un
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 in
tr

us
io

n 
in

to
 p

riv
at

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
.

C
on

ce
rn

 n
ot

ed
. R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

fin
an

ci
al

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 v
ia

bi
lit

y 
of

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 a

re
 

co
m

m
on

 fo
r 

ai
di

ng
 d

ec
is

io
n 

ta
ki

ng
 in

 p
la

nn
in

g.

14
69

6 
- 

B
rit

is
h 

B
ee

r 
&

 P
ub

 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
O

bj
ec

t
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

W
e 

ar
e 

ex
tr

em
el

y 
co

nc
er

ne
d 

ab
ou

t t
he

 c
rit

er
ia

 th
at

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 s
ee

ki
ng

 to
 p

ut
 in

to
 p

la
ce

 b
ef

or
e 

al
lo

w
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
r 

ch
an

ge
 o

f u
se

. W
e 

be
lie

ve
 

th
e 

pr
op

os
al

s 
ar

e 
un

la
w

fu
l a

s 
th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
le

ga
l b

as
is

 
up

on
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

m
ig

ht
 d

ev
el

op
 s

uc
h 

cr
ite

ria
 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
, i

n 
ef

fe
ct

, o
bs

ta
cl

es
 to

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
It 

is
 

ou
r 

vi
ew

 th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 e

xc
ee

di
ng

 it
's

 p
ow

er
s 

un
de

r 
pl

an
ni

ng
 la

w
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
go

in
g 

ag
ai

n 
th

e 
sp

iri
t o

f 
th

e 
N

P
P

F
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

on
ly

 th
is

 y
ea

r 
to

 fr
ee

 u
p 

bu
si

ne
ss

 
fr

om
 u

nn
ec

es
sa

ry
 p

la
nn

in
g 

bu
rd

en
s 

an
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

co
un

te
rp

ro
du

ct
iv

e 
in

 h
el

pi
ng

 to
 k

ee
p 

pu
bs

 o
pe

n.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

 T
he

 IP
P

G
 a

cc
or

ds
 w

ith
 th

e 
N

P
P

F
 

in
 te

rm
s 

of
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

to
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

be
in

g 
im

po
rt

an
t c

om
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

hi
le

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 r

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
r 

ch
an

ge
 o

f u
se

 is
 p

os
si

bl
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
a 

se
t o

f c
rit

er
ia

 b
ei

ng
 m

et
.  

T
hi

s 
en

su
re

s 
th

at
 th

e 
IP

P
G

 is
 n

ot
 a

nt
i d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 th

at
 th

er
e 

is
 th

e 
fle

xi
bi

lit
y 

to
 a

llo
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
he

re
 it

 w
ou

ld
 

be
 in

 th
e 

in
te

re
st

s 
of

 th
e 

ec
on

om
y 

or
 c

om
m

un
ity

.  
T

he
 P

la
nn

in
g 

P
ol

ic
y 

C
on

te
xt

 s
ec

tio
n 

in
cl

ud
es

 a
 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 
w

hi
ch

 e
xp

la
in

 h
ow

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 

w
or

ks
 w

ith
 th

e 
N

P
P

F
.

T
he

 IP
P

G
 s

et
s 

ou
t i

n 
S

ec
tio

n 
1 

th
e 

re
as

on
in

g 
be

hi
nd

 
th

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 ta

ke
n 

to
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
th

e 
IP

P
G

. T
he

 
IP

P
G

 s
up

pl
em

en
ts

 s
av

ed
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
C

am
br

id
ge

 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

20
06

 a
nd

, o
nc

e 
ad

op
te

d,
 w

ill
 c

on
st

itu
te

 a
 

m
at

er
ia

l c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
in

 
C

am
br

id
ge

. I
t i

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
IP

P
G

 a
nd

 th
e 

fin
di

ng
s 

of
 it

s 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

C
am

br
id

ge
 P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se
 

S
tu

dy
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
s 

it 
pr

og
re

ss
es

.

14
69

5 
- 

B
rit

is
h 

B
ee

r 
&

 P
ub

 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
O

bj
ec

t
A

m
en

d 
th

e 
P

la
nn

in
g 

P
ol

ic
y 

C
on

te
xt

 s
ec

tio
n 

to
 

in
cl

ud
e 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
s 

w
hi

ch
 e

xp
la

in
 h

ow
 

th
e 

IP
P

G
 w

or
ks

 w
ith

 th
e 

N
P

P
F

.

In
co

rp
or

at
e 

th
e 

IP
P

G
 a

nd
 th

e 
fin

di
ng

s 
of

 it
s 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
C

am
br

id
ge

 P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 S
tu

dy
 in

to
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
s 

it 
pr

og
re

ss
es

.

P
ag

e 
36

 o
f 5

6

Page 448



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

4.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
rin

ci
pl

es

P
ro

po
sa

ls
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

cu
rr

en
tly

 o
r 

la
st

 u
se

d 
as

 a
 C

la
ss

 A
4 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

A
ct

io
n

-N
o 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 th
e 

su
ita

bi
lit

y 
of

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

 
us

e,
 a

nd
 r

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
th

at
 s

om
e 

ha
ve

 fu
nd

am
en

ta
l 

fla
w

s 
on

 th
e 

ba
si

s 
of

 a
m

en
ity

 is
su

es
 o

r 
ar

e 
m

or
e 

su
ita

bl
e 

fo
r 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

us
es

, f
or

 w
hi

ch
 th

er
e 

m
ay

 b
e 

a 
gr

ea
te

r 
ne

ed
.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  W
he

re
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
 h

as
 

di
ffi

cu
lti

es
 in

 te
rm

s 
of

 li
ce

ns
in

g,
 a

nt
i-s

oc
ia

l b
eh

av
io

ur
 

an
d/

or
 n

oi
se

, i
t i

s 
re

co
gn

is
ed

 th
at

 th
er

e 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

th
e 

on
go

in
g 

tr
ad

in
g 

of
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 
ho

us
e.

  H
ow

ev
er

, t
hi

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
du

e 
to

 p
oo

r 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f t

he
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
 in

 q
ue

st
io

n.
   

M
an

y 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

op
er

at
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

w
ith

in
 r

es
id

en
tia

l 
ar

ea
s 

an
d 

se
rv

e 
th

ei
r 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
lly

.  
A

s 
su

ch
, n

o 
ch

an
ge

s 
to

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 a

re
 s

ug
ge

st
ed

 to
 d

ea
l 

w
ith

 th
is

 is
su

e.

18
60

3 
- 

Ja
nu

ar
ys

O
bj

ec
t

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

on
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 m

ar
ke

tin
g 

st
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 
as

ki
ng

 p
ric

es
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ov
er

 b
ur

de
ns

om
e.

 It
 is

 
su

gg
es

te
d 

th
at

 li
ai

so
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
sh

ou
ld

 
be

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 w

he
re

, i
f t

he
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

de
em

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

, 
m

ay
 c

on
si

de
r 

co
ns

ul
tin

g 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 in
 e

xc
ep

tio
na

l 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

   
H

ow
ev

er
, a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 r

ec
en

t 
ap

pe
al

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 h

av
e 

su
pp

or
te

d 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 
m

ar
ke

tin
g 

to
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

vi
ab

ili
ty

.  
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
in

se
rt

ed
 a

 n
ew

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 4

.9
 o

f t
he

 IP
P

G
 to

 r
ea

d 
"I

n 
pr

ep
ar

in
g 

th
e 

IP
P

G
, a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 a

pp
ea

l d
ec

is
io

ns
 

de
al

in
g 

w
ith

 th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r 

m
ar

ke
tin

g 
w

er
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
.  

T
he

se
 a

re
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 th
e 

C
am

br
id

ge
 

P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 S
tu

dy
 R

ep
or

t."
  F

ur
th

er
m

or
e,

 b
y 

pr
e-

ag
re

ei
ng

 a
 fo

cu
ss

ed
 m

ar
ke

tin
g 

st
ra

te
gy

 w
ith

 
C

am
br

id
ge

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il,

 it
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 to
 

re
du

ce
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
m

ar
ke

tin
g 

pe
rio

d.
  T

he
se

 e
ar

ly
 

ne
go

tia
tio

ns
 m

ig
ht

 a
ls

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
in

di
ca

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 

va
lu

e 
of

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

 to
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

.

13
16

1 
- 

C
al

de
co

tte
 C

on
su

lta
nt

s
O

bj
ec

t
In

se
rt

 a
 n

ew
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 4
.9

 o
f t

he
 IP

P
G

 to
 r

ea
d 

"I
n 

pr
ep

ar
in

g 
th

e 
IP

P
G

, a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 a
pp

ea
l d

ec
is

io
ns

 
de

al
in

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r 
m

ar
ke

tin
g 

w
er

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

.  
T

he
se

 a
re

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 th

e 
C

am
br

id
ge

 
P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se
 S

tu
dy

 R
ep

or
t."

A
do

pt
in

g 
a 

"f
re

ez
e"

 o
n 

al
l p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

m
ay

 d
ilu

te
 

th
e 

of
fe

r 
of

 b
et

te
r 

pe
rf

or
m

in
g 

pu
bs

 -
 is

 it
 n

ot
 b

et
te

r 
to

 
ha

ve
 o

ne
 g

oo
d 

pe
rf

or
m

in
g 

pu
b 

in
 a

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 

th
an

 tw
o 

po
or

ly
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
pu

bs
?

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 p
oo

rly
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

sh
ou

ld
 s

til
l b

e 
al

lo
w

ed
 th

e 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 
to

 b
e 

m
ar

ke
te

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
pr

io
r 

to
 s

ite
 d

is
po

sa
l. 

 It
 

m
ay

 b
e 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 p

oo
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f t
he

 p
ub

lic
 

ho
us

e 
in

 q
ue

st
io

n,
 w

hi
ch

 m
ig

ht
 b

e 
tu

rn
ed

 a
ro

un
d 

by
 

an
ot

he
r 

op
er

at
or

 a
nd

/o
r 

th
ro

ug
h 

di
ve

rs
ifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

of
fe

r 
of

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

.

18
60

6 
- 

Ja
nu

ar
ys

O
bj

ec
t

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

P
ag

e 
37

 o
f 5

6

Page 449



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

4.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
rin

ci
pl

es

P
ro

po
sa

ls
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

cu
rr

en
tly

 o
r 

la
st

 u
se

d 
as

 a
 C

la
ss

 A
4 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

A
ct

io
n

P
ar

a 
4.

5(
a)

If 
re

qu
ire

d,
 a

 6
 m

on
th

 m
ar

ke
tin

g 
ex

er
ci

se
 is

 m
or

e 
pr

op
or

tio
na

te
.

T
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
12

 m
on

th
 ti

m
ef

ra
m

e 
is

 u
nj

us
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

no
t c

om
pl

ia
nt

 w
ith

 th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t's

 o
w

n 
le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
al

lo
w

in
g 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 ti

m
e 

to
 b

id
 fo

r 
co

m
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
T

he
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t r
ec

og
ni

se
s 

a 
to

ta
l 6

 m
on

th
 p

er
io

d 
w

ill
 a

ffo
rd

 lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
 g

ro
up

s 
su

ffi
ci

en
t t

im
e 

to
 

bi
d 

to
 ta

ke
 o

ve
r 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 'a

ss
et

s 
of

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

va
lu

e'
 w

hi
ch

 c
an

 in
cl

ud
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s.
A

 m
or

e 
fle

xi
bl

e 
an

d 
re

as
on

ed
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 th

e 
m

ar
ke

tin
g 

pe
rio

d 
re

qu
ire

d 
m

ay
 b

e 
a 

fa
ire

r 
re

fle
ct

io
n 

of
 

ec
on

om
ic

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s,
 w

ith
 s

ix
 m

on
th

s 
an

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 d
ur

at
io

n.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

co
ns

id
er

s 
th

at
 1

2 
m

on
th

s 
is

 a
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
pe

rio
d 

fo
r 

m
ar

ke
tin

g 
a 

pu
bl

ic
 

ho
us

e.
  T

hi
s 

is
 s

til
l a

 s
ho

rt
er

 ti
m

ef
ra

m
e 

th
an

 th
at

 
re

qu
ire

d 
by

 th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f M
er

to
n.

13
10

2 
- 

C
al

de
co

tte
 C

on
su

lta
nt

s
O

bj
ec

t
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

T
he

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t f
or

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

pu
bs

 to
 b

e 
w

ith
in

 a
 

're
as

on
ab

le
 w

al
ki

ng
 d

is
ta

nc
e'

 o
f 4

00
m

 a
s 

pe
r 

th
e 

U
rb

an
 D

es
ig

n 
C

om
pe

nd
iu

m
 is

 n
ot

 ju
st

ifi
ed

 (
to

 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 a

 lo
w

er
 c

at
ch

m
en

t f
or

 C
am

br
id

ge
) 

an
d 

is
 

co
nt

ra
ry

 to
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t P
ol

ic
y 

w
hi

ch
 d

ef
in

es
 a

 
re

as
on

ab
le

 w
al

ki
ng

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
at

 8
00

m
, s

ee
 S

ec
tio

n 
4.

4 
of

 th
e 

M
an

ua
l f

or
 S

tr
ee

ts
 (

20
07

 a
s 

am
en

de
d)

.

T
he

 M
an

ua
l f

or
 S

tr
ee

ts
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

is
 m

or
e 

re
le

va
nt

 a
s 

it 
re

fe
rs

 to
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
as

 o
pp

os
e 

to
 ju

st
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e,
 a

nd
 is

 a
ls

o 
m

or
e 

re
ce

nt
 g

ui
da

nc
e.

A
 8

00
m

 w
al

ki
ng

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
is

 'r
ea

so
na

bl
e'

 a
nd

 
ju

st
ifi

ab
le

, a
cc

or
di

ng
 to

 m
or

e 
re

ce
nt

 a
nd

 im
pa

rt
ia

l 
re

se
ar

ch
.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

 4
00

m
 is

 a
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
w

al
ki

ng
 

di
st

an
ce

. S
ou

rc
es

 fo
r 

th
is

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
ca

n 
be

 fo
un

d 
in

:

(1
) 

U
rb

an
 D

es
ig

n 
C

om
pe

nd
iu

m
 P

ar
t I

, B
ui

ld
in

g 
W

al
ka

bl
e 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s,

 S
ec

tio
n 

3.
2.

1
(2

) 
S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 S

et
tle

m
en

ts
: A

 G
ui

de
 fo

r 
P

la
nn

er
s,

 
D

es
ig

ne
rs

 a
nd

 D
ev

el
op

er
s 

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 
C

om
m

un
iti

es
: T

he
 P

ot
en

tia
l f

or
 E

co
-

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

by
 B

ar
to

n 
ci

te
s,

 F
ig

ur
e 

6.
2 

- 
P

os
si

bl
e 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 fo

r 
A

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

to
 L

oc
al

 
F

ac
ili

tie
s'

(3
) 

N
at

io
na

l P
la

yi
ng

 F
ie

ld
s 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 fo

r 
pl

ay
 p

ro
vi

si
on

; c
rit

er
ia

 fo
r 

Lo
ca

l E
qu

ip
pe

d 
A

re
a 

of
 

P
la

y.

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ac
ce

pt
s 

th
at

 th
is

 is
 p

ot
en

tia
lly

 c
on

fu
si

ng
 

as
 w

or
de

d 
an

d 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 4

.5
.

81
30

 -
 J

an
ua

ry
s

13
12

6 
- 

C
al

de
co

tte
 C

on
su

lta
nt

s
O

bj
ec

t
S

im
pl

ify
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t c

rit
er

ia
 in

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 4

.5
; a

nd
 

am
en

d 
an

ne
x 

C
, C

om
m

un
ity

 C
at

ch
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 
C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
to

 c
la

rif
y 

ho
w

 it
 c

an
 b

e 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
d 

th
at

 th
e 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 n
ee

ds
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
 o

r 
an

y 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
'A

' o
r 

'D
1'

 c
la

ss
 u

se
 

an
d 

its
 lo

ss
 w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 d
am

ag
e 

th
e 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

of
 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
er

ci
al

 o
r 

co
m

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

th
at

 
pr

ov
id

e 
da

y-
to

-d
ay

 n
ee

ds
 in

 th
e 

lo
ca

l a
re

a.

T
he

re
 is

 a
 n

ee
d 

to
 p

re
se

rv
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

pu
bs

 w
he

re
ve

r 
po

ss
ib

le
. I

t i
s 

im
po

rt
an

t t
ha

t o
pi

ni
on

s 
as

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
d 

vi
ab

ili
ty

 a
re

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 b

y 
tr

ul
y 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t e

vi
de

nc
e.

S
up

po
rt

 n
ot

ed
.

69
44

S
up

po
rt

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
; g

oo
d 

de
ta

ili
ng

 o
f h

ow
 p

ub
s 

be
ne

fit
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 o

f h
ow

 to
 c

he
ck

 th
os

e 
be

ne
fit

s 
ar

en
't 

be
in

g 
lo

st
; g

oo
d 

fa
ils

af
es

 a
nd

 c
he

ck
s 

to
 p

re
ve

nt
 

in
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f v

al
ue

d 
pu

bs
.

S
up

po
rt

 n
ot

ed
.

81
64

S
up

po
rt

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

cr
ite

ria
 s

ee
m

 r
ea

so
na

bl
e

S
up

po
rt

 n
ot

ed
.

88
06

S
up

po
rt

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

P
ag

e 
38

 o
f 5

6

Page 450



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

4.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
rin

ci
pl

es

P
ro

po
sa

ls
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

cu
rr

en
tly

 o
r 

la
st

 u
se

d 
as

 a
 C

la
ss

 A
4 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

A
ct

io
n

P
ar

a 
4.

5a
 -

 I 
am

 p
le

as
ed

 to
 s

ee
 th

at
 th

e 
st

at
em

en
t 

"f
re

e 
of

 ti
e 

or
 r

es
tr

ic
tiv

e 
co

ve
na

nt
" 

is
 in

cl
ud

ed
.  

M
os

t 
pu

bs
 "

fa
il"

 o
w

in
g 

to
 o

ne
ro

us
 c

ha
rg

es
 o

n 
be

ha
lf 

of
 th

e 
br

ew
er

y 
th

at
 o

w
ns

 th
e 

fr
ee

ho
ld

, o
r 

th
at

 th
e 

br
ew

er
y 

im
po

se
s 

an
 in

co
m

pe
ta

nt
 la

nd
lo

rd
 o

n 
th

e 
pu

b.
  T

he
 

sa
m

e 
pu

b,
 w

he
n 

fr
ee

 o
f t

ie
, a

nd
 r

un
 b

y 
a 

co
m

pe
ta

nt
 

te
am

, c
an

 o
fte

n 
su

dd
en

ly
 b

ec
om

e 
a 

pr
of

ita
bl

e 
su

cc
es

s.
  O

ne
 m

ig
ht

 in
te

rp
re

t t
hi

s 
as

 th
e 

br
ew

er
y 

ho
pi

ng
 th

e 
pu

b 
w

ill
 fa

il,
 in

de
ed

 s
et

tin
g 

th
e 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
so

 g
ua

ra
nt

ee
d 

to
 fa

il,
 s

o 
it 

ca
n 

se
ll 

of
f t

he
 la

nd
 fo

r 
pr

of
ita

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g.

S
up

po
rt

 n
ot

ed
.

68
78

S
up

po
rt

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

I a
m

 v
er

y 
co

nc
er

ne
d 

ab
ou

t p
os

si
bl

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
n 

th
e 

si
te

 o
f o

ur
 lo

ca
l p

ub
, t

he
 F

ly
in

g 
P

ig
, a

nd
 h

op
e 

th
is

 
pr

op
os

al
 w

ill
 p

re
ve

nt
 s

uc
h 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t t

ak
in

g 
pl

ac
e.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 a
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

06
/0

55
2/

F
U

L 
fo

r 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 m
ix

ed
 u

se
 s

ch
em

e 
co

m
pr

is
in

g 
15

6 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l u
ni

ts
 (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
40

%
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

);
 

B
1 

of
fic

e 
us

e;
 r

et
ai

l /
 fo

od
 a

nd
 d

rin
k 

(C
la

ss
es

 A
1;

 A
3 

an
d 

A
4 

us
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 r

et
en

tio
n 

of
 'F

ly
in

g 
P

ig
' 

P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

),
 a

nd
 n

ew
 c

om
m

un
ity

 u
se

, t
og

et
he

r 
w

ith
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
ba

se
m

en
t c

ar
 p

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ci
ng

; 
am

en
ity

 s
pa

ce
 (

ex
te

rn
al

 a
nd

 in
te

rn
al

) 
w

ith
 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 h

ar
d 

an
d 

so
ft 

la
nd

sc
ap

in
g;

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
re

-
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

w
ar

 m
em

or
ia

l a
nd

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f p
ub

lic
 

ar
t r

es
pe

ct
iv

el
y.

  A
s 

P
ha

se
 1

 o
f t

hi
s 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t, 
th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 r

em
ai

ns
 e

xt
an

t. 
 W

hi
ls

t t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
its

el
f 

m
ay

 n
ot

 r
em

ai
n,

 th
is

 p
la

nn
in

g 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 d
oe

s 
sa

fe
gu

ar
d 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

 u
se

.

73
59

S
up

po
rt

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

It 
is

 im
po

rt
an

t t
ha

t p
ub

s 
be

 g
iv

en
 a

 c
ha

nc
e 

to
 r

ev
er

t t
o 

pu
bs

 if
 th

er
e 

is
 th

e 
de

m
an

d 
by

 th
e 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
 

fo
r 

it.

S
up

po
rt

 n
ot

ed
.

12
86

6
S

up
po

rt
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

I s
tr

on
gl

y 
su

pp
or

t t
hi

s 
pr

op
os

al
. W

he
n 

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
 

pu
rc

ha
se

 p
ub

 s
ite

s,
 th

ey
 d

o 
no

t d
o 

so
 w

ith
 th

e 
ai

m
 o

f 
ru

nn
in

g 
a 

go
od

 p
ub

 in
 m

in
d,

 a
nd

 a
do

pt
 th

e 
at

tit
ud

e 
th

at
 p

ub
s 

ar
e 

on
 th

e 
de

cl
in

e 
du

e 
to

 th
e 

sm
ok

in
g 

ba
n/

 
su

pe
rm

ar
ke

t p
ric

es
 e

tc
. I

t i
s 

cl
ea

r,
 h

ow
ev

er
, f

ro
m

 
w

al
ki

ng
 in

to
 a

ny
 w

el
l-r

un
 p

ub
 in

 c
am

br
id

ge
, t

ha
t p

ub
s 

ar
e 

ex
tr

em
el

y 
po

pu
la

r 
an

d 
im

po
rt

an
t c

om
m

un
ity

 
m

ee
tin

g 
pl

ac
es

 w
he

n 
th

ey
 a

re
 w

el
l-m

an
ag

ed
. T

hi
s 

po
lic

y 
w

ill
 p

ro
te

ct
 a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
rs

' (
na

tu
ra

lly
 

bi
as

ed
) 

ar
gu

m
en

ts
 a

ga
in

st
 p

ub
s 

an
d 

al
lo

w
 s

ite
s 

to
 

ha
ve

 a
 c

ha
nc

e 
to

 b
e 

ru
n 

as
 a

 p
ub

 a
ga

in
.

S
up

po
rt

 n
ot

ed
.

14
06

9
S

up
po

rt
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

P
ag

e 
39

 o
f 5

6

Page 451



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

4.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
rin

ci
pl

es

P
ro

po
sa

ls
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

ot
he

r 
C

la
ss

 A
 u

se
s 

w
hi

ch
 w

er
e 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 in

 a
 C

la
ss

 A
4 

pu
b 

us
e

A
ct

io
n

P
ro

po
sa

ls
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

ot
he

r 
C

la
ss

 A
 u

se
s 

w
hi

ch
 w

er
e 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 in

 a
 C

la
ss

 A
4 

pu
b 

us
e

W
e 

w
ou

ld
 a

ls
o 

as
k 

th
at

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
be

 g
iv

en
 to

 
P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se
s 

le
ft 

cl
os

ed
 fo

r 
lo

ng
er

 th
an

 1
8 

m
on

th
s 

be
in

g 
re

-o
pe

ne
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t n

ot
ic

es
 u

nd
er

 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n,

 o
r 

be
 th

e 
su

bj
ec

t o
f a

n 
A

rt
ic

le
 4

 
D

ire
ct

io
n(

N
P

P
F

 P
ar

a.
20

0)
, t

o 
pr

ev
en

t t
he

 
'u

nn
ec

es
sa

ry
 lo

ss
' o

f a
 'l

oc
al

 a
m

en
ity

'.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

do
es

 n
ot

 
co

ns
id

er
 it

 te
na

bl
e 

to
 u

se
 e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t p

ow
er

s 
to

 
re

op
en

 c
lo

se
d 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s.
  I

n 
te

rm
s 

of
 u

si
ng

 
A

rt
ic

le
 4

 d
ire

ct
io

ns
 to

 r
em

ov
e 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t r
ig

ht
s,

 p
ut

tin
g 

su
ch

 p
ow

er
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 
w

ou
ld

 r
eq

ui
re

 a
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

le
ga

l p
ro

ce
ss

 to
 th

at
 o

f t
he

 
IP

P
G

, w
ith

 c
on

se
qu

en
t r

es
ou

rc
e 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

.  
T

he
 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
in

tr
od

uc
e 

A
rt

ic
le

 
4 

di
re

ct
io

ns
 to

 p
ro

te
ct

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s.

86
60

 -
 C

am
br

id
ge

 P
as

t, 
P

re
se

nt
 

an
d 

F
ut

ur
e

O
bj

ec
t

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
in

tr
od

uc
e 

A
rt

ic
le

 4
 d

ire
ct

io
ns

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s.

T
he

 o
th

er
 C

la
ss

 A
 u

se
s 

se
em

 to
 m

e 
to

 d
iff

er
 g

re
at

ly
 

fr
om

 th
e 

fu
nc

tio
ns

 p
ub

s 
pe

rf
or

m
. I

 w
ou

ld
 th

in
k 

th
at

 a
 

co
nv

er
si

on
 in

 th
is

 c
at

eg
or

y 
w

ou
ld

 s
til

l l
ea

d 
to

 th
e 

fu
ll 

ef
fe

ct
s 

of
 th

e 
lo

ss
 o

f a
 v

al
ue

d 
pu

b,
 a

nd
 th

in
k 

it 
w

ou
ld

 
be

 b
et

te
r 

to
 u

se
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

st
rin

ge
nt

 c
rit

er
ia

 fo
r 

pr
ov

in
g 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t i
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 h

er
e 

as
 e

ls
ew

he
re

.

T
he

 IP
P

G
 s

ee
ks

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

by
 

re
qu

iri
ng

 a
 s

et
 o

f c
rit

er
ia

 to
 b

e 
m

et
, p

rio
r 

to
 a

ny
 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

 b
ei

ng
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 c
ha

ng
e 

of
 u

se
 o

r 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

T
he

 o
nl

y 
w

ay
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 th
is

 w
ou

ld
 

be
 m

ak
e 

an
 A

rt
ic

le
 4

 d
ire

ct
io

n 
to

 r
em

ov
e 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t r
ig

ht
s 

in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f c
ha

ng
in

g 
fr

om
 u

se
 

cl
as

s 
A

4 
to

 A
3,

 A
2 

or
 A

1.
  P

ut
tin

g 
A

rt
ic

le
 4

 d
ire

ct
io

ns
 

in
 p

la
ce

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
a 

se
pa

ra
te

 le
ga

l p
ro

ce
ss

 to
 th

at
 o

f 
th

e 
IP

P
G

, w
ith

 c
on

se
qu

en
t r

es
ou

rc
es

 im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

.  
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 c

on
si

de
r 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

in
tr

od
uc

e 
A

rt
ic

le
 4

 d
ire

ct
io

ns
 to

 p
ro

te
ct

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s.

81
65

O
bj

ec
t

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
in

tr
od

uc
e 

A
rt

ic
le

 4
 d

ire
ct

io
ns

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s.

W
ou

ld
 it

 b
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 to
 h

av
e 

A
4 

as
 a

 d
ef

au
lt 

us
e 

cl
as

s 
fo

r 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

w
he

n 
a 

ch
an

ge
 o

f u
se

s 
oc

cu
rs

. T
hi

s 
m

ay
 p

re
ve

nt
 s

itu
at

io
ns

 li
ke

 o
n 

K
in

gs
 S

tr
ee

t w
he

re
 a

 
fo

rm
er

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

 w
as

 u
na

bl
e 

to
 r

eo
pe

n 
(a

lb
ei

t a
fte

r 
so

m
e 

co
ns

id
er

ab
le

 ti
m

e)
. I

t w
ou

ld
 a

ls
o 

m
ak

e 
it 

cl
ea

r 
to

 lo
ca

l r
es

id
en

ts
 th

at
 a

 c
ha

ng
e 

of
 u

se
 b

ac
k 

to
 A

4 
m

ay
 o

cc
ur

 in
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

 a
nd

 th
at

 th
ey

 s
ho

ul
d 

no
t 

as
su

m
e 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t u

se
 w

as
 p

er
m

an
en

t.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

 H
ow

ev
er

, p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s 
ar

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 to
 fa

ll 
w

ith
in

 A
4 

us
e 

cl
as

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

U
se

 
C

la
ss

es
 O

rd
er

.  
A

s 
su

ch
, i

f s
om

eo
ne

 s
ou

gh
t t

o 
re

tu
rn

 a
 fo

rm
er

 p
ub

 s
ite

 to
 u

se
 a

s 
a 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

 
w

he
n 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 th

e 
la

nd
 h

ad
 a

lre
ad

y 
ch

an
ge

d,
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
er

m
is

si
on

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
ch

an
ge

 o
f u

se
 b

ac
k 

to
 a

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

.

69
49

O
bj

ec
t

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

W
e 

st
ro

ng
ly

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

pr
op

os
al

 to
 b

rin
g 

fo
rm

er
 p

ub
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
am

bi
t o

f t
he

 p
ol

ic
y.

 W
e 

do
 n

ot
, h

ow
ev

er
, 

ag
re

e 
th

at
 th

e 
fle

xi
bi

lit
y 

al
lo

w
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

na
tio

na
l 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t r
ul

es
 is

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l. 

O
f t

he
 

el
ev

en
 p

ub
s 

w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

co
nv

er
te

d 
to

 r
es

ta
ur

an
ts

 
si

nc
e 

20
07

, n
on

e 
ha

ve
 r

et
ur

ne
d 

to
 p

ub
 u

se
 -

 it
 is

 v
er

y 
m

uc
h 

on
e-

w
ay

 tr
af

fic
. W

e 
ac

ce
pt

 th
at

 th
e 

pr
op

os
al

s 
w

ou
ld

 m
ak

e 
it 

ea
si

er
 to

 c
ha

ng
e 

fr
om

 A
1/

2/
3 

ba
ck

 to
 

A
4 

bu
t w

e 
co

ns
id

er
 th

at
 s

uc
h 

ch
an

ge
s 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
be

tte
r 

pr
ev

en
te

d 
in

 th
e 

fir
st

 p
la

ce
.

T
he

 IP
P

G
 s

ee
ks

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

by
 

re
qu

iri
ng

 a
 s

et
 o

f c
rit

er
ia

 to
 b

e 
m

et
, p

rio
r 

to
 a

ny
 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

 b
ei

ng
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 c
ha

ng
e 

of
 u

se
 o

r 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

T
he

 o
nl

y 
w

ay
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 th
is

 w
ou

ld
 

be
 m

ak
e 

an
 A

rt
ic

le
 4

 d
ire

ct
io

n 
to

 r
em

ov
e 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t r
ig

ht
s 

in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f c
ha

ng
in

g 
fr

om
 u

se
 

cl
as

s 
A

4 
to

 A
3,

 A
2 

or
 A

1.
  P

ut
tin

g 
A

rt
ic

le
 4

 d
ire

ct
io

ns
 

in
 p

la
ce

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
a 

se
pa

ra
te

 le
ga

l p
ro

ce
ss

 to
 th

at
 o

f 
th

e 
IP

P
G

, w
ith

 c
on

se
qu

en
t r

es
ou

rc
es

 im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

.  
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 c

on
si

de
r 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

in
tr

od
uc

e 
A

rt
ic

le
 4

 d
ire

ct
io

ns
 to

 p
ro

te
ct

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s.

10
16

5 
- 

C
am

br
id

ge
 &

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
B

ra
nc

h 
of

 th
e 

C
am

pa
ig

n 
fo

r 
R

ea
l 

A
le

 (
C

A
M

R
A

)

O
bj

ec
t

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
in

tr
od

uc
e 

A
rt

ic
le

 4
 d

ire
ct

io
ns

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s.

P
ag

e 
40

 o
f 5

6

Page 452



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

4.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
rin

ci
pl

es

P
ro

po
sa

ls
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

ot
he

r 
C

la
ss

 A
 u

se
s 

w
hi

ch
 w

er
e 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 in

 a
 C

la
ss

 A
4 

pu
b 

us
e

A
ct

io
n

It 
is

 in
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 fo
r 

th
e 

IP
P

G
 to

 e
qu

al
ly

 s
ee

k 
to

 
ap

pl
y 

to
 fo

rm
er

 p
ub

s,
 w

he
n 

th
es

e 
m

ay
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
in

 p
ub

 u
se

 fo
r 

a 
ve

ry
 c

on
si

de
ra

bl
e 

pe
rio

d 
of

 ti
m

e.

U
nd

er
 th

e 
U

se
 C

la
ss

es
 O

rd
er

, p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

A
4 

us
es

 c
an

 c
ha

ng
e 

to
 h

ig
he

r 
or

de
r 

us
e 

cl
as

s 
(A

3,
 A

2 
or

 A
1)

 w
ith

ou
t n

ee
di

ng
 p

la
nn

in
g 

pe
rm

is
si

on
.  

T
ak

in
g 

th
e 

ca
se

 o
f a

 r
es

ta
ur

an
t i

n 
a 

fo
rm

er
 p

ub
lic

 
ho

us
e 

bu
ild

in
g,

 if
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
 a

lre
ad

y 
se

rv
ed

 
fo

od
, i

t m
ay

 a
lre

ad
y 

ha
ve

 a
 k

itc
he

n 
w

ith
 e

xt
ra

ct
or

 
fa

ns
.  

O
ve

r 
tim

e 
it 

m
ay

 b
e 

pe
rm

is
si

bl
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

pu
b 

to
 

tu
rn

 in
to

 a
 r

es
ta

ur
an

t w
ith

ou
t f

or
m

al
ly

 r
eq

ui
rin

g 
pl

an
ni

ng
 c

on
se

nt
.  

It 
is

 th
er

ef
or

e 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
to

 
de

te
rm

in
e 

w
he

n 
a 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

 c
ha

ng
ed

 in
to

 a
 

re
st

au
ra

nt
, u

nl
es

s 
so

m
e 

fo
rm

 o
f a

ud
it 

to
ok

 p
la

ce
 o

r 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

er
m

is
si

on
 w

as
 g

ra
nt

ed
, i

nd
ic

at
in

g 
a 

di
ffe

re
nt

 u
se

 w
as

 n
ow

 in
 o

pe
ra

tio
n.

  A
ne

cd
ot

al
 

ev
id

en
ce

 m
ay

 s
ug

ge
st

 w
he

n 
th

e 
ch

an
ge

 to
ok

 p
la

ce
, 

bu
t t

hi
s 

co
ul

d 
no

t b
e 

re
lie

d 
up

on
 to

 c
on

fir
m

 th
e 

da
te

 
of

 c
on

ve
rs

io
n.

  I
t i

s 
th

er
ef

or
e 

di
ffi

cu
lt 

to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

w
he

n 
a 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

 c
ea

se
d 

be
in

g 
a 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

 
an

d 
ch

an
ge

 u
se

 le
gi

tim
at

el
y 

in
to

 a
 d

iff
er

en
t u

se
 

w
ith

ou
t p

la
nn

in
g 

pe
rm

is
si

on
.  

A
s 

su
ch

, i
t w

ou
ld

 
th

er
ef

or
e 

se
em

 r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

to
 o

nl
y 

ap
pl

y 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

to
 fu

tu
re

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 

fo
r 

th
os

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

au
di

te
d 

an
d 

on
 th

e 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 li

st
.  

T
hi

s 
is

su
e 

is
 c

ov
er

ed
 in

 n
ew

 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

2.
2 

of
 th

e 
IP

P
G

 w
hi

ch
 r

ea
ds

 "
T

he
 IP

P
G

 
gu

id
an

ce
 is

 to
 b

e 
ap

pl
ie

d 
to

 p
re

m
is

es
 th

at
 w

er
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
in

 J
ul

y 
20

06
, t

he
 d

at
e 

w
he

n 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t L
oc

al
 P

la
n 

w
as

 a
do

pt
ed

.  
T

hi
s 

en
su

re
s 

co
ns

is
te

nc
y 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

Lo
ca

l P
la

n 
an

d 
th

e 
N

P
P

F
.

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 th

at
 w

er
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
in

 J
ul

y 
20

06
 a

re
 

pr
es

en
t o

n 
th

e 
lis

t o
f s

af
eg

ua
rd

ed
 p

ub
s 

at
 S

ec
tio

n 
5 

an
d 

al
l o

f t
he

se
 a

re
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 th
e 

IP
P

G
.  

T
hi

s 
lis

t 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

ny
 p

ub
s 

w
ith

 u
ni

m
pl

em
en

te
d 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
pe

rm
is

si
on

s 
an

d 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 in

vo
lv

in
g 

th
es

e 
pu

bs
 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 

de
sp

ite
 th

e 
pr

es
en

ce
 o

f u
ni

m
pl

em
en

te
d 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
pe

rm
is

si
on

s 
fo

r 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
us

es
."

14
70

1 
- 

Ja
nu

ar
ys

 C
on

su
lta

nt
 

S
ur

ve
yo

rs
O

bj
ec

t
In

se
rt

 n
ew

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 2

.2
 to

 r
ea

d 
"T

he
 IP

P
G

 
gu

id
an

ce
 is

 to
 b

e 
ap

pl
ie

d 
to

 p
re

m
is

es
 th

at
 w

er
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
in

 J
ul

y 
20

06
, t

he
 d

at
e 

w
he

n 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t L
oc

al
 P

la
n 

w
as

 a
do

pt
ed

.  
T

hi
s 

en
su

re
s 

co
ns

is
te

nc
y 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

Lo
ca

l P
la

n 
an

d 
th

e 
N

P
P

F
.  

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 th

at
 w

er
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
in

 J
ul

y 
20

06
 a

re
 p

re
se

nt
 o

n 
th

e 
lis

t o
f s

af
eg

ua
rd

ed
 p

ub
s 

at
 

S
ec

tio
n 

5 
an

d 
al

l o
f t

he
se

 a
re

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 th

e 
IP

P
G

.
T

hi
s 

lis
t i

nc
lu

de
s 

an
y 

pu
bs

 w
ith

 u
ni

m
pl

em
en

te
d 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
er

m
is

si
on

s 
an

d 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 in

vo
lv

in
g 

th
es

e 
pu

bs
 w

ill
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 

th
e 

IP
P

G
 d

es
pi

te
 th

e 
pr

es
en

ce
 o

f u
ni

m
pl

em
en

te
d 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
er

m
is

si
on

s 
fo

r 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
us

es
."

P
ar

a 
4.

9 
- 

4.
13

. R
ec

en
t g

re
at

er
 r

el
ax

at
io

n 
of

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t r

ig
ht

s 
by

 c
en

tr
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t m

ea
n 

th
at

 
lo

ss
 o

f b
ui

ld
in

gs
 fr

om
 A

1/
A

2 
cl

as
s 

us
e 

fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

C
3 

pu
rp

os
es

 is
 e

as
ie

r.
 H

ow
 c

an
 th

is
 b

e 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

th
ou

gh
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t c
on

tr
ol

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
he

re
?

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

as
su

m
es

 th
at

 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

to
 th

e 
ch

an
ge

 to
 p

er
m

itt
ed

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
rig

ht
s 

co
nc

er
ns

 th
e 

ab
ili

ty
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 tw
o 

ra
th

er
 th

an
 

on
e 

fla
t a

bo
ve

 a
n 

A
1 

or
 A

2 
pr

em
is

es
.  

T
hi

s 
is

 n
ot

 
re

le
va

nt
 to

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 a

s 
th

e 
A

1 
or

 A
2 

us
e 

(w
hi

ch
 

m
ay

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
in

 u
se

 a
s 

a 
pu

b)
 w

ou
ld

 
re

m
ai

n.

14
78

6
O

bj
ec

t
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

P
ag

e 
41

 o
f 5

6

Page 453



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

4.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
rin

ci
pl

es

P
ro

po
sa

ls
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

ot
he

r 
C

la
ss

 A
 u

se
s 

w
hi

ch
 w

er
e 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 in

 a
 C

la
ss

 A
4 

pu
b 

us
e

A
ct

io
n

U
se

 L
P

A
 p

ow
er

s 
to

 m
ak

e 
A

rt
ic

le
 4

 D
ire

ct
io

ns
 to

 
re

m
ov

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t r

ig
ht

s.
C

ou
nc

il 
co

ul
d 

m
ak

e 
a 

D
ire

ct
io

n 
w

hi
ch

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
pl

an
ni

ng
 c

on
se

nt
 to

 b
e 

ob
ta

in
ed

 fo
r 

an
y 

ch
an

ge
 o

f 
us

e 
aw

ay
 fr

om
 A

4 
(a

nd
, i

nd
ee

d,
 to

 d
em

ol
is

h 
a 

pu
b 

no
t 

in
 a

 li
st

ed
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

or
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ar
ea

).
C

ou
nc

ils
 a

re
 r

el
uc

ta
nt

 to
 u

se
 A

rt
ic

le
 4

 D
ire

ct
io

ns
 

be
ca

us
e 

of
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l l

ia
bi

lit
y 

to
 p

ay
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

to
 o

w
ne

rs
 a

ffe
ct

ed
 b

y 
a 

D
ire

ct
io

n.
 T

he
 T

ow
n 

an
d 

C
ou

nt
ry

 P
la

nn
in

g 
(D

ev
el

op
m

en
t)

(E
ng

la
nd

)
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 a

llo
w

 L
P

A
s 

to
 a

vo
id

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
ris

ks
 

by
 g

iv
in

g 
12

 m
on

th
s 

no
tic

e 
of

 a
 D

ire
ct

io
n 

co
m

in
g 

in
to

 
fo

rc
e.

-Y
or

k 
an

d 
M

an
ch

es
te

r 
ha

ve
 m

ad
e 

D
ire

ct
io

ns
.

T
he

 IP
P

G
 s

ee
ks

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

by
 

re
qu

iri
ng

 a
 s

et
 o

f c
rit

er
ia

 to
 b

e 
m

et
, p

rio
r 

to
 a

ny
 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

 b
ei

ng
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 c
ha

ng
e 

of
 u

se
 o

r 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

 T
he

 o
nl

y 
w

ay
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 th
is

 w
ou

ld
 

be
 m

ak
e 

an
 A

rt
ic

le
 4

 d
ire

ct
io

n 
to

 r
em

ov
e 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t r
ig

ht
s 

in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f c
ha

ng
in

g 
fr

om
 u

se
 

cl
as

s 
A

4 
to

 A
3,

 A
2 

or
 A

1.
  P

ut
tin

g 
A

rt
ic

le
 4

 d
ire

ct
io

ns
 

in
 p

la
ce

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
a 

se
pa

ra
te

 le
ga

l p
ro

ce
ss

 to
 th

at
 o

f 
th

e 
IP

P
G

, w
ith

 c
on

se
qu

en
t r

es
ou

rc
es

 im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

.  
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 c

on
si

de
r 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

in
tr

od
uc

e 
A

rt
ic

le
 4

 d
ire

ct
io

ns
 to

 p
ro

te
ct

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s.

10
17

7 
- 

C
am

br
id

ge
 &

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
B

ra
nc

h 
of

 th
e 

C
am

pa
ig

n 
fo

r 
R

ea
l 

A
le

 (
C

A
M

R
A

)

O
bj

ec
t

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
in

tr
od

uc
e 

A
rt

ic
le

 4
 d

ire
ct

io
ns

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s.

T
ha

t '
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t m
an

ag
em

en
t p

rin
ci

pl
es

' s
ho

ul
d 

be
 

'D
ev

el
op

m
en

t M
an

ag
em

en
t P

rin
ci

pl
es

' i
n 

or
de

r 
th

at
 

it'
s 

cl
ea

r 
it 

re
fe

rs
 to

 th
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 in

 s
ec

tio
n 

4.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
he

 fi
na

l s
ec

tio
n 

of
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 4
.1

4 
w

ill
 b

e 
am

en
de

d 
to

 r
ea

d 
"A

ny
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 to
 c

on
ve

rt
 o

r 
re

de
ve

lo
p 

a 
fo

rm
er

 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
 (

as
 li

st
ed

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
5 

of
 th

is
 IP

P
G

) 
si

nc
e 

co
nv

er
te

d 
to

 a
 d

iff
er

en
t '

A
' u

se
 to

 a
 n

on
-A

 u
se

, 
w

ill
 s

til
l b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

ab
ov

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

M
an

ag
em

en
t P

rin
ci

pl
es

."

86
61

 -
 C

am
br

id
ge

 P
as

t, 
P

re
se

nt
 

an
d 

F
ut

ur
e

O
bj

ec
t

A
m

en
d 

th
e 

fin
al

 s
ec

tio
n 

of
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 4
.1

4 
 to

 r
ea

d 
"A

ny
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 to
 c

on
ve

rt
 o

r 
re

de
ve

lo
p 

a 
fo

rm
er

 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
 (

as
 li

st
ed

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
5 

of
 th

is
 IP

P
G

) 
si

nc
e 

co
nv

er
te

d 
to

 a
 d

iff
er

en
t '

A
' u

se
 to

 a
 n

on
-A

 
us

e,
 w

ill
 s

til
l b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

ab
ov

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

M
an

ag
em

en
t P

rin
ci

pl
es

."

P
ar

a 
4.

9 
- 

4.
13

R
ec

en
t (

co
nf

irm
ed

 in
 J

ul
y 

as
 c

om
in

g 
in

to
 fo

rc
e 

fr
om

 
O

ct
 1

2)
 r

el
ax

at
io

n 
of

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t r

ig
ht

s 
by

 
ce

nt
ra

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t m

ea
n 

th
at

 lo
ss

 o
f b

ui
ld

in
gs

 fr
om

 
A

1/
A

2 
cl

as
s 

us
e 

fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l C

3 
pu

rp
os

es
 is

 e
as

ie
r.

H
ow

 c
an

 th
is

 b
e 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
th

ou
gh

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

co
nt

ro
l g

ui
da

nc
e 

he
re

?

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

as
su

m
es

 th
at

 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

to
 th

e 
ch

an
ge

 to
 p

er
m

itt
ed

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
rig

ht
s 

co
nc

er
ns

 th
e 

ab
ili

ty
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 tw
o 

ra
th

er
 th

an
 

on
e 

fla
t a

bo
ve

 a
n 

A
1 

or
 A

2 
pr

em
is

es
.  

T
hi

s 
is

 n
ot

 
re

le
va

nt
 to

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 a

s 
th

e 
A

1 
or

 A
2 

us
e 

(w
hi

ch
 

m
ay

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
in

 u
se

 a
s 

a 
pu

b)
 w

ou
ld

 
re

m
ai

n.

14
86

0 
- 

O
ld

 C
he

st
er

to
n 

R
es

id
en

ts
' A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
O

bj
ec

t
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

T
hi

s 
ap

pe
ar

s 
to

 b
e 

a 
lo

op
ho

le
 in

 th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 la
w

 
w

hi
ch

 d
ev

el
op

er
s 

ex
pl

oi
t i

n 
or

de
r 

to
 g

et
 r

ou
nd

 th
e 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f l
eg

is
la

tio
n 

to
 p

ro
te

ct
 p

ub
s,

 th
us

 
is

 a
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 p
ol

ic
y.

S
up

po
rt

 n
ot

ed
.

14
07

2
S

up
po

rt
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

P
ub

s 
ne

ed
 to

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 m

ov
e 

in
to

 a
nd

 o
ut

 o
f 

re
st

au
ra

nt
 u

se
. H

ow
ev

er
 c

ha
ng

e 
to

 h
ou

si
ng

 r
em

ov
es

 
th

is
 o

pt
io

n 
an

d 
th

is
 m

us
t b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

st
ric

t p
la

nn
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  U
nf

or
tu

na
te

ly
, t

he
 U

se
 C

la
ss

es
 

O
rd

er
 d

oe
s 

no
t a

llo
w

 s
ite

 to
 r

ev
er

t b
ac

k 
to

 th
ei

r 
pr

ev
io

us
 u

se
 a

s 
a 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

.  
P

la
nn

in
g 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

fo
r 

th
is

 p
ro

ce
ss

.

12
87

1
S

up
po

rt
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

P
ag

e 
42

 o
f 5

6

Page 454



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

4.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
rin

ci
pl

es

P
ro

po
sa

ls
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

ot
he

r 
C

la
ss

 A
 u

se
s 

w
hi

ch
 w

er
e 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 in

 a
 C

la
ss

 A
4 

pu
b 

us
e

A
ct

io
n

T
he

 a
bi

lit
y 

to
 r

ei
ns

ta
te

 p
re

m
is

es
 th

at
 w

er
e 

fo
rm

er
ly

 
pu

bs
, w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
be

en
 u

nd
er

 s
om

e 
ot

he
r 

us
e,

 a
s 

pu
bs

, i
s 

es
se

nt
ia

l. 
 U

nd
er

 n
ew

 m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

w
ha

t 
w

as
 fo

rm
er

ly
 a

 fa
ilu

re
, m

ay
 b

e 
a 

su
cc

es
s,

 a
nd

 th
is

 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
.

S
up

po
rt

 n
ot

ed
.

68
79

S
up

po
rt

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

ag
re

e 
pr

op
os

al
s

S
up

po
rt

 n
ot

ed
.

88
07

S
up

po
rt

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

F
le

xi
bi

lit
y 

to
 a

llo
w

 r
ev

er
si

on
 to

 p
ub

 u
se

 is
 h

ig
hl

y 
de

si
ra

bl
e,

 in
 th

e 
rig

ht
 e

co
no

m
ic

 c
on

di
tio

ns
.

S
up

po
rt

 n
ot

ed
.

69
45

S
up

po
rt

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

P
ag

e 
43

 o
f 5

6

Page 455



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

5.
 L

is
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
F

or
m

er
 P

ub
 S

ite
s

5.
 L

is
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
F

or
m

er
 P

ub
 S

ite
s

A
ct

io
n

5.
 L

is
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
F

or
m

er
 P

ub
 S

ite
s

5.
 L

is
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
F

or
m

er
 P

ub
 S

ite
s

In
cl

ud
e 

F
le

ur
 (

de
 L

ys
) 

on
 'I

m
po

rt
an

t L
oc

al
 C

om
m

un
ity

 
F

ac
ili

ty
' l

is
t b

ec
au

se
 th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 c

on
se

nt
 fo

r 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l u
se

 h
as

 n
ot

 y
et

 b
ee

n 
im

pl
em

en
te

d.
 If

 th
e 

pl
an

s 
fa

ll 
th

ro
ug

h,
 w

e 
w

ou
ld

 li
ke

 th
e 

po
ss

ib
ili

ty
 o

f i
t 

re
tu

rn
in

g 
as

 a
 p

ub
 to

 b
e 

sa
fe

gu
ar

de
d.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  W
hi

le
 th

e 
lo

ss
 o

f t
he

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

 
m

ay
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
n 

is
su

e 
at

 th
e 

tim
e 

of
 th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 d

ec
is

io
n,

 th
e 

lo
ss

 o
f a

 p
ub

 o
r 

a 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

pu
b 

is
 n

ow
 a

 c
on

ce
rn

.  
T

he
re

fo
re

, t
he

 IP
P

G
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 to

 a
ny

 n
ew

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
th

at
 

in
vo

lv
es

 th
e 

lo
ss

 o
f a

 p
ub

 s
ite

 (
au

di
te

d)
 d

es
pi

te
 it

 
al

re
ad

y 
ha

vi
ng

 a
n 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
er

m
is

si
on

.
T

he
 F

le
ur

 d
e 

Ly
s 

is
 n

ow
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

lis
t o

f 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

ed
 P

ub
s 

at
 S

ec
tio

n 
5 

of
 th

e 
IP

P
G

.

10
21

6 
- 

C
am

br
id

ge
 &

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
B

ra
nc

h 
of

 th
e 

C
am

pa
ig

n 
fo

r 
R

ea
l 

A
le

 (
C

A
M

R
A

)

O
bj

ec
t

In
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

F
le

ur
 d

e 
Ly

s 
in

 th
e 

lis
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 
P

ub
s 

at
 S

ec
tio

n 
5 

of
 th

e 
IP

P
G

.

C
on

ce
rn

 fo
r,

 a
nd

 c
on

fu
se

d 
ab

ou
t t

he
 fa

te
 o

f t
he

 F
ly

in
g 

P
ig

. P
ub

lic
 c

om
m

en
ta

ry
 (

C
am

br
id

ge
 e

ve
ni

ng
 n

ew
s,

 
20

08
 o

nw
ar

d 
an

d 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

of
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

20
12

) 
su

gg
es

t p
ro

po
sa

l i
s 

co
nt

ra
ry

 to
 th

e 
lit

er
al

 a
nd

 c
om

m
on

ly
 u

nd
er

st
oo

d 
m

ea
ni

ng
 o

f t
he

 w
or

d 
're

te
nt

io
n'

.

T
he

 F
ly

in
g 

P
ig

 is
 a

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l e

ga
lit

ar
ia

n 
pu

b;
 th

e 
at

m
os

ph
er

e 
is

 n
ot

 s
im

pl
y 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 th

e 
br

oa
d 

sp
ec

tr
um

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 d

rin
k 

th
er

e.
T

he
 fa

br
ic

 o
f t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

an
d 

th
os

e 
w

ho
 u

se
 it

 a
re

 
in

tim
at

el
y 

in
te

rt
w

in
ed

.
P

at
en

tly
 a

bs
ur

d 
to

 s
ug

ge
st

 th
at

 a
 s

im
ila

r 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
co

ul
d 

be
 c

on
tr

iv
ed

 in
 a

 r
ed

ev
el

op
ed

 b
ui

ld
in

g.
 

W
hy

 n
ot

 v
al

ue
 it

s 
au

th
en

tic
ity

 a
nd

 o
rig

in
al

ity
?

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 a
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

06
/0

55
2/

F
U

L 
fo

r 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 m
ix

ed
 u

se
 s

ch
em

e 
co

m
pr

is
in

g 
15

6 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l u
ni

ts
 (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
40

%
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

);
 

B
1 

of
fic

e 
us

e;
 r

et
ai

l /
 fo

od
 a

nd
 d

rin
k 

(C
la

ss
es

 A
1;

 A
3 

an
d 

A
4 

us
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 r

et
en

tio
n 

of
 'F

ly
in

g 
P

ig
' 

P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

),
 a

nd
 n

ew
 c

om
m

un
ity

 u
se

, t
og

et
he

r 
w

ith
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
ba

se
m

en
t c

ar
 p

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ci
ng

; 
am

en
ity

 s
pa

ce
 (

ex
te

rn
al

 a
nd

 in
te

rn
al

) 
w

ith
 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 h

ar
d 

an
d 

so
ft 

la
nd

sc
ap

in
g;

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
re

-
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

w
ar

 m
em

or
ia

l a
nd

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f p
ub

lic
 

ar
t r

es
pe

ct
iv

el
y.

  A
s 

P
ha

se
 1

 o
f t

hi
s 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t, 
th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 r

em
ai

ns
 e

xt
an

t. 
 W

hi
ls

t t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
its

el
f 

m
ay

 n
ot

 r
em

ai
n,

 th
is

 p
la

nn
in

g 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 d
oe

s 
sa

fe
gu

ar
d 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

 u
se

.

15
90

2
O

bj
ec

t
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

W
e 

w
ou

ld
 a

ls
o 

co
nc

ur
 w

ith
 th

e 
su

pp
lie

d 
lis

t o
f P

ub
s 

m
is

si
ng

 fr
om

 th
e 

lis
t, 

de
ta

ile
d 

by
 C

A
M

R
A

 in
 th

ei
r 

su
bm

is
si

on
.

4 
ex

is
tin

g 
pu

bs
 (

th
e 

B
ird

, W
re

st
le

rs
, C

la
re

nd
on

 A
rm

s 
an

d 
M

an
 o

n 
th

e 
M

oo
n)

 o
m

itt
ed

 a
nd

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

ad
de

d 
in

.
A

dd
 B

ird
 a

nd
 C

la
re

nd
on

 to
 'E

dg
e 

of
 C

ity
 C

lu
st

er
' l

is
t

W
re

st
le

rs
 a

nd
 M

an
 o

n 
th

e 
M

oo
n 

to
 'I

m
po

rt
an

t L
oc

al
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 F

ac
ili

ty
' l

is
t.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
he

 B
ird

 in
 H

an
d,

 C
la

re
nd

on
 A

rm
s 

an
d 

T
he

 M
an

 o
n 

th
e 

M
oo

n 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

in
cl

ud
ed

 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

ed
ge

 o
f c

ity
 c

lu
st

er
 c

at
eg

or
y 

on
 th

e 
Li

st
 o

f 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

ed
 E

xi
st

in
g 

an
d 

F
or

m
er

 P
ub

 s
ite

s.
  T

he
 

W
re

st
le

rs
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

in
cl

ud
ed

 a
s 

a 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
S

ub
ur

ba
n 

P
ub

 o
n 

th
e 

Li
st

 o
f S

af
eg

ua
rd

ed
 E

xi
st

in
g 

an
d 

F
or

m
er

 P
ub

 s
ite

s.

11
97

3 
- 

C
am

br
id

ge
 P

as
t, 

P
re

se
nt

 
an

d 
F

ut
ur

e
O

bj
ec

t
In

cl
ud

e 
T

he
 B

ird
 in

 H
an

d,
 C

la
re

nd
on

 A
rm

s 
an

d 
T

he
 

M
an

 o
n 

th
e 

M
oo

n 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

ed
ge

 o
f c

ity
 c

lu
st

er
 

ca
te

go
ry

 o
n 

th
e 

Li
st

 o
f S

af
eg

ua
rd

ed
 E

xi
st

in
g 

an
d 

F
or

m
er

 P
ub

 s
ite

s.
  I

nc
lu

de
 T

he
 W

re
st

le
rs

 a
s 

a 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
ub

ur
ba

n 
P

ub
 o

n 
th

e 
Li

st
 o

f 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

ed
 E

xi
st

in
g 

an
d 

F
or

m
er

 P
ub

 s
ite

s.

P
ag

e 
44

 o
f 5

6

Page 456



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

5.
 L

is
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
F

or
m

er
 P

ub
 S

ite
s

5.
 L

is
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
F

or
m

er
 P

ub
 S

ite
s

A
ct

io
n

W
e 

w
ou

ld
 a

ls
o 

co
nc

ur
 w

ith
 th

e 
su

pp
lie

d 
lis

t o
f P

ub
s 

m
is

si
ng

 fr
om

 th
e 

lis
t, 

de
ta

ile
d 

by
 C

A
M

R
A

 in
 th

ei
r 

su
bm

is
si

on
.

In
cl

ud
e 

F
le

ur
 (

de
 L

ys
) 

on
 'I

m
po

rt
an

t L
oc

al
 C

om
m

un
ity

 
F

ac
ili

ty
' l

is
t b

ec
au

se
 th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 c

on
se

nt
 fo

r 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l u
se

 h
as

 n
ot

 y
et

 b
ee

n 
im

pl
em

en
te

d.
 If

 th
e 

pl
an

s 
fa

ll 
th

ro
ug

h,
 w

e 
w

ou
ld

 li
ke

 th
e 

po
ss

ib
ili

ty
 o

f i
t 

re
tu

rn
in

g 
as

 a
 p

ub
 to

 b
e 

sa
fe

gu
ar

de
d.

 C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  W
hi

le
 th

e 
lo

ss
 o

f t
he

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

 
m

ay
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
n 

is
su

e 
at

 th
e 

tim
e 

of
 th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 d

ec
is

io
n,

 th
e 

lo
ss

 o
f a

 p
ub

 o
r 

a 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

pu
b 

is
 n

ow
 a

 c
on

ce
rn

.  
T

he
re

fo
re

, t
he

 IP
P

G
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 to

 a
ny

 n
ew

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
th

at
 

in
vo

lv
es

 th
e 

lo
ss

 o
f a

 p
ub

 s
ite

 (
au

di
te

d)
 d

es
pi

te
 it

 
al

re
ad

y 
ha

vi
ng

 a
n 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
er

m
is

si
on

. 
T

he
 F

le
ur

 d
e 

Ly
s 

is
 n

ow
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

lis
t o

f 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

ed
 P

ub
s 

at
 S

ec
tio

n 
5 

of
 th

e 
IP

P
G

.

11
98

2 
- 

C
am

br
id

ge
 P

as
t, 

P
re

se
nt

 
an

d 
F

ut
ur

e
O

bj
ec

t
In

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
F

le
ur

 d
e 

Ly
s 

in
 th

e 
lis

t o
f S

af
eg

ua
rd

ed
 

P
ub

s 
at

 S
ec

tio
n 

5 
of

 th
e 

IP
P

G
.

In
 s

pi
te

 o
f t

he
 N

P
P

F
's

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
n 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
as

 a
 lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

 r
es

ou
rc

e,
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ol
ic

ie
s 

sh
ou

ld
 r

ec
og

ni
se

 th
e 

re
al

ity
 th

at
 

fa
ce

 m
an

y 
pu

bs
 in

 r
el

at
iv

el
y 

is
ol

at
ed

 lo
ca

tio
ns

 o
n 

su
bu

rb
an

 e
st

at
es

.  
Lo

ca
l i

ni
tia

tiv
es

 c
ou

ld
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 
fu

tu
re

 fo
r 

so
m

e 
of

 th
es

e 
pu

bs
 a

s 
co

m
m

un
ity

 p
ub

s.
  

H
ow

ev
er

, i
t s

ho
ul

d 
be

 r
ec

og
ni

se
d 

th
at

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
su

bu
rb

an
 p

ub
s 

th
at

 a
re

 n
ot

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

ly
 v

ia
bl

e,
 a

re
 

no
t r

es
pe

ct
ed

 o
r 

us
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
, a

nd
 

w
ho

se
 c

lo
su

re
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t f

or
 o

th
er

 u
se

s 
w

ou
ld

 
be

 r
eg

ar
de

d 
lo

ca
lly

 a
s 

be
ne

fic
ia

l. 
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ol
ic

ie
s 

sh
ou

ld
 n

ot
 s

ee
k 

to
 p

ro
te

ct
 s

uc
h 

pu
bs

.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

 T
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 c
at

eg
or

ie
s 

be
tte

r 
re

fle
ct

 th
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

th
an

 th
e 

ca
te

go
rie

s 
pr

op
os

ed
. T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
re

co
gn

is
es

 th
at

 
so

m
e 

su
bu

rb
an

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s 
m

ay
 s

tr
ug

gl
e 

w
ith

 
vi

ab
lit

y,
 th

e 
IP

P
G

 r
et

ai
ns

 fl
ex

ib
ili

ty
 to

 a
llo

w
 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f s

ite
s 

w
he

re
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 c

rit
er

ia
 

ar
e 

m
et

.

14
82

2 
- 

C
ha

rle
s 

W
el

ls
 L

td
O

bj
ec

t
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

T
he

 O
sb

or
ne

 A
rm

s,
 in

 c
on

tr
as

t t
o 

th
e 

F
ly

in
g 

P
ig

, h
as

 
ne

ve
r 

pl
ay

ed
 a

n 
im

po
rt

an
t c

om
m

un
ity

 o
r 

in
de

ed
 

ec
on

om
ic

 r
ol

e 
by

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
in

g 
to

 th
e 

vi
ta

lit
y 

an
d 

vi
br

an
cy

 o
f t

he
 lo

ca
l a

re
a.

 T
he

 r
et

en
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

F
ly

in
g 

P
ig

 w
ill

 a
ch

ie
ve

 th
es

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

.
R

et
en

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
O

sb
or

ne
 A

rm
s 

is
 n

ot
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
ly

 
vi

ab
le

, e
ve

n 
as

 a
 fr

ee
 h

ou
se

, g
iv

en
 it

s 
pr

ox
im

ity
 to

 th
e 

F
ly

in
g 

P
ig

.
B

ot
h 

pu
bs

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 r

em
ov

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

lis
t.

A
 'n

ew
' a

nd
 im

pr
ov

ed
 F

ly
in

g 
P

ig
 is

 to
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 in

 
th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t s

ch
em

e.
 T

he
 o

pe
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f t
hi

s 
pu

b 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

gr
ee

d 
in

 p
rin

ci
pl

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
te

na
nt

s.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  W
hi

le
 th

e 
lo

ss
 o

f t
he

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

 
m

ay
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
n 

is
su

e 
at

 th
e 

tim
e 

of
 th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 d

ec
is

io
n,

 th
e 

lo
ss

 o
f a

 p
ub

 o
r 

a 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

pu
b 

is
 n

ow
 a

 c
on

ce
rn

.  
T

he
re

fo
re

, t
he

 IP
P

G
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 to

 a
ny

 n
ew

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
th

at
 

in
vo

lv
es

 th
e 

lo
ss

 o
f a

 p
ub

 s
ite

 (
au

di
te

d)
 d

es
pi

te
 it

 
al

re
ad

y 
ha

vi
ng

 a
n 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
er

m
is

si
on

.

11
83

3 
- 

M
et

ro
po

lis
pd

O
bj

ec
t

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

P
ag

e 
45

 o
f 5

6

Page 457



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

5.
 L

is
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
F

or
m

er
 P

ub
 S

ite
s

5.
 L

is
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
F

or
m

er
 P

ub
 S

ite
s

A
ct

io
n

G
re

yh
ou

nd
 is

 th
e 

on
ly

 o
ne

 in
 it

s 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

m
an

y 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

in
 C

ol
dh

am
s 

La
ne

 a
nd

 a
dj

oi
ni

ng
 

st
re

et
s 

fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 th

is
 is

 th
e 

m
os

t a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

pu
b.

 
In

cl
ud

e 
on

 'I
m

po
rt

an
t L

oc
al

 C
om

m
un

ity
 F

ac
ili

ty
' l

is
t.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 G
re

yh
ou

nd
 P

ub
lic

 
H

ou
se

 h
as

 r
ec

en
tly

 b
ee

n 
th

e 
su

bj
ec

t o
f a

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

12
/0

25
5/

F
U

L 
fo

r 
th

e 
de

m
ol

iti
on

 o
f t

he
 

bu
ild

in
g 

an
d 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t w

ith
 a

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 
tw

o 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 u

ni
ts

 in
 B

1/
B

2/
B

8 
U

se
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
tr

ad
e 

co
un

te
rs

.  
T

he
 G

re
yh

ou
nd

 P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 h
as

 
be

en
 c

lo
se

d 
fr

om
 s

om
e 

tim
e,

 a
nd

 is
 s

itu
at

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ed

ge
 o

f a
n 

in
du

st
ria

l a
re

a 
an

d 
a 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
a,

 
w

ith
 C

ol
dh

am
s 

La
ne

 s
ep

ar
at

in
g 

th
e 

tw
o.

  T
he

 P
ub

lic
 

H
ou

se
 s

its
 o

n 
th

e 
in

du
st

ria
l s

id
e 

of
 C

ol
dh

am
s 

La
ne

, 
w

ith
 th

e 
bu

sy
 r

oa
d 

se
gr

eg
at

in
g 

th
e 

P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 
fr

om
 th

e 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

a.
  D

ue
 to

 it
s 

po
si

tio
ni

ng
, t

he
 

P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 w
as

 n
ot

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 

co
m

m
un

ity
, a

nd
 w

as
 n

ot
 th

er
ef

or
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 to

 b
e 

a 
va

lu
ed

 fa
ci

lit
y,

 w
hi

ch
 m

et
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

's
 d

ay
-t

o-
da

y 
ne

ed
s.

11
96

8 
- 

C
am

br
id

ge
 &

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
B

ra
nc

h 
of

 th
e 

C
am

pa
ig

n 
fo

r 
R

ea
l 

A
le

 (
C

A
M

R
A

)

O
bj

ec
t

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

T
he

 P
en

ny
 F

er
ry

 o
th

er
 C

he
st

er
to

n 
pu

bs
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
pr

ot
ec

te
d 

fr
om

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
S

pa
de

 &
 B

ec
ke

tt 
/ L

a 
M

im
os

a 
ne

ed
s 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n

C
on

ce
rn

 n
ot

ed
. T

he
 P

en
ny

 F
er

ry
 a

nd
 F

le
ur

 d
e 

Ly
s 

ar
e 

no
w

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
lis

t o
f S

af
eg

ua
rd

ed
 P

ub
s 

at
 

S
ec

tio
n 

5 
of

 th
e 

IP
P

G
.  

T
he

 S
pa

de
 &

 B
uc

ke
t/L

a 
M

im
os

a 
is

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

to
 b

e 
a 

lo
ng

 s
ta

nd
in

g 
co

nv
er

si
on

.  
T

he
 IP

P
G

 in
cl

ud
es

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 m
or

e 
re

ce
nt

 c
on

ve
rs

io
ns

.  
T

o 
be

 r
ob

us
t, 

th
e 

IP
P

G
 n

ee
ds

 
to

 r
ef

le
ct

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t m

ar
ke

t.

12
91

6
O

bj
ec

t
In

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
P

en
ny

 F
er

ry
 a

nd
 F

le
ur

 d
e 

Ly
s 

in
 th

e 
lis

t 
of

 S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 P
ub

s 
at

 S
ec

tio
n 

5 
of

 th
e 

IP
P

G
.

T
he

 P
en

ny
 F

er
ry

/P
ik

e 
an

d 
E

el
 p

ub
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 li
st

ed
  

as
 a

 "
C

ity
 c

en
tr

e,
 r

iv
er

si
de

 o
r 

vi
lla

ge
 p

ub
 a

nd
 b

ar
 s

ite
s 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
an

 im
po

rt
an

t e
co

no
m

ic
 a

nd
 to

ur
is

t f
un

ct
io

n"
 

an
d 

al
so

 a
s 

a 
"P

ub
 S

ite
s 

w
ith

in
 e

dg
e 

of
 c

ity
 c

lu
st

er
s 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
an

 im
po

rt
an

t c
ity

 w
id

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l 

co
m

m
un

ity
 fu

nc
tio

n.
"

C
on

ce
rn

 n
ot

ed
. T

he
 P

en
ny

 F
er

ry
 is

 n
ow

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 

th
e 

lis
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 P
ub

s 
at

 S
ec

tio
n 

5 
of

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 (

C
ity

 c
en

tr
e,

 r
iv

er
si

de
 o

r 
vi

lla
ge

 p
ub

 a
nd

 b
ar

 
si

te
s 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
an

 im
po

rt
an

t e
co

no
m

ic
 a

nd
 to

ur
is

t 
fu

nc
tio

n)
.

14
78

7
O

bj
ec

t
In

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
P

en
ny

 F
er

ry
 in

 th
e 

lis
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 
P

ub
s 

at
 S

ec
tio

n 
5 

of
 th

e 
IP

P
G

.

W
e 

w
ou

ld
 a

ls
o 

co
nc

ur
 w

ith
 th

e 
su

pp
lie

d 
lis

t o
f P

ub
s 

m
is

si
ng

 fr
om

 th
e 

lis
t, 

de
ta

ile
d 

by
 C

A
M

R
A

 in
 th

ei
r 

su
bm

is
si

on
.

R
os

em
ar

y 
B

ra
nc

h 
is

 th
e 

on
ly

 p
ub

 in
 th

e 
no

rt
he

rn
 p

ar
t 

of
 C

he
rr

y 
H

in
to

n 
an

d 
is

, f
or

 m
an

y 
lo

ca
l r

es
id

en
ts

, b
y 

fa
r 

th
ei

r 
cl

os
es

t p
ub

. '
Im

po
rt

an
t L

oc
al

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

F
ac

ili
ty

' l
is

t.

C
on

ce
rn

 n
ot

ed
. T

he
 R

os
em

ar
y 

B
ra

nc
h 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
Li

st
 o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
F

or
m

er
 P

ub
 S

ite
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
su

b-
ca

te
go

ry
 o

f P
ub

 
S

ite
s 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
an

 im
po

rt
an

t L
oc

al
 C

om
m

un
ity

 
F

ac
ili

ty
 in

 S
ub

ur
ba

n 
A

re
as

.

11
97

8 
- 

C
am

br
id

ge
 P

as
t, 

P
re

se
nt

 
an

d 
F

ut
ur

e
O

bj
ec

t
In

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
R

os
em

ar
y 

B
ra

nc
h 

in
 th

e 
Li

st
 o

f 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

ed
 E

xi
st

in
g 

an
d 

F
or

m
er

 P
ub

 S
ite

s 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
su

b-
ca

te
go

ry
 o

f P
ub

 S
ite

s 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

an
 

im
po

rt
an

t L
oc

al
 C

om
m

un
ity

 F
ac

ili
ty

 in
 S

ub
ur

ba
n 

A
re

as
.

Is
 th

er
e 

no
th

in
g 

th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

do
ne

 to
 s

av
e 

th
e 

P
en

ny
 

F
er

ry
, f

or
m

er
ly

 P
ik

e 
an

d 
E

el
?

C
on

ce
rn

 n
ot

ed
. T

he
 P

en
ny

 F
er

ry
 is

 n
ow

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 

th
e 

lis
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 P
ub

s 
at

 S
ec

tio
n 

5 
of

 th
e 

IP
P

G
.

68
76

O
bj

ec
t

In
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

P
en

ny
 F

er
ry

 in
 th

e 
lis

t o
f S

af
eg

ua
rd

ed
 

P
ub

s 
at

 S
ec

tio
n 

5 
of

 th
e 

IP
P

G
.

P
ag

e 
46

 o
f 5

6

Page 458



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

5.
 L

is
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
F

or
m

er
 P

ub
 S

ite
s

5.
 L

is
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
F

or
m

er
 P

ub
 S

ite
s

A
ct

io
n

T
he

 Z
eb

ra
 is

 in
 th

e 
lis

t o
f c

ur
re

nt
 p

ub
s 

bu
t i

t i
s 

cl
os

ed
. 

S
ho

ul
d 

it 
be

 in
 a

no
th

er
 ta

bl
e.

C
on

ce
rn

 n
ot

ed
.  

C
lo

se
d 

pu
bs

 a
re

 in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 

S
ec

tio
n 

5 
as

 th
er

e 
is

 p
ot

en
tia

l f
or

 th
em

 to
 r

eo
pe

n 
ei

th
er

 n
ow

 o
r 

in
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

.

70
36

 -
 F

rie
nd

s 
of

 M
id

su
m

m
er

 
C

om
m

on
O

bj
ec

t
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

T
he

 li
st

 o
f s

af
eg

ua
rd

ed
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
 s

ite
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ca

te
go

ris
ed

 u
nd

er
 th

re
e 

se
pa

ra
te

 c
at

eg
or

ie
s 

ye
t t

he
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t f

or
 d

em
on

st
ra

tin
g 

th
ei

r 
vi

ab
ili

ty
 in

 a
ll 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s 
is

 th
e 

sa
m

e.
T

hi
s 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 fa
ils

 to
 r

ec
og

ni
se

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s 
op

er
at

e 
un

de
r 

a 
si

ng
le

 U
se

 C
la

ss
, i

n 
w

hi
ch

 r
eg

ar
dl

es
s 

of
 a

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

's
 lo

ca
tio

n 
or

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 in

 p
la

nn
in

g 
te

rm
s 

al
l a

re
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

un
de

r 
U

se
 C

la
ss

 A
4 

D
rin

ki
ng

 
E

st
ab

lis
hm

en
ts

; w
ith

 n
o 

pl
an

ni
ng

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
ex

is
tin

g 
on

 
th

e 
w

ay
 in

 w
hi

ch
 a

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

 b
us

in
es

s 
op

er
at

in
g.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 th
re

e 
ca

te
go

rie
s 

of
 

pu
bs

 d
o 

no
t h

av
e 

an
y 

be
ar

in
g 

on
 h

ow
 th

e 
IP

P
G

 
op

er
at

es
. T

he
y 

ar
e 

si
m

pl
y 

th
er

e 
fo

r 
cl

as
si

fic
at

io
n 

pu
rp

os
es

, r
ec

og
ni

si
ng

 th
e 

na
tu

re
 o

f t
he

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 

pu
b 

in
 te

rm
s 

of
 lo

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
fu

nc
tio

n.

13
18

7 
- 

C
al

de
co

tte
 C

on
su

lta
nt

s
O

bj
ec

t
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

W
e 

be
lie

ve
 th

at
 th

e 
P

en
ny

 F
er

ry
/P

ik
e 

an
d 

E
el

 p
ub

 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

lis
te

d 
as

 a
 "

C
ity

 c
en

tr
e,

 r
iv

er
si

de
 o

r 
vi

lla
ge

 
pu

b 
an

d 
ba

r 
si

te
s 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
an

 im
po

rt
an

t e
co

no
m

ic
an

d 
to

ur
is

t f
un

ct
io

n"
 a

nd
 a

ls
o 

as
 a

 "
P

ub
 S

ite
s 

w
ith

in
 

ed
ge

 o
f c

ity
 c

lu
st

er
s 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
an

 im
po

rt
an

t c
ity

 w
id

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

 fu
nc

tio
n.

"

C
on

ce
rn

 n
ot

ed
. T

he
 P

en
ny

 F
er

ry
 is

 n
ow

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 

th
e 

lis
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 P
ub

s 
at

 S
ec

tio
n 

5 
of

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 (

ci
ty

 c
en

tr
e,

 r
iv

er
si

de
 o

r 
vi

lla
ge

 p
ub

 a
nd

 b
ar

 
si

te
s 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
an

d 
im

po
rt

an
t e

co
no

m
ic

 a
nd

 to
ur

is
t 

fu
nc

tio
n)

.

14
86

1 
- 

O
ld

 C
he

st
er

to
n 

R
es

id
en

ts
' A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
O

bj
ec

t
In

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
P

en
ny

 F
er

ry
 in

 th
e 

lis
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 
P

ub
s 

at
 S

ec
tio

n 
5 

of
 th

e 
IP

P
G

.

P
ag

e 
47

 o
f 5

6

Page 459



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

5.
 L

is
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
F

or
m

er
 P

ub
 S

ite
s

5.
 L

is
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
F

or
m

er
 P

ub
 S

ite
s

A
ct

io
n

W
e 

w
ou

ld
 a

ls
o 

co
nc

ur
 w

ith
 th

e 
su

pp
lie

d 
lis

t o
f P

ub
s 

m
is

si
ng

 fr
om

 th
e 

lis
t, 

de
ta

ile
d 

by
 C

A
M

R
A

 in
 th

ei
r 

su
bm

is
si

on
.

S
ho

ul
d 

in
cl

ud
e 

ot
he

r 
fo

rm
er

 p
ub

s 
co

nv
er

te
d 

to
 a

 
re

st
au

ra
nt

:
- 

O
ak

 B
is

tr
o 

(f
or

m
er

 O
ak

/L
aw

ye
rs

)
- 

La
 M

im
os

a 
(f

or
m

er
 S

pa
de

 &
 B

ec
ke

tt)
- 

B
ac

k 
S

tr
ee

t B
ra

ss
er

ie
 (

fo
rm

er
 W

hi
te

 H
ar

t)
- 

F
or

m
er

 L
oc

om
ot

iv
e 

(c
ur

re
nt

ly
 c

lo
se

 a
s 

a 
re

st
au

ra
nt

)
- 

S
pi

ce
 M

er
ch

an
t (

fo
rm

er
 V

ol
un

te
er

, T
ru

m
pi

ng
to

n)
- 

W
ok

'n
'G

ril
l, 

T
ru

m
pi

ng
to

n 
(f

or
m

er
 C

oa
ch

 &
 H

or
se

s)
- 

fo
rm

er
 D

ur
ha

m
 O

x,
 M

ill
 R

oa
d

- 
fo

rm
er

 G
lo

be
, N

ew
m

ar
ke

t R
oa

d
- 

fo
rm

er
 P

rin
ce

 o
f W

al
es

, H
is

to
n 

R
oa

d
- 

fo
rm

er
 L

itt
le

 R
os

e,
 T

ru
m

pi
ng

to
n 

S
tr

ee
t

- 
fo

rm
er

 R
ac

eh
or

se
, N

ew
m

ar
ke

t R
oa

d.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

 T
he

 s
ite

s 
re

fe
rr

ed
 to

 r
el

at
e 

to
 

fo
rm

er
 p

ub
s 

w
hi

ch
 b

ec
am

e 
re

st
au

ra
nt

s 
pr

io
r 

to
 

20
06

.  
U

nd
er

 th
e 

U
se

 C
la

ss
es

 O
rd

er
, p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
A

4 
us

es
 c

an
 c

ha
ng

e 
to

 h
ig

he
r 

or
de

r 
us

e 
cl

as
s 

(A
3,

 A
2 

or
 A

1)
 w

ith
ou

t n
ee

di
ng

 p
la

nn
in

g 
pe

rm
is

si
on

.  
T

ak
in

g 
th

e 
ca

se
 o

f a
 r

es
ta

ur
an

t i
n 

a 
fo

rm
er

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

 b
ui

ld
in

g,
 if

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

 
al

re
ad

y 
se

rv
ed

 fo
od

, i
t m

ay
 a

lre
ad

y 
ha

ve
 a

 k
itc

he
n 

w
ith

 e
xt

ra
ct

or
 fa

ns
.  

O
ve

r 
tim

e 
it 

m
ay

 b
e 

pe
rm

is
si

bl
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

pu
b 

to
 tu

rn
 in

to
 a

 r
es

ta
ur

an
t w

ith
ou

t f
or

m
al

ly
 

re
qu

iri
ng

 p
la

nn
in

g 
co

ns
en

t. 
 It

 is
 th

er
ef

or
e 

di
ffi

cu
lt 

to
 

de
te

rm
in

e 
w

he
n 

a 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
 c

ha
ng

ed
 in

to
 a

 
re

st
au

ra
nt

, u
nl

es
s 

so
m

e 
fo

rm
 o

f a
ud

it 
to

ok
 p

la
ce

 o
r 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
er

m
is

si
on

 w
as

 g
ra

nt
ed

, i
nd

ic
at

in
g 

a 
di

ffe
re

nt
 u

se
 w

as
 n

ow
 in

 o
pe

ra
tio

n.
  A

ne
cd

ot
al

 
ev

id
en

ce
 m

ay
 s

ug
ge

st
 w

he
n 

th
e 

ch
an

ge
 to

ok
 p

la
ce

, 
bu

t t
hi

s 
co

ul
d 

no
t b

e 
re

lie
d 

up
on

 to
 c

on
fir

m
 th

e 
da

te
 

of
 c

on
ve

rs
io

n.
  I

t i
s 

th
er

ef
or

e 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
w

he
n 

a 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
 c

ea
se

d 
be

in
g 

a 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
 

an
d 

ch
an

ge
 u

se
 le

gi
tim

at
el

y 
in

to
 a

 d
iff

er
en

t u
se

 
w

ith
ou

t p
la

nn
in

g 
pe

rm
is

si
on

.  
A

s 
su

ch
, i

t w
ou

ld
 

th
er

ef
or

e 
se

em
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
to

 o
nl

y 
ap

pl
y 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
to

 fu
tu

re
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 
fo

r 
th

os
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
au

di
te

d 
an

d 
on

 th
e 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 li
st

.  
T

hi
s 

is
su

e 
is

 c
ov

er
ed

 in
 n

ew
 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
2.

2 
of

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 w

hi
ch

 r
ea

ds
 "

T
he

 IP
P

G
 

gu
id

an
ce

 is
 to

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 p

re
m

is
es

 th
at

 w
er

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

in
 J

ul
y 

20
06

, t
he

 d
at

e 
w

he
n 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
w

as
 a

do
pt

ed
.  

T
hi

s 
en

su
re

s 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

an
d 

th
e 

N
P

P
F

.
B

ui
ld

in
gs

 th
at

 w
er

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

in
 J

ul
y 

20
06

 a
re

 
pr

es
en

t o
n 

th
e 

lis
t o

f s
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 p
ub

s 
at

 S
ec

tio
n 

5 
an

d 
al

l o
f t

he
se

 a
re

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 th

e 
IP

P
G

.  
T

hi
s 

lis
t 

in
cl

ud
es

 a
ny

 p
ub

s 
w

ith
 u

ni
m

pl
em

en
te

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

pe
rm

is
si

on
s 

an
d 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
th

es
e 

pu
bs

 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
IP

P
G

 
de

sp
ite

 th
e 

pr
es

en
ce

 o
f u

ni
m

pl
em

en
te

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

pe
rm

is
si

on
s 

fo
r 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

us
es

."

11
98

6 
- 

C
am

br
id

ge
 P

as
t, 

P
re

se
nt

 
an

d 
F

ut
ur

e
O

bj
ec

t
In

se
rt

 n
ew

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 2

.2
 to

 r
ea

d 
"T

he
 IP

P
G

 
gu

id
an

ce
 is

 to
 b

e 
ap

pl
ie

d 
to

 p
re

m
is

es
 th

at
 w

er
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
in

 J
ul

y 
20

06
, t

he
 d

at
e 

w
he

n 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t L
oc

al
 P

la
n 

w
as

 a
do

pt
ed

.  
T

hi
s 

en
su

re
s 

co
ns

is
te

nc
y 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

Lo
ca

l P
la

n 
an

d 
th

e 
N

P
P

F
.  

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 th

at
 w

er
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
in

 J
ul

y 
20

06
 a

re
 p

re
se

nt
 o

n 
th

e 
lis

t o
f s

af
eg

ua
rd

ed
 p

ub
s 

at
 

S
ec

tio
n 

5 
an

d 
al

l o
f t

he
se

 a
re

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 th

e 
IP

P
G

.
T

hi
s 

lis
t i

nc
lu

de
s 

an
y 

pu
bs

 w
ith

 u
ni

m
pl

em
en

te
d 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
er

m
is

si
on

s 
an

d 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 in

vo
lv

in
g 

th
es

e 
pu

bs
 w

ill
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 

th
e 

IP
P

G
 d

es
pi

te
 th

e 
pr

es
en

ce
 o

f u
ni

m
pl

em
en

te
d 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
er

m
is

si
on

s 
fo

r 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
us

es
."

P
en

ny
 F

er
ry

 a
pp

ea
l m

en
tio

ne
d 

pr
e-

da
te

d 
th

e 
N

P
P

F
 

an
d 

a 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
ar

ea
 n

ow
 c

ov
er

s 
th

e 
si

te
.  

sh
ou

ld
 

be
 'C

ity
 C

en
tr

e,
 R

iv
er

si
de

 ..
.' 

or
 'I

m
po

rt
an

t L
oc

al
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 F

ac
ili

ty
' c

at
eg

or
y.

C
on

ce
rn

 n
ot

ed
. T

he
 P

en
ny

 F
er

ry
 is

 n
ow

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 

th
e 

lis
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 P
ub

s 
at

 S
ec

tio
n 

5 
of

 th
e 

IP
P

G
.

10
20

8 
- 

C
am

br
id

ge
 &

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
B

ra
nc

h 
of

 th
e 

C
am

pa
ig

n 
fo

r 
R

ea
l 

A
le

 (
C

A
M

R
A

)

O
bj

ec
t

In
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

P
en

ny
 F

er
ry

 in
 th

e 
lis

t o
f S

af
eg

ua
rd

ed
 

P
ub

s 
at

 S
ec

tio
n 

5 
of

 th
e 

IP
P

G
.

P
ag

e 
48

 o
f 5

6

Page 460



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

5.
 L

is
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
F

or
m

er
 P

ub
 S

ite
s

5.
 L

is
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
F

or
m

er
 P

ub
 S

ite
s

A
ct

io
n

T
he

 P
en

ny
 F

er
ry

 is
 in

co
rr

ec
tly

 c
la

ss
ifi

ed
.

-T
he

 a
pp

ea
l w

as
 h

ea
rd

 in
 J

an
ua

ry
 w

he
n 

th
e 

N
P

P
F

 
w

as
 n

ot
 in

 fo
rc

e 
an

d 
th

e 
P

ub
 w

as
 n

ot
 in

 a
n 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

A
re

a.
 S

in
ce

 th
en

 th
e 

N
P

P
F

 h
as

 b
ee

n
fin

al
is

ed
 w

ith
 s

tr
on

g 
gu

id
an

ce
 w

ith
 r

eg
ar

d 
to

 p
ub

s,
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
no

n-
de

si
gn

at
ed

 h
er

ita
ge

 a
ss

et
s,

 a
nd

 fu
rt

he
r 

im
po

rt
an

t h
is

to
ric

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

is
 c

om
in

g 
to

 li
gh

t o
f 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
in

sp
ec

to
r 

w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

be
en

 u
na

w
ar

e.
-T

he
 P

ub
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 c
la

ss
ifi

ed
 a

s 
a 

'ri
ve

rs
id

e 
P

ub
 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
an

 im
po

rt
an

t e
co

no
m

ic
 a

nd
 to

ur
is

t f
un

ct
io

n'
.

C
on

ce
rn

 n
ot

ed
. T

he
 P

en
ny

 F
er

ry
 is

 n
ow

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 

th
e 

lis
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 P
ub

s 
at

 S
ec

tio
n 

5 
of

 th
e 

IP
P

G
.

86
65

 -
 C

am
br

id
ge

 P
as

t, 
P

re
se

nt
 

an
d 

F
ut

ur
e

O
bj

ec
t

In
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

P
en

ny
 F

er
ry

 in
 th

e 
lis

t o
f S

af
eg

ua
rd

ed
 

P
ub

s 
at

 S
ec

tio
n 

5 
of

 th
e 

IP
P

G
.

T
he

 R
os

em
ar

y 
B

ra
nc

h 
is

 in
co

rr
ec

tly
 c

la
ss

ifi
ed

.
-T

he
re

 a
re

 n
o 

ot
he

r 
pu

bs
 in

 th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 a
nd

 w
e 

w
ou

ld
 

ar
gu

e 
th

er
e 

is
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t e

no
ug

h 
an

d 
gr

ow
in

g 
lo

ca
l 

ca
tc

hm
en

t. 
H

ow
ev

er
, i

n 
th

e 
ev

en
t t

ha
t C

am
br

id
ge

 
E

as
t i

s 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

th
en

 th
er

e 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

an
 e

no
rm

ou
s 

po
te

nt
ia

l c
at

ch
m

en
t a

nd
 th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
pu

b 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 C

am
br

id
ge

 E
as

t A
re

a 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

(2
00

8)
.

-T
he

 P
ub

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 r

ec
la

ss
ifi

ed
 a

s 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

an
 

'Im
po

rt
an

t L
oc

al
 C

om
m

un
ity

F
ac

ili
ty

 in
 a

 S
ub

ur
ba

n 
A

re
a'

.

C
on

ce
rn

 n
ot

ed
. T

he
 R

os
em

ar
y 

B
ra

nc
h 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
Li

st
 o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
F

or
m

er
 P

ub
 S

ite
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
su

b-
ca

te
go

ry
 o

f P
ub

 
S

ite
s 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
an

 im
po

rt
an

t L
oc

al
 C

om
m

un
ity

 
F

ac
ili

ty
 in

 S
ub

ur
ba

n 
A

re
as

.

86
69

 -
 C

am
br

id
ge

 P
as

t, 
P

re
se

nt
 

an
d 

F
ut

ur
e

O
bj

ec
t

In
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

R
os

em
ar

y 
B

ra
nc

h 
in

 th
e 

Li
st

 o
f 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
F

or
m

er
 P

ub
 S

ite
s 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

su
b-

ca
te

go
ry

 o
f P

ub
 S

ite
s 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
an

 
im

po
rt

an
t L

oc
al

 C
om

m
un

ity
 F

ac
ili

ty
 in

 S
ub

ur
ba

n 
A

re
as

.

I n
ot

e 
w

ith
 r

eg
re

t t
ha

t t
he

 P
en

ny
 F

er
ry

/fo
rm

er
 P

ik
e 

an
d 

E
el

 is
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

fo
r 

de
m

ol
iti

on
. T

hi
s 

de
ci

si
on

 is
 

w
ro

ng
. P

le
as

e 
re

co
ns

id
er

. P
le

as
e 

se
e 

on
lin

e 
pe

tit
io

n 
an

d 
re

ad
 th

e 
re

as
on

s 
pe

op
le

 h
av

e 
gi

ve
n:

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.ip
et

iti
on

s.
co

m
/p

et
iti

on
/s

av
e-

th
e-

pe
nn

y-
fe

rr
y-

pu
b/

50
4 

si
gn

at
ur

es
 (

06
/0

8/
20

12
)

C
on

ce
rn

 n
ot

ed
. T

he
 P

en
ny

 F
er

ry
 is

 n
ow

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 

th
e 

lis
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 P
ub

s 
at

 S
ec

tio
n 

5 
of

 th
e 

IP
P

G
.

72
88

O
bj

ec
t

In
cl

ud
e 

T
he

 P
en

ny
 F

er
ry

 in
 th

e 
lis

t o
f S

af
eg

ua
rd

ed
 

P
ub

s 
at

 S
ec

tio
n 

5 
of

 th
e 

IP
P

G
.

R
os

em
ar

y 
B

ra
nc

h 
is

 th
e 

on
ly

 p
ub

 in
 th

e 
no

rt
he

rn
 p

ar
t 

of
 C

he
rr

y 
H

in
to

n 
an

d 
is

, f
or

 m
an

y 
lo

ca
l r

es
id

en
ts

, b
y 

fa
r 

th
ei

r 
cl

os
es

t p
ub

. '
Im

po
rt

an
t L

oc
al

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

F
ac

ili
ty

' l
is

t.

C
on

ce
rn

 n
ot

ed
. T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 a

m
en

d 
th

e 
IP

P
G

 s
o 

th
e 

"R
os

em
ar

y 
B

ra
nc

h"
 is

 m
ov

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
ub

ur
ba

n 
P

ub
 c

at
eg

or
y.

11
96

7 
- 

C
am

br
id

ge
 &

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
B

ra
nc

h 
of

 th
e 

C
am

pa
ig

n 
fo

r 
R

ea
l 

A
le

 (
C

A
M

R
A

)

O
bj

ec
t

M
ov

e 
th

e 
"R

os
em

ar
y 

B
ra

nc
h"

 in
to

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

S
ub

ur
ba

n 
P

ub
 c

at
eg

or
y.

4 
ex

is
tin

g 
pu

bs
 (

th
e 

B
ird

, W
re

st
le

rs
, C

la
re

nd
on

 A
rm

s 
an

d 
M

an
 o

n 
th

e 
M

oo
n)

 o
m

itt
ed

 a
nd

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

ad
de

d 
in

.
A

dd
 B

ird
 a

nd
 C

la
re

nd
on

 to
 'E

dg
e 

of
 C

ity
 C

lu
st

er
' l

is
t

W
re

st
le

rs
 a

nd
 M

an
 o

n 
th

e 
M

oo
n 

to
 'I

m
po

rt
an

t L
oc

al
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 F

ac
ili

ty
' l

is
t.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
he

 B
ird

 in
 H

an
d,

 C
la

re
nd

on
 A

rm
s 

an
d 

T
he

 M
an

 o
n 

th
e 

M
oo

n 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

in
cl

ud
ed

 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

ed
ge

 o
f c

ity
 c

lu
st

er
 c

at
eg

or
y 

on
 th

e 
Li

st
 o

f 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

ed
 E

xi
st

in
g 

an
d 

F
or

m
er

 P
ub

 s
ite

s.
  T

he
 

W
re

st
le

rs
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

in
cl

ud
ed

 a
s 

a 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
S

ub
ur

ba
n 

P
ub

 o
n 

th
e 

Li
st

 o
f S

af
eg

ua
rd

ed
 E

xi
st

in
g 

an
d 

F
or

m
er

 P
ub

 s
ite

s.

10
20

3 
- 

C
am

br
id

ge
 &

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
B

ra
nc

h 
of

 th
e 

C
am

pa
ig

n 
fo

r 
R

ea
l 

A
le

 (
C

A
M

R
A

)

O
bj

ec
t

In
cl

ud
e 

T
he

 B
ird

 in
 H

an
d,

 C
la

re
nd

on
 A

rm
s 

an
d 

T
he

 
M

an
 o

n 
th

e 
M

oo
n 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
ed

ge
 o

f c
ity

 c
lu

st
er

 
ca

te
go

ry
 o

n 
th

e 
Li

st
 o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
F

or
m

er
 P

ub
 s

ite
s.

  I
nc

lu
de

 T
he

 W
re

st
le

rs
 a

s 
a 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

ub
ur

ba
n 

P
ub

 o
n 

th
e 

Li
st

 o
f 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
F

or
m

er
 P

ub
 s

ite
s.

P
ag

e 
49

 o
f 5

6

Page 461



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

5.
 L

is
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
F

or
m

er
 P

ub
 S

ite
s

5.
 L

is
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
F

or
m

er
 P

ub
 S

ite
s

A
ct

io
n

T
he

 r
em

ai
ni

ng
 fo

rm
er

 p
ub

s 
w

he
re

 p
la

nn
in

g 
pe

rm
is

si
on

s 
ha

ve
 b

eg
un

 b
ec

om
e 

a 
se

pa
ra

te
 c

at
eg

or
y 

of
 "

F
or

m
er

 p
ub

s 
w

ho
se

 r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

re
ve

nt
s 

th
em

 
ev

er
 r

et
ur

ni
ng

 a
s 

a 
pu

b"
. H

ow
ev

er
, g

iv
en

 th
e 

sa
dl

y 
la

rg
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 o

th
er

 fo
rm

er
 p

ub
s 

w
hi

ch
 fa

ll 
w

ith
in

 
th

is
 d

ef
in

iti
on

, t
he

re
 m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
an

y 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 v
al

ue
 in

 
ha

vi
ng

 s
uc

h 
a 

lis
t (

bu
t i

f i
t i

s 
to

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

, t
he

n 
it 

ne
ed

s 
to

 b
e 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
)

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 th
re

e 
ca

te
go

rie
s 

of
 

pu
bs

 d
o 

no
t h

av
e 

an
y 

be
ar

in
g 

on
 h

ow
 th

e 
IP

P
G

 
op

er
at

es
.  

T
he

y 
ar

e 
si

m
pl

y 
th

er
e 

fo
r 

cl
as

si
fic

at
io

n 
pu

rp
os

es
, r

ec
og

ni
si

ng
 th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f t

he
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 
pu

b 
in

 te
rm

s 
of

 lo
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

fu
nc

tio
n.

11
95

2 
- 

C
am

br
id

ge
 &

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
B

ra
nc

h 
of

 th
e 

C
am

pa
ig

n 
fo

r 
R

ea
l 

A
le

 (
C

A
M

R
A

)

O
bj

ec
t

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

P
ag

e 
50

 o
f 5

6

Page 462



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

5.
 L

is
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
F

or
m

er
 P

ub
 S

ite
s

5.
 L

is
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
F

or
m

er
 P

ub
 S

ite
s

A
ct

io
n

W
el

co
m

e 
pu

bs
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 c
lo

se
d 

or
 tu

rn
ed

 in
to

 
re

st
au

ra
nt

s.
S

ho
ul

d 
in

cl
ud

e 
ot

he
r 

fo
rm

er
 p

ub
s 

co
nv

er
te

d 
to

 a
 

re
st

au
ra

nt
:

- 
O

ak
 B

is
tr

o 
(f

or
m

er
 O

ak
/L

aw
ye

rs
)

- 
La

 M
im

os
a 

(f
or

m
er

 S
pa

de
 &

 B
ec

ke
tt)

- 
B

ac
k 

S
tr

ee
t B

ra
ss

er
ie

 (
fo

rm
er

 W
hi

te
 H

ar
t)

- 
F

or
m

er
 L

oc
om

ot
iv

e 
(c

ur
re

nt
ly

 c
lo

se
 a

s 
a 

re
st

au
ra

nt
)

- 
S

pi
ce

 M
er

ch
an

t (
fo

rm
er

 V
ol

un
te

er
, T

ru
m

pi
ng

to
n)

- 
W

ok
'n

'G
ril

l, 
T

ru
m

pi
ng

to
n 

(f
or

m
er

 C
oa

ch
 &

 H
or

se
s)

- 
fo

rm
er

 D
ur

ha
m

 O
x,

 M
ill

 R
oa

d
- 

fo
rm

er
 G

lo
be

, N
ew

m
ar

ke
t R

oa
d

- 
fo

rm
er

 P
rin

ce
 o

f W
al

es
, H

is
to

n 
R

oa
d

- 
fo

rm
er

 L
itt

le
 R

os
e,

 T
ru

m
pi

ng
to

n 
S

tr
ee

t
- 

fo
rm

er
 R

ac
eh

or
se

, N
ew

m
ar

ke
t R

oa
d.

 If
 s

ite
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d,
 a

 p
ub

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 in

cl
ud

ed
 g

iv
en

 th
e 

sh
or

ta
ge

 o
f s

ite
s.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

 T
he

 s
ite

s 
re

fe
rr

ed
 to

 r
el

at
e 

to
 

fo
rm

er
 p

ub
s 

w
hi

ch
 b

ec
am

e 
re

st
au

ra
nt

s 
pr

io
r 

to
 

20
06

.  
U

nd
er

 th
e 

U
se

 C
la

ss
es

 O
rd

er
, p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
A

4 
us

es
 c

an
 c

ha
ng

e 
to

 h
ig

he
r 

or
de

r 
us

e 
cl

as
s 

(A
3,

 A
2 

or
 A

1)
 w

ith
ou

t n
ee

di
ng

 p
la

nn
in

g 
pe

rm
is

si
on

.  
T

ak
in

g 
th

e 
ca

se
 o

f a
 r

es
ta

ur
an

t i
n 

a 
fo

rm
er

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

 b
ui

ld
in

g,
 if

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

 
al

re
ad

y 
se

rv
ed

 fo
od

, i
t m

ay
 a

lre
ad

y 
ha

ve
 a

 k
itc

he
n 

w
ith

 e
xt

ra
ct

or
 fa

ns
.  

O
ve

r 
tim

e 
it 

m
ay

 b
e 

pe
rm

is
si

bl
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

pu
b 

to
 tu

rn
 in

to
 a

 r
es

ta
ur

an
t w

ith
ou

t f
or

m
al

ly
 

re
qu

iri
ng

 p
la

nn
in

g 
co

ns
en

t. 
 It

 is
 th

er
ef

or
e 

di
ffi

cu
lt 

to
 

de
te

rm
in

e 
w

he
n 

a 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
 c

ha
ng

ed
 in

to
 a

 
re

st
au

ra
nt

, u
nl

es
s 

so
m

e 
fo

rm
 o

f a
ud

it 
to

ok
 p

la
ce

 o
r 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
er

m
is

si
on

 w
as

 g
ra

nt
ed

, i
nd

ic
at

in
g 

a 
di

ffe
re

nt
 u

se
 w

as
 n

ow
 in

 o
pe

ra
tio

n.
  A

ne
cd

ot
al

 
ev

id
en

ce
 m

ay
 s

ug
ge

st
 w

he
n 

th
e 

ch
an

ge
 to

ok
 p

la
ce

, 
bu

t t
hi

s 
co

ul
d 

no
t b

e 
re

lie
d 

up
on

 to
 c

on
fir

m
 th

e 
da

te
 

of
 c

on
ve

rs
io

n.
  I

t i
s 

th
er

ef
or

e 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
to

 
es

ta
bl

is
hw

he
n 

a 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
 c

ea
se

d 
be

in
g 

a 
pu

bl
ic

 
ho

us
e 

an
d 

ch
an

ge
 u

se
 le

gi
tim

at
el

y 
in

to
 a

 d
iff

er
en

t 
us

e 
w

ith
ou

t p
la

nn
in

g 
pe

rm
is

si
on

.  
A

s 
su

ch
, i

t w
ou

ld
 

th
er

ef
or

e 
se

em
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
to

 o
nl

y 
ap

pl
y 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
to

 fu
tu

re
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 
fo

r 
th

os
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
au

di
te

d 
an

d 
on

 th
e 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 li
st

.  
T

hi
s 

is
su

e 
is

 c
ov

er
ed

 in
 n

ew
 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
2.

2 
of

 th
e 

IP
P

G
 w

hi
ch

 r
ea

ds
 "

T
he

 IP
P

G
 

gu
id

an
ce

 is
 to

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 p

re
m

is
es

 th
at

 w
er

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

in
 J

ul
y 

20
06

, t
he

 d
at

e 
w

he
n 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
w

as
 a

do
pt

ed
.  

T
hi

s 
en

su
re

s 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

an
d 

th
e 

N
P

P
F

.
B

ui
ld

in
gs

 th
at

 w
er

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

in
 J

ul
y 

20
06

 a
re

 
pr

es
en

t o
n 

th
e 

lis
t o

f s
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 p
ub

s 
at

 S
ec

tio
n 

5 
an

d 
al

l o
f t

he
se

 a
re

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 th

e 
IP

P
G

.  
T

hi
s 

lis
t 

in
cl

ud
es

 a
ny

 p
ub

s 
w

ith
 u

ni
m

pl
em

en
te

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

pe
rm

is
si

on
s 

an
d 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
th

es
e 

pu
bs

 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
IP

P
G

 
de

sp
ite

 th
e 

pr
es

en
ce

 o
f u

ni
m

pl
em

en
te

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

pe
rm

is
si

on
s 

fo
r 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

us
es

."

10
22

2 
- 

C
am

br
id

ge
 &

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
B

ra
nc

h 
of

 th
e 

C
am

pa
ig

n 
fo

r 
R

ea
l 

A
le

 (
C

A
M

R
A

)

O
bj

ec
t

In
se

rt
 n

ew
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 2
.2

 to
 r

ea
d 

"T
he

 IP
P

G
 

gu
id

an
ce

 is
 to

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 p

re
m

is
es

 th
at

 w
er

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

in
 J

ul
y 

20
06

, t
he

 d
at

e 
w

he
n 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
w

as
 a

do
pt

ed
.  

T
hi

s 
en

su
re

s 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

an
d 

th
e 

N
P

P
F

.  
B

ui
ld

in
gs

 th
at

 w
er

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

in
 J

ul
y 

20
06

 a
re

 p
re

se
nt

 o
n 

th
e 

lis
t o

f s
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 p
ub

s 
at

 
S

ec
tio

n 
5 

an
d 

al
l o

f t
he

se
 a

re
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 th
e 

IP
P

G
.

T
hi

s 
lis

t i
nc

lu
de

s 
an

y 
pu

bs
 w

ith
 u

ni
m

pl
em

en
te

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

er
m

is
si

on
s 

an
d 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
th

es
e 

pu
bs

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 
th

e 
IP

P
G

 d
es

pi
te

 th
e 

pr
es

en
ce

 o
f u

ni
m

pl
em

en
te

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

er
m

is
si

on
s 

fo
r 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

us
es

."

P
ag

e 
51

 o
f 5

6

Page 463



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

5.
 L

is
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
F

or
m

er
 P

ub
 S

ite
s

5.
 L

is
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
F

or
m

er
 P

ub
 S

ite
s

A
ct

io
n

R
E

: T
H

E
 G

R
E

Y
H

O
U

N
D

.
A

 v
er

y 
ba

d 
id

ea
 fo

r 
it 

to
 c

lo
se

 d
es

pi
te

 h
av

in
g 

be
en

 c
ut

 
of

f f
ro

m
 s

om
e 

of
 it

s 
cl

ie
nt

el
e,

 b
ut

 th
er

e 
is

 n
ow

he
re

 
ne

ar
 to

 th
e 

ho
us

es
 o

pp
os

ite
 fo

r 
a 

ve
ry

 lo
ng

 w
ay

 
in

de
ed

.
S

ug
ge

st
 a

n 
ov

er
he

ad
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
cr

os
si

ng
. I

ts
 a

 lo
ng

 
tr

ek
 to

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 p

ub
 in

 th
e 

di
re

ct
io

n 
of

 M
ill

 r
oa

d.
Lo

ca
l b

us
in

es
se

s 
w

ill
 s

om
et

im
es

 w
an

t t
o 

go
 to

 a
 p

ub
.

G
re

yh
ou

nd
 d

es
ig

na
tio

n 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

m
ov

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

lis
t a

s 
th

e 
C

ar
pe

nt
er

s 
A

rm
s.

M
or

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

/c
o-

op
er

at
iv

e 
w

or
k 

ne
ed

ed
 r

ig
ht

 n
ow

 
an

d 
it 

w
ill

, i
f i

t s
uc

ce
ed

s,
 h

el
p 

pe
op

le
 in

 th
e 

ve
ry

 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
tim

es
 n

ow
 a

nd
 c

om
in

g.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 G
re

yh
ou

nd
 P

ub
lic

 
H

ou
se

 h
as

 r
ec

en
tly

 b
ee

n 
th

e 
su

bj
ec

t o
f a

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

12
/0

25
5/

F
U

L 
fo

r 
th

e 
de

m
ol

iti
on

 o
f t

he
 

bu
ild

in
g 

an
d 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t w

ith
 a

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 
tw

o 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 u

ni
ts

 in
 B

1/
B

2/
B

8 
U

se
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
tr

ad
e 

co
un

te
rs

.  
T

he
 G

re
yh

ou
nd

 P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 h
as

 
be

en
 c

lo
se

d 
fr

om
 s

om
e 

tim
e,

 a
nd

 is
 s

itu
at

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ed

ge
 o

f a
n 

in
du

st
ria

l a
re

a 
an

d 
a 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
a,

 
w

ith
 C

ol
dh

am
s 

La
ne

 s
ep

ar
at

in
g 

th
e 

tw
o.

  T
he

 P
ub

lic
 

H
ou

se
 s

its
 o

n 
th

e 
in

du
st

ria
l s

id
e 

of
 C

ol
dh

am
s 

La
ne

, 
w

ith
 th

e 
bu

sy
 r

oa
d 

se
gr

eg
at

in
g 

th
e 

P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 
fr

om
 th

e 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

a.
  D

ue
 to

 it
s 

po
si

tio
ni

ng
, t

he
 

P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 w
as

 n
ot

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 

co
m

m
un

ity
, a

nd
 w

as
 n

ot
 th

er
ef

or
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 to

 b
e 

a 
va

lu
ed

 fa
ci

lit
y,

 w
hi

ch
 m

et
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

's
 d

ay
-t

o-
da

y 
ne

ed
s.

70
33

O
bj

ec
t

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

W
e 

w
ou

ld
 a

ls
o 

co
nc

ur
 w

ith
 th

e 
su

pp
lie

d 
lis

t o
f P

ub
s 

m
is

si
ng

 fr
om

 th
e 

lis
t, 

de
ta

ile
d 

by
 C

A
M

R
A

 in
 th

ei
r 

su
bm

is
si

on
.

P
en

ny
 F

er
ry

 a
pp

ea
l m

en
tio

ne
d 

pr
e-

da
te

d 
th

e 
N

P
P

F
 

an
d 

a 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
ar

ea
 n

ow
 c

ov
er

s 
th

e 
si

te
. s

ho
ul

d 
be

 'C
ity

 C
en

tr
e,

 R
iv

er
si

de
 ..

.' 
or

 'I
m

po
rt

an
t L

oc
al

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 F
ac

ili
ty

' c
at

eg
or

y.

C
on

ce
rn

 n
ot

ed
. T

he
 P

en
ny

 F
er

ry
 is

 n
ow

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 

th
e 

lis
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 P
ub

s 
at

 S
ec

tio
n 

5 
of

 th
e 

IP
P

G
.

11
97

6 
- 

C
am

br
id

ge
 P

as
t, 

P
re

se
nt

 
an

d 
F

ut
ur

e
O

bj
ec

t
In

cl
ud

e 
T

he
 P

en
ny

 F
er

ry
 in

 th
e 

lis
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 
P

ub
s 

at
 S

ec
tio

n 
5 

of
 th

e 
IP

P
G

.

P
la

nn
in

g 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 (
R

ef
:0

6/
05

52
/F

U
L)

 w
as

 g
ra

nt
ed

 
fo

r 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t (

A
ug

us
t 2

00
7)

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 m

ix
ed

 
us

e 
sc

he
m

e 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

re
te

nt
io

n 
of

 th
e 

F
ly

in
g 

P
ig

 
P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se
(P

H
).

 P
ha

se
 1

 (
B

ot
an

ic
 H

ou
se

) 
no

w
 

co
m

pl
et

e.

P
ub

s 
ex

cl
ud

ed
 fr

om
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
ar

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 v

ar
io

us
 

re
as

on
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

os
e 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s 
w

he
re

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

er
m

is
si

on
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

gr
an

te
d 

fo
r 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
r 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t h
as

 a
lre

ad
y 

oc
cu

rr
ed

.
B

ot
h 

re
as

on
s 

ap
pl

y 
to

 T
he

 F
ly

in
g 

P
ig

 a
nd

 O
sb

or
ne

 
A

rm
s 

P
H

s;
 th

ey
 a

re
 in

cl
ud

ed
 w

ith
in

 a
n 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t s

ch
em

e 
th

at
 h

as
 a

lre
ad

y 
be

gu
n.

B
ot

h 
of

 th
es

e 
pu

bs
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 r
em

ov
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
lis

t.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  W
hi

le
 th

e 
lo

ss
 o

f t
he

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

 
m

ay
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
n 

is
su

e 
at

 th
e 

tim
e 

of
 th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 d

ec
is

io
n,

 th
e 

lo
ss

 o
f a

 p
ub

 o
r 

a 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

pu
b 

is
 n

ow
 a

 c
on

ce
rn

.  
T

he
re

fo
re

, t
he

 IP
P

G
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 to

 a
ny

 n
ew

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
th

at
 

in
vo

lv
es

 th
e 

lo
ss

 o
f a

 p
ub

 s
ite

 (
au

di
te

d)
 d

es
pi

te
 it

 
al

re
ad

y 
ha

vi
ng

 a
n 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
er

m
is

si
on

.

11
83

1 
- 

M
et

ro
po

lis
pd

O
bj

ec
t

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

P
ag

e 
52

 o
f 5

6

Page 464



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

5.
 L

is
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
F

or
m

er
 P

ub
 S

ite
s

5.
 L

is
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
F

or
m

er
 P

ub
 S

ite
s

A
ct

io
n

'T
he

 D
og

 &
 P

he
as

an
t' 

is
 in

co
rr

ec
tly

 n
am

ed
 'T

he
 

G
ol

de
n 

P
he

as
an

t' 
in

 th
e 

lis
t.

C
om

m
en

t n
ot

ed
.  

It 
is

 u
nd

er
st

oo
d 

th
at

 th
e 

G
ol

de
n 

P
he

as
an

t i
s 

a 
re

ce
nt

 n
am

e 
of

 th
e 

re
st

au
ra

nt
.  

W
e 

ha
ve

 r
ep

la
ce

d 
th

is
 w

ith
 D

og
 a

nd
 P

he
as

an
t i

n 
S

ec
tio

n 
5 

of
 th

e 
IP

P
G

.

86
73

 -
 C

am
br

id
ge

 P
as

t, 
P

re
se

nt
 

an
d 

F
ut

ur
e

O
bj

ec
t

In
se

rt
 D

og
 a

nd
 P

he
as

an
t i

n 
S

ec
tio

n 
5 

of
 th

e 
IP

P
G

.

-C
on

ce
rn

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
IP

P
G

 is
 fu

nd
am

en
ta

lly
 

un
ba

la
nc

ed
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

no
 fl

ex
ib

ili
ty

 (
as

 a
s 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
N

P
P

F
) 

to
 th

e 
su

ita
bi

lit
y 

of
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
us

es
 o

n 
th

e 
si

te
.

-N
o 

ad
eq

ua
te

 e
xp

la
na

tio
n 

is
 g

iv
en

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
IP

P
G

 a
s 

to
 w

ha
t t

he
 "

va
lu

e"
 o

f t
he

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

 is
, h

ow
 is

 it
 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 a

nd
 w

ho
 is

 th
e 

be
ne

fic
ia

ry
?

-N
o 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t a
s 

to
 in

 w
ha

t r
es

pe
ct

 th
e 

pu
bs

 li
st

ed
 in

 S
ec

tio
n 

5 
pr

ov
id

e 
an

 im
po

rt
an

t l
oc

al
 

fa
ci

lit
y.

 M
is

le
ad

in
g 

to
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

is
e 

pu
bs

 in
 th

is
 w

ay
 

w
ith

ou
t a

 p
ro

pe
r 

as
se

ss
m

en
t. 

O
nl

y 
th

os
e 

ju
dg

ed
 to

 b
e 

of
 v

al
ue

 to
 th

e 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 

sa
fe

gu
ar

de
d.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

 T
he

 IP
P

G
 a

cc
or

ds
 w

ith
 th

e 
N

P
P

F
 

in
 te

rm
s 

of
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

to
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

be
in

g 
im

po
rt

an
t c

om
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

hi
le

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 r

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
r 

ch
an

ge
 o

f u
se

 is
 p

os
si

bl
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
a 

se
t o

f c
rit

er
ia

 b
ei

ng
 m

et
.  

T
hi

s 
en

su
re

s 
th

at
 th

e 
IP

P
G

 is
 n

ot
 a

nt
i d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 th

at
 th

er
e 

is
 th

e 
fle

xi
bi

lit
y 

to
 a

llo
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
he

re
 it

 w
ou

ld
 

be
 in

 th
e 

in
te

re
st

s 
of

 th
e 

ec
on

om
y 

or
 

co
m

m
un

ity
.N

ot
w

ith
st

an
di

ng
 th

e 
te

rm
s 

of
 th

e 
IP

P
G

, 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

w
ill

 r
et

ai
n 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 d
eg

re
e 

of
 

ec
on

om
ic

 fl
ex

ib
ili

ty
 w

ith
 th

ei
r 

ab
ili

ty
 to

 c
ha

ng
e 

to
 a

ny
 

of
 U

se
 C

la
ss

es
 A

1,
 A

2 
or

 A
3 

w
ith

ou
t p

la
nn

in
g 

co
ns

en
t.

81
40

 -
 J

an
ua

ry
s

O
bj

ec
t

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

W
e 

w
ou

ld
 a

ls
o 

co
nc

ur
 w

ith
 th

e 
su

pp
lie

d 
lis

t o
f P

ub
s 

m
is

si
ng

 fr
om

 th
e 

lis
t, 

de
ta

ile
d 

by
 C

A
M

R
A

 in
 th

ei
r 

su
bm

is
si

on
.

G
re

yh
ou

nd
 is

 th
e 

on
ly

 o
ne

 in
 it

s 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

m
an

y 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

in
 C

ol
dh

am
s 

La
ne

 a
nd

 a
dj

oi
ni

ng
 

st
re

et
s 

fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 th

is
 is

 th
e 

m
os

t a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

pu
b.

 
In

cl
ud

e 
on

 'I
m

po
rt

an
t L

oc
al

 C
om

m
un

ity
 F

ac
ili

ty
' l

is
t.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 G
re

yh
ou

nd
 P

ub
lic

 
H

ou
se

 h
as

 r
ec

en
tly

 b
ee

n 
th

e 
su

bj
ec

t o
f a

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

12
/0

25
5/

F
U

L 
fo

r 
th

e 
de

m
ol

iti
on

 o
f t

he
 

bu
ild

in
g 

an
d 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t w

ith
 a

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 
tw

o 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 u

ni
ts

 in
 B

1/
B

2/
B

8 
U

se
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
tr

ad
e 

co
un

te
rs

.  
T

he
 G

re
yh

ou
nd

 P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 h
as

 
be

en
 c

lo
se

d 
fr

om
 s

om
e 

tim
e,

 a
nd

 is
 s

itu
at

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ed

ge
 o

f a
n 

in
du

st
ria

l a
re

a 
an

d 
a 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
a,

 
w

ith
 C

ol
dh

am
s 

La
ne

 s
ep

ar
at

in
g 

th
e 

tw
o.

  T
he

 P
ub

lic
 

H
ou

se
 s

its
 o

n 
th

e 
in

du
st

ria
l s

id
e 

of
 C

ol
dh

am
s 

La
ne

, 
w

ith
 th

e 
bu

sy
 r

oa
d 

se
gr

eg
at

in
g 

th
e 

P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 
fr

om
 th

e 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

a.
  D

ue
 to

 it
s 

po
si

tio
ni

ng
, t

he
 

P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 w
as

 n
ot

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 

co
m

m
un

ity
, a

nd
 w

as
 n

ot
 th

er
ef

or
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 to

 b
e 

a 
va

lu
ed

 fa
ci

lit
y,

 w
hi

ch
 m

et
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

's
 d

ay
-t

o-
da

y 
ne

ed
s.

11
98

0 
- 

C
am

br
id

ge
 P

as
t, 

P
re

se
nt

 
an

d 
F

ut
ur

e
O

bj
ec

t
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

T
he

 li
st

 o
f s

af
eg

ua
rd

ed
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
 s

ite
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ca

te
go

ris
ed

 u
nd

er
 th

re
e 

se
pa

ra
te

 c
at

eg
or

ie
s 

ye
t t

he
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t f

or
 d

em
on

st
ra

tin
g 

th
ei

r 
vi

ab
ili

ty
 in

 a
ll 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s 
is

 th
e 

sa
m

e.
T

hi
s 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 ig
no

re
s 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

pu
bl

ic
 

ho
us

es
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

. I
t i

s 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

th
at

 th
e 

cr
ite

ria
 

fo
r 

ch
an

ge
 o

f u
se

 o
f a

 p
ub

 in
 a

n 
ur

ba
n 

ar
ea

 b
e 

le
ss

 
st

ric
t f

or
 th

os
e 

pu
bs

 in
 a

 r
ur

al
 a

re
a,

 w
he

re
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 is

 v
er

y 
di

ffe
re

nt
.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
he

 c
at

eg
or

ie
s 

of
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
 

as
se

ss
es

 th
e 

va
lu

e 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
 h

as
 to

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
.  

T
he

se
 d

o 
no

t d
et

er
m

in
e 

ho
w

 to
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 
vi

ab
ili

ty
 o

f t
he

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

.  
T

he
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

ta
ke

s 
in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s,
 

cr
ite

rio
n 

c 
an

d 
A

nn
ex

 C
 c

on
si

de
r 

th
is

.

13
18

2 
- 

C
al

de
co

tte
 C

on
su

lta
nt

s
O

bj
ec

t
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

P
ag

e 
53

 o
f 5

6

Page 465



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

5.
 L

is
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
F

or
m

er
 P

ub
 S

ite
s

5.
 L

is
t o

f S
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 E
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
F

or
m

er
 P

ub
 S

ite
s

A
ct

io
n

G
la

d 
to

 s
ee

 th
e 

C
ar

pe
nt

er
s 

A
rm

s 
on

 V
ic

to
ria

 R
oa

d 
is

 
lis

te
d 

in
 th

e 
se

co
nd

 s
ec

tio
n.

 It
 is

 th
e 

on
ly

 p
ub

 o
n 

V
ic

to
ria

 R
oa

d 
in

 a
 g

oo
d,

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

lo
ca

tio
n.

C
on

ce
rn

ed
 th

at
 a

fte
r 

its
 c

lo
su

re
 it

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d.

It 
is

 a
 h

ig
hl

y 
su

ita
bl

e 
an

d 
la

rg
e 

bu
ild

in
g 

w
ith

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

to
 th

e 
re

ar
 fo

r 
a 

co
m

m
un

ity
 r

un
 p

ub
 a

nd
 fa

m
ily

 
re

st
au

ra
nt

.

V
ic

to
ria

 R
oa

d 
is

 -
 c

om
m

un
ity

-w
is

e 
- 

a 
de

se
rt

 r
ig

ht
 

no
w

, n
ow

he
re

 to
 s

to
p 

an
d 

ge
t a

 c
up

 o
f t

ea
 o

r 
a 

pi
nt

, 
no

w
he

re
 to

 c
ha

t h
ow

ev
er

 b
rie

fly
 w

ith
 o

th
er

s.

P
re

vi
ou

s 
la

nd
lo

rd
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 th
e 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
.

S
up

po
rt

 n
ot

ed
.

70
32

S
up

po
rt

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

W
e 

fu
lly

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

co
nc

ep
t o

f t
he

 li
st

 o
f s

af
eg

ua
rd

ed
 

pu
bs

.
S

up
po

rt
 n

ot
ed

.
10

18
9 

- 
C

am
br

id
ge

 &
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

B
ra

nc
h 

of
 th

e 
C

am
pa

ig
n 

fo
r 

R
ea

l 
A

le
 (

C
A

M
R

A
)

S
up

po
rt

N
o 

fu
rt

eh
r 

ac
tio

n.

P
le

as
e 

en
su

re
 th

at
 p

ub
s 

th
at

 h
av

e 
al

re
ad

y 
cl

os
ed

 a
re

 
no

t d
em

ol
is

he
d 

w
hi

ls
t t

hi
s 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

is
 in

 
pr

og
re

ss
.  

 T
he

 o
w

ne
rs

 a
re

 o
fte

n 
se

lli
ng

 th
em

 n
ow

 
qu

ic
kl

y 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 m
ak

e 
m

on
ey

 w
hi

le
 th

ey
 c

an
.  

F
or

 
ex

am
pl

e 
th

e 
B

ird
 in

 H
an

d 
ha

s 
cl

os
ed

 r
ec

en
tly

 a
nd

 
w

hi
ls

t i
t m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
vi

ab
le

 a
t t

he
 m

om
en

t, 
it 

is
 r

ig
ht

 
ne

xt
 to

 a
 m

aj
or

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t (
B

er
ke

le
y 

H
om

es
) 

th
at

 w
ill

 c
re

at
e 

a 
lo

t o
f a

dd
iti

on
al

 p
ot

en
tia

l c
us

to
m

er
s 

on
ce

 th
e 

fla
ts

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 li

ve
d 

in
.

C
on

ce
rn

 n
ot

ed
.  

U
nl

es
s 

th
e 

bu
ild

in
g 

is
 a

 d
ef

in
ed

 
he

rit
ag

e 
as

se
t, 

in
 a

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
a,

 o
r 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
an

 A
rt

ic
le

 4
 d

ire
ct

io
n 

w
ith

dr
aw

in
g 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t r
ig

ht
s 

fo
r 

de
m

ol
iti

on
, t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ou
ld

 
no

t b
e 

ab
le

 to
 p

re
ve

nt
 th

e 
de

m
ol

iti
on

 o
f a

 n
on

-
re

si
de

nt
ia

l b
ui

ld
in

g.
  W

hi
ls

t t
he

 im
po

si
tio

n 
of

 A
rt

ic
le

 
4 

di
re

ct
io

ns
 is

 a
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

le
ga

l p
ro

ce
ss

 fr
om

 th
e 

ad
op

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
IP

P
G

, w
ith

 c
on

se
qu

en
t r

es
ou

rc
e 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

, t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 
us

e 
A

rt
ic

le
 4

 d
ire

ct
io

ns
 fo

r 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s.

  I
n 

th
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ca
se

 o
f t

he
 B

ird
 in

 H
an

d,
 th

e 
si

te
 is

 s
til

l 
pr

ot
ec

te
d 

as
 a

 p
ub

 b
y 

be
in

g 
in

 th
e 

lis
t o

f 
sa

fe
gu

ar
de

d 
ex

is
tin

g 
an

d 
fo

rm
er

 p
ub

 s
ite

s 
in

 S
ec

tio
n 

5 
of

 th
e 

do
cu

m
en

t.

71
96

S
up

po
rt

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 u
se

 A
rt

ic
le

 4
 

di
re

ct
io

ns
 to

 p
ro

te
ct

 p
ub

lic
 h

ou
se

s.

P
ag

e 
54

 o
f 5

6

Page 466



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

A
nn

ex
 A

 -
 M

ar
ke

tin
g 

S
tr

at
eg

ie
s

A
nn

ex
 A

 -
 M

ar
ke

tin
g 

S
tr

at
eg

ie
s

A
ct

io
n

A
nn

ex
 A

 - 
M

ar
ke

tin
g 

St
ra

te
gi

es
A

nn
ex

 A
 - 

M
ar

ke
tin

g 
St

ra
te

gi
es

T
hi

s 
is

 g
oo

d;
 r

ig
or

ou
s,

 a
nd

 ta
ke

s 
in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 th

e 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

of
 ti

ed
 le

as
eh

ol
ds

 a
nd

 o
f p

ub
s 

be
in

g 
de

lib
er

at
el

y 
ru

n 
do

w
n 

ve
ry

 w
el

l i
nd

ee
d.

S
up

po
rt

 n
ot

ed
.

81
63

S
up

po
rt

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

M
ar

ke
tin

g 
m

us
t b

e 
ov

er
se

en
 b

y 
an

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t t

hi
rd

 
pa

rt
y.

 T
he

re
 a

re
 m

an
y 

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
 lo

ok
in

g 
fo

r 
si

te
s 

w
ho

 w
ill

 p
ay

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
od

ds
.  

T
he

y 
ha

ve
 n

o 
in

te
re

st
 in

 
th

e 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

 ju
st

 in
 a

 q
ui

ck
 p

ro
fit

 -
 a

ls
o 

th
e 

m
ot

iv
e 

of
 th

e 
br

ew
er

ie
s.

  W
ith

ou
t s

af
eg

ua
rd

s,
 th

ey
 w

ill
 

ge
t r

ou
nd

 th
e 

ru
le

s.
F

re
e 

ho
us

es
 a

re
 a

 b
et

te
r 

be
t t

ha
n 

br
ew

er
y 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p.
  

T
he

 la
tte

r 
em

pl
oy

 te
na

nt
s 

w
ith

 n
o 

in
ce

nt
iv

e 
to

 g
iv

e 
th

e 
pu

b 
ch

ar
ac

te
r.

 It
 b

ec
om

es
 p

ar
t o

f a
 c

ha
in

, w
ith

 a
 

st
an

da
rd

is
ed

 a
m

bi
en

ce
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

ev
er

yt
hi

ng
 d

ow
n 

to
 

th
e 

ha
ng

in
g 

ba
sk

et
s.

  T
ha

t i
t f

ai
ls

 b
ec

om
es

 a
 s

el
f-

fu
lfi

lli
ng

 p
ro

ph
ec

y.

S
up

po
rt

 n
ot

ed
.

71
97

S
up

po
rt

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

T
he

re
 is

 a
 n

ee
d 

to
 p

re
se

rv
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

pu
bs

 w
he

re
ve

r 
po

ss
ib

le
. I

t i
s 

im
po

rt
an

t t
ha

t o
pi

ni
on

s 
as

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
d 

vi
ab

ili
ty

 a
re

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 b

y 
tr

ul
y 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t e

vi
de

nc
e.

S
up

po
rt

 n
ot

ed
.

69
46

S
up

po
rt

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n.

A
nn

ex
 B

 - 
V

ia
bi

lit
y 

A
pp

ra
is

al
s

A
nn

ex
 B

 - 
V

ia
bi

lit
y 

A
pp

ra
is

al
s

V
ia

bi
lit

y 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 m

ig
ht

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r 

in
ve

st
m

en
t.

Lo
ca

tio
n 

ca
n 

be
 fa

ct
or

ed
 in

to
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
ns

 o
f 

vi
ab

ili
ty

.

A
ny

 v
ia

bi
lit

y 
as

se
ss

m
en

t s
ub

m
itt

ed
 w

ill
, b

y 
its

 v
er

y 
na

tu
re

, n
ee

d 
to

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

pr
em

is
es

 
as

 th
is

 w
ill

 im
pa

ct
 d

ire
ct

ly
 u

po
n 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

an
d 

fu
tu

re
 c

us
to

m
er

 b
as

e,
 th

e 
ov

er
al

l o
ffe

r 
of

 th
e 

pu
b,

 
an

d 
th

e 
sc

op
e 

fo
r 

di
ve

rs
ifi

ca
tio

n.
  S

im
ila

rly
, 

in
ve

st
m

en
t w

ill
 h

av
e 

to
 h

av
e 

be
en

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

in
 

ap
pr

ai
si

ng
 d

iff
er

en
t o

pt
io

ns
 fo

r 
di

ve
rs

ifi
ca

tio
n.

14
78

0
O

bj
ec

t
N

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

P
ag

e 
55

 o
f 5

6

Page 467



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
N

at
ur

e

A
nn

ex
 C

 -
 C

om
m

un
ity

 C
at

ch
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n

A
nn

ex
 C

 -
 C

om
m

un
ity

 C
at

ch
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n

A
ct

io
n

A
nn

ex
 C

 - 
C

om
m

un
ity

 C
at

ch
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n

A
nn

ex
 C

 - 
C

om
m

un
ity

 C
at

ch
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n

It 
is

 u
nc

le
ar

 w
ha

t c
rit

er
ia

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 a
pp

ly
 to

 
de

te
rm

in
e 

th
e 

ad
di

tio
n 

of
 a

ny
 p

ub
s 

(a
nd

 w
ha

t d
oe

s 
'c

er
ta

in
 p

ub
s'

 m
ea

n?
) 

to
 a

 R
eg

is
te

r 
of

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

A
ss

et
s.

I b
el

ie
ve

 th
e 

w
or

di
ng

 s
ho

ul
d 

re
ad

: T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

a 
R

eg
is

te
r 

of
 C

om
m

un
ity

 A
ss

et
s 

an
d 

th
e 

Lo
ca

lis
m

 A
ct

 2
01

1 
is

 c
le

ar
 th

at
 p

ub
s 

ca
n 

be
 

no
m

in
at

ed
 fo

r 
in

cl
us

io
n 

on
 th

e 
R

eg
is

te
r.

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
al

l s
uc

h 
no

m
in

at
io

ns
 th

ro
ug

h 
its

 a
gr

ee
d 

pr
oc

es
s.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

ch
an

ge
d 

th
e 

w
or

di
ng

 in
 A

nn
ex

 C
 to

 r
ea

d 
"T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

R
eg

is
te

r 
of

 C
om

m
un

ity
 A

ss
et

s.
  T

he
 

Lo
ca

lis
m

 A
ct

 2
01

1 
is

 c
le

ar
 th

at
 p

ub
s 

ca
n 

be
 

no
m

in
at

ed
 fo

r 
in

cl
us

io
n 

on
 th

is
 R

eg
is

te
r.

  T
he

 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 c

on
si

de
r 

al
l s

uc
h 

no
m

in
at

io
ns

 th
ro

ug
h 

its
 

ag
re

ed
 p

ro
ce

ss
."

14
78

9
O

bj
ec

t
D

el
et

e 
"T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
m

ay
 a

ls
o 

co
ns

id
er

 a
dd

in
g 

ce
rt

ai
n 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
to

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 A

ss
et

s 
R

eg
is

te
r 

if 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
up

po
rt

 fo
r 

th
ei

r 
re

te
nt

io
n 

is
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t."

In
se

rt
 "

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

R
eg

is
te

r 
of

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 A
ss

et
s.

  T
he

 L
oc

al
is

m
 A

ct
 2

01
1 

is
 

cl
ea

r 
th

at
 p

ub
s 

ca
n 

be
 n

om
in

at
ed

 fo
r 

in
cl

us
io

n 
on

 
th

is
 R

eg
is

te
r.

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
al

l s
uc

h 
no

m
in

at
io

ns
 th

ro
ug

h 
its

 a
gr

ee
d 

pr
oc

es
s.

"

It 
is

 u
nc

le
ar

 w
ha

t c
rit

er
ia

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 a
pp

ly
 to

 
de

te
rm

in
e 

th
e 

ad
di

tio
n 

of
 a

ny
 p

ub
s 

to
 a

 R
eg

is
te

r 
of

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 A
ss

et
s 

an
d 

w
ha

t '
ce

rt
ai

n 
pu

bs
' o

r 
's

ig
ni

fic
an

t c
om

m
un

ity
 s

up
po

rt
' m

ea
ns

 . 
W

e 
co

ns
id

er
 

th
at

 th
e 

w
or

di
ng

 s
ho

ul
d 

re
ad

: T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

a 
R

eg
is

te
r 

of
 C

om
m

un
ity

 A
ss

et
s 

an
d 

th
e 

Lo
ca

lis
m

 A
ct

 2
01

1 
is

 c
le

ar
 th

at
 p

ub
s 

ca
n 

be
 

no
m

in
at

ed
 fo

r 
in

cl
us

io
n 

on
 th

e 
R

eg
is

te
r.

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
al

l s
uc

h 
no

m
in

at
io

ns
 th

ro
ug

h 
its

 a
gr

ee
d 

pr
oc

es
s.

C
on

ce
rn

s 
no

te
d.

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

ch
an

ge
d 

th
e 

w
or

di
ng

 in
 A

nn
ex

 C
 to

 r
ea

d 
"T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

R
eg

is
te

r 
of

 C
om

m
un

ity
 A

ss
et

s.
  T

he
 

Lo
ca

lis
m

 A
ct

 2
01

1 
is

 c
le

ar
 th

at
 p

ub
s 

ca
n 

be
 

no
m

in
at

ed
 fo

r 
in

cl
us

io
n 

on
 th

is
 R

eg
is

te
r.

  T
he

 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 c

on
si

de
r 

al
l s

uc
h 

no
m

in
at

io
ns

 th
ro

ug
h 

its
 

ag
re

ed
 p

ro
ce

ss
."

14
86

2 
- 

O
ld

 C
he

st
er

to
n 

R
es

id
en

ts
' A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
O

bj
ec

t
D

el
et

e 
"T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
m

ay
 a

ls
o 

co
ns

id
er

 a
dd

in
g 

ce
rt

ai
n 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s 
to

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 A

ss
et

s 
R

eg
is

te
r 

if 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
up

po
rt

 fo
r 

th
ei

r 
re

te
nt

io
n 

is
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t."

In
se

rt
 "

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

R
eg

is
te

r 
of

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 A
ss

et
s.

  T
he

 L
oc

al
is

m
 A

ct
 2

01
1 

is
 

cl
ea

r 
th

at
 p

ub
s 

ca
n 

be
 n

om
in

at
ed

 fo
r 

in
cl

us
io

n 
on

 
th

is
 R

eg
is

te
r.

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
al

l s
uc

h 
no

m
in

at
io

ns
 th

ro
ug

h 
its

 a
gr

ee
d 

pr
oc

es
s.

"

P
ag

e 
56

 o
f 5

6

Page 468



�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�

� ����������	
���	�
�
�

�

�

�

���	
��������������������������	������	��
��	���������

����������	������	�������������
���	�

�

��������������������
����
�

�

�	��	��	
�����	
���� !" �

�

Page 469



������

�

�

�

�

����
���	��������������

�

����	���

�	������

�

���	�

"#����
��������� $%�

������	
��������� ���

��	��������������� ���

���������������	�	���
� ���

 #�����	&�� %'�

���	���������������������� ���

��	

�
�����������
�� �� ���

!����������������� "#�

$#����	�����
����	������	�����������	� ()*�

%#��	�	����	��������	�	����
������	� )"!*�

������	���	������
�����������������
������� �	��� ����	��	���	���
��������������

$%&�

������	���	������
����������	���������'�����'�������������� �
�
	���	������������

%&%��

������	�������
�'�������(�����)������*� %%��

������	���	������
������	���
��	
���	���	�+�� %%��

'#�+���������	���
�	��,&����������-�
�	
��������	� " '"!�

.#�����
�� "%($�

*#�,���	��	�/�	�0��	�	����	����������� "%�

*#(#�/��1�
����������	��� "'% "�

� �

2��	&	� �

Page 470



������

�

"�3���
1	�������
��	��	� ".'  �

 �4�5���������2��
����� "(* %�

$�4�����������������	�������������������  !") .�

�

Page 471



������

"#� �6�7��8����6�

����	�������
��	���������������	�

%,%� �
� ����
�� ��	���-���� ��	
� �'�
������� �
��	-��������	������
� ����� ���	����
	�����
���.�-������--�
�������������
��	���������-�
�������
������
��������	�	
�������	���
��-���� ������� 	
�� 	��� ����
���� �	�	
�,� � �� 
-���� ��� �	������ �	
� ��� ������ 	
��
	��������� ��� ���� �����
�� �
� ������ �����,� � /����� �
����� ��-�������
� ���-�
����-	�+��������
��
����� 	������.� ��	
���� ���������0�� ���
+�
�� �	����.� 	��	
��
�
�-�+�
�� �
� ������ 	��	�.� �������� ��� ��	����� ������� �	��� ����
�� �������-�
�� 	
��
����	���������������������������	
�������������	�	
���'����������
����������	

�
��
���-�����
,�

%,�� 1	
���������������������	����������	
���	����	�	��������������	���'����
���������
����� �
� ����� ��� ���� ��
������
� ��� 	�	��-�
��.� -	+�
�� ���-� 	���	������ ������
��	��
�������-�
�� �
����-�
��,� � �
� 	� �����
�
�� -	�+��.� ��-�� ���'������ 	
�� ���
��-�	
���� �	��� ������ ��� �	+�� ����� ������-�
�� ���� ��� ��� ���� ��� -	�+���
)�������
��	��������-	�+��� ���� ���� ��-	�
�
������ �
� ���������������*�	
�� ��	����� ������
	����
	���������	��,��(�'����.���-���������������������-	�������������--����	����
��	���� ���-	
	�������	��������
�������-�	
�����
����	��������
�� �����-� )�,�,�	��
����������*,���

%,�� �������������	
���	��	�����	������	��������
��������
�����	����--
�����
���	����
�
	
�� 	���������� ��� ����� -	�
�	�
� ���	�
	���� 
������������2� 	
� ���
�-��� ����� �
�
��
������
�� ��� ���� ����	
��� 	
�� ���	����� ������
�� 	
�� ��--����	�� 	��	�2� 	
�� 	
�
�
����
-�
�	�� ����� �
������� �
���
�����	��������������	��	
����������������	������ ���	��
	��	�,� � /���� ��� ���������� ��� ���� ����
�� !	���
	�� ��	

�
�� ������� 3�	-�'��+� )!��3*.�
'������
���	����	����������	����	�����'	�����������������	
��4��������--
����
�	��������� )���� 	�� ���	�� �����.� -����
�� ��	���.� 5.� ������ ������ 	
�� ��	���� ���
'������*� 5� ��� �
�	
��� ���� ���	�
	������� ��� ��--
������ 	
�� ������
��	��
�
����
-�
��26��)!��3.��	�	�"&*,�

%,�� /�����
����-���	

�
������������	
���)����*�	�����������������
����
���
���	��������
���	����--
�������������������������������
�����������������
��	-������,��/���
������������������������	������-�
���������7�	���0�����������
������	-�������8��	��
��	
� )�&&9*,� � /��� �����'���� ���	�-	����	�� ��
�����	���
� �
������-�
�
��	
����	

�
��
	�����	���
������� ����
���������������
��������������	-���������������,�

�����������	������

%,�� /�����	
� ���������-�'����
��-	������:����	�����������	��������	

�
���������������
����	���� '����� 	� 
�'� 	����	��� ��� �������-�
�� ��� ��������,� � (�'����.� �
� ����
��
�� ���������
���������-�
�����
���	
�����	����������
���
�.�������
�����	����
	��������	������-����	�������	����������	����	�����������������	
������	
�����������
������	���������'������	-���������������	�������������
��	������-�
�	�����	

�
��
;��-�
�������;�)����������
�����'*,���������
��
������	�������������	����	����
������
����� )	
�� ���� 	���-�	
��
�� �����
��� �	��*� ��� �
������	���� �
��� ���� ��
���0��0�
�������-�
��8��	����	
�<����'�	�������	�������������
�����
������������������	�������
�������������������������������
���������,�

%,9� /���� �
����-� ���	
���'���� �������� 	� ������� ��	-�'��+� ������ ��� 	������
� ��� ���� 
�'�
8��	����	
������	�������������-��	
����'��
�������	�����	��������	������������������
��������	����
	���������	
��'��
�������
���	�����	���,��/������	
���'����	�����������

Page 472



������

��� ����� �����-�
�� ��	

�
�� 	�����	���
�� ���	��
�� ��� ���� ����� ��� 	� ����
�� ��� ���-���
��������������	����
	��������,�

�
��	�����
	��
������

%,"� �
������������������������	��-���'������	�����������	��	�-	����	����
�����	���
��
�����
�����-�
	���
������	

�
��	�����	���
�.���������	�	���
��	�����
���-��	�������	������	
�
��;,����'����	
�����	����������
����	����	�����
������������,����
���	
���'����
��--�����
��� ��� �	���� ��� ����	���.� ������� 	� ������� )4�	-������� ������ (����
����6�����=��(-������8�����.��������&%�*�	
����	�����������,�

%,#� /��� ������� �
�����>� )%*� 	
� 	
	������ ��� 
	���
	�� -	�+��� ���
��.� )�*� 	� ��
��-	�+�
��
	
	�����.�)�*�	����	��-	�+���	�����-�
���
����
��	
�	�������� ����
���	-������������
���� )�
����
�� ���� ���	���
� ��� 	� ���� �	���*.� )�*� 	� �����'� ��� ��	

�
�� ������� 	
��
�������
��)�
����
��	
�	
	���������������������������	����
	��������?��������
�����
��
��	��*.�	
��)�*�	
������
��	���	��	������	������������	����	����,���

%,$��
���	���
� ���+� ��� �	+�
�� ��	��� �
� ������ ��	��� ����� 	
�� ���� �	�+���
�� �������
��--�
��
�� �����'�
�� ���� ;������-�
�� ��	
� �����
�� �����--������ �
� ���� %��
@
�.� 	�� '����� ����� ��	��� ����� '	�� 	�������� ���� ��
���	���
� �������,� � /���
��
���	���
�����������--�
�����
� ����%��@
��	
�� �	���
�� ����9�'��+�,� � /��� �����
'	��	-�
�����
����������������--�
������������	
������:�
����	���������������
��
���������������-�
��-	
	��-�
����������	������
����
���	���
,�

%,%&%,$�/����������
�	���
�����������'�������
��������������������������������-�
���������
�����	
��'����������������	��
��'����������
	��������
��������������������A
����
-�
��
�����
����--��������
����1����
���
�$�B��������&%�,�

%,%%%,%&� 3����'�
�� 	������
� 	�� ���� ��
���0�� A
����
-�
�� �����
�� ��--������ �
� $�
B��������&%��.�/�����������'��������-��	�-	����	����
�����	���
��
����������-�
	���
�
�����	

�
��	�����	���
�����-���	���	����-�������
����	�����$�B��������&%�,�

 #� ��6�,9��

2
	�����	
	�������	������

�,%� /���� ����� ��� 	�����	���� ��� 	��� �	
��'����
� ���� 	�-�
����	����� 	��	� ����	-������������
��
���,�

�������0�����	��	�	���

�,�� /�����������	
������������	�������������-�������	��'�����������������
�@����&&9.�
���� �	��� '��
� ���� ����
�� 8��	�� ��	
� '	�� 	������,� � /���� �
����� ��
�����
���
���'��
�����8��	����	
�	
������!��3,��C����
�����	��'�����������������
�@����&&9�
	��������
���
��������������	���	���������	��������
���	
��	������������	�����D�������
���� ����,� � /���� ����� �
������ 	
�� ����'���� 
�-���-�
������	

�
�� ���-�����
�� 	
��
	�����	���
�� �
�����
�� ������ ���� '���� ��� �����-�
��� �
� 	�����	
���'���� ���� �����
�����������������
������
�-���-�
������	

�
�����-�����
������	����
	��������,���

��������������������	&��

���������

Page 473



��9���

�,��,�� /��� !��3�'	�� ��������� �
� �"�1	���� �&%�� 	
�� �������� �
� ���� �	
����	���
� ��� ����

	���
	�� ��	

�
�� ������� ���	
��� 
����� 	
�� ��	��-�
��� )'���� ���� � ������
� ���
����	�
���	�����������*,�

�,�/���!��3����������	������-�
��������	�
	�����������-�
��	�� ����+�������,� ����	�
	����
�������-�
�� �
��-�	����� ���
�-��.� ����	�� 	
�� �
����
-�
�	�� �	�����,� � ������
��������
����������	
���������	�������������������	������	
��	������������	���	
�
����
��	�� ����� ��� ��	�� �
� ���� �����
�� 	
�� -	�
�	�
�
�� ��� 	� ����
�.� �����
����� 	
��
��-��������� ���	�����
�-�,� �E������ �������.��	-������0��������
�����������
����
����'����
������	�������	���	���
����������
��.�	�	��-���.���
��'��+����	
����������
��	�� �������
�-��	
����������'�������
����
,� �1�������.��������������������
����	�� 	
�� ����	�� '�������
�� ��� �������
�� 	� ��	��� ���� ����	�� �
���	����
� '����
� 	�
��--
���,��1	
������	���	�����
����	���������������	��	
������	�������	����������
����,� �� ������
�� ���	�� ��� ������� ��� ���������� �-����	
�� ��� 	������
�� ���	�
	����
�������-�
�,� � ����
� ������ ���
����	
�� ���
�-��� 	
�� ����	�� ��
�����.� ��� ��� ���	�� ���
��
������ �	���	���
�� ���� �
� ������ ��� �
���� ���	�
	���� �������-�
�� 	�� ���� ����
!��3,�

�,�� ��

�,��,�� /��� !��3� ��������� 	� '�	���� ��� ��
��	�� ������� ���� ���
�-��� �������-�
�.�
�������-�
����	�����-���������	�� �
�����
�F��������
�	
����--
�����	��������,� � �
�
�	�����	�.��	�	��	���"&���	���'������--
�����	���������	
������������
����
��������
�����,���������--�
�����	����	

�
�����������	
���������
�������>�

• ���������	
	��������
�������	�	����������������������������������	
����	�	
	���
�������������������������
	���������������
�������������
�������	��	���������	��
��������������������������	��������
��������������	����
����������
���
���
�	���	�	
����������	
	����������	���
	������	������
���

• ���������	��
�
��������������������������������	�	
	�����������	��������
	�������
������
�	���������������
���������	
�����	�	
�
�����
�	
�����
������������

• �������
��
���
���	���������������	�	
	�����������	�������������
��������������
������	���	�������
��
�	�����
�	�������������
�	��������
��������	
����
���
������	
������

• ����������	�
����
������������
������	���	���
�������
	����������	����������	��
���������������	
����	�	
	�����������	������

�,��,9� !	���
	�� ��	

�
�� ������� 	������� ��	�� ��--
���� �	��������� �
����
�� ������ ������
�
�	
��� ���� ���	�
	������� ��� ���	�� ��--
������ 	
�� ������ ��� �	���	����� 	
��
���	�
��� ���� ���� ��
����� ��� ���� ��--
���� '����� 	���'�
�� ���-� ��� �������� 	
��
-����
�����
�	����	�
	����'	�,���

�,9�,"� ��
� 	������
.� �	�	��	��� �#�'������ �	������� 	�� ��	�� 	��	�� ��� �����	
�� ��� ���� �����
��
	��	������	-�����������	��/�-��
���
�	
���������(�
��
,�������	������	�>�

� ����	������	�	����������������
�������	������
��	��������������	��������
������
��
!���������������	
���
�"	��������	
	������������
�����
�	��������������������
��
#�������
�����
�������������������������������	�����������������������$�

Page 474



��"���

�%�� �����
�� 
��� ��
��
	��� ���� ����������
� ��� ������ ����	���� ���� ������	
�
���	�	
	��� 	���	�������� �������� ����������������
	����������� ����
�������������
�����
��	��	���������	����������������������������	��&�

�,"E���� ���	��� ���-	�
�	�
�
�� ��� �������� ��� �����
�� �����	
���� �
����
�-�������-��	
���.�
�	�	��	���%���%��������!��3���	������	�>�

�,#� ��
���������������'�
���
���	
�-	+�
�>�

�'�����  ����� ������� ���
� ��!��
	���� ��������� ������� �	
�� ����	�	��
� ���(	�	�	
� 
��
����
� 
�� ���	�� �������� ������$� ���� ��� �������� 	����
�� ��� ��	��� ��� ������
�	��	�	���
�� ���� ������
����� ��
��	��� 
��� �����	
��� ����� ��������� ���	��
� 
���
���	�	���	��
�	��)�������"�
�"��������������������������	�	�����	�	���	��
�	��)�������"�
	��	��
������������
��������������
�	�
����)�-��	����
�����
��*,�

*�+� ,�����	
	��������������*-��
�
���
��
$�

�,����
���
� 	�� ���	����� ������� ��
� ��� �������������� �� 
��� ����	����
��.�	�����
�� ��� �����	��� ���	�� �(���
�
	����� �  ����	��� ���	�	��� ������� ������	���
�������"�
������������
��
	�������	����
��	����
���
��	�����	�������������	������
�
��� ��� ���"� ��� 	�����
���
����� ����	���� ��� ����	���� ,�� ����	��� ��� '�����  ������ ������
�����	�����
���	
	��� ������$� �/�� ������
��(	�
	������	����� ���
����� 
�"	���������
����
���
����
��������(����	���������
���
	������������������	����� 	���
	�����������
����������������	������
���� �	"���
�� ����
��	��
��	�������� ��	�	����������������(	����
�������
�����������
����������
���
	�	��
���	��
������������
�������������	��
���������
����������	��������	���	�����
��������������	��������	�������

�,%&� /����
����������� �������� ���	�����������������
��	�	��	���%���'�������	������8��	����	
�,��
/������	������	�>�

�0���������������	�����
���	
������������������'����� ��������	
���������#�	���������
���	����� 	����������� 	�� ���
� 
�� �������� ���(	��� 
�� �����	����	�����
������� � 1��
���	
	����� ����������
� ����� �������
�� ������� ���� ��� ����� ������ �������
!��
	�	����2��������
��������	����������
�����������������������
������������
����	���
����"�� ����������� ����	��
	���� ��� �	�� 	�����
���
���� ���	����� ���� �������
��
� ��� ����� 
�� ���� ����������	�� 
�� 
��� �	����	��� �������� ��� ����������
��
)�-��	����
�����
��*,�

�,%%� /��� ����� 	������� '���� ���� !��3� �
� ���-�� ��� �������
�� ���������
� ��� ������ ������
���
���-����	
����--
�����	���������'������
���
����	�����������-�
�������	
������
�����������������D�������	���������������	����
��-��,��/�����
�������	��������������
���
	
����������-�
��	
����	������������������ �����������	���'��������-�
��'��������'����
����
������
������������������
�-�������--
���,�

�,%�� !��'�����	
��
���������-�������������.�������������'�������	�
�	����
����	
������������
���
�-��� ��� �������� '���� ������ 	������� ��� ��	
��� ��� 	
�� ��� G��� ��	����� �%.� ��� ��� ���
'��������	

�
����
��
�,�����	���
������	��������
���������������'�����	'��������������
)������� ���� ��� ��� 	
� �������� ��=� ;�������
*� �
� ������ ��� ���	�
� �������
�� ��� �������� ���

Page 475



��#���

	���'��������-	�+���������	�������	�	�������	������	
��,�(�'����.�������
����'����
�
������	������������%���������
��	��	����	�	������	���������,�

�,%�� �	�	��	��� %�&� ��� ���� !��3� ��� 	���� �����	
�,� � ��� ������� ��� ���� �������	��� 
������� ���
�����	���	������	
��'�������	������������������'����������	������	�������
	���
	����
�����������	������	���
����	���
����	,��/���!��3�	���������	��������������	������	������
���������	���	����� ������
������ �	+�
� �
���	���
�� �
�	
����	

�
���������
,� � /���
!��3�����
����
����	������	���	���������
�������
����������	���������������,�

�,#!��'�����	
��
�� ���� ���-�� ��� ���� ����.� ������ ������ '���� ���	�
� 	� ���
����	
�� ������� ���
���
�-��� ��� �������� '���� ������ 	������� ��� ��	
��� ��� 	
�� ��� G��� ��	����� �%.� ��� ��� ���
'��������	

�
����
��
�,�

	�
���

�,$�,%��A ����
��������� ���	��
�� �������	
����--
���� �	��������� ��� ������� �
� �����	-�������
8��	����	
�)�&&9*�)����������	�����
�@����&&$*����	�����������9?9�)��	
������G����
�����
�������
���*.��	�����������9?"�)������
��;������-�
��	
����	
������G����
�;��������
	
��8��	����
���0�*.��	�����������9?%&�)3����F�;��
+�B�����*.��	
���	������������?%%�
)��--
���� 3	��������>� ���������
� ��� A ����
�� 3	��������*.� �	���� ������� �?%�� )!�'�
��--
����3	��������*�	
���	������������?%&�)����������
����A ����
�������*,�

�,%�� ��!�
���������������������������������+���������
���������������-�
�������	
���������
��� ������ �����,� � 3�����-���.� ������� �?%%� ���	���� �
��� ��� ��	�����
	���� ����
���
��--
�����	�����������������	�����	
�������
����
�����������������'����
�������-��,�
�
��������
����

�,%9� ��
� ���� 	���	�� ���-���	�� ��
���
�
�� /��� �	���
����� ��-�� )%#��%#9� =������	� <�	�.�
�	-������*.� ���� �
�������� �����'��� 	������ �
� ���� !��3� ��
���
�
�� ������ ������
���
����--
�����	���������	
��	����������
����	
��'�������������!��3��
�����������������
���	
��,��/�����
����������
��������	���
���������������-�
��'�������	���	
������
��� ��� ���� �����
�� )	� �	���� ��--
���� �	������*� ��� 
�����	��� ��� ������ ������ ���
-	�+����� 	�� 	� ������ ����,� /���� 	����	��� '���� 	���� ��� ��
�����
�� '���� ��'�
	�����	���
��������	
�����������
����	���
�������������	����--
�����	���������	�����	���
'����
������������?%%��������8��	����	
,������������������������	��������������	��	�
��--
�����	���������������������������	������������?%%,�

�,%"� �
������������
�'������������.��	������������?%��4!�'���--
����3	��������6�'����
	����,��/���!��3���	������	��	���������������	���--
�����	�������	
������������
�'�
������ ������ '���� ��� �����-�
��� 	�	�
��� �	���� ������� �?%�,� � A���
��	���.� ��� ���

�����	��� ��� ������ 	� ���	�� 
���� �
� ������ ��� ��� �
� 	�����	
��� '���� ���� �������,��
(�'����.� ���'����	�������
�����	������	�����������������
��	�������
����������	
��
�	������	������
��-	���
����
-�
�	��	
��	-�
������
�����	���
�,�

�,%#� �
� �������� ��� ���� ���������
� ��� ����
���
� ��� �	���� ��� �	���
�� ��� �	�� �	�+�.� �	����
������� �?%&� 4����������
� ��� A ����
�� �����6� '���� ��� 	������,� � 8	���� ������� ��	����
	��	������������'���������D���������-��	���������������������
��	���������-�
��	������
�	��������	����'����
�������	���
��������������
� ��	���,� � /������������ �
������	��
��������
� �.� ���� 
���� ��� �������� 	��:	��� 	-�
���� ��	��� 	
�� �	�+�
�� ���� � ����
��

                                                           
%��
�������������������
�	���'��8��	����	

�
����������������'�����	'�����7���-�������������-�
�0����������	��'����
�����'����	���������������������/�'
�	
����
������	

�
��)��
��	�����-������;������-�
�*�B�����%$$��	��
	-�
���,��
�	�����������������
�'����
��������
�������������-�
�����'��������	������.�����
���	����:�������	��
��	

�
�����-�����
�������������	�
������-�����8���������	���������-�
�,�

Page 476



��$���

����������,��/��������.�������
��	���������-�
������������
�����	���
������	���	�+��
'����
��������
������	������������������
�����
�	-�
������	����������������
������������
���	
����������-���,�

6		����
���	������

�,%&�,%$� ���������-�����'����
�.�������	���	���� �-	�����#9����������������������
�	
��
��	��
�� �
� �	-������� 	
�� '���� ,� 1-���� ��	
� �&� ������ ������ �	��
�� �	���
���	���	���� �
� �����	��� �������	��2�-���� ��� ������ ��	���	�������-�� ����	�	
���	���
�
�����,�

�,%%�,�&� /��� ������� ��� ������ ������ �
� ����
�� ��	��� �	�� ����-�� 	� ���	�� ��
���
,��
1	
�� �	��� ����:�
���� ���
� ��-�������� 	
�� ������� �
��� 	�� ������
��	�� ��	��� ���
����
��	���--��	���
2���������	������
���
��������
���������
��	���'����
���'�����
���	�
�
��������� ����
���������,����
-�����	�����	
�����
�������	�	
���	
���	���
�����������	���	�	
���	
���	���	��	�����������,����-���	���D������
�������,�

�,%��,�%� !������������ ������ ��� ������ 	� -	�+��� ���� ������ ������ ����
� ���� ������
-	
	��-�
��	
�� �	���������,� � /����	����
���-�.��	-�������C��.�;���
��������-��
	
��1	������ 	��� � 	-����� ��� ��-�� ��� ���� ��������� ������ ������ �
� �	-�������
��	��������	�'�����	
��������	��	���,��/���B�������
�.��0���������+����.�	
�����@��
0��
�����(���.�	���� 	-������������'������	����
���	������
����������������
��	��
7�	��������0� '���� 	� ����� :	����� ����� ������ 	
�� -	
�� ������ ���� �	��� ������ ���
�
�������	�����
��������������.�'����-	
�����'��������-�
���	��
���
���	������+������
��+�� �	�������
�� ���� ��������
� �	�������	�����
�	����'��� �
� ����� �	���,�B��������.�
���� 	�� ���� A-������ �	��� ����������� �
���	���� �	���� ��� ����
�� �
� 	� �	������ ���
�
����	�
-�
���
����
����-�������
�
���	
���	
��?-������������	��
��������
�����
���
�
�,� � B������ ����� �	
��� ��	����.� :�H� 
������ 	
�� 	� -����
�� 	��	� ���� ���	��
��--
���������,������������	������������������������
��������������	���
���	����
�	
��
���-��������	���������
,�

�,%��,��� /��� ����
�� 	������� ��	

�
�� ������� ��
�� �� ���� �	-������� ������� �
� ����
���������
� 	�������� ��� ��--
���� �	��������� �
� �	���� ������� �?%%.� ������	��� ���� 
�'�
��--
�����	����������
��	������������?%��	
����
������������������������
�����	���
��
�
��	������������?%&,��(�'����.�������������������
������������������
�����	�����������
�������-�
��-	
	��-�
���������
�,�

��� ����
�� ���	���
�� ���� ���������-�
�������	
����������������
����� ���-��������������,��
�
����.������
�������������	��
��������������
������--
�����	��������� ����
���	�	��	����
���� ������ ���� '����
� ���� ;%� G��� ��	��� )'���� ���� � ������
� ��� G
��������� /�	���
��
����--��	���
*�	
��	���� ��������	�
�����'����
� ���������	��� )������	��.� ������
��	��
�������.����������	
����	�
�
����
����*,�

�,%��,��� /��� ��
���� �	�� ���� �	�� �
� ������ ��	��
�� ���� ����	�� 	
�� 	���	�� ��	��-�
���
-	��� ������
��� ��� ���� ��	��� !��3�� 	
�� ��	

�
�� ������� ��	��-�
�� �� 4��	

�
�� ����
���	�
	����A��
�-������'��6�,��/�����
���0���������
��	���-����������������'��������
�����	���
��������!��3������������-	�
��	����	��
�������� ���	����	

�
�����	
���
��	�� �	�� ���
� ����	���� '���� ��������� ���	��� ��� ���� 
����� ��� ������ ������ �
�
�	-������,�

                                                           
��3�
	��������
�����������
��"�1	�����&%��
���	
��������
��"�1	�����&%�������������	���
��������!��3�

Page 477



��%&���

$#� ��,�����7�26�,��-���,��8/+�����8�,�

�,%� /�������������� ���-������	
� D���	� ���	������
���,� � �����	���	
� �-����	
�������	������
��	������-	
�����	����--
�����.��������
��	�����������'���������	��
��'��+���	
�
���-	�
�	�
���	
��� ��
���,�

�,�� �������
�����4����	
����	���6.��
��A�����
�)���<.�@	
��&%�*.�����	����-����	
������	�

-���������	��
�.��
����
�>�

• /����	���	���������������������-�
���������	��
��'��+�����'��
����	��������2�

• /���� ��
������� ��� ���� ���	�� ���
�-�� 	
�� �������� D���� ����� ��������� )	�� ����
��*�	
���
���������)�,�,�	��	����'���*2�

• �������-������--
�����������
�����	�����	��
���
���	����
�����'��
��������
���-��������
���	�+���
���	���������	�������2�

• ���� �������� �	��������?��	��� ���� �����	���
� 	
�� ������� 	���������� �
����
��
	-�
���� ������>� ��� :�HH��.� �	���� ��-�������
�.� ����� ��	���.� �������	��
��������
.�-����
���������	���
�������������	
����--
�������
��2�

• ��������
����-����	
�?���������������	�
�	������
	����������������2�	
��

• ���� 	��� ����	���� �-����	
�� �
�������
�� 	
�� 	��� ��
�������� ��� ������ ����	�
�
���
�����	��	�������-�
���	����
�	������������
����	�����������	����--����	��
��������,�

�,�� <���
������	����
����	+�
������1<��	�������������
�	�����������	����	

�
��
��
�����������������--
��������1�
������'����	��������	��	
��
����	����������������
���� ��������� ���	����--
�����,� � /��� ����	�������'����	�� D���
�����'��� ��	
�$� �
�%&�
��
�� ��� ���
�� 	����� ������ ������ ���	�� ��� ��� -���� ����
��� 	
�� ����	����,��
3�����-���.�	����	�:	��������	�������
����-	�������������-��� �������	��
���	��	�
��,� � 3������ ����	���� ���'�� ��	�� ����� %� �
� �� 	����� ��� ������ ��� ���� ���
��� ����
7��--
�������
��0�����	��'����
��.��������
�
���	
���
��	��,�

�,�� 1�������.� ����	���	
� �-����	
���	��� ��� �����	-����������
�-�.� 
��� D��� ���� ����
�������	
���
�������D������������������
�������.��������.������	
�����'�
���
�������.�
��� �
� �������
�� ���� ����0�� ����0�� -	�
� �
�������� ��� 	���	���
�� 	
�� �������
�� 	�
-����
�� ��	��� ���� ���� ���������� ����
��.� 	�	��-���.� ����
������ 	
�� �
������
���.�
	
���
�	���	���
����
���������'��+���.����������	
���������,�

�,�� 3�����-���.�����
��'��+����� ����
��������������-	+���	������������
�������
��������
�����������	�	�����	
��	���	�	
��������������,� � /���� ����	�����	���������	�������������
���� �
� ���� ��'
���
�������	��
�� ���� ���������,� ����
�� ����<������	-.���������� ���
���	�
�	
���
�	
��� ����:	�������� ���� �����0�� �����
��	
��	���	�	
��,� �B���
�������
������������	��� ���	�����
�	
����
����������������	�	����������
����	���
����	��
��� 	��� ��
�������� ��� ��� ��� �������
�� 	���������	�� ��� ���������-����� ���'	��	
�� �������
�����
������������
,� ���-��������������
�����
�����
�����-�
	���
	�� ������������
��
���������
�	��������
	����	��C����
������8��	���
�������)C8�*,��3�����
�������������
�
��	-���������
����� ���-�
	���
	�� �����
��)8C*,� ������������
�	��� �
������'����
�����
C8�� ����,� � /��� ������������	��������
��� ���	

��	����'�����������8C����C8�� ��� ���'�'�����

                                                           
��&���������&%��������>??''',�	-�	,���,+?	������,���I����J��K�9"��

Page 478



��%%���

�
�����
����� ���-������	������
	�����������
,� �/��������
������������������ �
�	������
���������
	�������	���������	
�����������	��+������
D�����������0����	�	����.��
����
��
�����������,�

%#� �,5,+���,6���262�,�,6���7�6���+,��

�,%� /�������	
����	�����
�����	��������	+��	���
�����������-	�
����
������>�

	*� /��� 
���� ��� ��������� ���� �-����	
�� ����	�?��--
���� �
����
� ��� ���� ������
����2�

�*� /���
���������������������-����	
�����
�-����
����
������������������2�	
��
�*� /���
�������	���'���� ���������
����-����������
��
��������
�-�����	
��,�
�

� �
���������	�������
��	
��	���

	������
��
	��������	����������2%�����������	�

�,�� /����������
����������������������������
������������������-�
��	������
�������������
������ �
� �	-������,� � ������	
��� ������ D������ ������ ������	��� ���� ��	
��� ���
��?��
������
?���������-�
�� )'����� ��	

�
�� ���-�����
� ��� ��:����*� 	�	�
��� ����
���
�������	
���������	��
������������
,�

�,�� 3����'�
�� 	
� 	���� ��� �	-������0�� ���� )�
����
�� ��-�� ���-��� ���� �
� ��� 	��
����	�	
��*.� ������ �	��� ���
� 	�������� 	�� -����
�� 	� ���	�� ����	
� ��--
����

���.����	����	���������'����	
�����	����--
����
����'����
�	
� �-����	
���������
��� ���	������������.����	�����?����	�����
�������
�-���	
���������
���,� �/�����	���
��������
�������
���������������,�

�,�� /��� �����'�
�� �������	� ������ ��� ���� �
� ���� 	�����-�
�� ��� ���� 	�����	���
� ����
�������-�
��������	���	������
��������������	�����
��������-��������������)	���������
�
�������
��*,�

�,�� ;������-�
��'�����
���������-������'����������
����	�����
��������������	����������
�����'�
���������	>�

)	*� /��� ��� �	�� ���
� -	�+����� ���� %�� -�
���� 	�� 	� ������ ����� ����� ��� ���� 	
��

����������������
	
��	
������	����
	��������	����--����	�������--
�����	������.�	��

	�������	������'����������
���������'�
��	
��
����
��
�����������
	���	�	���
�

)�	��� ������� �������������*�	
�� �������	�����
�
�� �
������� �
�������� ���� ���������

��	���������������	��	�����������.� ����	�	
�������������� �	���
��'����
� ���� 7�0�

�����	��������	��	���--
�����	��������	���
��'����
�7;%0������	��2�	
��

)�*� ���� ��	��
	���� ��������� �	��� ���
� -	��� ��� ��������� ���� �	������� )�
����
�� 	���

����������	���
������
��� �������L�	
�������
��������������������	�������*��������	��

���
������
���	�����'����
���������
�-��	������	����������	�
����������
����������

��������� ����
�����	
��������7�0����7;%0���	�����2�	
��

                                                           
�������

� �C����

Page 479



��%����

)�*� ���:	��� 	����
	����� ��� ��������
� � ����.� ��� ����	��-�
�� ��������
� ��� -	���

	�	��	���.� �
� 	
� �:	���� ��� -���� 	���������� ���	���
� '����
� �&&� -������ '	�+�
��

����	
��9�������������
���������"�&�'��+�
��	���	����2�	
��

)��*�����	�����
������'������-�
���	���"���	���������	����--
����
����
����
�����

���� ������ ����� ��� 	
�� 	����
	����� 7�0� ��� 7;%0� ��	��� ��� 	
�� ���� ����� '���� 
���

�	-	�������	�	��	���������� ���	����--����	�������--
�����	�����������	����������

�����	������	��
������
��������	��	��	,�

�,9� �
������������-�
���	�����	������������	�����
�	��:	�����-	�+������
�	�����	
���
'�����������	�)	*�����-	�+���
��� �����������������	����������
�	�����	
���'��������
���	
�������
��
��

� ���������������,�

�,"� �
������������-�
���	�����	����������	���
����
����
�������
�-��	������
	
��	������	����
�
� 	�����	
��� '���� )�*� ���� ��
���� '���� � ����� ��� ���� ���� ��
	
��	�� �����
��� ���
����	
��	���������	�-��
�	�����	
���'�����

� �C�������������,�

�,#� �
� ������ ��� ��-�
���	��� ��	�� ������ '���� ��� 	��:	��� 	����
	����� ��������
� ���
��--����	�� ��--
���� �	��������� ��� ������ ���� 
����� ��� ���� ���	�� ����	���
� �
�
	�����	
���'�����������	�)�*�	
��)�*�����	�����	
��'����
�������	��������������	
���
�
��

� ���������������,�

�,$� �
� ����	��
�� ���� ����.� 	� 
-���� ��� 	���	�� �������
�� ��	��
�� '���� ���� 
���� ����
-	�+���
��'������
�������,� � /�����	��� ������� �
� �����=���	-�������������(����
�����<�����,�

�,"�
������������-�
���	�����	����������	���
����
����
�������
�-��	������
	
��	������	�����
�
	�����	
��� '���� )�*� ���� ��
���� '���� � ����� ��� ���� ���� ��
	
��	�� �����
��� ���
����	
��	���������	�-��
�	�����	
���'�����

� �C�������������,�

�,#�
������� �����-�
���	��� ��	�� ������'�������	��:	���	����
	�������������
������--����	��
��--
���� �	��������� ��� ������ ����
�������� ���� ���	������	���
� �
�	�����	
���'����
�������	�)�*�	
��)�*�����	�����	
��'����
�������	��������������	
����
��

� �����������
����,�

�,%&� �
��	����'�����	���	

�
��	�����	���
���
���
��	������	���	�����)���	����������������
�����	����
�������
�9,�����	�����
����
*�	
����������������
�������������	���
�������������
�	-	��� ���
� ���� ��������	���� ��	��� ��� ���� �����	��� 	����� '���� 
��� ��� �	+�
� �
���
	���
���
�	
����	

�
���������
,�

�
���������	���������	
�����2��	�:�����:	
	��
	����������������2%������	�

�,$�,%%��	-��������������
���� �����
����� ��	�� ��� ������������ ���������-�������������-�
��
������� ��
�	�
��� �
� ���� G��� ��	����� B����� ��� ��	
��� ���� ��� ��� 	� ��� ��� 	�
����	�	
�?�	�M�)��	�����*.� ��
	
��	��������������
	������������������)��	�����*���� ���	���
�����)��	����%*,���

�,%&�,%�� �
�	���� �-	��������� �	�����
���������	��.�9������	������
�������������	�	
��
���,��/�����
������
��������������-����	
�����	���'�������� ��������������������	����
�	
��

                                                           
6 /����	-�������������(�����������
�	�
��	���
���	�
���-	��������	��
�������&&�-�������	���-�
��	��	� 
7 �����

� �� 

Page 480



��%����

������������	������
�����-	�+�����
�����
�2�	������.�
�����-�����
������:��������
��	
���������-�	�������	�����	�	
�.������������������.����-�����
������������:��������
��	
����	�+����	�����������,�

�,%%�,%�� /��������.�����	������������	�	���'���� ���������
����������������������	����
	�����
��--����	����--
����������.����	���	
�����
���������	���
��'����
�7�0������	�����	��
-	�+��� ����-��	
���� ����	��� ��� 	�� 	� ��--
���� �	������#,� � �
� 	������
.� ���� �����
��
���� '���� ��
������ 	�����	���
�� �
� ������ -������ ���� ���� ���
��	��-�
�� ��� 	� ���-���
�����������������-�	
��%.���.���.���.����;%����)��D�����������'	��	
��	-�
����
��
�����	���
��	
��
��-	����
�����
�*,���

�
��������	��� ��� ��
����� ��� ����������	� ���-��������� ����� )	�� ������� �
� ������
� �� ��� �����
����*���
�����
����������	��������
��7�0�������	�
�
�����.�'���������������D�����������
	�����;�������-�
��1-	
	��-�
������
������,�

�,%�� �

�
��������	�������	����-��������������)
�����������
�������
��*���	�������D�������	���	

�
��
	�����	���
� ���� ��
������
� ��� 	� 
�
��� ���'���� 	���� ��� ��D���� ��� ���� 	����� �������-�
��
-	
	��-�
�����
�������'������������	�����	
�.��������	
�������������	��
������������'����
���	���������	�������,�

�
��������
��	:�����������	�;2%��	<�

�,%�� /��� ����
�� 8��	�� ��	
� ��� 
���� �����'� 	
�� ������ ���	������ ������ ���� 
�'� ����
��
�������-�
����-�����'	��� �
�����
� ����	
�������.���������������������
���������
��������
�'�����������������	������ ���	����-	
��	
�������������	�������	
��F	
��
���	�
	������--
�����,�

�,%9� �	������������?%��4!�'���--
����3	��������6��
���	����
�'���--
�����	��������,��
/���!��3� 	�� �	�	��	��� "&� ��
���-�� ��	�� ��	

�
�� ��������� ������ ��	
� ����������� ����
��--
���� �	��������� �
����
�� ������ �����.� �
� ������ ��� ������ ���	�
	����
��--
�����,�

�,%"� �������
���.�������	�������������������'��������
���	�������������
�'�������
��	��
��--
���������-���� ��	
��.&&&�
�'����������2�'����� ������� ���������	����'����
������ 
�'� ��--����	�.� ���	��� F� ��--
���� �	��������� �
����
�� �����	���
	�� 	
��
	-�
�������
���	��2�	
�.�'�����������������
��	�������	�����
�	����-�
�
�������'����
����� ����������� ��� �
� ���� -	�
� 	�����	�� ��	
������ ����� �
��� 	
�� ��� ��� ���� 
�'�
��--
���,�

�,%#� ��� '���� 	���� ��� 
�����	��� ��� 	������ ��� ������ ��
��	�� �����
� ��������� 	
�� �	���
���	������
��-	���
����
-�
�	��	
��	-�
������
�����	���
�,�

�
���������	������������
�	��������
���
1�

�,%$� �	������������?%&�4���������
����A ����
�������6�'�������	����������	
��������	�������
���� ���������
� ��� 	� ������ ����� ����� ���� 	�� �������-�
�� �
� ��� �	���
�� ��� �	��
�	�+�
��	��	�,����������?%&���	������	�>�

<�����
��	���������-�
��'����
������	���
�	��	���������	������� ����
�������������

                                                           
#�����
���
������������?%%���--
����3	��������>����������
����A ����
��3	���������

Page 481



��%����

'����
���������-������������'���>�

)	*��	���	����
����	
��	��������-�	����
�����	-�
���������
��������
�������������
�������������������	��.��������������.�	
�������	��
����
�������
�������	
������
��
��	���
����
��	��
	����������������	��������
�����
��	
��2�

)�*����������
	��:	���	-�
������	��.����������	��	������	��	
��-�
���	
��
�	�+�
����	���������������������	
��� ����
������������2�

)�*�����	������-���������	���
����	�	�����	
��	���	�	
����������	��	2�

)�*�	���������	���������������
�����8������C����
��.���������
�������	���
��������	��
�
�������'����
���������������������2�

)�*�	���������	�����������.�'����������	��������	���������	����	�����������	��
�-����	
������	����'����
���������������������2�	
��

)�*� ���D�����������-�����
������������-�
���������'�����	��	����'��������������
���-���	��,�

�,�&� ��� '���� ��� �-����	
�� �
� 	
�� �������-�
�� ������	�� 	������
�� 	� ��� �	���
� ��	��
�������
���	���
���	������-	�
�	�
�����������������������	�������������-�+����	���
��	����
��	
���--���������
�
��-�+���,�

�,�%� E��
���
������
��������	��� ���� �����������-�
������	���	�+�
��	��	�.� ������
����
'������:���������
�����	�������'����
���
���-�
��������	����������������.�������	�����
�
����������������������	���	��	����������	�D	��
�����-	�
���	��,�

Page 482



��%����

'#� +�����-��2-,�827�,��,9����6��26��-�7�,7��8/����,��

�,%� /��������'�
�����	���������	������������� ����
��	
�����-�����������������������'���������
��������	���,�

�,�� /��� ������ ������ �
� ���� ����� 	��� 	

��	����'���� )8C*� ��� )C8�*� ��� �
���	��� '������� 	�
8������C����
�����C����
�����8��	���
������,�

�������	��
���������������
�����+���������������-���������������
����2
	��

/�����-	� � � � �9�<������������
/���C���+� � � � ���C���+�������
�	����
���-�� � � � �	����
�E	��
/������
���(���� � � ��%�!�'-	�+���<�	��
;���������

� � � � %#�������
��������
�����
����	�	
��)����/���/���;���F�����	�	
�*�� � %9$�(����������.����������
�
A	������C�	��
������� � � %���1����<�	��
3����C������ � � � %�9�L�%�#�!�'-	�+���<�	��
3�������8��� � � � "��(-������
��<�	��
�����
�(�
��)C8�*� � � � ����1����
�<�	��
����
�;�	��
�)8C*� � � � ��E	�����������
(	�-	+���� � � � ���(����������.����������
�
@�

��E��
� � � � #&��	-�+�
�<�	��
/���1��� � � � ���
��<�	��
1����
���-�� � � � �&��1����
�<�	��
�	
��
���-�� � � � ����	
��
��������
�����	
����-��� )C8�*� � � %�$����������
�<�	��
N��
�A����� � � � E����	
�E	��
/���<	
��� � � � %&&�(����
�<�	��
<���C���� � � � %%�C	���
�<�	��
<���
�(���� � � � %�3����
�<�	��
/���<��+� � � � �&&��������(�
��
�<�	��
<���-	���C�	
��� � � �&�������	-��8	
�$�
<��	����	
�	��� � � � �$��1����<�	��
����
���	��� � � � ��$�!�'-	�+���<�	��
/��������� � � � !�������������
��
�� �C����� � � � � %%�����
���	���
�
/���/	����(�� � � � ""�(�����������
/���/������ � � � %9����������
�<�	��
/���G
����
� � � � %��(����������.��������(�
��
�
/���E��������� � � � ��"�!�'-	�+���<�	��
�
�������	�:������	��	�������������	
��
���������������
����������:��	�	�������������
�������������������������

��� 	
��	���-��� � � �������'�������������
/�����-	� � � � �9�<������������
/���C	+���� � � � %"9�A	���<�	��
C	��
����C����)8C*� � � � %$�C�������������
/���C�����
�(	
��� � � "��!�'-	�+���<�	��
/���C���+� � � � ���C���+�������
C���������-�� � � � $�%%�!�'-	�+���<�	��
�	-�������C���� � � #��#"��'������������
�	���
�������-�� � � %#��=������	�<�	��

                                                           
$�/�����	�����
�-������
���������	��������
��������
�����	���
���	����
���
�������	��-	������	���	���-�
��-	��
���
����	������������������
��	���������'����
��	����
��	-��������������-�
���
���������
��
��	��	,�

Page 483



��%9���

�	������

�)8C*� � � � �9��#��	������������
��	-���
��������/�	-���)8C*� � 9#�O�
���������
��	��
��
���-��� � � ����9���	��
��
��������
��
�����-�� � � � ����	������������
;���
��������-�� � � %�;���
������<�	��
A�-�/����� � � � B���	����������
/���A-������ � � � �%�(�����<�	��
/���A-������ � � � "��/���	���������
/���3�����F�8	��� � � � %#�1�����
����	���
/���3���
������ � � � %&9�(�����<�	��
/���3����������)C8�*� � � � "����������<�'�
/�������	������	��� � � � %���
�'������������
/�����	���� � � � !�������������
��
(����
�� � � � %%�%��3	����������
O�
���������<
�)8C*� � � � ##�O�
���������
O�
����
���-�� � � � ���O�
����
��������
8����F�8���8���� � � � �&�1	'��
�<�	��
1	
��
�����1��
� � � ��!�����+��������
1	������ � � � �&�������	����	���
1���	
	�)���-���C�	�+	-�����(�	�*� �&��=������	�<�	��
/���1�����)8C*� � � � %"�%#�C�������������
/���B�������
�� � � � %�3������	���
B����
����-�� � � � %&#�(�����<�	��
�	
��
���-�� � � � ����	
��
��������
/����
����)C8�*� � � � ����
��(����
/���<	
��� � � � %&&�(����
�<�	��
�	���������-�� � � � "9�/�
���
�<�	��
�������	����		��!�'��
� � � � #���	������������
/����
�� � � � %"&�A	���<�	��
���@��
0����������� � � �%����!����	-���
��������
���<	���
�� � � � %�$�O�
���������
/	
��)���-����
���
��;����*� � !	������������
/�	-�;����� � � � ��;������������
E	���-	
� � � � ������������
�<�	��
/���E������'	
�� � � %&$�1����<�	��
P���	� � � � � #&�1	�����	��'	��
�
����� �	��
	=� 
��	
��	��
� ������	�����������
� ��	��
����������� ����
����� 	��������
�������
������������

����C	��B
�� � � � �9�����
���'���������
/����
�����)C8�*�� � � ��������������
/��������� � � � 9$�"��<���
���������
C	�������)C8�*� � � � #�1	�+����	��	���
/���C	���(����)8C*� � � � ��C�
�������������
C�	������ � � � %�����������
�<�	��
/����	�����)C8�*� � � � �"�����
���'���������
/�����'�)8C*� � � � ���
�A ��	
����������
�0����0�����+����� � � ����O�
���������
A	����)8C*� � � � � C�
�������������
A	������;�����)C8�*� � � � %�$�(�����<�	��
3��������������)8C*� � � � =������	����
��
/���3�
�	�
� � � � %��<���
���������
/�����	
�	� � � � %��!�'
�	-�/���	���
���	��!������
�� )C8�*� � � %�����	���
�<�	��
����
�1	
�)8C*� � � � ���(�����������
(�
��0�� � � � � N	������
@	�	��)���-���������O���*� � $��	 �
��������

Page 484



��%"���

/���@����������	��� � � %�O�
���������
/���1���� )8C*� � � � %��1����8	
��
B���B���	
�� � � � 1����8	
��
��

��3����� � � � %%&�E	�����������
���+��������

�)8C*�� � � �&�1	��	��
���������
���
���<���
�� � � � %$�<���
���������
<���8��
�)8C*� � � � �&�1����A
��<�	��
/���<��	��)C8�*� � � � �#��$�����
���'���������
<�������
�C	�� � � � ��#�;�'
�
���������
����F�8������ � � � ����������
��������
/����
��� � � � 9"�8�
�������<�	��
/�	��������<���� � � � (
��
���
�<�	��
/���G
����
�� � � � ���������8	
�.�/�-��
���
�
�
�
�

��������������	��:��������	�����	�����:���
��'�F��	��� � ��
��(���� � � L�������������
;+������������ � $&��������������� � � L�������������
3����C����� � %���(����������.��������(�
��
� L�������������
������
�� � $�������	-��8	
�� � L������������-����	���	���-�
��
/�������������������������������������������� L� ���-�����
� ���� ��--
���� ��
����

	
����	������'�������
(	��F�3�	������ � ���C	���
�<�	�� � � L�������������
@������ � � "���	��	��
��������� � L�������������
<���-	���C�	
��� �&�������	-��8	
�� � L��-	������	���	���-�
��
<����F����'
�������������������%%&�!�'-	�+���<�	�� L� ���-�����
� ���� ��	
��� ��� ��� ����

�������?������
��	��	
���
��
	
��	�����������
	������������
�

Page 485



��%#���

�

.#� �+���27>�

���
�����	��
	� ��'���� �	������-��������������� ����������
���
�	�
�
��	�� ��	����
��
����-	�+���������������.�	
��	��	
������
�
����	�����������.�����	���	
+�.������
��
����������	
������	�	
��.�	��'����	�����	���������	�������������	��	�����	��,��

�	
����	�2	�� �� �������
�.�-�
-�
�.� ����.� ��	��.� 	��	���� �	
���	��� ���
�������	��
�	��
�� 	� ������� ��� ���
����	
��� -�����
�� ��
�����	���
� �
� ��	

�
�� �������
�.�
���	������ ���� �����	��� �
������,�(����	���	������ �
�����������
	���������	���	������
	
��
�����
	���������	���	���������
�����������������	����	

�
��	��������)�
����
��
���	�������
�*,�

+����� �	��
	� �� �
����� 	� �	
��� ��� �-	��� ������ ��� 	� ���	�� 
	���.� �����
�� 	� �-	���
�	���-�
�,� /����	���.� ���	�� ��
����� -����� �
����.� 	-�
���� ������ �����.� 	� �-	���
����-	�+��.�	�
�'�	��
�.�	����������������	
��	���	�-	��,�B������	��������������
�
�����	�����������	+�	'	��	
���	
�������,��

6��-�L�/���!	���
	����	

�
���������3�	-�'��+�)	������������"�1	�����&%�*�

�����	�	
����E������������
����	���'����
���������-	�
������	����,��A 	-������
�����
/��	����.�!���������	
���	��
��,�

8	����	���/���/�'
�	
����
������	

�
��)G�����	����*�B�����%$#"�)	��	-�
����
�&&�*� ���	�������� G��� ��	����.� '����� ��� 	� �����-� ��� �	��������� ��� �������
�� ������ ���
���,��

8	�����2"� �� ������'����� ���� �	��.������	����� �������� ��� ���������
��-�-�������� ����
������)�����.��	����������*,��

8	� ���� 2 � �� 3�
	
��	�� 	
�� ���������
	�� ��������� '����� ���� ��������� 	��� ���������
���
���	�������������
��-�-������������������)�	
+�.����	���	��
��*,��

8	�����2$���<���	�	
���F��	�M������	����'������������-	������������������	���	
��
��
�-����
���������	
���������������-�
���
��������-����,��

8	� ���� 2%� �� ������ �����.� '�
�� �	��� ��� ������ ���
+�
�� ���	�����-�
��� �� ���-�����
'����� ���� ���-	��� ������� ��� ���� �	��� 	
�� ��
�-����
� ��� 	��������� ���
+�� �
� ����
���-����,��

8	�����2'� �� /	+��	'	��� �� ���-�����'����� ���� ���-	��� ������� ��� ���� �	��� ��� ����
���������	+��	'	�,�

8	����� � � �� (�����	��.� !���
�� (�-��� ��� <�����
��	�� �������.� ��������� ��� /�	�
�
��
��
�����'������������������������
��	��	���--��	���
�	
���	��������������
�
����
����	���)��������	
�������'����
����;'����
��(����*,�

8	� ���� �"� �� !�
�<�����
��	�� �
�������
�� �� ���
���.� ��	���� ��
����.� ��Q����.� �	��

�������.� �	�� ��
����.� �������.� 	��� �	�������� )������ ��	
� ���� �	��� ��� ����*.� -��-�.�
����	����.��	���.���	�������'������.��������	���.��	'������.�,�!
�
��������
��	�����	���
�
F�	
����	�
�
����
����,�

Page 486



��%$���

*#� 8	� ���� � � 4� ���	��=� ����� ���� ����	
�� ����=� ������ ���� ����	�
�����;������������������<=�:�����������=�1������
��1=�����������
��
	��
��
������
��
�������
���
������
	�
	������;	&�	�����
�����
���
�=��
�:�	
	�
��
	�
���
	��	�<#�

���� �	�	
�� 4� ?�	
	� �	� ��� ���� ����� :������ ��	� ���
� ����� �	� ���	#��
,&����	�������	���	��
	=�6������������������#�

6��-�3���	�6������������������������-
��	:�
1�;��������	�� *���
��� !" <�

Page 487



���&���

*#� ,5��,6�,�/2�,�0��,5,+���,6���-������

����
���	� ������� ���	� ��
�	�� 0� ���	
��� ��������� ������� �������	� ;�52�
����	
��+	��
	=����� !" <�

����	��������������	�7	�	������������	
�+	��
	����������� !"!�

8@��
��	��������	��	��� "�A��	� !""�

B���������	
�+	��
	�?���	��7	��
��?���	
� !""C !" �

-������������	�.�-	�
��
�� !" �

8���	
�������?�
:��1=��
����	����/���1���������
����,�������
���������	�8@�

�&��
��,�������=�/		
���������3�+����������;������	�� %���-	�
��
�� !" <�

�����	���
�6����������������=� !"!����4�	�
�:�
1������	������������	�����	�
;".����.%��	�
<#�

6�
:������������������
�����	�	����	��������	�	���������	������	���

�	�	
��
�����������������������	����
	���
��	��������	���

+������/�
���������	
����8����
���	�	����	�������������	
� !!$�

+������/�
���������	
�����
����������	��������	��	�	����	��������	�	���
�����	���

?	��/	
1��
	���������3������	�	���
������������������	�D6�#")��������
���	E�

7����	�5���	��/�
�������������3������	�	���
������������������	�D��	�
7	�	�������������������	����7�
���2
	�E�

������������
	����
������������3������	�	���
������������������	�
D7	�	�������������=����������	���������������	����5�����	E�

����������1����
������������3������	�	���
������������������	�D7	�	���������
����=����������	���������������	����5�����	E�

�������	���
���������������7		�
���D������������	E�; ���,������<=�A����
��
 !" �

����0���+�����������
���
		�=� !!*�

5�
�������������2��	����	������

Page 488



���%���

(#� /2�@�7�86�����8�,6���
�

�	-�������8��	����	
.��	-��������������
���.��&&9�

!	���
	����	

�
���������3�	-�'��+.�1	�����&%��

�	-�������������(����������F��
����-���	

�
������������	
�������)�=��(������

	
��8�����.�1	���&%�*<�

Page 489



�������

266,9�2�3��27@,��6����72�,��,��

�

E����������������������������
�	�
���'����
����������.������������������
�������������'�
���
�
���-�����-	�+���
��	�����
��������-����������������������
�������
�9>�

• ;��	���� ��	��� ��� ��������� ��� ���� ��-�	
�?�����
� '��� �	������ ��� ���� -	�+���
��
� ������,�

• /���1	�+���
���������� ������ �	��� ����%��-�
���.�
�����	� ��������-	�+���
�����	�����
�	�����
�����	������ �
�'����
��'�������� ���	����	

�
��	�������.� �
�'������	����
���9��
-�
���������:����,�

• /��� 	�+�
�� �����%&� ������ ��� ����	������ �
� '����
�� '���� ���� ���	�� ��	

�
�� 	��������
�����'�
�� �
����
��
�� �	�	���
� )�
���� ��� ���� ���������*� ��� 	� ���������
	�� <����
�	����'����� �������� �
� ���� ����
���� ������� �������	
��'��� ���
����
�	���� ���-	�+���
������������,�

• /���-	�+���
��� �����������������������
������������	
���������	���	�	��	�������-�����
	��������
��-���	�	
�������������
�����	��	�-�
�-->�

o ��3����	��?3���<�
�����
��	��2�

o ���������-�
��%%��
�����8��	�������2�

o ���������-�
��$��
�	�������	�����	���-	�	H�
��?D��
	��2�

o ���������-�
��$��
�	�������	�����	���'�������2�

o ���������-�
��$�������������
	���
	��	
�����	�����	���	��
���)�
����
��������
'�������*2�	
��

o ���	�������-	������������-	������	
�	������������������
��	������	����,�

����������	����	���������	����)	
���
������	������	����
��	��.��	�����������	���*�'�������
��:����,�

• C�������������	
����	������������
�����������-	���	�	��	����'������	�7���0���:���
��
��������	���������
+���������������
����	
��'����������������������
	
�����	��'����
�����'���������
�� ������	��	������������ ���� ��	���������������	����.����'�����.�
���	�����
�����������--
����������'����
������	+��������������-�����	
����	������	��
	����	���
���� �����,�

• ������� ��� 	��� ���	���� ��� 	����	����� 	
�� ������� ������ ��� ��������� ��������� '���� ����
��	��
��	�����'���	
���������	��
������
�	�������,�

                                                           
%&�/���	�+�
�������)�*�����������	�����
������	�	���
�������������	��	���	��
�����'���������,����������������������
���������-	�+�����	��	����������	���.����	����
	�������	
��;%���	������.���������
��������
��	��
	�������	�+�����	�
�	�	���
����	�����	���������������	�'�����	
���������,���
%%�����������������
�	�
�	���-��	��	-�
��������	���	��	���������������
���
�	
����	���	��
��, 

Page 490



�������

• ����	������������--
������
���	���
�� �������)����������

� ��*.�����������	���������
�
���-��� 	���� ����-	�+���
�� ���	����� 	
�� 	���'��� ���� ������
���� ��� ��� ���������
�������'
����,�

• �
��	���-�������������������
����	��	�������'����������������������
��������������	������
�������
���� �
� �����
������.�	
��
��� ����	������� ��.� ����� 	-�������������
���'����������
	���-�	
��
���	���
�����	���	�+,�

�

Page 491



�������

266,9�/�4�5�2/�+��>�2��72��2+��

�

E����������������������������
�	�
���'����
����������.������������������
�������������'�
���
�
���-�����������������
�����	�	����������������	��	�������������-�
��'����������������������
���
����
�������
�-��	������	����	��	���--����	����--
�����	������>�

• ����--����	����	������������������	���-�	
��	
��	�����	���
��������������-�
�����
��	
��������,���

• ���	��	���������������.������
��������:������
��������-����	����	��������	�����������	��
��
��	������	������	���
��,�

• ���� ��	��
	���� �������� �	��� ���
� -	��� ��� ��������� ���� ������ ����� )�
����
�� 	���
����������	���
������
��� ������*�	
�������
��������������������	�����	�����'����
������
���
�-��	������	����������	�
����������
������������������� ����
�����	
��������7�0������	��,��
A 	-�������������
���	���������������	�����	����������� �������	���	�������'�>�

o ����
��	�+�����
�	
�������
�������'�������'������	���
�
��	��	.�����-�����
��
����� ����
������������2��

o 1	+�
��������.��	���
.������������-����7�	-��������
���02�

o �������
�� ���
��� 	
�� �
����	�
-�
�� ���� 	�� :�H� 
�����.� 	-�������� ��� 
�
�
	-�������������-���.���-���?�	�	����
�����2�

o (���
�����-�������������'�����������
��	���
���������	��-����
��.���--
����
�����.����
�����.�����������.��������
0���	��
�������2�

o ��������
��������F����	+�	�����������������	���--��	���
2�

o /��������
�������-��������'���2�

o ��	��
���������-�����'�������������
�����2�

o �������
���-�+�
����������2�

o �������
�� /������ ����--��	���
� �
� ����� ������� )�,�,� 	� C��� F� C��	+�	���
�����
*2�

o �������
��	����	��������
��	������	�������������-����2�	
��

o ������
�����
�
������2�

o B�����
���	+��	'	�������	
����������
�����������,�

!���� ��	�� ����� ����� ��� 
��� � �	������ 	
�� 
��� 	��� ���	�� '���� 	����� ��� ������ ������
����,��;���������	���
��������
���	����������
�'	���������	�
�������������������
���������	
��
��������������	����
	�����7�0����,��

Page 492



�������

• ;��	����������	�������������������	
����	
���������������������� �
��������������	��
��������
���'���� ���� ��	��
�� �
���-	���
� ���� %� ��	�� �������	
�� )��� �� ��	��� �
� ���	�*�
��	��-	���	����-�	������
��������
���,��3���� 	-���>�

o ;��� ���� ���
�
�� ����� 	����� ��� ��	�� ���� ��� ���
��� ����� ����
� ��� �����
���:�
���I�

o E���� 	
�� �	��������� )�,�,� +�����
.� �	���� ��	��.� ����� �	���� ���*� ��-����� ���
����	�����
���)�,�,�:�H*��	
������I�

o E	�� ��	��� ���� -����
��� ������������ ��� '���� 	
�� ���	�� ������ ����� �����
�����
����
�������������	��I�

!���� ��	�� ����� ����� ��� 
��� � �	������ 	
�� ���� ���	�� ��	

�
�� 	�������� -	�� ���+�
�����
������������	
�	�����--
������
���	���
����������,�

• /��� ���	�� ��	

�
�� 	�������� '���� ��:���� �����
��� ��	�� ��-�
���	���� ��	�� ���� ������
����� �	�� ���
� ����	���� ����������� �,�,� ��	�� ��� �	�� 
��� ���
� �
� ������� �
� ������ ���
�-����� ���� '	�� ���� ���������-�
�,� ������	
��� ������ ��� 	'	��� ��	�� ���	��
������?����-���� '���� �������� 	
�����	�� �����
��� �
� �����
��� ��� 
������������
��
���	���
���
�	
����	

�
��	�����	���
���-�����
,�

• E�������	���������������
���-�
���
����
����������������������	���
������
�.���	
�������
���������������	
����'�����	�����
�����	���.��������	����	

�
��	��������'������:����
'�����
��������,��/����������	+���������-����	���	������;���	�	���
�
����	+�
��������
�'
��?-	
	���� )��� 	� '�����
� ������*� ��������� '���� �������
�� ���-�
��� ���� 	��
�����������-�����-���?��������?��	��.��
�����������'��+���	��������.��	�����������	����
��� 	���'�	���-�	����
� ��� �	��������,� � 3���-���� �
���-	���
.� ���	�����
�	���	���	

�
��
�������,�

Page 493



���9���

266,9���4�����86��>��2����,6���26����6�8+�2���6�

�

E���� �������� ��� �������	
�����
�	�
���'����
� ����� ����.�	
�� ���� ���	�� ��--
�������� �
�
�	�����	�.� 	�����	
��� ������ 
���� ���� �����'�
�� �
� ���-�� ��� �	����
�� ��� ��--
����
��
���	���
>�

• �� ��
���	���
� � ������� ��� 	��� ������
��� 	
�� ���
������ )�
� ������ ��� �	+�� 	���
�� ���
�-��������'���-����������� ������*�'����
�	��&&-��	������� ����������������������	���
����	����������
��'����	���>�

o 3������.��
�	��	
����������-	�+���
���������	����������
����������	
���
��

� �
�.� ���� ���	����--
���� )������
��?���
������'����
��&&-�	������	����*� ��	���
���	������������������
�����
�'����
�������--�
���
��������������-	�+���
��
���	�����	
������	������	�+�
��������%�,�/�������--�
�����	���������'	��������
�������	����	

�
��	��������������������	����-�
����������
��

� ��2�	
��

o ����
���.� 	�� ��	��� 9� -�
���� ������� ���� ��	

�
�� 	�����	���
.� ������
��� 	
��
���
������'����
������&&-��	������	������
��������	�	�
� �
�'����
��	
��	�+���
�������������
��
���
������������������ ����
��������-���������������	������,��/���
���������������� ���������	��������-����������������	����	

�
��	��������	���	���
�������	�����	���
���-�����
,�

• ;���������� 	��� ��:����� ��� �	���� ��� 	
� 	�����-�
�� ��� ���� 
����� ��� ���� ���	��
��--
����������--
�����	���������������'���	������� ����
��������-�����������������
��
��
����
������	
��'��������	��	��:	���	����
	�������������
����	�	��	�����
�����	��	�
��� �������� 	�� ��	��� �
�� ��� ���� "�&� '��+�
�� 	��� 	����� '����
� 	� �&&-� �	���-�
��
�	���,�

,���

• /�����
����'����-	�
�	�
�	�<�������������--
����������,��/���8��	���-������&%%�������	��
��	�������	
����
�-�
	�������� �
�����
��
������<�������,��/�����
����'������
������	���
���� 
�-�
	���
�� ������� ���� 	������ �������,/��� ��
���� -	�� 	���� ��
������ 	���
��
����	�
� ������ ������ ��� ������--
���� ������� <�������� ��� ���� ��--
���� ������� ����
����������
���
�������
����	
�,�

                                                           
%����������
�������

� ���

Page 494



 

 
���������	
�����������

������ 

 
 

��	
�������� 

��������������������

������������
��������
������
���	��������
��	��	�
������� 

�
�
�
 
 

�
�
�
�
�
�

� ��
�

���������������������������

��

�

���������������

 
 

�
 
 
 

Page 495



��������������������������� ��	��	���

 

 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � �����

 
 

����
���� !���������� ���������
���"��������������������	���	���
�����#
��"�$��%
�&'������
�

���������� !�� (((((( ��
���"����������������
�����	����������#
��"��)�%
!������
�
�
�
�
�
������������
������������������� �����
 
 
 
 
 

Page 496



��������������������������� ��	��	���

 

 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���$�

��	��	���

!�� "#$%&'(�$"&# ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)�

*�� #�$"&#� �+�%,-$�$%-#'� ����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������.�

/�� 0-#��+�%,"#���#� 1�"���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������!.�

)��  &�� �+�%,-$����-��+-#$������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������*!�

2�� %-�"-3�&��� �##"#���& "�1�4�'-�"�"&#�����������������������������������������������������������������/5�

6�� �& "�1�&�$"&#��4�%-�&++-#'�$"&#����������������������������������������������������������������������27�

�

 

 

 

Page 497



������������������� ��������#�
*���������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���)�

!�� "������������

0�����������

�(�� +'����
����,������&�'��������������
��	-�����	������*�����'��	���	��
�����-�(��.	���&�	��

!�
���������'
	����������	��
�����-��'
/�����	���������
����	
��/������0������*���

������	��
����/������	�0������&�	/����	-�*���!��������
��
	��0�
	������������!�

&����	-(��

�(�� 1
���	
��!0��'�������	�����!����*
&�	-���**�&����������2��'�
��������&�����	0�����	-�

�	�����!��	�0��
!�&����
	�������
�	��
	������&���	��	���
��2
-���
	���
�
�����
���

��
��	-����
�����&���	��	�������
�����	&����(������'���
����������������&���'
/��

�	&��
������������	&��
�����	��'��&�����*��
2��
����
��0���
	������&����0�
	��	&��
����	�

��+�
	���'���3&�����
3����!���&
�
���(��+'���'
��&�����	�����
��������**�&��������
���

�!��'�����4�	-��
	0�������
�4������&��	��	-��*�
�&�'��0�
	��&'
	-�	-����	4�	-�

'
����(���

�($� �&&����	-�����'�� �����'� ����
	����������&�
���	� ���
�	�2
������	-�)5������
�2��4�

����	-����60�
	���5�
�2��4��	�����(������������)��������	�*�2�����	����
���!�
��
�������

�
����*�����!�$()7�����'����2������	&�����)(����
��!0��/�	������������
��
����&'�
��

�
�����-��'
/�����	�
**�&�����!��'����
�/������
�4���&�	�����	�(���

�()� ���
	�
���
&��/��
	�������������&��!0�������	�����!�
���-'������	� ���0��'�����������	-�

���
	��*���'����	-��������	��
�����-�(��+'���*���0�
���'���
��������
���'��&��!8��

�����
���*
&����!���&��	�	-����
	�0��'����
���
�������������	-�������������&�	/����

�����������	���'����	-(���2�/��0����������'�������������0�������	������	�����'
/��

���	�
���������&&���*���!������	�����0�2��'��'��%����	� ��2��!���&&���*���!������	�	-�

�'��#�/�	�'��������(���

�(5� #��������'���
����*�&�������0����2�	-�
	�������
���������4�!�&�	�����������'��	
���	
��

�&�	��!�2��'�
��������
�����������*�9�6()�������	0�-�	��
��	-��
3���/�	����*������

�'
	�9���������	(������'������0�2'������'����/����*������!��	�����*
���	-0��'����&����������

��������������65�0����:���0�'�-'��-'��	-��'��/
�����*��'���������&����	
���	
��!0�
	��

����������
	&������'���&�	��!���&
��!(��

�(,� �����&�'������
���	����	�!�������
	��
��
�/��
��������&��
	����&�
�������	-���
&��*���

&����	�������'�!�
���
����
�/��
���
����*��'���&�	���&��
&4
-���*���2	��
	��&�����0�

���/���	-�
�4�!�
���
&���	�*����/����
��
	���������&���������0�
	�
���
&���	�*���

�����	����	�����&��	-��'������
&���*�����!0�
������	-���
&��������&��������	�����0�
�

��
&��*���2�
�!��'��������������0�
	�����/���	-�
�����&���*��
���	�-'��&���������*���

Page 498



������������������� ��������#�
*���������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���5�

��&
���
4�;
2
!�0�����
��
	���
	��	�-'�&����(��+'�!�
����'���*����
	��	��-�
���
����*�

�'����&
���&�	��!(��

�(<� +'�������
���&��
��!��'��&
����	��
�����-��2'�����&�	��!���������	�����
�����!����
���
&��

�'�����-'����������	��0�
&
����&��
	���	������	����0��	����/���	-�
���
&��*����'����

�����������	���
&��
	���3&'
	-�����
�0�
��2����
�����	����	-�
������
�������	
���	�

*�����������(��

�(�� ���
��!0������&
	���
!�
	�������
	��������	���������	-��'����&
���&�	��!�
	��

&����	��!��	��
�����-�(��+'��&��	&����'���*����	�����
�/�&���	��������	�	-��'��

*������/�
�����!��*������
	���	���
		�	-�����&!���������&���'���*����'�-'���/
����

������	��
����/������	��2'�	��'�����������*��
!�������'
/��
�/�
����*�������	��������(���

�(6� ��
		�	-�����&!�&
	��	�!�-�����*
�(������3
����0���
		�	-����������	����	�����=���������

&�	/����
�����*���������)�����&�
������
	��$�����
��
	�0�������*�����	
�����/�&����**�&��

�������'��(��.	������2
!��������������
	��������
�	��'���)�����$�*��3������!�
���
	!������

'
/���	�!��
	
-���������/�/���'��*
����	����
	��*������	4��!���/����*!�	-��	���-
����;

����������	-�
���&'������/����
	-���*�*����������	�4����	-�2��'��'��������;&�
���

������	��	-���*�-�	���*����
��
���	�2'�&'��'�!��
!�*�	���'�����/��(��1�/���'�����0�

�'����
���
�	�������*���'����������'
��&
	�����	/����-
�������'�����
*�-�
�������(��

������������ �����

�(��� ���������������������'
���'���*�������	�&��������	�������	����
4��
	�
������*�

�����&�'�������	��
�����-�0����
�/�����'��&��	&����	��'��	
���	
��
	����&
���
�4��0�


	���������
����	��������
		�	-�����&!�-���
	&�(��+'�������������/�����
	��/��/��2��*�

����
�����
	��
���
��
���*��'���
�����-�������
�4�����-��'���2��'�
���/��2��*�

��
		�	-�����&!�
���
&4-���	���/���	&��*����'���	��������
	�	-�����&!�-���
	&�(��

�(��� ������������������������'�����&�
����������0���������
	����������
�/����!�
����*����0�

�	���*��'��>?8�������������!�&�	����
	&���(�����'��2��/���**�&���&�/���	-��'��2'�����*�

�'��>?0���������������������'
���'��&
�
�����!�������/�����'��*�����
	-���*��������!�


�/����!����/�&�������'��������������	����
&������'����-��	�(��

�(��� @�������������
		�	-���	�����	-���
�����
���
��	-�
�/�����������������	�����!(��@���

���&�
�������
��
�/������
	!�&���	���*�����'�������&���&�����	�����������
		�	-�����&!(��

@�����&�	��������������
�����
����
���
��	-�
�/���������'�������&�'������	�����!�

                                                           
 
 
 
 
�����
���	�����'����������������������2
����;��
	�����	���	�������
	����&
������8��������
	������������
�(��
�2�/��0���	&���'���������2
��2�����	�����������'���&'
	-�0��'����*���	&�����������������������������
�	(��

Page 499



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���,�

&�	��&��	-���-��
���������!�
	������	����/
��
���	��*���	
���	
�0���-��	
��
	����&
��

����
����(���

+�
��������

�(�$� +��&���������'�������!�2��'
/���	����
4�	��'��*����2�	-�2��4";�

• ����/��2��*��
�4������	����	��'�������	�����!0� �	&����	-�
�&���
����	��*��
�����-��

2��'�
�	�������*���'���'������&��	�/�����!���2	��
	��&�����A�

�

• �	�
������*��3����	-��������/����	��	��
�����-�0� �	&����	-�
�/���������
&'������!�����

���/�!���� ��� 
������ �'�� &'
�
&�������&�� �*� �
&'� ���� 
	�� �'�� �!��� �*� �
�4��� ��� ���


�������	-A�

�

• �	�
�������	���*��'����&
�������
�4���*�����'���!	�'������*��'���2��4A�

�

• ����/��2��*�	
���	
��
	����&
����
		�	-�����&!�
	����&����	�� �	����
���	����������
���

*����'��&'
	-���*������������/������	���*�����A�

�

• #�
*��
	��*�	
������	������
	����	-��������
		�	-�����&!�-���
	&�(�

�

�(�)� +'�����������������������*�	��	-��
	����&����	�
���	��2'�&'�2�������-�	
��!�

&�	���������'���-'������&�&�	����
���	(��+'���������2
��
��	����*����2�	-�

*����
&4�*�����'����&�	����
���	��*������
����*��'���
&4-���	������'��.	������

��
		�	-�����&!�����
	&��B.���C(�

Page 500



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���<�

*�� #��������+�����$�����

"��������������

�(�� .	��'���&'
�����2�����/����
�����*��/��/��2��*��'�������&�'�������&�����	��'��>?0�

&�/���	-���&�	��	
���	
���
�4������	���
	��4�!�*
&��������
&��	-��'���	�����!(��+'���

2�����	*�������������=��	��
	
�!�����*��'����&
���
�4��(�

+�������8�

�(�� �'������'����&��	���*��'��������&����'
�����	�
���	-�
	��-�
��
�����	��B2��'��'��

	�������*����������'�
���*��'�������
���	�*
���	-�&�	�����
��!��/����'���
���&�	���!C0�

�'�����-	�*�&
	����&��	���	����������!�
���
������'
/��
&&����
�����/����'���
���*�/�����

��	�!�
��������(����

�($� +'�� �����'� ����
	�����������&�
���	�B  ��C������
����'
���'����2����550����������	�

 ���
�	��	������&���
�������
���	��560�����	����)(��.	����6�
��	�0�������'
	��0$5��

�����&�����0��=�
��	-����
���&����'�-'��*�5��&��������
�2��4��	��'��*�����'
�*��*��'��

!�
��B
	��)5�����2��4��/����'��*����!�
�C(���

�()� ���'��-'��'��	�������*�&��������*�������-'��!��	������B�0$����	����
�C0�����	��
��!�

�	��&
��	-�������
��	-��*�����������	��'���
�4��0��'���/��
�����2	2
������	��'
��

&�	��	����2��'������������&����	-�
��
	�
/��
-���
����*��,�����2��4��	��'����&�	��'
�*�

�*�����(��.�����	�2������
������'
���'����
���5�0���������
	���
���
&������'��>?(���

,��%����+�����$�����

�(5� ��������	���
��/�0��'��>?�������&����'
�����	���&��	�	-��/����'���
���*�2���&
���0�

2��'�
���-	�*�&
	��*
������	��	��'���
���*�/��!�
��������(���

�(,� �'�������&'��*��'����&�	����&��	��&
	����
��������������'��&����	����&�����	���
&�	-�

��-	�*�&
	�����
�	��	�&�	�����8��������
�����	&���0��'����'
/�����	�
�	�������*�

��'���*
&������/�����&�	��!�
���2'�&'�'
/��&����	������&��
����	&��
��	-�!���**�&����

��
��	-�&�	�����	�0��'���*��&�	-�
�-��2�	-�	�������*���&�	����������*��'���
�4��(�����

���&�����'��4�!������������2(���

                                                           
 
 
 
 
��  ��������
�!������

Page 501



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � �����

�

!979�0��&����������
�%�������
�������

�(<� #�������'���
�4�������	
	&���!�
���
���	�������*����2������2��'��
�-���2	�������

���
����B��&'�
�� 
����'
���	-��	0��������
	���'�����
�C��!��'���
����6���0��'���6�6�

 ����@������2�����
������'���-'��
���
��	���	������������!�
	���	&���
-��

&���������	�
	��&�	������&'��&��2��'�	��'���	�����!��!�������	-��'����/����*�����������

�����2	���'����!����2�����(���

�(�� �2�/��0��'����-���
���	������	-�!�'
�����
��/��!���������**�&���	��'���/��
�������&������*�

�'���	�����!0�2��'��'���
�	����2���������	��	-��!���/����	-��'�����2	������
�������

��
	�
��	������&���
	����B���&�D�C�E���
	�	-��'������	
	&��
	������&�����

���
�	����
�-��!��	&'
	-��(���

��-�����(�"�@2	���'����*�>?�������/���+�����!�+!����*�@���
����

@2	���'���+!��� �6�6� ���)� ���6�

#��������0�:���

+�	
	���F���
���� ��0���� �� ��

%
	
-��� ��0���� �� ��

���������	 
��	 	 	
� � � �

%�������0�:���

+�	
	���F���
���� 60���� 506<�� ,05���

%
	
-��� $0���� �0,�<� �0)���

���������	 ���	 �����	 ���	
� � � �

"��;������������;�����

+�	
	���F���
���� 1�-��-����� �$0�5<� ��0$���

%
	
-��� 1�-��-����� ��0�,�� ,0����

����'������ �,0���� �,0�5�� ��0�$��

���������	 ���	 �����	 ����
	
� � � �

$����� 65<555� 29<26)� 22<2/5�
����
����������
�������	����	�����
�
������������

 

�(6� +'�� ����@����������	��
��!0��'���*���0��
2��'��&��
���	��*���
	�
��	������&���
	���(��

+'����'
/��&�	��	�������������/����'���
���*�2���&
���0�2��'���	
	����
	���
	
-���

���&�8���2�	-��/���'
�*��*�
��������
&������'��>?��!����6(�����'�	��'��0������������
����

�'
���'����3��
�-�������&�D��B��	&'�+
/��	�0�G	���������.		�0������
��+
/��	�0�%��&'�����H�

 ������0��&�����'�H�1�2&
�������������
	!�
	��������������C�
&&��	����*���
���	��

�	���'�����*������!(���

�(��� ����'������0��	�����0��'���
�-�����&�8��������
&&��	����*���������'
	���0,��������;�

�'���'�-'��-'��	-��'��&�	��	��������	
	&���*�
�*�2��
:�����
!����2��'�	��'���
�4��0�

2'��&�	��	���������4�
	����/������������	�������	��'����-'����&
���	�0���������2�����

Page 502



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���6�

�&�	���&�
	���
�4���&�	�����	���������	-��	�
���-	�*�&
	��	�������*�����&���������/���

�'���
���*�2�!�
��(���

��������0���

�(��� +'�����4�	-� 
	�&
����	���*��&���	�G	-�
	���	����!����<(����	&���'�	0����'
��'
��
	�

���
&���	��'�������	�����!��!�&'
	-�	-�����&�������
	��
�-�
��!�����&�	-��'��


���
���*������*����
	!��*��'��
��������;-��	-������
���	�2'�����4�(���

�(��� .	��
���&��
�0�%�	���$������
����'
����#G)����;-�����
-����5����5)�!�
���'
/�����	�


��	-����'�������
**�&�����!��'���
	(��I��	-����������;
-��&�	������0�
	���'����

2��'�	��'�������&��;�&�	���&�-����0�
����!��&
��!�
��	-����'�������*��=��	������

-����0�2'�&'�'�-'��-'����'������	��
�����
&���*��'���
	��	�������
��(���

�(�$� +'
��
����0��'���
	�'
�������!����	�2������&��/����!��'��-�	��
�������&�
	��

��&�	����(������
�&'��!�+'�������&
	�*��	���'
��
�=�
������*������'
/��
���
&����

	�2�&���������
��
���������*��'���
	0�
	���/��
��������<$7��*���&�	���������������

�'���
	���
!�	-��	���
&�(5���

�(�)� @	���*��'����--�������
&���
����	-�*�����'���
	�'
�����	�*�����&�	����������/�����

&�/����������������4�	-�
��
�(��+'�����
&���*��'�����4�	-��
	�'
�����	�-��
�����*���

�'����������'
��
���J�
	���&4��8�2��'����
&&�����������������
&��*�����/������	�0�


��&�	�������
������������&�
	�������
	�����������	��	&�/�����
��
�������4��

B����&�
��!��	��'��2�	������	�'�C0�2'�&'�'
����-	�*�&
	��!����
&�������	���
���
��

�'��������(���

%��������$������
�0��'����-���������

�(�5� +'��'�-'���
	���	&��
��	-���/����*��
3
���	��	������&�	��	�������'
/��
��
:������
&��

�	��'�����*��
�����!��*���������	������
&������'��>?(����	&�����)0������������
�����'
��

��������!�'
������	��!�5�7�2'�����������
�����	������'
/��*
���	��!�
���	���57(��.	�

����
��	�0��	�
������	�����'���(57��	&��
����	���+0���������!�������!�<(�7�B
���	�����

�7�
��/���	*�
���	�����C0�2'�����
���'���
�������0�����������
�������������!�*�����!�
�

*���'���$()7(���

�(�,� ���'��-'������
�����������������
����'����&������	���&�	������0���������&���	-�!�

�	&��
��	-�!���**�&��������	*�
������&�����**�&��	��!����*���!�&�/����
3
���	�&����0��	�/��2��*�

                                                           
 
 
 
 
$�%�	����.��
&���*��'����&�����	��	���	���������������
�����%
!������
)� 
�����	��'����
	�
�����&��;�&�	���&�&�
���*�&
���	���*�� 0���0���0�#�
	��G�;�2'����!�� �����'�������
**���	��
	��
G�����'����
��(��
5�.	��������*��������&�����&!�����
�&'��
	�
�!������B��*���	&����4!�1�2��@	��	�����<C�

Page 503



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ������

�'������&���������
�����	&����
	�����	���	���������
&��/������
��	-���&�	�������


	��4�!��
�-���
-��
	����&��;�&�	���&�-��������������'����&�����	(���

�(�<� +'��*���'����	&��
����	�
�&�'����
3�
		��	&����	��'��%
�&'������ ��-�������3��&����

�������*���'���
	��&�	��	��������������	��'����&����
�����&��������
	��&�	������

������
�����	&�������
�	����-'����������'���&�	���&�&���
��(���

��������:�
����&��=��������������

�(��� +'��-��2�'��	�
�&�'����
����*�����**;��&�	������������0��
���&��
��!�������
�4���0����


	��'���4�!�*
&�����	��'����&��	���*��'�� �����'����(��+'��  ���	�2������
�����'
��

������
�4����
&&��	��*���<�7��*�
���
�&�'����
���0�2��'��	�!�$�7����-'���	��	;��&�	����

��������(����

��-�����(�"�>?� �����
����/�
��'��J@	8�
	��J@**8�+�
����B7��*����
��>?�������
���C�

�
����
�������
�

�(�6� %�&'��*��'��������������'��
�����!��*�������
�4�������
�������
3
���	�&�����
	�������


�&�'���
��
���2������
������&��B��������&�	�������*��&
��C0�2'�&'�'
��2���	����'��

-
�����2��	��**;��
���
	���	;��
���&�	�������	(���	&���6�<0��'��  �����
����'
��

�'����'
�����	�
���<7��	&��
����	��'�����&���*�������	������&���
�������:����
�5�7�

�	&��
����	��'�����&���*������������'���-'�������
�4����
	����'����**;��&�	&��(��1���

��������	-�!0��'��  ���
���&
���	-�*����'��-�/��	��	��*����2��
	!�G�����
	�

-�/��	��	����	�&����	-���+��	�*����
	����/��
-��������	������*������7����57��	��'��

�
�����'
���'�!�
����	��	*
���&���������	�2��'�������
�4��(�

�(��� ���
�������0��'����'
�����	�
�	��
�����'�*����2
����
�&��������*���&�
����	-�
	�����	4�	-�

F���
!�	-�
��'���0����'�����������&��
	��
�-��2�'��	�'�����	����
�	��	����&'�
��

-
����&�	�����0�����/����	�
	��#�#�0�2'�&'�'
�0��	����	0�&�	������������*
���	-�
�&�'���

B�
���&��
��!�����C��
�����	�����(��+'����'
��
�������	�
�����	-�&��������*�J���;��
��	-8�

Page 504



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ������

����&�
��!�
��	-�!��	-�
������2'����-��������������
���
&'���'���'��������*����

'
	��
	�����	4�&'�
��������
�4���
�&�'�����*����/�	����	-������
������������
	��

&����(�

%������������

�(��� .	�������	-�!0���	&���'��������0����&�8��'
/����&�����'�����:�&���*���&'�&�	���/���!�

2��'�	��'���	�����!��/���&�
�����*�'�-'���2'����
������&���*����'������	
	����F����������(��

+'��0�&����	���2��'���'�������	-�&�����B��&'�
��������!�
	���
����
��&����0�
��2����
��

���	���	��	����
�	��	�������!�
	��
���
&���
�4����'
��C�
	������&���&�	������

���
	�0����&��
��	-�
	��	&��
��	-�!���**�&������
��	-��	/���	��	��
	��������������!�
�

4�!�&�	�������	-�*
&�����	����/�	-�
�-��2�	-�	�������*���	
	��������*��'���
�4��(���

%������+������:�����

�(��� @	���*��'�������������/�����	���2��'�	��'���	�����!�'
�����	��'��&�	�����
����������	�

�'��	�������*���&�����2������
&������'��>?��	���&�	����&
���(������'����
����*��'�����'�

��	���!0������������
�����'
���'����2����������'
	��0$������2����������
��
&������'��

&��	��!,(���2�/��0��!��6<���'���'
��*
���	����:�����)����&
�����	�
���
���	�������*�4�!�

��2	��
	��&�����0�
���'���
�-�����2�	-�&���
	������	�*�����*������&'	���-�&
��


�/
	&���
	���&�	�������*��&
��0��'����!�*��&�	-���
����0������&��������/�����2������

�����*��'���	�����!(���

�(�$� +'�������
���	�����������'��*���
���	��*��'���
��
�-	�*�����
������B��%��C��	��6<�0�

2��'��'��
����*������/�	-�&�	������&'��&���'���-'��������	-�&���������	�
	��

��/�����!�2��'�	��'���	�����!(��+'��������=��	��!��������-��2�	-����
	��*���=�
���!�
	��

��-��	
����/�����!�2'�&'0��	����	0��
2�
�������	��'��	�������*���
�����-��	
�����2������

�
�-���	-���������&��	�	-�&���������2'��
���2����	-�����
!����-'��!������*���=�
���!0�

��&
�����2�(���

�(�)� .����������
�����'
���!����)��'��	�������*����2������'
������	����
���	��)���E�*�������

�
�-��!��!��'��-��2�'��	���
��;�&
�����&�����2�������	������	�������'��&'
	-�	-�

&�	���������
	�(������'���
�������0��'����'
�����	�
�	��
����*
����	��'��	�������*�

�
�-������2������B2��'�
	������
����)����
/�	-��'���
�4�����	&�����<C0�
����
��;�&
���

�����&���	����	����&�	���&
��!�/�
����*����'����&���
	���(��#��������'��0�'�2�/��0��'��

��
��	-���-��	
�����2������&�	��	���������*���2��'��
	!�
&=����	-���
�����&���
	����


	���'������
	��(�����

                                                           
 
 
 
 
,�>?�+�
���
	��.	/�����	�������	�������

Page 505



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ������

�(�5� .	��������&�	��!�
��0��'���
3����
4���	�����&����!��'�����/������
�������/��	��	��

'
/��
&����
��
�*���'����	&�	��/��*�����
��;�&
��������&���	(��+'���&����	���2��'��'��

-��2�	-������
���!��*���-��	
�����2�0�'
��*���'���������
�����'�����	��2'�&'�&�	��	����

���-��*��������	-�'��������	-�'�2��'�
���&����	�������*���&�����2������
&������'��>?(��

.����������
�����'
���'����
���	�2�
���	��6������2�������	��'��>?0�*����	-�
�4�!���&����

�*� ���
�	8�����2�	-��	�����!(���

"�;��������
�%�������

�(�,� +'����&�����	�'
�����
&����	�-
��/��!��	�&�	���������	��	-A�2��'�
��
���&��
��*�&���

�	�
�����&���	��	����&�����	
�!����������3��	�������B�(�(����	��	-��'
�����	����������


������	��
�C(��+'���'
���	&����������&����3��	�������
��*����
	����/��
-���������(�

+'����&�����	�'
����/������
����	����	&���'�����;�66����*�!�
���	�!�
���	&��
�����	�


�&�'���&�	�������	�����'�
�(���

�(�<� ���'��-'��
��	-�����
	��-��	-�����*���
����	4����
�	������
����������
&��/������B�
�-��!�

��������'�������
��/���/��!�
!�
**���
�����!�
	���'����&�
��
���&���	/��/��C0����'�

*��=��	&!��*�/�����
	��
/��
-���3��	�������
������F�
���'
/��*
���	���-	�*�&
	��!��	�

��&�	��!�
��0�
	���'����'
�����	�
	��	&��
��������
	&���	����&�����&��	��	-�F�

��������	
���**����2��'�	��'���
��	-������
�4��������!�
	��������
������
	�(��

�(��� +�����'
������'��0����2��	����<�
	�����60�%�	���<������
����'
�����	��2��'�	��'������

��&����*�����!������<(<70�2��'�)$7��*�&�	����������������!�'
/�	-�&����
&4��	�

�3��	�������
������F�
���E�
�������'���
�������
�&'��	��&
�����'
�0��	��'��2'���0�
�

���
��/��!���
������������	�B67C��*�&�	���������
	����&����
&4�*���'����	��'���
&��/��!0�

��--����	-��'
���'���
�4���&��������&��������������2�������	�(��

�(�6� +'������*���'��������������!�����
�&'���	��&
��	-��'
���'��*��=��	&!��*�����/������'
��

����	��	��������&�	����	�'�0�2��'�
	������
����<7�������/����'���
���,���	�'���*�����0�

���*����)($�/������������	�'����
	�
/��
-���*�)(,�/������
&������'��>?(��+'���'
�0�

'�2�/��0����	��**�����!�
�*
����	�
/��
-�����	�(�����

"�������������=��������

�($�� #�������'��&'
���	-�	-���
��	-�&�	�����	��*
&�	-��'���	�����!�
	��*
���	-�J2���

��/�	���80������
����	&��
��	-����!�	-��	�*�����
���������!�
	�����/������	����
	��

�����/�����*��
�����!(�������3
����0�%�	���6������
����'
��*�����
����'
/��-��2	�*����

                                                           
 
 
 
 
<�%�	����.��
&���*��'����&�����	��	���	������8���������
�����%
!������
��K��*������������������
��������������	��������F���� 
6�%�	����.��
&���*��'����&�����	��	���	������8���������
�����%
!������

Page 506



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ����$�

�)7��*����
��������/�	����	����)����
���	��$�7��	����6(��+'������
��
&��&
���'�*��*����
	!�

����
�����F���&�	�����
�0�������������&���&�	���������	��
	��
�'�
/!�����
	&���	�

���&�����&��	��	-0��/��
����'���
��	-������
�4���B����&�
��!�&
��
����	�	-���&'�
�����;

����
��
	��C�'
�����
�	����	���*��'��������������	����&�����&���
���������'�����������


&��/�����0�
	���	�����&���
��������'�� �����'�������
�4��(��

�($�� �	�
	
�!�����*������
�����	�*�-�����($��'�2���'
���
:�����-��	
�����2��������	��?�	-0�

%
����	�0�%��&'�����H� ������
	�������������'�H�+��	���'
/��
���
&'��/�����4��*�����4��

�
����-��2�'�����	-��'����&�����	0�'�2�/��0�����	-��'���������
&'����2���'
��

�	&��
����*�����
����
��
����������	��*����
���
���0���--����	-��'���
�	�&
�����*��'���

-��2�'�'
�����	�*�����	&��
����*�����
���(�

��-�����($"���-��	
�� ��2����
�������2�'�

 ��2��� ���6� ����� �����

��4��*�����4���
�������2�'�

����	�?�	-� L�(<7� L$(57� L)(67�

%
����	�� ;�(,7� L�(<7� L�(67�

%��&'����H� ������ L�(,7� L�(�7� L�(,7�

�����������'�H�+��	��� L$(�7� L�(<7� L$(67�

>��������������������

����	�?�	-� /2>� /.>� )5>�

%
����	�� /7>� )5>� )*>�

%��&'����H� ������ )!>� ).>� )7>�

�����������'�H�+��	��� *.>� *7>� *9>�
����
���	
��
�����������
� �����
�!"#$!���%��%�����&����	��
�����

�

�($�� +'������	�����*���'����/���	&����!��'��-��2�	-�	�������*�J-
����8�������'
��'
/��

����-���
&������'��>?��	���&�	��!�
��0�
	��&
	�
����������	�
��
���&
����/���2��'�
�

��-	�*�&
	�����������	��*�������	��
�����-����/�	-��������2
�����'������
��
	��

����	����������
	��
2
!�*����
���
�����	
�����	4�	-����
����'��	�(����

�($$� .�����������
	�����	���0�'�2�/��0��'
���'��'�-'����
����*���+��	��'��>?��	���&�	����	�'��

�����4��!����'
/��
	����
&���	�*�����
����
	���'��&��������/���������	��*�������	��'��

*�����0�
�����&���&�	��	����������(�

�
�������������������

�($)� �	��'���4�!����	��&�	�������	-�����'���/��
�����&��	���*��'�� �����'�����'
�����	��'��

&'
	-�������&
��&����	�������/�������(���'����!0�'������&
��!0��'������2
���!��&
��!�


���'��'�
����*��'����&
��&����	��!0�&'
	-�	-�&�	��������*���!����'
/����
	���'
��

�
	!������	����	-���*�����'���
���*�&
�����	��*�����&
��&����	������E��
�-��!��������


���&'��������
	���	�������
���	0�2��'�������	����*��	�'
/�	-���&'������2����!�

������������&�
��	��2��4�(���

Page 507



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ����)�

�($5� .	����
��
��
���
	!�/���
-���'
/��&'
	-���*������&
�������!��	��&�	����������&�	��

'������&
���	��2��'�
�&�	�����
��!�����&�����&
��&����	��!�F������
���	��
��(��.	�

�����&
���0��'���'
����
	���'
���'��!�
�;���	�������
���	����	-����/����!�
������	�


����
��
��
�'
�����	���&��
���0�2��'��������&�	��'�����2	�����	�!����	-��'����

�������!B���C��	�
	�����-��
���
���(��.	���2	�0�������!��&
��!�&
����	-������&
���	������
��

2��4����'
/��
������**�����*�����'����&��	���*��'�����	����������/�������(���

�($,� ��	-������&'
	-����	� �����'��
�����
	����*����!����'
/��
������������������&��	�	-�*����

,)7��*�
�&�'����
�����	��6<5����:����$<7��!�����(������'���
��������2�	���
����'
/��

�	&��
����*����:������7��*�
�&�'���&�	�������	����$�7(��+'����
!�
���������	4�������'��

����-�	&���*�
�������=�
����&���!��	�2'�&'�������	�2�:����
��
&&���
����*���2���	�

���J-������*���
����	48�
����	(�������2'�&'�'
/��*
��������
�
�������'����
�4����!�

�
4�	-��'����/�	����
��2��&���	-����2���	�
����	0�'
/����**����(�

�($<� ��-�
��!0��'����*
&�����'
/���*��	�&'
	-����'��	
������*���&
��&����	������2'�&'�

'
�0��	����	0����
&�����	��'��������*��'����
�����	
��&����	��!����(��.	������
��
�0�

�����
	�������'
/�����	��*����
	��������	��!����&����	���'�����**���2��'���'�����&
��

���/�&����'
��
����	�����'��
��B*����3
����0��'��/���
-��������
	��������**�&�C�����	�����

�'�������/�/
�(���

�($�� +'��J��������'����8����
�D	���*������*��D�
�/����!���-
	��
���	�2'�&'��	&���
-�����&
��


��'�������0���&
��&����	�����0���&�	����0������2	����
	�����2���������2��4���-��'���

����������0����
�	�
	����&
������/�&���2��'�	����
�������
	��'
��
�/������/���$��

&����	������2'��'
/��&�	���������
4�	-��/����'������������	����������
!��
��
�

&����	��!�*�&
�����	�(��+'����-
	��
���	�'
���
	
-�����������
�����������2������


	������-�������	&����	-0���	&'�+
/��	��
	��G	���������.		�����������������

&����	�������	�
��'����������
��������'
���'�!�&
	���!����*�����

$�;�����(����������

��-�����()"���������	�
	&���!���	����
	���-��

�
����
�������

Page 508



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ����5�

�

�($6� @	�
/��
-�0������������
�����'
��:�����/�����7��*��'��
����������
���	�/�����
�����
��

��
����	&��
�2��4(��.	��������*�-�	������**���	��
��0������
��������*��=��	��!�/�������

�!�
������
���0�2��'��/����	���'����/�����	-��	&��
�2��4��������(��+'���&���
�������
�

�����
�����������	��*�2���	�/�����	-�������'
	��	&��
���	�'0��*�
��
��(���

�()�� ����'�2	0������
�������������
��
��	-���!���'��
	��!��	-F������;
-���
�����0�

2��'�
������$�7��*��,�����)�!�
��������
	��
���	���57��*��'����
-����5����$)�!�
���

/�����	-��	&��
�2��4��������(���

�()�� .	�������	-�!0�'�2�/��0�
������
�����������	��*�
������2��'�	��'����
-��&
��-������	�/���

/���������(��+'���&������
���!����
�����������������	-�	
���	
��!���'��	�����!��	����
	��

�'��!��	-���'	�&���	����!������
���	��
����0�2'�&'��
!�'
/������������&
���	��*���

�'���	�����!��	��������*��'�������	���!�*����'����
�����������-��
��!�/�����������������

*
���	-�������
�����	&����
	������-����������*�(�������

��-�����(5"���������	�
	&���!���&�
����
���

 

����
�������
�

�()�� ���'��-'������'����
	�
���
��
&�����
�����&�
��-�
�����0��'�������*��=��	��������
���

�����
**���	��� �
	��
�����	-�����	��/���
��(��.����������
�����'
��������'
	�
�=�
�����

�*�
������2��'�	��'������&��;�&�	���&�&�
�����/������'������
����
����	&��
�2��4(���

�()$� �2�/��0��'�������
���!�
��	-������������	������&�	&��	�	-�
���'�����	��/���
���
���

��4��!�������
��	-����'�������
**�&�����!��'��&����	����&�����	0�2��'�����
�&'��!�

%�	�����'�2�	-��'
����#G��
����'���������4��!����'
/��&����
&4��	�
�����������
&��/�����0�
                                                           
 
 
 
 
�����	
	&�
��+�����,������
�!������
���>	�/�����!��*��
�2�&40����*�����*� �
&4�
	��%�	����!�G�'	�&���������	��'��>?�

Page 509



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ����,�

�
���&��
��!����	4�	-������*��'��'���(�$�������'������0�
�����/�����!����&�����0��'��

�
�������
�&'������
�����'
����#G����;-�����
-����5����5)�
���������*��'�������


**�&�����!��'�����4�	-��
	0�2'�&'�&����	���2��'��'�����
&���*��'����&�����	0����

��4��!����*���'����'�*������&���������2
����*���;�����
���0��
���&��
��!�2��'�	��'�������


**���	��� ����
��	-������
�4��(���

#��������+�������������

�())� +'��  ��������
����'
���'��	�������*�������	� ���
�	�'
����&��	����!�<0�����	��'����-'��

!�
�����	&�����)0�*����560�������5�0���0�
�*
����*���7(���

�()5� �'����0��	��/���
��!0��'����&�����	�'
��
�-�
��!�'
���	���*��'��-��
��������
&����	��'��

��&�����	���&�	��!�
��0�&����&��/��!0��'�����4�	-��
	0�������	���+�
	�� ����#��!0�

&���������	�*���������;�
�4����
	��&'
	-�	-���*���!�����'
/��
���&����	������&��
���


	��	&��
��	-�!�&��������/��
	����**�&������
��	-��	/���	��	���/�������(��+'����&�����	�

'
�0��'���*���0��	��	��*����
	�����
�&���
�	��3��	�0�
&&����
����
���2	2
������	��

�'
��2
��
���
�!�
��
��	��2��'�	��'����&���0�
	��2'�&'�*����
	!�����
�����
	��

��&�	�����'
�����	��'��*�	
��&�	�������������'���/�	��
��&��������*��'��������	���(��

�(),� %����/��0�
��'��-'������'
/��
����
��/��!����
��
���
��
&����������
-��
	����&�
��

-�
���0��'��*��=��	&!�
	�������	���!����/�������&��	���2��'�
-�(��+'������*�����	������*0�

��
	���'
��2��'�
	�
-�	-������
���	�	
���	
��!0�&����	���2��'�����	-�!���'�F�!��	-�


������	�����!��	��
	��*
���	-�������
�����	&���0����&
����*���&�	&��	�2��'�	��'��

�	�����!�
	�������4��!����*���'������
&�����	��
�����	��	;��
������
����'��	��(���

�()<� +'���	�����!�'
�����	�
�
���	-�����'���������������'���-'������������&����	-�2��'��'��

������*���&��;���2�����0��	&��
����	�*�����
���0�
	�������
���!0�����&�������(�

                                                                                                                                                                                     
 
 
 
 
�����
	�
�����&��;�&�	���&�&�
���*�&
���	��2'����� �&�	�������
���&�	���������'�������
**���	�0�*
���	-�����'��G�
��&��;�&�	���&�-������������	��	-��'����
���
**���	�(�
�$�%�	����.��
&���*��'����&�����	��	���	������8���������
�����%
!������

Page 510



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ����<�

/�� 0-#��+�%,"#���#� 1�"��

"��������������

$(�� .	��'��*����2�	-�&'
����0�2��&�	�������'���
�����*����������'�
���*��'�������
���	��	�

�
�����-�����
��/�������-��	
��
	��	
���	
��
/��
-��0�
��2����
����'���&���
�
����

�����	
���	��2'�&'��
!�'
/���3�����	&��������
����������	���-'���*�&����	���&�	���&�


	����
��	-�&�	�����	��
	���'���/��
�����&��	���*��'�� �����'�������&���(��+'���
	
�!����

2����'���������
2�&�	&�����	��
�����2'��'����'������0�����	��
��!0�
	��/�������	����

�����!��*������2��'�	��'�����!��*��
�����-�0�
	�����'�����	*�������������=��	��

��&����	�
���	�(�����

#��������4�%����������������

$(�� �&&����	-�����'���
��������
�����
	
�!����
	�����
4��2	��*��������&40������������
����

�'
���'����
���&����	��!�)50���������
&�����G	-�
	�(�)�� 
�����	��'���������&�	��

������'���2��4�	-�
-�������
���	������
����50��'����=�
�������
�	
���	
��
/��
-���*�


���	���	������*����/��!�<�$�2��4�	-�
-��
�������	�G	-�
	�(������

��-����$(�"��	
�!�����*����������!��!���-��	0������
���*��'��������	�������
���	�

��-��	�F����
�
+��
��1��������

�*������

������	��
�����
���	�B
-���

�,����,)C�

�����������
����

��	��	� )05�)� 50$6�06��� �0�6<�

G
����*�G	-�
	�� )05�5� $0<�)0)��� ��5�

����'�G
��� ,06,�� 50)))05��� <���

1���'�G
��� �0$�$� �0,660<��� <$5�

+��
��G	-�
	�� )50���� $�0�5,05��� <�$�

�����%���
	��� )06<�� $0),�0)��� ,6,�

1���'������ ,0<�)� )0)<�0���� ,,<�

I��4�'����H������� 50$�<� $0),�06��� ,5��

G
���%���
	��� )05�5� �0�650���� ,)��

����'������ 50$6�� $0$�$0$��� ,�)�
����
���'��(�)��%����#��*��

�

                                                           
 
 
 
 
�)�@3*����G&�	���&�0� ����
	�������E���&
��#
�
�B������'����)�'������
�!�����C(��1���"�JG	-�
	�8�	���J ���
�	8 
�5�@**�&��*���1
���	
����
�����&�0���������;!�
��2��4�	-�
-�������
���	������
����B�,����,)�!�
��C(�

Page 511



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ������

$($� .�����������
	�����	�����'
��2'�����2��
&4	�2���-���'
��������	���
-���,5�!�
���
	��


��/��
����/���������0��'��2��4�	-�
-�������
���	�B�,����,)�!�
��C�	�/���'������

�������	����'�����������
����
	��&�	�����	����/����*��
�
�
/
��
����*���&���
�
��/��

���������
&�����
�����-��	��F�
��
�(���

$()� ����'�2	0��'��G
����*�G	-�
	��'
���	���*��'��'�-'�����
������*�2��4�	-�
-�������
���	��

�������0�2��'���)�2��4�	-�
-��
�������������(��+'�������'��'�-'�������������	�
&�����

���/�	&�
��G	-�
	�0�2��'��	�!���	��	�'
/�	-�
�'�-'����
���(��+'���'�-'��-'����'
���'�������


����
��/��!���2������!��*�����0��	��'����-��	����
��/������'��
/��
-��*���G	-�
	�(���

 ����������������

$(5� +'���
����
�
�,����/�����
����
4��2	��*����������!��!��
���
��	��&�	������	&!�


	���	��&
�����'
���'����
���&����	��!���5������F���&�	��������������	��
�����-�(��

���
��!��'������������'
	��	��&
�����!������2	�����
�&'�2'�&'��	��&
�����'
���,������

���
�	����	�B������:�&�������*�����'��	�C(��+'����
!����
���*��&���	��*��'��������
-�

���2��	��'�����/�!��
	���'��*
&���'
��2�������/���'
���'��@3*����G&�	���&��

����
�&'���
���
!�'
/���������&
��
��'����!��
��	-�������2'�&'�2�����	&�����������'
��


���&����������	���!���&�	/������
	���'���*�����������
����
������(��.	��'�����-
��0��'��

�
�����-�����!������&�'�������
��	-������'
����$�����0�2'�&'�����	�&�����&�����
���	�2��'�

�'��*�-�����*���5�������	��'��@3*����G&�	���&�����/�!(��+'���*���0�
��'��-'��'����

*�-������
!��/��;�����
����'��	�������*���������������	�2�������/���'�!����/����
�*
���

&���
����	����2��	��
&'���&
���	(���

��-����$(���	
�!�����*����������!������
��B�������4�	-��-��������	��C�

��&
���	�F����
�
+��
��1����������

�*������

������	��
�����
���	�

B
-����,����,)C�

�����������
����

@3*����H����	-��	� �<,� �5$0�66� �<)�

G
����*�G	-�
	�� )05�5� $0<�)0)��� ��5�

�
�����-�� ��5� �,05$,� ��)�

1��2�&'� �<�� ���0,,5� <5��

+��
��G	-�
	�� )50���� $�0�5,05��� <�$�

I��4� �6<� �$�0$6�� ,<��

 ��-'��	�H��/�� �<�� ��,0��,� ,<��

�
	������!� ��,� <�0<�,� ,���

#��'
�� �6<� �<�0�<�� 5<<�

 
�'� ���� ,�05�,� 5,6�
��������	
������������

                                                           
 
 
 
 
�,�@3*����G&�	���&�0� ����
	�������E���&
��#
�
�B������'����)�'������
�!�����C�

Page 512



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ����6�

�

$(,� ����'�2	0��'���
�����*�2��4�	-�
-��
���������������	��
�����-������	��
��2��'��'��

��-��	
��
/��
-�(���2�/��0����2�����
���
���'
���
�����-��'
���	���*��'��'�-'����

	��������*�
��������������&���
���������'���'������&��	�/�����!���2	��
	����������

�����	
���	����&'�
��1��2�&'0� ��-'��	�
	�� 
�'(��@	�!�@3*����&���������
��'
/�	-�
�

'�-'���	�������*�
��������������2��'�	��'���
�
�����*�&���
�
����&�����(��+'���2�����


���
��������
	��	��&
���	��*����
��/���	��������!��*�������	��
�����-��B
	��

@3*���C�&���
��������'��	
���	
��
/��
-��
	��&���
�
������2	�(�

$(<� ����'��0�2'�	�&�	������	-��'��!���'������
���	�
��	��B�(�(��,�����)�!�
��C0�2'��
����'��

�����*��=��	�����;-����0��
�����-��'
���'��'�-'����	�������*�!��	-�
��������������


��	-�&���
�
����&�����(���

��-����$($"��	
�!�����*����������!������
��B����I��	-��������
-����,�����)C�

��&
���	�F����
�
+��
��1����������

�*������

������	��
�����
���	�

B
-����,�����)C�

I��	-�
�������
��������

�
�����-��� ��5� $�0�5�� ��,�

@3*����H����	-��	� �<,� ))06<�� �5,�

�
	������!� ��,� �)06<�� ��5�

1��2�&'� �<�� $�0,5�� �6��

 
�'� ���� �60�6�� ��)�

I��4�� �6<� $$05$<� �<��

 ��-'��	�H��/�� �<�� )$0�5�� �55�

#��'
�� �6<� $�0�5�� ��6�

+��
��G	-�
	�� )50���� ,0�5,06��� �$6�
����
��+,&-.��
�
�����

�

$(�� .�����2���'�	���	-�
���'������	���'
���
�����-��'
���,�&����-���
��(���'�����'����
���

������&��������'��>	�/�����!������	���
	����
**0��'���2������/������������	��	-0��
���&��
��!�

�!������	��0�*�����'����&
������(��+'���	�/����������	���'���&������
����'
/��
�	�������*�

�����	���
��0�'�2�/�����������'��&����-�
����!����0�2��'��'���3&�����	��*�@3*���0�

�'�!����	�����	�����'
/������
	!(��

$(6� �2�/��0��/�	��*�2��
���&����-���
�������'�����
��	�������*�������	��
&'��*��'��

��'����	�/�����!���2	�0��'�	�
��*�-����$()��'�2��2��������*�	���'
���
�����-��������'
���'��

'�-'����	�������*�!��	-�
��������������
	��&����-���
��2��'�	��'���
�
������*�

&���
�
������2	�(�

�

�

�

Page 513



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ������

��-����$()"��	
�!�����*�����
	�������-�� 
�������!������
��B����I��	-��������
-����,�����)C�

��&
���	�F����
�
�����-�� 
��� +��
��1����������

�*������
	��
�����	���
���

������	��
�����
���	�

B
-����,�����)C�

I��	-�
������
��������
	��
&����-���
��

�
�����-��� �,� �$�� $�0�5�� ��6�

@3*����H����	-��	� $$� ��6� ))06<�� ��5�

�
	������!� ,� ���� �)06<�� ��)�

1��2�&'�� )� �<5� $�0,5�� ��,�

 
�'� 5� ��$� �60�6�� �<,�

I��4� <� �6<� $$05$<� �<��

 ��-'��	�H��/�� $� ���� )$0�5�� �5)�

#��'
�� ��� �6<� $�0�5�� ����
����
��+,&-.��
�
������
'�	�(
��������	�����

�

0��
����������������

$(��� +'����
���<�$�2��4�	-�
-��
���������������	�G	-�
	�(�� !�&���
����	0��'����
�����)�


�������*�2��4�	-�
-���	��
�����-���������0��	���*��'��'�-'�����
������*�
�������������


��	-������
��'������&��	�/�����!���2	��
	��&�����(��.*�2��:�������4�
���'��	�������*�

!��	-�
�������������0�
���'��
-��-�����2��'��'��-��
����������	���!�������	4��	�����0�

2��*�	���'
���
�����-��'
���'��'�-'����	�������*�!��	-�
��������������
��	-�

&���
�
������2	�(��G/�	��*�2��
���2�*����'��*
&���'
���
�����-��'
��
����
��/��'�-'�

	�������*�&����-���
����
�-��!�������&������������	����	��'���
-��-����0��'��&��!�������'
��

�'��'�-'����	�������*�!��	-����������������
	��&����-���
���	��'��&���
�
��/��

�
�
���(���

$(��� ���
�������0��'�����	&'�
�4�	-��3��&����2�����
���
������������
����'
���
�����-��'
��


����
��/���	���;�����!��*������&���
���������'���'������&��	�/�����!���2	��
	��&������

2'�&'�
���
��������	-��������������	
���	�(�

Page 514



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ������

)��  �����+��������������

���������-?�����������������

)(�� .	�����������	*�����'�������!�������
��'
���	����
4�	�
	�
������*��/��!����
�	�	-�����

�	��
�����-�(��+'��
�����2
���	����
4�	��	��
��������
�!�����(��G
&'�����2
��/�������

�!�
����/�!���*����������
������	-��'���
!�
	��
��������
&&����	-����
	�
-�����

��
	�
���
�����=������		
�������&�	�����������!��0���&
���
�4��0�&�	���
�	��0�*����

�**��0����	4��
���0��	����
�	��	�0�&����	��!��**��0�-
���	F!
�����M��
	��=�
���!0�

���4�	-�
��
0�*
&�������0��
�	�
�	�����
	�
��0��	/�����	������	��
�0�
	��
&&���������!�

B��������	��3�
C(�����'���-�
�'�2
���
4�	��*��
&'�����*���*������/���*�&
���	(�

)(�� +'�����/�!���������2�����'�	�&���������	��'��*�����*�
	��3&�������
��'�����2'�&'�

�	&�����
����*���'����	*���
���	�
&=������*�������4��������
�&'���&'�
�����&���
��

2
��0������
���	�&
�&'��	�0���&
����
	�����-	
���	0����������
���0��2	���'��0�

�
	
-���	�0���
		�	-�
����&
���	��
�����
�!��*�2'�&'�����	&������
������	��3��(�

+'�����/�!���������'
/�������=��	��!����	��
�����
&&����	-����4�!�&������
���&'�
��

�����!��0��2	���'���
	��������
��������
���	�&
�&'��	�(�

)($� ���'
/��
��������*�!�
��������'�����'
��'
/�����	�&�����0�����	���!�������/������(�

@�/�����!0����'
�����	���**�&�������
�������'�����	�
����&'����
���
��2��'
/�����	�

�	
�������-
�	��	���	
��
&&���(�

)()� @/��
��0�������
��
��������������������0��*�2'�&'��$�2������������
��	-0���2����&������

�����	���-��	-���*�����'��	��B	�2���;���	��C0��	�0��'��%���0�'
��&����������2
��

���:�&�����
	�
����&
���	�*����������������	-�&�	��	��*�����*�����'��	��2��4�(��+'����
���

�'��J�,8������2����*������
�����������	-�J���	8(����

)(5� @*��'�����
�	�	-��5A��

�� �'���0��'��*������������?�!�0� �
&4
�������
�0�
	���'��#������'
�����	���*���!�

�	�������
��
	���B�
�
�0�%�-'
	
0�
	��+
	-0������&��/��!C0��

�� *���0��'��*������
��H���
�'���0��������0���2�H��
�*0�
	��#�4���*���-!��0�'
��


���
�!����	�����/�������*���'����	-����*�
��0��

�� �'���0��'����/�� ����0�����������!�0�
	����		!�����!0�'
����&��/������������	�*���

����/������	�0��

�� �2�0��'�������	��'�
�
	��
	���'�����!'��	��&����	��!�'
/��
����&
���	��

��	��	-�*���'����	-�
	���	������
������/������	�������&��/��!0��

Page 515



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ������

�� �2�0��'��N���	�G���'�
	���'��>	�&��	0�'
�����'�'
����&�	��
����&
���	��*���

����/������	����*����0��

�� �	�0��'�������
�!� �
	&'�'
��'
��
	�
����&
���	�*�������/������	��

2��'��
2	0��

�� �	�0��'�������H����2	�'
��&'
	-�������������BG��
����-�	��C0�

�� �	�0��	�!�0�'
��&������2��'��	�������	������
		�	-����������	����&'
	-��

*����
�&
*OF�
�����
�����
��
	�0�
	���

�� ����'����2���������!�&�����(�

+�����������������$�;��������

)(,� G
&'�����2
��&
��-�������
&&����	-�����'��*����2�	-��!���";�

• ������������������� �����;���&
�����������
����2��'�	�������	��
��
��
��2��'�
�

'�-'����������	��*���-��
����&
����
��0����
��!�2��'�����-
����
	���������

�	����
�	��	�0��*��	�2��'�
�/
����*�����**���	-A�

• -���������������������;����������
�����	�������	��
��
��
��������������&��������

�'����2	�&�	���0��������!�2��'�	�
�&��������*�	�&'����
��
��������/��/�	�������0�

�*��	��	�
	�D
����	
��/�D�&��&����
���
&��	-�������	���
	�������	���*�����'��2'����

&��!0�
��2����
����&
��(���������0������
!�
�������/��-����*���A�

• ����	�������$�����;�����
�����	�/���
-�F&��!�&�	����(����4����4��
������	�����
	��

���0�������*�2���0����/���
��(������������	&�������������0�2��4�	����0��'������0�

�**�&��2��4��������	-��'���
!�2��'���	&'�����*����
	��&���������	��'��P&��&���Q�

*���!��	-�����
����	��'���/�	�	-�0����&��������������*���������	��/�	�	-A��

• �����0���;�����
�����	���2	F&��!�&�	����(�#���	D��'
/������*���0��	��4��!�������/��


���0������
���
&��/������
!;�������������(�+��	�!0�!��	-���
���2��'����������

���'
�����	����������������&(������������	&������'������0��**�&��2��4��������	-�

�'���
!�
	���
��!��/�	�	-�2��'���	&'�����*����
	���*��	��	��'��P&��&���Q�*���

!��	-���J���	�!8���
����	��'���
�����/�	�	-�(���

• ���=%���������;��
��&
��!�
�����
��
	����������
��
����0�2'�����'�����'
�������

�	�*���0�����2'����!���������*�����'���
��
	��2'����!���&
	����������&'
���
�

���	4�*�����'���
��
	���
4��������!�����
����;��(-(�
�/�����0� ��*�
���0�	���
��!�

�
�	���
�������2��'�������*��
�4�	-(��

• %���������;�	����	-���
����(��I���'
/�����2
�����������
����
	��&
		���B���

2�����	���*����&��*���
���C���!����	4��*�����'���
��;��/�	��*��'��������	��*����'�2�

Page 516



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ����$�

)(<� +'����'
/�����	��
������	�
���	��3�&(��+'����'�2���'
���'��������
	�&����	��!�

�����
���*
���!��/�	�!�����
��
���	���'��	���'��	�
	���
����	����������*��
�����-�(��

+'�������
����
���-'����&��������*��'����������	��'��
��
��*�'�-'���	���!���&����
	�2��4����

����
&���'����������'��	���'��*��'���
��2
!���
���	����2��	��'���
��2
!�
	��&��!�

&�	������	-���
�(���

)(�� +'����
���
��
�
����'
��
	�������
	��&��������*�G�-���*���	���������	��!������
	��

2��&�	�������'
���'���
��
����/�����
	�������
	��&�	&�	��
���	��*������	���:����*���

�'��������	����	��'��������
���
��
�����*���������	���*����
&������'��2'����&��!�
��
	�


��
�2'�����'�!�&
	�&�	-��-
���
	����&�
�����
2
!�*�����'������������	��
	��

������������	
����������*��'��&��!�&�	���(�

)(6� ����&�	��&��������*�G�-���*���	���������	��!�����������
��	-��'�������!�������	��
��


��
��	��'��	���'�
	��	���'��
���������*��'��&��!�&�	�������2��	��
�4�����
	��������

�����-�(��+'��&����	��!�������	��'���
��
�2'�&'��	&������?�	-�������0�*
�����
��	-�

�����	���*����'��?�	-����������	0�
��2����
���'����
*��	���������'����	-�&�	���0�
���
�

������������J&'
�����	8��'
	��'�����	��'����
���	�
��
�
��/�0���������/�	-�2��4���0�

�'�������
	���������������	-��'���
!��	�
������	����
�&��!�2����
	����&
��&����	��!�

�
���
��	�-'�(�

)(��� ���!��
���
	���
/��	��
���&���������
��	-���-�	��������0�����	���28���������
	�������

��'������������	��'��&��!�&�	���(�������'�!����/��2��4����
	���'�������2��'�*����
	��

���	4��!��
!���*������&���	-���������	4�
	������&�����	�
������2
����!��	-�
������

�!�	�-'�(�

)(��� �	��'��������*�&��!��
/��	��
���&���������
��	-��'��&��!�&�	������/������0�2'�����'�!�


���
&������������!��
!�
	��&��!�2����������	������4�	-�*���
�	�&����
&������
��
	��

���	4��	��'���/�	�	-0��
���&��
��!���������/�	�	-�(����&�������*��'��/���
-�������

����
�����	�+�����	-��	�
	���'���!��	��	����/��
������
��&��!�2���������*���������	��0�

�
���&��
��!�
��2��4�	��(�

)(��� ���;����
��
	���
�������
��
���	���'��&��!����'���
��	-������
�	���
����	��'��

�������0�2'�����'�!�
�������/��
������
��&����	��!�����0����2��'�	��'��&��!����/���
-��

&�	����0�2'�����'�!����/��������*�
������	
���	�����(�

)(�$� +'���
�������	����'�2��'��&
��-�������*��'��&����������0�2��'��3&�����	��*��'��

�'����*�������������������
��	-�
������
��
	��(�����'���-
�������'����'�����'������/�����!�

'
�������������&�	:�&�����
������'����*������	
����0�'�2�/��0��������/�!����*�����'
��

�)�2�����������4��!�*������������
	�&����	��!���&
��0�)�2������-���*�&��!�

&����	��!0��'
�����	�&�	/�������������
��
	������������&������0�
	��$�2����*������

&��!��
��(��+'����'�2���'���
���&��
��������������	-�*�����!�������
	�&����	��!�����(���

Page 517



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ����)�

������������&:���
�;�

)(�)� +'�����/�!�
������&�����������!��2	���'��(��+'�������
������	�
���	��3���
	��

����
�������	��'���
��������2";�

��-����)(������������2	���'����	��
�����-��

@2	���
@��	� @��	�B	�2�

����
��
	�C�
������� +��
��

����	��?�	-� $<� �� 5� )$�

��	&'�+
/��	�� ,� �� 5� ���
G	���������.		�� 6� �� �� 6�
�'
����������� ,� �� �� <�
����
����� �� �� $� ,�
%��&'����H� ������� $� �� �� $�
G/��
���� �� �� �� ��
������� �� �� �� ��
���'������	�� �� �� �� ��
�'�����
�� �� �� �� ��
@�'��� ��2������ 6� �� ,� �5�
����'������ <� �� �� 6�
+��
��� �,� $� ��� ����

�

)(�5� ����'����
�����'�2�0�����	��?�	-��2	�
��
�-�����������	��*��'��������	��
�����-�(��

�����
���)$��*��'�������������2��'
/�����	��*����
��0����2������&�	��!0��2	����!�

����	��?�	-0�5��*�2'�&'�'
/�����	�&�����0�
	���	��B�'��*������������?�!�C�'
�����	�

���	����	���
�����
��
	��B�
�
�C(��1�	���*��'����'������2����������;&�8��&�����&�����

����'����M���*��'������	��?�	-����
����	��
�����-�(������	��?�	-��������2	�$<��*��'��

���
�	�	-��,�������	��
�����-��B)$7C(��+'�����
	���'
������	��?�	-�'
��
�/��!�

����	-��	*���	&���	��'���������!��
�4���*��������&�'�������	��
�����-�(�

)(�,� ��	&'�+
/��	��'
/�0�����
�'���'
�0��'��	�3���
�-�����'
����*������2��'���������0�5��*�

2'�&'�'
/��	�2����	�&�����0�
������'
�*��'�������
�����&4�<(�� !�&�	��
���G	��������0�

2'���2	�6������'
/��	���&������
	!��*��'����������	���&�	��!�
��(���'
������������2	�

<������0�
����*�2'�&'�
������������	0�
��'��-'��	������B�'���	&��	��#�����C�'
�����	�

���	����	���
��'�	��������
��
	�(������
����0�
�����2	���,��������	������&�	��!0�����

                                                           
 
 
 
 
�<���	&'�����
�����2	����'������������!���	������&�	��!0������'���2
�����������'����	
	��2'���	�
���	�&�������'������
	������������
	�
����&
���	��������/������'�������*���'����	-(��+'�������
����	&������2��'��'������'�������	��'���
����
��*�-����)(��

Page 518



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ����5�

�	�!��2��
�����*�����	�
�������B�'��@�����	��
	���'��%
	��	��'��%��	C0�2'�����	�����

��
��	-�
��
�����
��
	��B%�-'
	
C�
	���'����'
/��
������	�&������B�'����!
��

��
	�
��0��'���������0�
	���'��#�4���*���-!��C(��+'��%
!����0�����'���	�!�*������

����
������������'
/�����	������
��
����0�
	���'������	�2���&&���*���!���
��	-�
��
�

*���'����
	������	&�������	��'����*�-����(��

)(�<� %��&'�����H� ������'
/���'��������0�2'����G/��
���0��������
	�����'������	��'
/���2��

�
&'(��'�����
��2�����'
/��'
��
���&'��
�-������
�����*�����'�� ����@�����(��+'�!�

	�2�:��������
����'��+�
/�������������	�����'�� ��*�
������
	�(��+'�������	�

�'�
�
	�0�
�*����������
	��	�2�
�&����������
��
	�0�2
��*������!�
��'�����
�����0�

�����
!�'
/���
������'���-'���'���'
	�����	&�(��@�'������2������2��'���	-��������

�2	���'���
&&��	��*����5������������*�2'�&'�,�'
/��&�����(������'������
&&��	��*���6�

���������0��*�2'�&'���'
/��&������B�'������������!��
	���'����2�H��
�*C(�

)(��� ���
��!0����������&�8�0�	��
��!�����
�����
	����	&'0�
���
�����'
/��'
��
	�


&��/��������
��
	�F�������/������	�����-�
�����/����'���
���*�2�!�
��(������	��

?�	-0�
������������'
/����&���������
&��/��2��'����������&���������*��
��0�����*�2��*�


	!�'
/�����	��**�����*����
���
������(������&�������'
��
�������	�����	
	��
��	-�

�'������&�8��
	������
��
	��&���
	�����2	�	-�:����
���	-���������	��'��&��!(��%
	!��*�

�'����'
/�����	��
����*�&'
�	����&'�
��@���@���
	�0��'�����-�H������&�0�
	���	�!8��

2'�&'�'
/��
������	����:�&�����	
���	
���
���	
���
���	����-�
���������	-��'��

��&�����	(���

$��<�+������4���
����

)(�6� ��������
����'
���5��*��'�����&�����������'
/�����	���
2	�*�����'����	
	����

���
��(�����
��!��'�����&����'
���
���&��
��!���**���������	-��'����&�����	(������	
	����

����	���������
4���	��-'���	�!�������/����
���&�	����/�	-�*����'����	
	��
	���'����

*
���!0�
��2����
�����/���	-�
������	�*����'��*���'�������;�2	��(��%������	
	���
���
����

J����8�������&'
��	-��'�������	4���'���-'��'�����;&��������2��!��2	��(�@	��'����'���

'
	�0������������/����
����
��/��!��
�!��	��!��	����'������	����*�����	
	���2'���	�!�

	��������
����
�����9$�0�������95�0�������
&=�����
���	
	&!(���2�/��0��'���&
	0��	�

���	���
��������	����'���	�����!�2'��
���	��������������'������	���(�

)(��� �.�����-�	��
��!�&�	���������'
���
	
-��������'
/����	����������'
	���	
	���������

����	-��'����&�����	0�
	���	������������	��'���
�-����
	
-���������'
���
	!��*��'��

���;&�8�0����2��!�
	������
��
	��&'
�	��'
/�����	��	/����	-�����	-��'���
���*�2�

!�
��(��1�	��'�����0�
��2��'
/���
��0��'�����*��'��&������J����8�E�@���@���
	�0��	�!8��


	���'�����-�H������&��E�
���*�������
	
-��������2'�&'�'
/��
���
����	�*����

�
���	
���
���	����-�
����(���

Page 519



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ����,�

)(��� +'��*���'�������&�������=�������
����	��
�����-��2��'�:����6������0��*�2'�&'��2��'
/��

&�����(��@	���*��'����2
��	�/�����
��!���	�
��
�*����'�����*���
	!���	-�'��*�����(����

*����'��������	�����������
	!��
���&��
�����2��!0���
/�	-����*�������	�-���
��������2	�

���&���*����'�����	4����������(���2�/��0��'��*���'�����������	��������
�	��	��-'����

���
!����'����'���2	��������'���
	48���	/�����	�(��%����*���'���������&�������2��	�

9���0����
	��9$5�0���0�����	��	-��	���M��
	����&
���	0��'���*�����
4�	-���������

��**�&��������	�����'������	�����'
	�����
4���/���
���	
	&!(��.	����0��
	!���&&���*���

*����'������
	�������'
/����
�	���'������
����	��'����	
	&!���&���(�

����������;������������
����

)(��� ���'
/��
�����
����������2��'��������)����2
�4�	-�&
�&'��	���������	��*!�
��
��

�*��	���;���/����	�
	���'��
**�&���*�����&������(��+'�������
	&�����-�	��
��!�
&&������


�����	-�
�&��*���
����5���	����2
�4�
	������*��	�
������������
		�	-�*����'��

��
		�	-��*�
��=�
������/����	��*�&����	��!�*
&��������������/��������	��
��
��
��E�*���

�3
����������&���
	���������/�&���
	��&'�����	8����
!�
��
���(��.������'���*����
�

��
��	
������
�����������*�&��	&!0�����&�
��!�*���������
	�&����	��!������2'�&'�

2������	�������
2�*����
���
�����&
�&'��	���'
	���-���*�&�	����&����	��!0�&��!�

�
/��	������
��(�

)(�$� ���'
/��
�������-'����������
����'�����
��
	��2��4�	-������
���	�2��'�	��'��)����

&
�&'��	���*��
&'����(��+'���&
	������	���	��	���*��2��2
!�(�����&
	��
4���'��

���
�������
���	��*�
���G	����
���	�#�����&����
���!�2��'�	��'��&
�&'��	��2'�&'�2����


�2
!����������	�
	��/��;�����
����*��'�������
���	�2��'�	��'��&
�&'��	�(�@�0�2��&
	�

�
4���'��
--��-
��������
���	��*��'��G	����
���	�#�����&���2��'�
�&�	�������	��2��'�	�

�'��)����&
�&'��	��&��&��(��+'�������������4��!������
&'�
	�
/��
-�������
���	�*����'��

&
�&'��	��
��
0������
!���������	�
	��	��������
����	������&
���(�� ��'������
���	�

�����
����
��������	�����	��'��
���������
��'���0�����2�������'����2��������
���*���

�'��������*��'���
	
!����(�

)(�)� ����	��3������/�����
��
���'�2�	-��'��&����	��
��
���*���*�&����	&����	-��'���������

�'
��'
/��&�����������'
��'
/��	���!���
�������*���������	�-�/�	����������	�*���

����/������	�(������	��3�*��'�2��'�2��'��
��
���*���*�&���2���������	&��
����

�'���-'��'������
	�	��&��������*��'��������(���

                                                           
 
 
 
 
18 ���"��C�>��
	�#���-	������	������
���.0�� �����	-�2
�4
����	��-'����'����0���&���	�$(�(���
��C�����
�	
������������	��"���������*�����
		���0�#���-	����
	��#�/������������
�	
���������	�����"�+'������	��
��
*���G&�;1��-'����'������!� 
���	�&����0���-����,(��;������������
	�
����*����&&���������!������&
���
&�������D���
���C�1
���	
����
!�	-������������&�
���	���
	�
����*�����
!����/����	A�&������
�*�����&
��G=����������
��*���
!�
 

Page 520



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ����<�

)(�5� ����
����	��*��'���2���
����'�2���'���
���&��
��������
	&���*����
�	�	-�+'��N���	�

G���'�B��*�	��6,C(���	������
����6���2��4�	-�
-��
��������/��2��'�2��'�	�)�����*��'���

������-	�*�&
	��!�
��/���'��	
���	
�0���-��	
�������&
��
/��
-�(�����'�����'������0��'��

&����	��!��	��'����
��
��2�����	���'
/��
�����2��'�	��
�!�2
�4�	-�����
	&�(��+'��

�
���&���������
����*��'�������
�!� �
	&'�B)�C0�'�2�/��0��'������2��'�	�
��
�-��!�

�	������
��
��
�2��'�
����
��/��!���
��������
���������
���	��*��	�!���5�2��4�	-�
-��


������2��'�	�)���(��@�/�����!0��'��������-	�*�&
	��!������
���������������'
	��'��	
���	
�0�

��-��	
�������&
��
/��
-�(��

)(�,� +'���
���
�����'�2���'
���'������
	�	��������*��'�����/��B66C0��'��
!�
4����B65C0�

�'������������!��B6�C�2����
����'
/��
���-	�*�&
	��
**�&���	��'��&����	��!��������/����	�

*����'��������	��
��&����	������
���	���'��������0�2'����������'
	�'
�*��*��'����

2��'�	��'����)����&
�&'��	��	�2�'
/�����2
�4�������'
	�)���������
&'��'����&�������

���(��.�����
������
������
���	�2��'���-
�������'�����!'��	��B6�C0�'�2�/��0�
��2��'��'��

�����
�!� �
	&'0��'������������
���'���	��
	&�����
	��	������
��
��
(�����'��-'��'�������


����
��/��!�'�
��'!�
�����&
�&'��	�������
���	��*��,,0�������*��'����
���2��'�	�

)�����*���'��������
	�������2�����'
/�����&�����
����!���
�������
&'��'�����(�

)(�<� +'������
	�	��������*��'���
���	����������B�<C�
	���'����!
����
	�
���B6�C�2�����


������
������'��������*�
�&����	��!�*
&����!�*���
����������	��*��'���0,���
	���06�5�

2��4�	-�
-��
�����������&��/��!�2��'�	�)�����*��
&'����(���

)(��� @�/�����!0�*���
	!��*��'����2	�&�	���������&����	��!��	����&��������'����2����	���
��!�

���
	�
����	
��/������2��'�	�)����2
�4�	-�����
	&�(���2�/��0��'���������
������/�	-�


�2������'
	���&
��&����	��!��
�4���
	���'����
���2�����&�	�����
���	��2��'���-
���

����'��*�	&���	�	-��*��'����&
���&�	��!�
	������
�����!����
���
&�����������
	���'��

���-'����������	��0�
&
����&��
	���	������	����(�������
��2��'���'�����&&���*���&��!�

�&�	�������'��&��!8���
��	-�
	�����	4�	-��**������
�4�!�*
&�����	�
���
&��	-�!��	-�

�������
	����������(�.	�
������	0��'��&��!�&�	�����������	��������&�
����0�����'
��


��'��-'��'�����
!����*����/��!�&�������-��'��0��'�����
!�
��������
�'�����**���	��

&��!�2�����
�4���0�
	���'���	�!��'��*����'��
!�
�������
���&
��&����	��!��
�4��(�

)(�6� +���������
����'���
**�&��2��'
/�������&���
��'�����
�0�
��
���	��3�-0�2'�&'�:����

�'�2��)����&
�&'��	���
���	���'��������
	�&����	��!���&
������0��	��'���
����

�'
���'����'����!�����*��������/��
���&'�2�����&��!;�
�����
�4��(��+'����������
�����'��

��&'��'�		�������
���*���������/�	-�
����
�-'�*��2
�����&
��&����	��!�����(�

 �����+��������������

)($��  !�&����	�	-��'���	*���
���	�*��������
�������	���*��
�4������	���2��'��'��
������*�

�3����	-����/����	�2��&
	���-�	����������-��'���
���&������*��'��'�
��'��*��'����&
��

�����
�4��(���

Page 521



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ������

)($�� ���
��!��'����'
�����	�
���&�	����&��	������	-��'����&�����	��	��'��	
���	
������

�
�4��0�
	���'���'
��
**�&�����
�����-�0�:����
��
	!2'��������(���2�/��0��	�

&���
����	�2��'��'��G	-�
	��
/��
-��
	��2��'���'���'������&��	�/�����!�&�����0�

�
�����-��2�����
���
�����'
/��
�������������	
���!���2�	�������*����������

�����	0��/�	�2'�	�
&&��	��	-�*����'�����
��/��!��
�-��	�������*�&����-���
���*����'��

!��	-���B�����	�C��
�4��(��+'���*���0��	�=�
	���
��/���������'���������	���
���
�����

���
	��/�������!��*�������	��
�����-�����
��/����������
���	���M�(��.*�
	!�'�	-��'����

2�����
���
��������
��'���
-�(�

)($�� .	�=�
���
��/�����������2�����
���
���'
��&�������'
��
**�&����
����!�����*����(�

�2�/��0��'��-��
��������
&��
���
������'
/�����	����	��'��������
	�&����	��!�

��&
�0�2'�&'���-'������3��&����-�/�	��'��������������	
������
&���*��'�����4�	-�

�
	0�'�-'��
�����&��0���2�������
�4������&��0�
	���	�����!��	���	��'����#G���&��;

�&�	���&�-������
	���'���������	���!����/������'������&
�����(��.	�������*��'����

������
	�
��
���������������**�&����*����'������������/����*!��	���
	������/���*���F���	4�

�**���
���'
���
!���=�����
��
�-����
�4���&
�&'��	��
	���	����
2	�*����
�'�-'���

��&��;�&�	���&�-�����	-(���

)($$� .	���
��
�������0��'��&��������*�
�������������	
���	�������*�������
	�&����	��!�

��&
���'
���	&��
�����'����*�&��	&!��	����/����	�*���
�	�������*�������
	�

&����	�����(���

)($)� ��
��
��!0������
�4���
�������	��'
��
��������	���
�����'��������
	&���*��'��

*����2�	-�&���������*�����";�

• ��&��������*���-���*�&�	����
	����&
��&����	��!���������2��	��'���
��2
!�
	��

&��!�&�	�������/�	-����'�
�&��!�2����
	����&
���
�4���*���������	��(�

• ���
	���*���-���*�&�	����&����	��!����������'��	���'��*��'��&��!�&�	�������/�	-�

�'�������
	��2��4��������	-��'���
!�
	��������	���
	�������	���
��	�-'�(�

• ��&��������*�&��!��
���
	���
/��	��
��	-���-�	��������0�����	���28���������
	��

�������'������������	��'��&��!�&�	�������/�	-���������0�2��4����
	���'�������2��'�

*����
	�����	4��!��
!�
	����&
��!��	-�
�������!�	�-'�(�

• �������*�&��!��
/��	��&���������
��	-��'����/�������2'�����'�!�
���
&������������!�

�
!�
	��&��!�2����������	����!�	�-'�(�

)($5� +'���
�	��	
	&���*��
&'��*��'����&�����������������
	������'��&�	��	������������!��*�

�'���
�����-���&�	��!0��	��
���&��
������������
��0��������0��**�&�0�
&
����&�
	��'�-'�

��&'	���-!���&����(���	�
���
&��/��&��!�&�	����2��'���
&�������
��
	�����	4����

�
���&��
��!�������
	������
�����-������
�	�
�	�����
���
������'������0���������0�

Page 522



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ����6�

�����	���
	���'�����-'��!��	-����*�����	
���
	���	������	������'
�����/���'����&
��

�&�	��!(�

�

�

�

�

Page 523



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���$��

2�� %��:��������������������4�'��������

"��������������

5(�� .	��'���&'
�����2�����/����
���/��2��*�	
���	
��
	����&
����
		�	-�����&!�
�����
**�&���


����&
���	���������/��������&'
	-���'�������*������&�'�����(��+'����	&������
���/��2�

�*�����/
	������&!�
����'�����&
��
��'�������(����
������/��2���
		�	-�
����&
���	�

��&����	�����'���&
��!�
	���	���'���������&����'���-'��**�&��8����������
	���	���&���8��

��&����	�������/��2�'�2��'��������'
�����	���
���2��'��!�
����&
	��0���&
��
��'��������


	���	���&�����������	��*!���-	�*�&
	�������	��*�������&!(�

����������������%��:�

5(�� .	��'�����&���	0��	�����	�	-����
������������&!���3�����
������'
���������&4������'�������

����/
	����3�(�

#����������������������������:����

5($� 1
���	
����
		�	-�����&!����	�2����������	��'����
�����	���/��	��	�8��1
���	
��

��
		�	-�����&!���
��2��4�B1���C�
����&�	��!�������'����	��<�%
�&'�����(������

���/�������
		�	-�����&!�����
	&��1�����B����C�
	����
����	���B����C�'
/��	�2�

���	�����
&����!��'��1���0�
	���'���*����
���	������&������
	!�*���'����	��'���������(�

5()� +'��1����������'��
&'��/���	���*�����
�	
������/������	��
������4�!�*�&��(��.	��'���

��-
����
�
-�
�'�<���
�����'
�"�

/0�
�
���
����

�(�%
�����������������	
�(
1
	�%
����
��%��2�����	���(�


�1���%
���	3�0�
�
�(�%
��������1
����
�����
��

(������
��	�����������
%���

�
���%�����%�
�����	
���

��	��������	����	�	�����������������	(�����������2��
�����1
���(��%�
����1
�


��%�2����
��������������������
���	��(�����
����������
�����1��	��	
������
�������

�	��
�������
���������%
������������4�����(����1����5���(�����(
�����������(�

�6�(��������(
1
	�%
����
7���
%
���2����	�(������
���1��������������������
5�

�	������	����	8����������������2�1���������(��
�	�����%%�����
�2������1�(������
�

����	������������
7���
(���%

����
��

(������
�
�����(������
��
�
������5���(�

�����
�������������7��	�������	��
�1���%
��2�4�������
����	
�	��	��
�1��
�������

�
�	
�����
��%%����� ���

(����(�������������
�	��2�����	���(���	����	�4
		6�
���5�

��(9:�

Page 524



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���$��

5(5� �����&�'���������������'�����2�������(��+'�!�
���
��	�=����
����*� �����'�&�������
	��
��

��&'��'�!�'
/��
	�����	��
������������
!��	��'��������	-�
	���
�	�
�	�	-�
�����	-0�

�����	��/��
	��&��������/����&
���&�	��!(�����'������������0��
�����-��2����	������


�������
���
&���'�������	��0�
&
����&�0��	������	����0�!��	-�2��4����
	�����������

�'
�������&�	��!�
	��*������-��2�'�����	�����	(��%����/��0������'���������������

��&�
��
	��&�����
��2���;���	-��!����/���	-�
���
&��*�����&�
���	���
&���	�2��'�	�
�

&����	��!(�����'��/�	-���&
��������&��������'���*����������
	�����
&'��/�	-�����
�	
����

��/������	�(�

5(,� �
�
-�
�'������
�����'
���	���
2�	-������&
����
	�0���&
����
		�	-�
��'���������'�����

/�������
'������������
����
����2�����������������4�
��
����
����
�
'���(������

����������9�	���
�����	(��
��	
'��	
�
�����9���		4����������(��
����
���

�����
�����
��%��������%�����
�:3��
�
-�
�'������
�����'
�"�/�	��������	���
��

���	(��1�(���
�	����
�%����
����������
���		���
(����
%�	�%
�����
�4�
�
�

��
�
�������
�����	
�����
����������
��
������
(��������������
:3�.������'���*����

������
	���'
��
	!���&
����
		�	-�����&!�������������'����&
��������&�������������*��3�����

�	��-'����
���2�*����'
����&��������3�
	�����&�	��
&���	������	������&'
	-�	-�

�&�	���&�&��&����
	&��(�

5(<� �
�
-�
�'��$���
�����'
����&
�����'���������'�����/�
�����
��4���
���
�������
��
����

����
����%%�����
����(������
��	���
�������������
���1����	������(�1���	���:3�%����

�'
	��/��0������
	���
��0�
���
	�������
	���
����*��'��/��
���!��*��'����2	�&�	���0�

�
4�	-����
	�
���
&��/����
&��*���������������/���	0�2��4��	0�
	��/����(���

5(�� �
�
-�
�'��5,�
���������'�����
��-�&������������*����'��
��
��	��'����&
����
	�
	���'
��

�'�����'������	&���������&�����������/��"�/��
���1��������
�	��2��
������2��%%������

��(���	����	��������������
���(���
��	��	�����	���
�5���(:(�

5(6� >	����P�������	-��
��'!������	�����Q0��
�
-�
�'�,6���
�����'
�"�

/0�
��	�����������
%������	�������%��������	
��������	������������	����
���������(�

��
�������
�	���2����	���1
��%%�����
�3�.��	��	���������������
�����	(���
��
���

����
(�1�����4�����%%�����
������
��
��(
����	�
�1���%
�����(�����	���
����
��4����

���

3�0������������2�	��	��	���������������
�����	(���%�����1	1
��		��
��������

��
��%%�����������
�(
1
	�%
�����.��	��	������(�����	�������(
������2���(�

���	(�����	����
��
�������(��	������3��	��������	���
����(�(
������2��������2�

���	(���%�������
1
��	��
��4�������%�
�

• ���������
�����%

�������
�4

��%
%�
�������
��%%������4��%��������

��
�4��
��%
������������4����
������
�2����	�(�����������%�'
(6��
�

(
1
	�%
���2��������
�������(��
���
����(�����1
����

��������
��4�����

��������
��
�����
�4��4��2�	�1
���(��	��������
�1�������5�

Page 525



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���$��

• ���
���(����
����	
�
�1���%
����4�
�
����%
���(�(���(
�2���(���
��
�����

���%
2�(������(
�%��
�7��	������	��
����%%��������
���5���(�

• ���
���(����
����	
�(
1
	�%
���2������������	
�����(�	
���	
��
(
�������

���
�2���(������7��	�������	�������
2�4�����
������
���
�����1
���(�

�������	���
������	�����
��3:�

5(��� +'�������&�'�����'
����	-����	�
	����
����'����
����*��'��&����	��!0��	���'
��

�������2
	�����'
/��
&&�������
	���	���'
�������������&�
���	���
&���	(��.�����

�'���*����
�/
������&
����
		�	-�����&!���:�&��/��������
�	������&�'�������	����������

���/������&'�
���
&��*�����&�
���	���
&���	(�

5(��� �
�
-�
�'�<���������
��!��'�������������
	��
	��2��4	�2�*�������&�����	��2��'�!����

��/������	��&�	������**�&�����'
���'�!�'
/����*����������'���-���
	&���	���&�	��

��*��
����*�
����&
���	�����&�	/��������������'������&�'�����(���
�
-�
�'���,����
�����

����/���	-�&����	��!�*
&��������
	�����/�&��(��.����&����	����'
����
		�	-�����&����


	����&����	���'����"�

• �	��������1
	�������
���1�������(���
�������
(�����
2��%%����������	���
��

���������	��	�����2�%

������	��
�2�������1
��
�2���	����	����	(����2����	���

���
����(��	��
����4���������(���
��	��	��
�1��
����
�����
���
�

����������	�������%%�����
����(��
��(
����	�
�1���%
���5�

• ����(�����������
����
�
������	�����1�	�
(�����	���
����(��
�1��
�2��������	��	��

4�
�
������4�	(��
(��
���
��%%����� �����	������%

������(��6�6(����

(�5�

• 
����
������
����	���
(�����2�����	���
����(��
�1��
����
���	
���(
1
	����(�

%(
����
������4��������������������	
2���(��
����
(������
��
�
��������
�

�%%�����5���(:�

5(��� +'��������
	���'�	-�'��������'
��	
���	
����
		�	-�����&!�
�/���������'
��&����	��!�

*
&��������B�	&����	-������&�'�����C��'
���	'
	&���'������
�	
�����!��*���&
��&����	������

�'���������
*�-�
����(���

5(�$� �
�
-�
�'������
�����'
�"�

�	��������	���
�����	(��������
��%�����4����������	���
�������(
������
��
�

;�����(�����
����������������������1
��������������������	
��
4�(
1
	�%
��3�

0���%�
�������������	�
��%�2�	��	���(��
�������(��	�������	(�9�

• ��%�
���
��
�
�������(�(
1
	�%
�����	��	��
�1��
����(��%%������

����	���
�����1�		��
�2���������	��	�����2�%

������	��
�2�������1
��
�2���	����	�

���	(����2����	������
����(��	��
����4�����3<�

5(�)� ���'��-'��'�������&!����
����������
��
��
�0�2�������/���'
��������
��������'������	���	��*�

�����&�'�������	�����!�	-�
��
���*��
�����-����&'�
��+�����	-��	�
	���'���!��	��	(�

Page 526



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���$$�

5(�5� +'���J������'���&�	�8�*����������&
������&�����'
��&�
��*!�2'�&'�*
&��������
�������	��
��*���

&����	��!�	����(�

 ���������������������

5(�,� .	��'�����&���	�2�����4�
���'��
��������
�����-����&
����
	�
	��
	!�����/
	��

��&���	��������&������*
���	��'����&
����
	���/��2����&���(�

���������������������� ����������*556�

5(�<� ����	�����
	���'
���'���
�����-����&
����
	�2
��*���
��!�
�������
��
������	-��*�

*����&��	&����	�������!����,0�*����2�	-�
���������*���/��20�2'�&'���-
	��	�����(�

5(��� �
/�������&!�,F,�P�'
	-���*�>����	��'�����!���	���Q���
�����'
�"�

/=����
�����
���%�&!���&"2�&>2�&?���&@���
���������(��	��	
1
	�4�		��	���
�

�
�%���
(��

���������%������������������
��4�
�
���
������	�4�	(�������%���
�

�������������
�������
�%��
������
�1���	������(�1����	��������
�=����=
���
5�

��(�

�������
��(������������������
��4�
�
���
��
��
����
���&!���
��(
�������		�

�
	4�A$B��%
����
(������%�
����������2�
'�
�������
�
������

��#����&�(�
4 ��

���

�����������4��������

���4�
�
���
��
��
����
���&!���
�����	(������		�

�
	4�"@B2���(�C��(�
����

�������������(�=���������

���4�
�
���
�

�
��
����
���&!���
�����	(������		��
	4�?$B3:�

5(�6� +'�������&!����
���������!����&'
	-���*�������
����	�����	�&��!�&�	���8��
	�����4�����

�����&���'��������������'���������(��+'�������&!��'���*�������/�����	�������&���	�*�����'���

���������&'�
�������&�'�����0����*�������
��
	����'
��2����*������!������&�'�����(�

5(��� ���	�����'
���
�
-�
�'�,(�$��*��'������
�������
�����'
�����'��'����-�	��������F���

�	���2���������
	�� ���-�����������&�	�
�!��'����	-�*��	�
-���'
/��
�'�-'�

���������	��*�����
��
	��F&
*��F�����
	���'
���'�����
4��*���
������	&��/��&'
�
&���(�

5(��� �
/�������&!�,F<�P�'����	-�#�/������	��
	���'
	-���*�>����	�#�����&��
	����&
��

��	���8�Q���
�����'
�"�

/&((�����	�(
1
	�%
���4�������	���
��&!2�&"2�&>2�&?���(�&@�4�		��
��
�%���
(����

�����������(�.��	�=
���
 ��������4�		��
�1
���
�	��	��%%��������(���������

���������
������
���(����	
�����
��
���
3�

Page 527



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���$)�

=����
�����
���%�&!���&"2�&>2�&?���&@���������������(�.��	�=
���
 ��4�		��	���
�

�
�%���
(���1�(
(���
��
��
����
���&!���
��(
�������		��
	4�A$B��%
����
(�

�����%�
����������3��=����
�����
���%�&!�����
����
��4�		�����
��
�%���
(3:�

5(��� �-
�	0��'�������&!��	�!������&������������
�'����'
	��$�����)�����(���2�/��0����&�����

���
�
������	���
�	�2�����&!�
���
����*��'����&
����
	���/��2�
	����������
����

�����&��
���������(��+'���2��������
�	���**�&��	��*��3������!����
���2�*���
�&'
	-���*�����

*�����)����	4�	-����
����'��	��������	����
!��$�����
��
	��H�&
*O�������	������	������

�
�4���&'
	-��0��������/�	���'��������*�	�	;�����������	�	;���������&'�
��������	��
��

2��'�	�#�����&��
	����&
���'����	-��
�
���(��

5(�$� �
/�������&!�,F���P�����H�#��	4�@������Q���
�����'
�"�

/�
1
	�%
�������D�
�=	���
��&>2�&?���(�&@���(���(�(������4�		��	���
�

�
�%���
(��

���4�
�
���
������	�4�		������1
����
��������
����	
�
�1���%
���	����	
%����

�������
���(���
���(�1�(��	���(���%�	���1
��%���������
�(
1
	�%
������

����(
�
(����
����	
5���(�

���������������
'��������
���
���������������%�'
(���
���
��������������
'�
���������
�

�������&�
�3:�

5(�)� +'�������	�������	������'�������&!�2'�&'����4����������&���3����	-������&�'�����(��

����'������0��'�������&!��**�&��/��!��������
	!�	�2������&�'�����
����&
���	��*����

���	-��
����	�������	��
��
��
��E�2'�����'������-'�����
����
	��*���
�&����	��!�

�����&�'����(�

5(�5� @/��
��0��'�����,���&
����
	�����&�����	�&'
	-���*������*���&�
��������
���
���	���	�

�'�����	&������*������&��	-������&�'������*��������/������	�����&�	/�����	������'���

����(��.���'����������&�-	������'
���'��������*������&�'������2
��	���
	��������
&4��	�

���,(��2�/��0��'�������
�����&!��'
��'
����-
�������'�������&���	��*������	��!�

�
&��������E�'�2�/��0������
����3&������*�����'����*�	����	��*�&����	��!�*
&���������	�

�
�
-�
�'�5(��;�$��*��'����
	(�

5.26 �
/�������&!�5F���P�����	��!��
&�������"������&���	��*�G3����	-��
&�������Q���
�����'
�" 

/�
1
	�%
���	
�(��������
�	������%%����������	���
��4�		��	���
��
�%���
(�������

�����
�(
%������
(��

�����
�����	���������
��
�	��
(������	
��������
'�������	
1
	���(�7��	����4��������
��
4�

(
1
	�%
��5���

Page 528



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���$5�

�����
�����	����������
��
	���
(�������
�����������
���
%��
�������
�����%�	���

���
�����	�������������
��5���

��� �������
�
������	��
�����

(�4��������
�	��	��%%�����������
�����	�����������

��
��

(������
��(
7���
	��%
���������	�
�����1
�����	��������%�	������
�����	����

���������
��3�

0�
��
(
1
	�%
��������	����
�������
����
��4�		��
��
�%���
(��	�������������
�

(
%������
(��������
����
�����
7���
(������
�	��
���
�%����������
(�
(�������

��
3:	

5.27 �'�����'�������&!�&�����������*����	���*�	��	-�
����&
���	�F
���
������&�	/���������&�

'�����������
���	������&�*�&
��!���*����������	��'����&
����
	(��.	��'������&!�����
����0��

&����	��!�*
&��������
���&�	���������������'�����'
��P�
	��%

����
�1���
(��

(����

��
��
��(
������=�%���(�
�����
�	��2�
(���������(����	����
�1��
�2����4
		����

����	2���	����	���(��
	����������1���
�:3�����2�����&�	��	���'
��&���
�	�&����	��!�

�����
���&
�
�����*����/���	-�*����'����	������
���&��
��!��'����2'����
������	-�

��
&�����
/
��
���(��+��*��*����'���������*��'�������&!0�#�/��������
�����=�����"�/��

��1�(
��(
7���
�
1�(
��
�����	������	��	��

(2����
�����	��������
��2���
�

������������	�
�����1
�����	���
����(�����
�	
1
	���(
%��(���%���
��������������

��1�(�����%%����������	���
������(
����;���������
�	��������%%����������	���3: 

5(��� +'������&!�����
�����-�����	������=������'��*����2�	-��	*���
���	"�

• (
���	�������
�%���
��������
%����%�(
�������������
���%%��������
�����

4�������
���
%��
����
�������	
5�

• (
%��������������
����
�����	��������
�������		�%
������������������	�(�������

��(����	
5�

• (
���	��������
�����%����
�
�����
�������	���
�5�

• 
1�(
��
�������
���������������

%
��������%%(��
�(���	��
(���
������

��
��
7��1�	
�������	���
��4������%�	������
�����	���������
��5���(�

• ��	��	����1
����
����	������
�	
1
	������
�
��������(�1����	��������
�������
(���
�

����
���
%��
��������%%����������	���3�

5(�6� ���'��'���3&�����	��*��'����&�	��
	�����'
����'��*����'��������0��'����=������	���

&�����=������
���!����
�
�����
	���	&�����
�����	���
�����&!�����-	�����������&��

&����	��!�����(�

Page 529



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���$,�

 ����������%��:�

5($�� ��	�2��
�����-����&
����
	����&����	��!����	-�����
����
	��2���	�����
	���'
���'��

&����	����
-������'������
�
���	�
	��&��������	��*��'���/���	&���
���
	���'���������


	�������	��&�	����
���	�����&'�������*�����	��������!�����(�

����������������������
�� �����������������
�������

5($�� .	��'�����&���	0�2�����4�
����
		�	-�����&������
��	-�2��'��'�������&���	��*������&�

'������
��
��������������������!���&
����
		�	-�
��'������������2'�����	�G	-�
	�(��

���2������
���2��'��'����
��'��������2'�&'�	��-'��������
����	��'���
�����-��	�BG
����	�

G	-�
	�C�
���
�����-��B2'����
����&
���C(�����2�����'�	����4�
����
		�	-�����&����

*������'�����&
��
��'�������(�

#��:��
��������������

5($�� 1��2�&'����!����	&�������������	-��'���-'��'������&
��#�/������	����
��2��4�
�

���&�*�&�����&!��'
�����4����������&��&����	��!�����(��+'���������������&!�*������
���

�*��'��#�/������	��%
	
-���	������&����#�&���	�0�2'�&'��	���2�	�������&�

&�	����
���	����2��	��<��
	�
�!�
	���)�%
�&'�����(�

5($$� �������������&!�#%���P���/����	�
	��G	'
	&���	���*������	��!��
&�������Q������������

�	�����'�������	��!��
&����������&���	��*��'����&���	�(��+'������/
	����&���	��*��'��

�������������&!���
�����'
�"�

/���
��������%%����������	���
��

�
1
	�%
����
��	����������
�	��������
'��������%%����������	�����
'�	�(����

�%%���������	������
��	���
(�������
�(�'�A��4�		��	���
��
�%���
(�4�
�
��

����(
7���
��	�
�����1
���1�����
'�������4�		��
���1�(
(�������
7��		����%�
�

���
����	
�	������4������E$$�%
��
��4�	�����(������
5���

����		��
�����	
�
��������1
��

��%�(
�����
�
�1
���
�����	����������������

��

��1
����������4�	(�����
�
��%���		��1���	
����
�������
����	(���������
��������


'���������
5���(�

�����
����
���������
������

��%���
�
(�����
�����������������
�.��	��	�������

&������������(
���������%��������
�
���������
�
��������
����
���������
������
�

����
�����
�����(���
�
����%%��������
3�

�
1
	�%
����
��	����������
�	������%%���������	������
�2�	���
(�������
�(�'�A2�

4�		��	���
��
�%���
(�4�
�
�����
���������(������1
���
��������
(3�

Page 530



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���$<�

F�
�
�������(
%������
(���������
'��������%%��������
�������1���	
2���
�
�
��
�4�		�

�
���1
������
������
�����
����
(
1
	�%
�������
���%%��������
���
��
�

����%%��������
����
�����(
�
(3�0�
��
(
1
	�%
������		�
'��������%%������

���
����(���
%��
�����	(���1�(
����
4��%%����������	����������������
������	3�

0�
���1	1
%
�������
�	��	��%%������4�		��
�����������(
�����������
��%������
�

��	��	�����	���
����(����(
1
	��������������
��	�����������
����
�
�������(�


�����
%
��3:�

5($)� ��0��	�������*���
�&����	��!������&�'���������������/������F&�	/�������	�1��2�&'0����

2�������	�&���
�!�������/���'
��������	����&�	���&
��!�/�
�������������/���'�������&�

'�����
	���'
���'�������&�'�����'
�����	��
�4������	����������&�	*�����'
���'�������

	���	��������	�������'���
��
������&�'����������'���&����	��!�*
&����!(�

5($5� ����	��3�,��*��'����
*����&���	�����������
�������*������&���������
	����
�����'
�"�

/�����%
�������
����������
���1�	�
�����
�����
����
��2�4�
��
��(
������
(���

��(
������
(3�0����%������	�(
���
�������������1�	�
����	������(�����%%������

����	���
�����
��
���1
�������������
�����	�����������%
������
��%������
��3:��.��-�����	�

����
!��'
��*����	&�����	��	��'������0��'��������	-�����"�

������1
����
����	���
(���
���������	������
������G��������
��	����&?�5���(�

������1
��
�1
(���
��%%���������	��
��
(���
%��
��������������������
��(�����%
�

�!H$$����
��
�2���������	�����
�������(��
2���1
��

�������
����	����������	���

���
����
�1
���
�	��	��%%������4�����������������
����
����
3���������4�		��
�

��1
�������
����������	������
��4�������
���
�	������������	������
������
�

��
�3�

����� +'��������	�����	��3�,�&�	�
�	�������<5������2'�&'�������'��&������
�
��/������

1��2�&'����!����	&�����
����'
���'�!�
������4�	-�/��2���*��'����&
��&����	��!��	�

2'��'����'��������������
����'�������
�������
��������������4���������&�(�����
-����

�'
������
!����
�������
�����������&��
������&�'������	�/��2��*������	���	��&�/
����
��
�

��	-��
	��	-�&����	��!�*
&����!(�

���������
��������������

5($<� ����������-'�'
/��
�����&!��	��'����
���������������
��-!�#�&���	��B����&!������

P����������������
	��+������QC�2'�&'����&�������'���	&���
-���	��
	����������	��*�

��&'���/������	��(��+'��*�	
���
�
-�
�'���
�����'
�"�

/0�
�
'���������	����	2�	
����
���(������%�����	���
��4�		��
����
��
(���(�
�����
(3��

�	��������
�%������4�		��	���
������
(���������
%
�4�����4�	(��
��	�������
�	���

�����
'���������	����	2�	
����
��������%�����	���������������
�(
%������
(��������
���
�

Page 531



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���$��

�����	��
��1���	
2���������������
��	�
�����1
�������
���1�(
(2�4�����������	
����


7��1�	
����������	�������
�%����7����������(�7��	������(������������������	
�	������

���
���%

����
��

(������
��3:�

5($�� �2�/��0��'����	�!����/��������
��-���
	&��
	���	����0��'�������	��'�	-����&�*�&����

�
!��'
��J&�����
�0��������������������*
&�������8��	&�����������&�'�����(�����	�����'
��

�'����
���	�������&�'��������&�*�&�����&�����	��'�����������#�/������	��

%
	
-���	������&������&���	�(�

5($6� +'��-����
�!�����'��
���������������
��-!������&�
��*!��'
��&����	��!�

�	*�
����&����F*
&��������&
	��	&����������&�'�����������'�������	�����&�*�&�&����	��!�

*
&����!������&���	�����&!(�

 ������0�����
����+�����

5()�� %����	8��>	��
�!�#�/������	����
	�2
��
��������	�@&���������$(���
/�������&!��(�,�

P�����&���	��*������&������Q���
�����'
�"�

/0-)�=�D*=�.�F�..�*�0��)���0�0-)��)�),).���)*0����=-&*+)����D�)����

)�0&C.��-)���DC.�=�-�D�)��0���0-)��D�)��)I=)�0�F-)�)��

�3� 0-)�&��.�=&*0�=&*��-�F�0-&0�0-)��DC.�=�-�D�)����*��.�*+)��

)=�*���=&..J�,�&C.)�

�3� 0-)�&��.�=&*0�=&*��-�F�0-&0��)&��*&C.)�&00)��0��-&,)�C))*��&�)�0��

�&�K)0�0-)���0)�&��&��DC.�=�-�D�)�

�3� 0-)�)����&.0)�*&0�,)����,����*�F�0-�*�0-)�.�=&.�&�)&:�

5()�� +'������
�����-�����	�����
!��'
�"�

/?3"!A����	������
������
��(
����	���
���������1�(
���1�	���	
��%%����������	����

��(��%
����	������
����1
��%%�����#���������%������������
���
(������

1���
�������
�3�����
������������
��������������	������
�������	�����1�	���	
��	
�

�����	��	���(��%%����������	����
����	���
(����	������
�����	(��
����
��
(�

��%��
(
1
	�%
����������
�����
3�0�����	����4�	(�������	�������	������
��

4������(
������
(��4���
���
��������4������
������	��%���3�

?3"!L�����(
��������������
��
�����
��������������	�������	��������

(�����1�(
�


1�(
��
��	
��	����4�����������
����	������
������	��
��
��%���		��1���	
�

��(��������
����
���������

��%���
�
(���������	������
�������
�����	
��
��(�

����		����	
�����������
��(���"��
���3�0�������	��
	����%
�����4����
1�(
��
�����
�

������%
��������
��������	����#
����
���
��������(	
���
�%���
���������
�

���
������(��
��(�����4���(�4�
�
���
����
���������

��%���
�
(3�

Page 532



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���$6�

&��	�������%����	�����������������
��%
�������
��

(������
�	��	��%%������

����%%����������	���
������4��������
����	������
������	��
���

(
(���(������

�	�
�����1
���1���������1��	��	
������
���
�3:�

5()�� %����	����&����	��!�&�	�����	-��	��'����#�
*������&����
	��������#�/������	��

%
	
-���	��#�&���	��B$�F��F�������$F�$F��C(���������������&!��5�P�����
	��

#��	4F��������
	��G	����
�	��	������Q���
�����'
�"�

/���
����������	������
��

���������	�������4�		��
��	�������
�	����������	������
�4�		��	���
��
�%���
(�4�
�
�

�		���
��		4��������
������
�%
���

!�� ��
����	����������(
%������
�����
������	 ���������������������
����	���

���
������	��
��
��%���		��1���	
����������		���(����
��

%���
����5���(2�

"�� ��
�
���
��	�
�����1
����	������
��	���
(�4��������
�	��	���
�:3�

5()$� +'�������
�����-�����	����&�
��*!��'
����������������
�4�����*�����
	��
�'
�*�!�
��A�


	���'
��
����	
��/�����/����	���������2��'�	������*�����'������(�

5())� ���&�	���������'��'���3����	-�
	���������������&����B2'�&'�
�������	��
��!��'���
��C�

���������*����	��������*���*�	�	-�2'
�����
�&����	��!������&�'�����;��
���&��
��!��'
�����

����'�����	�������	��
��	���&�����&�
��
��
��
	���������'����2��'�
�*�	&���	�����(��

�2�/�����&'�
�����&!�2�����	������2���������������
�����-��
�����2�����
�2
!�����

�������������'�2��'
���'�������
����	
��/�����/����	(�

&�
�� ��������
�������

5()5� ���'
/�����4����'���-'�
�����&���	��*���������	�
�!���
		�	-�����
	&��B���C�

�����&����!���&
����
		�	-����'��������
&�����G	-�
	�(��+'�����	&�������'��*����2�	-�

B�	�	���
���&��
�������C�

• ����� ��4�'�������	&���E���������	�
�!���
		�	-�����
	&��P1�(�6������&�

�����QA�

• ��������
���!� ����-'����	&���E���������	�
�!���
		�	-�����
	&��P+'��

����	���	��*������&��������	����
�����
�QA�

• �	��	-��	�'����#�����&�����	&����E���������	�
�!���
		�	-�����
	&��P����	���	�

�*��'���0������@**�&���
	�������&��������	�����
-��QA�
	��

Page 533



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���)��

• %�����**��4�#�����&�����	&���E���������	�
�!���
		�	-�����
	&��P����	���	��*�

�'���0������@**�&���
	�������&��������	�����
-��Q(�

5(),� ���
��!0��'���
:����!��*��'����
��/����
��2��'�������*����
������(���2�/��0�2��

&�	������������*���������4�
���'����
����
&'�
	�������*�
	!�'�	-�&
	������
	�*���������
�

��������
	������	-(�

5()<� ����� ��4�'���8������'
��
���&���	������	-�����&������
�������������	��'��
�������	���*�


����&
���	��*�����/������	���������	-��	��'��������*�
������&�'����(��.����
�����'
�"�

/A3!	0�
�����
�������
���
(������
����
��%
��������	�����������(
1
	�%
���

�
��	����������
�	����������	������
2�4�		��
�����		4���

!3� 4�
��
�����4�	(���1
�����(1
��
�
��
�������
�	��	��������
�2�(�1
��������(�

�%
���������
���
�5�

"3� 4�
��
����������
�(
%������
(�������	�
�����1
����
����	
����	������
�

��1�����
'������(
���
(�����
�%����	�����2���M
2�����
�������	���
����(�7��	������

��1�������������
�%�(
��1��	��	
������
�	��	���
�#�%%�����5�

>3� 
1�(
��
�
'������������
�	�������
����	������
�4�	(��%����
����

�����
����	
�(
�	��
������
�����(��(����%%�������
�1��
�����	��	����(�

1������5�

?3� 4�
��
����������
�(
%������
(��������
����	������
������	��
��
��%���		��

1���	
���(�������		��
�����	
����
%������1
��

��%�(
����
		���	
����
�

���	(������������	������
�������
�	����������
������	
��������A�%�����

&������
%�������
		���
������
������������
�4������
�	
������������
�����
����	(��
	��
�

����
������
����������
����
��2���(����������������2����
'�%�	
���
����	(�����4������

��
����%�����������(
������������3�)1�(
��
���(
%������
�����	
������

��

������
����	�4�	(��

(������	�(
�
����
���
����	��
�����
2����
(�	
������
����	�

�������
�����(����(���������
�3�

&��%%
����	�1����	�������(�����	(����%������������	�����������
(
1
	�%
���

�������
�����
3�)1�(
��
����	(��
���(��
(�����4�4����%
����
����1
��

��

���
�����������
%������
����������	������
�����1���	
������
��3�0������	(����	�(
�

(
���	�����%%
����	���������1
������(��
(2�(
1
	�%
��������	�������
������
���


��3�

���
��=���(
�������

0�
�������	��
(
1
	�%
����������
�����
������
������	���������������
������������

���(
���4�		�����
��
�%���
(�4�
�
�����������(
�
(�����������%�����
;�(��
�����

Page 534



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���)��


��%���1����	�����������
��
�����3�0�
�=����	�4�		�
������
���
��%��������

���
�1��
��������1���
�2�����������������
�2���������
	��
(���
4�������������4����

��
�
'����������	������
���
3�F�
�
��
(
1
	�%
����������
�����
����

���
����	
2��		���%�	��	�����������	�����
����4�	(����	�2����	�(�����%�������

�%
����2�(
����2����
��2���������
���

A3"	0�
�	����������	������
���%���1�		��
�������	��%%�����������
�
��
���		��

�
1
�
������������
��	���
%�����������	���������
���
����(���������	�����������
�

�%%�����3����	������
���������������������
�1���	�����
�4
		�
������(�����	�

��������
�����
���
�3�0�
��%������
��������������	������	������
�������%%������

����	���������
�����
(����(����������4����������
��������=����	���(�	��	�

�
��(
���3�

A3>����%�����
����
��
(�������	���������������
������������	���
��	���
���

�����
��
��4�
�
���
�
����	���	
��������������(�4�������
����
��%���		��1���	
3�

����������	
2���1����	
�����(
������4�		��
���1
���������	��4�����%����
	����

���������(�(�1
����������1���
��4������
�1
���
��
�
���������
����	������
3:�

5()�� ���'
/��
���
�!����	��
������
	��)��*��'���������&������
��	���'�������&���F����&!�	����(��

�2�/��0��
������
	��$�
���	�2(��1��2��'��
	��	-0�2�������&���'
���
�����B���
&���	�

&'
�
&���C�2����������
���2��'�
���
����*��'������/������	��
����&
���	�
	���	������

&
�����*�
��
���&��
��������	-����&�	��������������
�4�!��
����*��'����&
��&'
�
&�����'�	�

���2������������������*�����
����*�
���	���/
���	����
(���
���$���-'��	���
���!����2����

���
	����
	������	-�
���'����
�����4��!�������&����	��!�&�	����0�����
����0���������

&�	�������&��'
��&
	����/�����'��	�&���
�!�&����	��!����/�&�������&
��������(�

5()6� +'����������
���!8������
�/������'
��
����&
	���2����	�����������	���
����'
��
������&�

'��������	����	-����&�	���&
��!�/�
����
	��'
�����	�
��=�
���!��
�4����(��+'�������

	��'�	-�	�2�'���(���2�/��0��'������-�����	�����
!��'
��
	�
����&
���	�2�������

��*������*�������&�	��������/�������
��	���
�����
����	������
����	��
	������1
���

������������(
���%
���	��%�����������
�1����	��%�������������1
�
�����(�����	���


��%���1���	��������
�1�		��
:(��+'������
�������&������
����	
��/��2
!�����4����

��������	��	&����	-��'�������	-�����	���&��;���2�����0��'
��	-��'�����������2��'�

��'�������	�������	&����	-�&'������F������**�&�0�'���	-����������������&
�������	-��
	��

�**���	-��
4��
2
!����/�&��(�

5(5�� �	��	-��	�'���8������
-
�	���*��&����'����&������
��'
��2��'
/�����	���*���(��

�2�/��0��'�!�
������
����'
�"�

/�	��������
�%������4�		�����
������
(�����������
�����
������4�	(��
��	�������
�

	�������
�	�����
%����������	������
������1�		��
���	
�����������
�(
%������
(�

������

Page 535



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���)��

�"��0�
�
����	���	
�
1�(
��
������	��������������
�
���������
�����	���:�

5(5�� ���
��!��'����	�!�
��������	��'���&
���2'�	��������'���
��������&�'������	��'��/���
-��
	��

�'���*�����'���2����	���
���!�����
�����-�(���2�/��0��'��������'������	��
�����
�
���

�����'�	-���4���'����	���
	�.����*����
�����-�(����=����	-���/�����������&
��!�����

&����	��!�&�	����
���	���*���'
	��B�(�(����
��������&
�����	��	���	�������*��'�������&�

'����C�
	����������	-��'���2��'��'��
����&
���	�2�����	����	�!�����	��'����������*�

��&
���������
����
&&����2��'�&����	��!�&�	����
���	���:�&��/��(��+'����
		����&�����

�'�	������'����	*���
���	�
��
	��	��&
�����*�&����	��!�/
���(�

5(5�� %�����**��48������
-
�	���*��&����'��-���
	&��
	��
�/�&��2��'
/�����	�����2'���(��

�2�/��0��	��4�!���**���	&������'
���'�������
����&�*�&�����
	&��-�/�	�*����'��


�������	���*�
����	
��/��*
&�������(��+'��������*�	���
�����'���2��'�	��'����������	��

���	�
�!����2��'�	�$�����*���(��+'���&������������*����*��������	�
�����&!������&��	-�

���
	�����(���

���������������@*���-������A�

5(5$� �'�����	���
	�
&��
����
		�	-�����&!�������0�2��&�	�������'
���'���.	��������*��������&�

����&!�����
�&'���&���	��
��������'����	��
	�
�!������������*����	��������*��'��2
!����

��*�	���&����	��!������E�
	���'
���'���&�����'
/��
���
��	-��	��'�������&���	��*�

	�2���������	�
�!���
		�	-�-���
	&�(�

5(5)� ��&���	��(��P�'
�����
������	��!������&�����Q���	&�����"�

<���������
����4
���
����
��
(���
������		��4�����%%����������2�4�����%���
��

�
�
����
���=+&������
���(
���
����������������
�1
���
(%����
	����
���	��	�

�
��(
����	��%%����� 3�0�
�
������%��
����@L��
���
�������
����	�	��
��
(���

���(
������
�DK��=+&������
���"$$H�3�0�
�
������
�(����������
(���%��4���
���
�

�����4������
�1
�%���	�����
�64�����4

�
�(�(����
�����(�4�������1
��

����
�

����������
�������������
�(������������
�
����
���3�=%%����������������	��

�
�(����������
(���%��(6	
(�����2�4������
�	
�1�������
(%�����	������1
���

%
�	�����
���������(���� 

=%%�������������1
��4�(����������������������		���
	��
(���������3���
����������
���	�

��	
�����
		��	��	���(��������(���
���
�����������	��
��������	����
��������C����

!HL@�3�0�
�(�������(���
�����	������������
������(�������(�����
�����
4��	��	���

(�����2���
���
�����(%�����	�
�����
����������������������
�%
�%����
���
��

����
�	
���
(���
�������������3�&����	������
�4������(�����4�	(�����
������	���

���
3 

&����
���%
���%
2��������
����;����������

������
1
���
�1����
(������	������
���

(������	��	�����
���4�2���(
������1
��%��
��������	������
���	���
�4�	(��
�

Page 536



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���)$�

	��3�0�
��%%���������	������
���������
����������������������������	�(����������(����

�����%���	��		������������������������%���������������1
��
�
������	43< 

5(55� +'���2�����
���
�������--�����'
��&����	��!������
����'�����	�������	��
��
��
��
	��

2'�&'�
���	���*����*�&�����(�����
���	���������'
���'������&����&�(��+'���
:����!��*������

	�2����/��*�����*��/��!��	&��
��	-�=�
���!0������'��������	����	�����	���'���������
��
�

��&
��&����	��!�*
&����!0��
�'�������	'
	&������
	���
4����'��������
���
&��/�����

2���	�
	��*
������(���

5(5,� +'���������
������	���	��
���($(���'
���'���������������
����	��*��������������/��

�	������
��
��
��
	���'���
���2��4�	-�&�
��������
���	�2'��2�����-��*���
���	���	�

�'����2
!�'���(��+'����
!�	����	-���
���!��	��'�������	��
	��&
��������'�����
!����


	�
�-���	���'
��������*��
�����-�8����������/���**�&�F����	��������������'����
�-��

�����!��	��&�	������'
����-'��������������*��'��&��!�&�	���(�

5(5<� ��&���	�$(���*��'�����������
���2��'���&�
��1��2��4�(��.��'�-'��-'����'��������
	&���*�

�����
����
&������������������
	�����	�������2��'�*
���!(��.����-'������'��&
����'�	�

�'
�������
����������4��!�������&�	��������&����	��!�������*��'�!�
������	����
���E�

*����3
�����&'�����	�B
	������	��
��!�����C(����&'������&��������&�	������������**���


	��	&����/��&����	��!�*�	&���	(�

5(5�� �'
�����)��*��'����������
�4��
�����'�2������
������'��&����	��!�/
�����*�
������&�

'�����
	�����&�������'��J��&�
�������	��	��	/�����	�8�B��@.C�
����
&'�B�
-��))��*�

�'��������C(��+'������������&��������@.�
�"�

�/����������4�������(
�����(���2�%
����������(��
���������
�����	2�
��%�����(�


�1���%
���	�1�	�
�����������
��
(�����������������3����
���	
�������7����������
�

����	��������(��
�
�����������������������(�
'��
�����
%����%�
������
�%�2�


1
�������
��(� �������		����1
�������
�����������
(�����
%�����
�	�	��
3:��

5(56� ���'
/��	������������'��*�������&�����*�
������	-���@.��	��'����������
���������3��
�	���

��**�&��	��!��	��'��.����������(���2�/��0����&����������������������=�������/�����������

&
��!�������@.��	�������'�!�2��'������/�����
	��*����'���������
��
����*�

��������	�
�!���
		�	-�-���
	&�(������
�	�!��'��.�����������&�	��������'
�"�/0�������
�

��%
��(	�����	(��
�
%�	�
(�������	�������

����������	���������(��
����

������2����
'�%�	
3���������	(��
�
%�	�
(����	��	���������
������

�������

(
�
�%��
�4���������������
�����
����	(�7��	������������
������
��
	�
�3:�

���������������

5(,�� +'��	�2�1
���	
����
		�	-�����&!���
��2��4����4�����������������
�	
����

&����	������
	���	��'���&�	��3�������&�'�������
!����/
�����*����'�����&�	���&������

�	���������	-���&
���&�	�����0��'������&�
��������	����/���	-�
���&
��*
&����!���&�
��

Page 537



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���))�

�	���
&���	0�
	���'�����	/���	��	�
��������	����/���	-�
	��	���	��&��
����*��'��&�����
��


	��'������&�'����
-���*��'��
��
���	�2'�&'��'�!�
��������(��

5(,�� +'����
��2��4���
�����'
����&
��
��'���������'�������
	�������/��!�*����'�����/����	��*�

&����	��!�*
&����������&'�
�������&�'�����0�-�
���
-
�	����'�����		�&���
�!�����0�
	��

�	������'
������&����
���*��3������	��-'����
���2���&'�*
&����������������	����
	�����

���
�	���*����'����	�*����*��'��&����	��!�B�
�
-�
�'�<�C(��

5(,�� 1��2�&'����!����	&���
���&����	��!��������	-�
�����&!����*�����
����*��'�����#���'
��2����

�����&��&����	��!������
	����=�������/��������������/���'�!�
���	����	-���

�&�	���&
��!�/�
����
	��'
/�����	��
�4�����
��
������&�'�����*���
	�
��=�
���

��	-�'��*�����(��1��2�&'�&����	��!���*�	��&����	��!������
���'����2��'�
	����
����'���

����
	����	-��
	��	-������	&�(�+'�!�
���&�	�����	-��	�2'��'����'�������'����-'��


����
&'(�

5(,$� %�
	2'���0�%����	����	&���'
/��
	��3����	-�����&!�B
	���������������
���	��'�����#�C�

2'�&'�������*����	��������*���*�	�	-�2'
�����
�&����	��!������&�'�����;��'
���������'�����	�

������	��
��	���&�����&�
��
��
��
	���������'����2��'�
�*�	&���	�����(�������&���	��*�

�'��������'�	��**������	��'���
�����*�2'��'����'�������&�'���������&�	���&
��!�/�
���0�

2'��'������'
�����	��
�4�����B�'���
���
��1��2�&'8��
����
&'C�����
����2'��'���

�'�������
����	
��/�����/����	��	��'����&
��
��
(�����
���	��������2'��'����'����
���

&�������	�������*���
����������4��!0�*����'��������
��0��'
���	�
	�'������&����
	�&�	��3���'����


���������'
	���4��!���������'��������&�'�������	�
��
���&��
����&
��
��
0�'�2�/��0��'
��

����	8����
	��'
���'�����
!�����&�	���&0���&�
������	/���	��	�
����
��	�����:����*!�

�'��������	���	(�

5(,)� ���
�������4���
��
�	�������*���������
���
��������&���(��+'�����**�����
������	
��

&������
���&'�
��B
C�2'��'���
	�
�/������**�&���	���&
��&'
�
&���F��/�����!F
��	��!A�

B�C�2'��'����/���	&���3���������'�2��'
���'��������*������&�'�����&���������

�	
&&���
������&��	���	��'����
	�
����*�&����	��!����/�&��A�
	��B&C�2'��'����'����

����/���	&���'
���'�������	�������&���������*����'������	���	��*��'�������&�'����(��

�2�/��0�2��
���	��������2'��'����'����
�����
	��
���2��������'�����
	�
��
(�

5(,5� ��	
��!0�2�����4���
���'��.���8�������H���
&����������2'�&'��**����&������
�
�����2'
�����


�&����	��!����(��+'���������
�������&�������'����&�
���	���
&���	�
���&��
	��

'�-'��-'����'��/
�����*������
����
&������������'��*
���!(��+'��J��&�
�������	��	�

�	/�����	�8�B��@.C�
����
&'����
�������&������
	���'���&��������
����*���
����
&'����

��
����	-��'��/
�����*�
������&�'�����E�����	��
��!��	���'
����/��������&��������

��=������������
���
����*��'��
����&
���	����������	(�

Page 538



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���)5�

%��:�������������'��������

5(,,� .	��'�����&���	0�2��
������	&��
��!�
	
�!��	-���
		�	-���&����	��&�	&��	���2��'��'�������

�*��������/������	���*������&�'�����(��.	��
���&��
�0�2�����4�
��
�����&���	��*���&�	��

	
���	
��
���
����&����	�(�����
�������4�
���'����
		�	-�'�����!��*��'����������'
��

�
�����-��'
��������	���&�	��!�
��(�

%������#���������;;���'��������

5(,<� ���'
/����/��2���
�	�������*��'��
���
����&����	�����
��	-���������&�'������

���	&��
��!����4�	-�*���
	!���*�	����	���*�B
C�&����	��!����A�B�C�/�
�����!A�
	��B&C�


��=�
����
�4���	-(��+'������&����	��2�����4���
��
���
��*����2�"�

• $<�%�1@���@�#0��@>+�.1?�GI0�@R�@�#�@R��5��A�

• $��.���+�GG+0��.�G�GI0� G#�@�#�%?))��#RA�

• �@�%G���> �.��@>�G��.+G0�+G���GG10���@@���@�#0�%����GI����G0�

%����GI��.����G0�1@�+�%�+@1�.�GA�

• +G���@���1G�+0�,);,,��K�G+@1���I0���+G��@@�.��G��@��6 +A�

• +G����1��> �.��@>�G0���#G�+@10��>��@�?�.����$ �A�

• +G����10�)�����?��+�GG+0��+��� �1�0�G�+�@�#�.�GA�

• +G��.+G����1�.110�%�.1��+�GG+0����G��0��G.�G�+G��.�G��G�<�,��A�
	��

• �@�+G1 >�I���%�0��>����@�#0��@�+G1 >�I0����$���1�B���G�C(�

/.�+�����%����@%��!55=5.)=.6!A�

5(,�� +'���
���
��&�	&��	���
�&'
	-���*�����*����
���3��������)������&�'�����
	���$�

'��������
�2'���!�������	��
�����(��+'������������&
����2��'�	�
�/���
-��:�������������*��'��

���!����	&������	�
�!�����2'�����&�	������������
�������	���
��!��&
��!����
����&
���	(��

+'�������&�'�����'
��&�������	�����(�

5(,6� +'�����	&���2����&�	&��	����'
���'��������*��'�������&�'�����2�����'
/����/����

�����&
���	��*����'��/�	-�
	������
�	
����&����	�����(���
����*��'���'��������8��


�����������&!���=�������/���	&���	�2'��'����'�������&�'��������
	�������
	����&
��

&����	��!�*
&����!�
	��2'��'����'��&�	��	��������
��
������&�'�����2��������

�&�	���&
��!�/�
���(���

Page 539



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���),�

5(<�� +'��.	���&����	������'
���'�������&�'
���	��&
�����'
���'�������&�'�����'
�����	�

'�������������	*���
��-�����0��'
���'�������&�2����&����	��!�����
��	-�
�J��&4�

�����&�'����8��	�
�'����0��'
���'�������&�'�����-
���	�
��
�2
��/
��
�����	��������*�

�
*����
!���
&��*���&'�����	�
	���'
��
�����*�����'��/���
-��'
��0��'����2����	����'���

&����	��!�*
&���������	�2
�4�	-�����
	&�(��+'��.	���&�����'���&�	���������'�������&�

'�����������
	�������
	����&
��*
&����!(�

5(<�� +'��.	���&����2�	���	����	�����'
���'����2
����-	�*�&
	���/���	&��*������&
��������	���

�'
�����������
���	��*��'�������&�'�����2
��
�&�	��������!�*
&��������'�������

*�	
	&�
�������	(��+'��.	���&����
����&�	���������'
��������
�������	&��
������*��
�����!�

'
��	������	��'����-'�!��������(��+'����2����
����&�	&��	��
������'���
�4���

&�/��
-��*����'�������&�'���������
	���'��'�-'�
�4�	-����&�(�

5(<�� +'��.	���&����&�	&������2��'"�

�

5(<$� +'��
���
��2
�������������	��<�1�/����������(���

/7����
������@%��!55=5.5=259A�

5(<)� +'���
���
��&�	&��	���
�&'
	-���*�����*����
������&�'�����B+'����/�� ����C����
���	-���

'����(��+'������������&
����2��'�	�
�/���
-�(��+'���
�	�������2
��2'��'����'��������
��

2�������������	��'���	�����
����������*�
	�������
	��&����	��!�*
&����!(��+'�������&�

'�����'
��&�������	�#�&����������(�

5(<5� +'��.	���&����	������'
���'����2�����2��������	��'��/���
-��
	���'
���'�������
���	�

2
��
���	������(��+'��.	���&����&�	���������'
���*��'����/�� �����2����������'�	��'����

2������	�!�����������&�'�����*���������������
	���'
���'���2��������
�

������������	
�����2���/����*������&�'��������/����	(������'����'����'��������&�'�����

2
������
���!�*�&�����2��'���	�	-��'
	����	4�	-(�

5(<,� +'�������&�'��������/�����!��**�������&
�����������
��0�
�=��M0�
�/�	���*�����&
��

&����������
	����'�����&�
���/�	��(�+'����'
/����
	�*����������2'���������'��

.	���&�����������'
���'����2�����������������
&�������
��	-�*����
������&�'�����E�


	���'
���'����&�	�������&�'�����'
��	����
4�	��	��'����
&��/�����(��+'����2
��

�'���*����
	����
&���	���&
�����/�&���
	��&����	�����(�

Page 540



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���)<�

5(<<� ���2��'��'��*�����&
���B@3*���C0��'��
�����
	��'
��	����
4�	������������/����*!��'��

����	�����	��'���&
����!�
���	-�
�4��&'�	�
	�����/�	-�*���(������'������0��'����2
��

�������
�����
������'��'�2��'��
�4�	-����&��'
�����	�&�������
	���'��*�	
	&�
��


	
�!����2
��&�	���������������	��**�&��	��!��'����-'(�

5(<�� +'��
���
��2
�������������	�����
	�
�!�����(���

�������������
�������<�+�:�����������@%��!55=5.*=9/*A�

5(<6� +'���
���
��&�	&��	����'����/������	���*���-'��'�������	�
�*�����������&�'�����

������	�
�/���
-�(��+'��/���
-��2
��
�	�2���������	���*�<5���2����	-��
	���'���
	��'
��

���	�
���&
�����	��'���
������
	�
��
������&�'���������(����
		�	-����������	�'
��

���/�����!����	�-�
	����*���
������&�'���������'
��	������	��������	����
	��'
��

�
����(��@	���*��'���'�����������2
��2'��'����'��������
��2�������������	��'��������*�
	�

�������	��!�������/����
���&
��*
&����!�������
	���	�����
�	�	-��'����&�
��
	���&�	���&�

��*���*��'����������	�(�

5(��� +'��.	���&����*��	��	����
�����&�
����	
��/���2��'�	��'��/���
-������	-������'��&����	��!�

'
���B2'�&'�'
��
��
�C��	��'���
�����'
���������	������/��*���(�

5(��� +'��.	���&����	������'
���'��-��������&��2
��������*�����'��&����	&���	���*��'��

��&�����	0��'
���'����2
��	���	��&
���	��'
�����'
�����	���/�����
*�����'��������
	��

�'
���'�����4��*��'���
�4���	-�'
�����	�����	-��'����&�����	(������'������0��'����2
��

	��/�
�����!�
���
��
��
	���'��/���
-��'
��-��2	����������2����	-���'����
���	-��'��


�-���	���'
��
������&�'�����&������������
�	�����&
��!(�

5(��� +'��
���
��2
������������B	���:�����	��'��
��/�������C��	�������!�����(���

$
����:��#���@%��!55=5.2=9//A�

5(�$� +'���
���
��&�	&��	����'�����������	��*��'�������&�'�����
	�����&���	��*�$��2����	-�(��

+'������������&
�����	�������
	��
������/������	�
��������	
	��!�������	��
��
��
(�

5(�)� ����	�����
	���'
��
����/�����
���
��*���)��2����	-��'
�����	������������	��
���

��&
�����'�������&�'�����'
��	������	��
�4�����
��
���
�����&����&����������2'��'���

�'�����������&������������
����
��
������&�'������	��'��*���������&�	/���������


	��'���&����	��!�*
&����!(�

5(�5� +'���
�	��������2���"�

Page 541



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���)��

�

5(�,� �����-
�����'���
�4���	-��'���������&������
����	-�'��	��'����&����	�
	���'��.	���&����

	������'�������/���	���*�����'��*�����
����&
���	�2'�&'��	&������
����
&'������

&����	��!�-������H���'�����&
�������&�'����F����
��
	���2	���0�
�����&���
�4�	-�

���&�0��
�4���	-��	��'����	�
����&����
	���'�������*�
���-	��
��(���2�/��0��'��

�
�4���	-���������
������	�!�,���	�'��	����'�����
����=�������!��'������&!(�

5(�<� +'��.	���&����	������'
���'����&
�����
���'
���0<55�'����(��+'����2
��
����	
��/��

�����&�'��������/����	�2��'�	��'���4��2
�4�	-�����
	&�����������	�����$�B
���'��&��2�

*����C������'
��	���
���������	���'
��
����	
��/�����/����	�2��'�	��'�����������
	&��2'�&'�

�'����/��	��	�8��%
	�
��*�������������*�������
��
�J2
�4
����	��-'����'���8(��+'��

.	���&�����������'
���'�����������
	&��2
�������
4�	����J�
���!�
&&�������8��'
	��'��

�4������
	&�(�

5(��� +'��.	���&��������-���	�����
!�'�2�/����'
���*����'
�����	����/����'
��
������&�'�����

B�����'���&����	��!����C�2�����	���'
/�����	�/�
�����'�	��'���������*��
����*�


&&���������!����
����	
��/��*
&��������2�����	���'
/�����	�
	������(��+'��.	���&����

&�	&�������'
�"�

�

5(�6� +'��
���
��2
�������������	��<������
�!�����(���

$
��:���������������@%��!55=56.=5./A�

5(6�� +'���
���
��&�	&��	����'��&'
	-���*�����*����
������&�'��������
��2����	-(��+'�������

�����&
�����	�
�/���
-���	���**��4(��+'���
�	�������2
��2'��'����'���������**�&��	��

:����*�&
���	����-��
-
�	�������&�����'
�����4���������������/�&����	�/���
-��(�

5(6�� +'��.	���&����	������'
���'�������&�'�����2
��2��'�	�2
�4�	-�����
	&���*�
�	�������*�

�2����	-�0����&���������'��&'��&'�
	��/���
-���'���
	�����������2���������������	�
�����

�'��2���;���	-�
	��	������*��'����&
��&����	��!(��+'��.	���&����
-������'
���'��

�����&�'�����2
������--��	-�B
	���'
���'��*�	
	&�
���	*���
���	������������'��C�����

Page 542



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���)6�

�'
���'����2
��	���	*���
���	��'
��
�&'
	-���	��2	���'���2�������**����'���
���

������(��+'����2����
�����������2��'�'�2��'���
�4���	-����&��'
�����	�
���/���
�(��+'��

.	���&����&�	&������2��'"�

�

5(6�� +'��
���
��2
�������������	��6�����������(�

$
��:��<�����������@%��!55=56*=!./A�

5(6$� +'����
���
���2�����
��0��	���*�2'�&'�&�	&��	������������	��*�
�/
&
	�������&�

'������	�
���	���/
���	����
0�
	��'������-'��&�	��	��*���<�����
&���'������
	���'��

�'����
��
�-��
�/��������	��'�
���	-(��+'�������&�'�����2
����&
�����	�
���2	�&�	����

*��	-��
��
(��@	���*��'���������2
��'
�������'��&����	��!�*�����'��������*������&�

'����(�

5(6)� �'�����	����'���	�!�������2��'��'��
���
��0��'��.	���&����&�	���������'
�����'
��	���

���	��'�2	��'
���'��/�
�����!�*���
����	
��/��������*��'��������	-���&'�
��&����	��!�

��������'����	-�'
�����	�*���!��3������(��+'��.	���&��������	���-�/��
	!���-	�*�&
	��

2��-'������'��������*��'��&����	��!�*
&����!�
���'����2
�����	�!��*���'������/����	�

	�
��!(�

5(65� �����*��'��
���
���2���������������	����%
!����6(���

$
�3
����:���"���@%��!55=5./=/)!A�

5(6,� +'���
���
��&�	&��	����'��&'
	-���*�����*����
������&�'��������
��2����	-(��+'�������

�����&
�����	�
���
���/���
-���	��'��&��	��!����(��+'���
�	��������2�����'��/�
�����!��*��'��

�����&�'�����
	��2'��'����'��������*��'�������&�'�����2������������	��
���&�
��!�
	��

�	/���	��	�
��!��	����
�	
����*�����*���/������	�(�

5(6<� +'�������&�'�����'
����/����*�������
	��3��	���	��'
�����'����
!�&'
�����'
�����	�


���2����	�
��
���&4�����'����
��B�
���
��!��������	���C�
	��
�'��������&�����	��'��

*������-
���	�
��
(�

5(6�� +'��.	���&����	������'
���'�������&�'�����'
���
���
�����������*����	����$;���5�����

'
���**�&��/��!����	���		�	-�
��
��������	&�����,(��+'������	����'
��&'
	-���*����

���,��	2
����2��'��'������/
���*�
��4�������
���!�
	��*�&����	���	�	-(��+'���2
��

&�������2��'�
�&'
	-������'�����	�	-�'�����
	���'����*
&�����������������/�����

Page 543



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���5��

��-��
��(��+'����2�����������2��'��'��/�
�����!��/���	&��
	���'��.	���&����
����	�����

�'
���'����	���/���	&���*�&�	&������
	��/
�����
�����������
���
&��	�2�&��������(�

5(66� +'��.	���&����*��	���/���	&���'
���'�������&�'�����'
�����	�
	��	��-�
���
����*��'��

&����	��!��	�����'��*�&�����/�����2
������	�	-(��.��2
��&�	���������'
���'�������&�

'��������
�	��
��
�����	��
��&����	��!�*
&����!(�

5(���� +'������
��2
�������������	��6�����������(���

3���
�����������@%��!55=56.=!62A�

5(���� +'���
���
��&�	&��	����'��������*�
	��&�	/�����	��*�
������&�'���������2��������	��
��

�	���(��+'�������&�'����������&
�����	��'��&��	��!����(����
		�	-����������	�'
��

���/�����!����	�-�
	����B���5C�*���������	��
����/������	���	��'��&
���
�4�
	���
���

&�	/�����	��*��'�������&�'��������������	��
�(��+'���
�����2
��	����������	����
	���'��

�����&�'�����&�������	����<(��+'���
�	�������2
��2'��'����'��������
��&�	*��&���2��'�

����&��������-	���������
�	�&����	��!�*
&���������	����
��
��
�(�

5(���� G/���	&��2
�����/������'
������	���
�����'
���'�������&�'�����2
��	���
�/�
����

&�	&��	��������������&��������	����<�
	���'
�����'
�����	��
�4�����2��'�	���**����

��&��/������2��	��'�	�
	�������
�!�����(��+'��.	���&����2
���'���*�����
���*�����	�

�'����������*�/�
�����!�
	���
�4���	-(�

5(��$� +'��.	���&����	������'
��/���
-����'
���3��������&�	&��	�
����-
�����'���
&4��*�


	!2'����*����'��������&�
�����
	���'�����
&���*��'��������	��'��&����	��!������'��

�'��*���
		��8���/���	&������'����
		�	-�&�����������--�������'
���'�������&�'�����

2
��	���*���!�����������2'�	����'
�����	����	(�

5(��)� +'��
���
��2
��
���2����	��<�����������(�

������������

5(��5� @����
�	�&�	&�����	��
����	-�*�����'��
��/��
���
��
	
�!����
���
��*����2�"�

• .	��&
��������
	�������
	����&
�F&����	��!�*
&����!�&
	��	&����"�B
C������&�'�����

���'��������	*���
��-������
	�����������
��0�B�C��'�������&�'�����-
���	�
��
����

/
��
�����	��������*��
*����
!���
&��*���&'�����	0�B&C�
	!���'���&����	��!�

*
&���������	�2
�4�	-�����
	&�0�B�C��'�������&�'������**����
�=��MF���
�/�	���*�����&
��

&����������
	���**������'�����&�
���/�	��A�

• +'�����������
���	��*�
������&�'�����&
	����
�&�	��������!�*
&��������'�������

*�	
	&�
�������	�E�
	���'���&���������������	������	-��/���	&��*�����'�������&A�

Page 544



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���5��

• �����&
	��F������
	���	��������	/����-
���������
�������	&��
����'�������*��'��

�����&�'���������	�������'
����'���-'�&�������	�
�!�*�	&���	�����

��/����*�&
���	A�

• �����&
	��F������
	���	��������	/����-
���2'��'���
���**���	������	����������


	�F�����**���	���2	��F����
������-'����������	��'�������&�'��������	-������

�&�	���&
��!�/�
���A�

• .	���&������
�����&�	&��	����-
������'���
�4���	-�
	��
�4�	-����&�(������

�3
����"�B
C�.���'���
�4���	-����
��-!�H����&������
��������'����&�����	S�B�C��
��

�'����
���-	��
���
	�������'����	&�����
���	�&���
�!��	*���
���	�
	��	���������


	!���'���&����	��!�����S�B&C�#����'��
�����
	���
4��
����
&'��������&
��

&����	��!�-������
	����'��������&�'����F����
��
	������
����S�B�C�#����'��


�����
	���
�4����'���������!�*�����	��
��2����
���
��S�B�C��
���'���������!�

�
�4�����*���
����
��������	�'�A�

• .	���&�����2�����
4��
&&��	���*��'��	�������*������/�������'����M���*��'����&
��

�����
���	�E�
	���'�!�2����
�����
4��
&&��	���*��'������	����*�&����*���'���	�
��!�

�����B�(�(���	�	-�/���������	4�	-C�H��'��&'
�
&�������&���*���'�����&
��&����	��!�

*
&�������A�

• .	���&�����2�������4�
��2'��'����'��
����	
��/�����/����	�����
���!�
&&��������E�
	��

�'���������������*��&�����!��'�������J2
�4
���8�����
	&���'
	��'���4��2
�4�	-�

����
	&��*������!����������	�����$A�
	��

%���� ������;;���'��������

5(��,� .	�
������	�����'��
��/��
���
����&����	�0�2��
���	�2�B
���*���������������C��	�

���������	��*���/��
����&
��
���
���2'�&'�'
/����������������&'
	-�������'��.���(��

������/����
�����*�
	
�!�����*��'����
���
�������2(�

$
�(������<��
�����������@%�����	B5252	�	!!	*!6.2.*A�

5(��<� .	��'��&
����*��'��>	�&��	0��'���
�	�������2
���'���**�&���*��'��������*��'�������&�'�����

�	��'�����/����	��*���&
��&����	��!�*
&���������	��'��
��
(��.	�����	&�0��'��
���
��2
��

�����������	��'��-���	����*��'�������	-�	��&��
��!������
	��
�����/���	&���'
���'����

���	����	-���
�	����*����'���&����	��!�*
&����!(��+'��.	���&����&����	�����'
��	��

�
�4���	-�'
���
4�	���
&��
	���'
���'���&�	������������
��
&4��*�*�����/���	&���'
��

�'�����������2����	����*��	����������
	!���'�������
���(�

5(���� +'��.	���&����
������
�����'
���'����2
��	��'�	-�
-
�	���2'�&'����:��-��2'��'����'��

����&����������/�������
	�������	������	�
�2
!�2'�&'��������
�	
����
	�����
�	���

*����'����	�*����*��'��&����	��!(��+'��
���
��2
�������������	��6���	������(�

Page 545



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���5��

$
������
<��
;��
<�%�������@%�����	352/5	�	!!	*!6.6!9A�

5(��6� ���2��'��'��>	�&��	0��'���
�	�������2
���'���**�&���*��'�������������/������	���	�

�'�����/����	��*�&����	��!����/�&���
	��*
&���������	��'��
��
(�����&�
��!0�2'������'���
���

�����*��'�����������2
��
��
�����
��
	�0��'��.	���&������&������'
��
�����2
��*������!�


������'�������������������'������	��
��*�����������������	�������'
�����(��+'����������/
	��

����'����&����	�����	&�����*������������	��'��������*��
*�-�
�����������	���&���	�5��*�

�'�����������.���(��+'��.	���&�������
-������'
���'�����������&�����	�����������
�

/�
��������	��������
	��
����&�	���������'������������
	�������
	��&����	��!�

*
&����!�2��'�	��'��/���
-�(�

5(���� ���&�
��!0��'��.	���&����
�������&�������'���
�4���	-����&����
����	-�'(��+'��-'��'��

.	���&����&�	���������'
���'����	����������	�'��������'
�����	�
�'�������0��'����

2
��&�	&��	�
��
	�
���������
�4�	-����&�(��+'��
���
��2
�������������	��,�%
!�����(�

$
����;���������<�!7*=!76����������%����@%�����	B5252	�	!*	*!672!*A�

5(���� .	��'���
���
�0��	���*��'���2���
�	��������2
��P2'��'����'��������
��2�������������	�

�'��������*�
���&
��*
&����!�������
	���	�����
�	�	-��'����&�
����*���*��'��&����	��!A�
	�0�

�*����2����0�2'��'�����&'�
�*
&����!�2��������/�
�����������
��Q(��.	��'���
���
���'��

.	���&������&������'
���������&!�5F���P�����&���	��*������	��!��
&�������Q�2
���	�

&�	*��&��2��'��'��1�����	��'
����������	�����*�����������&�'�����(��+'��.	���&������&�����

������
�������&�'������
��&����	��!�*
&���������	�
&&���
	&���*��'��1����*����'��

����������*��'��
���
�(�

5(���� +'��.	���&�������&�������'��/
�����*��'����������'��&����	��!�
	���	����	-����

��*������������'��'��)����B5���	���C�
	�������B�����	���C�2
�4�	-�����
	&��(���+'��

.	���&����&�	&�������'
���'��
���
��������
��2�������������	��'��������*�
�*
&����!��*�

/
��������'��&����	��!(�

5(��$� ���'���-
�������
�4���	-0��'��.	���&����&����	�����'
���'����/4�����
1�(
��
�

��������4�������
(���(�%���
�
(���������	������
�������
�����	
�	
���������%
2�

4���������
���4����
���	��
(������
�	��
��
(����(
:(�

5(��)� +'��
���
��2
�������������	��6����!�����(�

���������'��������%��������������� ����������������

5(��5� ���'
/��
����
	
�!�����'����
		�	-�'�����!�*������/�����������������	��
�����-�(��+'��

�
��������2��'�2���
&'������&�'�����
	���'����
��	��2��'
/��*��	��*�������&�������E�

2'��'�����
		�	-������'��2���(�

��-����5(�"��'
��'
���	�������'��������'
���������B���
���6F�$F��C�

Page 546



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���5$�

�������

����

������������������C�
�����;���	�
�������
��	����������

&:��	������
&:���@���
���:�A�

3
��
������@���
���:�A�

&�
��%���������
�������@������:�AD�

+'��K���
� 1�	��
��!��� G3�����	��?�	-� ��������� +'�����	4�
'���"FF��	!���(&��F<3�	:5
2���
�����'
�����2
�������
���
���/������(�
�

+'��
�
���	�����
�����

��F��,,F�>����	/�����	��*������&�
�����
	�������	-����������
������	��
��
�
����	���
	��*�����
*�������
���3��	���	�B��*������!�
%�������;����G�������������E�
����5(����
��/�C�
�
�

��	&'�+
/��	�� ��-��������� �

��		!�����!� �6F����F�>��G��&���	��*�*�/��);
����'������B*����2�	-����������	�
�*�*�����������&�'����C�B��*�����
;����G������@�G#C�

����	��?�	-� � �

+'��>	�&��	� ��F���5F�>���
���
�����������	��*�
��	-��������!���
���3��	���	�
	��
&'
	-���*�����*���������&�'�����
�����	-����2����	-'�����2��'�

&&�����	����-'��������B��*�����

	������
������������E������
�
�
5(��<�
��/�C�
�

����	��?�	-� ����� �

������	��
���2	�

��F��6�F�>���'
	-���*�����*����
�����&�'�����B�)C�2��'�
	&���
�!�
��/�	-�
&&�����
���	����,;����
*�
��B����
	���	��*�����C0��;����
*�
��B-���	��*����C�
	�������	-�
�-�	��B��C�B-���	��*����C�
	��
�
����	���**�&��B �C�B�����/��C�

����	��?�	-� ���!������ �

+'��������#��
�!��

��F��$6F�>��*���#��������	��*�
���������	-������3����	-�������	-(��
��*�����'��	��
	����;�����*�
�3����	-�������	-�2��'�	�2��'����
�����!��3��	���	����*���������	��

&&�����
���	�&�	�����	-��*�
��	����������
	���	����������*;
&�	�
�	����	����B�����/��C�

G3���	&'�+
/��	�� ������!������ +'��������&�'�����
��&
���+'�������� 
��H�
 �������	����<�
	��&������
�����������	�������!�����(�

N���	�G���'� ��F���5F�>��G��&���	��*���
�2����	-��B*����2�	-����������	��*�
�3����	-������&�����C�B��*�����
	��
���
�C�
�

��	&'�+
/��	�� ��F��F��� '���"FF222(&
�����-�;
	�2�(&�(�4F���F�����
&�'����;*
&�	-;&������;
�/��;�����;�
3;����;
�6������('���

+'����!
��
��
	�
���

��F�<,,F����#������*�&
����*�
�
2*���������6��*����$�����
B����
��
	���
	��&
*��C�
B�����/��C�
�
��F��<�F�>��G��&���	��*�5�'������

	��&�	/�����	F�3��	���	����
���/���������	��
&&�����
���	�
B��3���	��	���C�B��*�����	��

���
�C�
�
��F��)�F�>��G��&���	��*�5�'������

 �		����
#�/������	���
�

�����&�'�����
&���������,�

 �&
���
�����
��
	�(�

Page 547



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���5)�


	��&�	/�����	F�3��	���	����
���/���������	��
&&�����
���	�
B�$��	���C�B��	��	-C�
�
��%����������	-�����������

����&
���	�������	��
&4��	���
�����&�'����(�

���-��	��
�����&��

	F
� �  ������
*O�
���	����	�
��	�������
�

1�2�
� �����
�
*OF����
��
	�F������

��/�� �����
B�)$;�)5�
�-'�������C�

��F��,)F�>����
		�	-����������	�
*����'����/������	���*���3�
����
&����2����	-��
	��

���&�
����2��4��B�����/��C�
�

�
����
��
�����

����������
����S�
B2�������
�
���2
��
������&��
	��
/
	�
������
*���
�!�
��
����������
��C(�

@	�����	&��������������
�'����
	��
���'������'�
���
����������(������
#�!��	��
��"�/0�
���1
�
C
		��4�����1�		��
�
�%
�������(�����
���
�%%���������	���
���
3�F������
�D������
���(
(���2���
������
-(�%�
����
���������
����������	������
���(�
�	������%��
���
��
(�
.�������%�
�����
�
��������2�4
���1
�	���
���	�����
�	����	���
���
3:�

�������
��
�	��
��
�'����

��F�5��F�>� ��	/�����	�
	��
�3��	���	��*�*�����������&������
*���������	��
���������0����

&&�����
���)��������B�;���C�
*�
��0�
	���
������������	(�
�����
���	�
	�����������*���	-���
�����!��3��	���	����*�����2���;
����*�
�����-��'���2��'�

���&�
�����
	��&
��	-0�&
��
�
�4�	-�
	��
&&����

��
	-���	���B�����/��C�

G3���	&'�
�
5�F5��.	/�����	���
���(�

���,S� @	��	����
�����
�����	���
����
�6F�$F���,"�<0�
�-���N�
�
���
�������4��	�
(2�
���(
(���2���(����
��	
3:�
�

+'����������
�

��F��$�F�>��G��&���	��*�5�
�2����	-�'������
	���2���������

�
����	���2��'�
���&�
����
-
���	���
&��B*����2�	-�
���������	��*��3����	-�D�������D�
�����&�'����C�B�����/��C�
�

G3;��	&'��
�
 ��&'2����
G��
������(��
B1 ��
���
�������

�� �		����
#�/������	���E�
������!
��
��
	�
���
��/�C�
�

�������
���6�

&���������(&�(�4"�/���
��(��
�%
����6(4��
��(
��������0�1
���O�
4�
�����:�

�	�!��
�

��F�5,6F�>� ��*�����'��	���*�
	�
�3����	-��
�F&
*���	���
�
����
��
	���	&����	-�����
&�	-�$�
2�	��2��H�
�:�����'���	��
	&��
�������	0��'������/
���*�
����&4�
2
������
���2��'���	��
	&��������
���
�����!�6����-��������
�����/��/��������!�
	��
&&����
B�����/��C�
�

G3��&�����'�H�
1�2&
����BSC�
�
�����&
���	��!�
�
��.-�
	
��

S� 1�2�
�����
��
	�(�

Page 548



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���55�

��2��	��
�
�*�
�

�F��F�$���G��&���	��*�,��2����	-��
B��'�����0�����������;��
����	�F�
-���	��*����A����
���	������;�
*����F��&�	��*�����C���-��'���2��'�
�	���-���	��&
���
�4�	-0�&!&���

	����*��������
-�(�B�����/��C�
�
�F��F��<6�G��&���	��*�$1�(�
'������
	��$1�(�
��
��F%
���	�����(�B�����/��C�
�

 �
�/�����
�����������

����S� '���"FF222(&
�����-�;
&
��
(��-(�4F
��F$��F&
�2;&
�*('������
�����'
��
���2
��������!����	&��(�

 �
&4
������
�
��

��&�	���	��	��
����&
���	��
��--����&'
	-����	���
�
����
��
	�(�

G3;����
����� ���5� @	��	����
���D��
&����	���
����
�)F�6F���5"�<0�
�
C	����%���-
�(�����
�
�
��	���	�
(2���(���
C������

��C���������
�
�
(���������	��
3<�

+'��

!�
4����

	F
� ��	&'�+
/��	�� ���!������ �
	��������
����'����
'���"FF222(&
�����-�;
	�2�(&�(�4F���F�
�
����-�;�����&�'����;��;
&����;���;�����;
�$�<����('����'
��2
��
������"�/0�
��
��������
�������
���	������
�����
��2�����
(��	�������
�����
������
����(��
���
4����������%����
��	
�
�
�����������0�1
���3<�
�
�����&�'���������'�����
�
	���
��(�

+'���	&��	��
#�����0�
1
�����
�������

�'
	-������
�����
��
	�� G3;�'
������������ ����S� /0�
�&���
�������(��4���
������
(���*���
��
���

�3�0����4�����
�
���
�(
(��
�	��
%
���
������
��	�
�����	���
���
�����
���%
�
��%
�������
(����>?�
���M������

�3�-4
1
�2�
(�
�������������������
�
����
�1��
���
������
�
+��������������
=
���
2����
1
����		��
���	
(3��������4���
=���
�
��
��������3:�
B����������(&�(�4C�

��/�� �����
B��,�;�����
1�2�
�4���
��
�C�

� G3�����	��?�	-(�
�����	��!�
��
��������
	��
�2	����!�P#���
�
�����-�����Q�
B
�&
�������!�
����	���C(���

��������	�
����0�
�������!�
�
������

+'�������&�'�������������
*�������
-��2��'�	����
	��
���&'
	-�(�

+'��
���!'��	��

��F��5�F��>G#������&
���	�*���
�
�����*�&
����*��
2*��	�����	����
��&���	��6��*��������*�������	-�*���
���'�����0���0��$�����)�����
B�����/��C�

G3;�����	-��	�.		��
�
G���3����	�!�
���	&�����	���	�
��	��

����� @	��	����/��2����--����
�
�
��!���	F��	���2	�
�����&�'����(�
�
�
����������'�
����	�

Page 549



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���5,�

�
��F��55F�>��;�#��������	�
	��
���&���	��*� �F ��F ������
B��	��	-C�


�/������	-�������	�
#�&�����������*���
���
��(�

+'�����/�� ����&����	��'��2����
����
��F��F���E�/0�
����� �������
���
��2�4��������	����������
�
�%��
���%

������	��
����
=�%���(�
��������%
%�
��2����
�����������������%
�����	���
���
��������%%�������
���
3:�

����	��?�	-� ��F�6F����� @2	��������	��?�	-�
&������+'�����/��
*����
���&�����	��2��'�
�
�����-��'��������&�8��
��&�	��	-���
�(�
�

+'��
�����
�!�
 �
	&'�

��F��)�F�>��;���/������	���*���
'������
	��$�*�
���*����2�	-�
���������	��*������&�'�����
B���'��
2	C�

G3���	&'�+
/��	��
�
�
�������
���������������

%������&�	��
��/��2��	�
 ����
�	�'�G/�	�	
-(&���2
��
�
����
�<F��F���

����&����	��;���
���4��2��
	�*�����	&'�
+
/��	���
����'�����2��!�
������'���������!����
�
��/��������	�%
�&'����
�����

+'��
��&�����/��

1�2�
�����
��
	�(� �  ��2��	�
���������

	���
���
���6�

��������	����������
*����2�	-�#��-���
��(��
��/��2��	�
�����	�'��/�	�	-(&���
�
�����6F��F�6���
�������
	�2�
�����
��
	��

+'�������	�
�'�
�
	��

 �&
���
�����
��
	�(�
��F���,F�>��;����������
������	��
����/������	��B���
�2����	-�C�
	�����
����	���B������
*�
�C�
���
�,6�;��<$��-'������� B��	��	-C�

G3��'�����
�� � ������	��666��!�
�'�����
���
	��
��&
����'��P�
�-�	�
���!�����
��
	�T(�

��/�	���
��� ��F��$$F�>��;��'
	-���*�����
*���������&�'�����
	���3��	���	�
���*����5�	�(�*�
���B��	��	-C�

����	��?�	-� @��	�
���*�
�<F�$F�����

�

5(��,� >��	-�
�*�2�-�	��
��
��������	�0�2��&
	��
4���'��*����2�	-��
�
�*�����'��
��/��

�
���"�

• +'����
���
����
���*��)������������A�

• 5������J&�����8���&
�����'�!���&
�������
��
	��A�

• �������&�'�������&
���
�����
��
	��
	���'�	�
	�
����&
���	�*���'����	-�6�2
��

���-��A�

• ,������'
��
����&
���	��*���'����	-�
����/��A�

• <������&����	��!�'
/��
����&
���	�F
���
�����	��	-�B���'
/��'
����*��
���*��C�

'����	-A�

                                                           
 
 
 
 
�6�����	-��	&�����������	���&&�����
���	�
	����3���������/������	���'
���	&�����*�
��(�

Page 550



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���5<�

• @*��'��,���������/�����!����&����	��!��2	����!�����	��?�	-�B�'
��2��'
/�����	�


�������&�	*���C0�$�'
/�����	�
����&
���	��*���'����	-�2��'���
����/��(��$������

�����!�&�����A�

• @*��'��)���������/�����!����&����	��!��2	����!���	&'�+
/��	��B�'
��2��'
/��

���	�
�������&�	*���C0�$�'
/�����	�
����&
���	��*���'����	-�2��'���
����/��A�


	��

• ������*���� �		����#�/������	�������
	�� ��&'2����G��
�������B2'���'
����'��

�
���
������0�&���������'���
���&���
	!�
	��'
/���
&'������������	��


����&
���	�*���'����	-C0��'�������	���/���	&���'
��
����&
���	��
������	-�

�����������!��'���
�����/�����������'
��
���/������������!�	-���������
��
	�

�	/�����	���������	��!(�

5(��<� +'����
���	����/��������	���*�����'��
��/��
�����*�����$��*��'���5����	-����:�&�����


����&
���	��*���'����	-(���'�����
�	�������*����������J&����8���&
�����'�!���&
���

����
��
	��0��	�!��	��'
����	&�����	����:�&�����
	�
����&
���	�*���'����	-(�

5(���� +'����		!�����!������&�'�����2
�����:�&�����
	�
����&
���	�*���PG��&���	��*�*�/��);����

'������B*����2�	-����������	��*�*�����������&�'����CQ(��+'���2
����*������!��'��

��
		�	-����������(��1�	���*��'����*��
����
��	�����
��������'��������*��'�������&�

'����(���������=��	��
���
��2
����&�	��!�
���2���B�)�%
�&'�����C(�����'
/��

��/��2����'��.	���&�������&����	�
	��	�����'
���
�
-�
�'��5�E�,���
��2��'��'��

���	&������*���/������	�(��+'��.	���&�����
���	����	���	��*��'��������*��'�������&�

'�����
	������&����	��!�*�	&���	�B'�2�/��0��'���������'
���	�����������	-�
���'���2
��

	���
	��������
������!��'�����	&����	����'����'����&����	�	���&�����
���
����
����	�C(���

Page 551



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���5��

6�� ��������&;������4�%�������������

+�������������

,(�� �����
���
�/��
���
����*�����
�	
����&����	�����0����/���	-�
���
&��*�����&�
��

�	���
&���	����'������	��&����	��������-��'���
	�����/���	-�
	�������
	���
����*��'��

�&�	��!��	�
���
&��	-���������0������	��0�!��	-�2��4����
	���	������	���������'��&��!(�

,(�� +'�������	���������'
���'�������&�'�������&����'
�����	�*
&�	-��	���&���	����

����������	���&�	��!�
��(��+'�����4�	-��
	0�������
3�
&&����
���0����&��	����

������
�4���
�&�'��0�&'
	-�	-�&�	�������
����0�
	��������������	
���!�'�-'�

�	�����!��	���	��'��&����!��	-�
������
�4���'
/������-'����/����&'
���	-������

�'���	�����!(�

,($� �
�����-��'
��	������	�����	��*�����'����	
���	
�����	���2��'�������'
	���������

&����	-��/����'���
���*�2�!�
��(��2�/��0��'����&�����������������	-0�
	��2'����&���
�	�

�����2��'��'����-'��&'
�
&�������&��
	����&
���	�'
/�����	��
4�	��/����!�	�2�

�	����	��	������
���������	/�������	��!��
:���	
���	
���
	
-�������&���
	�������

��-��	
�����2�����'�!�'
/�����	���
���	���'��������	����
	��
����'��/�	-(��.	�

�
���&��
�0��'����'
�����	�
����/��
&������'���	�����!�����	&��
����'�����������	��*�

�	&��������/���*����*�����
������������������*�����&��	�	-�������
�����!��
���	-��	���

��'����
�4���(���

,()� ���'��	���*��'�������	�/����������	��'��2����0��3�
	��	-�����
�&'�
	���&��	&���
�4�0�


	��
	�
���
&��/��'������&�&��!�&�	����*�����������0��������	���*�����������������&�������	�

�'��>?(�+'������������������	�
�'����	-������!�������&�����!��'������	� �����'
��

������	����'��&��!(��.	��
	!�&
���0��'���*���0��'��/
�����*�
������&�'����������*���

������	��
�����������&
	����-��
�����'
	�����/
����
��
�/�
������������	���(��+'������

����&�
��!��'��&
���*����
�-���������2��'�&
���
�4��
	������-
���	��E��'���
��������

�����
�������
�
�������'�����4�	-��
	�
	��&'
	-�	-����	�����2
����*���(�

,(5�  ��	-�	-���-��'���
���
		�	-�����&!����'�����'�����	&�����
��2��'��'����&������	-�

*��&������	���
�!��
�40�'�2�/��0��'����
���
�	�������*�����	��
������&!�
����
&'������

�'���������*�����&���������	��
�����-�(���

Page 552



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���56�

�������&;������

��+����= ���;;����
�

,(,� @	�������	�2�������������
/���'�	-��
���'�!�
�������
�4���*��&��0�2��'�����������	��

����&!����-�����
����&
���	��*����'��&'
	-���*������������/������	���*����������(�

,(<� +'���&���������	��
��!�
���2��'���
�4��������&�
����'��&����&�������!��*������������/��

��&
���
�4������
	���	��
�����-�(��+'��&��������*�*
���	-�����	������*����	-������

2�����
���2���'�������������	�*���*�����	&��
����&������
	���'����!��	'
	&���'����

��
��	-�
	�����*���
	&�(��

,(�� �2�/��0��'�������&!������	�
�������
����*�&���
�4��0�
	�����������'����3����	-�

����&!0������	��
��!��'������	� ���0�
	���'����&&�����*��'����&
���&�	��!0�

�
�����-��'
��
	������*�&��'����	-��
�4��(��.*��	��2���������
/���'��������&�������

�'���
�4��0��'�	��	��2�����
����	�����������/��
	!���'���&�	���
�	���
	����
/��

'����	-���/������	������'���
�4��(��@	��2�����
����'
/���������/��
���������	��
��


��	��!�����&���0���&�	��	-�
	���	/���	��	�
��'�
��'���-��
���	���'
���
4��������

��**�&����������	����
�	�2������	�������	��
��
��
�(�

,(6� %����/��0��'���
����
&'�2�����	���
&&����2��'�	
���	
����
		�	-�����&!�2'�&'�

��=��������&
��
��'�����������-�
���
-
�	����'��������*�/
�������&
��&����	��!�*
&��������

�	&����	-������
	���	������'
���'�!�
������
�	���*����'����	�*����*��'��&����	��!(�

������������;;����
�

,(��� �	�
����	
��/��
����
&'�2�����������'
/��
	��**�&��/�����
�������������/�	��
	!�

*���'�������&�������(���

,(��� �2�/��0���
		�	-�����&!�&
		��������
�����*�������	-�&�������*��'������	����*
���(��

1���'��0�&
	���
		�	-�&�	���������/�	�������*����&�	/����	-��������
��
	���
��
�

&'
	-���*�����*����
�����&�
����)��������&�
����$�����
��
	�0�������*�����	
�����/�&���

�**�&�0��������'��0�
���
���������������/������	��
���2����!��'��>�����
�����@����(���

,(��� %����/��0��'���
����
&'�2�����
�������
-
�	���	
���	
����
		�	-�����&!�2'�&'�


�/�����&��	&�����'
���'������&
����
		�	-�����&������������*��3������	��-'����
���2�

�
���������	������&'
	-����	��&�	���&�&��&����
	&���
	���	������'
���'�!�
���
����

��������	�����	�
�2
!��'
���������
�	
���(�

����?�����;;����
�

,(�$� ���'����
����	
��/�0��'���*���0�2�������������/�����
�����&!������	���2'�&'����*��3�����

�	�
���2�	-���������&'
	-�����������'���J�8�&�
��������E��'���0����*�����	
�����/�&��0�

Page 553



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���,��

����
��
	�������
4�;
2
!�0�
	���	����	�*�����&'���������&'
	-���
&4������������2'����

�'�������
��
�4��(��+'������/�����*��3������!�*����'���������2'�&'�
�������--��	-����

&'
	-�����
����	
��/������	���������2'�������
�	�	-��'��/���
	&!�
	�������*��'�������
��


���&
��&�����&�
��&����	��!�*
&����!�2'�&'�&�������������	���������������	��'��

*�������*��'����2����
�&'
	-���	��'���
�4��(�

,(�)� �����'����������*���2'�&'��'�������	����	-���
�/�
����
����	
��/��J�8�&�
������0�����&!�

&��������*��3�����������/�����'��������2	���2��'�-���
	&���	��'�����
������	*���
���	�

�'
��2����������=�������!��'��&��	&����	��������������	���
����'
��
&��/��!��
�4���	-�

�'�������������0���'���&����	��!�*
&��������
	����'���J�8�����&�
�������
�����'
��	���

����������	�
	!��
�4����	��������/���
�&���
�	�������0�
	���'
��	��/�
������&
������	����

&
	������/��������	��'������(���

,(�5� +�����/���������&���	�*����'��&����	��!�	�����'
����������/�0�
�����&!�&��������

*�����
����2'�&'����������'��������*�������'
�����/��
���&
���
�4����*�
����
���<5��

2��4�	-�
-��
�����0����������*��3���������'�������/�	-�
���
�����&
�&'��	�(�

,(�,� ����&!�&�����
�������/�����
����������&���	�*���&���������*������&�	��������

������
	��*����'��*�	&���	�	-��*��'����&
���&�	��!(�

%�������������

�������������������

,(�<� ���2�������&����	��
�*��3���������&!��'
��
���2��*����'��&'
	-���*������*������&�

'������2��'�	��'��J�8�����&�
���
	�����/�����&������
�*����'��&�	�����
���	��*��'��

����/������	���*���&'����������
�	�	;��&�
�������2'�����'�!��
!�	����	-������/�
����


��
�&�����&�
��&����	��!�*
&����!(�����&�	�������'
���'�������'���	�!�����&!�
����
&'�

�'
��2�������/��&
	�
�������	
���	
����
		�	-�����&!�
	���'������������

��/������	����-'����*������2	�������&'
	-������2��'�	��'��>�����
�����@����(�

%������������

,(��� .	��
�
�����2��'�
����&�*�&�����&!�*��������&�'�����������2��2�������&����	���'
��
	�


������	
�����
�������&!����*����	����'����&
����
	���/��2�������/���������&���	�*�����0�

�$0��)0�
	���5�����&�
�����2��'�	���*�	�������
�!�
	����&�	�
�!��'����	-�*��	�
-���

�*��'�����!���	����
	��2��'�	�#�����&��
	����&
����	����(������	��!0��'�����������&!�B,F,�


	��,F<C����&�	������'��&'
	-���*������*������������(��2�/��0��'�������	������&!����

&�	������'��������*���'���������&�
��������	�	;������(���

,(�6� %����	��'����	-�
��
���	&�����
��
	-���*����
������������
&������'��J�8�&�
�����
	��

�'���
��������'�����	�������
	����/�����!(��+'���/��
���!�2�������
�/�����!�
**�&�����/��������

Page 554



������������������� ��������#�
*����������

�
 

���������������� ���� � � � � � ������������������������������������	
�����������

� � � � � � ���,��

�*��'�������	������&!�������/�	��������	��
����/������	���	�	�	;��������B�	&����	-��)�

�����
	���$�����
��
	��C�2��'�	��'����	-�
��
�(���

(�����-?��������

,(��� +'��&����	����&
����
	�����	������/��2�
	���'��������
��-�&�������*���	�2�'����	-�

��/������	��&����*��2
����	��'��	�3����
	�������0��'����&���������������	���������

���/���������&�'����������
���*!���&
�����
	��
	��&��
���/���
	��
	������
�	
����

&����	�����(�

,(��� .	��'���&�	��3��2��2�����	�����--����
��
�����*��	����������<5��2��4�	-�
-��
������
��

������	��'��������*��'���������(��+'
��
/��
-���������/���*������&'���
�����������'
	�
	�

����
����2��������4������/��������
!(�����2������'���*������--����&�	�����
���	��*�

�	�����F���;����
��
	�������0����E�$0����	�2�'����'����0�&�;��&
����2��'���'���

&�����&�
�0����
���
	��&����	��!�*
&���������	&����	-���&��
���	
��
	��
��	��!����	�

��
&�0��	������	�	��������2��'�-����/��������!��	��'���
�	�
�����
����
	�������������	���


	�������*��'��	�2�&����	��!(��

���E�����%����������������%����;����

,(��� 1�2�
�4�����
�����
	�
��
��	���-��	-��
���&��
����
	�����	��	�2'�&'�
�*������

��&����
	��'����	-��
�
���'
�����	���/������	��2���!�
��
�������
��&
���
-�2
!�


	����*����'�	���!�
��
�-��!�&
������	�	�2����
����
�4(�+2������0��'�������H����2	�


	����/�� �����'
/��
���
�!�&�������	��'���
��
�
	�����	����	���
����	
��/������	����

����(���	�
����&
���	�'
�����	������������������/�����
��'���0��'����/�	���
��0�*���

������	��
�(���

,(�$� �
�����-�����!����	&���'
������
�����'��G
����	��
���#�/������	����
��2��4�

��������	�
�!���
		�	-�#�&���	��B��#C����
��������'��2�������
����&�-	����	��*�

�'��	������������/���'���'!��&
���	/���	��	��
���	��1�2�
�4�����
�(�

,(�)� ���
���
2
����*�	
���	
��
	����-��	
����������
��������4�	-�������*���	�2�������	�

�����	�	�������0��	��
:���
�����
��������0�*��	��	-����
���������������
�4�(��+'���*���0����

�
!�����'
��
-�����	��&����������
&'���2��'��'���2	�����*������������2'�&'�
���

����--��	-��	���&
���	���*��
:���&'
	-��*�������/������	���	������	�*����'�����/����	��*�


�����
&���	�������&�'�����B���;����
��
	�C�	�
��!(�

Page 555



Report

Appendices

Page 556



Report

Appendix A 

Audit
Questionnaire

Page 557



Brewery/ Pub Co TV Suburban Community Local

Free House Sky Edge of Centre Community

Freeholder Pool Table City Tavern

Tenant Fruit Machine City Bar

Manager Quiz Machine Pub-Restaurant

Dart Board Restaurant

Duke/ Music Box

Snack Food Separate Sports/TV Room

Pub Food

Gastro/Fine

Poor Cask Ale

Average

Good

Function Room Parking Spaces

B&B Bus Stop

Conservatory Pub Team(s) Train Station

Beer Garden Pub Events (e.g. Quiz) Cycle Spaces / Room for?

Play Equipment Disabled Access

Live music, Stand-up Disabled Toilets

Seating

Hard Surfaced

Good

Average

Poor

Space for Play

Play Equipment

Yard Seating

Seating

Covered

Heaters

Patio

Ash trays

Separate Restaurant

Bar Area

Function Rooms
Manager's

Accommodation

Letting Rooms

Other (describe)

Planned development within 400 m

SURROUNDING DEVELOPMENT

DRINKS OFFER

PUB TYPE

Quality

FACILITIES

OTHER COMMENTS

MANAGEMENT

MAINTAINED STANDARD

PHOTOGRAPHS

ENTERTAINMENT

Garden

INVESTMENT POTENTIAL

COMMUNITY OFFER

Postcode

Meeting Place (e.g.
societies)

ID

Address

Pub Name

FOOD OFFER

SURROUNDING USES

Adjacent Property Type

Residential Properties within 50 m

Public House within 400 m

ACCESSIBILITY

FRONT INSIDE YARD/GARDEN CAR PARK

Smoking Area

Page 558



Report

Appendix B 

Audit
Spreadsheet

Page 559



A
ll 

ED
 p

o
p

 1
6-

64
 

ye
a

r 
o

ld
 w

ith
in

 
40

0m

C
e

n
tr

e
 P

t p
o

p
 

16
-6

4 
ye

a
r 

o
ld

 
w

ith
in

 4
00

m
G

a
rd

e
n

Y
a

rd
Sm

o
ki

n
g

 
A

re
a

1
Ba

th
 H

o
u

se
, T

h
e

3 
Be

n
e

d
ic

t 
St

re
e

t
O

p
e

n
9,

04
1

1,
50

3
 
 G

re
e

n
e

 K
in

g
 

 
o

ve
r c

a
n

a
l

 
 

2
M

ill
, T

h
e

14
 M

ill
 L

a
n

e
b

u
t 

8,
12

4
2,

40
1

U
n

iv
e

rs
ity

, l
e

a
se

d
 

 
 

3
M

a
yp

o
le

, T
h

e
20

A
 P

o
rt

u
g

a
l P

la
c

e
O

p
e

n
7,

10
3

2,
66

0
Fr

e
e

h
o

u
se

 
 

 
 

 
 

4
U

n
ic

o
rn

, T
h

e
22

 C
h

u
rc

h
 L

a
n

e
O

p
e

n
1,

39
4

10
8

En
te

rp
ris

e
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

5
Ba

ro
o

sh
8 

M
a

rk
e

t 
Pa

ss
a

g
e

O
p

e
n

8,
72

7
1,

97
4

 
 

 
 

 
 

6
C

o
u

n
ty

 A
rm

s,
 T

h
e

43
 C

a
st

le
 S

tr
e

e
t

O
p

e
n

6,
85

5
2,

90
6

 
 E

ve
ra

rd
s

 
 

 
 

 

7
C

a
st

le
 In

n
, T

h
e

36
-3

8 
C

a
st

le
 S

tr
e

e
t

O
p

e
n

6,
85

5
3,

14
4

A
d

n
a

m
s 

A
le

 
 

 
 

 

8
St

 R
a

d
e

g
u

n
d

12
9 

Ki
n

g
 S

tr
e

e
t

O
p

e
n

6,
50

2
1,

61
7

Fr
e

e
h

o
u

se
 

 
 

9
Em

p
e

ro
r, 

Th
e

21
 H

ill
s 

R
o

a
d

O
p

e
n

5,
92

3
1,

65
6

En
te

rp
ris

e
 

 
 

 
 

 

10
Ea

rl 
o

f D
e

rb
y

12
9 

H
ill

s 
R

o
a

d
O

p
e

n
1,

60
7

p
o

p
u

la
tio

n
 

 
 G

re
e

n
e

 K
in

g
 

 
 

 
 

 

11
Pr

in
c

e
 R

e
g

e
n

t
19

 R
e

g
e

n
t 

St
re

e
t

O
p

e
n

4,
44

1
1,

44
8

 
 G

re
e

n
e

 K
in

g
 

 
 

 
 

12
Fo

u
n

ta
in

 In
n

, T
h

e
12

 R
e

g
e

n
t 

St
re

e
t

R
e

fu
rb

ish
e

d
)

6,
01

3
2,

08
8

C
o

m
p

a
n

y
 

 
 

13
Ba

ro
n

 o
f B

e
e

f, 
Th

e
19

 B
rid

g
e

 S
tr

e
e

t
O

p
e

n
6,

65
6

2,
66

0
 
 G

re
e

n
e

 K
in

g
 

 
 

 

14
Sn

u
g

, T
h

e
67

 L
e

n
sf

ie
ld

 R
o

a
d

O
p

e
n

3,
99

9
31

4
En

te
rp

ris
e

 
 

 
 

15
R

e
d

 B
u

ll,
 T

h
e

11
 B

a
rt

o
n

 R
o

a
d

O
p

e
n

5,
64

6
1,

08
9

En
te

rp
ris

e
 

 
 

 
 

16
Th

a
m

e
s

68
 K

in
g

 S
tr

e
e

t
O

p
e

n
5,

85
3

2,
93

5
 
 G

re
e

n
e

 K
in

g
 

 
 

 

17
Ki

n
g

 S
tr

e
e

t 
R

u
n

, T
h

e
88

 K
in

g
 S

tr
e

e
t

O
p

e
n

6,
03

2
3,

12
0

En
te

rp
ris

e
 

 
 

 

18
Si

x 
Be

lls
11

 C
o

ve
n

t 
G

a
rd

e
n

O
p

e
n

4,
94

3
2,

93
7

 
 G

re
e

n
e

 K
in

g
 

 
 

 
 

19
Fl

yi
n

g
 P

ig
, T

h
e

10
6 

H
ill

s 
R

o
a

d
O

p
e

n
3,

76
5

1,
28

5
Pu

n
c

h
 

 
 

 
 

20
O

sb
o

u
rn

e
 A

rm
s,

 T
h

e
10

8 
H

ill
s 

R
o

a
d

O
p

e
n

3,
15

8
1,

28
5

Pu
b

m
a

st
e

r
 

 
 

 

21
A

ll 
Ba

r O
n

e
36

 S
t 

A
n

d
re

w
s 

St
re

e
t

O
p

e
n

6,
82

3
2,

26
2

Bu
tle

r
 

 
 

22
Bu

rle
ig

h
 A

rm
s,

 
9-

11
 N

e
w

m
a

rk
e

t 
R

o
a

d
O

p
e

n
4,

35
7

1,
73

9
 
 C

h
a

rle
s 

W
e

lls
 

 
 

 
 

 
b

a
r/

re
st

a
u

ra
23

Ba
ke

rs
, T

h
e

17
6 

Ea
st

 R
o

a
d

O
p

e
n

4,
85

1
2,

79
3

 
G

re
e

n
e

 K
in

g
 

 
 

 

24
Sn

u
g

, T
h

e
17

0 
Ea

st
 R

o
a

d
O

p
e

n
5,

07
0

2,
39

1
2 

in
 C

a
m

b
rid

g
e

)
 

 
 

 

25
D

o
b

b
le

rs
 In

n
, T

h
e

18
4 

St
u

rt
o

n
 S

tr
e

e
t

O
p

e
n

3,
99

9
2,

41
7

 
 C

h
a

rle
s 

W
e

lls
 

 
 

 

26
Ea

rl 
o

f B
e

a
c

o
n

sf
ie

ld
13

3 
M

ill
 R

o
a

d
O

p
e

n
6,

21
6

3,
42

4
Pu

n
c

h
 

 
 

 
 

27
C

o
rn

e
r H

o
u

se
23

1 
N

e
w

m
a

rk
e

t 
R

o
a

d
O

p
e

n
2,

73
4

1,
40

6
 
 G

re
e

n
e

 K
in

g
 

 
 

 
 

28
Bo

a
th

o
u

se
, T

h
e

14
 C

h
e

st
e

rt
o

n
 R

o
a

d
O

p
e

n
6,

22
3

2,
02

3
 
 G

re
e

n
e

 K
in

g
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

29
G

re
e

n
 D

ra
g

o
n

5 
W

a
te

r S
tr

e
e

t
O

p
e

n
3,

39
0

1,
33

9
 
 G

re
e

n
e

 K
in

g
 

 
 

 
 

30
Fi

rs
t 

&
 L

a
st

, T
h

e
18

 M
e

lb
o

u
rn

e
 P

la
c

e
O

p
e

n
6,

36
7

2,
24

2
 
 G

re
e

n
e

 K
in

g
 

 
 

 
 

 
se

p
 ro

o
m

s
31

Em
p

re
ss

, T
h

e
72

 T
h

o
d

a
y 

St
re

e
t

O
p

e
n

5,
61

5
3,

47
0

Fr
e

e
h

o
u

se
 

 
 

 
 

32
Po

rt
la

n
d

 A
rm

s,
 T

h
e

12
9 

C
h

e
st

e
rt

o
n

 R
o

a
d

O
p

e
n

3,
94

0
1,

66
8

 
 G

re
e

n
e

 K
in

g
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

33
Ti

vo
li,

 T
h

e
16

 C
h

e
st

e
rt

o
n

 R
o

a
d

O
p

e
n

6,
22

3
2,

02
3

 
 W

e
a

th
e

rs
p

o
o

n
s

 
 

 

34
Li

ve
 a

n
d

 L
e

t 
Li

ve
40

 M
a

w
so

n
 R

o
a

d
O

p
e

n
4,

42
8

2,
63

0
Fr

e
e

h
o

u
se

 
 

35
W

re
st

le
rs

, T
h

e
33

7 
N

e
w

m
a

rk
e

t 
R

o
a

d
O

p
e

n
2,

67
2

86
5

C
h

a
rle

s 
W

e
lls

 
Th

a
i

 

36
Bi

rd
, T

h
e

73
 N

e
w

m
a

rk
e

t 
R

o
a

d
O

p
e

n
4,

38
0

1,
79

3
 
 G

re
e

n
e

 K
in

g
 

37
R

o
b

in
 H

o
o

d
1 

Fu
lb

o
u

rn
 R

o
a

d
O

p
e

n
2,

30
5

99
8

(E
a

tin
g

 In
n

s)
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

38
C

o
w

, T
h

e
C

o
rn

 E
xc

h
a

n
g

e
 S

tr
e

e
t

O
p

e
n

8,
42

0
3,

20
0

O
rc

h
id

 In
n

s
 

 
 

 

39
Si

r I
sa

a
c

 N
e

w
to

n
84

 C
a

st
le

 S
tr

e
e

t
O

p
e

n
6,

64
3

2,
31

4
G

re
e

n
e

 K
in

g
 

 
 

 
 

 

40
R

o
c

k,
 T

h
e

20
0 

C
h

e
rr

y 
H

in
to

n
 R

o
a

d
O

p
e

n
4,

23
6

1,
62

6
 
 G

re
e

n
e

 K
in

g
 

 
 

 
 

41
R

o
se

m
a

ry
 B

ra
n

c
h

, T
h

e
50

3 
C

o
ld

h
a

m
s 

La
n

e
C

lo
se

d
89

9
21

5
e

x-
Pu

n
c

h
 

 
 

42
W

h
ite

 S
w

a
n

, T
h

e
10

9 
M

ill
 R

o
a

d
O

p
e

n
6,

40
0

3,
12

8
 
 G

re
e

n
e

 K
in

g
 

 
 

 
 

 

43
M

ilt
o

n
 A

rm
s,

 T
h

e
20

5 
M

ilt
o

n
 R

o
a

d
O

p
e

n
3,

47
6

1,
69

8
(H

u
n

g
ry

 H
o

rs
e

)
 

 
 

 
 

44
H

o
p

b
in

e
11

-1
2 

Fa
ir 

St
re

e
t

O
p

e
n

5,
34

2
1,

80
5

Fr
e

e
h

o
u

se
 

 
x

x
x

45
O

ld
 S

p
rin

g
, T

h
e

1 
Fe

rr
y 

Pa
th

O
p

e
n

4,
52

5
1,

52
0

G
re

e
n

 K
in

g
 

 
 

 
 (

Te
rr

a
c

e
)

 
 

 

46
Je

n
n

y 
W

re
n

, T
h

e
80

 C
a

m
p

ki
n

 R
o

a
d

O
p

e
n

3,
54

5
1,

99
7

 
 G

re
e

n
e

 K
in

g
 

 
 

 
 

?
47

Ea
g

le
, T

h
e

Be
n

e
d

ic
t 

St
re

e
t

O
p

e
n

8,
44

3
1,

50
3

 
 G

re
e

n
e

 K
in

g
 

 
 

 
 

 S
o

rt
 O

f
48

C
a

st
le

, T
h

e
37

 S
t 

A
n

d
re

w
s 

St
re

e
ts

O
p

e
n

4,
55

7
2,

26
2

G
re

e
n

e
 K

in
g

 
 

 
 

49
C

a
rlt

o
n

 A
rm

s,
 T

h
e

C
a

rlt
o

n
 W

a
y

O
p

e
n

3,
68

7
1,

79
6

En
te

rp
ris

e
 

 
 

 
 

50
Jo

lly
 S

c
h

o
la

r, 
Th

e
1 

Ki
n

g
 S

tr
e

e
t

O
p

e
n

9,
28

4
2,

57
2

Pu
n

c
h

 
 

 
 

 
 

51
G

re
e

n
 M

a
n

, T
h

e
55

 H
ig

h
 S

tr
e

e
t

O
p

e
n

1,
13

3
29

3
M

itc
h

e
ll 

&
 B

u
tle

rs
 

 
 

 
 

52
R

e
g

a
l, 

Th
e

38
-3

9 
St

 A
n

d
re

w
s 

St
re

e
t

O
p

e
n

4,
73

6
2,

26
2

(W
e

th
e

rs
p

o
o

n
s)

 
 

 
 

 
 

53
G

e
ld

a
rt

, T
h

e
1 

A
in

sw
o

rt
h

 S
tr

e
e

t
O

p
e

n
4,

25
4

2,
61

8
 
 P

u
n

c
h

 T
a

ve
rn

s
 

 
 

 
 

54
M

e
d

, T
h

e
Pe

rn
e

 R
o

a
d

O
p

e
n

3,
88

4
1,

30
0

En
te

rp
ris

e
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

55
D

e
vo

n
sh

ire
 A

rm
s

1 
D

e
vo

n
sh

ire
 R

o
a

d
O

p
e

n
6,

04
5

2,
66

6
M

ilt
o

n
 B

re
w

e
ry

 
 

 
 

2 
x 

b
a

rs
56

C
a

m
b

rid
g

e
 B

lu
e

, T
h

e
85

-8
7 

G
w

yd
ir 

St
re

e
t

fo
r r

e
fu

rb
)

5,
73

6
2,

36
6

Fr
e

e
h

o
u

se
 

 

57
Ki

n
g

st
o

n
 A

rm
s

33
 K

in
g

st
o

n
 S

tr
e

e
t

O
p

e
n

6,
25

4
3,

01
7

Fr
e

e
h

o
u

se
 

 
 

 
 

58
A

n
c

h
o

r, 
Th

e
Si

lv
e

r S
tr

e
e

t
O

p
e

n
8,

12
4

2,
40

1
 
 G

re
e

n
e

 K
in

g
 

 
 

 
 

59
G

re
a

t 
N

o
rt

h
e

rn
, T

h
e

1-
3 

St
a

tio
n

 R
o

a
d

O
p

e
n

3,
52

7
1,

55
2

Pu
n

c
h

 
 

 
 

60
Tr

a
m

 D
e

p
o

t 
Th

e
5 

D
o

ve
r S

tr
e

e
t

O
p

e
n

4,
85

4
2,

75
3

Ev
e

ra
rd

s
 

61
Fo

rt
 S

t 
G

e
o

rg
e

V
ic

to
ria

 A
ve

n
u

e
O

p
e

n
3,

93
8

1,
52

4
 
 G

re
e

n
e

 K
in

g
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

62
A

le
xa

n
d

ra
 A

rm
s,

 T
h

e
22

-2
4 

G
w

yd
ir 

St
re

e
t

O
p

e
n

4,
88

5
2,

76
0

 
 G

re
e

n
e

 K
in

g
 

 
 

 
 

ID
EN

TI
FI

C
A

TI
O

N
PO

PU
LA

TI
O

N
W

id
e

r 
C

a
tc

h
m

e
n

t
C

a
tc

h
m

e
n

t

ID
Pu

b
 N

a
m

e
A

d
d

re
ss

Ba
r 

A
re

a
Le

tt
in

g
 

Ro
o

m
s

Su
b

u
rb

a
n

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
ity

 
Lo

c
a

l
Pu

b
 

Fo
o

d
G

a
st

ro
/F

in
e

Br
e

w
e

ry
/P

u
b

 C
o

Fu
n

c
tio

n
 

Ro
o

m
Se

p
a

ra
te

 
Re

st
a

u
ra

n
t

Ed
g

e
 o

f C
ity

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
ity

C
ity

 
Ta

ve
rn

C
ity

 
Ba

r
Sn

a
c

k 
Fo

o
d

FA
C

IL
IT

IE
S

G
a

rd
e

n
/Y

a
rd

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T

O
p

e
n

 /
 

C
lo

se
d

PU
B 

TY
PE

*
FO

O
D

 O
FF

ER
*

Pu
b

- 
Re

st
a

u
ra

n
t

Re
st

a
u

ra
n

t

Sm
o

ki
n

g
 

Page 560



A
ll 

ED
 p

o
p

 1
6-

64
 

ye
a

r 
o

ld
 w

ith
in

 
40

0m

C
e

n
tr

e
 P

t p
o

p
 

16
-6

4 
ye

a
r 

o
ld

 
w

ith
in

 4
00

m
G

a
rd

e
n

Y
a

rd
Sm

o
ki

n
g

 
A

re
a

ID
EN

TI
FI

C
A

TI
O

N
PO

PU
LA

TI
O

N
W

id
e

r 
C

a
tc

h
m

e
n

t
C

a
tc

h
m

e
n

t

ID
Pu

b
 N

a
m

e
A

d
d

re
ss

Ba
r 

A
re

a
Le

tt
in

g
 

Ro
o

m
s

Su
b

u
rb

a
n

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
ity

 
Lo

c
a

l
Pu

b
 

Fo
o

d
G

a
st

ro
/F

in
e

Br
e

w
e

ry
/P

u
b

 C
o

Fu
n

c
tio

n
 

Ro
o

m
Se

p
a

ra
te

 
Re

st
a

u
ra

n
t

Ed
g

e
 o

f C
ity

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
ity

C
ity

 
Ta

ve
rn

C
ity

 
Ba

r
Sn

a
c

k 
Fo

o
d

FA
C

IL
IT

IE
S

G
a

rd
e

n
/Y

a
rd

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T

O
p

e
n

 /
 

C
lo

se
d

PU
B 

TY
PE

*
FO

O
D

 O
FF

ER
*

Pu
b

- 
Re

st
a

u
ra

n
t

Re
st

a
u

ra
n

t

Sm
o

ki
n

g
 

63
Se

ve
n

 S
ta

rs
, T

h
e

24
9 

N
e

w
m

a
rk

e
t 

R
o

a
d

O
p

e
n

2,
38

6
92

2
 
 G

re
e

n
e

 K
in

g
 

 
 

 

64
Pu

n
te

r, 
Th

e
3 

Po
u

n
d

 H
ill

O
p

e
n

4,
81

0
2,

24
2

En
te

rp
ris

e
 

 
 

 
 

 

65
A

ve
ry

, T
h

e
69

-7
3 

R
e

g
e

n
t 

St
re

e
t

O
p

e
n

5,
25

9
1,

25
5

 
 G

re
e

n
e

 K
in

g
 

 
 

66
M

itr
e

, T
h

e
17

-1
8 

Br
id

g
e

 S
tr

e
e

t
O

p
e

n
6,

65
6

2,
66

0
(M

itc
h

e
lls

 &
 B

u
tle

r)
 

 
 

 
 

67
Tr

a
ve

lle
rs

 R
e

st
H

u
n

tin
g

to
n

 R
o

a
d

O
p

e
n

1,
33

5
20

1
(B

e
e

fe
a

te
r)

 
 

68
R

e
d

 L
io

n
20

 M
ill

 E
n

d
 R

o
a

d
O

p
e

n
3,

15
9

1,
02

0
 
 G

re
e

n
e

 K
in

g
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

69
El

m
 T

re
e

, T
h

e
O

rc
h

a
rd

 S
tr

e
e

t
O

p
e

n
6,

18
7

2,
24

2
Ba

n
ks

 &
 T

a
yl

o
rs

?)
 

 
 

 
x

70
Sa

lis
b

u
ry

 A
rm

s,
 T

h
e

76
 T

e
n

iso
n

 R
o

a
d

O
p

e
n

4,
37

6
3,

08
0

 
 C

h
a

rle
s 

W
e

lls
 

 
 

71
C

la
re

n
d

o
n

 A
rm

s
35

-3
6 

C
la

re
n

d
o

n
 S

tr
e

e
t

O
p

e
n

7,
01

8
1,

63
3

G
re

e
n

e
 K

in
g

 
 

 
 

 

72
W

a
te

rm
a

n
, T

h
e

32
 C

h
e

st
e

rt
o

n
 R

o
a

d
O

p
e

n
4,

37
6

1,
66

8
Pu

n
c

h
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

73
Ta

lly
 H

o
, T

h
e

77
 H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e

t
O

p
e

n
1,

77
1

43
3

G
re

e
n

e
 K

in
g

 
 

 
 

74
Sh

ip
, T

h
e

N
o

rt
h

fie
ld

 A
ve

n
u

e
O

p
e

n
3,

41
9

2,
06

6
 
 C

h
a

rle
s 

W
e

lls
 

 
 

 

75
G

ra
p

e
s,

 T
h

e
19

 H
ist

o
n

 R
o

a
d

O
p

e
n

6,
46

0
3,

11
0

G
re

e
n

e
 K

in
g

 
 

 
 

 

76
G

o
ld

e
n

 H
in

d
, T

h
e

35
5 

M
ilt

o
n

 R
o

a
d

O
p

e
n

2,
78

6
1,

18
6

Sp
iri

t
 

 
 

 
 

77
G

ra
n

ta
, T

h
e

14
 N

e
w

n
h

a
m

 T
e

rr
a

c
e

O
p

e
n

5,
77

1
1,

16
4

G
re

e
n

e
 K

in
g

 
 

 
 

78
Pi

c
ke

ril
l I

n
n

, T
h

e
30

 M
a

g
d

a
le

n
e

 S
tr

e
e

t
O

p
e

n
5,

18
7

3,
87

7
Sp

iri
t

 
 

 
 

79
Pa

n
to

n
 A

rm
s

43
 P

a
n

to
n

 S
tr

e
e

t
O

p
e

n
4,

08
5

1,
56

2
G

re
e

n
e

 K
in

g
 

 
 

 
 

 

80
A

lm
a

, T
h

e
26

 R
u

ss
e

ll 
C

o
u

rt
O

p
e

n
4,

27
7

1,
56

2
G

re
e

n
e

 K
in

g
 

 
 

 
 

81
Br

o
o

k,
 T

h
e

25
 B

ro
o

kf
ie

ld
s

O
p

e
n

3,
34

9
1,

43
9

G
re

e
n

e
 K

in
g

 
 

 
 

 
 

82
R

a
n

c
h

, T
h

e
10

0 
H

ist
o

n
 R

o
a

d
O

p
e

n
5,

25
8

2,
89

8
En

te
rp

ris
e

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

83
Fr

e
e

 P
re

ss
, T

h
e

7 
Pr

o
sp

e
c

t 
R

o
w

O
p

e
n

4,
39

3
2,

58
1

G
re

e
n

e
 K

in
g

 
 

 
 

 
 

84
M

a
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 M

o
o

n
2 

N
o

rf
o

lk
 S

tr
e

e
t

O
p

e
n

4,
91

0
3,

11
2

Pu
b

m
a

st
e

r
 

 
 

M
u

sic
)

85
R

e
vo

lu
tio

n
3-

8 
D

o
w

n
in

g
 S

tr
e

e
t

O
p

e
n

6,
82

3
2,

26
2

In
ve

n
tiv

e
 L

e
isu

re
 

 

86
Ze

b
ra

80
 M

a
id

s 
C

a
u

se
w

a
y

C
lo

se
d

4,
67

6
1,

63
3

e
x-

G
re

e
n

e
 K

in
g

 
 

 
 

87
C

a
rp

e
n

te
rs

 A
rm

s,
 T

h
e

18
2 

V
ic

to
ria

 R
o

a
d

C
lo

se
d

4,
96

8
2,

61
2

Pu
n

c
h

 
 

 
 

88
Pe

n
n

y 
Fe

rr
y,

 T
h

e
11

0 
W

a
te

r S
tr

e
e

t
C

lo
se

d
 
 G

re
e

n
e

 K
in

g
 

 

89
U

n
ic

o
rn

, T
h

e
15

 H
ig

h
 S

tr
e

e
t

C
lo

se
d

3,
15

9
1,

19
9

 
 G

re
e

n
e

 K
in

g
 

 
 

 

90
Fl

e
u

r d
e

 L
ys

73
 H

u
m

b
e

rs
to

n
e

 R
o

a
d

C
lo

se
d

3,
65

4
1,

65
6

Pu
n

c
h

)
 

91
R

o
ya

l S
ta

n
d

a
rd

, T
h

e
29

2 
M

ill
 R

o
a

d
C

lo
se

d
5,

51
7

2,
98

5
Pu

b
m

a
st

e
r

 
 

92
Sl

u
g

 &
 L

e
tt

u
c

e
34

-3
5 

G
re

e
n

 S
tr

e
e

t
C

lo
se

d
8,

72
7

1,
97

4
G

ro
u

p
 

93
d

'A
rr

y'
s 

C
o

o
kh

o
u

se
2-

4 
Ki

n
g

 S
tr

e
e

t
O

p
e

n
 

9,
28

4
2,

57
2

5 
p

u
b

s)
 

 

94
Ja

p
a

s
9 

Sa
xo

n
 S

tr
e

e
t

O
p

e
n

 (
re

st
)

3,
99

9
92

1
G

re
e

n
e

 K
in

g
 

 

95
H

a
ym

a
ke

rs
, T

h
e

54
 H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e

t,
 C

h
e

st
e

rt
o

n
C

lo
se

d
2,

79
3

1,
43

9
Pu

n
c

h
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

96
Q

u
e

e
n

 E
d

ith
, T

h
e

W
u

lfs
ta

n
 W

a
y

C
lo

se
d

2,
66

2
91

2
Lt

d
 (

e
x 

Pu
n

c
h

)
 

 
 

 

97
G

o
ld

e
n

 P
h

e
a

sa
n

t
16

9 
H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e

t 
C

h
e

st
e

rt
o

n
C

lo
se

d
3,

53
2

1,
31

8
e

x-
W

h
itb

re
a

d
 

 

98
G

re
yh

o
u

n
d

, T
h

e
93

 C
o

ld
h

a
m

s 
La

n
e

C
lo

se
d

1,
83

0
86

6
e

x-
W

e
lli

n
g

to
n

 In
n

s
 

 

99
Th

e
 G

ro
ve

A
rb

u
ry

 C
o

u
rt

C
lo

se
d

3,
11

3
1,

60
7

G
re

e
n

e
 K

in
g

 
 

10
1

St
 J

o
h

n
s 

C
h

o
p

 H
o

u
se

21
-2

4 
N

o
rt

h
a

m
p

to
n

 S
tr

e
e

t
O

p
e

n
4,

81
0

2,
24

2
C

a
m

b
s 

C
u

isi
n

e
 

 
 

 

10
2

Fe
a

th
e

rs
35

 B
a

rt
o

n
 R

o
a

d
C

lo
se

d
Pu

n
c

h
 

10
3

Ju
b

ile
e

73
 C

a
th

a
rin

e
 S

tr
e

e
t

C
lo

se
d

Pu
b

m
a

st
e

r
 

10
4

H
e

n
ry

's
Q

u
a

ys
id

e
C

lo
se

d
5,

42
7

3,
87

7
Ko

n
ic

is
 

10
5

C
o

w
 &

 C
a

lf
Po

u
n

d
 H

ill
C

lo
se

d
Fr

e
e

h
o

u
se

 

10
6

M
e

g
h

a
n

a
20

5 
V

ic
to

ria
 R

o
a

d
O

p
e

n
 (

re
st

)
7,

32
8

3,
10

3
e

x-
Pu

b
m

a
st

e
r

 
 

10
7

R
e

st
a

u
ra

n
t 

&
 B

a
r

N
a

p
ie

r S
tr

e
e

t,
O

p
e

n
 (

re
st

)
5,

00
3

2,
26

9
C

h
a

rle
s 

W
e

lls
 

10
8

R
o

se
 &

 C
ro

w
n

11
0 

N
e

w
m

a
rk

e
t 

R
o

a
d

, 
C

lo
se

d
3,

13
0

2,
08

6
e

x-
G

re
e

n
e

 K
in

g
 

10
9

Fi
ve

 B
e

lls
12

6-
12

8 
N

e
w

m
a

rk
e

t 
R

o
a

d
C

lo
se

d
3,

29
2

1,
94

6
To

lly
 C

o
b

b
o

ld
 

 

11
1

D
u

ke
 o

f A
rg

yl
e

, T
h

e
90

 A
rg

yl
e

 S
tr

e
e

t
C

lo
se

d
e

x-
Pu

n
b

m
a

st
e

r
 

11
2

Fi
ve

 B
e

lls
14

3 
H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e

t
C

lo
se

d
U

n
kn

o
w

n
 

11
3

O
ld

 O
rle

a
n

s
M

ill
 L

a
n

e
C

lo
se

d
R

e
g

e
n

t 
In

n
s

 

* 
se

e
 d

e
fin

iti
o

n
 o

n
 n

e
xt

 w
o

rk
sh

e
e

t

Page 561



Definitions

Pub Type
Suburban/Village Community Local
 - (local pubs situated within residential areas with a high proportion of regular local trade, usually with pub 
games and simple entertainment, often with a food offering)

Edge of Centre Community
 - (pubs situated in residential areas outside but close to the town centre, possibly within a cluster of niche real 
ale or live venue pubs, often on an 'alternative' circuit attracting residents and students from the whole city, as 

City/Village Tavern
 -  (Situated in village/city centres. Looks like a pub inside and out, lots of wood, serves ale. Customers 
include tourists, shoppers, office workers during the day with lunchtime food and could be on the “circuit” for 
younger trade in the evenings, or could still be food led in evening/weekends for city wide residents and their 

City Bar
 -  (Situated in town/city centres. Doesn't have pub feel, unlikely to serve ales, less attractive to day-time 
tourists. Trendy, young trade with emphasis on loud piped music. Customers include shoppers, office workers 
during the day and early evening with lunchtime food and often on the “circuit” for younger trade in the later 

Pub-Restaurant
 - (Basically a restaurant dressed as a pub, where the emphasis is on food, but where you order from the bar 
and where you can still purchase a drink from the bar and take it to your table - e.g. Harvester, Beefeater, 

Restaurant
 - (No longer a pub.  You have to wait to be seated and cannot buy drinks from the bar - even if there is one 

Other
 - (doesn't easily fit within any of above? Describe and number below for reclassification later)

Food Offer

Bar Snacks - Crisps, Nuts, Bread Roll or Sandwich, Cheesy Chips, Tapas
Pub Food - Fish & Chips, Scampi & Chips, Pie & Chips, Sausage & Mash, Lansagne, Pizza at or less than 
Gastro/Fine - Steak & Hand Cut Chips, Butternut Squash Risotto, Extravagant Salads, Pork Belly, etc all 

Facilties
Bar Area - you can go up to the bar and buy a drink
Restaurant - the building is still a pub with a bar area, but it has a separate room (or part of the pub) in which 

Investment Potential
Is there underused space room within the pub, or space for extensions outside, for the servcies mentioned
For live music/comedy/theatre, is there both space, AND, no adjoining residential neighbours

Accessibility
With regard to cycling, is there somewhere within sight of the pub to lock up your bike - eg cycle stands, 

Page 562



Report

Appendix C 

Pubs by Type 

Page 563



Page 564



Report

Appendix D 

Pubs by 
Owner

Page 565



Page 566



Appendix E 

Current Areas 
of  Pub Deficit

Page 567



Page 568



Appendix F 
Areas of 
Deficit with 
Closed Pubs 

Page 569



Page 570



Appendix G

400m
catchment for 
local community
pubs

Page 571



Page 572



Report Page No: 1 

 

 

Cambridge City Council 
 

 

 

To: Executive Councillor for Planning and Climate Change: 
Councillor Tim Ward 

Report by: Democratic Services Manager  
Relevant scrutiny 
committee:  

Environment Scrutiny Committee 9/10/12 
Wards affected: All Wards 
 
COUNCIL APPOINTMENTS TO THE CONSERVATORS OF THE RIVER 
CAM 
 
Not a Key Decision 
 
 
1. Executive summary  
 
1.1 The terms of office for the seven Conservators of the River Cam 
appointed by the City Council end on 31 December 2012.  
 
1.2 At the Environment Scrutiny Committee on 26 June a new process for 
making these appointments was agreed. This report updates on progress 
and highlights the next steps to making these appointments.  
 
2. Recommendations  
 
The Scrutiny Committee is recommended: 
 
i. To consider the Appointment Panel’s recommendation that applicants 

1, 2, 3 and 4 (see appendix A) are recommended to the Executive 
Councillor as the four non-councillor City Council appointments to the 
Conservators of the River Cam commencing 1 January 2013.  

 
The Executive Councillor is recommended: 
 
ii. To recommend to Council on 25 October 2012 the appointment of four 

members of the public along with three City Councillor appointments, 
to the Conservators of the River Cam commencing 1 January 2013 

iii. To write, on behalf of the Council to those Conservators whose term 
will end thanking them for their valuable contribution.  

Agenda Item 10

Page 573



Report Page No: 2 

 
3. Background  
 
3.1 At the Environment Scrutiny Committee on 26 June 2012 the 
Executive Councillor agreed the following:  
 
i. To instruct officers to arrange an open and public process for seeking 
applications for some of the City Council appointments to the 
Conservators of the River Cam.  

ii. That the composition of the seven appointees be three city councillors 
and four members of the public.  

iii. That criteria be applied to the application process.  
iv. That Council appointees be required to sign up to the Council’s Code 
of Conduct  

v. That the maximum term of office would be normally 3 x three-year 
terms with thereafter a break period of three years before a re-
application can be made.  This rule should apply retrospectively.  

vi. That a four-member panel would consider the applications and make 
recommendations to the Environment Scrutiny Committee at its 
meeting on 9 October 2012. It was agreed that the Scrutiny 
Committee would not be bound by the recommendations. 

 
3.2 As part of the new appointment process agreed in June, officers in 
Democratic Services worked with the River Manager at the Conservancy 
and local Ward Councillors to compile a list of people and organisations  
with an interest in, and/or knowledge of the river and its use. Information 
regarding the changes to the appointment process was then circulated to 
these interested parties. An advert was published on the City Council 
website, displayed in local Community Centres and placed on Conservancy 
notice boards and prominent positions along the River Cam. 
 
3.3 Applications were invited over a 4-week period running from Monday 
16th July until Friday 10th August and in total 25 applications were received. 
The ‘skills, abilities, knowledge and experience section of each of the 
applications can be found at appendix A. As explained in the June report 
and in the application form sent out and read by applicants, the personal 
information on applicants will not be published.  If the Scrutiny Committee 
wishes to discuss the specifics about individual applications it should do so 
in closed session as agreed at the June Scrutiny Committee meeting.  
 
Recommended applicants 
 
3.4 An Appointment Panel consisting of Councillors Johnson, Owers, 
Reiner and Saunders met on Thursday 30th August. The Panel assessed 
the 25 applications based on the agreed criteria:   
  

Page 574



Report Page No: 3 

i. An interest in, and/or evidenced knowledge of, some aspect of river 
use. 

ii. Not a Councillor or officer of Cambridge City Council, Cambridgeshire 
County Council, other District or Parish Councils in Cambridgeshire. 
Not a relative or close friend of any current elected member or officer 
of the Council.  

iii. Live or work in the City of Cambridge.  
iv. Commitment to serve the community, attend meetings and a 

willingness to take required training and to offer requisite time to 
perform the duties to the satisfaction of the City Council.  

v. Willingness to sign up to a Code of Conduct applicable to members of 
the public made Council appointees.  

vi. Must declare any party political membership on the application form.  
vii. Will have disclosed to the Council during the application process any 

matter in his/her background, which, if it became public, might cause 
the council to reconsider the appointment.  

viii. Committed to a three-year term of office. 
 
3.5 The Executive Councillor attended this meeting but did not take part in 
deciding who to recommend.  The Appointment Panel all agreed on the four 
applicants recommended. 
 
3.6 As stated in the June report, applicants have not been invited to 
address the scrutiny committee or Council about any application (including 
under the Council’s public speaking scheme) as the selection process has 
been based purely on written applications. 
 
3.7 Regarding the three city councillor appointments, two Liberal 
Democrat nominations (Ward and Reiner) have so far been received. 
 
 
4. Implications  
 
(a) Financial Implications – there are none.  
 
(b) Staffing Implications  - there are none.  
 
(c) Equal Opportunities Implications 
 
No Equality Impact Assessment has been undertaken as part of this review. 
Councillors will make appointments to the Conservators based on a new 
process, which is more open and transparent and invites a greater diversity 
of application. It also takes into account the Council’s Vision Statement 
where citizens feel they can influence public decision-making. 

Page 575



Report Page No: 4 

  
(d) Environmental Implications 
 
As part of this section, assign a climate change rating to your 
recommendation(s) or proposals. You should rate the impact as either: 
 
Nil: to indicate that the proposal has no climate change impact. [Although by 
its nature, the work of the Conservators is focussed on environmental 
factors].  
 
(e)     Consultation – no implications  

 
(f)     Community Safety – no implications  
 
 
5. Background papers  
 
These background papers were used in the preparation of this report: 
Previous report to the Environment Scrutiny Committee – 26.06.12 
Minutes of the Environment Scrutiny Committee – 26.06.12  
 
 
6. Appendices  
 
Appendix A: Application forms received (‘skills, abilities, knowledge and 
experience’ section only) 
 
 
7. Inspection of papers  
 
To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report 
please contact: 
 
Author’s Name: Glenn Burgess  
Author’s Phone Number:  01223 457169 
Author’s Email:  Glenn.burgess@cambridge.gov.uk  
 
 

Page 576



P
age 577



P
age 578



P
age 579



P
age 580



P
age 581



P
age 582



P
age 583



P
age 584



P
age 585



P
age 586



P
age 587



P
age 588



P
age 589



P
age 590



P
age 591



P
age 592



P
age 593



P
age 594



P
age 595



P
age 596



P
age 597



P
age 598



P
age 599



P
age 600



P
age 601



P
age 602



P
age 603



P
age 604



P
age 605



P
age 606



P
age 607



P
age 608



P
age 609



P
age 610


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5a Hackney Carriage Fair Fare Scheme
	Fair Fare Report

	5b Grand Arcade Car Park Repairs
	Grand Arcade Car Park Repairs Report

	6 Update on Recycling
	City of Cambridge Kerbside Waste Analysis
	Appendix B Recycling Report

	7 Introduction of Dog Control Orders
	8 Cambridge City Council Climate Change Strategy
	Appendix A Cambridge City Council Climate Change Strategy
	Appendix B - Summary of Consultation Responses

	9 Adoption of Interim Planning Policy Guidance (IPPG) on the Protection of Public Houses in Cambridge
	ESC Appendix A
	ESC Appendix B
	ESC Appendix C

	10 Council Appointments To The Conservators Of The River Cam
	Appendix A


